
 

 
Cambridge City Council 

 

 

 
 

 
i 

CIVIC AFFAIRS 
 

To:   Committee Members: Councillors Rosenstiel (Chair), Cantrill (Vice-Chair), 
Benstead, Herbert, Johnson and Pitt 
 
Alternates: Councillors Ashton and Boyce 
 

Despatched: Tuesday, 18 June 2013 

  

Date: Wednesday, 26 June 2013 

Time: 6.00 pm 

Venue: Committee Room 1 & 2 - Guildhall 

Contact:  Glenn Burgess Direct Dial:  01223 457013 
 

 
AGENDA 

 

1   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   
 

2    MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING  (Pages 7 - 32) 
 

 To approve the minutes of the meetings held on 17 April 2013, 13 May 
2013 and 23 May 2013.  
 

3    DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   
 

 Members are asked to declare at this stage any interests that they may 
have in any of the following items on the agenda.  If any member is unsure 
whether or not they should declare an interest on a particular matter, they 
are requested to seek advice from the Head of Legal Services before the 
meeting.  

   

4   PUBLIC QUESTIONS   

Public Document Pack



 
ii 

5   ANNUAL REVIEW OF THE EFFECTIVENESS OF INTERNAL AUDIT - 
2012-13 (Pages 33 - 44) 
 

6   HEAD OF INTERNAL AUDIT - ANNUAL AUDIT OPINION 2012-13  
(Pages 45 - 64) 
 

7   ASSURANCE FRAMEWORK AND DRAFT ANNUAL GOVERNANCE 
STATEMENT 2012-13 (Pages 65 - 96) 
 

8   STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2012-13 (Pages 97 - 232) 
 

9   ANNUAL REPORT ON PREVENTION OF FRAUD & CORRUPTION 
POLICY AND IMPLICATIONS OF THE BRIBERY ACT (Pages 233 - 260) 
 

10   UPDATE ON ACTIONS TO ADDRESS ISSUES EMERGING FROM THE 
BUDGET FORECASTING ERROR (Pages 261 - 268) 
 

11   REVIEW OF THE COUNCIL'S CONTRACT PROCEDURE RULES (PART 
4G OF THE CONSTITUTION) (Pages 269 - 328) 
 

12   ELECTIONS MAY 2013 (REVIEW), ELECTIONS IN 2014 (ISSUES) 
INDIVIDUAL ELECTORAL REGISTRATION AND CONSULTATION ON 
ELECTORAL FRAUD  (Pages 329 - 336) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  
 



 
iii 

Information for the Public 
 
Location 
 
 
 
 

The meeting is in the Guildhall on the Market Square 
(CB2 3QJ).  
 
Between 9 a.m. and 5 p.m. the building is accessible 
via Peas Hill, Guildhall Street and the Market Square 
entrances. 
 
After 5 p.m. access is via the Peas Hill entrance. 
 
All the meeting rooms (Committee Room 1, 
Committee 2 and the Council Chamber) are on the 
first floor, and are accessible via lifts or stairs.  
 

 
 
 

Public 
Participation 

Some meetings may have parts that will be closed to 
the public, but the reasons for excluding the press 
and public will be given.  
 
Most meetings have an opportunity for members of 
the public to ask questions or make statements.  
 
To ask a question or make a statement please notify 
the Committee Manager (details listed on the front of 
the agenda) prior to the deadline.  
 

• For questions and/or statements regarding 
items on the published agenda, the deadline is 
the start of the meeting. 

 

• For questions and/or statements regarding 
items NOT on the published agenda, the 
deadline is 10 a.m. the day before the meeting.  

 
 
Speaking on Planning or Licensing Applications is 
subject to other rules. Guidance for speaking on these 
issues can be obtained from Democratic Services on 
01223 457013 or 
democratic.services@cambridge.gov.uk.  
 
 
 
 

 



 
iv 

Further information about speaking at a City Council 
meeting can be found at; 
 
https://www.cambridge.gov.uk/speaking-at-
committee-meetings  
 
Cambridge City Council would value your assistance 
in improving the public speaking process of 
committee meetings. If you have any feedback please 
contact Democratic Services on 01223 457013 or 
democratic.services@cambridge.gov.uk. 
 
 

Filming, 
recording 
and 
photography 

The Council is committed to being open and 
transparent in the way it conducts its decision-making.  
Recording is permitted at council meetings, which are 
open to the public. The Council understands that 
some members of the public attending its meetings 
may not wish to be recorded. The Chair of the 
meeting will facilitate by ensuring that any such 
request not to be recorded is respected by those 
doing the recording.  
 
Full details of the City Council’s protocol on 
audio/visual recording and photography at meetings 
can be accessed via: 
 
http://democracy.cambridge.gov.uk/ecSDDisplay.aspx
?NAME=SD1057&ID=1057&RPID=42096147&sch=d
oc&cat=13203&path=13020%2c13203  
 

 

Fire Alarm In the event of the fire alarm sounding please follow 
the instructions of Cambridge City Council staff.  
 

 

Facilities for 
disabled 
people 

Level access to the Guildhall is via Peas Hill. 
 
A loop system is available in Committee Room 1, 
Committee Room 2 and the Council Chamber.  
 
Accessible toilets are available on the ground and first 
floor. 
 
Meeting papers are available in large print and other 
formats on request prior to the meeting. 
 

 



 
v 

For further assistance please contact Democratic 
Services on 01223 457013 or 
democratic.services@cambridge.gov.uk. 
 

Queries on 
reports 

If you have a question or query regarding a committee 
report please contact the officer listed at the end of 
relevant report or Democratic Services on 01223 
457013 or democratic.services@cambridge.gov.uk. 
 
 

 

General 
Information 

Information regarding committees, councilors and the 
democratic process is available at 
http://democracy.cambridge.gov.uk/.  
 
 

 

 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



�����������	
� � ��
��

���������	��������

�

�
�
�

��

�������������� �����	��������
� �����������������
�
	
���
��� � ���������	
�  ����� !�"��	#�� $�
��
%���� !&�����"��	#�� '�	�"��%�
(��
�����)�	*�	%�� ��
%��
���
�+�%%�
�
����
����
�����
���
�����
��
����
,��
�	����%"����������!���������	� ��-#�
./���%�������������	���	���
%���	�0�	����
���
�$�
��	��
�!���������	�0��%"#���
�
������
��	
���
����
�"����./���%�������%����%%��1��-
���
(�	��%�	����$�
��	��
��(���
�)�	
�����
)��
����,�2���0�	����
��0�����+�2"�
�����%%���'���2�	��3����� �	2�

��
�
���
���
���������
����

����
�����
���
0�	��4�5��	�
,��� 	�5��
'�	-�)�
2
���
�

���� !���"���#� ��"���� !����$"��%�

�

&'(&)(���� ������������
��*��
���
�
�
6"�	��5�	����������2��
���	��*
�������
�

&'(&+(���� ,����
����
������
��
����
�
6"�	��5�	�������%�	�
%
�
����	�
���
�

&'(-.(���� 	�*����/������
��
�
6"�	��5�	�������*����7��
%���
���
�

Public Document Pack Agenda Item 2

Page 7



�����������	
� � ��
��

���������	��������

�

�
�
�

��

&'(-&(���� �����
�	��
�������
��������������
��
���
���*�������

�
�
�
���

����
�����
�������0�
�
6"�������%%���	������
��������
��%����	���	%��	���%"���"����./���%������%�����2�
%"�� ��%���
� �	���
�
� %�� �

	�

� �

��
� 	��
�
� *�� %"�� *�
2�%� �		�	� ��
� %"��

�*
�7���%� ����
%�2�%���� *�� .	�
%� ��
� 8���2�� �����
�
� %�� %"�� �����
��%����
	���	%� 5�	�� %5�� ��*�������� ������*��� 	���	%
� �	��� .	�
%� ��
� 8���2�� ��
� ��
�����
��%���� ��%���� +���� !5"��"� 5�
� 
�*
�7���%��� ��
�� ��*�������� ������*���
�	��	�%��%"�����%��2#����
�
6"�� �����%%��� 	�
����
� ��%� %�� �/���
�� %"�� �	�

� ��
� ��*���� �	��� %"�� ��	
%�

��%���� ��� %"�� ���%��2�� 6"�� �"��	� 	����
�
� ���*�	
� %�� *�� ���
���� ���

�
��

��2�����������%
����%"���/���%�	���	%�
�	��2�%"�
�
�

�������
�
���������	� )�	*�	%� �
-�
� ��	� ���	�����%���� ��� %"�� �	���

� %�� 
�%�� ��
�
7��
%����
� %"�� 
%	��%�	�� ��� %"�� �����%%��� 	���	%�� 6"�� �"���� ./���%����
	�
���
�
�%"�%��		�	
�"�
�*�����
��%����
����%"���������9
�*�
2�%���	���
%���
�
.	�
%���
�8���2��%"���������9
��/%�	������
�%�	
��"�
�*�����
-�
�%����
�	%�-��
��� ��
����
��%� �/%�	���� 	����5�� :%� 5�
� ��%�
� %"�%� �� ����	� ������ "�2"��2"%��2�

�������� ��%���
� �2���
%� %"�� 
�/� 	�������
�%���
� *�� .	�
%� ��
� 8���2�� 5�
�

����
�%"����
%����	��	��%��
%	��%�	����	�%"��	���	%��
�
���������	� )�	*�	%� 	�7��
%�
� %"�%� �� ;������ .�2��
"9� ��	
���� ��� %"�� 	���	%� *��
��
��������*���%��%"����*�����6"���"����./���%���������	��
�%"�%������
�/������
%"�� 	���	%� !��%����+���#�"�
�*������
����*������������*�����
� �%�5�
��2	��
�
%"�%�������	��2�
����	��	���	%�5���
�*���%%��"�
��
�
����������	�	
�	����
��	�����������������������

�����������
��������������
����
�����	������������	
�	�����
���	����
�
���������	�'�	�"��%�(��
����7��
%����
�%"��	�%���������	�%"�������%%���	���	%�
*���2� �/���%�� 6"�� �"���� ./���%���� 	�
���
�
� %"�%�� 
��� %�� %"�� ���
��
��		���%����*�%5����%"���	���

��

��
���
�%"��
%�����2��

��
��
��%����
���%�5�
�

����
������	��	��%��%����-��%"��	���	%���*��������������*�����
�
���������	� ��
%��
��
-�
�5"�%�����������������*�	�
�	�%����"�
�%�-���������
��� %"�� ���������� ��	���
%
�� 6"�� �"���� ./���%���� 	�
���
�
� %"�%� %"�� '�
����
6�	��0%	�%�2��!'60#��
��	�
��%�
�%�������%��2����6"��./���%�������0��%��*�	�
*���	��*���2�	�������
�
���	����	�����*������������������<�%�*�	��6"��,��
�	�
��� %"���������������	��
� %"�%����*�	
����6"��./���%����"�
�������	
�2"%����
%"��*�
2�%��	���

����
��2����%��%"���	�
��%�%�������%"��'60��)��
%�%�
�%"�%�

Page 8



�����������	
� � ��
��

���������	��������

�

�
�
�

��

���*�	
� ��� 6"�� ./���%���� "�
� �
-�
� %"�� ���	��	��%�� 7��
%���
� 
�	��2� %"�
�
�	���

���
�"�
�*����2�����
�%�
���%�	����
5�	
�*��������	
���
��
6"�������%%���	������
���	���	%� �	���.	�
%���
�8���2���%�����2�%"��	� 	����5�
��%�� %"�� �		�	
� ��� %"���������9
� ������������
�����2� ��� 	�
���%� ��� %"�� ����=���
�������������	�*�
2�%���
�
���������	�+�%%��
-�
� ��	����	�����%������� %"�� 	��%����
����� %"�� �

�����
�"�5�
%"��	���"�
��2����%"������%���
�����2��"�
� ��
�%��������2���2� �

���5�%"���%"��
*�
2�%��.	�
%���
�8���2�	�
���
�
�%"�%��5"��
%�%"���	�2�����
��	������%"���		�	�
	������
����/������
��%"����
�����2���
�
�*
�7���%���%�	���-��2��
>�
%���%
�
"�
�*���������%	�*�%��2����%�	���
�
���������	� +�%%� 7��
%����
� 5"�� �����	�
� 	�2�	
��2� %"�� �������9
� ����������
�	���

�
�"�
���%�*�����
��%����
�%"	��2"�%"��	�2���	���
�%��	���

��.	�
%���
�
8���2������	��
�%"�%���
�%"���		�	��	�2���%�
�5�%"���%"����
�����2��	���

���
�
5�
�%"�	���	����%
�
�����%"����	���������������	���

��%"����
�%��	���

�"�
���%�
�
��%����
� �%�� :�� 	�
���
�� %���� ��	%"�	�7��
%���� �	������������	�+�%%��.	�
%���
�
8���2������	��
�%"�%�������	
�������%	�����
���
�%�%	�����	���

�
�5�	��
�
���%�
%�� %"�� 	�
-� ��� ��%�	���� ���%	��� �����	��� :%� 5�
� ��
�� ��%�
� %"�%� %"�� ��
�����2�
�	���

� �
�
� *�� %"�� ��%�� �������� 5�
� ��	�� ������/� ��
� ���*�	
����� ��
�
.	�
%���
�8���2�
�
���%�%"��-�%"�%��%�5�
�����

�	������%���	���	��
����
�
:�� 	�
���
�� %�� �� 7��
%���� �	��� ���������	� $�
��
%���� 	�2�	
��2� %"�� ?@$.4A�
	�
��%
��.	�
%���
�8���2������	��
�%"�%�%"�
��5�	����%�����

�	����
	�����*��
%"����
����%
����*�%�*��%"��5���%"����
�����2�5�
���
�	%�-�����
�
���������	�)�	*�	%��
-�
���� %"��	���"�
��2����%"������%��� ��������2����%"��'60�
��
���5�
� %"�� ��-����
��	������ %"���	�2������		�	��.	�
%���
�8���2� 	��%�	�%�
�
%"�%��%�5�
���%���

�*���%��*��
�����%�����*��%�%"��
��	������%"���		�	��6"�
�5�
�
�����		�	��
��%����
�*�%�%"�	������
�"����*�����%"�	
���
�
���������	� )�	*�	%� 	�7��
%�
� �� 	�
���
�� �	��� %"�� (�	��%�	� ��� $�
��	��
�
�����	���2� %"�� ��
�����2�� 6"�� (�	��%�	� ��� $�
��	��
� �����	��
� %"�%� ����
��	
���
� "�
� *���� ���*�	�
� ��
� 
�%�
� ��
� "�� "�
� ��	
������� ��
�	%�-���
�"��-
����%"��
����	��%���	
���
�����	
�	�%���
��%�����"��2�
��:%�5�
���%�
�%"�%��

��� %�� %"�� %�%��� ��2�	�� ��� 
�����2�� *���2� ��
�%�
� ����		��%���� ��� �
>�
%���%�
�		�	�"�
���
�%�����2���2��

��
��
�
:�� 	�
���
�� %�� �� ��	%"�	� 7��
%���� �	��� ���������	� )�	*�	%�� %"�� (�	��%�	� ���
$�
��	��
������	��
�%"�%�����"�
����5��	���"�
��2����%"������%�����������2����%"��
'60���
���5�
�%"�%�%"��
��	������%"���	�2������		�	���

Page 9



�����������	
� � ��
��

���������	��������

�

�
�
�

B�

:�� 	�
���
�� %�� �� 7��
%���� �	��� ���������	�  ��
%��
�� .	�
%� ��
� 8���2�
�����	��
� %"�%� �%�5���
���%�*������������������*��� %�����%�����%�� ���-� ��	� %"��
�	�2�����
��	������%"���		�	��:%�5�
�
����
���	������	%��%�%���
��%����"�5�%"��
�		�	� "�
� �	�2	�

�
� ��
�%��%�
� %"	��2"� %"�� ��
��� ��
� ����
��2� %"��
�	���

����	��	��%������
�
���������	�)�	*�	%��
-�
����.	�
%���
�8���2����%�%"�%� ��
���
����������	
��	�%"��
���	�����	���

�"�
�*�����%�����%��.	�
%���
�8���2������	��
�%"�%��5"��
%� %"��
�	�*��������
�"����
%�	%�
�5�%"�"������		�	���%�5�
�%"�����*���%�����%"���	���

�
%��"�2"��2"%���
��	����%�%"���		�	�%"�%�"�
����
�
�%"����>�	��

�������������	�
)�	*�	%��2	��
�5�%"�%"�
��

�

���%���
�
���������	� '�	�"��%�(��
���� �2	��
� %"�%�� 5"��
%� ���� %�
-� ����
� *�� �	���� %��
"������		�	���%�5�
�%"�����*���%�����%"���	���

�%�����-�%"���		�	����5"��"�5�
�
�����	���2�� :%� 5�
� 
�22�
%�
� %"�%� %"�� �		�	�5�
� ����� ���-�
� ��� *�� ����
��%�
��
��%�5�
�%"�	���	���

��%����%"�%�%"���	���

�*������
�
���
�
6"�� (�	��%�	� ��� $�
��	��
� �����	��
� %"�%� %"�� �		�	� "�
� *���� "�2"��2"%�
�

�	��2� %"�� ��/%� 
%�2�� ��� 	���������%����� *�%� ����	%���%���� %"�� %����2� ��� %"�
�
����%�%"�%��%�5�
���%�	�%"����*����%�������%"��'60���
�
���������	�$�
��
%���� ���%� %"�%�����		�	� ��� %"�� ��
2�	�5���
�"����*�������-�
�
���� �"��
%� ���������	�  ��
%��
� �2	��
� 5�%"� %"�
�� "�� 
�
� "�2"��2"%� %"�%� %"��
��	���
%��2� �		�	� "�
� "�
� ��� �����%� ��� %"��5��� %"�� �������� "�
� ������
� �%
�
��%�	��
���
��2���
�
���������	� ��
%��
� 	��%�	�%�
�"�
����5� %"�%� �������*�	�
�	�%������� %"��'60�
5�
����
�
�����	
�	�%��"�2"��2"%������

��
��%������	���	�
%�2�����%"���	���

��
���������	�$�
��
%����	�
���
�
�%"�%�	���������%������	���	����%"���	���

�5���
�
*����	��*����������%"�����	%"�	�
�	�%������
�
6"�� ./���%���� ���������	� ��	� ��
%���	� 0�	����
� ��
� $�
��	��
� 7��
%����
�
%"�����
���	�
��"�����/%��
������
����	���������
������%��:%�5�
�
�22�
%�
�
%"�%�%"�%�%"�������
��������	�����
����	���2�	�
����%"��'60�5���
���-���%���
��	�
%���
��%����5"�	��
����%���
�"�
�����		�
����
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

Page 10



�����������	
� � ��
��

���������	��������

�

�
�
�

C�

���������	�)�	*�	%�7��
%����
�5"��
��"��� ��	2�� ���	��
�� ���	�
�	��
�!D����#�
���	� �� 	���%������ 
"�	%� ��	��
� !1����(����*�	#� "�
� ��%� *���� ���-�
� ��� ��
�
7��
%����
��6"��(�	��%�	����$�
��	��
�	�
���
�
�%"�%��
�%"�����	��
����������
����	���5"�	��%"����������5�	���
�
�%��
����2���	2����	�����
������2�	�
�%"��
�		�	�"�
���%�*��������
��%������
�*����:%�5�
���
����%�
�%"�%���
�%"��'60�5�
�
��	�����"� �� ;��	5�	
� ���-��29� 
������%� ��
� ����
�
���	�� ��� ��%�	�� 
���
�
	�%"�	�%"�����		��%����	�
���
��%"���		�	�"�
���%�*����7���-����
��%����
���
�
�"��
%����������	�)�	*�	%���-��5��
2�
�%"�
��"�����%�%"�%�
��"�����	2���"��2��
���%"����2�	�
�
"���
�"����*����7��
%����
���
�
���������	�+�%%������	��
�%"�%�%"	��2"�%"��'60��	���

�./���%�������������	
�
"�
� "�2"��2"%�
� �"��2�
� ��� %"�� ��2�	�
� ��
� 5�	�� 2����� 
�%�
���%�	��
�/�����%���
�*��������	
��)���2	��
�%"�%�2	��%�	�
�	�%�������%"�
��	���

�5���
�
*��*������������
�
:��	�
���
��%����7��
%�����	������������	�+�%%��.	�
%���
�8���2������	��
�%"�%��
5"��
%� �%� 5�
� %"�� 	�
���
�*���%�� ��� %"�
� �����%%��� %�� ���	���� %"�� �	���
�
�
��%����������%"������%�%"���	���
�
�������

	�

�
�%"���

��
��
�
�
.	�
%���
�8���2����%�%"�����%��2��%�E�������
�
�
���������	�)�	*�	%� 
�22�
%�
� %"�%� %"�� 	���� ��� ��%�	���� ��
�%� *�� 	����5�
� ��
�

�
��

�
� �����	�� 
�%���� *�� %"�
� �����%%���� 6"���"���� ./���%���� 	�
���
�
�
%"�%��5"��
%� %"�	��5�	��������
�	��������%
����%"����%�	������
�%��	���

��%"��
�����%%��� 
�
� "���� ��� ����	%���%�� %�� ����%� ��%�� %"�� ��
�%� %���9
� 5�	-�
�	�2	������ :%� 5�
� ��%�
� %"�%� %"�� �����%%��� "�
� ��	��
�� 	����5�
� ��
�
����%%�
���%��%"������=�B���
�%�+�����
�
6"�� (�	��%�	� ��� $�
��	��
� �����	��
� %"�%� ��� ������� 	���	%� ���-��2� �%� %"��
�����%�����

� ��� :�%�	���� ��
�%� 5���
� *�� *	��2"%� %�� �� ��%�	�� ���%��2� ��� %"��
�����%%�����
�����
���	��%"��*�
�
������	%"�	�
�
��

������
�

:�� 	���%���� %�� 	�������
�%���� C� �	��� %"�� .	�
%� ��
� 8���2� 	���	%�� %"��
./���%���� ���������	� ��	� ��
%���	� 0�	����
� ��
� $�
��	��
� 7��
%����
�
5"�%"�	� ��� �
����%���� ������� 5�
� ��		��%��� ��� ������ 5�%"��� %"�� 4�������
(���	%���%��6"���"����./���%����	�
���
�
�%"�%�����	%��	���*	��
���	��	�%��
)$��������
��%"�	��5�
���%���
����������	��	�%�����������	�%"�
��.	�
%���
�8���2�
"�
� 	�������
�
� %"�%� �� 
�������� ������� *�� ��������%�
� ��	� %"�� 4�������
(���	%���%���

Page 11



�����������	
� � ��
��

���������	��������

�

�
�
�

��

���������	� $�
��
%���� ��%�
� %"�%� %"�� ��%�� �������� "�
� ��5��
� *���� ��	��
�����%���� �%� ���2�	� %�	�� ���������� �������2� ��
� 	��
�
� �����	�� %"�%� %"��
�	���
�
�	����5����%"��������������
���!��%���������%"����%����+���#����������%�
%"�
�� 6"�� �"���� ./���%���� 	�
���
�
� %"�%� %"�� 	����5� 5���
� �"��-� %"�%� %"��

�	��

"��%� ��
��� 5�
� ��%� ��	� ��	��
�� ��
� 5���
� ��%� �"��2�� %"�� ���	����
���	���"����%"����%����������%���%
������������������2���
�
���������	�'�	�"��%�(��
�����
-�
�"�5��	�2	�

����%"����%����+����5���
�*��
	���	%�
� *��-� ��
� ��� �%� 5���
� *�� ����� ��	� ���*�	� 
�	�%����� 6"�� �"����
./���%���� �����	��
� %"�%� ��� ��
�%�� 	���	%� 5���
� *�� *	��2"%� *��-� %�� %"�
�
�����%%���*�%�
"��5���
��/���%�
����������%
��
��"��
�%"���	���	����%����
������5�
��%5�	��'�
����%��*���	�2	�

�
��%����������	���������
�
���������	� +�%%� 
�22�
%�
� %"�%� %"�� ,��
�	� ��� %"�� �������� 
"���
� ��
�� *��
���
��%�
� ��� ���� �"��2�
� %�� %"�� 
%	��%�	�� ��� %"�� $�
��	��
� (���	%���%�
!��%���������%"����%����+���#��6"���"����./���%���������	��
�%"�%�%"�
�5���
�*��
%"����	�����	���

���
�
:�� 	���%���� %�� %"�� 
%	��������2� ��
� 
���������%���� ��� %"�� �������9
� ����������

���
���� ��-��2� �	���

�
� !��%���� E� ��� %"�� ��%���� +���#� ���������	� )�	*�	%�
���"�
�
�
�%"�����
���	���	��
�	�%�������%"��'60��:%�5�
�
�22�
%�
�%"�%�%"��
���������� 	���%� ��� %"�� 0%	�%�2�� ��
� $�
��	��
� 0�	�%���� �����%%��� *��

%	��2%"���
���
�%"�%��%�*��2�������2	��%�	�	�������
�	�%���
��2�%"��*�
2�%��6"��
�"���� ./���%���� 	�
���
�
� %"�%��5"��
%� ���
%�%�%�������� %"�� *�
2�%� 	�7��	�
� ��
	�������
�%�����	���6"��./���%�����%"���	���

�����
�*�����-�
��%�%����
�	��
��	��
�	�%�������%"��'60���
�
���������	�)�	*�	%�5������
�%"�
����	���"��*�%�	�7��
%�
�%"�%�%"���	���

�*��
���-�
��%����%������	�%"������=�B�*�
2�%���"��
%�%"��,��
�	���
��5������
�%"��
�	���
��� ��	� ��	�� 
�	�%���� ��� %"��'60�� "�� ���%� �%� ����-���� %"�%� %"�
� ���	���"�
5���
� "���� �
��%����
� %"���		�	
� ��� ������	��	���

�
� ��	� %"������=���*�
2�%��
���������	�+�%%���%�
�%"�%�����B�����������	
�	������
������
����%"��'60���
�%"��
 �
2�%�0�%%��2�$���	%�! 0$#���
�%"�%�%"���		�	�"�
���%�*�����
��%����
����
�
6"�� ,��
�	� ��%�
� %"�%�<���
�%���� ���������	
� 5�	�� 2����� %"�� ����	%���%�� %��
����%� ��%�� 
�
��

���� ��� %"�� '60� �%� 6"�� ./���%���� ���%��2� ��� 0��%��*�	�
������ ���������	� )�	*�	%� 
%�%�
� %"�%�� 5"��
%� ����
�%���� ���������	
� "�
� *����
����%�
�%��%"�����%��2�%���
-�7��
%���
����%"��'60��%"�
�����
���%�*��
�����
�
����� 
�	�%����� ���������	� $�
��
%���� �2	��
� %"�%� 6"�� ./���%���� 5�
� ��%� ���
�����%������	���%��������
�	�%���
��%"��'60����
�

Page 12



�����������	
� � ��
��

���������	��������

�

�
�
�

��

���������	� ��
%��
����"�
�
�
�%"�����
���	�5�
�	�
�	�%�������%"��*�
2�%���
�
	�7��
%�
�%"�%���%����E����%"����%����+����*��
%	��2%"���
�%��	�����%�%"�
���
�
<�� %"�� �	���
��� ��� ���������	�  ����� %"�� �����%%��� �2	��
� %"�� �����5��2�
����
���%�%����%����E����%"����%����+����!����	�
�������������#��
�
E�� '�-�� 	�������
�%���
� %�� ������ �����	
� %�� 
%	�������� ��
� 
�������� %"��

�������9
� ���������� 
���
���� ��-��2� �	���

�
�� 6"�� ���� 5���� *�� %��
*������� %"�� ���
� %�� �	��� ��� ������%�� ��
� ��-�� ��������%� �
�� ��� %"��
�	2���
�%������ 	�
��	��
� ������*���� 5�%"� %"�� ���
� %�� 2���� �������*�	
�
����	���
�%	��
��	��%����	
�2"%���������	�������%"���������9
��������
��

�
�� ����	� ���	����� �		�	� 5�
� ��
�� �
��%����
� ��� ��%���� C� ��� %"�� ��%���� +����
!�
���
��	����������#���
�
C��� ���	��	��%�� ��%���
� �	�� *���2� %�-��� 5�%"� ��� ����	
����� 5�%"� %"��

�������9
�)$��������
�
�
�
�1������
����	
�����
��	�*����
�%� E�CC��� %"�� �����%%��� 	�
����
� %�� �/���
�����*�	
� ��� %"����*���� ��	� %"��
	�����
�	� ��� %"�� ���%��2� ��� %"�� 2	���

� %"�%�� ��� %"��� 5�	�� �	�
��%�� %"�	��
5���
�*��
�
���
�	��%��%"����������	��%����
�����
��
��/���%��	�����*����%����
*�� ��	%��� ��� ��	�2	��"
� �� ��
� �� ��� +�	%� �� ��� 0�"�
���� ���� ��� %"�� ,�����
3���	����%���%�������
�
6"�� �����%%��� 
�
��

�
� %"�� �	���
�
� 	�
%	��%�	�� ��� %"�� $�
��	��
�
(���	%���%���
�%"��	���%�
�)�����$�
��	��
��������%���
���
�
�
6"�������%%���	�
���
�%"�����%��2������*�����%����������
�
�
���������!F�������
��#�%�� �
�
��� 0����	%� %"����%���
��	���
�
�*��%"���"����./���%���� ��������
�/���!�
�

����
�
#� %�� �

	�

� �

��
� 	��
�
� *�� %"�� *�
2�%� �		�	� ��
�

�*
�7���%�����
%�2�%�����

�
�
�
�

Page 13



�����������	
� � ��
��

���������	��������

�

�
�
�

E�

<�� %"�� �	���
��� ��� ���������	� )�	*�	%� %"�� �����%%��� �2	��
� %"�� �����5��2�
�

�%������	�������
�%�����
�
���������!F�������
��#�%"�%�� �
�

��� ��� ��
�%�� ��� %"�� ��������%�%���� ��� %"�� ��%���� +���� 5���
� *��
*	��2"%�*��-�%��%"�������%%����
���	%����%"��*	��
�	�	���	%����%"��

���
������-��2��	���

����

�
�
�
�
�

6"�����%��2���
�
��%���������
�
�
�
�

�!����
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

Page 14



�����������	
� � ��
��

���������	��������

�

�
�
�

��

����
��1����2	���
��
�����������
34�
�
5�������

�
��
���

���6����
�������0�7��
�����
3�����������������
����
���*3������������
�������������
�&8�
��
���-.&'��
����
���������
��
�

�
5��9�
��
��
�
.		�	
�5�	���
��%����
����%"���������9
�*�
2�%���	���
%
����(����*�	�������

5"��"��
��
�	
%�%�
�%"���������9
�
���
��2�	�7��	����%
����
�
6"�
���		�	
�"�
�*������*�

�
����%"���������9
�'�
����6�	��0%	�%�2��
���	���
�*��%"�������������<�%�*�	��������<����%"���		�	
�5�	��
�
����	�
��
����������������������	
�����
��%����
�%�%��5�	-�%��	��*�
��%"��*�
2�%�
��	���
%
����	���
�
���2�	�
��
�
6"�����������
-�
�.	�
%�G�8���2��%"���������9
��/%�	������
�%�	
��%��%�-�����
��
����
��%��/%�	����	����5�����%
�������������	���
%
������2"%����%"�
���		�	
����
�
�
�

���6����
�������0��
�
.	�
%�G�8���29
�5�	-�"�
�%5��
%�2�
���
�
�%�+"�
�������%"��	�	����5��.	�
%�G�8���2�	����5�
�%"��5�	-���
�	%�-���*��
%"���������H
���������%����%��	��*�
��%"���������9
�*�
2�%���	���
%
���6"��	�
���
��2
���
���%�
�%"�%�%"��	��*�
��2���%"�
���2��%"����������"�
��
�
�%��	��
*�
���%
�*�
2�%���	���
%
�5�
�
���
���6"����������%"�	���	�����%����
�%��
�	���	����*�
2�%���	�����=�B�*�
�
����%"��	���
�
���	���
%��5"��"��
>�
%�
�
%"����2�	�
��2	��
����%"��'�
����6�	��0%	�%�2��!'60#���*��
"�
����
0��%��*�	������*��D�������
�
:��+"�
�������%"��	�5�	-��.	�
%�G�8���2�����
�
����"�5�%"���		�	�"������
��
�%
������%���
�5"�%��"��2�
�%"������������2"%����
�%����-��%���%
�����������

�
%��
�%����-��
�	��
��"��		�	
�
�
���%�"�������2�������.	�
%�G�8���2�5�	��
�
-�
�%���
��%����5"�	�����%"���������9
�������������
���%"��D������		�	�
����		�
���
�
�

Page 15



�����������	
� � ��
��

���������	��������

�

�
�
�

���

6"����������4�������6����"�
��
��%����
���	%�����
>�
%���%
�*�%5����

����	��%���	
���
����%"��'60���
���5"��"�5�	����%�����	�%���6"���
>�
%���%
�
%"����
��%����
�	���%�
�%������		�	������%�	��2�
�%��%��%"��'60���
������	�
���%�
�������%���0�����2����:����	
����%"	������%"��'60���
����%"�	���
������%	�����
D���E����2���
%�%"������%���+����$����������%	�*�%���
�������	��	�
��%��2�%"��
�2	��
�����������������	����������%	�*�%������&�	
�������	����%"��'60���
���

"�5�
������%	�����DB��E����������	��
�����D������6"��D������
�%"��%�%���
����%���
�����2��*�%������%"��	��������������
�������%����%"�
�
"���
�"����
*�����
�
����%"����
�����6"��%	�����2�	����	�����%���+����$�������
���%	�*�%���
�
"���
�"����*����D�������!��%�DB��E��#����
�5�
�%"�	���	��
���	
%�%�
�*��D���B����
�
.	�
%�G�8���2�	����5�
�%"��5�	-����%"����������4�������6��������
��%�����2�
%"�
��		�	���
���		��
���%�%"��	��5�������	�
������%"��'60���
��
�%���

�

�
%"������
�%�����%"�
����	���"�����/�������2�5"�%�"�
�2����5	��2��
�
�
�

���6����
�4����
������
��
�
:��
����	���.	�
%�G�8���2�������
�
��
�

•�  �
2�%�5�	-��2�����	
��%"���������9
�2���	�����
2�	�!�%
������������%��2�

�
%��#���
�%"��*�
2�%�
�%%��2�	���	%�	��������
��%"�	���	��%"���

���5�
�
�
���%�
�%������=�����
�
�
���%������%��	�����
����	
��

�

•� 6"��	��*�
�
�'60�5�
���
���
�
%�	%��2�����%���	�%"������=�B�
*�
2�%��6"�	���	��%"��������������*�������
��%�%"���	�*��������		�
�
*����
�����%"��5���%"����	���
%��2���
���5�
��
�
���
%�
����	����
��2�
���%���	�
��%�������%"��0��%��*�	������'60���

�

•� .	�
%�G�8���2��	�������
��%�%"�%�%"����	���
%���
�����
��%
��
���	���%�
%"��"��	%����%"���	�*������
�%"�	���	����%�5�
�	�
�
%������

��
����%"��
�������9
�����������
�
%��
��

�

•� 6"���*�������%"�%�����		��%�
�%����%	���
�%"����
%���-�����/�����%�������
"�5�%"���		�	�����		�
���

�

•� 6"�
��5�	����%����-�
����*����
������������%�������%	��
���
�

���	��
�����

�

Page 16



�����������	
� � ��
��

���������	��������

�

�
�
�

���

•� 6"��4�������6���H
��/�����%�����*��%�"�5�����%���
�����2��
�%��5�
�
��%�	�
������	
����	�
�*����/�����%�������%"����
%�-����
�%"����
%���-����
�
��%��
�%"��	�2"%�7���%�����

�

•�  �%����-������
�%�%	���
�����
�%"�%�.	�
%�G�8���2������%�*���*
���%����

�����%����%"�%�%"�	���	����%��%"�	��		�	
�5�%"���%"����
������

�

•� 6"��������������
�%"��	�%�������
���
���	��%����%	���2�%��%	����%"�
�*��-�
*�%���������	�"�����*
���%����	%���%��*����
�����2��
������
�%�%	���
���
�
�%�5���
���%�*����
��
�*����
�������������	�
��	��
�%���%%���%�%"�
��

�
.	�
%�G�8���29
�	�������
�%���
��
�
��� 4�	����	���������%������
�	����5�����%
�
"���
�*���
%�*��
"�
�%"	��2"��%�
%"��'60���
� 0$��	���

�
�%����
�	��%"�%�%"��3���	���,�
2�	��
4�	���
%��2�'�
��
���
� �
2�%�(�%�*�
���	�����2��
��6"�
��
	���������%���
�
"���
�*����	������
������%�
�*��%"����	
����	���	��2�
%"�����
�	����5�
���
�
�2��
�����*����
����	�������	��

�
��� 6"����������
"���
����
�
�	�%"��%����2
�����%
���		��%��	���

���
�
��
�	��%"�%�	���������%���
�*�%5����%"��3���	���,�
2�	���
�%"��
4�	���
%��2�'�
��
��	��
�����%��	�
�����
��	�2���	���%�	���
���
�%"�%�
%"�
����%�	���
��	��%���
�%��������
��5�%"�%"����*����%�������*�
2�%�	��
����	��%�����

�
��� .����%����-��5��
2��
"�	��2��	�%����
�
"���
�*���
%�*��
"�
�%����
�
���%����%�����%"���*
��������-���
%�������*�	
��

�
B�� ���������
�����	���
�%�%	����
"���
�*������%����
���	������"��2�
���
��%��
����
�
%��
���
�%"��4�	���
%��2�'�
��
�
�	��2�%"��'60���
� 0$�
�	���

�
���
�

C�� 6"����������%����
"���
���������%��%
��5���
����%�����������%����
�	��
%"�%������
��%����
��

��
��	��	��
�
������%�����������	���
�
����	�%����
���*�	
��	���������
��%������	���
%�2�����%"���
��%�����%������
�
	�
���%�����	���

��
�

��� 6"�����%	��
���
���%"�
���2�����	�
���%����%"����	���
%��2���
�
��
�����2��	���

�
�
"���
�*��	����5�
�%��������
��%"��	�
-������%�	��
�		�	
�����		��2��:����	%�����	��%"����������
"���
��

	�

�%"��
��%�*���%��
���%"��4�	���
%��2�'�
�����	��%�2������%
�������/�%����
�%"������	%�����
�����	���
%��2�%��%"���������9
�������������	��	�������

Page 17



�����������	
� � ��
��

���������	��������

�

�
�
�

���

�������9
�	�
���
��
�����������	�
���
��
��������������������������������������������������������
�������������������	���������
���������������������������
�
��������������������������
�������������������
����������������������
�

:�;����
�����
�����������
�
����
��
�
��
����
��������
���4����
�
�����
�������
���

:*;����
����
��������
��
��������������
:�;���
����
��
:�;����
�����
����������
���
��������
�����
�����������������������������������������

�

�

:

���� � �����
� �"�� �"���

���
�����
��
��� ���� ��
�
���
�
��
�
��
��
��
� ����
���
���4��
��
�
�����
�������
��
�
�
�

�

���
:�%�	������
�%�5����5�	-�5�%"�%"��
4������� %���� %�� ��-��
���	������%
� %�� %"�� ���%	���
��
�
���	��
���� ��� %"��
�	�����
��
� %�� �

	�

�
$�������
�%���
�������
�B��
�
�

)��
����
:�%�	������
�%��
)��
����
������%��2�
0�	����
��

 ��'���
�����

�

���
�

6"�� ���������� ��
��� 5���� *��
	����5�
� %�� ��
�	�� �%� �
� ��%� ��	�
��	��
�� ��� ����	
����� 5�%"�
	�������
�%���� �� ��
�

���
���
���
�����5"�%"�	� %��
��-�� �"��2�
� ��
�
���	������%
� %�� %"�� �/�
%��2�
��
��� �	� %�� �	���	�� �� ��5�
�����
�
�

�

)��
����
������%��2�
0�	����
��
(<$�

�

 ��1����
�����

��� ���� 	�������
�%���
� �	���
�/%�	���� ��
�%� �
� ��	%� ��� %"��	�
���������
�%�5�	-�5���� ��
��*��
����	��	�%�
� ��%�� ���	���
�
�	���

���

./%�	������
�%�� �
�
���	��	��%���

Page 18



�����������	
� � ��
��

���������	��������

�

�
�
�

���

���
����
��
������
��
�������
�������
�

B�� :������	
�����5�%"�
	�������
�%���
�����
�C��

�
%��
�5�%"���%"����������
%����5����*��	����5�
��
�
��� %����
�	��%"�%�%"�	���	��
����	��	���

�
����������
%�����%�	������	��%����
��
�-��5��
2�������
��
���
%�����*
������

��� %����
�	��%"�	���	������	�
�
����%����������
���
�
�	���

���	��	�*���
�
5�%"�%"��
�	�����

�
����
%�������%"��%����5����*��
�	���
�
�5�%"������
����%"�
��
�������
���
��	���

�
���
�
��������

�	��%	�����2�5����*��
�	���
�
��
�
'���2�	
�%�
-�
�5�%"�
��
�	��2�%"�
���	�������%������
��*�

�
����%"�����%�	����
�
�	��%�������%"��
�	�����
�
�

�

�
�
�
)��
����
������%��2�
0�	����
�
!
����	%�
���
*���
)��
����)$#�

�
�
�
�
�

�

�
�
�
 ��'���
�����

C�� ���	��	��%����%���
��	��*���2�
%�-����������	
�����5�%"�
�������9
�)$�������
��
�

�.I� <�2���2�

0%	��%�	��
�

��� �.I�%�����
��%�����"��2�
�%��
%"��
%	��%�	�����%"��$�
��	��
�

���	%���%�%��%"��
���	�%��%"��
	�������0��%�����C��������	��	���
%"�� 	���� ��� (�	��%�	� ���
$�
��	��
����

�

�.I�
�

.�
����
��	���������

��� :�������%�%���� ��� �2	��
�
�"��2�
��

�.I� 1���������
��5�	

�

Page 19



�����������	
� � ��
��

���������	��������

�

�
�
�

�B�

���
�����
���
��� �������
�
��9�
��
�
���������

E�� 6"���"����./���%����5������-���
	�������
�%���
� %�� ������
�����	
� %�� 
%	�������� ��
�

�������� %"�� �������9
� ����������

���
���� ��-��2� �	���

�
��
6"������5����*��%��*�������%"��
���
� %�� �	��� ��� ������%�� ��
�
��-�� ��������%� �
�� ��� %"��
�	2���
�%������ 	�
��	��
�
������*����5�%"�%"�����
�%��2����
���� ���*�	
� ����	� ��
�
%	��
��	��%� ���	
�2"%� ��
�

�	�%���� ��� %"�� �������9
�
�������
��
�
�

�.I� 1����������

�
�

�
�

Page 20



Civic Affairs  Monday, 13 May 2013 

 

 
 
 

1 

CIVIC AFFAIRS 13 May 2013 
 6.00pm - 6.25 pm 
 
Present:  Councillors Boyce (Chair), Rosenstiel (Vice-Chair), Marchant-
Daisley, Herbert, Benstead and Pitt 
 
Officers Present:  
Chief Executive: Antoinette Jackson 
Head of Legal Services: Simon Pugh 
Head of Human Resources: Deborah Simpson 
Democratic Services Manager: Gary Clift 
 
 

FOR ADOPTION BY COUNCIL 

 

13/22/CIV Apologies for absence 
 
There were no apologies for absence.  
 

13/23/CIV Minutes of previous meeting 
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 20 March 2013 were approved as an 
accurate record and signed by the Chair.  
 

13/24/CIV Declarations of Interest 
 
There were no declarations of interest.  
 

13/25/CIV Public Questions 
 
There were no public questions.  
 
 
 
 
 

Page 21



Civic Affairs Lic/2 Monday, 13 May 2013 

 

 
 
 

2 

13/26/CIV Executive Councillors and Allocation of Portfolios 
 
The Committee noted the following councillor appointments and changes to 
Executive Councillor portfolio responsibilities made by the Leader of the 
Council: 
 

Portfolio name Changes made Scrutiny 
Committee 

Executive Councillor for 
Community Wellbeing 
(previously community 
development and health): 

Councillor Brown 

Includes arts and sport 

 

Community 
Services 

Executive Councillor for 
Customer Services & 
Resources: 

Councillor Smith 

 

As before minus 
tourism and city centre 
management 

Strategy & 
Resources 

Executive Councillor for Public 
Places (previously Arts, sport 
and public places):  

Councillor Reiner 

Includes: 

Tourism 

city centre 
management (inc CbiD 
Director)  

Bereavement Services 

 

 

Environment 

 

In addition to the Leader’s portfolio covering Strategy, there were no changes 
to the following portfolios/personnel: 

Executive Councillor for Environmental & Waste Services: Councillor Swanson 

Executive Councillor for Housing: Councillor Smart (and Deputy Leader of the 
Council) 

Executive Councillor for Planning and Climate Change: Councillor Ward 

The committee requested that the Leader provide a commentary to explain the 
changes made for the Annual Meeting of the Council. 

Page 22



Civic Affairs Lic/3 Monday, 13 May 2013 

 

 
 
 

3 

 

Council is recommended  

 
i) To amend the terms of reference of scrutiny committees to reflect the 
changes to portfolios made by the Leader of the Council and to make 
Environment Scrutiny Committee responsible for scrutiny of the Public Places 
portfolio.  
 
ii) To authorise the Head of Legal Services to update the Constitution to reflect 
the changes to portfolios and the recommended change to the terms of 
reference of scrutiny committees.  
 

13/27/CIV Nominations For Committees For The Municipal Year 2013/14 
 
The Committee considered a paper setting out the proposed size of 
committees, the allocations by party and the nominations received.  The 
Committee considered the rules on political balance set out in the Local 
Government & Housing Act 1989 in developing the recommendations set out 
below. 
 
Council is recommended (by 3 votes to 0) –  
 
To agree to the number and size of committees and to note the nominations as 
listed below: 
 
SCRUTINY 

COMMITTEE 

 

GROUP CURRENT 
NUMBERS 
(1) 

=Alternate 

NOMINATIONS 

Community 

Services 

 

Liberal 

Democrats 

 

Labour 

 

4 (1) 

 

4 (1) 

 Blackhurst, Kerr, Kightley, Tucker 

Alt: Brierley  

Johnson, Moghadas (Community Wellbeing 

Spokes), Price (Housing Spokes), Roberts 

Alt: Todd-Jones 

Environment 

 

Liberal 

Democrats 

4 (1) 

 

Kightley, Reid, Saunders, Tunnacliffe 

Alt: Brierley  

Page 23



Civic Affairs Lic/4 Monday, 13 May 2013 

 

 
 
 

4 

 

 

Labour 

 

 

 

 

4 (1) 

 

Blencowe (Planning and Climate Change 

Spokes), Owers (Environmental and Waste 

Services Spokes), O’Reilly (Public Places 

Spokes), Marchant-Daisley 

Alt: Herbert 

Strategy & 

Resources 

 

Liberal 

Democrats 

 
Labour 
 

4 (1) 

 

4 (1) 

 

 

Boyce, Cantrill, Pitt, Rosenstiel  

Alt: Stuart 

Ashton, Benstead (Customer Services and 

Resources Spokes), Herbert (Strategy 

Spokes), O’Reilly 

Alt: Bird 

Housing 

Management 

Board 

 

Liberal 

Democrats 

 

 

Labour 

 

4 (1) 

 

 

4 (1) 

 

Blackhurst, Brierley, Pippas, Rosenstiel 

Alt: Pitt 

 

Bird, Blencowe, Price (Spokes), Johnson 

Alt: Todd-Jones  

 

REGULATORY COMMITTEES 

COMMITTEE/SUB 
COMMITTEE 

NOMINATIONS CURRENT 
NUMBERS 
(1)= Alternate 

PROPOSED CHANGES 
AND NOMINATIONS 

 

PLANNING 

 

 

Liberal 

Democrat 

 

 

Labour 

 

4 (1) 

 

 

 

3 (1) 

 

Rosenstiel, Saunders, 

Stuart, Tunnacliffe 

Alt: TBC 

 

Blencowe, Dryden, 

Page 24



Civic Affairs Lic/5 Monday, 13 May 2013 

 

 
 
 

5 

 

 

 

Ind&Con 

 

 

 

1 

Marchant-Daisley            

Alt: Herbert  

 

Hipkin 

JOINT DEVELOPMENT 

CONTROL COMMITTEE 

 

Liberal 

Democrat 

 

Labour 

 

3 (2) 

 

 

3 (2) 

Reid, Smart, Tucker 

Alts: Tunnacliffe + 1 

Blencowe, Dryden, Price,  

Alts: Herbert and O’Reilly  

LICENSING 

 

 

Liberal 

Democrat 

 

 

Labour 

 

 

 

Ind&Con 

6 (1) 

 

 

 

5 (1) 

 

 

 

1 

Brierley, Pippas, 

Rosenstiel, Saunders, 

Stuart +1 TBC 

Alt: Brown  

Benstead, Gawthrope, 

McPherson, Owers, 

O’Reilly 

Alt: Bird 

 

Meftah 

CIVIC AFFAIRS 

 

Liberal 

Democrat 

 

Labour 

 

3 (1) 

 

 

3 (1) 

 

Cantrill, Pitt, Rosenstiel 

Alt: Boyce 

Benstead, Herbert, 

Johnson 

Alt: Ashton 

 

 

 

 

Page 25



Civic Affairs Lic/6 Monday, 13 May 2013 

 

 
 
 

6 

EMPLOYMENT APPEALS 

SUB 

Liberal 

Democrat 

 

Labour  

 

Ind&Con 

5 

 

 

4 

 

1 

Brierley, Boyce, Pippas, 

Smart, Stuart 

 

Bird, Gawthrope, Price + 1 

TBC 

 

Hipkin 

 

 

13/28/CIV Nominations For Chairs And Vice Chairs Of Scrutiny & 
Regulatory Committees 
 
The committee received nominations for Chairs and Vice Chairs of Scrutiny 
and Regulatory Committees. 
 
Resolved 
to note the nominations for Chairs and Vice Chairs of Scrutiny and Regulatory 
Committees as follows: 
 

Committee Lib Dem Nomination Labour Nomination 

 Chair Vice Chair Chair Vice Chair 

 

Community 

Services 

 

Kerr 

 

Blackhurst 

 

Johnson 

 

- 

 

Environment 

 

Kightley 

 

Saunders 

 

Marchant-

Daisley 

 

-  

 

Strategy and 

Resources 

 

Pitt 

 

Cantrill 

 

 

Ashton 

 

-  

 

 

Page 26



Civic Affairs Lic/7 Monday, 13 May 2013 

 

 
 
 

7 

 

HMB 

 

Tenant Rep 

 

Blackhurst 

 

-  

 

Price 

 

Planning 

 

Stuart 

 

-  

 

-  

 

Blencowe 

 

JDCC 

 

 

Reid 

(City Lead) 

 

- 

 

Blencowe 

(City Lead) 

 

-  

 

Licensing 

 

Rosenstiel 

 

-  

 

-  

 

Benstead 

 

Civic Affairs 

 

Rosenstiel 

 

Cantrill 

 

Herbert 

 

-  

 

Employment 

Appeals Sub 

Committee 

 

Smart 

 

 

N/A 

 

Price 

 

N/A 

 

13/29/CIV Nominations for Honorary Councillors 
 
There were no nominations from the Committee.  
 

13/30/CIV Appointment of a standing Employment (Senior Officer) 
Committee 
 
The Committee considered a report from the Head of Human Resources 
recommending the establishment of an Employment (Senior Officer) 
Committee to deal with the employment matters of the Chief Executive, 
Directors, section 151 officer and Monitoring Officer. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 27



Civic Affairs Lic/8 Monday, 13 May 2013 

 

 
 
 

8 

Council is recommended –  
 
To establish an Employment (Senior Officer) Committee with the terms of 
reference set out below and that the Constitution is amended accordingly.   
 

Appointed by:   From time to time in accordance with the wishes of the 
political groups.   

Membership: 6 members allocated between political groups in 
accordance with the rules on political balance  set out 
in the Local Government and Housing Act 1989 
 

Chair/Vice Chair: To be appointed by the members of the Committee.  
 

Decision making: By the majority of members present and voting.  The 
Chair has a casting vote if required. 
 

Terms of 
Reference: 
 

1. To deal with the recruitment to the post of Chief 
Executive and to recommend a selected applicant to 
Council for appointment. 
2. To recruit, appoint, take disciplinary action against 
and dismiss Directors 
3. To suspend and keep under review the Chief 
Executive, Directors, the Monitoring Officer or section 
151 Chief Finance Officer whilst an investigation takes 
place into alleged misconduct. 
4. To appoint a designated independent person under 
regulation 7 of the Local Authorities (Standing Orders) 
(England) Regulations 2001  
5. To take disciplinary action against the Chief 
Executive, the Monitoring Officer or section 151 Chief 
Finance Officer in accordance with a recommendation 
in a report made by a designated independent person 
under regulation 7 of the Local Authorities (Standing 
Orders) (England) Regulations 2001. 
6. To consider and if necessary recommend to Council 
to dismiss or terminate the employment of the Chief 
Executive, the Monitoring Officer or section 151 Chief 
Finance Officer. 

 
Note: The committee will be governed by the provisions contained within Part 
4I of the Constitution (Officer Employment Procedure Rules) 
 

Page 28



Civic Affairs Lic/9 Monday, 13 May 2013 

 

 
 
 

9 

13/31/CIV AOB 
 
The committee placed on record its appreciation of the Chair during his years 
of service in the role.  
 
 
 
 
 

The meeting ended at 6.25 pm 
 
 
 
 
 

CHAIR 
 

Page 29



Page 30

This page is intentionally left blank



�����������	
� � ��
	
�����������������

�

�
�
�

��

�������������� ������������
� �����������������
�
	
���
������
������	
���
 �
!� ��"����	#�����!	����"$�� �����	#��% �
! ����
& 	' 	!��(���
�������)�!!�
�
�

�����������������������������������

�

���������� �����
���
�������
 �
!�	"
�#�
�
�� ������!!  ��*	  ��!� �� �' 	
�������!� ������+��*��
�
��������������	������������������
$%����&�
�'�
�
���	
��%��,��-��	!��-!
�	!��& 	' 	!��./� ����������
�!���
��!��0�*�!� ��
�
�
�

�� ��  !��*� �� ���!���������
�
�
�
�

������
�

Public Document Pack

Page 31



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 32



Report Page No: 1 Agenda Page No:

Agenda Item         

CAMBRIDGE CITY COUNCIL

REPORT OF: Director of Resources

TO: Civic Affairs Committee 26 June 2013

WARDS: All

ANNUAL REVIEW OF THE EFFECTIVENESS OF INTERNAL AUDIT 2012 / 2013

1 INTRODUCTION

1.1 In accordance with the requirements of the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2011 the 
Council conducts an annual review of the effectiveness of Internal Audit to be 
considered as part of its governance assurance processes, including the production of 
the Annual Governance Statement.

2 RECOMMENDATION

2.1 Members are requested to consider and comment on the Review of the Effectiveness of 
Internal Audit 2012 / 2013.

3 OVERALL OPINION

3.1 The report demonstrates that the Council has an effective system of Internal 
Audit including a policy framework, Internal Audit function, audit committee and 
effective management engagement.

4 INTERNAL AUDIT EFFECTIVENESS

4.1 The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2011 require all Councils to annually review the
effectiveness of its Internal Audit and to present the results of that review to the 
appropriate committee. 

4.2 An assessment of Internal Audit has been carried out which is presented for 
consideration by the Committee. It contains an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
Internal Audit Service including self-assessments against a number of publications,
these include:

 “Public Sector Internal Audit Standards”. These standards replace the “Code 
of Practice for Internal Audit in Local Government in the UK (CIPFA, 2006)”. 
While they were only introduced on 1 April 2013, it has been used in order 
that any actions requiring conformity can be established early on and 
appropriate plans put in place; and

Agenda Item 5

Page 33



Report Page No: 2 Agenda Page No:

 The “Statement on the Role of the Head of Internal Audit in Local 
Government” (CIPFA, 2010).

4.4 The review was undertaken by the Head of Internal Audit and the report (Appendix 1) is 
presented for Members’ consideration and comment. 

5         CONCLUSION

5.1 Consideration of a range of views on the system of Internal Audit operating within the 
Council during 2012 / 2013 indicates that this has been both appropriate and effective.
An Action Plan has been established in order to comply with the new Standards.

6 IMPLICATIONS

(a) Financial Implications: None

(b) Staffing Implications: None

(c) Equal Opportunities Implications: None

(d) Environmental Implications: None

(e) Community Safety Implications: None

BACKGROUND PAPERS: The following are the background papers that were used in the 
preparation of this report:

 Internal Audit Plans

 Internal Audit reports issued

 Internal Audit Terms of Reference 

 Accounts and Audit (Amendment) (England) Regulations 2011

 Statement on the Role of the Head of Internal Audit in Local Government, CIPFA

 Public Sector Internal Audit Standards, IIA / CIPFA

To inspect these documents contact Steve Crabtree on extension 8181.

The author and contact officer for queries on the report is Steve Crabtree on extension 8181.

Page 34



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 1

H
E

A
D

 O
F

 I
N

T
E

R
N

A
L

 A
U

D
IT

A
N

N
U

A
L

 R
E

V
IE

W
 O

F
 T

H
E

 E
F

F
E

C
T

IV
E

N
E

S
S

 O
F

 I
N

T
E

R
N

A
L

 A
U

D
IT

2
0

1
2

/ 
2

0
1

3

Page 35



A
N

N
U

A
L

 R
E

V
IE

W

1
.

B
A

C
K

G
R

O
U

N
D

2
.

C
U

R
R

E
N

T
 A

R
R

A
N

G
E

M
E

N
T

S
 F

O
R

 I
N

T
E

R
N

A
L

 A
U

D
IT

3
.

B
A

S
IS

 F
O

R
 O

P
IN

IO
N

 
S

ta
ff

 R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s

 
T

ra
in

in
g

 a
n
d
 E

x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e

 
E

x
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d
it
 O

p
in

io
n

 
P

u
b
lic

 S
e
c
to

r 
In

te
rn

a
l 
A

u
d
it
 S

ta
n
d
a
rd

s

 
S

ta
te

m
e
n
t 
o
f 

R
o
le

 o
f 

H
e
a
d
 o

f 
A

u
d
it

 
R

is
k
 M

a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 G

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 A

rr
a
n
g

e
m

e
n
ts

 
C

iv
ic

 A
ff

a
ir
s

C
o
m

m
it
te

e

4
.

C
O

N
C

L
U

S
IO

N
 

A
P

P
E

N
D

IC
E

S

A
II

A
 /
 C

IP
F

A
: 
P

u
b
lic

 S
e
c
to

r 
In

te
rn

a
l 
A

u
d
it
 S

ta
n
d
a
rd

s
 (

A
c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
)

Page 36



1
B

A
C

K
G

R
O

U
N

D

1
.1

T
h
e
 A

c
c
o
u
n
ts

 a
n
d
 A

u
d
it
 R

e
g

u
la

ti
o
n
s
 2

0
1
1

re
q

u
ir
e
 a

ll 
C

o
u
n
c
ils

 t
o
 a

n
n
u
a
lly

 r
e
v
ie

w
th

e
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
 o

f 
In

te
rn

a
l 

A
u
d
it
 a

n
d
 t

o
 p

re
s
e
n
t 

th
e
 

re
s
u
lt
s
 o

f 
th

a
t 
re

v
ie

w
 t

o
 t
h
e
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 c
o
m

m
it
te

e
. 

1
.2

A
n
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

In
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d
it
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 

w
h
ic

h
 i
s
 p

re
s
e
n
te

d
 f

o
r 

c
o
n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o
n
 b

y
 C

iv
ic

 A
ff

a
ir
s
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
. 

It
 c

o
n
ta

in
s
 a

n
 o

p
in

io
n
 

o
n
 t

h
e
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
 o

f 
th

e
 I

n
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d
it
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 a

 s
e
lf
-a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

a
g

a
in

s
t

“T
h
e
 P

u
b
lic

 S
e
c
to

r 
In

te
rn

a
l 
A

u
d
it
 S

ta
n
d
a
rd

s
2
0
1
3
”.

A
n
 

a
c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 p

u
t 
in

 p
la

c
e
 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 f
u
tu

re
 f

u
ll 

c
o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
. 

2
C

U
R

R
E

N
T

 A
R

R
A

N
G

E
M

E
N

T
S

 F
O

R
 I

N
T

E
R

N
A

L
 A

U
D

IT

2
.1

In
te

rn
a
l 

A
u
d
it
 a

t 
C

a
m

b
ri
d
g

e
 i

s
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 a

n
 i

n
-h

o
u
s
e
 t

e
a
m

 w
h
ic

h
 i

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 R

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 D

e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
t,
 h

e
a
d
e
d
 u

p
 b

y
 t

h
e
 (

s
h
a
re

d
) 

H
e
a
d
 o

f 
In

te
rn

a
l 
A

u
d
it
 (

H
IA

).
 I

t 
w

o
rk

s
 c

lo
s
e
ly

 w
it
h
 o

th
e
rs

 i
n
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

ta
s
k
e
d
 w

it
h
 a

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
, 

g
o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 r

is
k
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

b
u
t 

re
ta

in
s
 

a
 s

e
p
a
ra

te
 i
d
e
n
ti
ty

 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t

o
 t

h
e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 o

f 
In

te
rn

a
l 
A

u
d
it
 a

n
d
 i
n
v
e
s
ti
g

a
ti
o
n
 f
u
n
c
ti
o
n
s
 f

o
r 

th
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il.

2
.2

T
h
e
 H

IA
 r

e
p
o
rt

s
 d

ir
e
c
tl
y
 t

o
 t

h
e
 D

ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 

R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 b

u
t 

a
ls

o
 h

a
s
 d

ir
e
c
t 

a
c
c
e
s
s
, 

if
 r

e
q

u
ir
e
d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 C

h
ie

f 
E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
, 

L
e
a
d

e
r

o
f 

th
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il,

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 M

e
m

b
e
rs

 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 C

h
a
ir
 o

f 
C

iv
ic

 A
ff

a
ir
s
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
.

2
.3

A
t 

th
e
 s

ta
rt

 o
f 

2
0
1
2

/ 
2
0
1
3

th
e
 i
n
-h

o
u
s
e
 t

e
a
m

 c
o
m

p
ri
s
e
d
 6

.0
3

ft
e
 a

p
p
ro

v
e
d
 p

o
s
ts

 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 t

h
e
 H

IA
(s

e
e
 3

.1
).

D
u
e
 t

o
 i
ts

 s
iz

e
, 

th
e
 s

e
c
ti
o
n
 i
s
 

n
o
t 

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
d
 a

ro
u
n
d
 c

lie
n
t 

/ 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 b

a
s
e
d
 t

e
a
m

s
 o

r
C

o
u
n
c
il 

d
ir
e
c
to

ra
te

s
. 
T

h
is

 h
a
s
 a

llo
w

e
d

 t
h
e
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
y
 f

o
r 

a
u
d
it
o
rs

 t
o
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 a

 d
e
p
th

 o
f 

k
n
o
w

le
d
g

e
 /

re
la

ti
o
n
s
h
ip

s
 w

it
h

c
u
s
to

m
e
rs

 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t

o
 t

h
e
 w

o
rk

 o
f 

a
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 r

a
th

e
r 

th
a
n
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

 a
re

a
s
. 

H
o
w

e
v
e
r,

 a
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

o
ff

ic
e
rs

 h
a
v
e
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

 t
e
c
h
n
ic

a
l 

a
tt

ri
b
u
te

s
 t

h
a
t 

p
ro

v
id

e
 t

h
e

o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n

w
it
h
 a

 “
fi
rs

t 
p
o
in

t 
o
f 

c
o
n
ta

c
t”

. 
T

h
is

 p
ro

v
id

e
s
 s

o
m

e
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
it
y
 t

o
 t

h
e
 

c
u
s
to

m
e
r 

w
h
o
 c

a
n
 r

e
g

u
la

rl
y
 d

e
a
l 
w

it
h
 t

h
e
 s

a
m

e
 a

u
d
it
o
r 

o
v
e
r 

a
 p

e
ri
o
d
 o

f 
ti
m

e
.

2
.4

T
h
e
 o

v
e
ra

rc
h
in

g
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 f

o
r 

th
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 i
s
 s

e
t 

o
u
t 
in

 t
h
e
 A

n
n
u
a
l 
A

u
d
it
 P

la
n

(l
a
s
t 

a
p
p
ro

v
e
d
 i
n
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
3
 b

y
 C

iv
ic

 A
ff

a
ir
s
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
) 

a
n
d
 t
h
is

 
is

 r
e
it
e
ra

te
d
 i

n
 i

ts
 T

e
rm

s
 o

f 
R

e
fe

re
n
c
e
.

A
rr

a
n
g

e
m

e
n
ts

 f
o
r 

in
v
e
s
ti
g

a
ti
o
n
 w

o
rk

 a
re

 d
e
fi
n
e
d
 i

n
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 p

o
lic

ie
s
 a

n
d
 p

ro
c
e
d
u
re

s
 f

o
r 

A
n
ti
-

F
ra

u
d
 a

n
d
 W

h
is

tl
e
b
lo

w
in

g
a
n
d
 t

h
e
s
e
 a

re
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
 o

n
 i

n
 t

h
e
 A

n
n
u
a
l 

R
e
p

o
rt

 o
n
 t

h
e
 P

re
v
e
n
ti
o
n
 o

f 
F

ra
u
d
 a

n
d
 C

o
rr

u
p
ti
o
n
. 

In
te

rn
a
l 

A
u
d
it

w
o
rk

 
fo

llo
w

s
 r

e
c
o
g

n
is

e
d
 b

e
s
t 
p
ra

c
ti
c
e
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

s
a
n
d
 i
s
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
tl
y
 r

e
v
ie

w
e
d
 b

y
 E

x
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d
it
.

Page 37



2
.5

T
o
 e

x
a
m

in
e
 t

h
e
 s

y
s
te

m
 o

f 
in

te
rn

a
l 
a
u
d
it
, 

th
is

 r
e
v
ie

w
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 s

e
v
e
ra

l 
k
e
y
 e

le
m

e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 a

s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 t

h
e
ir
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
 i
n

e
n
a
b
lin

g
 t

h
e
 s

e
c
ti
o
n
 

to
fu

lf
il

it
s
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ti
e
s
.

T
h
e
s
e
 w

e
re

:

 
T

h
e
 s

tr
u
c
tu

re
 a

n
d
 r

e
s
o
u
rc

in
g

 l
e
v
e
l,
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 q

u
a
lif

ic
a
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 e

x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
 o

f 
th

e
 a

u
d
it
 t

e
a
m

;

 
T

h
e
 e

x
te

n
t 

o
f 
c
o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 P

u
b
lic

 S
e
c
to

r 
In

te
rn

a
l 
A

u
d
it
 S

ta
n
d
a
rd

s
;

 
C

o
m

p
a
ri
s
o
n
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 S

ta
te

m
e
n
t 

o
n
 t

h
e
 R

o
le

 o
f 
th

e
 H

e
a
d
 o

f 
In

te
rn

a
l 
A

u
d
it
;

 
E

n
s
u
ri
n
g
 t

h
a
t 
th

e
 S

e
c
ti
o
n
 s

u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

lly
 a

u
d
it
s
 t

h
e
 m

o
s
t 
a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 a
re

a
s
 o

n
 a

 p
ri
o
ri
ti
s
e
d
 (

ri
s
k
) 

b
a
s
is

; 
a
n
d

 
T

h
e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 o

f 
th

e
 a

u
d
it
 t

e
a
m

 (
d
e
ta

ils
 o

f 
w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 H

e
a
d
 o

f 
In

te
rn

a
l 
A

u
d
it
 O

p
in

io
n
 r

e
p
o
rt

).

3
B

A
S

IS
 F

O
R

 O
P

IN
IO

N

3
.1

S
ta

ff
 R

e
s
o

u
rc

e
s

D
u
ri
n
g

 2
0
1
2

/ 
2
0
1
3

th
e
re

 w
e
re

 m
in

o
r 

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
s
 i

n
 s

ta
ff

in
g

 a
n
d
 t

h
e
s
e
 a

re
 d

o
c
u
m

e
n
te

d
 i

n
 t

h
e
 t

a
b
le

 b
e
lo

w
. 

T
h
e
 r

e
d
u
c
e
d
 s

ta
ff

in
g

 p
o
s
it
io

n
 

d
u
ri
n
g

 t
h
e
 y

e
a
r 

d
id

 n
o
t 

s
e
v
e
re

ly
 i
m

p
a
c
t 

o
n
 t

h
e
 a

b
ili

ty
 t

o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

s
o
m

e
 a

s
p
e
c
ts

 o
f 

p
la

n
n
e
d
 w

o
rk

 w
it
h
in

 p
ro

p
o
s
e
d
 t

im
e
s
c
a
le

s
, 

d
e
s
p
it
e
 a

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

in
v
e
s
ti
g

a
ti
o
n
 r

e
fe

rr
a
ls

 r
e
c
e
iv

e
d
 a

n
d
 i

n
-y

e
a
r 

re
q

u
e
s
ts

 f
o
r 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 f
ro

m
 d

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

s
. 

T
h
e
re

 w
e
re

 s
o
m

e
 a

u
d
it
s
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 f

o
rw

a
rd

 f
ro

m
 2

0
1
1
 /

 
2
0
1
2
 t

o
 b

e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 i
n
 Q

u
a
rt

e
r 

1
.

P
o

s
t

F
T

E
V

a
c

a
n

c
y

C
h

a
n

g
e
 I
n

 Y
e
a

r
C

o
m

m
e
n

ta
ry

A
t 

Y
e
a

r 
E

n
d

H
e
a
d
 o

f 
In

te
rn

a
l 
A

u
d

it
0
.5

0
-

-
C

o
n
ti
n
u

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
s
h
a
re

d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 w

it
h
 P

e
te

rb
o
ro

u
g
h

0
.5

0

P
ri
n
c
ip

a
l 
A

u
d

it
o
r

0
.7

6
-

-
0
.7

6

S
e
n

io
r 

A
u
d

it
o
r

2
.9

6
-0

.6
0

-0
.8

0
V

a
c
a
n
c
y
 h

e
ld

 f
o
r 

th
e
 y

e
a
r 

to
 p

ro
v
id

e
 b

u
d
g

e
t 
s
a

v
in

g
s

O
n
e
 o

ff
ic

e
r 

c
o
m

m
e
n
c
e
d
 m

a
te

rn
it
y
 l
e

a
v
e
 X

m
a
s
 2

0
1
2

1
.5

6

A
u
d

it
 A

s
s
is

ta
n
t

1
.8

1
-

-
1
.8

1

6
.0

3
-0

.6
0

-0
.8

0
4
.6

3

Page 38



3
.2

T
ra

in
in

g
 a

n
d

 E
x
p

e
ri

e
n

c
e

3
.2

.1
T

ra
in

in
g

 
p
la

n
s
 
e
n
c
o
u
ra

g
e
 

o
n
g

o
in

g
 
im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

v
ia

b
o
th

 
c
a
re

e
r 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
io

n
 
a
n
d
 
c
o
n
ti
n
u
in

g
 
p
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
a
l 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t.

 
T

h
e
 
fo

llo
w

in
g
 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 a

b
o
u
t 

q
u
a
lif

ic
a
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 e

x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
 o

f 
s
ta

ff
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 f
o
r 

a
u
d
it
 w

o
rk

 d
e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
te

s
 t

h
e
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
t 

e
x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 r

ic
h
 q

u
a
lif

ic
a
ti
o
n
 

m
ix

 i
n
 t

h
e
 S

e
c
ti
o
n
.

A
u
d
it
 e

x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
:

 
C

a
m

b
ri
d
g

e
 C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 r

a
n
g

e
s
 f
ro

m
 a

 m
in

im
u
m

 o
f 

6
y
e
a
rs

’ 
s
e
rv

ic
e

w
it
h
in

 I
n
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d
it
 t
o
 o

v
e
r 

2
5
 y

e
a
rs

; 
a
n
d

 
P

re
v
io

u
s
 w

o
rk

 e
x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
 i
s
 w

it
h
 e

x
te

rn
a
l 
a
u
d
it
o
rs

, 
b
a
n
k
s
 a

n
d
 o

th
e
r 

lo
c
a
l 
a
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
.

Q
u
a
lif

ic
a
ti
o
n
s
:

 
Q

u
a
lif

ie
d
 A

c
c
o
u
n
ta

n
ts

 –
C

IP
F

A
 (

x
2
);

 A
C

C
A

 (
x
1
);

 I
C

A
E

W
 (

x
1
);

 
In

s
ti
tu

te
 o

f 
In

te
rn

a
l 
A

u
d
it
o
rs

 –
D

ip
lo

m
a
 (

x
1
);

 C
e
rt

if
ic

a
te

 (
x
1
).

3
.2

.2
T

h
e

le
v
e
l 

o
f 

e
x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
 o

f 
a
u
d
it
 s

ta
ff

 r
e
m

a
in

e
d
 c

o
n
s
ta

n
t

d
u
ri
n
g

 t
h
e
 y

e
a
r.

 T
h
e
re

 w
a
s
 s

o
m

e
 s

ta
ff

 r
o
ta

ti
o
n
 t

o
 e

n
a
b
le

 a
 b

re
a
d
th

 o
f 

e
x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
 

a
n
d
 f

o
r 

c
o
n
ti
n
u
in

g
 p

ro
fe

s
s
io

n
a
l 

d
e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 t

h
is

 w
ill

 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 b

a
s
e
d
 o

n
 o

p
e
ra

ti
o
n
a
l 

n
e
e
d
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 p

ri
o
ri
ty

 a
n
d
 t

im
in

g
 o

f 
w

o
rk

. 
T

h
is

 
a
p
p
ro

a
c
h
 p

ro
v
id

e
s
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 f

le
x
ib

ili
ty

 t
o
 m

e
e
t 
a
u
d
it
 n

e
e
d
s
, 
p
a
rt

ic
u
la

rl
y
 i
n
 t

im
e
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

 a
n
d
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 a
u
d
it
s
.

3
.3

E
x
te

rn
a
l 

A
u

d
it

 O
p

in
io

n

3
.3

.1
E

x
te

rn
a
l 

A
u
d
it

c
o
m

m
e
n
t 

in
 

th
e
 

A
n
n
u
a
l 

A
u
d
it
 

L
e
tt

e
r 

o
n
 

th
e
 

a
d
e
q

u
a
c
y
, 

o
r 

o
th

e
rw

is
e
,

o
f 

In
te

rn
a
l 

A
u
d
it
 

a
s
 

w
e
ll 

a
s
 

o
th

e
r 

g
o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 

a
rr

a
n
g

e
m

e
n
ts

. 
T

h
e
 l
a
te

s
t 
re

p
o
rt

 t
a
k
e
n
 t

o
 C

iv
ic

 A
ff
a
ir
s
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 c

o
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 t

h
a
t 
th

e
y
 c

o
u
ld

 p
la

c
e
 r

e
lia

n
c
e
 o

n
 t

h
e
 w

o
rk

 o
f 

In
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d
it
.

3
.3

.2
L
ia

is
o
n
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 e

x
te

rn
a
l 
a
u
d
it
o
r 

c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
s
 t

o
 b

e
 p

ro
d
u
c
ti
v
e
 a

n
d
 o

ff
e
rs

 t
h
e
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
y
 t

o
 c

o
-o

rd
in

a
te

 a
u
d
it
 p

la
n
s
 a

n
d

 t
o
 s

h
a
re

 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 

to
 i

n
fo

rm
 r

is
k
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
ts

. 
T

h
e
 S

e
c
ti
o
n
 a

g
re

e
d
 t

h
e
 s

c
o
p
e
 a

n
d
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h
 t

o
 a

u
d
it
in

g
 t

h
e
 c

o
re

 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
s
y
s
te

m
s
 e

n
a
b
lin

g
 I

n
te

rn
a
l 

A
u
d
it
 t

o
 

d
e
liv

e
r 

w
o
rk

 o
f 

in
c
re

a
s
e
d
 v

a
lu

e
 t

o
 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

w
h
ils

t 
e
n
s
u
ri
n
g

 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 n

e
e
d
s
 o

f 
th

e
 e

x
te

rn
a
l 
a
u
d
it
o
r 

a
re

 a
d
d
re

s
s
e
d
.

3
.4

P
u

b
li

c
 S

e
c
to

r 
In

te
rn

a
l 
A

u
d

it
 S

ta
n

d
a
rd

s
(P

S
IA

S
)

3
.4

.1
P

S
IA

S
 c

a
m

e
 i
n
to

 e
ff

e
c
t 

fr
o
m

 1
 A

p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3
, 

a
lt
h
o
u
g

h
 d

e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
ti
n
g

 c
o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

(o
r 

n
o
t)

a
g

a
in

s
t 

th
e
m

 i
s
 n

o
t 

re
q

u
ir
e
d
 u

n
ti
l
3
1
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
4
. 

A
c
o
p
y
 o

f 
th

e
 n

e
w

 s
ta

n
d
a
rd

s
 w

a
s
 i

n
c
lu

d
e
d
 o

n
 t

h
e
 C

iv
ic

 A
ff

a
ir
s
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 a

g
e
n
d
a
 i

n
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
3
 t

o
g

e
th

e
r 

w
it
h
 a

n
 i

n
it
ia

l 
o

v
e
rv

ie
w

.
S

p
e
c
if
ic

g
u
id

e
lin

e
s
 r

e
la

ti
n
g

 t
o
 t

h
e
ir
 a

d
o
p
ti
o
n
 b

y
 L

o
c
a
l 
G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 

o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
 h

a
v
e
 n

o
w

 b
e
e
n
 i
s
s
u
e
d
 (

6
 A

p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3
)

a
n
d
 t

h
e
s
e
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 u

s
e
d
 t

o
 

p
ro

v
id

e
 a

 c
h
e
c
k
lis

t 
fo

r 
e
s
ta

b
lis

h
in

g
 t
h
e
 d

e
g
re

e
 o

f 
c
o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
. 

A
n
a
ly

s
is

 i
s
 s

h
o
w

n
 i
n
 A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 A
, 

to
g

e
th

e
r 

w
it
h
 a

 s
u
m

m
a
ry

 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

p
la

n
. 

3
.4

.2
F

o
llo

w
in

g
 t

h
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
, 

in
 a

c
c
o
rd

a
n
c
e
 w

it
h
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

 1
3
2
2
, 

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 

d
e
v
ia

ti
o
n
s
 m

u
s
t 

b
e
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 B

o
a
rd

. 
It

 i
s
 p

le
a
s
in

g
 t

o
 n

o
te

 t
h
a
t 

o
n
ly

 
m

in
o
r 

is
s
u
e
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 –

s
u
c
h
 a

s
 r

e
g

u
la

r 
re

v
ie

w
s
 o

f 
o
u
r 

p
ro

c
e
d
u
re

s
 (

w
h
ic

h
 a

re
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 a

n
y
w

a
y
) 

a
n
d
 t

h
e
 n

e
w

 r
e
q

u
ir
e
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

o
b
ta

in
in

g
 a

n
 e

x
te

rn
a
l 
a
p
p
ra

is
a
l 
o
f 

th
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
. 

It
 c

a
n
 b

e
 c

o
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 t

h
e
re

fo
re

 t
h
a
t 
th

e
re

 a
re

 n
o

 s
ig

n
if

ic
a
n

t 
a
re

a
s

to
 b

e
 a

d
d
re

s
s
e
d
.

Page 39



3
.5

S
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
o

n
th

e
R

o
le

 o
f 

th
e
 H

e
a
d

 o
f 

In
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d

it
in

 L
o

c
a
l 
G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n

t 
 

3
.5

.1
C

IP
F

A
 p

u
b
lis

h
e
d
 i
ts

 S
ta

te
m

e
n
t 

o
n
 t

h
e
 r

o
le

 o
f 

th
e
 H

e
a
d
 o

f 
In

te
rn

a
l 
A

u
d
it
 (

H
IA

) 
in

 L
o
c
a
l 
G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 

in
 D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
0
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 w

id
e
s
p
re

a
d

 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
. 

T
h
e
 s

ta
te

m
e
n
t 

s
e
ts

 o
u
t 

b
e
s
t 

p
ra

c
ti
c
e
 f

o
r 

H
IA

s
 t

o
 a

s
p
ir
e
 t

o
 a

n
d
 f

o
r 

A
u
d
it
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
s
 a

n
d
 o

th
e
rs

 t
o
 m

e
a
s
u
re

 I
n
te

rn
a
l 

A
u
d
it
 

a
g

a
in

s
t.
 A

s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 a

rt
ic

u
la

ti
n
g

 t
h
e
 c

o
re

 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ti
e
s
 o

f 
th

e
 H

IA
, 
it
 a

ls
o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
s
 t
h
e
 p

e
rs

o
n
a
l 
a
n
d
 p

ro
fe

s
s
io

n
a
l 
s
k
ill

s
 n

e
e
d
e
d
.

3
.5

.2
B

a
s
e
d
 o

n
 f

iv
e
 p

ri
n
c
ip

le
s
, 

it
 d

e
fi
n
e
s
 t

h
e
 c

o
re

 a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 a

n
d

b
e
h
a
v
io

u
rs

th
a
t 

b
e
lo

n
g

 t
o
 t

h
e
 r

o
le

 o
f 

th
e
 H

IA
 a

n
d
 t

h
e

o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
a
l
a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 
n
e
e
d
e
d
 t

o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
e
m

. 
F

o
r 

e
a
c
h
 p

ri
n
c
ip

le
 i

t 
s
e
ts

 o
u
t 

th
e
 g

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 a

rr
a
n
g

e
m

e
n
ts

 r
e
q

u
ir
e
d
 t

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

H
IA

s
 a

re
 a

b
le

 t
o
 o

p
e
ra

te
 

e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e
ly

 a
n
d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

 t
h
e
ir
 c

o
re

 d
u
ti
e
s
. 
It
 a

ls
o
 s

e
ts

 o
u
t 
th

e
 c

o
re

 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ti
e
s
 o

f 
th

e
 H

IA
.

3
.5

.3
T

h
e
re

 i
s

a
 s

e
ri
e
s
 o

f 
a
tt
ri
b
u
te

s
 a

n
d
 p

e
rs

o
n
a
l 

q
u
a
lit

ie
s
 w

h
ic

h
 s

it
 b

e
lo

w
 t

h
e
s
e
 p

ri
n
c
ip

le
s
, 

s
o
m

e
 s

u
b
je

c
ti
v
e
. 

A
 f

u
ll 

re
v
ie

w
 a

g
a
in

s
t 

th
e
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

s
 

w
a
s
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 a

n
d
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d

to
 C

iv
ic

 A
ff

a
ir
s
 i

n
 J

u
n
e
 2

0
1
2
. 

T
h
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
te

d
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 r

o
le

 o
f 

th
e
 H

e
a
d
 o

f 
In

te
rn

a
l 

A
u
d
it
 a

t 
C

a
m

b
ri
d
g

e
m

e
t 

th
e
 

u
n
d
e
rl
y
in

g
 a

im
s
 o

f 
th

e
 f

iv
e
 p

ri
n
c
ip

le
s
. 

M
in

o
r 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 w
e
re

 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
s
e
 a

re
 a

ls
o
 h

ig
h
lig

h
te

d
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 n

e
w

 P
S

IA
S

.

3
.6

R
is

k
 M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
a
n

d
 G

o
v
e
rn

a
n

c
e
 A

rr
a
n

g
e
m

e
n

ts

3
.6

.1
P

ri
o
ri
ti
s
a
ti
o
n

o
f 

th
e
 w

o
rk

 o
f 

In
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d
it
 i
s
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 d

e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

a
n
 a

n
n
u
a
l 
ri
s
k
 b

a
s
e
d
 A

u
d
it
 P

la
n
. 

T
h
is

 d
e
s
c
ri
b
e
s
 t

h
e
 

a
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 p

la
n
s
 f

o
r 

th
e
 S

e
c
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
s
 s

o
m

e
 c

a
p
a
c
it
y
 f

o
r 

fl
e
x
ib

ili
ty

 t
o
 a

d
ju

s
t 

to
 c

h
a
n
g

in
g

 c
ir
c
u
m

s
ta

n
c
e
s
 a

n
d
 f

o
r 

d
e
m

a
n
d

le
d
 a

n
d
 u

rg
e
n
t 

w
o
rk

 i
f 

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

. 
T

h
e
 p

la
n
 i

s
 b

a
s
e
d
 o

n
 a

 m
ix

 o
f 

d
if
fe

re
n
t 

ty
p
e
s
 o

f 
a
u
d
it
 a

n
d
 r

is
k
 b

a
s
e
d
 w

o
rk

 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

a
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 o

v
e
r 

th
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 

s
y
s
te

m
s
 o

f 
g

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
, 
ri
s
k
 m

a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 i
n
te

rn
a
l 
c
o
n
tr

o
l 
is

 o
b
ta

in
e
d
 f
ro

m
 a

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
d
if
fe

re
n
t 

d
ir
e
c
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 s

o
u
rc

e
s
.

3
.6

.2
T

h
e
 S

e
c
ti
o
n
’s

 m
e
th

o
d
o
lo

g
y
 f

o
r 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
in

g
 a

u
d
it
 p

ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 i

s
 a

lig
n
e
d
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
g

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 r

is
k
 m

a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

s
y
s
te

m
s
. 

A
u
d
it
 

p
la

n
s
 a

re
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 a

n
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

ri
s
k
 a

n
d
 a

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 n

e
e
d
s
 t

o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
o
b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
. 

T
h
e
 S

e
c
ti
o
n
 r

e
v
ie

w
s
 

c
o
rp

o
ra

te
 
a
n
d
 
d
e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
ta

l 
ri
s
k
 
re

g
is

te
rs

, 
b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 
p
la

n
s
 
a
n
d
 
d
is

c
u
s
s
e
s
 
C

o
u
n
c
il 

o
b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
 
a
n
d
 
p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 
w

it
h
 
D

ir
e
c
to

rs
 
a
n
d
 
H

e
a
d
s
 o

f 
S

e
rv

ic
e
 t

o
 a

s
s
e
s
s
 a

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 n

e
e
d
s
. 
T

h
e
 A

u
d
it
 P

la
n
 i
s
 d

is
c
u
s
s
e
d
 a

n
d
 a

p
p
ro

v
e
d
 b

y
 C

iv
ic

 A
ff

a
ir
s
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 i
n
 M

a
rc

h
 e

a
c
h
 y

e
a
r.

 

3
.6

.3
It

 i
s
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 2

0
1
2
 /

 2
0
1
3
 A

u
d
it
 P

la
n
 r

e
p
re

s
e
n
te

d
 a

 r
e
a
s
o
n
a
b
le

 v
ie

w
 o

f 
c
ri
ti
c
a
l 
a
re

a
s
 f

o
r 

a
u
d
it
 r

e
v
ie

w
 a

n
d
 a

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 n

e
e
d
s
 w

h
e
n
 i
t 

w
a
s
 c

o
n
s
tr

u
c
te

d
 a

n
d
 a

g
re

e
d
 w

it
h
 s

e
n
io

r 
m

a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
. 

D
u
ri
n
g

 t
h
e
 y

e
a
r 

s
o
m

e
 a

u
d
it
 w

o
rk

 w
a
s
 d

e
fe

rr
e
d
 o

r 
c
a
n
c
e
lle

d
 d

u
e
 t

o
 t

h
e
 

ti
m

in
g

 o
f 

th
e
 a

u
d
it
s
. 

T
h
e
 i

m
p
a
c
t 

o
f 

b
u
d
g

e
t 

c
u
ts

 a
n
d

o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
a
l

c
h
a
n
g

e
 w

a
s
 r

e
fl
e
c
te

d
 i

n
 t

h
e
 r

e
a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

th
e
 w

o
rk

 a
n
d
 a

lt
e
rn

a
ti
v
e
 

m
e
a
n
s
 o

f 
g

a
in

in
g

 a
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 w

h
e
re

 a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

. 

3
.6

.4
F

o
r 

2
0
1
3
 /

 2
0
1
4
, 

th
e
 a

g
re

e
d
 A

u
d
it
 P

la
n
 a

g
a
in

 s
h
o
w

s
lin

k
s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 c

o
rp

o
ra

te
 a

im
s
 /

 o
b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
 i
n
 o

rd
e
r 

to
 c

le
a
rl
y

d
e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
te

 h
o
w

 a
u
d
it
 w

o
rk

 
re

la
te

s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

o
b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
.

Page 40



3
.7

C
iv

ic
 A

ff
a
ir

s
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e

3
.7

.1
T

h
e
 s

y
s
te

m
 o

f 
In

te
rn

a
l 
A

u
d
it
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
s
 t

h
e
 r

o
le

 o
f 

th
e
 “

A
u
d
it
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
” 

a
n
d
 i
n
 p

a
rt

ic
u
la

r 
it
s
 r

o
le

 i
n
 t

h
e
 r

e
c
e
ip

t 
a
n
d
 e

v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
u
d
it
 r

e
p
o
rt

s
, 

b
o
th

 i
n
 t

e
rm

s
 o

f 
a
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 o

p
in

io
n
s
 a

n
d
 i
n
 e

n
s
u
ri
n
g

 t
h
a
t 

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 a
rr

a
n
g

e
m

e
n
ts

 a
re

 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 f

o
r 

th
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

a
n
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
. 

T
h
e
 

a
rr

a
n
g

e
m

e
n
ts

 f
o
r 

th
e
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 r

e
m

a
in

e
d
 t

h
e
 s

a
m

e
 d

u
ri
n
g
 2

0
1
2
 /

 2
0
1
3
 w

it
h
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
it
y
 o

f 
m

e
m

b
e
rs

h
ip

 a
s
s
is

ti
n
g

 i
n
 m

a
in

ta
in

in
g

 a
n
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 

c
o
m

m
it
te

e
. 

A
ll 

m
e
m

b
e
rs

 a
re

 a
ls

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 w

it
h
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 t

o
 a

u
d
it
 r

e
p
o
rt

s
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 t

h
e
 s

e
c
u
re

 p
o
rt

a
l 

s
e
t 

u
p
 o

n
 t

h
e
 i

n
tr

a
n
e
t.

 T
h
is

 p
ro

v
id

e
s
 f

o
r 

in
c
re

a
s
e
d
 

tr
a
n
s
p
a
re

n
c
y
 

o
f 

th
e
 

a
u
d
it
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 

d
e
liv

e
re

d
 

a
s
 

w
e

ll 
a
s
 

p
ro

v
id

in
g

 
a
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 

th
a
t 

g
o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 

a
rr

a
n
g

e
m

e
n
ts

 
a
re

 
o
p
e
ra

ti
n
g
 

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

ly
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e

o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
.

4
  
  
  
  
 

C
O

N
C

L
U

S
IO

N

C
o
n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
 r

a
n
g
e
 o

f 
v
ie

w
s
 o

n
 t

h
e
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
 o

f 
In

te
rn

a
l 

A
u
d
it
 o

p
e
ra

ti
n
g

 w
it
h
in

 t
h
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

d
u
ri
n
g

 2
0
1
2

/ 
2
0
1
3

in
d
ic

a
te

s
 t

h
a
t 

th
is

 
h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 b

o
th

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 a
n
d
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
. 

T
h
e
 r

e
p
o
rt

 d
e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
te

s
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

h
a
s
 a

n
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 s

y
s
te

m
 o

f 
In

te
rn

a
l 
A

u
d
it
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 a

 p
o
lic

y
 

fr
a
m

e
w

o
rk

, 
In

te
rn

a
l 
A

u
d
it
 f

u
n
c
ti
o
n
, 
a
u
d
it
 c

o
m

m
it
te

e
 a

n
d
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 m

a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 
e
n
g

a
g

e
m

e
n
t.

Page 41



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 A

C
O

M
P

L
IA

N
C

E
 A

N
D

 Q
U

A
L

IT
Y

IM
P

R
O

V
E

M
E

N
T

 P
L

A
N

(P
S

IA
S

 1
3
2
0
)

F
o
r 

th
e
 p

u
rp

o
s
e
s
 o

f 
th

e
 r

e
v
ie

w
, 
th

e
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 d

e
fi
n

it
io

n
s
 a

re
 u

s
e
d

:

 
C

h
ie

f 
A

u
d

it
 E

x
e
c
u

ti
v
e

(C
A

E
)

=
 H

e
a
d
 o

f 
In

te
rn

a
l 
A

u
d

it

 
B

o
a
rd

 =
 C

iv
ic

 A
ff

a
ir
s
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e

 
S

e
n

io
r 

M
a
n

a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
=

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

L
e
a
d

e
rs

h
ip

 T
e
a
m

R
e
fe

re
n

c
e

S
T

A
N

D
A

R
D

 
C

O
M

M
E

N
T

A
R

Y
A

C
T

IO
N

1
0
0
0

P
u

rp
o

s
e

, 
A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 a

n
d

 R
e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

y

T
h
e
 p

u
rp

o
s
e
, 

a
u
th

o
ri
ty

 a
n
d
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ty

 o
f 

In
te

rn
a

l 
A

u
d

it
 a

c
ti
v
it
y
 m

u
s
t 
b
e
 d

e
fi
n

e
d
 i
n
 a

n
 I

n
te

rn
a

l 
A

u
d

it
 

c
h
a
rt

e
r,

 c
o
n
s
is

te
n
t 

w
it
h
 t

h
e
 D

e
fi
n
it
io

n
 o

f 
In

te
rn

a
l 

A
u
d

it
in

g
, 

th
e
 C

o
d

e
 o

f 
E

th
ic

s
a
n
d
 t

h
e
 S

ta
n

d
a
rd

s
.

T
h
is

 s
h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 a

p
p
ro

v
e

d
 b

y
 S

e
n

io
r 

M
a
n
a

g
e
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 t

h
e
 B

o
a
rd

.

T
h
e
 T

e
rm

s
 o

f 
R

e
fe

re
n
c
e
 a

re
 r

e
g
u

la
rl

y
 r

e
v
ie

w
e

d
 t
h

e
 l
a
s
t 

u
p
d
a

te
 b

e
in

g
 i
n
 D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
2

.
T

h
e
 T

e
rm

s
 o

f 
R

e
fe

re
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 A

u
d
it
 

M
a
n
u

a
l 
w

ill
 b

e
 c

o
m

p
a
re

d
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 n

e
w

 
S

ta
n

d
a
rd

s
 t

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 c
o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
. 

O
n
c
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
e
d
 i
t 

w
ill

 b
e

 s
u

b
m

it
te

d
 t
o
 

s
e
n
io

r 
m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
a
n

d
 t
h

e
 B

o
a
rd

 f
o
r 

a
p
p
ro

v
a

l.
 

1
1
1
0

O
rg

a
n

is
a
ti

o
n

a
l

In
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
c
e

T
h
e
 C

A
E

 m
u
s
t 
e
s
ta

b
lis

h
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 c

o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
 

lin
k
s
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 C

h
a

ir
 o

f 
th

e
 B

o
a
rd

 a
n
d
 C

h
ie

f 
E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e

T
h
e
re

 i
s
 n

o
 s

c
h
e
d

u
le

d
 m

e
e
ti
n
g

 b
e
tw

e
e

n
 t
h

e
 C

iv
ic

 
A

ff
a
ir
s
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 c

h
a
ir
 a

n
d
 t
h
e

H
o
IA

. 
F

o
rm

a
l 
m

e
e
ti
n
g

s
 

a
re

 p
a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 c

o
m

m
it
te

e
 c

y
c
le

 t
h
ro

u
g
h
o

u
t 
th

e
 y

e
a
r.

A
c
c
e
s
s
 i
s
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 t

o
 t
h

e
 C

h
ie

f 
E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 o

n
 r

e
q

u
e
s
t.

A
g
re

e
 a

rr
a
n
g

e
m

e
n
ts

 f
o
r 

lia
is

o
n
 /
 

c
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n

 m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 

H
o
IA

 a
n
d

 C
iv

ic
 A

ff
a
ir
s
 C

h
a
ir

 (
a
n
d
 

o
p
p
o
s
it
io

n
 s

p
o
k
e
s
p
e
rs

o
n
)

1
2
2
0

D
u

e
 P

ro
fe

s
s
io

n
a
l 
C

a
re

In
te

rn
a

l 
a

u
d

it
o
rs

 m
u
s
t 
a
p
p
ly

 t
h

e
 c

a
re

 a
n
d
 s

k
ill

 
e
x
p
e
c
te

d
 o

f 
a
 r

e
a
s
o
n

a
b

ly
 p

ru
d
e
n
t 

a
n

d
 c

o
m

p
e
te

n
t 

in
te

rn
a
l 
a
u

d
it
o
r.

 D
u

e
 p

ro
fe

s
s
io

n
a

l 
c
a
re

 d
o
e
s
 n

o
t 

im
p
ly

 i
n
fa

lli
b
ili

ty
.

T
h
e
 A

u
d

it
 M

a
n
u

a
l 
s
e

ts
 o

u
t 

th
e
 s

ta
n

d
a
rd

s
 i
n
d

iv
id

u
a
l 

a
u
d

it
o
rs

 m
u
s
t 
m

e
e
t 
in

 t
h

e
ir
 a

llo
c
a
te

d
 a

s
s
ig

n
m

e
n
ts

. 
T

h
e
 

M
a
n
u

a
l 
is

 b
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 t
h

e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 C

o
d
e
 o

f 
P

ra
c
ti
c
e
 a

n
d
 

th
e
re

fo
re

 n
e

e
d
s
 t
o

 b
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
e
d
 t

o
 t
a
k
e
 a

c
c
o
u
n
t 

o
f 

a
n

y
 

c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 r

e
q
u

ir
e
d
 t

o
 m

e
e
t 
th

e
 P

S
IA

S
 a

n
d
 t
o
 r

e
fl
e
c
t 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
m

a
d
e
 l
o
c
a

lly
 s

in
c
e
 i
t 

w
a
s
 l
a
s
t 
re

v
ie

w
e
d
.

R
e
v
ie

w
 a

n
d

 u
p

d
a
te

 t
h

e
 A

u
d
it
 M

a
n

u
a

l

Page 42



R
e
fe

re
n

c
e

S
T

A
N

D
A

R
D

 
C

O
M

M
E

N
T

A
R

Y
A

C
T

IO
N

1
3
0
0

Q
u

a
li
ty

 A
s

s
u

ra
n

c
e
 a

n
d

 I
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n

t
P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

T
h
e
 C

A
E

 m
u
s
t 
d
e
v
e
lo

p
 a

n
d

 m
a
in

ta
in

 a
 q

u
a
lit

y
 

a
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 a

n
d
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
th

a
t 

c
o
v
e
rs

 a
ll 

a
s
p
e
c
ts

 o
f 

th
e
 i
n
te

rn
a
l 
a
u

d
it
 a

c
ti
v
it
y
.

T
h
e
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e
 i
s
 t

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 f

o
r 

a
n
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

c
o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 P

S
IA

S
, 
to

g
e
th

e
r 

w
it
h

 e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y
 a

n
d
 

e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
 o

f 
in

te
rn

a
l 
a
u

d
it
 a

c
ti
v
it
y
.

P
re

v
io

u
s
 a

n
n
u
a

l 
re

v
ie

w
s
 a

g
a
in

s
t 
C

o
d

e
 o

f 
P

ra
c
ti
c
e
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 r

e
fe

rr
e
d
 t

o
 

C
iv

ic
 A

ff
a
ir
s
. 
T

h
e

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
h
o
u
ld

 a
ls

o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 
o
p
p
o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
 f

o
r 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t

T
h
is

 a
p
p
e
n

d
ix

 i
s
 t
o
 b

e
 r

e
fe

rr
e
d
 t
o
 a

s
 

th
e
 I
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e

1
3
1
2

E
x
te

rn
a
l 

A
s

s
e

s
s
m

e
n

ts

E
x
te

rn
a

l 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
ts

 m
u
s
t 
b
e
 c

o
n

d
u
c
te

d
 a

t 
le

a
s
t 

o
n
c
e
 e

v
e
ry

 5
 y

e
a
rs

 b
y
 a

 q
u

a
lif

ie
d
 i
n
d
e

p
e

n
d
e

n
t 

a
s
s
e
s
s
o
r 

fr
o
m

 o
u
ts

id
e
 t

h
e
 o

rg
a
n

is
a
ti
o
n
. 
T

h
e
 C

A
E

 
m

u
s
t 
d
is

c
u
s
s
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 B

o
a
rd

:

-
T

h
e
 f

o
rm

 o
f 

e
x
te

rn
a
l 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
ts

.
-

T
h
e
 q

u
a
lif

ic
a
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 i
n
d
e

p
e
n
d

e
n
c
e
 o

f 
th

e
 

e
x
te

rn
a
l 
a
s
s
e
s
s
o
r 

–
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 c

o
n
fl
ic

ts
 o

f 
in

te
re

s
t.

N
E

W
 R

E
Q

U
IR

E
M

E
N

T
. 

E
x
te

rn
a

l 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
c
a
n
 b

e
 e

it
h
e
r 

“f
u
ll”

 a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
o
r 

s
e
lf
-a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
w

it
h

 i
n

d
e

p
e
n
d
e

n
t 
e
x
te

rn
a

l 
e

v
a

lu
a
ti
o

n
.

O
n
g
o
in

g
 d

is
c
u
s
s
io

n
s
 w

it
h

 o
th

e
r 

lo
c
a
l 
a
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 w

it
h

in
 

th
e
 c

o
u

n
ty

 t
o
 l
o

o
k
 t
o
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
 a

 p
e
e
r 

re
v
ie

w
 i
n
 o

rd
e
r 

to
m

in
im

is
e

c
o
s
ts

.

P
ro

p
o
s
a

ls
 w

ill
 b

e
 s

u
b
m

it
te

d
 t
o
 C

iv
ic

 
A

ff
a
ir
s
 d

e
ta

ili
n

g
 f

u
tu

re
 a

rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 
a
n
d
 t

im
e
s
c
a
le

s
 a

g
re

e
d
.

2
0
4
0

P
o

li
c
ie

s
 a

n
d

 P
ro

c
e
d

u
re

s

T
h
e
 C

A
E

 m
u
s
t 
e
s
ta

b
lis

h
 p

o
lic

ie
s
 a

n
d

 p
ro

c
e
d

u
re

s
 t
o
 

g
u
id

e
 t

h
e
 i
n
te

rn
a
l 
a
u

d
it
 a

c
ti
v
it
y
.

T
h
e
 A

u
d

it
 M

a
n
u

a
l 
s
e

ts
 o

u
t 

th
e
 n

e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

 p
o
lic

ie
s
 a

n
d
 

p
ro

c
e
d
u
re

s
.

A
s
 p

e
r 

S
ta

n
d
a
rd

 1
2
2

0
.

2
1
2
0

R
is

k
 M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t

2
1
2
0

.A
2

T
h
e
 i
n
te

rn
a
l 
a
u
d

it
 a

c
ti
v
it
y
 m

u
s
t 
e
v
a
lu

a
te

 t
h
e

 
p
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
fo

r 
th

e
 o

c
c
u
rr

e
n
c
e

 o
f 

fr
a
u
d
 a

n
d
 h

o
w

 t
h
e

o
rg

a
n

is
a
ti
o
n

m
a
n
a
g
e
s
 f

ra
u

d
 r

is
k
.

F
ra

u
d
 s

u
rv

e
y
 r

e
v
ie

w
e
d
.

P
ro

a
c
ti
v
e

 w
o
rk

 w
ill

 b
e
 f

a
c
ili

ta
te

d
 o

n
c
e
 

ID
E

A
 s

o
ft

w
a
re

 i
s
 o

b
ta

in
e
d
 l
a
te

r 
in

 
2
0
1
3

. 
(T

h
is

 i
s
 a

n
 i
n
te

rr
o
g
a
ti
o
n
 

s
o
ft

w
a
re

 p
a
c
k
a
g
e
,

w
h

ic
h
 w

ill
 a

llo
w

 
v
a
ri

o
u
s
 t
e
s
ts

 o
n
 d

a
ta

 s
e
ts

 a
c
ro

s
s
 t
h
e
 

a
u
th

o
ri
ty

).

Page 43



Page 44

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item         

CAMBRIDGE CITY COUNCIL

REPORT OF: Head of Internal Audit

TO: Civic Affairs Committee 26 June 2013

WARDS: All

HEAD OF INTERNAL AUDIT: ANNUAL AUDIT OPINION 2012 / 2013

1 INTRODUCTION

1.1 In accordance with the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards the Head of Internal 
Audit (HIA) should provide a written report to those charged with governance. This 
is timed to support the Annual Governance Statement (AGS), which is also being 
presented to this committee for challenge by Members, before being signed off by 
the Leader of the Council and Chief Executive. The Head of Internal Audit is 
required to give an opinion on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the 
organisation’s internal control environment and the risk management framework.

2 RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1 Members of Civic Affairs Committee are asked to review, and provide challenge to, 
the opinion of the Head of Internal Audit.

3 OVERALL OPINION

3.1 The overall conclusion is that Cambridge City Council has a fundamentally 
sound governance framework from which those charged with governance can 
gain assurance.

3.2 However, no system of control can provide absolute assurance against material 
mis-statement or loss, nor can Internal Audit give that assurance.

4 BACKGROUND

4.1 The Internal Audit service works within a framework of:

 General acceptance of control within the management culture;

 Agreement of actions arising from Internal Audit reports; and

 A high level of support from Senior Management and Members.

Agenda Item 6

Page 45



4.2 Audits during the year have been conducted in accordance with the principles 
contained in the Auditing Practices Board’s auditing guideline ‘Guidance for Internal 
Auditors’, CIPFA’s ‘Code of Practice for Internal Audit in Local Government in the 
United Kingdom 2006’ and with other relevant statutory obligations and regulations.
The Code of Practice, with effect from 1 April 2013 has been replaced with the 
Public Sector Internal Audit Standards and these were reported to Civic Affairs in 
March 2013.

4.3 Given this context, and in the light of work undertaken in the year, the Head of 
Internal Audit is able to give reasonable assurance on the adequacy and 
effectiveness of the organisation’s internal controls in respect of the work 
undertaken. Further details are available in Appendix 1.

4.4 In preparing the overall opinion, the Head of Internal Audit has reviewed all audit 
activity carried out during 2012 /2013. Each individual audit undertaken contains an 
assurance opinion on the adequacy and effectiveness of controls in place to 
mitigate the risks identified by managers. Where weaknesses in control are 
identified, an action plan is agreed with management and this is recorded in the 
Council’s Risk Register. Progress is monitored against target dates for delivery of 
these agreed actions during the year.

5         SIGNIFICANT CONTROL WEAKNESSES

5.1 A number of key issues have been identified from the work of the Internal Audit 
team during 2012 / 2013, and actions agreed to resolve them. One of the key 
issues identified this year concerns the arrangements for the management of 
contracts and projects. This issue has been fed through into this year’s Annual 
Governance Statement Action Plan.

6 CONSULTATIONS

6.1 Managers and Heads of Service are consulted on all Internal Audit reports at draft 
stage to agree the proposed action plan. Directors, the Leader of the Council, 
relevant Executive Councillor and the Council’s External Auditors receive copies of 
the final versions of all Internal Audit reports. Copies of Executive Summaries are 
sent to the Chief Executive and the Council’s Monitoring Officer; in addition the final 
reports are posted on the secure intranet allowing access by all Councillors.

7 IMPLICATIONS

(a) Financial Implications: None
(b) Staffing Implications: None
(c) Equal Opportunities Implications: None
(d) Environmental Implications: None
(e) Community Safety: None

Page 46



BACKGROUND PAPERS:

The following are the background papers that were used in the preparation of this report:

 Audit Plan for 2012/2013;

 Audit Reports issued during 2012/2013;

 Code of Practice for Internal Audit in Local Government in the United Kingdom 
2006 (CIPFA).

 Accounts and Audit Regulations 2011

 Public Sector Internal Audit Standards 2013

To inspect these documents contact Steve Crabtree on extension 8181.

The author and contact officer for queries on the report is Steve Crabtree on extension 
8181.

Page 47



A
n

n
u

a
l 
A

u
d

it
 O

p
in

io
n

 2
0

1
2

/ 
2
0

1
3

0

H
E

A
D

 O
F

 I
N

T
E

R
N

A
L

 A
U

D
IT

 

A
N

N
U

A
L

 A
U

D
IT

 O
P

IN
IO

N

2
0

1
2

/ 
2

0
1

3

A
N

N
U

A
L

 R
E

P
O

R
T

1
.

In
tr

o
d
u
c
ti
o
n

2
.

A
rr

iv
in

g
 a

t 
a
n
 O

p
in

io
n

3
.

H
e
a
d
 o

f 
In

te
rn

a
l 
A

u
d
it
 O

p
in

io
n

4
.

B
a
s
is

 F
o
r 

H
e
a
d
 o

f 
In

te
rn

a
l 
A

u
d
it
 O

p
in

io
n

5
.

R
e
s
o
u
rc

in
g
 a

n
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

6
.

A
u
d
it
 P

la
n
 C

o
v
e
ra

g
e

Page 48



A
n

n
u

a
l 
A

u
d

it
 O

p
in

io
n

 2
0

1
2

/ 
2
0

1
3

1
.

IN
T

R
O

D
U

C
T

IO
N

1
.1

M
a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

is
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

le
 f

o
r 

th
e
 s

y
s
te

m
 o

f 
in

te
rn

a
l 
c
o
n
tr

o
l 
a
n
d
 s

h
o
u
ld

 s
e
t 

in
 p

la
c
e
 p

o
lic

ie
s
 a

n
d

 p
ro

c
e
d
u
re

s
 t

o
 h

e
lp

 e
n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

th
e
 s

y
s
te

m
 

is
 f

u
n
c
ti
o
n
in

g
 c

o
rr

e
c
tl
y
. 

O
n
 b

e
h
a
lf
 o

f 
th

e
 C

iv
ic

 A
ff

a
ir
s
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 D

ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 

R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
, 

In
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d
it
 a

c
ts

 a
s
 a

n
 a

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 f

u
n
c
ti
o
n
 

p
ro

v
id

in
g

 a
n
 i

n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e

n
t 

a
n
d
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e
 o

p
in

io
n

 t
o
 t

h
e
 o

rg
a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
 o

n
 t

h
e
 e

n
ti
re

 c
o
n
tr

o
l 

e
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 

b
y
 e

v
a
lu

a
ti
n
g

 t
h
e
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
 i

n
 

a
c
h
ie

v
in

g
 t

h
e
 o

rg
a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
’s

 o
b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
.

T
h
is

 r
e
p
o
rt

 i
s
 t

h
e
 c

u
lm

in
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 w

o
rk

 d
u
ri
n
g

 t
h
e
 c

o
u
rs

e
 o

f 
th

e
 y

e
a
r 

a
n
d
 s

e
e
k
s
 t

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

n
 

o
p
in

io
n
 o

n
 t

h
e
 a

d
e
q

u
a
c
y
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
n
tr

o
l 
e
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 r

e
p
o
rt

 t
h
e
 i
n
c
id

e
n
c
e
 o

f 
a
n
y
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
t 
c
o
n
tr

o
l 
fa

ili
n
g

s
 o

r 
w

e
a
k
n
e
s
s
e
s
. 
T

h
e
 r

e
p
o
rt

 a
ls

o
 

g
iv

e
s
 a

n
 o

v
e
rv

ie
w

 o
f 

a
u
d
it
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 d

u
ri
n
g

 t
h
e
 y

e
a
r.

T
h
e
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
re

p
o
rt

 w
ill

 t
h
e
n
 f

e
e
d
 i
n
to

 t
h
e
 A

n
n
u
a
l 
G

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 S

ta
te

m
e
n
t 

in
c
lu

d
e
d
 i
n
 

th
e
 S

ta
te

m
e
n
t 
o
f 

A
c
c
o
u
n
ts

. 

2
.

A
R

R
IV

IN
G

 A
T

 A
N

 O
P

IN
IO

N

2
.1

B
a
c
k
g

ro
u

n
d

T
h
e
 o

p
in

io
n
 i
s
 d

e
ri
v
e
d
 f

ro
m

 w
o
rk

 c
a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 

b
y
 I

n
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d
it
 d

u
ri
n
g

 t
h
e
 y

e
a
r,

 a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 a

g
re

e
d
 I

n
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d
it
 P

la
n
 f

o
r 

2
0
1
2
 /

 2
0
1
3
. 

T
h
e
 

In
te

rn
a
l 

A
u
d
it
 P

la
n
 w

a
s
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 t

o
 p

ri
m

a
ri
ly

 p
ro

v
id

e
 m

a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

w
it
h
 i

n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 

a
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 o

n
 t

h
e
 a

d
e
q

u
a
c
y
 a

n
d
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
 o

f 
th

e
 

s
y
s
te

m
s
 o

f 
in

te
rn

a
l 

c
o
n
tr

o
l.
 W

e
 h

a
v
e
 c

o
n
d
u
c
te

d
 o

u
r 

a
u
d
it
s
 b

o
th

 i
n
 a

c
c
o
rd

a
n
c
e
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 m

a
n
d
a
to

ry
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

s
 a

n
d
 g

o
o
d
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e

 
C

o
d
e
 o

f 
P

ra
c
ti
c
e
 a

n
d
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
lly

 f
ro

m
 o

u
r 

o
w

n
 i
n
te

rn
a
l 
q

u
a
lit

y
 a

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 s

y
s
te

m
s
. 

O
u
r 

o
p
in

io
n
 i
s
 l
im

it
e
d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 w

o
rk

 c
a
rr

ie
d

o
u
t 

b
y
 I

n
te

rn
a
l 

A
u
d
it
 b

u
t,
 w

h
e
re

 p
o
s
s
ib

le
,

w
e
 h

a
v
e
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 t
h
e
 w

o
rk

 o
f 

o
th

e
r 

a
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 p

ro
v
id

e
rs

.

2
.2

R
is

k
 B

a
s
e
d

 A
u

d
it

 P
la

n
n

in
g

In
te

rn
a
l 

A
u
d
it
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
s
 t

o
 e

m
b
ra

c
e
 t

h
e
 r

is
k
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

a
p
p
ro

a
c
h
 t

o
 a

u
d
it
. 

A
 r

is
k
 b

a
s
e
d
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h
 i

s
 u

s
e
d
 t

o
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 t

h
e
 I

n
te

rn
a
l 

A
u
d
it
 

A
n
n
u
a
l 
P

la
n
, 

a
llo

w
in

g
u
s
 t

o
 d

ir
e
c
t

re
s
o
u
rc

e
s

a
t

a
re

a
s
 k

e
y
 t

o
 t

h
e
 o

rg
a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
’s

 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
 a

n
d
 t

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

n
 o

p
in

io
n
 o

n
 t

h
e
 c

o
n
tr

o
l 
e
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 

a
s
 a

 w
h
o
le

.
D

u
ri
n
g

 t
h
e
 c

o
u
rs

e
 o

f 
th

e
 y

e
a
r 

th
e
 r

is
k
s
 o

f 
th

e
 A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 a
re

c
o
n
ti
n
u
a
lly

 r
e
v
ie

w
e
d
.

E
a
c
h
 a

u
d
it
 j

o
b
 a

ls
o
 u

s
e
s
 r

is
k
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

to
 

e
n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

s
u
it
a
b
le

 a
u
d
it
 t

im
e
 a

n
d
 r

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 a

re
 d

e
v
o
te

d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 m

o
re

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 

a
re

a
s
. 

T
h
is

 r
is

k
 b

a
s
e
d
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h
 t

o
 a

u
d
it
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 r

e
s
u
lt
s
 i
n
 

a
 d

e
ta

ile
d
 r

a
n
g

e
 o

f 
a
u
d
it
s
 t

h
a
t 

a
re

 u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 d

u
ri
n
g

 t
h
e
 c

o
u
rs

e
 o

f 
th

e
 y

e
a
r 

to
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
e
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
o
p
in

io
n
 o

n
 t

h
e
 c

o
n
tr

o
l 

e
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t.
 

E
x
a
m

p
le

s
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
:

 
R

is
k
 b

a
s
e
d
 r

e
v
ie

w
s
 o

f 
fu

n
d
a
m

e
n
ta

l 
fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
s
y
s
te

m
s
 t

h
a
t 

c
o
u
ld

 h
a
v
e
 a

 m
a
te

ri
a
l 

im
p
a
c
t 

o
n
 t

h
e
 a

c
c
o
u
n
ts

 a
n
d
 o

th
e
r 

c
o
rp

o
ra

te
 a

n
d
 

d
e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
ta

l 
s
y
s
te

m
s
;

 
C

o
n
tr

a
c
t,
 p

ro
c
u
re

m
e
n
t,
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 p

ro
je

c
t 
a
u
d
it
s
; 

a
n
d

 
F

ra
u
d
 a

n
d
 i
rr

e
g

u
la

ri
ty

 i
n
v
e
s
ti
g

a
ti
o
n
s

Page 49



A
n

n
u

a
l 
A

u
d

it
 O

p
in

io
n

 2
0

1
2

/ 
2
0

1
3

2
.3

R
e
p

o
rt

in
g

W
h
e
re

 a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

, 
e
a
c
h
 r

e
p
o
rt

 w
e
 i
s
s
u
e
 d

u
ri
n
g

 t
h
e
 y

e
a
r 

is
 g

iv
e
n
 a

n
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
o
p
in

io
n
 b

a
s
e
d
 o

n
 t

h
e
 c

ri
te

ri
a

b
e
lo

w
. 

C
e
rt

a
in

 p
ie

c
e
s
 o

f 
w

o
rk

 d
o
 n

o
t 

re
s
u
lt
 i
n
 a

n
 a

u
d
it
 r

e
p
o
rt

 w
it
h
 a

n
 o

p
in

io
n

 (
s
u
c
h
 a

s
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
c
y
 w

o
rk

, 
in

v
o
lv

e
m

e
n
t 

in
 w

o
rk

in
g

 g
ro

u
p
s
, 

re
v
ie

w
 o

f 
N

F
I 

re
p
o
rt

s
a
n
d
 f

o
llo

w
-u

p
s
).

T
h
e
 

re
p
o
rt

 o
p
in

io
n
, 

a
lo

n
g
 w

it
h
 o

u
r 

c
o
n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o
n
 o

f 
o
th

e
r 

a
u
d
it
 w

o
rk

,
is

 u
s
e
d
 t
o
 f

o
rm

u
la

te
 t

h
e
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
H

e
a
d
 o

f 
In

te
rn

a
l 
A

u
d
it
 O

p
in

io
n
.

A
U

D
IT

 A
S

S
U

R
A

N
C

E

A
s

s
u

ra
n

c
e

D
e
fi

n
it

io
n

s

F
u

ll
C

o
n
tr

o
ls

 a
re

 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 t

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
e

 a
c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
 a

n
d
 g

o
o
d
 c

o
rp

o
ra

te
 g

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
, 

a
n
d
 t

o
 p

ro
te

c
t 

th
e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 

a
g
a

in
s
t 
s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 

fo
re

s
e
e
a

b
le

 r
is

k
s
. 

S
ig

n
if

ic
a
n

t
C

o
n
tr

o
ls

 
e
x
is

t 
to

 
e
n
a
b

le
 

th
e
 

a
c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 

o
b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
 

a
n
d
 

g
o

o
d
 

c
o

rp
o
ra

te
 

g
o

v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
, 

a
n
d
 

m
it
ig

a
te

 
a
g
a

in
s
t 

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
fo

re
s
e
e
a
b
le

 r
is

k
s
. 

H
o
w

e
v
e
r,

 o
c
c
a
s
io

n
a
l 
in

s
ta

n
c
e
s
 o

f 
fa

ilu
re

 t
o
 c

o
m

p
ly

 w
it
h
 c

o
n
tr

o
l 
p
ro

c
e
s
s
 w

e
re

 i
d

e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a

n
d

/o
r 

o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 s

ti
ll 

e
x
is

t 
to

 
m

it
ig

a
te

 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

a
g
a

in
s
t 
p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 
ri

s
k
s
. 

L
im

it
e
d

C
o
n
tr

o
ls

 a
re

 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 a

n
d

 t
o
 v

a
ry

in
g

d
e
g
re

e
s
 a

re
 c

o
m

p
lie

d
 w

it
h

, 
h
o

w
e

v
e
r,

 t
h

e
re

 a
re

 g
a
p
s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 w

h
ic

h
 l
e

a
v
e
 t

h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 e

x
p

o
s
e

d
 

to
 r

is
k
s
. 

T
h
e
re

fo
re

, 
th

e
re

 i
s
 a

 n
e
e
d
 t

o
 i

n
tr

o
d

u
c
e
 a

d
d

it
io

n
a
l 

c
o
n
tr

o
ls

 a
n
d
/o

r 
im

p
ro

v
e
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
 w

it
h
 e

x
is

ti
n
g
 o

n
e
s
, 

to
 r

e
d
u
c
e

th
e
 r

is
k
 

e
x
p
o
s
u
re

 f
o
r 

th
e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
.

N
o

C
o
n
tr

o
ls

 a
re

 c
o

n
s
id

e
re

d
 t

o
 b

e
 i

n
s
u
ff

ic
ie

n
t,

 w
it
h
 t

h
e
 a

b
s
e
n
c
e
 o

f 
a
t 

le
a
s
t 

o
n
e
 c

ri
ti
c
a
l 

c
o

n
tr

o
l 

m
e
c
h
a
n
is

m
. 

T
h
e
re

 i
s
 a

ls
o
 a

 n
e
e
d

to
 i

m
p
ro

v
e
 

c
o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
 
w

it
h
 
e
x
is

ti
n
g
 
c
o
n
tr

o
ls

, 
a
n

d
 
e
rr

o
rs

 
a

n
d
 
o

m
is

s
io

n
s
 
h
a

v
e

 
b
e

e
n
 
d
e
te

c
te

d
. 

F
a
ilu

re
 
to

 
im

p
ro

v
e
 
c
o

n
tr

o
ls

 
le

a
v
e
s
 
th

e
 
A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 

e
x
p
o
s
e
d
 t

o
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
t 

ri
s
k
, 
w

h
ic

h
 c

o
u
ld

 l
e

a
d
 t

o
 m

a
jo

r 
fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
lo

s
s
, 
e
m

b
a
rr

a
s
s
m

e
n
t,
 o

r 
fa

ilu
re

 t
o
 a

c
h

ie
v
e
 k

e
y
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
. 

T
h
e
 r

e
p
o
rt

 o
p
in

io
n
 i

s
b
a
s
e
d
 u

p
o
n
 t

h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

a
n
d
 t

y
p
e
 o

f 
re

c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 w

e
 m

a
k
e
 i

n
 e

a
c
h
 r

e
p
o
rt

. 
In

d
iv

id
u
a
l 

a
c
ti
o
n
 c

a
te

g
o
ri
e
s
 a

re
 a

s
 

fo
llo

w
s
:

R
E

C
O

M
M

E
N

D
A

T
IO

N
S

 M
A

D
E

 T
O

 I
M

P
R

O
V

E
 A

S
S

U
R

A
N

C
E

 L
E

V
E

L
S

S
ta

tu
s

D
e
fi

n
it

io
n

s
Im

p
le

m
e
n

ta
ti

o
n

C
ri

ti
c
a

l
E

x
tr

e
m

e
 c

o
n
tr

o
l 
w

e
a
k
n
e
s
s
 t
h
a
t 
je

o
p
a
rd

is
e
s
 t
h
e

 c
o
m

p
le

te
 o

p
e
ra

ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
.

Im
m

e
d
ia

te
ly

H
ig

h
F

u
n
d
a
m

e
n
ta

l 
c
o
n
tr

o
l
w

e
a
k
n
e
s
s
 w

h
ic

h
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n
tl
y
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
s
 t
h
e
 r

is
k
 /
 s

c
o
p
e
 f

o
r 

e
rr

o
r,

 f
ra

u
d
, 
o
r 

lo
s
s
 o

f 
e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y
.

A
s
 a

 m
a
tt
e
r 

o
f 

p
ri
o
ri
ty

M
e
d

iu
m

S
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
c
o
n
tr

o
l 
w

e
a
k
n
e
s
s
 w

h
ic

h
 r

e
d
u
c
e
s
 t
h

e
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
n

e
s
s
 o

f 
p
ro

c
e
d
u
re

s
 d

e
s
ig

n
e
d
 t

o
 p

ro
te

c
t 
a
s
s
e
ts

 
a
n
d
 r

e
v
e

n
u
e

 o
f 

th
e
 A

u
th

o
ri
ty

.
A

t 
th

e
 f

ir
s
t 
o
p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
y

L
o

w
C

o
n
tr

o
l 
w

e
a
k
n
e
s
s
, 
w

h
ic

h
, 

if
 c

o
rr

e
c
te

d
, 

w
ill

 e
n

h
a
n
c
e
 c

o
n
tr

o
l 
p
ro

c
e
d
u
re

s
 t
h
a
t 

a
re

 a
lr

e
a
d

y
 r

e
la

ti
v
e

ly
 r

o
b
u
s
t.

A
s
 s

o
o
n
 a

s
 r

e
a
s
o
n

a
b
ly

 
p
ra

c
ti
c
a
l

Page 50



A
n

n
u

a
l 
A

u
d

it
 O

p
in

io
n

 2
0

1
2

/ 
2
0

1
3

3
.

O
P

IN
IO

N
2
0
1
2
 /
 2

0
1
3

T
h
e
 C

o
d
e
 o

f 
P

ra
c
ti
c
e
 f

o
r 

In
te

rn
a
l 

A
u
d
it
 i

n
 L

o
c
a
l 

G
o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 

in
 t

h
e
 U

K
 2

0
0
6
 s

ta
te

s
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 H

o
IA

 m
u
s
t 

p
ro

v
id

e
 a

 w
ri
tt

e
n
 r

e
p
o
rt

 t
o
 t

h
o
s
e
 

c
h
a
rg

e
d
 w

it
h
 g

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 t

im
e
d
 t

o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
e
 A

n
n
u
a
l 
G

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 S

ta
te

m
e
n
t.
 T

h
is

 r
e
p
o
rt

 m
u
s
t 

in
c
lu

d
e
 a

n
 o

p
in

io
n
 o

n
 t

h
e
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
a
d
e
q

u
a
c
y
 

a
n
d
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
 o

f 
th

e
o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
’s

c
o
n
tr

o
l 
e
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t,

 p
re

s
e
n
ti
n
g
 a

 s
u
m

m
a
ry

 o
f 

h
o
w

 t
h
a
t 

o
p
in

io
n
 i
s
 d

e
ri
v
e
d
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 r

e
lia

n
c
e
 p

la
c
e
d
 o

n
 

w
o
rk

 b
y
 o

th
e
r 

a
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 b

o
d
ie

s
.

T
h
e
 i

n
te

rn
a
l 

c
o
n
tr

o
l 

e
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 

is
 f

u
n
d
a
m

e
n
ta

lly
 w

e
ll 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 a

n
d
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
in

g
 t

o
 o

p
e
ra

te
 w

e
ll 

in
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e
 e

v
e
n
 t

h
o
u

g
h
 2

0
1
2

/ 
2
0
1
3

h
a
s
 

b
e
e
n
 a

 c
h
a
lle

n
g

in
g

 y
e
a
r 

fo
r 

th
e

o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
. 

T
h
e
re

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 i
n
s
ta

n
c
e
s
 w

h
e
re

 t
h
e
 c

o
n
tr

o
l 
e
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 

w
a
s
 n

o
t 

s
tr

o
n
g

 e
n
o
u
g

h
 o

r 
c
o
m

p
lie

d
 

w
it
h
 s

u
ff

ic
ie

n
tl
y
 t

o
 p

re
v
e
n
t 

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 

ri
s
k
s
 t

o
 t

h
e

o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
. 

T
h
e
 m

a
in

 a
re

a
 o

f 
c
o
n
c
e
rn

 i
n
 t

h
e
 y

e
a
r 

h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 i
n

re
la

ti
o
n
 t

o
th

e
 m

a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

c
o
n
tr

a
c
ts

 a
n
d
 p

ro
je

c
ts

a
n
d
 I

n
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d
it
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 w

o
rk

in
g

 c
lo

s
e
ly

 w
it
h

 m
a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

in
 t

h
is

 a
re

a
to

 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 k

e
y
 c

o
n
tr

o
ls

. 
T

h
is

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 

in
c
lu

d
e
d
 i

n
 t

h
e
 A

n
n
u
a
l 

G
o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 S

ta
te

m
e
n
t 

a
s
 a

n
 a

c
ti
o
n
 t

o
 b

e
 a

d
d
re

s
s
e
d
 g

o
in

g
 f

o
rw

a
rd

. 
A

ll 
E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e

S
u
m

m
a
ri
e
s
 o

f 
a
u
d
it
 r

e
p
o
rt

s
 h

a
v
e
 

b
e
e
n
 m

a
d
e
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 t
o
 M

e
m

b
e
rs

 t
h
ro

u
g

h
o
u
t 
th

e
 y

e
a
r 

v
ia

 t
h
e
 s

e
c
u
re

 i
n
tr

a
n
e
t.

 N
e
v
e
rt

h
e
le

s
s
, 
th

e
 k

e
y
 c

o
n
c
lu

s
io

n
s
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 r

e
p
o
rt

s
 a

re
 d

e
ta

ile
d
 

in
 S

e
c
ti
o
n
 3

 b
e
lo

w
. 

T
h
e
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
c
o
n
c
lu

s
io

n
 i
s
 t

h
a
t 

C
a
m

b
ri
d
g

e
 C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

h
a
s
 a

 s
o

u
n

d
 g

o
v
e
rn

a
n

c
e
 f

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

fr
o
m

 w
h

ic
h
 t

h
o
s
e
 c

h
a
rg

e
d
 w

it
h
 G

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 c

a
n
 

g
a
in

 r
e
a
s
o

n
a
b

le
 a

s
s
u

ra
n

c
e
. 

In
te

rn
a
l 

A
u
d
it
 h

a
s
 m

a
d
e
 a

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

re
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 t

o
 f

u
rt

h
e
r 

im
p
ro

v
e
 t

h
e
 s

y
s
te

m
s
 o

f 
c
o
n
tr

o
l 

a
n
d
 t

h
e

o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n

is
 a

c
ti
v
e
ly

 w
o
rk

in
g

 t
o
 m

a
k
e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 i
n
 t

h
e
s
e
 a

re
a
s
. 

A
g
re

e
d
 a

c
ti
o
n
s
 a

re
 r

e
c
o
rd

e
d
 a

n
d
 m

o
n
it
o
re

d
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 r

is
k

re
g

is
te

r.

A
u
d
it
 c

o
v
e
ra

g
e
 d

u
ri
n
g

 t
h
e
 y

e
a
r 

h
a
s
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 s

u
ff

ic
ie

n
t 

e
v
id

e
n
c
e
 t

o
 c

o
n
c
lu

d
e
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 k

e
y
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
c
o
n
tr

o
l 
s
y
s
te

m
s
 a

re
 s

o
u
n
d
 a

n
d
 t

h
a
t,

 i
n
 t

h
e
 

m
a
in

, 
th

e
s
e
 c

o
n
tr

o
ls

 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t

o
 w

o
rk

 w
e
ll 

in
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e
 a

lt
h
o
u
g

h
 t
h
e
re

 a
re

 s
o
m

e
 a

re
a
s
 w

h
e
re

 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 a
re

 n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

.

H
o

w
e
v
e
r,

 n
o

 s
y
s
te

m
 o

f 
c
o

n
tr

o
l 

c
a
n

 p
ro

v
id

e
 a

b
s
o

lu
te

 a
s
s
u

ra
n

c
e
 a

g
a
in

s
t 

m
a
te

ri
a
l 

m
is

s
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
o

r 
lo

s
s
, 

n
o

r 
c
a
n

 I
n

te
rn

a
l 

A
u

d
it

 g
iv

e
th

a
t 

a
s
s
u

ra
n

c
e
.

S
te

v
e
 C

ra
b
tr

e
e

H
e
a
d
 o

f 
In

te
rn

a
l 
A

u
d
it

M
a
y
 2

0
1
3

Page 51



A
n

n
u

a
l 
A

u
d

it
 O

p
in

io
n

 2
0

1
2

/ 
2
0

1
3

4
.

B
A

S
IS

 O
F

 H
E

A
D

 O
F

 I
N

T
E

R
N

A
L

 A
U

D
IT

O
P

IN
IO

N

4
.1

T
h
e
 a

u
d
it
 w

o
rk

 t
h
a
t 

w
a
s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 f

o
r 

th
e
 y

e
a
r 

to
 3

1
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
3

is
 l
is

te
d
 i
n

S
e
c
ti
o
n
 6

, 
w

h
ic

h
 s

u
m

m
a
ri
s
e
s
 a

ll 
th

e
 a

u
d
it
s

u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n

a
n
d
 t

h
e
ir
 

re
s
u
lt
s
 i
n
 t

e
rm

s
 o

f 
th

e
 a

u
d
it
 a

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 l
e
v
e
ls

 p
ro

v
id

e
d
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

a
c
ti
o
n
s
 a

g
re

e
d
.

A
 s

u
m

m
a
ry

 o
f

a
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 l
e
v
e
ls

 i
s
 d

e
ta

ile
d
 b

e
lo

w
.

T
h
is

 s
h
o
w

s
 t

h
a
t 

6
5
%

o
f 

th
e
 s

y
s
te

m
s
 a

u
d
it
e
d
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
 a

n
 a

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 l

e
v
e
l 

o
f 

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 

o
r 

h
ig

h
e
r,

 c
o
m

p
a
re

d
 t

o
6
2
%

la
s
t 

y
e
a
r

(a
n
d
 5

9
%

in
 

2
0
1
0

/
2
0
1
1
).

A
U

D
IT

 A
S

S
U

R
A

N
C

E
A

C
T

IO
N

S
 A

G
R

E
E

D

A
s

s
u

ra
n

c
e
 L

e
v

e
ls

Is
s
u

e
d

%
N

u
m

b
e
rs

2
0
1
0

/1
1

2
0
1
1

/1
2

2
0
1
2

/1
3

2
0
1
0

/1
1

2
0
1
1

/1
2

2
0
1
2

/1
3

2
0
1
0

/1
1

2
0
1
1

/1
2

2
0
1
2

/1
3

F
u
ll

5
4

2
1
8

1
4

6
L
o

w
2
2

1
0

1
4

S
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t
1
1

1
4

2
0

4
1

4
8

5
9

M
e
d

iu
m

7
3

8
2

4
5

L
im

it
e
d

1
0

1
0

1
1

3
7

3
4
.5

3
2

H
ig

h
6
5

5
3

9
0

N
o

1
1

1
4

3
.5

3
C

ri
ti
c
a

l
–

3
1

T
o
ta

l
2
7

2
9

3
4

1
0
0

1
0
0

1
0
0

1
6
0

1
4
8

1
5
0

N
/A

-
-

7
-

-
-

4
.2

In
 a

d
d
it
io

n
 t

o
 t

h
e
 a

u
d
it
s
 d

e
ta

ile
d
 i

n
 t

h
e
 a

b
o
v
e
 t

a
b
le

, 
fu

rt
h
e
r 

a
u
d
it
 w

o
rk

 w
a
s
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 f

o
llo

w
-u

p
s
, 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
c
y
 w

o
rk

 a
n
d
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

 
a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
s
u
c
h
 a

s
 i
n

v
e
s
ti
g

a
ti
o
n
s
. 

S
o
m

e
 o

f 
th

e
s
e
 w

o
rk

s
, 

s
u
c
h
 a

s
 i
n
v
e
s
ti
g

a
ti
o
n
s
 o

r 
th

e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 o

f 
a
d
v
ic

e
 /

 “
c
ri
ti
c
a
l 
fr

ie
n
d
” 

ro
le

 w
ill

 n
o
t 

w
a
rr

a
n
t 

a
n
 a

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 r

a
ti
n
g

, 
b
u
t 

th
e
re

 m
a
y
 b

e
 s

o
m

e
 a

c
ti
o
n
s
 t

o
 b

e
 a

d
d
re

s
s
e
d
. 

D
u
ri
n
g
 t

h
e
 y

e
a
r,

 6
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 f

e
ll 

in
to

 t
h
is

 c
a
te

g
o
ry

 a
n
d
 t

h
e
 f

u
ll 

d
e
ta

ils
 

a
re

 s
h
o
w

n
 i
n
 S

e
c
ti
o
n
 6

.
A

t 
th

e
 y

e
a
r 

e
n
d

a
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

a
u
d
it
s
 w

e
re

 i
n
 v

a
ri
o
u

s
 s

ta
g

e
s
 o

f 
c
o
m

p
le

ti
o
n

a
n
d
 a

u
d
it
 o

p
in

io
n
s
 r

e
la

ti
n

g
 t

o
 t

h
e
s
e
 w

ill
 b

e
 

re
p
o
rt

e
d
 d

u
ri
n
g
 2

0
1
3
 /
 2

0
1
4
.

4
.3

A
n

n
u

a
l 

G
o

v
e
rn

a
n

c
e
 S

ta
te

m
e
n

t

In
 J

u
n
e
 2

0
0
7
 C

IP
F

A
, 

in
 c

o
n
ju

n
c
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 S

o
c
ie

ty
 o

f 
L
o
c
a
l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 C
h
ie

f 
E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
s
 (

S
O

L
A

C
E

),
 p

u
b
lis

h
e
d
 D

e
liv

e
ri
n
g

 G
o
o
d
 G

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 

in
 L

o
c
a
l 

G
o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t:
 F

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

. 
T

h
e
 D

e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
t 

fo
r 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 a

n
d
 L

o
c
a
l 

G
o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 

h
a
s
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
d
 t

h
a
t 

th
is

 g
u
id

a
n
c
e
 r

e
p
re

s
e
n
ts

 
p
ro

p
e
r 

p
ra

c
ti
c
e
. 

C
o
n
s
e
q
u
e
n
tl
y
, 

C
iv

ic
 A

ff
a
ir
s
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 s

h
o
u
ld

 s
e
e
k
 a

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 t

h
a
t 

th
is

 g
u
id

a
n
c
e
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 f

o
llo

w
e
d
 t

o
 c

o
m

p
ile

 t
h
e
 A

n
n
u
a
l 

G
o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 S

ta
te

m
e
n
t 

(A
G

S
).

 T
o
 h

e
lp

 t
h
e
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 g

a
in

 t
h
a
t 

a
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 a

n
d
 t

o
 g

iv
e
 s

o
m

e
 i

n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 

a
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 A

G
S

 i
s
 f

re
e
 

fr
o
m

 m
a
te

ri
a
l 
m

is
s
ta

te
m

e
n
t 
In

te
rn

a
l 
A

u
d
it
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
s
 r

e
v
ie

w
s
 o

f 
th

e
 k

e
y
 c

o
rp

o
ra

te
 g

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 s

y
s
te

m
s
. 

Page 52



A
n

n
u

a
l 
A

u
d

it
 O

p
in

io
n

 2
0

1
2

/ 
2
0

1
3

U
s
in

g
 o

u
r 

a
u
d
it
 w

o
rk

 a
n
d
 b

e
in

g
 i
n
v
o
lv

e
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

th
e
 A

n
n
u
a
l 
G

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 S

ta
te

m
e
n
t 

w
e
 c

a
n
 c

o
n
fi
rm

 t
h
a
t 

th
e
re

 i
s
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e
 t

o
 

in
d
ic

a
te

 t
h
a
t 

p
o
lic

ie
s
, 

p
ro

c
e
d
u
re

s
 a

n
d
 s

y
s
te

m
s
 a

re
 i

n
 p

la
c
e
 f

o
r 

c
o
rp

o
ra

te
 g

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 t

o
 b

e
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il.

 T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

h
a
s
 

d
e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
te

d
 a

 f
ir
m

 f
o
u
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 f

o
r 

th
is

 a
n
d
 I

n
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d
it
 r

e
m

a
in

s
 o

f 
th

e
 o

p
in

io
n
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 p

o
lic

ie
s
, 

p
ro

c
e
d
u
re

s
 a

n
d
 s

y
s
te

m
s
 a

re
 g

e
n
e
ra

lly
 i
n
 

p
la

c
e
 

fo
r 

g
o
o
d
 

c
o
rp

o
ra

te
 

g
o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
.

F
ro

m
 

o
u
r 

a
u
d
it
 

w
o
rk

w
e
 

h
a

v
e

 
m

a
d
e
 

re
fe

re
n
c
e
 

to
 

th
e
 

n
e
e
d
 

to
 

im
p
ro

v
e
 

c
o
n
tr

a
c
t 

a
n
d
 

p
ro

je
c
t 

m
a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 t
h
is

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 A

c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
.

4
.4

R
is

k
 M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t

In
te

rn
a
l 

A
u
d
it
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 i

n
v
o
lv

e
d
 i

n
 t

h
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 r

o
ll 

o
u
t 

o
f 

th
e
 n

e
w

 r
is

k
 m

a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

a
rr

a
n
g

e
m

e
n
ts

 a
c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il.

 
T

h
e

u
p
d
a
te

d
 R

is
k
 M

a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 s

e
tt

in
g

 o
u
t 

th
e
 r

e
v
is

e
d
 f

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 w
a
s
 a

p
p
ro

v
e
d
 b

y
C

iv
ic

 A
ff

a
ir
s
 i
n
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
3

. 
A

ll 
a
g

re
e
d
 I

n
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d
it
 

a
c
ti
o
n
s
 a

re
 r

e
c
o
rd

e
d
 o

n
 t
h
e
 r

is
k
 r

e
g

is
te

r 
a
n
d
 m

o
n
it
o
re

d
 f
o
r 

im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
. 
Q

u
a
rt

e
rl
y
 r

e
p
o
rt

s
 a

re
 r

e
fe

rr
e
d
 t
o
 e

a
c
h
 D

e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
ta

l 
M

a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

T
e
a
m

 o
n
 o

u
ts

ta
n
d
in

g
 a

c
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 a

re
 a

ls
o
 f

la
g
g

e
d
 u

p
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 L
e
a
d
e
rs

h
ip

 T
e
a
m

h
a
lf
 y

e
a
rl
y
. 

T
h
e
 s

u
m

m
a
ry

 p
o
s
it
io

n
is

 a
s
 f

o
llo

w
s
:

A
C

T
IO

N
S

 M
A

D
E

Y
e
a
r

A
g

re
e
d

Im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

C
o

m
p

le
ti

o
n

 D
a
te

 N
o

t 
D

u
e

C
a
n

c
e
ll

e
d

O
v

e
rd

u
e
 A

c
ti

o
n

2
0
1
1

 /
 2

0
1
2

1
4
8

8
7

5
2

5
4

2
0
1
2

 /
 2

0
1
3

1
5
0

7
5

2
8

0
4
7

T
h
e
 n

e
w

 r
is

k
 r

e
g

is
te

r 
w

a
s
 i
n
tr

o
d
u
c
e
d
 d

u
ri
n
g

 2
0
1
2
 /

 2
0
1
3
. 

D
u
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 s

y
s
te

m
 b

e
in

g
 n

o
t 
fi
t 
fo

r 
p
u
rp

o
s
e
 t
h
e
re

 h
a
s
 n

o
t 
b
e
e
n
 a

n
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 

m
e
c
h
a
n
is

m
 t

o
 m

o
n
it
o
r 

d
e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

a
c
ti
o
n
s
. 

T
h
e
 n

e
w

 s
y
s
te

m
 i

s
 a

d
d
re

s
s
in

g
 t

h
is

 a
n
d
 w

it
h
 c

o
rp

o
ra

te
 b

u
y
 i

n
 f

ro
m

 D
ir
e
c
to

rs
 t

h
e
 l

e
v
e

l 
o
f 

a
c
ti
o
n
s
 

o
u
ts

ta
n
d
in

g
 i
s
 r

e
d
u
c
in

g
 q

u
ic

k
ly

.

4
.5

K
e

y
 F

in
a
n

c
ia

l 
S

y
s
te

m
s

A
 r

is
k
 b

a
s
e
d

re
v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 a

u
th

o
ri
ty

’s
 k

e
y
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
s
y
s
te

m
s
 i

s
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 t

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

in
g

 t
h
e
 i

n
te

rn
a
l 

a
u
d
it
 o

p
in

io
n
 o

n
 t

h
e

a
d
e
q

u
a
c
y
 o

f 
th

e
o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
’s

c
o
n
tr

o
l 
e
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t.

 A
s
 i
n
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 y

e
a
rs

, 
th

e
 k

e
y
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
s
y
s
te

m
s
 s

u
b
je

c
t 

to
 a

u
d
it
 w

e
re

 a
g

re
e
d
 i
n
 a

d
v
a
n
c
e
 

w
it
h
 t

h
e
 a

u
th

o
ri
ty

’s
 e

x
te

rn
a
l 

a
u
d
it
o
rs

 a
s
 t

h
e
y
 r

e
v
ie

w
 t

h
is

 w
o
rk

 a
n
d
 u

s
e
 t

h
is

 a
s
 a

 k
e
y
 s

o
u
rc

e
 o

f 
a
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 f

o
r 

th
e

o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
.

T
h
e
s
e
 h

a
v
e

 
b
e
e
n

re
v
ie

w
e
d

 a
n
d
 t

h
e
y
 c

o
n
fi
rm

 t
h
a
t 

it
 m

e
e
ts

 t
h
e
ir
 r

e
q

u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 i
n
 t

e
rm

s
 o

f 
ti
m

e
lin

e
s
s
, 

q
u
a
lit

y
 a

n
d
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

in
g

 e
v
id

e
n
c
e
. 

 A
u
d
it
 c

o
v
e
ra

g
e
 

d
u
ri
n
g
 t

h
e
 y

e
a
r 

h
a
s
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 s

u
ff

ic
ie

n
t 

e
v
id

e
n
c
e
 t
o
 c

o
n
c
lu

d
e
 t
h
a
t 
th

o
s
e

k
e
y
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
c
o
n
tr

o
l 
s
y
s
te

m
s

e
v
a
lu

a
te

d
a
re

 s
o
u
n
d
.

Page 53



A
n

n
u

a
l 
A

u
d

it
 O

p
in

io
n

 2
0

1
2

/ 
2
0

1
3

4
.6

S
u

m
m

a
ry

 A
c
ti

v
it

ie
s

S
e
c
ti
o
n
 6

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
s
 t
h
e
 w

o
rk

s
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 a

n
d
 c

o
n
c
lu

d
e
d

in
 t

h
e
 y

e
a
r.

 K
e
y
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
:

 
R

is
k
 M

a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t.
 T

h
e
re

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 r

e
n
e
w

e
d
 i

m
p
e
tu

s
 t

o
 e

m
b
e
d
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 r

is
k
 m

a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

a
c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e
 o

rg
a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
. 

F
o
llo

w
in

g
 t

h
e
 

im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 n

e
w

 r
is

k
 r

e
g

is
te

r,
 t

h
e
re

 i
s
 a

 g
re

a
te

r 
fo

c
u
s
 o

n
 m

a
n
a
g

in
g
 r

is
k
s
 a

n
d
 a

c
h
ie

v
in

g
 c

o
rp

o
ra

te
 b

u
y
 i
n
.

 
H

e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 S

a
fe

ty
(C

o
n
tr

a
c
t 

M
a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t)

.
T

h
e
 a

u
d
it
 c

o
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 t

h
a
t 

w
h
ile

 s
it
e
 v

is
it
s
 a

re
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 t

o
 v

e
ri
fy

 t
h
a
t 

h
e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 s

a
fe

ty
 

is
s
u
e
s
 a

re
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a

n
d
 a

d
d
re

s
s
e
d
, 
h
o
w

e
v
e
r 

th
e
re

 i
s
 a

 l
a
c
k
 o

f 
d
o
c
u
m

e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 t

o
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e
 t

h
e
s
e
 c

h
e
c
k
s
.

 
B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 m

ile
a
g

e
.

T
h
e
re

 i
s
 a

n
 i

n
c
o
n
s
is

te
n
t 

a
p
p
ro

a
c
h
 a

c
ro

s
s
 d

e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
ts

 i
n
 v

e
ri
fy

in
g

 t
h
a
t 

e
m

p
lo

y
e
e
s
’ 

p
ri
v
a
te

v
e
h
ic

le
s
 h

a
v
e

 b
e
e
n
 

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

ly
 i
n
s
u
re

d
 a

n
d
 M

O
T

’s
 o

b
ta

in
e
d
 w

h
e
re

 n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

.

 
F

u
n
d
in

g
 t

o
 v

o
lu

n
ta

ry
 o

rg
a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
.

T
h
e
re

 a
re

 i
n
c
o
n
s
is

te
n
c
ie

s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 p

ro
c
e
d
u
re

s
 f

o
r 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
in

g
 a

n
d
 m

a
n
a
g

in
g

 g
ra

n
t 

fu
n
d
in

g
 a

c
ro

s
s
 

th
e
 o

rg
a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 w

e
 h

a
v
e
 s

u
g
g

e
s
te

d
 s

o
m

e
 f

o
rm

 o
f 

s
tr

e
a
m

lin
in

g
.

 
R

e
s
p
o
n
s
iv

e
 R

e
p
a
ir
s
 I

m
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

P
la

n
.

D
e
la

y
s
 i
n
 r

e
c
ru

it
in

g
 t

o
 k

e
y
 p

o
s
ts

 w
it
h
in

 t
h
e
 d

e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
t 

h
a
v
e

h
in

d
e
re

d
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 a

g
a
in

s
t 

th
e
 

P
la

n
. 

S
ta

ff
 h

a
v
e
 n

o
w

 b
e
e
n
 a

p
p
o
in

te
d
 s

o
 t
h
is

 i
s
 n

o
w

 b
a
c
k
 o

n
 t
ra

c
k
.

 
L
e
a
s
e
h
o
ld

e
r 

C
h
a
rg

e
s
. 
In

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 a
ll 

c
o
s
ts

 a
re

 r
e
c
o
v
e
re

d
 h

a
s

n
o
t 

a
lw

a
y
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 o
n
 a

 t
im

e
ly

 b
a
s
is

.

 
P

C
I

D
S

S
 C

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
. 

A
 l

a
c
k
 o

f 
c
h
e
c
k
s
 o

n
 s

o
ft

w
a
re

 p
ro

v
id

e
rs

 d
id

 n
o
t 

e
n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

th
e
y
 w

e
re

 s
ti
ll 

c
o
m

p
lia

n
t

a
n
d
 r

e
tu

rn
s
 h

a
d
 n

o
t 

b
e
e
n
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 o

n
 a

 t
im

e
ly

 b
a
s
is

. 

 
C

o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 
P

ro
p
e
rt

y
 P

o
rt

fo
lio

. 
S

to
c
k
 c

o
n
d
it
io

n
 s

u
rv

e
y
s
 w

e
re

 n
o
t 
c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 o

n
 a

 t
im

e
ly

 b
a
s
is

 f
o
r 

a
ll 

p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s
.

 
C

a
p
it
a
l
E

x
p
e
n
d

it
u
re

.
It

 w
a
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
re

 w
a
s
 i
n
c
o
n
s
is

te
n
c
y
 i
n
 t

h
e
 m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g

 o
f 

th
e
 c

a
p
it
a
l 
p
la

n
 a

n
d
 a

 n
e
e
d
 f

o
r 

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 
re

-p
ro

fi
lin

g
.

 
M

a
rk

e
ts

. 
R

o
b
u
s
t 

a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 
fo

r 
th

e
 
m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g

 
o
f 

in
c
o
m

e
 
fr

o
m

 
s
ta

llh
o
ld

e
rs

 
a
re

 
re

q
u
ir
e
d
 
a
n
d
 
is

s
u
e
s
 
o
f 

lo
n
e
 
w

o
rk

in
g

 
w

e
re

 
id

e
n
ti
fi
e
d
.

 
M

e
m

b
e
rs

 A
llo

w
a
n
c
e
s
. 

S
p
e
c
ia

l 
re

s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ty

 a
llo

w
a
n
c
e
s
 w

e
re

 i
n
c
o
rr

e
c
tl
y
 p

a
id

 f
o
llo

w
in

g
 c

h
a
n
g

e
s
 i
n
 m

e
m

b
e
rs

h
ip

.

 
D

e
p
o
t 

C
a
s
h
 H

a
n
d
in

g
. 
W

e
a
k
n
e
s
s
e
s
 w

e
re

 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 a

rr
a
n
g

e
m

e
n
ts

 f
o
r 

th
e
 p

a
y
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
g

o
o
d
s
 a

n
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

t 
th

e
 D

e
p
o
t.

T
w

o
 a

u
d
it
s
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 d

u
ri
n
g
 t

h
e
 y

e
a
r 

re
c
e
iv

e
d
 F

U
L
L
 a

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
, 

th
e
s
e
 b

e
in

g
:

 
V

o
id

 C
le

a
ra

n
c
e
; 

a
n
d

 
Im

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 r

e
c
e
n
t 

p
a
y
 r

e
v
ie

w
.

4
.7

A
ll

e
g

a
ti

o
n

s
 o

f 
F

ra
u

d
 a

n
d

 B
re

a
c
h

e
s
 o

f 
C

o
d

e
 o

f 
C

o
n

d
u

c
t

F
ra

u
d
 a

n
d
 I

rr
e
g

u
la

ri
ty

 i
n
v
e
s
ti
g

a
ti
o
n
s
 w

e
re

 p
re

v
io

u
s
ly

 r
e
p
o
rt

e
d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 S

ta
n
d
a
rd

s
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 a

n
n
u
a
lly

. 
T

h
is

w
o
u
ld

 h
a
v
e
 c

o
v
e

re
d
 I

n
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d
it
 

w
o
rk

 a
s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 t

h
a
t 

o
f 

th
e
 R

e
v
e
n
u
e
 a

n
d
 B

e
n
e
fi
ts

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 F

ra
u
d
 P

re
v
e
n
ti
o
n
 T

e
a
m

. 
T

h
is

 i
s
 n

o
w

 p
a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 r

e
m

it
 o

f 
C

iv
ic

 A
ff

a
ir

s
 a

n
d
 a

 r
e
p
o
rt

 
e
ls

e
w

h
e
re

 o
n
 t

h
is

 a
g

e
n
d
a
 c

o
v
e
rs

 f
ra

u
d
 a

n
d
 w

h
is

tl
e
b
lo

w
in

g
.

Page 54



A
n

n
u

a
l 
A

u
d

it
 O

p
in

io
n

 2
0

1
2

/ 
2
0

1
3

5
.

R
E

S
O

U
R

C
IN

G
 A

N
D

 P
E

R
F

O
R

M
A

N
C

E

5
.1

R
e
s
o

u
rc

in
g

T
h
e
 s

ta
ff

in
g

 p
o
s
it
io

n
 i

n
 I

n
te

rn
a
l 

A
u
d
it
 i

s
 s

lig
h
tl
y
 l

o
w

e
r 

th
a
n

w
h
e
n
 t

h
e
 A

n
n
u
a
l 

In
te

rn
a
l 

A
u
d
it
 P

la
n
 w

a
s
 a

g
re

e
d
, 

d
u
e
 t

o
 m

a
te

rn
it
y
 l

e
a
v
e
. 

T
h

e
re

s
o
u
rc

e
 l
e
v
e
l 
fo

r 
th

e
 y

e
a
r 

w
a
s
:

P
o

s
t

F
T

E
V

a
c

a
n

c
y

C
h

a
n

g
e
 I
n

 Y
e
a

r
C

o
m

m
e
n

ta
ry

A
t 

Y
e
a

r 
E

n
d

H
e
a
d
 o

f 
In

te
rn

a
l 
A

u
d

it
0
.5

0
-

-
C

o
n
ti
n
u

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
s
h
a
re

d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 w

it
h
 P

e
te

rb
o
ro

u
g
h

0
.5

0

P
ri
n
c
ip

a
l 
A

u
d

it
o
r

0
.7

6
-

-
0
.7

6

S
e
n

io
r 

A
u
d

it
o
r

2
.9

6
-0

.6
0

-0
.8

0
V

a
c
a
n
c
y
 h

e
ld

 f
o
r 

th
e
 y

e
a
r 

to
 p

ro
v
id

e
 b

u
d
g

e
t 
s
a

v
in

g
s

O
n
e
 o

ff
ic

e
r 

c
o
m

m
e
n
c
e
d
 m

a
te

rn
it
y
 l
e

a
v
e
 X

m
a
s
 2

0
1
2

1
.5

6

A
u
d

it
 A

s
s
is

ta
n
t

1
.8

1
-

-
1
.8

1

6
.0

3
-0

.6
0

-0
.8

0
4
.6

3

5
.2

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

D
u

ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 y
e

a
r,

 i
t 

s
h
o
u

ld
 b

e
 n

o
te

d
 t

h
a

t:

 
C

u
s
to

m
e
r 

fe
e
d
b
a
c
k
 r

e
m

a
in

s
 v

e
ry

 p
o
s
it
iv

e
.

 
T

h
e
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 s

h
a
re

d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 a

rr
a
n
g

e
m

e
n
t 

w
it
h
 P

e
te

rb
o
ro

u
g

h
 C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

w
h
ic

h
is

 d
e
liv

e
ri

n
g

c
o
s
t 

e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y
 s

a
v
in

g
s

a
n
d

im
p
ro

v
e
d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
;

 
E

x
te

rn
a
l 
a
u
d
it
 r

e
lia

n
c
e
 o

n
 o

u
r 

w
o
rk

;
a
n
d

 
S

ic
k
n

e
s
s
 l
e

v
e

ls
 r

e
m

a
in

 b
e

lo
w

c
o

rp
o

ra
te

 l
e

v
e

ls
.

Page 55



A
n

n
u

a
l 
A

u
d

it
 O

p
in

io
n

 2
0

1
2

/ 
2
0

1
3

6
.

A
U

D
IT

 P
L

A
N

 C
O

V
E

R
A

G
E

A
S

S
U

R
A

N
C

E
L

E
V

E
L

A
C

T
IO

N
S

C
O

M
M

E
N

T
A

R
Y

A
G

R
E

E
D

A
c

ti
o

n
 s

ta
tu

s
:

3
 J

u
n

e
 2

0
1
3

A
U

D
IT

 A
C

T
IV

IT
Y

R
e

p
o

rt
 N

o
.

C
ri

ti
c

a
l

H
ig

h
M

e
d

L
o

w
T

o
ta

l
C

o
m

p
le

te
O

v
e

rd
u

e
N

o
t 

Y
e

t 
D

u
e

C
O

R
E

 S
Y

S
T

E
M

 
A

S
S

U
R

A
N

C
E

 W
O

R
K

C
o

re
 s

y
s
te

m
s
 a

re
 t

h
o

s
e
 t

h
a
t 

a
re

 f
u

n
d

a
m

e
n

ta
l 
to

 p
ro

v
id

in
g

 c
o

n
tr

o
l 
a
s
s
u

ra
n

c
e
 f

o
r 

in
te

rn
a
l 
fi

n
a
n

c
ia

l 
c
o

n
tr

o
l 
a
n

d
 a

ll
o

w
 t

h
e
 

s
1
5
1

 o
ff

ic
e
r 

to
 m

a
k
e

 h
is

 s
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
in

c
lu

d
e
d

 i
n

 t
h

e
 A

n
n

u
a
l 

A
c
c
o

u
n

ts
 o

n
 t

h
e

 r
e
li
a
b

il
it

y
 o

f 
th

e
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
in

g
 f

in
a
n

c
ia

l 
s

y
s
te

m
s
.

H
o
u
s
in

g
 B

e
n

e
fi
t

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

C
o
m

p
le

te

C
o
u
n
c
il 

T
a
x

D
ra

ft
 

T
re

a
s
u
ry

 M
a
n
a

g
e
m

e
n
t

D
ra

ft

A
N

N
U

A
L

 G
O

V
E

R
N

A
N

C
E

 
A

N
D

A
S

S
U

R
A

N
C

E
 

F
R

A
M

E
W

O
R

K

E
a
c
h

 y
e
a

r 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
c

il
 i
s

 o
b

li
g

e
d

 t
o

 i
s
s
u

e
 a

 s
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
o

n
 t

h
e
 e

ff
e
c
ti

v
e
n

e
s
s

 o
f 

it
s
 g

o
v

e
rn

a
n

c
e
 a

rr
a
n

g
e

m
e
n

ts
. 
T

h
is

 s
e
c
ti

o
n

 
d

e
ta

il
s
 t

h
e
 a

u
d

it
 w

o
rk

 t
h

a
t 

s
p

e
c
if

ic
a
ll

y
 r

e
la

te
s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 p

ro
d

u
c
ti

o
n

 o
f 

th
e
 A

n
n

u
a
l 
G

o
v

e
rn

a
n

c
e

 S
ta

te
m

e
n

t

A
n
n

u
a

l 
G

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 

S
ta

te
m

e
n
t

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

C
o
m

p
le

te

A
n
n

u
a

l 
A

u
d
it
 O

p
in

io
n

N
/A

 
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A
C

o
m

p
le

te

In
te

rn
a

l 
A

u
d

it
 E

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
n

e
s
s

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

C
o
m

p
le

te

N
a
ti
o
n
a

l 
F

ra
u

d
 I
n

it
ia

ti
v
e

–
–

–
–

–
–

–
–

–
–

In
 p

ro
g
re

s
s

P
re

v
e
n
ti
o
n

 o
f 

F
ra

u
d
 a

n
d
 

C
o
rr

u
p
ti
o
n
 P

o
lic

y
–

–
–

–
–

–
–

–
–

–
R

e
p
o
rt

 t
o
 C

iv
ic

 
A

ff
a
ir
s
 J

u
n
e
 

2
0
1
3

R
is

k
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t

2
0
1
2

/1
3
 3

7
 

L
im

it
e
d

0
1

0
0

1
0

1
0

C
o
m

p
le

te

Page 56



A
n

n
u

a
l 
A

u
d

it
 O

p
in

io
n

 2
0

1
2

/ 
2
0

1
3

A
S

S
U

R
A

N
C

E
L

E
V

E
L

A
C

T
IO

N
S

C
O

M
M

E
N

T
A

R
Y

A
G

R
E

E
D

A
c

ti
o

n
 s

ta
tu

s
: 

3
J

u
n

e
2

0
1
3

A
U

D
IT

 A
C

T
IV

IT
Y

R
e

p
o

rt
 N

o
.

C
ri

ti
c

a
l

H
ig

h
M

e
d

L
o

w
T

o
ta

l
C

o
m

p
le

te
O

v
e

rd
u

e
N

o
t 

Y
e

t 
D

u
e

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 /
 C

R
O

S
S

 
C

U
T

T
IN

G
 A

U
D

IT
S

In
te

rn
a
l 

A
u

d
it

 p
ro

v
id

e
s
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 t

o
 C

o
u

n
c
il
 a

n
d

 D
ir

e
c
to

ra
te

 o
b

je
c
ti

v
e
s
 b

y
 t

e
s

ti
n

g
 t

h
e
 e

ff
e
c
ti

v
e
n

e
s
s
 o

f 
c

o
n

tr
o

ls
 d

e
s
ig

n
e
d

 t
o

 
m

it
ig

a
te

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi

e
d

 r
is

k
s
. 

H
e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 S

a
fe

ty
2
0
1
2

/1
3
 0

3
L
im

it
e
d

0
6

0
0

6
2

4
0

C
o
m

p
le

te

D
a
ta

 P
ro

te
c
ti
o
n

 C
o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

2
0
1
2

/1
3
 4

5
 

S
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t
0

7
0

0
7

0
3

4
C

o
m

p
le

te

Im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 

o
u
tc

o
m

e
s
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 

a
n
d
 S

u
p

p
o
rt

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

R
e
v
ie

w
 (

B
S

S
R

)

F
ie

ld
w

o
rk

P
u
rc

h
a
s
e
 O

rd
e
rs

D
ra

ft

C
lim

a
te

 C
h

a
n
g

e
 F

u
n

d
2
0
1
2

/1
3
 0

4
 

S
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t
0

4
1

0
5

3
0

2
C

o
m

p
le

te

F
e
e
s
 a

n
d

 C
h

a
rg

e
s

D
ra

ft

B
u
s
in

e
s
s
 M

ile
a

g
e

2
0
1
2

/1
3
 0

1
L
im

it
e
d

0
4

0
0

4
4

0
0

C
o
m

p
le

te

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 C

h
a
n
g

e
 P

ro
c
e
s
s

C
a
n
c
e
lle

d

D
e
v
o
lv

e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

d
e
c
is

io
n
 

m
a
k
in

g
 o

n
 d

e
v
e

lo
p
e
r 

c
o
n
tr

ib
u

ti
o
n
s

2
0
1
2

/1
3
 3

5
 

S
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t
0

3
0

0
3

0
0

3
C

o
m

p
le

te

G
if
ts

 a
n
d
 H

o
s
p

it
a

lit
y

2
0
1
2

/1
3
 1

8
S

ig
n
if
ic

a
n

t
0

0
6

2
8

2
3

3
C

o
m

p
le

te
 

F
u
n
d
in

g
 t

o
 V

o
lu

n
ta

ry
 a

n
d
 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 O

rg
a
n

is
a
ti
o
n
s

2
0
1
2

/1
3
 1

7
L
im

it
e
d

0
3

4
1

8
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A
C

o
m

p
le

te
 

Page 57



A
n

n
u

a
l 
A

u
d

it
 O

p
in

io
n

 2
0

1
2

/ 
2
0

1
3

A
S

S
U

R
A

N
C

E
L

E
V

E
L

A
C

T
IO

N
S

C
O

M
M

E
N

T
A

R
Y

A
G

R
E

E
D

A
c

ti
o

n
 s

ta
tu

s
: 

3
J

u
n

e
 2

0
1
3

A
U

D
IT

 A
C

T
IV

IT
Y

R
e

p
o

rt
 N

o
.

C
ri

ti
c

a
l

H
ig

h
M

e
d

L
o

w
T

o
ta

l
C

o
m

p
le

te
O

v
e

rd
u

e
N

o
t 

Y
e

t 
D

u
e

P
R

O
J

E
C

T
S

D
e
p

e
n

d
e
n

t 
o

n
 r

is
k
, 
w

e
 r

e
v

ie
w

 a
 s

a
m

p
le

 o
f 

p
ro

je
c
ts

 a
n

d
 c

o
n

tr
a

c
ts

 e
a

c
h

 y
e
a
r 

to
 t

e
s
t 

w
h

e
th

e
r 

th
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il
s
 g

o
v

e
rn

a
n

c
e
 

a
rr

a
n

g
e
m

e
n

ts
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 f

o
ll
o

w
e
d

 a
n

d
 t

h
a
t 

c
o

n
tr

a
c
ts

 p
ro

v
id

e
 v

a
lu

e
 f

o
r 

m
o

n
e

y

C
la

y
 F

a
rm

 –
C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

C
e
n
tr

e
O

n
g
o
in

g
 

m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g

C
la

y
 F

a
rm

 –
L
a
n
d

 D
is

p
o
s
a
l

O
n
g
o
in

g
 

m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g

R
o
u
te

 O
p
ti
m

is
a
ti
o

n
C

a
n
c
e
lle

d

M
e
rc

u
ry

 A
b
a

te
m

e
n
t

D
ra

ft

5
0
0
 H

o
u
s
e
 B

u
ild

in
g

2
0
1
2

/1
3
 1

4
S

ig
n
if
ic

a
n

t
0

1
0

0
1

1
0

0
C

o
m

p
le

te

O
rc

h
a
rd

 U
p
g
ra

d
e

D
e
fe

rr
e
d
 t
o
 

2
0
1
3

 /
 2

0
1
4

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
iv

e
 R

e
p

a
ir
s
 

Im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
P

la
n

2
0
1
2

/1
3
 1

6
L
im

it
e
d

0
2

0
0

2
2

0
0

C
o
m

p
le

te

H
R

A
 S

e
lf
 F

in
a
n
c
in

g
2
0
1
2

/1
3
 3

0
 

S
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t
0

0
0

0
0

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

C
o
m

p
le

te

C
O

N
T

R
A

C
T

S
D

e
p

e
n

d
e
n

t 
o

n
 r

is
k
, 
w

e
 r

e
v

ie
w

 a
 s

a
m

p
le

 o
f 

p
ro

je
c
ts

 a
n

d
 c

o
n

tr
a

c
ts

 e
a

c
h

 y
e
a
r 

to
 t

e
s
t 

w
h

e
th

e
r 

th
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il
s
 g

o
v

e
rn

a
n

c
e
 

a
rr

a
n

g
e
m

e
n

ts
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 f

o
ll
o

w
e
d

 a
n

d
 t

h
a
t 

c
o

n
tr

a
c
ts

 p
ro

v
id

e
 v

a
lu

e
 f

o
r 

m
o

n
e

y

P
la

n
n

e
d
 M

a
in

te
n

a
n
c
e

2
0
1
2

/1
3
 0

9
S

ig
n
if
ic

a
n

t
0

8
0

0
8

7
0

1
C

o
m

p
le

te

H
o
m

e
le

s
s
n
e
s
s
 A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

C
e
n
tr

e
 (

Z
io

n
 B

a
p
ti
s
t 
C

h
u
rc

h
)

F
ie

ld
w

o
rk

D
it
c
h
b

u
rn

 P
la

c
e
 C

a
re

 
C

o
n
tr

a
c
t

P
la

n
n

in
g

Page 58



A
n

n
u

a
l 
A

u
d

it
 O

p
in

io
n

 2
0

1
2

/ 
2
0

1
3

A
S

S
U

R
A

N
C

E
L

E
V

E
L

A
C

T
IO

N
S

C
O

M
M

E
N

T
A

R
Y

A
G

R
E

E
D

A
c

ti
o

n
 s

ta
tu

s
: 

3
J

u
n

e
 2

0
1
3

A
U

D
IT

 A
C

T
IV

IT
Y

R
e

p
o

rt
 N

o
.

C
ri

ti
c

a
l

H
ig

h
M

e
d

L
o

w
T

o
ta

l
C

o
m

p
le

te
O

v
e

rd
u

e
N

o
t 

Y
e

t 
D

u
e

D
E

P
A

R
T

M
E

N
T

C
H

IE
F

 E
X

E
C

U
T

IV
E

S

S
o
c
ia

l 
M

e
d

ia
2
0
1
2

/1
3
 3

2
 

S
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t
0

0
0

2
2

1
0

1
C

o
m

p
le

te

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 M

a
n

a
g
e
m

e
n
t

2
0
1
2

/1
3
 3

1
S

ig
n
if
ic

a
n

t
0

1
1

0
2

1
1

0
C

o
m

p
le

te

D
E

P
A

R
T

M
E

N
T

C
U

S
T

O
M

E
R

 A
N

D
 C

O
M

M
U

N
IT

Y
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

W
e
lf
a
re

 R
e
fo

rm
 A

c
t

2
0
1
2

/1
3
 2

6
 

S
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t
0

0
1

0
1

1
0

0
C

o
m

p
le

te

L
e
a
s
e
h

o
ld

e
r 

C
h

a
rg

e
s
 (

s
.2

0
)

2
0
1
2

/1
3
 0

2
 

L
im

it
e
d

0
6

0
0

6
1

5
0

C
o
m

p
le

te

V
o
id

s
 C

le
a
ra

n
c
e

 P
ro

c
e
s
s

2
0
1
2

/1
3
 0

5
 

F
u
ll

0
0

0
1

1
1

0
0

C
o
m

p
le

te

H
o
m

e
 I
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
A

g
e

n
c
y

D
ra

ft

R
ig

h
t 
T

o
 B

u
y

F
ie

ld
w

o
rk

C
o
rn

 E
x
c
h
a

n
g
e

 B
o
x
 O

ff
ic

e
O

n
g
o
in

g
 

m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 D

e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
t 
–

A
s
s
e
t 
M

a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t

2
0
1
2

/1
3
 3

6
S

ig
n
if
ic

a
n

t
0

5
0

0
5

4
0

1
C

o
m

p
le

te

C
a
re

 C
a

ll 
S

y
s
te

m
2
0
1
2

/1
3
 2

9
 

S
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t
0

0
1

0
1

1
0

0
C

o
m

p
le

te

Page 59



A
n

n
u

a
l 
A

u
d

it
 O

p
in

io
n

 2
0

1
2

/ 
2
0

1
3

A
S

S
U

R
A

N
C

E
L

E
V

E
L

A
C

T
IO

N
S

C
O

M
M

E
N

T
A

R
Y

A
G

R
E

E
D

A
c

ti
o

n
 s

ta
tu

s
: 

3
J

u
n

e
 2

0
1
3

A
U

D
IT

 A
C

T
IV

IT
Y

R
e

p
o

rt
 N

o
.

C
ri

ti
c

a
l

H
ig

h
M

e
d

L
o

w
T

o
ta

l
C

o
m

p
le

te
O

v
e

rd
u

e
N

o
t 

Y
e

t 
D

u
e

D
E

P
A

R
T

M
E

N
T

E
N

V
IR

O
N

M
E

N
T

P
u
b

lic
 A

rt
2
0
1
2

/1
3
 1

9
 

S
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t
0

0
0

0
0

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

C
o
m

p
le

te

P
la

y
 A

re
a
s

2
0
1
2

/1
3
 2

2
 

S
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t
0

0
2

0
2

1
1

0
C

o
m

p
le

te

L
e
a
s
e
h

o
ld

e
r 

C
h

a
rg

e
s
 

(G
ro

u
n
d
s
 M

a
in

te
n
a

n
c
e
 

C
o
s
ts

)

D
e
fe

rr
e
d
 t
o
 

2
0
1
3

 /
 2

0
1
4

C
re

m
a
to

ri
u
m

 /
 

C
o
m

m
e
m

o
ra

ti
o
n
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

2
0
1
2

/1
3
 2

3
 

N
/A

0
0

0
2

2
2

0
0

C
o
m

p
le

te

C
C

T
V

 /
 O

u
t 
o
f 

H
o
u
rs

 S
e
rv

ic
e

2
0
1
2

/1
3
 3

4
S

ig
n
if
ic

a
n

t
0

0
0

0
0

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

C
o
m

p
le

te

R
a
n
g

e
r 

D
a
ta

 C
o

lle
c
ti
o

n
2
0
1
2

/1
3
 4

7
S

ig
n
if
ic

a
n

t
0

0
1

2
3

N
/A

N
/A

3
C

o
m

p
le

te
 

O
ff

ic
e
r 

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a

ti
o
n
 o

n
 

P
la

n
n

in
g

 A
p

p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s

F
ie

ld
w

o
rk

 

T
re

e
 M

a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t

F
ie

ld
w

o
rk

Page 60



A
n

n
u

a
l 
A

u
d

it
 O

p
in

io
n

 2
0

1
2

/ 
2
0

1
3

A
S

S
U

R
A

N
C

E
L

E
V

E
L

A
C

T
IO

N
S

C
O

M
M

E
N

T
A

R
Y

A
G

R
E

E
D

A
c

ti
o

n
 s

ta
tu

s
: 

3
J

u
n

e
 2

0
1
3

A
U

D
IT

 A
C

T
IV

IT
Y

R
e

p
o

rt
 N

o
.

C
ri

ti
c

a
l

H
ig

h
M

e
d

L
o

w
T

o
ta

l
C

o
m

p
le

te
O

v
e

rd
u

e
N

o
t 

Y
e

t 
D

u
e

D
E

P
A

R
T

M
E

N
T

R
E

S
O

U
R

C
E

S

E
D

R
M

S
2
0
1
2

/1
3
 2

8
S

ig
n
if
ic

a
n

t
0

1
0

0
1

0
1

0
C

o
m

p
le

te

P
C

I 
D

S
S

 C
o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

2
0
1
2

/1
3
 0

6
 

N
o

1
2

1
0

4
3

1
0

C
o
m

p
le

te

C
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 
P

ro
p
e
rt

y
 

P
o
rt

fo
lio

2
0
1
2

/1
3
 1

0
 

L
im

it
e
d

0
4

1
0

5
3

2
0

C
o
m

p
le

te

Im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 

o
u
tc

o
m

e
s
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 r

e
c
e
n
t 

p
a

y
 r

e
v
ie

w

2
0
1
2

/1
3
 2

7
 

F
u
ll

0
0

0
0

0
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A
C

o
m

p
le

te

IT
 C

o
n
tr

a
c
t 
M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n
t

T
h
is

 a
u
d
it
 w

a
s
 c

a
n
c
e

lle
d
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 a

u
d
it
 p

la
n

. 
H

o
w

e
v
e
r,

 v
a
ri

o
u
s
 a

d
v
ic

e
 a

n
d
 o

n
g

o
in

g
 m

o
n
it
o
ri
n

g
 w

a
s
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 t

o
 t
h
e

 p
ro

je
c
t 
te

a
m

d
u
ri
n

g
 t
h

e
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

a
ti
o
n

, 
e

v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 s

u
b
s
e
q
u

e
n
t 
re

-l
e
t 
o
f 

th
is

 c
o
n
tr

a
c
t 
d

u
ri

n
g
 2

0
1
2
 /

 2
0

1
3
.

P
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 
S

tr
a
te

g
y
 /
 

S
p
e

n
d
 C

a
te

g
o
ri
s
a
ti
o

n
D

ra
ft

Page 61



A
n

n
u

a
l 
A

u
d

it
 O

p
in

io
n

 2
0

1
2

/ 
2
0

1
3

A
S

S
U

R
A

N
C

E
L

E
V

E
L

A
C

T
IO

N
S

C
O

M
M

E
N

T
A

R
Y

A
G

R
E

E
D

A
c

ti
o

n
 s

ta
tu

s
: 

3
J

u
n

e
 2

0
1
3

A
U

D
IT

 A
C

T
IV

IT
Y

R
e

p
o

rt
 N

o
.

C
ri

ti
c

a
l

H
ig

h
M

e
d

L
o

w
T

o
ta

l
C

o
m

p
le

te
O

v
e

rd
u

e
N

o
t 

Y
e

t 
D

u
e

C
A

R
R

Y
 F

O
R

W
A

R
D

 A
C

T
IV

IT
IE

S

C
a
p
it
a
l 
E

x
p

e
n
d

it
u
re

2
0
1
2

/1
3
 0

8
L
im

it
e
d

0
1

1
2

0
1
3

3
1
0

0
C

o
m

p
le

te

A
s
s
e
t 
M

a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 
–

U
s
e
 o

f 
A

c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o

n
2
0
1
2

/1
3
 4

6
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A
C

o
m

p
le

te

M
a
rk

e
ts

2
0
1
2

/1
3
 2

1
L
im

it
e
d

0
2

3
1

6
4

0
2

C
o
m

p
le

te

D
a
ta

 S
e
c
u
ri

ty
2
0
1
2

/1
3
 1

5
S

ig
n
if
ic

a
n

t
0

1
3

0
4

1
3

0
C

o
m

p
le

te

M
e
m

b
e
r 

A
llo

w
a

n
c
e
s

2
0
1
2

/1
3
 0

7
L
im

it
e
d

0
4

1
0

5
5

0
0

C
o
m

p
le

te

F
O

L
L

O
W

 U
P

 P
R

O
V

IS
IO

N

L
e
is

u
re

 M
a

n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t

2
0
1
2

/1
3
 2

4
S

ig
n
if
ic

a
n

t
0

0
0

0
0

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

C
o
m

p
le

te

L
o
n
e

 W
o
rk

in
g

2
0
1
2

/1
3
 4

3
S

ig
n
if
ic

a
n

t
0

1
0

0
1

0
1

0
C

o
m

p
le

te

C
o
n
tr

a
c
to

r 
H

e
a

lt
h
 &

 S
a
fe

ty
D

ra
ft

S
e
rv

ic
e
 C

o
n
ti
n
u

it
y
 P

la
n
s

D
ra

ft

Page 62



A
n

n
u

a
l 
A

u
d

it
 O

p
in

io
n

 2
0

1
2

/ 
2
0

1
3

A
S

S
U

R
A

N
C

E
L

E
V

E
L

A
C

T
IO

N
S

C
O

M
M

E
N

T
A

R
Y

A
G

R
E

E
D

A
c

ti
o

n
 s

ta
tu

s
: 

3
J

u
n

e
 2

0
1
3

A
U

D
IT

 A
C

T
IV

IT
Y

R
e

p
o

rt
 N

o
.

C
ri

ti
c

a
l

H
ig

h
M

e
d

L
o

w
T

o
ta

l
C

o
m

p
le

te
O

v
e

rd
u

e
N

o
t 

Y
e

t 
D

u
e

U
N

P
L

A
N

N
E

D
 A

C
T

IV
IT

Y
: 

P
R

O
J

E
C

T
 M

A
N

A
G

E
M

E
N

T
 /
 P

R
O

C
U

R
E

M
E

N
T

 /
 C

O
N

T
R

A
C

T
 M

A
N

A
G

E
M

E
N

T
 A

D
V

IC
E

V
a
ri

o
u
s
 p

ie
c
e
s
 o

f 
c
o
n
tr

a
c
ts

 a
d

v
ic

e
 w

e
re

 p
ro

v
id

e
d
 d

u
ri
n

g
 t
h
e

 y
e

a
r.

 T
h
e
s
e
 c

o
v
e
re

d
 a

ll 
s
ta

g
e
s
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
ts

 p
ro

c
e
s
s
. 
K

e
y
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 c

o
v
e
re

d
:

 
L
e
is

u
re

 M
a

n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

 
B

o
x
 O

ff
ic

e
 S

o
ft

w
a
re

 
R

e
-l
e
t 

o
f 

IC
T

 
P

la
n
n

e
d
 M

a
in

te
n

a
n
c
e

A
d

v
ic

e
a
n
d
 s

u
p
p

o
rt

 o
n
 p

ro
je

c
ts

 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d

:

 
R

e
s
p
o
n
s
iv

e
 R

e
p

a
ir
s
 I
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
P

la
n

 
S

to
re

s
 /
 P

ro
c
u
re

m
e
n
t

U
N

P
L

A
N

N
E

D
 A

C
T

IV
IT

Y
: 

S
P

E
C

IA
L

 I
N

V
E

S
T

IG
A

T
IO

N
S

 –
E

.G
. 

A
L

L
E

G
A

T
IO

N
S

 O
F

 B
R

E
A

C
H

E
S

 O
F

 O
F

F
IC

E
R

 C
O

D
E

 O
F

 C
O

N
D

U
C

T
 /
 W

H
IS

T
L

E
B

L
O

W
IN

G

S
.I
. 

–
C

u
s
to

m
e
r 

a
n
d
 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 #

0
1

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

W
h
is

tl
e
b
lo

w
in

g

S
.I
.-

E
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
t 
#
0
1

2
0
1
2

/1
3
 1

2
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A
W

h
is

tl
e
b
lo

w
in

g

S
.I
. 

–
R

e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 #

0
1

2
0
1
2

/1
3
 3

3
N

/A
0

1
0

0
0

1
0

1
0

0
0

W
h
is

tl
e
b
lo

w
in

g

U
N

P
L

A
N

N
E

D
 A

C
T

IV
IT

Y
: 

R
E

Q
U

E
S

T
E

D
 W

O
R

K

S
tr

e
e
t 

T
ra

d
in

g
 C

o
n
s
e
n

ts
2
0
1
2

/1
3
 2

0
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A
R

e
q
u

e
s
t

C
a
s
h
 H

a
n
d
lin

g
 a

t 
th

e
 D

e
p

o
t

2
0
1
2

/1
3
 2

5
L
im

it
e
d

0
1
3

7
3

2
3

1
2

1
1

0
R

e
q
u

e
s
t

R
IS

K
 M

A
N

A
G

E
M

E
N

T

In
te

rn
a

l 
A

u
d

it
 h

a
s
 a

s
s
is

te
d

 i
n
 t
h
e

 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 u

p
d

a
te

d
 r

is
k
 r

e
g
is

te
r.

 O
n
g

o
in

g
 w

o
rk

 i
n
c
lu

d
e
s

th
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
 a

n
d
 m

o
n
it
o
ri

n
g
 o

f 
C

o
u
n

c
il’

s
 r

is
k
s
 a

n
d
 

im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
c
ti
o
n
s
 a

g
re

e
d
 t

o
 m

it
ig

a
te

 t
h

e
s
e
.

Page 63



Page 64

This page is intentionally left blank



Report Page No: 1 Agenda Page No:

Agenda Item         

CAMBRIDGE CITY COUNCIL

REPORT OF: Director of Resources

TO: Civic Affairs Committee 26/06/13

WARDS: All

ASSURANCE FRAMEWORK, DRAFT ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 
AND DRAFT CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 2013

1 INTRODUCTION

1.1 The preparation of an Annual Governance Statement (AGS) is necessary to 
meet the statutory requirements as set out in Regulation 4(3) of the Accounts 
and Audit (England) Regulations 2011. The AGS covers the Council’s 
governance arrangements for the 2012-13 reporting year and is published as 
part of the Statement of Accounts. 

1.2 This report includes the draft AGS and incorporated AGS action plan  
(presented in Appendix A) for the Members of Civic Affairs Committee to 
review, challenge and advise the Leader and Chief Executive upon 
accordingly.

1.3 This report also identifies progress with the 2011/12 AGS action plan and 
presents the necessary recommendations for Member approval that will allow 
the Council as a whole to ensure that the AGS is produced in accordance with 
CIPFA guidance and therefore meet External Audit requirements. 

1.4 The Council’s Code of Corporate Governance summarises the ways in which 
the authority directs and controls its functions and relates to its communities. It 
is reviewed annually.

2 RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1 That Members of Civic Affairs Committee: 

 note the arrangements for compiling, reporting on and signing the AGS.

 critically review the draft AGS and incorporated action plan (Appendix A)
having regard to the Head of Internal Audit Annual Opinion (earlier on this 
agenda); and

 advise the Leader of the Council and Chief Executive on any issues arising 
from the draft AGS and action plan.

Agenda Item 7

Page 65



Report Page No: 2 Agenda Page No:

2.2 That the Council approves the Code of Corporate Governance (Appendix B) at 

Full Council on 18th July.

3 BACKGROUND TO THE AGS

Scope of the AGS

3.1 Internal control and risk management are recognised as important elements of 
good corporate governance.  The scope of governance, as covered in the 
AGS, spans the whole range of the Council’s activities and includes those 
designed to ensure that:

 The Council’s policies are implemented in practice;

 High quality services are delivered efficiently and effectively; 

 The Council’s values and ethical standards are met;

 Laws and regulations are complied with;

 Required processes are adhered to;

 Its financial statements and other published information are accurate 
and reliable; and 

 Human, financial and other resources are managed efficiently and 
effectively.

Arrangements for Compiling the AGS

3.2 CIPFA, in conjunction with SOLACE, have produced a framework for 
delivering good governance in local government. Since 2003/04, responsibility 
for preparing the AGS rested with Internal Audit and this was performed 
working to the CIPFA/SOLACE framework. 

3.3 In December 2010, CIPFA issued its statement on ‘The Role of the Head of 
Internal Audit in Local Government’, which states that the Head of Internal 
Audit should ‘set out the framework of assurance that supports the Annual 
Governance Statement and identify Internal Audit’s role within it’, but ‘should 
not be responsible for preparing the report.’ Arrangements for compiling the 
AGS for 2012-13 have been undertaken by the Head of Legal Services (the 
Council’s Monitoring Officer) in conjunction with the Head of Corporate 
Strategy and the Principal Auditor. 

3.4 Assurances from the work of the Internal Audit team relating to 2012/2013 
have been reviewed and one area that has been highlighted from their work 
concerns the issue of lack of documentation of contract management checks, 
in particular the checks carried out on contractor health & safety. An action 
has been included in the AGS Action Plan to follow up this audit to ensure 
agreed actions have been implemented..

3.5 One of the key messages coming out of the CIPFA/SOLACE guidance is that 
good governance relates to the whole organisation and there should be 
corporate ownership of the AGS and governance arrangements. 

Page 66



Report Page No: 3 Agenda Page No:

Arrangements for reporting on and signing off the AGS

3.6 The draft AGS and Action Plan is being presented to the Members of this 
Committee for them to review and advise the Leader and Chief Executive 
upon, prior to it being signed off by the Leader and the Chief Executive. 

3.7 Members are asked to consider the HIA Annual Opinion, which is presented 
earlier on this agenda, in their review of the AGS.

4. Progress with the 2011-12 AGS Action Plan

4.1 All of the actions included in last year’s AGS Action plan have either been 
completed in full or partially completed as follows:

 Risk Management – A decision was taken to defer recruitment to the vacant 
part-time Risk Management Officer (RMO) post in order to evaluate whether 
the functions of the RMO could be managed within existing resources, as 
implementation of the new risk register has simplified many of the processes 
that were previously supported by this post. Reports are being provided to 
SLT on risks and outstanding actions. The first of these was presented in 
January 2013 and the next one is due in July 2013. The Council’s Risk 
Management Strategy was reviewed and approved by Civic Affairs Committee 
in March 2013.

 Project Management - The review of the Council’s Project Management 
Guidelines is now complete. The guidelines now need to be rolled out to all 
managers across the Council and plans are in place to do this.

 Review of Decision-Making Arrangements - The alternatives made possible 
by the Localism Act, namely the potential to return to a committee system of 
decision-making, were reviewed and reported to Civic Affairs Committee in 
November 2012.  The Committee agreed that, because the current Cambridge 
City Council system had been deliberately designed to incorporate the best 
elements of the committee system, a change would not bring significant 
benefits, and no further work was required at that time.

 Implementation of the Bribery Act 2010 - The Prevention of Fraud & 
Corruption Policy has been updated to provide an overview of the Bribery Act 
and its implications for the City Council. The updated Policy is being brought 
to Civic Affairs Committee (June 2013) for review and approval.

An Internal Audit review of Gifts & Hospitality has been undertaken as part of the 
2012-13 Internal Audit Plan. A ‘Significant’ assurance rating was given to this 
review, which highlighted the need for greater clarity in the Officer Code of
Conduct on what can be accepted and what needs to be recorded in the gifts 
and hospitality register. The revised Code is being brought to Civic Affairs 
Committee (June 2013) for approval.

Page 67



Report Page No: 4 Agenda Page No:

4.3 Appendix A to this report details the action plan to address significant 
governance issues for the 20121/13 AGS. 

5. BACKGROUND TO THE CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

5.1 The Council adopted a Code of Corporate Governance on 25 April 2002. It 
has been reviewed annually since then. 

5.2 There are no significant changes to the Code this year. The Code has been 
revised to ensure that references to supporting plans, policies and procedures 
are up to date. 

5.3 Officers intend to explore whether the Code of Corporate Governance can be 
improved by providing web-links between the Code and the supporting 
evidence cited in the Code. However, this is dependent on the availability of 
staffing resources.

6 CONSULTATIONS

5.1 Key officers have been consulted in compiling the 2012-13 AGS and Action 
Plan. The draft AGS and Action Plan have been shared with the Council’s 
External Auditors.

6 CONCLUSION

6.1 The draft AGS and draft Code set out the governance framework for the City 
Council and identifies a number of issues where action is planned to improve 
the level of governance.

7 IMPLICATIONS

(a) Financial Implications
None

(b) Staffing Implications   
None

(c) Equal Opportunities Implications
None

(d) Environmental Implications
None

(e) Community Safety Implications
None

Page 68



Report Page No: 5 Agenda Page No:

BACKGROUND PAPERS: The following are the background papers that were used 
in the preparation of this report:

 Delivering Good Governance in Local Government – The Framework and 
Guidance Note for English Authorities – CIPFA/SOLACE plus Addendum 
(December 2012)

 The Annual Governance Statement: Meeting the Requirements of the 
Accounts and Audit Regulations 2003, Incorporating Accounts and Audit 
(Amendment) (England) Regulations 2006 

 The CIPFA Finance Advisory Network – A Rough Guide for Practitioners 
2007/08.

 Application Note to Delivering Good Governance in Local Government – a
Framework – CIPFA/SOLACE – March 2010

 Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2011

 Statement on the Role of the Head of Internal Audit in Local Government –
CIPFA – December 2010

 Statement on Role of the Chief Financial Officer – CIPFA 

To inspect these documents contact Bridget Bishop on extension 8182. 

The author and contact officer for queries on the report is Simon Pugh, Head of Legal 
Services and Monitoring Officer, on (01223) 457401 or email 
simon.pugh@cambridge.gov.uk.

Page 69



Appendix A

Report Page No: 6 Agenda Page No:

Annual Governance Statement

Annual Governance Statement

Scope of Responsibility

Cambridge City Council is responsible for ensuring that its business is conducted in 
accordance with the law and proper standards, and that public money is safeguarded 
and properly accounted for, and used economically, efficiently and effectively. 
Cambridge City Council also has a duty under the Local Government Act 1999 to 
make arrangements to secure continuous improvement in the way in which its 
functions are exercised, having regard to a combination of economy, efficiency and 
effectiveness. 

In discharging this overall responsibility, Cambridge City Council is responsible for 
putting in place proper arrangements for the governance of its affairs, facilitating the 
effective exercise of its functions, and which includes arrangements for the 
management of risk. 

Cambridge City Council has approved and adopted a Code of Corporate 
Governance, which is consistent with the principles of the CIPFA/SOLACE 
Framework Delivering Good Governance in Local Government. A copy of the Code is 
on our website at www.cambridge.gov.uk or can be obtained from the Chief 
Executive, The Guildhall, Cambridge. This statement explains how Cambridge City 
Council has complied with the Code and also meets the requirements of the 
Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2011 regulation 4(3), which requires all 
relevant bodies to prepare an Annual Governance Statement.

The Purpose of the Governance Framework 

The governance framework comprises the systems and processes, culture and 
values by which Cambridge City Council is directed and controlled and its activities 
through which it accounts to, engages with and leads its communities. It enables the 
authority to monitor the achievement of its strategic objectives and to consider 
whether those objectives have led to the delivery of appropriate services and value 
for money. 

The system of internal control is a significant part of that framework and is designed 
to manage risk to a reasonable level. It cannot eliminate all risk of failure to achieve 
policies, aims and objectives and can therefore only provide reasonable and not 
absolute assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on an 
ongoing process designed to identify and prioritise the risks to the achievement of 
Cambridge City Council’s policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the likelihood and 
potential impact of those risks being realised, and to manage them efficiently, 
effectively and economically.

The governance framework has been in place at Cambridge City Council for the year 
ended 31 March 2013 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and 
statement of accounts. 

Page 70



Appendix A

Report Page No: 7 Agenda Page No:

The Governance Framework

The key elements of the systems and processes that comprise the authority’s 
governance arrangements include:

 The Council's Vision Statement, which focuses the Council's efforts in 
achieving its vision for the future of Cambridge.

 The Annual Statement, which reiterates the vision and sets out a range of 
activities the Council will undertake in the year ahead to achieve the vision, and 
its core underpinning values.

 The Annual Report, which contains information on financial performance and 
achievement of business objectives as articulated in the portfolio plans.

 The annual budget and service planning process which translates the Council’s 
Objectives into actions at portfolio and operational level.

 The Council's Medium Term Financial Strategy, which identifies how the Council 
will resource its aspirations and plans for any financial risks.

 A Budget Setting Report, which sets out overall spending plans and includes a 
Treasury Management Strategy Statement, Annual Investment Strategy and 
Minimum Revenue Provision Policy Statement.

 The arrangements for regular budget monitoring and reporting of significant 
variances to senior management.

 An independent Internal Audit function with a risk-based audit plan.

 An annual opinion of the Head of Internal Audit on the authority’s internal control 
environment and risk management framework.

 The Council’s Constitution, which sets out the decision-making process, the 
terms of reference for each committee and the roles and responsibilities of 
Members and officers.

 The Member/Officer protocol, which aids effective communication between 
officers and Members and clarifies their respective roles and responsibilities.

 Codes of Conduct for Members and officers, which have been formally approved 
and are reviewed regularly and available to all Members and staff.

 The Council’s Civic Affairs Committee, which promotes and maintains high 
standards of conduct by Members and which has overall responsibility for the 
Council's compliance with laws and regulations.

 The Council’s Prevention of Fraud and Corruption Policy which is in place and 
reviewed regularly by the Council’s Civic Affairs Committee.

 A Register of Interests, which is maintained and reviewed regularly.

 Financial Regulations and Financial Procedure Rules which provide a framework 
for managing the Council’s financial affairs and set out the financial 
accountabilities and responsibilities for Members and officers.

 A corporate Risk Management Framework, which includes a Risk Management 
Strategy approved by Members and a comprehensive risk register identifying the 
key controls and actions required to manage the Council’s principal risks.

 The role of the Council’s Civic Affairs Committee, which fulfils the core functions 
of an Audit Committee as identified in CIPFA’s ‘Audit Committees – Practical 
Guidance for Local Authorities’.

Page 71



Appendix A

Report Page No: 8 Agenda Page No:

 The Procurement Policy and Strategy and the Council’s Contract Procedure 
Rules, which set out how the Council will promote effective procurement across 
the Council.

 The Chief Executive is the Council’s Head of Paid Service and the Head of 
Legal Services is the Council’s Monitoring Officer. Their roles and 
responsibilities are set out in the Council’s Articles of the Constitution. 

 The financial management arrangements at Cambridge City Council conform 
with the governance requirements of the CIPFA Statement on the Role of the 
Chief Financial Officer in Local Government (2010).

 The Council’s assurance arrangements conform with the governance 
requirements of CIPFA’s Statement on the Role of the Head of Internal Audit in 
Local Government.

 A ‘Whistleblowing’ Policy, which is in place and available on the Council’s 
intranet. 

 The Council’s Complaints Procedure, which is available on the Council’s 
website.

 The annual complaints report to Civic Affairs Committee, which analyses trends 
in complaints against the Council and what has been done to address them.

 Member Induction training and a guide for new Members, together with ongoing 
training for Members on key skills and more in-depth explanations of issues 
concerning the Council. 

 The Council’s Performance Review process which is undertaken annually 
across the Council for all staff. 

 The Council’s Competency Framework, which is in place for all staff and 
managers.

 The Council’s People Strategy, which sets out how the Council will recruit, 
reward and develop its staff to reach their full potential.

 The Media Protocol, which sets out the processes for drafting and clearing news 
releases and engaging with the media.

 The Corporate Change Programme Board, which commissions and monitors 
projects to implement change and transformation.

 The Citizens’ Survey, which is undertaken periodically to gauge the public’s 
perception of Council services, our spending priorities, communication with us 
and feelings of safety.

 The Code of Corporate Governance, which sets out the ways in which the
Council ensures that its business is conducted in accordance with law and 
proper standards and that public money is safeguarded and properly accounted 
for.

 A framework to guide the Council’s engagement with external partnerships that 
will ensure the Council’s partnerships are accountable and effective.

 The corporate website, residents’ magazine and social media channels, which 
along with other publications and communications provide for informing and 
engaging residents and other stakeholders in service delivery and policy 
formulation.

 A Code of Best Practice on Consultation and Community Engagement, adopted 
by the Council which sets out the Council’s approach to consultation.

Page 72



Appendix A

Report Page No: 9 Agenda Page No:

 Internal quarterly performance reporting against key performance indicators for 
each service prepared for and presented to the strategic leadership team to 
consider necessary remedial action.

Review of Effectiveness 

Cambridge City Council has responsibility for conducting, at least annually, a review 
of the effectiveness of its governance framework including the system of internal 
control. The review of effectiveness is informed by the work of the Directors and 
Heads of Service within Cambridge City Council who have responsibility for the 
development and maintenance of the governance environment, the Head of Internal 
Audit’s annual opinion, and also by comments made by the external auditors and 
other review agencies and inspectorates. 

The Council’s Constitution details Directors’ responsibilities for the maintenance of 
controls within their departments.  The system of internal control is subject to regular 
review by Internal Audit.  The work of the service is informed by the Council’s risk 
register, with the allocation of audit resources controlled through an annual risk-
based operational plan, which is agreed, annually, by the Council’s Civic Affairs 
Committee. Members are kept informed of the work of Internal Audit through a 
dedicated Members’ Internal Audit web-page, which publishes copies of the 
Executive Summaries of Audit reports.

Individual Internal Audit reports are issued directly to the relevant Director, the 
Director of Resources, the Leader of the Council and the relevant Executive 
Councillor. Executive Summaries of Internal Audit reports are circulated to the Chief 
Executive and the Council’s Monitoring Officer to ensure that they are informed of 
potential areas of non-compliance with legislation.  Each audit report contains an 
independent assurance opinion on the adequacy and effectiveness of the internal 
controls in place to mitigate risks.  Management actions agreed in Internal Audit 
reports are entered into to the Council’s Risk Register and progress on their 
implementation is reported to and monitored by the Chief Executive and the Strategic 
Leadership Team. 

In addition to these arrangements the Council receives and responds to reports from 
other review and assurance mechanisms.

The Director of Resources is the Authority’s Chief Financial Officer and is responsible 
for the proper administration of the authority’s financial affairs. The Director of 
Resources reports directly to the Chief Executive and is a member of the Strategic 
Leadership Team.

The Council’s Civic Affairs Committee is responsible for advising on and monitoring 
the Members Code of Conduct and for advising the Council on the ethical aspects of 
the corporate governance framework.  This arrangement replaces the previous 
responsibilities of the Council’s Standards Committee, which was disbanded in July 
2012.

We have been advised on the implications of the result of the review of the 
effectiveness of the governance framework by Civic Affairs Committee and that the 
arrangements continue to be regarded as fit for purpose in accordance with the 
governance framework. The areas already addressed and those specifically 
addressed with new actions planned are outlined below.

Page 73



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 A

R
e
p
o
rt

 P
a
g

e
 N

o
: 
1
0

A
g

e
n
d
a
 P

a
g

e
 N

o
:

A
c

ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 t
o

 A
d

d
re

s
s

 S
ig

n
if

ic
a

n
t 

G
o

v
e
rn

a
n

c
e
 I

s
s
u

e
s
 2

0
1
2
-1

3

Is
s
u

e
A

c
ti

o
n

T
a
rg

e
t 

D
a
te

O
ff

ic
e
r 

R
e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le

1
E

rr
o
rs

 w
e
re

 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 

b
u
d
g

e
t 

s
e
tt

in
g
 f

o
re

c
a
s
t 
fo

r 
2
0
1
2
-1

3
,
w

h
ic

h
 

re
s
u
lt
e
d
 i
n
 a

n
 u

n
d
e
r-

s
ta

te
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

th
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il’

s
 s

p
e
n
d
in

g
 r

e
q

u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

. 
T

h
e
s
e
 

e
rr

o
rs

 w
e
re

 i
n
v
e
s
ti
g

a
te

d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 

E
x
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d
it
o
rs

, 
E

rn
s
t 
a
n
d
 Y

o
u
n
g
, 
a
n
d
 

in
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 t

o
 t

h
e
ir
 r

e
p
o
rt

 a
n
 a

c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
 

w
a
s
 p

ro
p
o
s
e
d
 t

o
 a

d
d
re

s
s
 t

h
e
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 

ra
is

e
d
. 

T
h
e
 a

c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
 w

a
s
 a

g
re

e
d
 a

t 
C

iv
ic

 
A

ff
a
ir
s
 o

n
 1

7
 A

p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3
.

E
n
s
u
re

 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 a

c
ti
o
n
s
 

a
g
re

e
d
 b

y
 C

iv
ic

 A
ff

a
ir
s
:

 
Im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
to

 t
h
e
 c

o
n
tr

o
l 

e
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 
fo

r 
th

e
 c

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 

fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
m

o
d
e
lli

n
g

.

 
A

d
d
re

s
s
in

g
 s

ta
ff

in
g
 r

e
la

te
d
 i
s
s
u
e
s
.

 
S

tr
u
c
tu

re

 
Im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 f

u
tu

re
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
e
s

3
1
 J

u
ly

 2
0
1
3

3
1
 M

a
y
 2

0
1
3

F
ro

m
 J

u
n
e
 2

0
1
3

3
1
 J

u
ly

 2
0
1
3

H
e
a
d
 o

f 
In

te
rn

a
l 

A
u
d
it
/H

e
a
d
 o

f 
A

c
c
o
u
n
ti
n
g
 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s

C
h
ie

f 
E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
/H

e
a
d
 o

f 
A

c
c
o
u
n
ti
n
g
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
/H

e
a
d
 

o
f 

H
R

C
h
ie

f 
E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e

C
h
ie

f 
E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e

2
A

n
 I

n
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d
it

re
v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 

R
is

k
 M

a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 
F

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 w
a
s
 

u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 d

u
ri
n
g

 2
0
1
2
-1

3
. 
T

h
e
 a

u
d
it
 

c
o
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 t

h
a
t 
th

e
 f
ra

m
e
w

o
rk

 g
o
e
s
 a

 l
o
n
g

 
w

a
y
 i
n
 m

e
e
ti
n
g

 t
h
e
 p

ri
n
c
ip

le
s
 o

f 
g

o
o
d
 

g
o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
, 
in

 t
h
a
t 
th

e
re

 a
re

 s
o
u
n
d
 

p
ro

c
e
d
u
re

s
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 f
o
r 

m
a
n
a
g

in
g
 r

is
k
 a

n
d
 

th
e
re

fo
re

 a
 ‘
s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t’
 a

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 r

a
ti
n
g
 

w
a
s
 g

iv
e
n
 t

o
 t

h
e
 r

is
k
 m

a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

fr
a
m

e
w

o
rk

. 

H
o
w

e
v
e
r,

 t
h
e
 a

u
d
it
 f
o
u
n
d
 t

h
a
t 

s
o
m

e
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 h

a
v
e
 n

o
t 

y
e
t 
fu

lly
 e

m
b
e
d
d
e
d
 t
h
e
 

ri
s
k
 m

a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
e
s
 i
n
to

 t
h
e
ir
 o

n
-

A
s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 o

f 
th

e
 I

n
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d
it
 r

e
v
ie

w
 i
t 

w
a
s
 a

g
re

e
d
 t

h
a
t 
to

 e
n
s
u
re

 t
h
e
 r

is
k
 

m
a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
 b

e
c
o
m

e
s
 f

u
lly

 
e
m

b
e
d
d
e
d
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

th
e
 C

h
ie

f 
E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 a

n
d
 S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 L
e
a
d
e
rs

h
ip

 
T

e
a
m

 w
ill

 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
p
ro

-
a
c
ti
v
e
 a

c
ti
o
n
 i
s
 t
a
k
e
n
 t

o
 u

p
d
a
te

 t
h
e
 r

is
k
 

re
g

is
te

r 
o
n
 a

 t
im

e
ly

 b
a
s
is

.

A
 f

o
llo

w
-u

p
 t

o
 t
h
e
 a

u
d
it
 o

f 
th

e
 R

is
k
 

M
a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

F
ra

m
e
w

o
rk

 w
ill

 b
e
 

c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 i
n
 2

0
1
3

-1
4
.

O
n
g

o
in

g
 f
ro

m
 3

0
 

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3

3
1
 D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
3

C
h
ie

f 
E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e

H
e
a
d
 o

f 
In

te
rn

a
l 
A

u
d
it

Page 74



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 A

R
e
p
o
rt

 P
a
g

e
 N

o
: 
1
1

A
g

e
n
d
a
 P

a
g

e
 N

o
:

Is
s
u

e
A

c
ti

o
n

T
a
rg

e
t 

D
a
te

O
ff

ic
e
r 

R
e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le

g
o
in

g
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 m

a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

a
rr

a
n
g

e
m

e
n
ts

 
a
n
d
 t

h
e
re

fo
re

 o
v
e
ra

ll 
a
 ‘
lim

it
e
d
’ 
a
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 

ra
ti
n
g

 w
a
s
 g

iv
e
n
 b

y
 t

h
e
 a

u
d
it
 r

e
v
ie

w
.

3
A

n
 I

n
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d
it
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 

M
a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

C
o
n
tr

a
c
to

r 
H

e
a
lt
h
 &

 
S

a
fe

ty
 w

a
s
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 d

u
ri
n
g
 2

0
1
2
-1

3
. 

T
h
is

 a
u
d
it
 f
o
u
n
d
 t
h
a
t 
a
lt
h
o
u
g

h
 o

ff
ic

e
rs

 
h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
in

g
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 
c
h
e
c
k
s
 o

n
 t

h
e
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
ts

 t
h
e
y
 a

re
 

m
a
n
a
g

in
g
, 

in
 m

a
n
y
 c

a
s
e
s
 t

h
e
y
 a

re
 n

o
t 

d
o
c
u
m

e
n
ti
n
g
 t

h
e
s
e
 c

h
e
c
k
s
 t

o
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e
 

th
a
t 
th

e
y
 h

a
v
e
 t

a
k
e
n
 p

la
c
e
. 
T

h
is

 i
s
s
u
e
 h

a
s
 

a
ls

o
 b

e
e
n
 e

v
id

e
n
t 

in
 a

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

o
th

e
r 

c
o
n
tr

a
c
ts

 r
e
v
ie

w
e
d
 i
n
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 y

e
a
rs

 a
n
d
 

c
o
v
e
rs

 a
 r

a
n
g

e
 o

f 
d
if
fe

re
n
t 

a
s
p
e
c
ts

 o
f 

c
o
n
tr

a
c
t 
m

a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t.

U
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
 a

 f
o
llo

w
-u

p
 a

u
d
it
 o

f 
th

e
 

M
a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

C
o
n
tr

a
c
to

r 
H

e
a
lt
h
 &

 
S

a
fe

ty
 t

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 a
ll 

a
g

re
e
d
 a

c
ti
o
n
s
 f

o
r 

d
o
c
u
m

e
n
ti
n
g
 c

h
e
c
k
s
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 o

n
 

c
o
n
tr

a
c
ts

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
.

3
1
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
4

H
e
a
d
 o

f 
In

te
rn

a
l 
A

u
d
it

Page 75



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 A

R
e
p
o
rt

 P
a
g

e
 N

o
: 
1
2

A
g

e
n
d
a
 P

a
g

e
 N

o
:

Is
s
u

e
A

c
ti

o
n

T
a
rg

e
t 

D
a
te

O
ff

ic
e
r 

R
e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le

4
T

h
e
 P

re
v
e
n
ti
o
n
 o

f 
F

ra
u
d
 &

 C
o
rr

u
p
ti
o
n
 

P
o
lic

y
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 u

p
d
a
te

d
 t

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

n
 

o
v
e
rv

ie
w

 o
f 

th
e
 B

ri
b
e
ry

 A
c
t 

2
0
1
0
 a

n
d
 i
ts

 
im

p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
 f

o
r 

th
e
 C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il.

 (
T

h
e
 

u
p
d
a
te

d
 P

o
lic

y
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 b

ro
u
g

h
t 
to

 C
iv

ic
 

A
ff

a
ir
s
 (

J
u
n
e
 2

0
1
3
) 

fo
r 

re
v
ie

w
 a

n
d
 

a
p
p
ro

v
a
l.
)

A
n
 I

n
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d
it
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
G

if
ts

 &
 

H
o
s
p
it
a
lit

y
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 2

0
1
2
-1

3
 I
n
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d
it
 P

la
n
. 

A
 

‘S
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t’
 a

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 r

a
ti
n
g
 w

a
s
 g

iv
e
n
 t

o
 

th
is

 r
e
v
ie

w
, 

b
u
t 
th

e
 r

e
p
o
rt

 h
ig

h
lig

h
te

d
 t
h
e
 

n
e
e
d
 f

o
r 

g
re

a
te

r 
c
la

ri
ty

 i
n
 t

h
e
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

C
o
d
e
 

o
f 

C
o
n
d
u
c
t 

o
n

w
h
a
t 

c
a
n
 b

e
 a

c
c
e
p
te

d
 a

n
d
 

w
h
a
t 

n
e
e
d
s
 t

o
 b

e
 r

e
c
o
rd

e
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 g

if
ts

 a
n
d
 

h
o
s
p
it
a
lit

y
 r

e
g

is
te

r.
 

T
h
e
 r

e
v
is

e
d
 C

o
d
e
 i
s
 a

ls
o
 b

e
in

g
 b

ro
u
g

h
t 
to

 
C

iv
ic

 A
ff

a
ir
s
 (

J
u
n
e
 2

0
1
3
) 

fo
r 

a
p
p
ro

v
a
l.

O
n
c
e
 a

g
re

e
d
, 
th

e
 r

e
q

u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 o
f 

th
e
 

u
p
d
a
te

d
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

C
o
d
e
 o

f 
C

o
n
d
u
c
t 

in
 

re
la

ti
o
n
 t

o
 g

if
ts

 a
n
d
 h

o
s
p
it
a
lit

y
 s

h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 

s
h
a
re

d
 w

it
h
 a

ll 
s
ta

ff
 a

n
d
 m

a
n
a
g

e
rs

. 

3
1
 J

u
ly

 2
0
1
3

P
ri
n
c
ip

a
l 
A

u
d
it
o
r 

5
T

h
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 
S

c
h
e
m

e
 o

f 
D

e
le

g
a
ti
o
n
s
, 
a
s
 

c
o
n
ta

in
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 C

o
n
s
ti
tu

ti
o
n
, 

re
q

u
ir
e
s
 r

e
v
ie

w
 t

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 i
t 

is
 u

p
 t
o
 d

a
te

R
e
v
ie

w
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 S

c
h
e
m

e
 o

f 
D

e
le

g
a
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 i
t 

is
 u

p
 t
o
 d

a
te

.
3
1
 D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
3

H
e
a
d
 o

f 
L
e
g
a
l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s

W
e
 p

ro
p
o
s
e
 o

v
e
r 

th
e
 c

o
m

in
g

 y
e
a
r 

to
 t

a
k
e
 s

te
p
s
 t

o
 a

d
d
re

s
s
 t

h
e
 a

b
o
v
e
 m

a
tt

e
rs

 t
o
 f

u
rt

h
e
r 

e
n
h
a
n
c
e
 o

u
r 

g
o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 a

rr
a
n
g

e
m

e
n
ts

. 
W

e
a
re

 
s
a
ti
s
fi
e
d
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
s
e
 s

te
p
s
 w

ill
 a

d
d
re

s
s
 t

h
e
 n

e
e
d
 f

o
r 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 t
h
a
t 

w
e
re

 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 i
n

o
u
r 

re
v
ie

w
 o

f 
e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
 a

n
d
 w

ill
 m

o
n
it
o
r 

th
e
ir
 

im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 o

p
e
ra

ti
o
n
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

o
u
r 

n
e
x
t 
a
n
n
u
a
l 
re

v
ie

w
. 

Page 76



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 A

R
e
p
o
rt

 P
a
g

e
 N

o
: 
1
3

A
g

e
n
d
a
 P

a
g

e
 N

o
:

S
ig

n
e
d
: 

…
…

…
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
…

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
 

C
o
u
n
c
ill

o
r 

T
im

 B
ic

k
L
e
a
d
e
r 

o
f 
th

e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

D
a
te

:
2
0
1
3

…
…

…
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
…

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
 

A
n
to

in
e
tt

e
 J

a
c
k
s
o
n

C
h
ie

f 
E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e

D
a
te

: 
2
0
1
3

Page 77



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 B

R
e
p
o
rt

 P
a
g

e
 N

o
: 
1
4

A
g

e
n
d
a
 P

a
g

e
 N

o
:

C
a
m

b
ri

d
g

e
 C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

-
C

o
d
e
 o

f 
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 G

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
  

 2
0
1
3
-1

4
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
 

R
e
v
ie

w
 D

a
te

: 
J
u

n
e
 2

0
1
3

A
 C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 C

o
d
e
 o

f 
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 G

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 i
s
 

“
 
th

e
 
s

y
s
te

m
 
b

y
 
w

h
ic

h
 
lo

c
a
l 

a
u

th
o

ri
ti

e
s
 
d

ir
e
c
t 

a
n

d
 
c
o

n
tr

o
l 

th
e
ir

 
fu

n
c
ti

o
n

s
 
a
n

d
 
re

la
te

 
to

 
th

e
ir

 
c
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
”

G
u
id

a
n
c
e
 f
ro

m
 C

IP
F

A
 a

n
d
 S

O
L
A

C
E

 s
u
g
g
e
s
ts

 e
a
c
h
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
u
th

o
ri
ty

 s
h
o
u
ld

 h
a
v
e
 a

 C
o
d
e
 o

f 
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 

G
o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 b

a
s
e
d
 o

n
 6

 p
ri
n
c
ip

le
s
:

1
  
 F

o
c
u
s
in

g
 o

n
 t
h
e
 p

u
rp

o
s
e
s
 o

f 
th

e
 a

u
th

o
ri
ty

; 
o
n
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 f
o
r 

th
e
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
; 

a
n
d
  
  

  
  
 c

re
a
ti
n
g
 a

n
d
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ti
n
g
 a

 v
is

io
n
 f

o
r 

th
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
re

a
.

2
. 
 M

e
m

b
e
rs

 a
n
d
 O

ff
ic

e
rs

 w
o
rk

in
g
 t
o
g
e
th

e
r 

to
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
 c

o
m

m
o
n
 p

u
rp

o
s
e
s
  

  
  
 w

it
h
 c

le
a
rl
y
 d

e
fi
n
e
d
 f
u
n
c
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 r

o
le

s
.

3
. 

P
ro

m
o
ti
n
g
 v

a
lu

e
s

fo
r 

th
e
 a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 a
n
d
 d

e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
ti
n
g
 t
h
e
 v

a
lu

e
s
 o

f 
g
o
o
d
 

  
  

g
o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 u

p
h
o
ld

in
g
 h

ig
h
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

s
 o

f 
c
o
n
d
u
c
t 
a
n
d
 b

e
h
a
v
io

u
r.

4
. 

T
a
k
in

g
 i
n
fo

rm
e
d
 a

n
d
 t
ra

n
s
p
a
re

n
t 

d
e
c
is

io
n
s
 w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 s

u
b
je

c
t 
to

 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 

  
  
 s

c
ru

ti
n
y
 a

n
d
 r

is
k
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t.

5
. 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
in

g
 t
h
e
 c

a
p
a
c
it
y
 a

n
d
 c

a
p
a
b
ili

ty
 o

f 
M

e
m

b
e
rs

 a
n
d
 O

ff
ic

e
rs

 t
o
 b

e
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
.

Page 78



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 B

R
e
p
o
rt

 P
a
g

e
 N

o
: 
1
5

A
g

e
n
d
a
 P

a
g

e
 N

o
:

6
. 

E
n
g
a
g
in

g
 w

it
h
 l
o
c
a
l 
p
e
o
p
le

 a
n
d
 o

th
e
r 

s
ta

k
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 r
o
b
u
s
t 
p
u
b
lic

  
  

  
  

a
c
c
o
u
n
ta

b
ili

ty
.

T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

a
d
o
p
te

d
 a

 C
o
d
e
 o

f 
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 G

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 o

n
 2

5
 A

p
ri
l 
2
0
0
2
. 
It
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n

re
v
ie

w
e
d
 a

n
n
u
a
lly

 s
in

c
e
 

th
e
n
. 
T

h
is

 i
s
 t

h
e
 2

0
1
3
 r

e
v
ie

w
, 

w
h
ic

h
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

m
e
n
d
e
d
 t
o
 r

e
fl
e
c
t 
c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 a

ri
s
in

g
 a

s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 o

f 
th

e
 

G
o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t’
s
 n

e
w

 n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 f
ra

m
e
w

o
rk

. 
T

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 C

iv
ic

 A
ff

a
ir
s
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 w

ill
 b

e
 a

s
k
e
d
 t
o
 

c
o
n
s
id

e
r 

th
e
 r

e
v
is

e
d
 C

o
d
e
 a

n
d
 t
o
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
 i
t 
to

 f
u
ll 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

fo
r 

a
d
o
p
ti
o
n
.

T
h
is

 C
o
d
e
 t
a
k
e
s
 e

a
c
h
 o

f 
th

e
 p

ri
n
c
ip

le
s
 o

f 
g
o
o
d
 g

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 i
n
 t
u
rn

 a
n
d
 s

e
ts

 o
u
t 
th

e
 s

y
s
te

m
s
, 
p
ro

c
e
s
s
e
s
 a

n
d
 

p
ri
n
c
ip

le
s
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

h
a
s
 p

u
t 

in
 p

la
c
e
 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 g
o
o
d
 c

o
rp

o
ra

te
 g

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
.

T
h
e
 C

o
d
e
 w

ill
 b

e
 r

e
v
ie

w
e
d
 a

n
n
u
a
lly

 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
e
 A

n
n
u
a
l 
G

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 s

ta
te

m
e
n
t 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
, 
w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 t
h
e
 

a
c
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 b

e
 t
a
k
e
n
 t
o
 e

n
h
a
n
c
e
 t
h
e
 c

o
d
e
 o

r 
a
d
d
re

s
s
 a

n
y
 l
im

it
a
ti
o
n
s
 w

it
h
 i
n
 i
t.
 

S
im

o
n
 P

u
g
h

H
e
a
d
 o

f 
L
e
g
a
l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d
 M

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

1
3
 J

u
n
e
 2

0
1
3

Page 79



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 B

R
e
p
o
rt

 P
a
g

e
 N

o
: 
1
6

A
g

e
n
d
a
 P

a
g

e
 N

o
:

F
o
c
u
s
in

g
 o

n
 t
h
e

p
u
rp

o
s
e
 o

f 
th

e
 a

u
th

o
ri
ty

; 
o
n
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 f
o
r 

th
e
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
; 

c
re

a
ti
n
g
 a

n
d
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ti
n
g
 a

 v
is

io
n
 f

o
r 

th
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
re

a

S
u

p
p

o
rt

in
g

 E
v
id

e
n

c
e

1
.1

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il

 w
il
l 
h

a
v
e
 a

 c
le

a
r 

v
is

io
n

 f
o

r 
th

e
 C

it
y
 a

n
d

 s
e
t 

o
b

je
c
ti

v
e
s
 t

o
 

g
u

id
e
 t

h
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il
's

 a
c
ti

v
it

ie
s
.

It
 w

il
l 
re

v
ie

w
 t

h
o

s
e
 o

b
je

c
ti

v
e
s
 e

a
c
h

 y
e

a
r,

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 t
h

e
 A

n
n

u
a
l 

S
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
a
g

re
e
d

 a
t 

th
e
 A

n
n

u
a
l 

C
o

u
n

c
il
 m

e
e
ti

n
g

.

V
is

io
n

A
n
n
u
a
l 
S

ta
te

m
e
n
t

1
.2

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il

 w
il
l 
a
g

re
e
 w

it
h

 p
a
rt

n
e
rs

 a
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 p

la
n

 f
o

r 
th

e
 L

o
c
a
l 

E
n

te
rp

ri
s
e
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

, 
a
n

d
 c

o
n

tr
ib

u
te

 t
o

 t
h

e
 a

g
re

e
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
p

ri
o

ri
ti

e
s
 f

o
r 

th
e
 H

e
a
lt

h
 &

 W
e
ll
b

e
in

g
 B

o
a
rd

 a
n

d
 o

th
e
r 

re
le

v
a
n

t 
c
o

u
n

ty
w

id
e
 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

s
.

L
o
c
a
l 
E

n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 B
u
s
in

e
s
s
 

P
la

n

H
e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 W

e
llb

e
in

g
 

S
tr

a
te

g
y

1
.3

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il

 w
il
l 
h

a
v
e
 a

 M
e
d

iu
m

 T
e
rm

 F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
S

tr
a
te

g
y
 t

o
 r

e
s
o

u
rc

e
 t

h
e
 

C
o

u
n

c
il

's
 a

s
p

ir
a
ti

o
n

s
 a

n
d

 t
o

 a
s
s
e
s
s
 a

n
d

 p
la

n
 f

o
r 

a
n

y
 f

in
a
n

c
ia

l 
ri

s
k
s
. 
T

h
e
 

s
tr

a
te

g
y
 w

il
l 

b
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
e
d

 a
n

n
u

a
ll

y
.

M
e
d
iu

m
 T

e
rm

 S
tr

a
te

g
y

1
.4

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il

 w
il
l 
p

u
t 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 t

o
 t

h
e
 p

u
b

li
c
 f

ir
s
t.

 T
h

e
 a

n
n

u
a
l 

p
o

rt
fo

li
o

 
p

la
n

n
in

g
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 w

il
l 
b

e
 u

s
e
d

 t
o

 a
g

re
e
 t

h
e
 p

ri
o

ri
ti

e
s
 f

o
r 

e
a
c
h

 a
re

a
 o

f 
E

x
e
c
u

ti
v
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il
lo

r 
re

s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

y
. 

T
h

e
 P

la
n

s
 e

x
p

re
s
s
 t

h
e
 s

tr
a
te

g
ic

 
o

b
je

c
ti

v
e
s
 f

o
r 

th
e
 p

o
rt

fo
li

o
 o

v
e
r 

th
e
 f

in
a
n

c
ia

l 
y
e
a
r 

2
0
1
3
/1

4
 a

n
d

 b
e

y
o

n
d

. 
B

e
n

e
a
th

 e
a
c
h

 o
f 

th
e
 o

b
je

c
ti

v
e
s
 a

re
 d

e
ta

il
e
d

 t
h

e
 p

a
rt

ic
u

la
r 

o
u

tc
o

m
e
s
 t

o
 

P
o
rt

fo
lio

 P
la

n
s

A
g
e
n
d
a
 f
o
r 

S
c
ru

ti
n
y
 

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
s
 M

a
rc

h
 

2
0
1
3
/1

4
 c

y
c
le

 

Page 80



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 B

R
e
p
o
rt

 P
a
g

e
 N

o
: 
1
7

A
g

e
n
d
a
 P

a
g

e
 N

o
:

b
e
 a

c
h

ie
v
e
d

 i
n

 2
0
1
3
/1

4
. 

F
in

a
ll

y
 t

h
e
 p

la
n

s
 w

il
l 
in

c
lu

d
e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 

m
e
a
s
u

re
s
 t

h
a
t 

w
il
l 
p

ro
v
id

e
 e

v
id

e
n

c
e
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n

 
a
c
h

ie
v
e
d

.

T
h

is
 i

n
fo

rm
a
ti

o
n

 w
il
l 
e
n

a
b

le
 m

e
m

b
e
rs

 a
n

d
 t

h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 c

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti

n
g

 t
o

 
th

e
 d

e
li
v
e
ry

 o
f 

th
e
 p

la
n

 t
o

 b
e
 c

le
a
r 

a
b

o
u

t 
th

e
 p

ri
o

ri
ti

e
s
 f

o
r 

th
e
 p

o
rt

fo
li

o
 

a
n

d
 w

il
l 
a
s
s
is

t 
in

 d
e
c
is

io
n

s
 a

b
o

u
t 

w
h

e
re

 r
e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e
 f

o
c
u

s
s
e
d

 
w

it
h

in
 t

h
e
 p

o
rt

fo
li
o

.

H
e
a
d

s
 o

f 
in

d
iv

id
u

a
l 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 a

re
a
s
 p

re
p

a
re

 o
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
a
l 
p

la
n

s
 i

n
d

ic
a
ti

n
g

 
h

o
w

 t
h

e
y
 w

il
l 
m

e
e
t 

o
b

je
c
ti

v
e
s
 s

e
t 

in
 p

o
rt

fo
li

o
 p

la
n

s
 a

n
d

 s
e
tt

in
g

 o
u

t 
th

e
ir

 
p

ri
o

ri
ti

e
s
 a

n
d

 w
o

rk
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e
s
 f

o
r 

th
e
 y

e
a
r 

a
h

e
a
d

.
O

p
e
ra

ti
o
n
a
l 
P

la
n
s

1
.5

E
a
c
h

 y
e
a
r 

th
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il
 w

il
l 

p
u

b
li
s
h

 a
n

 A
n

n
u

a
l 

R
e
p

o
rt

 a
n

d
 S

ta
te

m
e
n

t 
o

f 
A

c
c
o

u
n

ts
 g

iv
in

g
 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 o
n

 t
h

e
 a

u
th

o
ri

ty
's

 v
is

io
n

, 
s
tr

a
te

g
y
,

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
, 
fu

tu
re

 p
la

n
s
 a

n
d

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
.

A
n
n
u
a
l 
R

e
p
o
rt

 a
n
d
 

S
ta

te
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
A

c
c
o
u
n
ts

1
.6

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il

 w
il
l 
s
e
e
k
 t

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 v

a
lu

e
 f

o
r 

m
o

n
e

y
 t

o
 l

o
c
a
l 

p
e
o

p
le

. 

It
 w

il
l 
w

o
rk

 t
o

 m
a
x
im

is
e
 i
ts

 r
e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 b

y
 d

e
li

v
e
ri

n
g

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

s
 

e
ff

ic
ie

n
tl

y
 a

s
 p

o
s
s

ib
le

,
w

o
rk

in
g

 i
n

 p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 w
it

h
 o

th
e
rs

a
n

d
 u

s
in

g
 

o
th

e
r 

p
ro

v
id

e
rs

 w
h

e
re

 t
h

e
s
e
 a

re
 t

h
e
 b

e
s
t 

o
p

ti
o

n
s
. 

It
 w

il
l 
h

a
v
e
 a

 c
le

a
r 

P
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
S

tr
a
te

g
y
 d

e
s
ig

n
e
d

 t
o

 m
e
e
t 

th
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il
’s

 
w

id
e
r 

o
b

je
c
ti

v
e
s
 a

n
d

 C
o

n
tr

a
c
t 

P
ro

c
e
d

u
re

s
 R

u
le

s
 d

e
s
ig

n
e
d

 t
o

 d
e
li
v
e
r 

ro
b

u
s
t 

a
n

d
 f

a
ir

 p
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
p

ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
. 
 

P
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 
S

tr
a
te

g
y

Page 81



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 B

R
e
p
o
rt

 P
a
g

e
 N

o
: 
1
8

A
g

e
n
d
a
 P

a
g

e
 N

o
:

M
e
m

b
e
rs

 a
n
d
 O

ff
ic

e
rs

 w
o
rk

in
g
 t
o
g
e
th

e
r 

to
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
 c

o
m

m
o
n
 p

u
rp

o
s
e
s
 w

it
h
 c

le
a
rl
y
 d

e
fi
n
e
d
  
  
 f

u
n
c
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 r

o
le

s

S
u

p
p

o
rt

in
g

 E
v
id

e
n

c
e

2
.1

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il

 w
il
l 
s
e
t 

o
u

t 
a
 c

le
a
r 

s
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
th

e
 r

o
le

s
 a

n
d

 
re

s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

ie
s
 o

f 
E

x
e
c
u

ti
v
e
 M

e
m

b
e
rs

, 
o

th
e
r 

M
e
m

b
e
rs

 a
n

d
 C

o
u

n
c
il
 

O
ff

ic
e
rs

 i
n

 i
ts

 C
o

n
s
ti

tu
ti

o
n

.

T
h

e
 s

c
h

e
m

e
 o

f 
d

e
le

g
a
ti

o
n

 w
it

h
in

 t
h

e
 C

o
n

s
ti

tu
ti

o
n

 w
il
l 
m

a
k
e
 c

le
a
r 

w
h

a
t 

m
a
tt

e
rs

 a
re

 r
e
s
e
rv

e
d

 f
o

r 
c
o

ll
e
c
ti

v
e
 d

e
c
is

io
n

-m
a
k
in

g
 b

y
 f

u
ll
 C

o
u

n
c
il
.

C
o
n
s
ti
tu

ti
o
n

M
e
m

b
e
r/

O
ff

ic
e
r 

P
ro

to
c
o
l

2
.2

A
 M

e
m

b
e
r/

O
ff

ic
e
r 

p
ro

to
c
o

l 
w

il
l 
b

e
 u

s
e
d

 t
o

 a
id

 e
ff

e
c
ti

v
e
 c

o
m

m
u

n
ic

a
ti

o
n

 
b

e
tw

e
e
n

 O
ff

ic
e
rs

 a
n

d
 M

e
m

b
e
rs

 a
n

d
 t

o
 c

la
ri

fy
 t

h
e
ir

 r
e
s
p

e
c
ti

v
e
 r

o
le

s
 a

n
d

 
a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

 w
a

y
s
 o

f 
w

o
rk

in
g

.

2
.3

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il

’s
 C

h
ie

f 
E

x
e
c
u

ti
v
e
 i

s
 i

ts
 H

e
a
d

 o
f 

P
a
id

 S
e
rv

ic
e
 r

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 

a
n

d
 a

c
c
o

u
n

ta
b

le
 t

o
 t

h
e
 a

u
th

o
ri

ty
 f

o
r 

it
s
 o

p
e
ra

ti
o

n
a
l 
m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t.

T
h

e
 D

ir
e
c
to

r 
o

f 
R

e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 i

s
 t

h
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il

’s
 C

h
ie

f 
F

in
a
n

c
ia

l 
O

ff
ic

e
r 

a
n

d
 

S
1
5
1
 O

ff
ic

e
r,

 r
e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 t

o
 t

h
e
 a

u
th

o
ri

ty
 f

o
r 

e
n

s
u

ri
n

g
 t

h
a
t 

a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

 
a
d

v
ic

e
 
is

 
g

iv
e
n

 
o

n
 
a
ll

 
fi

n
a
n

c
ia

l 
m

a
tt

e
rs

, 
fo

r 
k
e
e
p

in
g

 
p

ro
p

e
r 

fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 
re

c
o

rd
s
 

a
n

d
 

a
c
c
o

u
n

ts
, 

a
n

d
 

fo
r 

m
a
in

ta
in

in
g

 
a
n

 
e
ff

e
c
ti

v
e
 

s
y
s
te

m
 

o
f 

in
te

rn
a
l 

fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 
c
o

n
tr

o
l.
 

T
h

e
  

H
e
a
d

 o
f 

L
e
g

a
l 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 i

s
 t

h
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il

’s
 M

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 O

ff
ic

e
r,

 
re

s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 t

o
 t

h
e
 a

u
th

o
ri

ty
 f

o
r 

e
n

s
u

ri
n

g
 t

h
a
t 

a
g

re
e
d

 p
ro

c
e
d

u
re

s
 a

re
 

fo
ll

o
w

e
d

 a
n

d
 t

h
a
t 

a
ll
 a

p
p

li
c
a
b

le
 s

ta
tu

te
s
 a

n
d

 r
e
g

u
la

ti
o

n
s
 a

re
 c

o
m

p
li
e
d

 

C
o
n
s
ti
tu

ti
o
n

J
o
b
 D

e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 

th
e
 

C
h
ie

f 
E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
, 

D
ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 

R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 

a
n
d
 M

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 O

ff
ic

e
r

S
c
h
e
d
u
le

 o
n
 t
h
e
 R

o
le

 o
f 

th
e
 C

h
ie

f 
F

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
O

ff
ic

e
r

Page 82



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 B

R
e
p
o
rt

 P
a
g

e
 N

o
: 
1
9

A
g

e
n
d
a
 P

a
g

e
 N

o
:

w
it

h
.

2
.4

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il

 w
il
l 
e
n

s
u

re
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
s
e
 S

ta
tu

to
ry

 O
ff

ic
e
rs

 h
a
v
e
 t

h
e
 s

k
il
ls

, 
re

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 a

n
d

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

 t
o

 p
e
rf

o
rm

 e
ff

e
c
ti

v
e
ly

 i
n

 t
h

e
ir

 r
o

le
s
 

a
n

d
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
s
e
 r

o
le

s
 a

re
 p

ro
p

e
rl

y
 u

n
d

e
rs

to
o

d
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
o

u
t 

th
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il
.

P
o
rt

fo
lio

 P
la

n
s

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 R

e
v
ie

w
s

P
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
a
l 

Q
u
a
lif

ic
a
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d

tr
a
in

in
g

2
.5

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il

’s
 C

iv
ic

 A
ff

a
ir

s
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e
 w

il
l 

b
e
 r

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 f

o
r 

c
o

n
s
ti

tu
ti

o
n

a
l 
is

s
u

e
s
 a

n
d

 w
il
l 

e
n

s
u

re
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 c

o
n

s
ti

tu
ti

o
n

 i
s
 m

o
n

it
o

re
d

 
a
n

d
 u

p
d

a
te

d
 w

h
e
n

 r
e
q

u
ir

e
d

.

T
e
rm

s
 o

f 
R

e
fe

re
n
c
e
 o

f 
C

iv
ic

 A
ff

a
ir
s
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e

2
.6

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il

 w
il
l 
u

s
e
 a

n
 I
n

d
e
p

e
n

d
e
n

t 
R

e
m

u
n

e
ra

ti
o

n
 P

a
n

e
l 

to
 g

iv
e
 a

d
v
ic

e
 

o
n

 p
a

y
m

e
n

ts
 f

o
r 

M
e
m

b
e
rs

 a
n

d
 c

o
n

s
id

e
r 

th
e
ir

 a
d

v
ic

e
 w

h
e
n

 s
e
tt

in
g

 t
h

e
 

M
e
m

b
e
rs

’ 
A

ll
o

w
a
n

c
e
 S

c
h

e
m

e
. 

T
h

e
 P

a
n

e
l 
w

il
l 
o

p
e
ra

te
 i

n
 a

n
 o

p
e
n

 a
n

d
 t

ra
n

s
p

a
re

n
t 

m
a
n

n
e
r,

 m
a
k
in

g
 t

h
e
ir

 
a
g

e
n

d
a
s
, 

re
p

o
rt

s
 a

n
d

 m
in

u
te

s
 a

v
a
il
a
b

le
 t

o
 t

h
e
 p

u
b

li
c
.

T
h

e
 M

e
m

b
e
rs

’ 
A

ll
o

w
a
n

c
e
 S

c
h

e
m

e
 w

il
l 
a
ls

o
 b

e
 m

a
d

e
 a

v
a
il

a
b

le
 t

o
 t

h
e
 

p
u

b
li

c
 a

n
d

 o
n

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il

’s
 w

e
b

s
it

e
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 s

c
h

e
m

e
 w

il
l 

b
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
e
d

 
a
n

n
u

a
ll

y
.

In
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 

R
e
m

u
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
 P

a
n
e
l 

T
e
rm

s
 o

f 
R

e
fe

re
n
c
e
 

In
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 

R
e
m

u
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
 P

a
n
e
l 

a
g
e
n
d
a
s
, 
re

p
o
rt

s
 a

n
d
 

m
in

u
te

s

M
e
m

b
e
rs

’ 
A

llo
w

a
n
c
e
 

S
c
h
e
m

e
P

a
y
 P

o
lic

y
 S

ta
te

m
e
n
t 

2
.7

W
h

e
n

 w
o

rk
in

g
 i

n
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

s
 t

h
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il

 w
il
l 

e
n

s
u

re
 t

h
a
t 

M
e
m

b
e
rs

 a
re

 
c
le

a
r 

a
b

o
u

t 
th

e
ir

 
ro

le
s
 

a
n

d
 

re
s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

ie
s
, 

b
o

th
 

in
d

iv
id

u
a
ll

y
 

a
n

d
 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 T
e
rm

s
 o

f 

Page 83



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 B

R
e
p
o
rt

 P
a
g

e
 N

o
: 
2
0

A
g

e
n
d
a
 P

a
g

e
 N

o
:

c
o

ll
e
c
ti

v
e
ly

, 
in

 r
e
la

ti
o

n
 t

o
 t

h
e
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

s
 a

n
d

 t
o

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il

.

It
 
w

il
l 

a
ls

o
 
e
n

s
u

re
 
th

a
t 

th
e
re

 
is

 
c
la

ri
ty

 
a

b
o

u
t 

th
e
 
le

g
a
l 

s
ta

tu
s
 
o

f 
e
a
c
h

 
p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 a
n

d
 t

h
a
t 

a
ll

 r
e
p

re
s
e
n

ta
ti

v
e
s
 i

n
 t

h
e
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 h
a
v
e
 c

la
ri

ty
 

a
b

o
u

t 
th

e
ir

 
p

o
w

e
rs

 
to

 
b

in
d

 
th

e
ir

 
o

w
n

 
o

rg
a
n

is
a
ti

o
n

 
to

 
p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 
d

e
c
is

io
n

s
.

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il

 w
il
l 
o

p
e
ra

te
 i
n

 a
c
c
o

rd
a
n

c
e
 w

it
h

 p
ri

n
c
ip

le
s
 o

f 
p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 
w

o
rk

in
g

 a
g

re
e
d

 w
it

h
 o

u
r 

k
e

y
 p

a
rt

n
e
r 

o
rg

a
n

is
a
ti

o
n

s
.

R
e
fe

re
n
c
e

P
ri
n
c
ip

le
s
 o

f 
P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 
W

o
rk

in
g

P
ro

m
o
ti
n
g
 v

a
lu

e
s
 f

o
r 

th
e
 a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 a
n

d
 d

e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
ti
n
g
 t

h
e
 v

a
lu

e
s
 o

f 
g
o
o
d
 g

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 u

p
h
o
ld

in
g
 h

ig
h
 

s
ta

n
d
a
rd

s
 o

f 
c
o
n
d
u
c
t 
a
n
d
 b

e
h
a
v
io

u
r

S
u

p
p

o
rt

in
g

 E
v
id

e
n

c
e

3
.1

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il

 w
il
l 
e
x
p

e
c
t 

th
e
 a

u
th

o
ri

ty
's

 l
e
a
d

e
rs

h
ip

 –
b

o
th

 M
e
m

b
e
rs

 a
n

d
 

O
ff

ic
e
rs

 -
to

 c
re

a
te

 a
 c

li
m

a
te

 o
f 

o
p

e
n

n
e
s
s
, 

s
u

p
p

o
rt

 a
n

d
 r

e
s
p

e
c
t 

a
n

d
 t

o
 

u
p

h
o

ld
 t

h
e
 C

o
u

n
c

il
’s

 v
a
lu

e
s
 a

s
 e

x
p

re
s
s
e
d

in
 t

h
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il
’s

 M
e
d

iu
m

 T
e
rm

 
S

tr
a
te

g
y
 d

o
c
u

m
e
n

t.

T
h

e
 s

ta
n

d
a
rd

s
 o

f 
c
o

n
d

u
c
t 

a
n

d
 p

e
rs

o
n

a
l 

b
e
h

a
v
io

u
r 

e
x
p

e
c
te

d
 o

f 
M

e
m

b
e
rs

 
a
n

d
 s

ta
ff

 w
il
l 
b

e
 s

e
t 

o
u

t 
in

 t
h

e
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

C
o

d
e
 o

f 
C

o
n

d
u

c
t,

 t
h

e
 M

e
m

b
e
r 

C
o

d
e
 o

f 
C

o
n

d
u

c
t 

a
n

d
 i

n
 t

h
e
 M

e
m

b
e
r/

 O
ff

ic
e
r 

p
ro

to
c
o

l.
 A

n
 u

p
-t

o
-d

a
te

 
re

g
is

te
r 

o
f 

M
e
m

b
e
r 

a
n

d
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

S
e
n

io
r 

O
ff

ic
e
r 

In
te

re
s
ts

 w
il
l 

b
e
 

m
a
in

ta
in

e
d

.

C
o
n
s
ti
tu

ti
o
n

C
o
n
fi
d
e
n
ti
a
l 

W
h
is

tl
e
b
o
lw

in
g
 P

o
lic

y

A
n
n
u
a
l 
C

o
m

p
la

in
ts

 
R

e
p
o
rt

P
re

v
e
n
ti
o
n
 o

f 
F

ra
u
d
 a

n
d
 

C
o
rr

u
p
ti
o
n
 P

o
lic

y
R

e
g
is

te
r 

o
f 
In

te
re

s
ts

 

3
.2

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il

 h
a
s
 a

d
o

p
te

d
 a

 C
o

d
e
 o

f 
C

o
n

d
u

c
t 

fo
r 

C
o

u
n

c
il
lo

rs
 a

n
d

 h
a
s
 p

u
t 

Page 84



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 B

R
e
p
o
rt

 P
a
g

e
 N

o
: 
2
1

A
g

e
n
d
a
 P

a
g

e
 N

o
:

in
 p

la
c
e
 p

ro
c
e
d

u
re

s
 f

o
r 

c
o

n
s
id

e
ri

n
g

 c
o

m
p

la
in

ts
. 
T

h
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il

 h
a
s
 

a
p

p
o

in
te

d
 t

w
o

 “
in

d
e
p

e
n

d
e
n

t 
p

e
rs

o
n

s
”
 t

o
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 t

h
is

, 
in

 a
c
c
o

rd
a
n

c
e
 

w
it

h
 t

h
e
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

ts
 o

f 
th

e
 L

o
c
a
li
s
m

 A
c
t,

 2
0
1
1
.

It
 w

il
l 
m

a
in

ta
in

 a
 W

h
is

tl
e
b

lo
w

in
g

 p
o

li
c

y
 t

o
 e

n
a
b

le
 c

o
n

fi
d

e
n

ti
a
l 
re

p
o

rt
in

g
 

o
f 

s
u

s
p

e
c
te

d
 b

re
a
c
h

e
s
 o

f 
th

e
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

C
o

d
e
 o

f 
C

o
n

d
u

c
t 

o
r 

u
n

e
th

ic
a
l 

b
e
h

a
v
io

u
r 

a
n

d
 w

il
l 
re

p
o

rt
 o

n
 h

o
w

 t
h

e
 p

o
li

c
y
 i

s
 u

s
e
d

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 t
h

e
 A

n
n

u
a
l 

R
e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 P

re
v
e
n

ti
o

n
 o

f 
F

ra
u

d
 a

n
d

 C
o

rr
u

p
ti

o
n

 P
o

li
c

y
.

It
 w

il
l 
a
ls

o
 m

a
in

ta
in

 a
 P

re
v
e
n

ti
o

n
 o

f 
F

ra
u

d
 a

n
d

 C
o

rr
u

p
ti

o
n

 P
o

li
c

y
 a

n
d

 
b

o
th

 p
o

li
c
ie

s
 w

il
l 
b

e
 r

e
v
ie

w
e
d

 r
e
g

u
la

rl
y
 b

y
 t

h
e
 C

iv
ic

 A
ff

a
ir

s
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e
.

T
h

e
 t

e
rm

s
 o

f 
re

fe
re

n
c
e
 o

f 
th

e
 C

iv
ic

 A
ff

a
ir

s
 c

o
m

m
it

te
e
 i
n

c
lu

d
e
s
 

re
s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

y
 f

o
r 

a
d

v
is

in
g

 o
n

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il

’s
 e

th
ic

a
l 
fr

a
m

e
w

o
rk

 a
n

d
 t

h
e
 

p
ro

m
o

ti
o

n
 o

f 
o

p
e
n

n
e
s
s
, 

a
c
c
o

u
n

ta
b

il
it

y
 a

n
d

 p
ro

b
it

y
 t

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 t

h
e
 h

ig
h

e
s
t 

s
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
 o

f 
c
o

n
d

u
c
t.

C
o
d
e
 o

f 
C

o
n
d
u
c
t 
fo

r 
C

o
u
n
c
ill

o
rs

T
e
rm

s
 o

f 
re

fe
re

n
c
e
 f
o
r 

In
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
P

e
rs

o
n
s

A
n
n
u
a
l 
C

o
m

p
la

in
ts

 
R

e
p
o
rt

 

W
h
is

tl
e
b
lo

w
in

g
 P

o
lic

y

P
re

v
e
n
ti
o
n
 o

f 
F

ra
u
d
 a

n
d
 

C
o
rr

u
p
ti
o
n
 P

o
lic

y

T
e
rm

s
 o

f 
re

fe
re

n
c
e
 f
o
r 

C
iv

ic
 A

ff
a
ir
s
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
3

.3
T

h
e
 b

e
h

a
v
io

u
r 

e
x
p

e
c
te

d
 o

f 
s
ta

ff
 a

n
d

 m
a
n

a
g

e
rs

 w
il
l 

b
e
 s

e
t 

o
u

t 
in

 t
h

e
 

C
o

u
n

c
il

's
 c

o
m

p
e
te

n
c

y
 f

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 a
n

d
 t

h
is

 w
il
l 
b

e
 u

s
e
d

 a
s
 t

h
e
 b

a
s
is

 f
o

r 
s
ta

ff
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 a

p
p

ra
is

a
l.

C
o
m

p
e
te

n
c
y
 F

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

G
ri
e
v
a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 

D
is

c
ip

lin
a
ry

 P
ro

c
e
d
u
re

s

3
.4

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il

’s
 s

ta
n

d
in

g
 o

rd
e
rs

 a
n

d
 f

in
a
n

c
ia

l 
re

g
u

la
ti

o
n

s
 w

il
l 
p

u
t 

in
 p

la
c
e
 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
e
s
 d

e
s
ig

n
e
d

 t
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 t

h
a
t 

M
e
m

b
e
rs

 a
n

d
 e

m
p

lo
y
e
e
s
 o

f 
th

e
 

a
u

th
o

ri
ty

 a
re

 n
o

t 
in

fl
u

e
n

c
e
d

 b
y
 p

re
ju

d
ic

e
, 

b
ia

s
 o

r 
c
o

n
fl

ic
ts

 o
f 

in
te

re
s
t 

in
 

d
e
a
li

n
g

 w
it

h
 d

if
fe

re
n

t 
s
ta

k
e
h

o
ld

e
rs

.

C
o
n
s
ti
tu

ti
o
n

Page 85



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 B

R
e
p
o
rt

 P
a
g

e
 N

o
: 
2
2

A
g

e
n
d
a
 P

a
g

e
 N

o
:

3
.5

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il

 w
il
l 
e
n

s
u

re
 a

ll
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

s
 w

it
h

 w
h

ic
h

 i
t 

is
 e

n
g

a
g

e
d

 h
a
v
e
 a

 
s
e
t 

o
f 

v
a
lu

e
s
 o

r 
c
ri

te
ri

a
 a

g
a
in

s
t 

w
h

ic
h

 d
e
c
is

io
n

-m
a
k
in

g
 a

n
d

 a
c
ti

o
n

s
 c

a
n

 
b

e
 j

u
d

g
e
d

. 
 I
t 

w
il
l 
w

o
rk

 w
it

h
 t

h
o

s
e
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

s
 t

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 t

h
e

y
 a

re
 o

p
e
n

a
n

d
 a

c
c
o

u
n

ta
b

le
 a

n
d

 h
a
v
e
 c

le
a
r 

g
o

v
e
rn

a
n

c
e
 s

tr
u

c
tu

re
s
 i

n
 p

la
c
e
.

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 T
e
rm

s
 o

f 
R

e
fe

re
n
c
e

P
ri
n
c
ip

le
s
 o

f 
P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 
W

o
rk

in
g

T
a
k
in

g
 i
n
fo

rm
e
d
 a

n
d
 t

ra
n
s
p
a
re

n
t 
d
e
c
is

io
n
s
 w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 s

u
b
je

c
t 
to

 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 s

c
ru

ti
n
y
 a

n
d
 r

is
k
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t.

S
u

p
p

o
rt

in
g

 E
v
id

e
n

c
e

4
.1

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il

 w
il
l 
o

p
e
ra

te
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e
 l
e
g

a
l 

fr
a
m

e
w

o
rk

 f
o

r 
lo

c
a
l 
c
o

u
n

c
il
s
 

c
o

m
p

ly
in

g
 w

it
h

 i
ts

 s
ta

tu
to

ry
 d

u
ti

e
s
 a

n
d

 m
a
k
in

g
 t

h
e
 m

o
s
t 

o
f 

it
s
 p

o
w

e
rs

 t
o

 
m

e
e
t 

th
e
 n

e
e
d

s
 o

f 
th

e
 C

it
y
 a

n
d

 i
ts

 r
e
s
id

e
n

ts
.

C
o
re

 C
o
m

p
e
te

n
c
ie

s
 f
o
r 

m
a
n
a
g
e
rs

M
a
n
a
g
e
rs

’ 
J
o
b
 

D
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n
s

R
o
le

 o
f 
M

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 

O
ff

ic
e
r

4
.2

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il

 w
il
l 
h

o
ld

 i
ts

 m
e
e
ti

n
g

s
, 
a
n

d
 t

h
o

s
e
 o

f 
it

s
 c

o
m

m
it

te
e
s
 a

n
d

 
w

o
rk

in
g

 g
ro

u
p

s
, 
in

 p
u

b
li

c
 u

n
le

s
s
 t

h
e
re

 a
re

 g
o

o
d

 r
e
a
s
o

n
s
 f

o
r 

c
o

n
fi

d
e
n

ti
a
li
ty

. 
T

h
e
 p

u
b

li
c
 w

il
l 

b
e
 a

ll
o

w
e
d

 t
o

 a
s
k
 q

u
e
s
ti

o
n

s
 a

t 
a
ll
 C

o
u

n
c
il
 

a
n

d
 c

o
m

m
it

te
e
 m

e
e
ti

n
g

s
.

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
 A

g
e
n
d
a
s

C
o
n
s
ti
tu

ti
o
n

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
 F

o
rw

a
rd

 
P

la
n
 

Page 86



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 B

R
e
p
o
rt

 P
a
g

e
 N

o
: 
2
3

A
g

e
n
d
a
 P

a
g

e
 N

o
:

4
.3

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il

 w
il
l 
m

a
k
e
 s

u
re

 m
e
m

b
e
rs

 o
f 

th
e
 p

u
b

li
c
 h

a
v
e
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 t

o
 

in
fo

rm
a
ti

o
n

 a
b

o
u

t 
th

e
 w

o
rk

in
g

s
 o

f 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il

. 
 I
t 

w
il
l 
m

a
k
e
 c

le
a
r 

w
h

a
t 

in
fo

rm
a
ti

o
n

 i
s
 r

o
u

ti
n

e
ly

 p
u

b
li

s
h

e
d

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 i
ts

 F
re

e
d

o
m

 o
f 

In
fo

rm
a
ti

o
n

 
P

u
b

li
c
a
ti

o
n

 s
c
h

e
m

e
 a

n
d

 w
il
l 
re

s
p

o
n

d
 p

ro
m

p
tl

y
 t

o
 r

e
q

u
e
s
ts

 f
o

r 
in

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

. 
T

h
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il

 w
il
l 

p
u

b
li
s
h

 o
n

 i
ts

 w
e
b

s
it

e
 a

ll
 r

e
s
p

o
n

s
e
s
 t

o
 

F
re

e
d

o
m

 o
f 

In
fo

rm
a
ti

o
n

 r
e
q

u
e
s
ts

.

P
u
b
lic

a
ti
o
n
 S

c
h
e
m

e

F
re

e
d
o
m

 o
f 
In

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 

re
q
u
e
s
ts

 m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 

re
p
o
rt

s
C

o
u
n
c
il 

W
e
b
s
it
e

O
p
e
n
 d

a
ta

4
.4

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il

 w
il
l 
re

s
p

e
c
t 

 t
h

e
 p

e
rs

o
n

a
l 

d
a
ta

 o
f 

it
s
 c

it
iz

e
n

s
, 

e
m

p
lo

y
e
e
s
, 

s
u

p
p

li
e
rs

 a
n

d
 o

th
e
rs

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il
 m

a
y
 c

o
m

m
u

n
ic

a
te

 w
it

h
 i
n

 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 

p
ri

n
c
ip

le
s
 o

f 
th

e
 D

a
ta

 P
ro

te
c
ti

o
n

 l
e
g

is
la

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 w
il
l 
m

a
k
e
 t

h
is

 c
le

a
r 

in
 

it
s
 o

w
n

 D
a
ta

 P
ro

te
c
ti

o
n

 P
o

li
c

y
. 

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il

 w
il
l 
re

s
p

e
c
t 

th
e
 p

ri
v
a
c

y
 o

f 
m

e
m

b
e
rs

 o
f 

th
e
 p

u
b

li
c
 w

h
e
n

 c
a
ry

in
g

 o
u

t 
in

v
e
s
ti

g
a
ti

o
n

s
 a

n
d

 w
il
l 

e
n

s
u

re
 

th
a
t 

p
ri

v
a
c

y
 i

s
 o

n
ly

 i
n

te
rf

e
re

d
 w

it
h

 w
h

e
n

 t
h

e
 l
a
w

 p
e
rm

it
s
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
re

 i
s
 

c
le

a
r 

p
u

b
li
c
 i
n

te
re

s
t 

ju
s
ti

fi
c
a
ti

o
n

.

D
a
ta

 P
ro

te
c
ti
o
n
 P

o
lic

y

R
e
g
u
la

ti
o
n
 o

f 
In

v
e
s
ti
g
a
to

ry
 P

o
w

e
rs

 
A

c
t 
2
0
0
0
 –

P
ro

c
e
d
u
re

 
g
u
id

a
n
c
e

4
.5

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il

 w
il
l 
re

c
o

rd
 t

h
e
 d

e
li

b
e
ra

ti
o

n
 o

f 
s
c
ru

ti
n

y
 c

o
m

m
it

te
e
s
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 

re
a
s
o

n
s
 f

o
r 

E
x
e
c
u

ti
v
e
 a

n
d

 R
e
g

u
la

to
ry

 d
e
c
is

io
n

s
 a

n
d

 m
a
k
e
 a

g
e
n

d
a
 

p
a
p

e
rs

 a
n

d
 m

in
u

te
s
 a

v
a
il

a
b

le
 o

n
 t

h
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il

’s
 w

e
b

s
it

e
. 

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il
 w

il
l 

a
ls

o
 r

e
c
o

rd
 a

n
d

 p
u

b
li

s
h

 o
n

 t
h

e
 w

e
b

s
it

e
 w

ri
tt

e
n

 q
u

e
s
ti

o
n

s
 a

s
k
e
d

 a
t 

C
o

u
n

c
il

 m
e
e
ti

n
g

s
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
ir

 a
n

s
w

e
rs

, 
a
n

d
 o

ra
l 
q

u
e
s
ti

o
n

s
 a

n
d

 a
n

s
w

e
rs

 
w

h
e
re

 t
h

e
s
e
 a

re
 a

v
a
il

a
b

le
.

A
g
e
n
d
a
s
 a

n
d
 M

in
u
te

s
 o

f 
C

o
m

m
it
te

e
s

C
o
u
n
c
il 

w
e
b
s
it
e

4
.6

O
ff

ic
e
rs

 w
il
l 

u
s

e
 s

ta
n

d
a
rd

 r
e
p

o
rt

 t
e
m

p
la

te
s
 f

o
r 

c
o

m
m

it
te

e
 a

n
d

 e
x
e
c
u

ti
v
e
 

re
p

o
rt

s
 t

o
 h

e
lp

 e
n

s
u

re
 t

h
a
t 

re
a
d

e
rs

 a
re

 p
ro

v
id

e
d

 w
it

h
 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 t
h

a
t 

is
 

S
ta

n
d
a
rd

 c
o
m

m
it
te

e
 

re
p
o
rt

 t
e
m

p
la

te
s

Page 87



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 B

R
e
p
o
rt

 P
a
g

e
 N

o
: 
2
4

A
g

e
n
d
a
 P

a
g

e
 N

o
:

a
c
c
u

ra
te

, 
c
o

m
p

le
te

 a
n

d
 u

n
b

ia
s
e
d

. 
R

e
p

o
rt

s
 w

il
l 
m

a
k
e
 c

le
a
r 

th
e
 o

p
ti

o
n

s
 

a
v
a
il

a
b

le
 s

o
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 i

m
p

li
c
a
ti

o
n

s
 o

f 
a
ll
 d

e
c
is

io
n

s
 a

n
d

 s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 r
is

k
s
 c

a
n

 
b

e
 a

s
s
e
s
s
e
d

 b
e
fo

re
 t

h
o

s
e
 d

e
c
is

io
n

s
 a

re
 m

a
d

e
.

4
.7

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il

 w
il
l 
a
c
ti

v
e
ly

 c
o

n
s
id

e
r 

th
e
 e

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

ta
l 
im

p
a
c
t 

o
f 

th
e
 

C
o

u
n

c
il

’s
 d

e
c
is

io
n

s
 b

e
fo

re
 t

h
o

s
e
 d

e
c
is

io
n

s
 a

re
 m

a
d

e
.

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
 

A
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

T
o
o
l
fo

r 
C

o
u
n
c
il 

P
o
lic

ie
s
 P

la
n
s
 

a
n
d
 P

ro
je

c
ts

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
A

c
ti
o
n
 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
 r

e
p
o
rt

s
4

.8
T

h
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il

 w
il
l 
d

e
v
e
lo

p
 a

n
d

 m
a
in

ta
in

 a
n

 e
ff

e
c
ti

v
e
 S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 t

o
 

e
n

c
o

u
ra

g
e
 c

o
n

s
tr

u
c
ti

v
e
 c

h
a
ll
e
n

g
e
 a

n
d

 e
n

h
a
n

c
e
 t

h
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il

’s
 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
.

It
 w

il
l 
a
ls

o
 h

a
v
e

c
le

a
r 

p
ro

to
c
o

ls
 a

b
o

u
t 

M
e
m

b
e
rs

’ 
a
c
c
e
s
s
 t

o
 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 
a
n

d
 o

ff
ic

e
r 

a
d

v
ic

e
 t

o
 e

n
a
b

le
 t

h
e
m

 t
o

 p
e
rf

o
rm

 t
h

e
ir

 r
o

le
s
.

T
e
rm

s
 o

f 
R

e
fe

re
n
c
e
 o

f 
S

c
ru

ti
n
y
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
s

P
ro

to
c
o
l

4
.9

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il

 w
il
l 
h

a
v
e
 a

 n
e
tw

o
rk

 o
f 

A
re

a
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e
s
 t

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 

n
e
ig

h
b

o
u

rh
o

o
d

 i
s
s
u

e
s
 a

re
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 i

n
 t

h
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il
’s

 d
e
c
is

io
n

-m
a
k
in

g
 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
e
s
.

A
re

a
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 t

e
rm

s
 

o
f 

re
fe

re
n
c
e

4
.1

0
T

h
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il

 w
il
l 
h

a
v
e
 a

 J
o

in
t 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
C

o
n

tr
o

l 
C

o
m

m
it

te
e
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 

C
o

u
n

ty
 C

o
u

n
c
il

 a
n

d
 S

o
u

th
 C

a
m

b
ri

d
g

e
s
h

ir
e
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

C
o

u
n

c
il

 f
o

r 
d

e
c
is

io
n

s
 a

ff
e
c
ti

n
g

 g
ro

w
th

 s
it

e
s
 b

o
rd

e
ri

n
g

 t
h

e
 C

it
y
 a

n
d

 S
o

u
th

 

T
e
rm

s
 o

f 
re

fe
re

n
c
e
 o

f 
J
o
in

t 
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

C
o
n
tr

o
l 
C

o
m

m
it
te

e

Page 88



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 B

R
e
p
o
rt

 P
a
g

e
 N

o
: 
2
5

A
g

e
n
d
a
 P

a
g

e
 N

o
:

C
a
m

b
ri

d
g

e
s
h

ir
e
.

4
.1

1
T

h
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il

 w
il
l 
h

a
v
e
 a

 c
le

a
r 

a
n

d
 p

u
b

li
c
is

e
d

 c
o

m
p

la
in

ts
 s

y
s
te

m
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 t

h
e
 a

p
p

o
in

tm
e
n

t 
o

f 
a
n

 i
n

d
e
p

e
n

d
e
n

t 
c
o

m
p

la
in

ts
 i

n
v
e
s
ti

g
a
to

r,
 

s
o

 t
h

a
t 

m
e
m

b
e
rs

 o
f 

th
e
 p

u
b

li
c
 c

a
n

 e
x
p

re
s
s
 d

is
s
a
ti

s
fa

c
ti

o
n

 w
it

h
 C

o
u

n
c
il
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
ir

 c
o

n
c
e
rn

s
 c

a
n

 b
e
 m

o
n

it
o

re
d

 a
n

d
 a

d
d

re
s
s
e
d

.

It
 w

il
l 
p

u
b

li
s
h

 a
n

 A
n

n
u

a
l 

C
o

m
p

la
in

ts
 r

e
p

o
rt

 a
n

a
ly

s
in

g
 t

re
n

d
s
 i

n
 

c
o

m
p

la
in

ts
 a

g
a
in

s
t 

th
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il
 a

n
d

 w
h

a
t 

h
a
s
 b

e
e
n

 d
o

n
e
 t

o
 a

d
d

re
s
s
 

th
e
m

.

C
o
m

p
la

in
ts

 l
e
a
fl
e
t

O
n
-l
in

e
 c

o
m

p
la

in
ts

 f
o
rm

 

A
n
n
u
a
l 
C

o
m

p
la

in
ts

 
re

p
o
rt

4
.1

2
T

h
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il

’s
 C

iv
ic

 A
ff

a
ir

s
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e
 w

il
l 
fu

lf
il
 t

h
e
 c

o
re

 f
u

n
c
ti

o
n

s
 o

f 
a
n

 
A

u
d

it
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e
.

T
e
rm

s
 o

f 
R

e
fe

re
n
c
e
 o

f 
th

e
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e

4
.1

3
T

h
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il

 w
il
l 
m

a
in

ta
in

 a
n

 i
n

d
e
p

e
n

d
e
n

t 
In

te
rn

a
l 

A
u

d
it

 f
u

n
c
ti

o
n

, 
w

it
h

 a
 

ri
s
k
-b

a
s
e
d

 a
n

n
u

a
l 
a
u

d
it

 p
la

n
, 
d

e
s
ig

n
e
d

 t
o

 t
e
s
t 

re
g

u
la

rl
y
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 

C
o

u
n

c
il

’s
 p

o
li

c
ie

s
 a

n
d

 p
ro

c
e
s
s
e
s
 o

p
e
ra

te
 i
n

 p
ra

c
ti

c
e
 a

n
d

 t
h

a
t 

th
e
 

C
o

u
n

c
il

 c
o

m
p

li
e
s
 w

it
h

 l
e
g

is
la

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 g
o

o
d

 p
ra

c
ti

c
e
. 

T
h

e
 H

e
a
d

 o
f 

In
te

rn
a
l 

A
u

d
it

 w
il
l 

p
ro

d
u

c
e
 a

n
 a

n
n

u
a
l 
o

p
in

io
n

 o
n

 t
h

e
 

C
o

u
n

c
il

’s
 i
n

te
rn

a
l 
c
o

n
tr

o
l 

e
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

t 
to

 m
e
e
t 

th
e
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

ts
 o

f 
th

e
 

C
o

d
e
 o

f 
P

ra
c
ti

c
e
 f

o
r 

In
te

rn
a
l 

A
u

d
it

 i
n

 L
o

c
a
l 

G
o

v
e
rn

m
e
n

t 
in

 t
h

e
 U

K
, 

2
0
0
6
.T

h
e
 H

e
a
d

 o
f 

In
te

rn
a
l 

A
u

d
it

 O
p

in
io

n
 w

il
l 
b

e
 u

s
e
d

 t
o

 i
n

fo
rm

 a
n

 
A

n
n

u
a
l 

G
o

v
e
rn

a
n

c
e
 S

ta
te

m
e
n

t 
a
n

d
 t

h
is

 w
il
l 
b

e
 s

ig
n

e
d

 o
ff

 b
y
 t

h
e
 C

h
ie

f 
E

x
e
c
u

ti
v
e
 a

n
d

 L
e
a
d

e
r 

o
f 

th
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il
.

A
n
n
u
a
l 
A

u
d
it
 P

la
n

H
e
a
d
 o

f 
In

te
rn

a
l 

A
u
d
it
 O

p
in

io
n

A
n
n
u
a
l 
G

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 

S
ta

te
m

e
n
t

Page 89



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 B

R
e
p
o
rt

 P
a
g

e
 N

o
: 
2
6

A
g

e
n
d
a
 P

a
g

e
 N

o
:

4
.1

4
T

h
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il

 w
il
l 
a
ls

o
 a

g
re

e
 a

n
 a

n
n

u
a
l 
w

o
rk

 p
la

n
 w

it
h

 i
ts

 E
x
te

rn
a
l 

A
u

d
it

o
rs

 t
o

 t
e
s
t 

th
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il

’s
 r

e
s
p

o
n

s
e
 t

o
 m

a
jo

r 
le

g
is

la
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 t

h
e
 

s
o

u
n

d
n

e
s
s
 o

f 
it

s
 f

in
a
n

c
ia

l 
a
n

d
 g

o
v
e
rn

a
n

c
e
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
. 

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

s
 a

ri
s
in

g
 f

ro
m

 i
n

te
rn

a
l 
a
n

d
 e

x
te

rn
a
l 
a
u

d
it

 a
n

d
 

in
s
p

e
c
ti

o
n

 p
ro

c
e
s
s
e
s
 w

il
l 

b
e
 u

s
e
d

 t
o

 i
n

fo
rm

 f
u

tu
re

 d
e
c
is

io
n

-m
a
k
in

g
.

T
e
rm

s
 o

f 
R

e
fe

re
n
c
e
 o

f 
C

iv
ic

 A
ff

a
ir
s
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e

R
is

k
 R

e
g
is

te
r

A
n
n
u
a
l 
A

u
d
it
 l
e
tt

e
r

4
.1

5
T

h
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il

 w
il
l 
e
n

s
u

re
 t

h
a
t 

ri
s
k
 m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
is

 e
m

b
e
d

d
e
d

 i
n

to
 t

h
e
 

c
u

lt
u

re
 o

f 
th

e
 a

u
th

o
ri

ty
, 
w

it
h

 m
a
n

a
g

e
rs

 a
t 

a
ll
 l
e
v
e
ls

 r
e
c
o

g
n

is
in

g
 t

h
a
t 

ri
s
k
 

m
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
is

 p
a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
ir

 j
o

b
.

It
 w

il
l 
h

a
v
e
 a

 R
is

k
 M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
S

tr
a
te

g
y
, 

s
u

p
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

 b
y
 p

ro
c
e
d

u
re

s
 

a
n

d
 g

u
id

a
n

c
e
.

R
is

k
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 

P
ro

c
e
d
u
re

s
 a

n
d
 

g
u
id

a
n
c
e
 o

n
 t

h
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il’

s
 I
n
tr

a
n
e
t

4
.1

6
T

h
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il

 w
il
l 
u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e
 s

y
s
te

m
a

ti
c
 r

is
k
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

ts
 i

n
 a

ll
 a

re
a
s
 o

f 
C

o
u

n
c
il

 a
c
ti

v
it

y
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 t

h
o

s
e
 c

o
v
e
re

d
 b

y
 H

e
a
lt

h
 a

n
d

 S
a
fe

ty
 

le
g

is
la

ti
o

n
.

It
 w

il
l 
m

a
in

ta
in

 a
 c

o
rp

o
ra

te
 r

is
k
 r

e
g

is
te

r 
d

e
ta

il
in

g
 t

h
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il

’s
 s

tr
a
te

g
ic

 
a
n

d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 r

is
k
s
 a

n
d

 r
e
v
ie

w
 t

h
is

 r
e
g

u
la

rl
y
.

R
is

k
 A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
ts

R
is

k
 R

e
g
is

te
r

4
.1

7
T

h
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il

 w
il
l 
e
n

s
u

re
 t

h
a
t 

ri
s
k
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

t 
is

 i
n

c
o

rp
o

ra
te

d
 i

n
to

th
e
 

C
o

u
n

c
il

’s
 d

e
c
is

io
n

 m
a
k
in

g
 a

n
d

 M
e
m

b
e
rs

 a
re

 a
d

v
is

e
d

 o
f 

th
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il
’s

 
ri

s
k
 p

ro
fi

le
 a

t 
k
e

y
 s

ta
g

e
s
.

R
is

k
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 a

n
d
 G

u
id

a
n
c
e

Page 90



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 B

R
e
p
o
rt

 P
a
g

e
 N

o
: 
2
7

A
g

e
n
d
a
 P

a
g

e
 N

o
:

D
e
v
e
lo

p
in

g
 t

h
e
 c

a
p
a
c
it
y
 a

n
d
 c

a
p
a
b
ili

ty
 o

f 
M

e
m

b
e
rs

 a
n
d
 O

ff
ic

e
rs

 t
o
 b

e
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e

S
u

p
p

o
rt

in
g

 E
v
id

e
n

c
e

5
.1

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il

 w
il
l 
s
e
e
k
 t

o
 m

a
in

ta
in

 i
ts

 I
n

v
e
s
to

rs
 i
n

 P
e
o

p
le

 a
c
c
re

d
it

a
ti

o
n

.
II

P
 A

c
c
re

d
it
a
ti
o
n

5
.2

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il

’s
 P

e
o

p
le

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 w

il
l 

s
e
t 

o
u

t 
h

o
w

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il

 w
il
l 

re
c
ru

it
, 

re
w

a
rd

 a
n

d
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 i

ts
 s

ta
ff

 t
o

 r
e
a
c
h

 t
h

e
ir

 f
u

ll
 p

o
te

n
ti

a
l.
 

S
ta

ff
 j
o

in
in

g
 t

h
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il

 w
il
l 
b

e
 o

ff
e
re

d
 a

n
 i
n

d
u

c
ti

o
n

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 a

n
d

 
th

e
ir

 t
ra

in
in

g
 a

n
d

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
n

e
e
d

s
 w

il
l 
b

e
 r

e
v
ie

w
e
d

 r
e
g

u
la

rl
y
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 

th
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il

’s
 a

n
n

u
a
l 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
, 
w

h
ic

h
 a

p
p

li
e
s
 t

o
 a

ll
 

s
ta

ff
.

P
e
o
p
le

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

In
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 R

e
v
ie

w
 

p
ro

c
e
s
s

5
.3

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il

 w
il
l 
h

a
v
e
 u

p
-t

o
-d

a
te

 j
o

b
 d

e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

s
. 
 I

t 
w

il
l 

s
e
t 

a
n

d
 m

o
n

it
o

r 
c
le

a
r 

o
b

je
c
ti

v
e
s
 f

o
r 

O
ff

ic
e
rs

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 t
h

e
 a

n
n

u
a
l 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
.

It
 w

il
l 
a
g

re
e
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a
te

 r
e
m

u
n

e
ra

ti
o

n
 f

o
r 

o
ff

ic
e
rs

 b
a
s
e
d

 o
n

 a
n

 a
g

re
e
d

 
fr

a
m

e
w

o
rk

 o
f 

n
a
ti

o
n

a
l 

a
n

d
 l

o
c
a
l 
a
g

re
e
m

e
n

ts
 w

h
ic

h
 i
n

c
lu

d
e
 j

o
b

 
e
v
a
lu

a
ti

o
n

.

J
o
b
 D

e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n
s

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 R

e
v
ie

w
 

p
ro

c
e
s
s

C
o
m

p
e
te

n
c
y
 F

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

5
.4

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il

 w
il
l 
o

ff
e
r 

a
ll
 n

e
w

 M
e
m

b
e
rs

 a
n

 i
n

d
u

c
ti

o
n

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 

o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

y
 t

o
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
, 
w

it
h

 t
h

e
 M

e
m

b
e
r 

T
ra

in
in

g
 C

h
a
m

p
io

n
s
, 
a
 t

a
il
o

re
d

 
p

e
rs

o
n

a
l 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
p

la
n

 t
o

 m
e
e
t 

th
e
ir

 n
e
e
d

s
. 

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il

 w
il
l 

a
ls

o
 

M
e
m

b
e
r 

In
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e

Page 91



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 B

R
e
p
o
rt

 P
a
g

e
 N

o
: 
2
8

A
g

e
n
d
a
 P

a
g

e
 N

o
:

p
ro

v
id

e
 r

e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 f

o
r 

tr
a
in

in
g

, 
a
tt

e
n

d
in

g
 c

o
n

fe
re

n
c
e
s
/s

e
m

in
a
rs

 a
n

d
  

b
ri

e
fi

n
g

s
 i

n
-h

o
u

s
e
 f

o
r 

a
ll
 e

le
c
te

d
 M

e
m

b
e
rs

. 
 I

t 
w

il
l 
k
e
e
p

 a
 r

e
g

is
te

r 
o

f 
th

e
 

tr
a
in

in
g

 r
e
c
e
iv

e
d

 b
y
 M

e
m

b
e
rs

 a
n

d
 w

il
l 
in

v
o

lv
e
 t

h
e
 M

e
m

b
e
r 

T
ra

in
in

g
 

C
h

a
m

p
io

n
s
 i

n
 r

e
v
ie

w
in

g
 t

ra
in

in
g

 n
e
e
d

s
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 r

e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 a

v
a
il

a
b

le
 

d
u

ri
n

g
 t

h
e
 y

e
a
r.

5
.5

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il

 w
il
l 
e
n

c
o

u
ra

g
e
 a

n
d

 f
a
c
il
it

a
te

 M
e
m

b
e
rs

 t
o

 h
a
v
e
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a
te

 
tr

a
in

in
g

 o
r 

b
ri

e
fi

n
g

 b
e
fo

re
 p

e
rf

o
rm

in
g

 c
e
rt

a
in

 r
o

le
s
 (

e
.g

. 
d

e
a
li
n

g
 w

it
h

 
s
ta

ff
 r

e
c
ru

it
m

e
n

t 
o

r 
d

is
c
ip

li
n

a
ry

 i
s
s
u

e
s
, 

b
e
in

g
 a

 m
e
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

th
e
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 

o
r 

L
ic

e
n

s
in

g
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e
s
).

5
.6

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il

 w
il
l 
s
e
e
k
 e

x
p

e
rt

is
e
 f

ro
m

 o
u

ts
id

e
 t

h
e
 a

u
th

o
ri

ty
 w

h
e
n

 i
t 

d
o

e
s
 

n
o

t 
h

a
v
e
 t

h
e
 n

e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

 s
k
il

ls
 i
n

-h
o

u
s
e
, 
m

a
k
in

g
 u

s
e
 o

f 
p

e
e
r 

re
v
ie

w
s
 a

n
d

 
o

th
e
r 

m
e
c
h

a
n

is
m

s
 f

o
r 

e
n

s
u

ri
n

g
 c

h
a
ll

e
n

g
e
 o

f 
C

o
u

n
c
il
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
.

5
.7

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il

 w
il
l 
s
e
e
k
 t

o
 e

n
c
o

u
ra

g
e
 e

n
g

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
in

 i
ts

 w
o

rk
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 a

 
v
a
ri

e
ty

 o
f 

m
e
a
n

s
 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 a

re
a
 c

o
m

m
it

te
e
s
, 
p

u
b

li
c
 

re
p

re
s
e
n

ta
ti

v
e
s
 o

n
 t

h
e
 E

q
u

a
li
ti

e
s
 P

a
n

e
l,
 T

e
n

a
n

t 
R

e
p

re
s
e
n

ta
ti

v
e
s
 o

n
 t

h
e
 

H
o

u
s
in

g
 M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
B

o
a
rd

 a
n

d
 i
n

v
o

lv
e
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
a
p

p
o

in
te

d
 

“
In

d
e
p

e
n

d
e
n

t 
P

e
rs

o
n

s
”
 i
n

 t
h

e
 w

o
rk

 o
f 

th
e
 C

iv
ic

 A
ff

a
ir

s
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e
.

It
 w

il
l 
a
ls

o
 p

u
t 

re
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 i
n

to
 o

u
tr

e
a
c
h

 w
o

rk
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 i

ts
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 t
o

te
n

a
n

t 
a
n

d
 l
e
a
s
e
h

o
ld

e
r 

re
p

re
s
e
n

ta
ti

v
e
s
.

M
e
m

b
e
rs

h
ip

 a
n
d
 T

e
rm

s
 

o
f 

R
e
fe

re
n
c
e
 o

f 
th

e
s
e
 

b
o
d
ie

s

P
u
b
lic

 Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 

p
e
ti
ti
o
n
s

Page 92



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 B

R
e
p
o
rt

 P
a
g

e
 N

o
: 
2
9

A
g

e
n
d
a
 P

a
g

e
 N

o
:

E
n
g
a
g
in

g
 w

it
h
 l
o
c
a
l 
p
e
o
p
le

 a
n
d
 o

th
e
r 

s
ta

k
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 r
o
b
u
s
t 

p
u
b
lic

 a
c
c
o
u
n
ta

b
ili

ty

S
u

p
p

o
rt

in
g

 E
v
id

e
n

c
e

6
.1

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il

 w
il
l 
e
n

s
u

re
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 a

u
th

o
ri

ty
 a

s
 a

 w
h

o
le

 i
s
 o

p
e
n

 a
n

d
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
ib

le
 t

o
 t

h
e
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
, 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

 a
n

d
 i
ts

 s
ta

ff
.

It
 w

il
l 

p
ro

m
o

te
 t

h
e
 r

o
le

 o
f 

C
o

u
n

c
il
lo

rs
 a

n
d

 m
a
k
e
 t

h
e
 p

u
b

li
c
 k

n
o

w
 w

h
o

 t
h

e
 

C
o

u
n

c
il

lo
rs

 a
re

, 
w

h
a
t 

ro
le

s
 t

h
e

y
 h

a
v
e
 o

n
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il

 a
n

d
 h

o
w

 t
o

 c
o

n
ta

c
t 

th
e
m

.

It
 w

il
l 

tr
e
a
t 

e
v
e
ry

o
n

e
 f

a
ir

ly
 a

n
d

 s
tr

iv
e
 t

o
 t

re
a
t 

a
ll

 a
s
 r

a
ti

o
n

a
l 

p
e
o

p
le

 a
b

le
 

to
 m

a
k
e
 u

p
 t

h
e
ir

 o
w

n
 m

in
d

s
.

It
 w

il
l 
a
ls

o
 s

tr
iv

e
 t

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 o

n
 t

h
e
 b

a
s
is

 o
f 

n
e
e
d

 r
a
th

e
r 

th
a
n

 
a
b

il
it

y
 t

o
 p

a
y
.

C
it
iz

e
n
 S

u
rv

e
y
 r

e
s
u
lt
s

P
u
b
lic

 Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 T

im
e
 

a
n
d
 P

e
ti
ti
o
n
 p

ro
c
e
d
u
re

s

C
o
u
n
c
il 

W
e
b
s
it
e

C
a
m

b
ri
d
g
e
 M

a
tt
e
rs

A
n
n
u
a
l 
S

ta
te

m
e
n
t

C
h
a
rg

in
g
 p

o
lic

ie
s
 f
o
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s

6
.2

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il

 w
il
l 
m

a
k
e
 c

le
a
r 

th
ro

u
g

h
 i

ts
 w

e
b

s
it

e
 a

n
d

 o
th

e
r 

C
o

u
n

c
il
 

p
u

b
li

c
a
ti

o
n

s
 t

h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 t

h
a
t 

it
 i
s
 r

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 f

o
r,

 h
o

w
 p

e
o

p
le

 c
a
n

 
c
o

n
ta

c
t 

th
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 s

ta
n

d
a
rd

s
 t

h
e

y
 c

a
n

 e
x
p

e
c
t.

  

C
o
u
n
c
il 

w
e
b
s
it
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

T
a
x
 L

e
a
fl
e
t

A
n
n
u
a
l 
R

e
p
o
rt

O
p
e
n
 D

o
o
r

C
a
m

b
ri
d
g
e
 M

a
tt
e
rs

6
.3

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il

 w
il
l 
u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e
 s

u
rv

e
y
s
 o

f 
re

s
id

e
n

ts
 t

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 t

h
a
t 

it
 h

a
s
 u

p
 

to
 d

a
te

 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 a
b

o
u

t 
th

e
ir

 p
ri

o
ri

ti
e
s
 a

n
d

 l
e
v
e
ls

 o
f 

s
a
ti

s
fa

c
ti

o
n

 w
it

h
 

th
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il

 a
n

d
 i

ts
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
.

C
it
iz

e
n
s
 S

u
rv

e
y
s

Page 93



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 B

R
e
p
o
rt

 P
a
g

e
 N

o
: 
3
0

A
g

e
n
d
a
 P

a
g

e
 N

o
:

6
.4

T
h

e
 

C
o

u
n

c
il

’s
 

c
o

n
s
u

lt
a
ti

o
n

 
p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e
 

w
il
l 

e
n

s
u

re
 

th
a
t 

th
e
 

C
o

u
n

c
il
 

p
ro

a
c
ti

v
e
ly

 s
e
e
k
s
 t

h
e
 v

ie
w

s
 o

f 
a
 w

id
e
 r

a
n

g
e
 o

f 
p

e
o

p
le

 a
n

d
 e

n
g

a
g

e
s

 w
it

h
 

a
ll
 s

e
c
ti

o
n

s
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 e

ff
e
c
ti

v
e
ly

.

T
h

is
 w

il
l 

b
e
 a

c
h

ie
v
e
d

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 a
 m

ix
 o

f 
c
o

rp
o

ra
te

 c
o

n
s
u

lt
a
ti

o
n

 i
n

it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 

w
it

h
 m

o
re

 t
a
rg

e
te

d
 c

o
n

s
u

lt
a
ti

o
n

 o
n

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 s

p
e
c
if

ic
 i
s
s
u

e
s
 l

e
d

 b
y
 

re
le

v
a
n

t 
d

e
p

a
rt

m
e
n

ts
.

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 r

e
p
o
rt

s

S
ta

te
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 I

n
v
o
lv

e
m

e
n
t 

C
o
d
e
 o

f 
B

e
s
t 
P

ra
c
ti
c
e
 

o
n
 C

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

E
n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t

6
.5

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il

 w
il
l 

s
e
e
k
 t

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 a

ll
 v

ie
w

s
 a

re
 a

c
ti

v
e
ly

 c
o

n
s
id

e
re

d
 w

h
e
n

 
m

a
k
in

g
 d

e
c
is

io
n

s
, 

re
c
o

g
n

is
in

g
 t

h
a
t 

it
 i

s
 n

o
t 

a
lw

a
y
s
 p

o
s
s
ib

le
 t

o
 r

e
c
o

n
c
il
e
 

c
o

n
fl

ic
ti

n
g

 v
ie

w
p

o
in

ts
.

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il

 w
il
l 
e
n

s
u

re
 i
t 

m
a
k
e
s
 f

e
e
d

b
a
c
k
 a

v
a
il

a
b

le
 t

o
 c

o
n

s
u

lt
e
e
s
 o

n
 t

h
e
 

o
u

tc
o

m
e
s
 o

f 
c
o

n
s
u

lt
a
ti

o
n

, 
w

h
a
t 

h
a
s
 c

h
a
n

g
e
d

 a
s
 a

 r
e
s
u

lt
 a

n
d

 e
x
p

la
in

in
g

 
w

h
y
 i

t 
h

a
s
 m

a
d

e
 t

h
e
 d

e
c
is

io
n

s
 i
t 

h
a
s
.

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 p

a
g
e
s
 o

n
 

w
e
b
s
it
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

P
u
b
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
 

C
o
d
e
 o

f 
B

e
s
t 
P

ra
c
ti
c
e
 

o
n
 C

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

E
n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t

6
.6

T
h

e
 
C

o
u

n
c
il

 
w

il
l 

u
n

d
e
rt

a
k
e
 
E

q
u

a
li

ty
 
Im

p
a
c
t 

A
s
s
e
s
s

m
e
n

ts
 
o

f 
a
ll

 
m

a
jo

r 
C

o
u

n
c
il

 
d

e
c
is

io
n

s
 
a
n

d
 
ta

k
e
 
a
c
ti

o
n

 
to

 
im

p
le

m
e
n

t 
c
h

a
n

g
e
s
 
re

q
u

ir
e
d

, 
to

 
e
n

s
u

re
 t

h
a
t 

c
o

u
n

c
il

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d

 p
o

li
c
ie

s
 c

o
n

s
id

e
r 

th
e
 d

iv
e
rs

e
 n

e
e
d

s
 o

f 
it

s
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

 a
n

d
 c

it
iz

e
n

s
.

It
 h

a
s
 a

 S
in

g
le

 E
q

u
a
li

ti
e
s
 S

c
h

e
m

e
 c

o
v
e
ri

n
g

 r
a
c
e
, 

d
is

a
b

il
it

y
, 

g
e
n

d
e
r 

a
g

e
, 

s
e
x
u

a
l 

o
ri

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 
a
n

d
 
 
re

li
g

io
n

 
o

r 
b

e
li
e
f 

a
n

d
 
a
n

 
A

c
ti

o
n

 
P

la
n

 
w

il
l 

b
e
 

re
v
ie

w
e
d

 a
n

n
u

a
ll

y
. 

It
 w

il
l 
a
ls

o
 u

s
e
 "

M
a
p

p
in

g
 P

o
v
e
rt

y
"
 r

e
s
e
a
rc

h
 d

a
ta

, 
o

r 
o

th
e
r 

re
le

v
a
n

t 
d

a
ta

, 

E
x
a
m

p
le

s
 o

f 
E

q
u
a
lit

y
 

Im
p
a
c
t 
A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
ts

A
n
n
u
a
l 
R

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
E

q
u
a
lit

ie
s

S
in

g
le

 E
q
u
a
lit

y
 S

c
h
e
m

e

C
o
m

p
re

h
e
n
s
iv

e
 

E
q
u
a
lit

ie
s
 A

c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n

Page 94



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 B

R
e
p
o
rt

 P
a
g

e
 N

o
: 
3
1

A
g

e
n
d
a
 P

a
g

e
 N

o
:

to
 i

n
fo

rm
 d

e
c
is

io
n

s
 a

b
o

u
t 

re
la

ti
v
e
 d

e
p

ri
v
a
ti

o
n

 i
n

 t
h

e
 C

it
y
.

M
a
p
p
in

g
 P

o
v
e
rt

y
 r

e
p
o
rt

6
.7

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il

’s
 E

q
u

a
li

ti
e
s
 P

a
n

e
l 

(w
h

ic
h

 h
a
s
 s

ta
ff

, 
m

e
m

b
e
r 

a
n

d
 p

u
b

li
c
 

re
p

re
s
e
n

ta
ti

v
e
s
) 

w
il
l

h
e
lp

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il
 e

v
a
lu

a
te

 i
ts

 s
u

c
c
e
s
s
 i
n

 p
ro

m
o

ti
n

g
 

d
iv

e
rs

it
y
 a

n
d

 m
e
e
ti

n
g

 a
 b

ro
a
d

 r
a
n

g
e
 o

f 
n

e
e
d

s
.

T
e
rm

s
 o

f 
R

e
fe

re
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 

a
g
e
n
d
a
s
 o

f 
m

e
e
ti
n
g
s

6
.8

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il

 w
il
l 
e
n

te
r 

in
to

 c
o

m
p

a
c
ts

 w
it

h
 T

e
n

a
n

ts
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 V

o
lu

n
ta

ry
 

S
e
c
to

r 
a
g

re
e
in

g
 w

a
y
s
 o

f 
w

o
rk

in
g

 w
it

h
 t

h
e
s

e
 t

w
o

 s
ta

k
e
h

o
ld

e
r 

g
ro

u
p

s
. 

T
h

e
 C

o
m

p
a
c
ts

 w
il
l 

b
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
e
d

 o
n

 a
 r

e
g

u
la

r 
b

a
s
is

.

C
o
m

p
a
c
t 
d
o
c
u
m

e
n
ts

6
.9

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il

 w
il
l 
s
e
t 

o
u

t 
in

 i
ts

 c
o

ll
e
c
ti

v
e
 a

g
re

e
m

e
n

ts
, 
e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
p

o
li

c
ie

s
 a

n
d

 p
ro

c
e
d

u
re

s
, 
a
n

d
 t

e
rm

s
 o

f 
re

fe
re

n
c
e
 f

o
r 

fo
ru

m
s
 a

n
d

 
m

e
e
ti

n
g

s
 i
n

v
o

lv
in

g
 t

ra
d

e
 u

n
io

n
s
, 

a
n

d
 h

o
w

 i
t 

w
il
l 
c
o

n
s
u

lt
 w

it
h

 s
ta

ff
 a

n
d

 
T

ra
d

e
 U

n
io

n
s
. 
 

C
o
lle

c
ti
v
e
 A

g
re

e
m

e
n
ts

E
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

p
o
lic

ie
s
 

a
n
d
 p

ro
c
e
d
u
re

s

T
ra

d
e
 U

n
io

n
 F

a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 

A
g
re

e
m

e
n
t

6
.1

0
M

e
m

b
e
rs

 w
il
l 
m

e
e
t 

w
it

h
 t

h
e
 T

ra
d

e
 U

n
io

n
s
 i

n
 a

 J
o

in
t 

S
ta

ff
/ 
E

m
p

lo
y
e
r 

F
o

ru
m

. 
E

a
c
h

 c
o

u
n

c
il
 d

e
p

a
rt

m
e
n

t 
w

il
l 
h

a
v
e
 d

e
p

a
rt

m
e
n

ta
l 

s
ta

ff
 f

o
ru

m
s
 

a
n

d
 t

h
e
re

 w
il
l 
b

e
 a

 m
o

n
th

ly
 J

o
in

t 
T

ra
d

e
 U

n
io

n
s
 G

ro
u

p
 m

e
e
ti

n
g

.

J
o
in

ts
 S

ta
ff
 /
E

m
p
lo

y
e
r 

F
o
ru

m
 T

e
rm

s
 o

f 
R

e
fe

re
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 

A
g
e
n
d
a
s
/J

o
in

t 
T

ra
d
e
 

U
n
io

n
s
 G

ro
u
p
 A

g
e
n
d
a
s
 

a
n
d
 M

in
u
te

s

T
ra

d
e
 U

n
io

n
 F

a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 

A
g
re

e
m

e
n
t

Page 95



Page 96

This page is intentionally left blank



Report Page No: 1 Agenda Page No:

Agenda Item         

CAMBRIDGE CITY COUNCIL

REPORT OF: Director of Resources

TO: Civic Affairs Committee 26/6/2013

WARDS: None directly affected

ANNUAL REPORT AND STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR 
ENDED 31 MARCH 2013

1 INTRODUCTION

1.1. The Audit and Accounts Regulations govern the preparation, 
approval and publication of local authority accounts.  There is a 
requirement for the Director of Resources to approve draft accounts 
by the 30 June in each year and for the audited accounts to be 
approved by resolution of a committee of the Council (or the full 
Council) by 30 September.  Under the Council’s Constitution, this 
responsibility rests with the Civic Affairs Committee.

1.2. Although the Civic Affairs Committee are not required to formally 
approve the draft accounts by 30 June the Committee has previously 
agreed that the accounts should be presented for review at this stage 
and that the accounting policies and treatments applied in their 
preparation are approved.

1.3. Changes to the accounts, as a consequence of new or amended 
guidance on local authority accounting, are highlighted in this report.

1.4. Significant items of note in the 2012/13 accounts are also highlighted 
together with explanations of the differences in presentation between 
final outturn reporting to Scrutiny Committees (based on service 
portfolios) and the formal statement of accounts.

In light of the scope and content of the draft accounts, if members require 
detailed answers to specific questions it is requested wherever possible 
that these are notified to the Head of Accounting Services 2 working days 
prior to the meeting so that a full answer can be given.

Agenda Item 8

Page 97



Report Page No: 2 Agenda Page No:

2. RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1 That the contents of the draft Statement of Accounts presented at 
Appendix 1 are noted and that the accounting policies and treatments 
on which they are prepared are approved.

3. BACKGROUND

3.1 The Civic Affairs Committee has responsibility for corporate 
governance issues including audit and regulatory financial matters.  
The CIPFA Publication Audit Committees: Practical Guidance for 
Local Authorities states that the review of the financial statements 
should focus on:

 The suitability of accounting policies and treatments

 Any changes in accounting policies and treatments

 Major judgemental areas

3.2 In addition the Committee should consider any significant 
adjustments and material weaknesses in internal control reported by 
the external auditor after completion of the audit.

3.3 The annual accounts of local authorities are prepared in accordance 
with the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting (The Code), 
issued by the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy 
(CIPFA) and on other relevant guidance relating to accounting and 
reporting standards.  The Code, based on International Financial 
Reporting Standards (IFRS), is highly prescriptive both in terms of 
the main financial statements and the notes that must accompany 
them.  

3.4 The requirements and timetable to prepare, audit and publish the 
accounts are governed by the Accounts and Audit Regulations 
issued under powers contained in the Local Government Finance Act 
1982.  The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2011 require the 
accounts to be approved by the Chief Financial Officer by 30 June, 
and approved by a committee of the Council (or the full Council) and 
published by 30 September.

3.5 The timetable for production of the Council’s draft accounts was 
achieved once again this year.  The production of accounts under 
IFRS (introduced in 2010/11) remains a complex task and one that 
requires significantly greater resource than previously.  This 

Page 98



Report Page No: 3 Agenda Page No:

additional workload can only be met within existing resources by staff 
working additional hours.

3.6 A brief Annual Report, outlining the Council’s services and 
summarising the Council’s performance in 2012/13 is being 
presented alongside the Statement of Accounts.  The Annual Report 
pages presented here are the latest draft and may be further refined 
prior to publication in September 2012.

4 AUDIT OF THE ACCOUNTS AND REPORTING ARRANGEMENTS

4.1 The 2012/13 audit is the first to be undertaken by Ernst and Young, 
following the outsourcing of work previously undertaken by the Audit 
Commission.  

4.2 Local Audit Commission staff transferred across to Ernst and Young, 
and although the Council’s audit team this year is made up of ex-
Audit Commission staff, they are all new to the Council.  Officers 
have been working hard with the audit team to familiarise them with 
the Council and its systems as well as understanding the ways in 
which the Ernst and Young approach differs from that adopted
previously.  This has included a significant piece of work to provide 
transactional data from the Council’s financial management system, 
Oracle Financials, for 2012/13.

4.3 The audit of the accounts is due to commence in late June 2013.  
Should any changes to draft accounts be required at the conclusion 
of their work, these will be incorporated into the final version 
presented for approval and publication in September 2013.

4.4 Auditors are expected, under professional auditing standards, to seek 
a Letter of Representation from those charged with corporate 
governance.  This letter is normally signed by the Section 151 Officer 
and the Chair of Civic Affairs.  The auditors will rely on that letter, as 
well as the audit work carried out when issuing their audit certificate.  
The wording of the letter for the 2012/13 Statement of Accounts has 
not yet been agreed with the auditors, but it is expected to include 
assurances that:

 All accounting records and other related information has been 
made available for the purposes of the audit and that all 
transactions have been properly reflected and recorded in the 
accounting records;

 There are no instances of known irregularities that have not 
been disclosed to the auditors;

Page 99



Report Page No: 4 Agenda Page No:

 There are no instances of fraud, suspected fraud or allegations 
of fraud that could have a material effect on the financial 
statements that have not been disclosed to the auditors; 

 There are no instances of non-compliance with laws or 
regulations and codes of practice, which would have a material
effect on the finances or operations of the Council;

 The Council has complied with all aspects of contractual 
arrangements and with requirements of regulatory authorities 
where non-compliance could have a material effect on the 
financial statements;

 There are no material transactions with related parties, other 
than those which have been disclosed in the accounts;

 There are no significant events after the financial year end, 
which would require an adjustment to or disclosure in the 
accounts.

These assurances can be given. 

4.5 It is anticipated that the audit of the accounts will be concluded by 
early September.  At the meeting of Civic Affairs scheduled for 19 
September 2013, members will receive a formal report of the Audit 
opinion, known as the ISA 260 report.  Members will then be asked to 
approve the Statement of Accounts.  It is intended that the final Letter 
of Representation will also be signed at that meeting and then the 
Audit Opinion can be signed and issued in advance of the 30 
September statutory deadline for publication.

4.6 The accounts and certain other related documents will be available 
for inspection by members of the public for a period of 20 working 
days starting on 6 August 2013.  Notice of the dates and times of 
availability will be published in the Cambridge News and on the 
Council’s website.  In addition, electors (or their representatives) 
have the right to question the auditors about the accounts and to 
make certain objections in relation to unlawful items of account, 
failure to bring a sum into account or a loss or deficiency caused by 
wilful misconduct.  The date set for exercise of these rights is 4 
September 2013.

4.7 The final Annual Report and Statement of Accounts, including the 
Audit Opinion, will be published on the Council’s website.  

4.8 The draft accounts are scheduled to be formally approved for issue 
by the Director of Resources on 21 June 2013.  These draft accounts 
will also be made available on the Council’s website, appropriately 
noted as being subject to audit. Any differences between the draft 

Page 100



Report Page No: 5 Agenda Page No:

accounts included with the agenda papers and those approved for 
issue will be tabled at the meeting.

5 PRESENTATION OF THE ACCOUNTS

5.1 The presentation of the statement of accounts is quite different to the 
financial reports presented to members as part of the budgetary 
control cycle, as the statutory accounts must be presented in line with 
regulation and accounting standards.  

5.2 The main statutory financial statements and notes of significance are 
summarised below:

 The Movement in Reserves Statement (page 9) allows members 
to compare the actual surplus or deficit on the General Fund, 
and the separate ring-fenced Housing Revenue Account, with 
the budget.  

 Total comprehensive income and expenditure as presented in 
the Movement in Reserves Statement is taken from the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (CIES).  The 
analysis of service income and expenditure leading to the ‘Cost 
of Services’ totals is presented in line with CIPFA’s Service 
Reporting Code of Practice (SERCOP).  

 Items presented between ‘Cost of Services’ and the ‘Surplus or 
deficit on the provision of services’ include payments to the 
housing receipts capital pool, the surplus or deficit on disposal of 
assets, income, expenditure and movements in the value of the 
Council’s investment properties and Council Tax and non-
specific government grant income.  Other comprehensive 
income and expenditure includes the movements in the 
revaluation reserve and the gains and losses on the pension 
scheme as assessed by the scheme actuary.

 Reserves, both General Fund and Housing Revenue Account, 
are an indication of the resources available to the Council to 
deliver services in the future.  Information on the level of 
reserves can be found in the Balance Sheet and related notes 
and in the Movement in Reserves Statement and related notes.

 The Balance Sheet is presented on page 12.  The bottom half of 
the balance sheet summaries the Councils reserves.  Not all 
reserves can be used to deliver services and The Code reflects 
this by reporting reserves in two groups – ‘usable’ and 

Page 101



Report Page No: 6 Agenda Page No:

‘unusable’.  Usable reserves such as the General Fund Reserve 
and earmarked reserves are those where members will be 
involved in deciding on the levels maintained and their use.  
Unusable reserves such as the Capital Adjustment Account and 
the Revaluation Reserve aren’t subject to such member 
influence.

 The accounts include a segmental reporting note (note 9).  The 
note is based on the Council’s own service management 
structures and reconciles the total performance reported to 
members, analysed by portfolio, at outturn to the results 
presented in the statement of accounts.

 The note highlights the total of transactions reflected in the CIES 
which are not reported to members as part of outturn. These 
transactions are those entries charged or credited to usable and 
unusable reserves and which therefore do not impact on the 
Council’s General Fund or Housing Revenue Account (HRA)
reserves (and hence the level of Council Tax or rents).

Examples include:

Transaction Financed By
Usable / 
Unusable 
reserve

Payments to the Housing 
Receipts Capital pool

Capital Receipts 
Reserve

Usable

Movements in the value of 
investment properties

Capital 
Adjustment 
Account

Unusable

Movements in the value of 
property, plant and equipment not 
covered by previously 
accumulated gains held for that 
asset in the Revaluation Reserve

Capital 
Adjustment 
Account

Unusable

Revenue Expenditure Funded 
from Capital Under Statute (eg 
capital grants to outside bodies)

Capital 
Adjustment 
Account

Unusable

Adjustments reflecting the 
difference between pension 
contributions paid in the year and 
the cost of providing pensions as 
estimated by the Actuary

Pensions 
Reserve

Unusable

Page 102



Report Page No: 7 Agenda Page No:

Members are updated on the level of usable reserves, such as the 
Capital Receipts Reserve and earmarked reserves, as part of the 
Medium Term Strategy and decisions on their use are made as part 
of the budget-setting process.

6 FINANCIAL RESULTS FOR 2012/13

6.1 The Council’s financial performance is summarised in the main 
financial statements.

6.2 The Movement in Reserves Statement (Page 9 of the statement of 
accounts) shows an overall increase in the Council’s usable reserves 
of £4.7 million to £60.2 million.  

6.3 There were net increases of £2.8 million in respect of the Capital 
Receipts Reserve and £3.9 million in respect of the Major Repairs 
Reserve and a reduction of £1.1 million in the Capital Grants 
Unapplied Reserve, all of which can only be used to support capital 
expenditure.  There was therefore a net reduction in other usable 
reserves of £0.9 million.

6.4 The Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (Page 11 of 
the statement of accounts) shows a net deficit on the provision of 
services (measured according to proper accounting practice) of £7.2
million, compared to £197.5 million last year.  The comparative figure 
for 2011/12 included the HRA self-financing payment to Central 
Government of £213.6 million and gains in the value of investment 
properties of £15.5 million compared to only £2.3 million in 2012/13.

6.5 The Balance Sheet shows that the Council’s overall net assets at 31 
March 2013 were £2.0 million lower than at 31 March 2012, at £491.4
million.  There were increases in the value of long term assets held 
and short term investments and cash balances, but these were offset 
by increases in the pension liability and capital grants receipts in 
advance.

7 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY AND TREATMENT

Housing Revenue Account (HRA) Self-Financing

7.1 The Code did not introduce any significant new accounting 
requirements for 2012/13.  However, there are some changes in 
accounting resulting from HRA self-financing.

Page 103



Report Page No: 8 Agenda Page No:

7.2 Self-financing arrangements were introduced from 1 April 2012.  This 
new financial regime for the funding of Council dwellings replaced the 
old annual subsidy system under which the City Council had to pay a 
significant amount of housing rent income to Central Government 
each year.  The technical accounting changes resulting from self-
financing are covered in the regulatory determinations issued by the 
Department for Communities and Local Government (CLG).

7.3 Prior to self-financing, and in line with practice for the General Fund, 
all depreciation, impairment and revaluation losses and revaluation 
and impairment loss reversals reflected in the CIES were reversed 
via a corresponding transfer from the Capital Adjustment Account to 
the Movement in Reserves so that they had no impact on usable 
HRA reserves.

7.4 The main change in 2012/13, as the regulations are currently written,
is that the charges in respect of non-dwellings fall on the HRA 
balance, as the reversal of these charges is no longer permitted.  In 
relation to non-dwelling depreciation, the impact on revenue balances 
is mirrored by an equal increase in the Major Repairs Reserve 
Balance (effectively a transfer from revenue to capital); however any 
impairment and valuation loss entries for non-dwellings (net of any 
charge to the revaluation reserve) should have a real impact on the 
level of HRA reserves.

7.5 Council officers of this and other authorities could foresee some 
potential practical technical accounting issues with these 
arrangements and contacted both CIPFA and the CLG about these in 
late 2012.  CIPFA referred the query to CLG who effectively 
responded that they could not assist.  The Council is continuing to 
engage with the Chartered Institute of Housing and the CIPFA 
Housing Panel on these issues, along with other local authorities.

7.6 As a result of the regulations, as they currently stand, a specific 
issue has arisen in the 2012/13 statement of accounts in respect of 
the accounting treatment of a number of housing properties 
earmarked for redevelopment under the Council’s ‘146 Programme’.  
During the year these properties have been transferred from those 
available to rent as they no longer meet the definition of ‘dwellings.’  
As a result of the accounting entries required under the new regime a 
net credit would theoretically be due to HRA reserves of £0.97 million
in respect of these properties. The net credit predominantly results 
from the reversal of previous losses charged to the CIES.  However, 
as the original losses were charged before self-financing 
commenced, they did not result in a real charge to HRA reserves.  

Page 104



Report Page No: 9 Agenda Page No:

Officers do not therefore believe that it is appropriate to credit HRA 
reserves in respect of reversal of a charge that those reserves did not 
bear in the first instance. Officers’ key concern is that such an 
adjustment to HRA reserves is not cash-backed and should not, 
therefore, be included within a reserve defined as ‘usable’.

7.7 In respect of these transactions Officers have therefore currently 
adopted the previous accounting treatment and reversed the net 
credit in the Movement in Reserves Statement.  This is on the basis 
that not to do so would be misleading in that it would materially 
overstate the amount of money available to the HRA to use from its 
Reserves.  The accounting policies as set out in the draft accounts 
have been revised to reflect this approach and External Audit have 
already been made aware of the issue.  Continued efforts will be 
made prior to final approval of the accounts in September 2013 to 
resolve this issue.

7.8 Members of Civic Affairs are asked to approve the current prudent 
approach taken by Officers.

Restatement of 2011/12 – HRA dwelling revaluation losses

7.9 The accounting entries in respect of the reversal of revaluation losses 
previously charged to the CIES in respect of HRA dwellings have 
been reviewed.  As a result of this review an additional net credit of 
£502,000 is required to HRA expenditure in respect of the reversal of 
gains previously credited to the Revaluation Reserve in error.  This 
restatement has no effect on the balance on the HRA as at 31 March 
2012 as previously reported.

8 SIGNIFICANT ITEMS OF NOTE IN THE 2012/13 ACCOUNTS

Icelandic Bank Deposits

8.1 The CIES reflects an increase of £64,000 in the impairment on the 
Council’s deposits in LBI hf (the previously named Landsbanki 
Islands hf) and Heritable Bank Plc.  The Council has reviewed these 
impairments in line with the latest revision to the CIPFA Local 
Authority Accounting Bulletin 82 issued in June 2013.  This bulletin 
reflects expected recoveries of between 86% and 90% (with 
calculations based on the mid-point) of claims in Heritable and 100% 
of claims in respect of LBI.  These recoveries are unchanged from 
those used in the 2011/12 accounts, but are now expected over a 
slightly longer period than before.

Page 105



Report Page No: 10 Agenda Page No:

8.2 The Council received £0.4 million from the administrators of Heritable 
during 2012/13 and £0.9 million in respect of LBI.  The estimated 
recoverable amounts for Heritable and LBI are reflected in long term 
and short term investments shown in the balance sheet, as outlined 
in Note 25 to the accounts.

Assets Held for Sale

8.3 Long Term assets held for sale at 31 March 2013 include £3.1 million 
in respect of the Council’s holding of land at Clay Farm which is to be 
disposed of for market housing.  In determining the value to be 
included in assets held for sale, the most up to date estimate 
available has been used, which is that market housing will account 
for approximately 50% of the site.  However, this proportion could 
change as detailed plans for the site are finalised and approved.

9 IMPLICATIONS

(a) Financial Implications None

(b) Staffing Implications None

(c) Equal Opportunities Implications None

(d) Environmental Implications None

(e) Procurement None

(f) Consultation and communication

As detailed in the report the draft accounts will be published on the 
Council’s website.  The Notice of Public Rights will be published in the 
Cambridge News and on the website.

(g) Community Safety

BACKGROUND PAPERS: The following are the background papers that 
were used in the preparation of this report:

Draft Statement of Accounts 2012/13

To inspect these documents contact Charity Main on extension 8152.

Page 106



Report Page No: 11 Agenda Page No:

The author of this report is Charity Main.  The contact officers for queries 
on the report are Charity Main on extension 8152 or Julia Minns on 
extension 8134.

Report file: O:\accounts\Committee Reports & Papers\Civic Affairs\June 
2013\Statement of Accounts Report to Civic Affairs June 
2013.doc

Date originated: 17 June 2013
Date of last revision: 17 June 2013

Page 107



Page 108

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ANNUAL REPORT AND

STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDING

31 MARCH 2013 

DRAFT FOR EXTERNAL AUDIT

  

APPENDIX 1

Page 109



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

!"#$ %&'()*+, #$ -.-#/-0/* &+ &(1 2*0$#,* -, 2223'-)01#%4*34&.3(5 

Page 110



 !"#$%&'() %*+) ,-./%0)
1..-!0)2(3,$*)4)5*!*("(.*),6)1//,-.*7)

89:8;:<)
)
)

)

Contents

)

Annual Report)=============================================================================================================================================)%)
)

Statement of Accounts
)

5*!*("(.*),6)2(73,.7%#%0%*%(7)==========================================================================================================================)>?)
)

1..-!0)@,?($.!./()5*!*("(.*))===================================================================================================*,)#()%.7($*(&)
)

1-&%*,$7A)2(3,$*),.)*B()1//,-.*7))================================================================================================*,)#()%.7($*(&)
)

Introduction to the Statement of Accounts)=======================================================================================):)
)

)

C!%.)D%.!./%!0)5*!*("(.*7E)
)

 ) C,?("(.*)%.)2(7($?(7)5*!*("(.*)==============================================================================)F)
)

 )  ,"3$(B(.7%?()G./,"()!.&)H>3(.&%*-$()5*!*("(.*)================================================)::)
)

 ) I!0!./()5B((*)==========================================================================================================):8)
)

 )  !7B)D0,J)5*!*("(.*)===============================================================================================):<)
)
)

Notes to the Main Financial Statements)===========================================================================================):K)
)

Additional Financial Statements and Information:
)

 ) L,-7%.')2(?(.-()1//,-.*)G./,"()!.&)H>3(.&%*-$()1//,-.*)==================================)M:)
)

 ) 5*!*("(.*),6)C,?("(.*),.)*B()L,-7%.')2(?(.-()1//,-.*)I!0!./()========================)M8)
)

 ) N,*(7)*,)*B()L,-7%.')2(?(.-()1//,-.*)===================================================================)M<)
)

 )  ,00(/*%,.)D-.&)=========================================================================================================)MO)
)

Statement of Accounting Policies and Glossary:
)

 ) 5*!*("(.*),6)1//,-.*%.')P,0%/%(7)==============================================================================)O<)
)
 ) @0,77!$+),6)D%.!./%!0)Q($"7)!.&)1##$(?%!*%,.7)========================================================)FF)

)
)
)

)
)

Page 111



Page 112



 !!"#$%&'()*+%
%
%

%
%  !!"#$%&'()*+%#!,%-+#+'.'!+%)/% 00)"!+1% %%%%%%%%2%
%

Annual Report 2012/13 

3#.4*2,5'%32+6%3)"!02$%(*)72,'1%#%82,'% *#!5'%)/%1'*720'1% +)%(')($'% +9#+% $27'% 2!:%8)*;% 2!%#!,%7212+%
3#.4*2,5'<%%

=9'%1'*720'1%(*)72,',%46%+9'%32+6%3)"!02$%2!0$",'>%%

 % ?''(2!5%+9'%1+*''+1%#!,%("4$20%)('!%1(#0'1%0$'#!<%%

 % @.(+62!5%*'/"1'%#!,%*'060$2!5%42!1<%%

 % A*)72,2!5%#%* #!5'%)/% $'21"*'% /#02$2+2'1:% 2!0$",2!5%182..2!5%())$1%#!,%0).."!2+6% 0'!+*'1:% #!,%
(*)72,2!5%'!+'*+#2!.'!+%2!%+9'%32+6B1%(#*;1%#!,%#+%+9'%3)*!%@C09#!5'<%%

 %  8#*,2!5%#%82,'%*#!5'%)/%5*#!+1%+)%1"(()*+%$)0#$%)*5#!21#+2)!1%#!,%0).."!2+6%5*)"(1<%

 % A*)72,2!5%#%82,'%*#!5'%)/%($#6%#0+272+2'1%/)*%092$,*'!%#!,%6)"!5%(')($'<%%

 % D'7'$)(2!5% #%!'8% $)0#$% ($#!% /)*%3#.4*2,5'% +)%5"2,'% ,'7'$)(.'!+% +)% EFGH:% )//'*2!5% ($#!!2!5%
#,720':%(*)5*'112!5%($#!!2!5%#(($20#+2)!1%#!,%.#;2!5%1"*'% +9#+%!'8%4"2$,2!51%#!,%#$+'*#+2)!1%
#*'%1#/'<%%

 % A*)72,2!5% 9)"12!5% #,720'% #!,% 1"(()*+:% #!,% 8)*;2!5% 82+9% (#*+!'*1% +)% .''+% (')($'1B% 9)"12!5%
!'',1<%%

 %  0+2!5%#1%$#!,$)*,%+)%)7'*%I:HFF%0)"!02$J)8!',%(*)('*+2'1<%%

 % A*)0'112!5%9)"12!5%4'!'/2+%#!,%0)"!02$%+#C%1"(()*+%#(($20#+2)!1<%%

 % K)!2+)*2!5%#!,%'!/)*02!5%/)),%#!,%,*2!;%9652'!'%1+#!,#*,1:%+)5'+9'*%82+9%+9'%0)!+*)$%)/%('1+1%
#!,%,21'#1':%!)21'%#!,%#2*%()$$"+2)!<%%

 % L20'!12!5%/)),%(*'.21'1:%1+*''+%+*#,'*1%#!,%'!+'*+#2!.'!+%7'!"'1<%%

 %  ,,*'112!5%#!+2J1)02#$%4'9#72)"*:%2!%(#*+!'*192(%82+9%+9'%A)$20'%#!,%)+9'*%#5'!02'1<%%

 % K#!#52!5%0)"!02$%*"!%0#*%(#*;1<%%

 % M*5#!212!5%#!,%.#!#52!5%'$'0+2)!1%#!,%+9'%'$'0+)*#$%*'521+'*<%%

=9'%32+6%3)"!02$%1'*7'1%#%()("$#+2)!%)/%#4)"+%HEG:NFF%*'12,'!+1%2!%#!%#$.)1+%'!+2*'$6%"*4#!%#*'#%2!%
#!% )+9'*821'%.#2!$6% *"*#$% 0)"!+6<% 3#.4*2,5'% 21% #% 1"4J*'52)!#$% 0'!+*'% 82+9% 9259% $'7'$1% )/% 2!8#*,%
+*#7'$% +)% 8)*;% #!,% /)*% 19)((2!5% #!,% $'21"*'% #0+272+2'1:% 89209% #,,1% 125!2/20#!+$6% +)% +9'% ,#6J+2.'%
()("$#+2)!<%=9'%3)"!02$%(*)72,'1%.#!6%1'*720'1%+9#+%#*'%"1',%46%(')($'%89)%$27'%)"+12,'%)/%+9'%02+6%
#1%8'$$%#1%*'12,'!+1:%89209%($#0'1%#,,2+2)!#$%(*'11"*'%)!%)"*%*'1)"*0'1<%%

=9'%02+6%21%#+%+9'%0'!+*'%)/%#%9)"12!5%5*)8+9%*'52)!:%82+9%.#!6%!'8%9).'1%($#!!',%/)*%12+'1%)!%+9'%
1)"+9'*!% #!,%!) *+9J8'1+% /*2!5'1% )/% 3#.4*2,5'<% =9'% (*)7212)!% )/% 5)),% O"#$2+6% #//)*,#4$'% #!,%
1"1+#2!#4$'% 9)"12!5% 21% #% (*2)*2+6% /)*% +9'% 3)"!02$% #!,%2 +% 9#1% 1'+% #% +#*5'+% /)*% ,'7'$)('*1% )/% PFQ%
#//)*,#4$'%9)"12!5%+)%4'%(*)72,',%)!%+9'%$#*5'*%5*)8+9%12+'1<% %

Page 113



 !!"#$%&'()*+%
%
%

%%%%%%%%%%%%% %
% ,,% %%%%%%% !!"#$%&'()*+%#!-%.+#+'/'!+%)0% 11)"!+2%
%%%%%%%%%%%%%% %%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%

What we want to achieve

3#/4*,-5'%3,+6%3)"!1,$%7#2%#%1$'#*%8,2,)!% 0)*% +7'% 0"+"*'%)0% +7'%1,+69%#%8 ,2,)!%:7,17% ,2%27#*'-%:,+7%
3#/4*,-5'%1,+,;'!2%#!-%:,+7%(#*+!'*%)*5#!,2#+,)!2<%%

Vision Statement

Cambridge - where people matter

 %  %1,+6%:7,17%1'$'4*#+'2% ,+2%-,8'*2,+69%"!,+'2% ,!% ,+2%(*,)*,+6% 0)*% +7'%-,2#-8#!+#5'-%#!-%2+*,8'2% 0)*%
27#*'-%1)//"!,+6%:'$$4',!5%

 %  %1,+6%:7)2'%1,+,;'!2% 0''$% +7'6%1#!% ,!0$"'!1'%("4$,1%-'1,2,)!%/#=,!5%#!-%#*'%'>"#$$6%=''!% +)%
("*2"'%,!-,8,-"#$%#!-%1)//"!,+6%,!,+,#+,8'2%

 %  % 1,+6%:7'*'%(')($'%4'7#8'%:,+7% 1)!2,-'*#+,)!% 0)*% )+7'*2%#!-%:7'*'%7#*/%#!-%!",2#!1'%#*'%
1)!0*)!+'-%:7'*'8'*%()22,4$'%:,+7)"+%1)!2+*#,!,!5%+7'%$,8'2%)0%#$$%

Cambridge - a good place to live, learn and work

 %  % 1,+6% :7,17% *'1)5!,2'2% #!-% /''+2% !''-2% 0)*% 7)"2,!5% )0% #$$% =,!-2% ?% 1$)2'% +)% @)42% #!-%
!',574)"*7))-%0#1,$,+,'2%

 %  %1,+6%:7,17%-*#:2%,!2(,*#+,)!%0*)/%,+2%,1)!,1%7,2+)*,1%1'!+*'%#!-%#17,'8'2%#%2'!2'%)0%($#1'%,!%#$$%
)0%,+2%(#*+2%:,+7%5'!'*)"2%"*4#!%)('!%2(#1'2%#!-%:'$$A-'2,5!'-%4",$-,!52%

 %  %1,+6%:,+7%#%+7*,8,!5%$)1#$%'1)!)/6%+7#+%4'!'0,+2%+7'%:7)$'%1)//"!,+6%#!-%4",$-2%)!%,+2%5$)4#$%
(*'A'/,!'!1'%,!%$'#*!,!5%#!-%-,21)8'*6%

 %  %1,+6%:7'*'%5'++,!5%#*)"!-%,2%(*,/#*,$6%46%("4$,1%+*#!2()*+9%4,='%#!-%)!%0))+%

Cambridge - caring for the planet

 %  %1,+6% ,!% +7'% 0)*'0*)!+%)0% $):%1#*4)!% $,8,!5%#!-%/,!,/,2,!5% ,+2% ,/(#1+%)!% +7'%'!8,*)!/'!+% 0*)/%
:#2+'%#!-%()$$"+,)!<%

Priorities

B7'%!#+,)!#$% '1)!)/,1% 2,+"#+,)!% #!-% +7'%5)8'*!/'!+C2% ($#!2% +)% +#1=$'% +7'% !#+,)!#$% -'4+%:,$$% 4'%#%
17#$$'!5'%0)*%+7'%3,+6%3)"!1,$%4'1#"2'%)8'*%+7'%!'D+%0':%6'#*2%:'%:,$$%7#8'%$'22%/)!'6%+)%2('!-<%
 2%:'%($#!%0)*%+7'%0"+"*'%)"*%#,/%:,$$%4'%+)E%%

 % (*)+'1+%2'*8,1'2%0)*%8"$!'*#4$'%,!-,8,-"#$2%#!-%1)//"!,+,'2%

 % (*)+'1+%+7'%4#2,1%2'*8,1'2%+7#+%=''(%)"*%1,+6%$))=,!5%5))-%#!-%:)*=,!5%:'$$%

 % /#='%2"*'%+7#+%:'%5'+%*,57+%+7'%+7,!52%:'%)!$6%7#8'%)!'%17#!1'%+)%5'+%*,57+%?%2"17%#2%($#!!,!5%
!':%1)//"!,+,'2<%%

%
%
%

Page 114



 !!"#$%&'()*+%
%
%

%
%  !!"#$%&'()*+%#!,%-+#+'.'!+%)/% 00)"!+1% %%222%
%

How we will achieve our vision for Cambridge

Portfolio Plans 

34'% 56'0"+27'% 21% .#,'% "(% )/% +4'% 8'#,'*% )/% +4'% 9)"!02$% #!,% 126% 56'0"+27'% 9)"!02$$)*1:% 5#04%
56'0"+27'%9)"!02$$)*%21%*'1()!12;$'%/)*%#%1('02/20%<*)"(%)/%1'*720'1=%>!)?!%#1%#%()*+/)$2)=%#!,%+4'@%
0#!% .#>'% ,'0212)!1% #;)"+% +4'% 1'*720'1% +4'@% #*'% *'1()!12;$'% /)*:% % A"*2!<% BCDBEDF% +4'% 1'7'!%
()*+/)$2)1%?'*'G%%

 %  *+1%#!,%&'0*'#+2)!%

 % 9).."!2+@%A'7'$)(.'!+%#!,%H'#$+4%

 % 9"1+).'*%-'*720'1%#!,%&'1)"*0'1%

 % 5!72*)!.'!+#$%#!,%I#1+'%-'*720'1%

 % H)"12!<%

 % J$#!!2!<%#!,%9$2.#+'%94#!<'=%#!,%%

 % -+*#+'<@:%%

5#04%56'0"+27'%9)"!02$$)*%4#1%#%($#!% +4#+%1'+1%)"+%4)?% +4'%1'*720'1% +4'@%#*'% *'1()!12;$'% /)*%?2$$%
0)!+*2;"+'%+)%+4'%#042'7'.'!+%)/%+4'%0)"!02$K1%7212)!%/)*%9#.;*2,<':%%

34'%/)$$)?2!<%(#<'1%)"+$2!'%?4#+%?'%#042'7',%)7'*%+4'%(#1+%@'#*%#1%#%*'1"$+%)/%+4'%BCDBEDF%()*+/)$2)%
($#!1=%#!,%?4#+%)"*%($#!1%#*'%/)*%BCDFEDL:%%

Arts and Recreation Portfolio Plan 

A"*2!<%BCDBEDF%?'G%%

!% M.(*)7',% #00'11% +)% #*+1=% 1()*+1% #!,% (";$20% ($#0'1% /)*% #$$% 02+@% *'12,'!+1% +4*)"<4% +4'% $'21"*'%
<*#!+1% (*)<*#..'% #!,% ;@% '!<#<2!<% ?2+4% <*)"(1% )/% (')($'% +4#+% ,)% !)+% 0"**'!+$@% "1'% +4'1'%
1'*720'1:%%

!% 9'$';*#+',%+4'%8)!,)!%BCDB%N$@.(20%#!,%J#*#$@.(20%O#.'1:%3421%2!0$",',%+4'%1+#<2!<%)/%#!%
N$@.(20% 3)*04% &'$#@% #+% J#*>'*1% J2'0'% ,"*2!<% +4'% P2<%I''>'!,% '7'!+=% ?4204% #++*#0+',% )7'*%
QC=CCC%(')($'=%2!%R"$@%#!,%+4'%#**27#$%)/%+4'%J#*#$@.(20%/$#.'%,"*2!<% "<"1+:%%

!% M.(*)7',% +4'% S"#!+2+@% #!,% S"#$2+@% )/% (*)7212)!% )/% *'0@0$2!<=% $2++'*% #!,% ,)<%?#1+'% ;2!1% )!% )"*%
)('!%1(#0'1:%%

!% T#,'%2.(*)7'.'!+1%+)%)"*%)('!%1(#0'1=%1()*+1=%*'0*'#+2)!%#!,%(";$20%#*+%(*)7212)!%+4*)"<4%#%
*#!<'%)/%(*)U'0+1%/"!,',%;@%,'7'$)('*1:%%

!% M,'!+2/2',% ?#@1% /)*% +4'% 9)"!02$% +)% (*).)+'% (";$20% #00'11% +)% (";$20% )('!%1 (#0'% !)+% ,2*'0+$@%
.#2!+#2!',%;@%+4'%92+@%9)"!02$:%

!% 51+#;$214',% #%($ #!% #!,% (*2)*2+2'1% +)% '!4#!0'% $)0#$% '!72*)!.'!+#$% S"#$2+@=% ;2),27'*12+@% #!,%
1"1+#2!#;2$2+@:%%

%
%
%
%

Page 115



 !!"#$%&'()*+%
%
%

%%%%%%%%%%%%% %
% ,-% %%%%%%% !!"#$%&'()*+%#!.%/+#+'0'!+%)1% 22)"!+3%
%%%%%%%%%%%%%% %%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%

4"*%($#!3%1)*%567897:%,!%+;'% *+3<%/()*+3%=%>"?$,2%>$#2'3%()*+1)$,)%,!2$".'@%%

 % A#**B,!C% )"+% '33'!+,#$% ,0(*)-'0'!+3% +)% +;'%A)*!%DE2;#!C'% #!.%F",$.;#$$%G#$$3% #!.%,0(*)-'%
+;',*%0#*H'+,!C%#3%(#*+%)1% +;'% 1,*3+%B'#*%)1%#% +;*''%B'#*%?"3,!'33%($#!% +)% ,!2*'#3'%+;'%!"0?'*%
#!.%+B('%)1%'-'!+3%;'$.I%

 %  J#*.,!C%#%!'J%3'-'!%B'#*%$',3"*'%0#!#C'0'!+%2)!+*#2+I%

 % /"(()*+,!C% #!.%'!2 )"*#C,!C% 0)*'% $)2#$% C*)"(3% +)% #(($B% 1)*% C*#!+3% 1*)0% +;'% A)"!2,$K3%  *'#%
A)00,++''3%1)*%3()*+3%#!.%#*+3%*'$#+'.%(*)L'2+3I%

 % 4*C#!,3,!C%#2+,-,+,'3%J,+;%(#*+!'*3%+)%2'$'?*#+'%+;'%7M6+;% !!,-'*3#*B%)1%+;'%N))+?#$$% 33)2,#+,)!%
#!.%+;'%:66+;% !!,-'*3#*B%)1%>#*H'*3%>,'2'I%

 % O'-'$)(,!C%+;'%*)$'%)1%+;'%A#0?*,.C'% *+3%P'+J)*H%+)%?'++'*%2))*.,!#+'%#!.%(*)0)+'%+;'%2,+BK3%
#*+3% #!.% 2"$+"*'% )11'*% #!.% ,0(*)-'% !'+J)*H,!C% #!.% 3"(()*+% #0)!C3+% #*+3% (*)-,.'*3% #!.%
(*#2+,+,)!'*3I%

 % >*)."2,!C%#%!'J%1,-'QB'#*%($#!%1)*%/()*+3%O'-'$)(0'!+<%4('!%/(#2'%#!.%>$#BI%

 % O'$,-'*,!C% .'-'$)('*% 2)!+*,?"+,)!Q1"!.'.% >"?$,2%  *+3% (*)L'2+3% +;#+% #*'% (*,)*,+,3'.% ?B% +;'%
A)"!2,$K3% *'#%#!.%/2*"+,!B%A)00,++''3I%

 % R!2*'#3,!C%(#*+,2,(#+,)!%?B%"!.'*Q*'(*'3'!+'.%C*)"(3%#!.%(')($'%J,+;%(*)+'2+'.%2;#*#2+'*,3+,23%
,!%#*+3<%3()*+3%#!.%#2+,-,+,'3%,!%("?$,2%($#2'3I%

 % R!2*'#3,!C%+;'%!"0?'*%)1%#$$)+0'!+%($)+3%#!.%2)00"!,+B%)*2;#*.3%,!%A#0?*,.C'I%

 % >$#!!,!C% #!.% 2))*.,!#+,!C%0"$+,Q#C'!2B% #**#!C'0'!+3% 1)*% +;'%S)"*% .'%N*#!2'@%F*#!.%O'(#*+%
+;,*.%$'C%3+#*+%1*)0%A#0?*,.C'%+)%T)!.)!I%

 % R!+*)."2,!C%#%*'-,3'.%S*''%U#!#C'0'!+%>*)+)2)$%+;#+%#$,C!3%J,+;%+;'%A)"!2,$K3% *'#%A)00,++''%
.'2,3,)!Q0#H,!C%2B2$'I%%%

Planning and Climate Change Portfolio Plan 

O"*,!C%5675978%J'@%%

 % A)!3"$+'.% )!% #% *#!C'% )1% ,33"'3% #!.% )(+,)!3% +;#+% !''.'.% +)% ?'% 2)!3,.'*'.% #3% (#*+% )1% +;'%
.'-'$)(0'!+%)1% +;'%!'J%A#0?*,.C'%T)2#$%>$#!<%J;,2;%J'*'% ,0()*+#!+% 1)*% +;'% 1"+"*'%($#!!,!C%
#!.%.'-'$)(0'!+%)1%+;'%2,+BI%%

 % V)*H'.%J,+;% +;'%A)"!+B%A)"!2,$% #!.%/)"+;%A#0?*,.C'3;,*'%O,3+*,2+%A)"!2,$% )!% +;'% *'-,'J%)1%
+;'%T)2#$%>$#!<%#!.%)+;'*%($#!!,!C%0#++'*3<%+)%'!3"*'%#%2)Q)('*#+,-'%#!.%2))*.,!#+'.%#((*)#2;%
+)%($#!!,!C%1)*%+;'%A#0?*,.C'%3"?Q*'C,)!I%%

 % R0(*)-'.%)"*%($#!!,!C%#(($,2#+,)!%('*1)*0#!2'%)!%0#L)*%($#!!,!C%#(($,2#+,)!3I%

 % F*#!+'.% ($#!!,!C% ('*0,33,)!% 1)*% +;'% W!,-'*3,+B% )1% A#0?*,.C'% P)*+;QV'3+% A#0?*,.C'%
.'-'$)(0'!+I%

Page 116



 !!"#$%&'()*+%
%
%

%
%  !!"#$%&'()*+%#!,%-+#+'.'!+%)/% 00)"!+1% %%2%
%

 % 3)..'!0',% 4)*5% )!% +6'% 78.(6% (*)9'0+% 4:+6% 0)!1"$+#+:)!% )!% +6'% /:*1+% (6#1'% )/% +6#+% (*)9'0+%
1+#*+:!;%:!%+6'%!)*+6%#*'#%)/%+6'%0:+<=%%

 % 3)!1"$+',% '>+'!1:2'$<% #?)"+% $)0#$% (*:)*:+:'1% /)*% +6'% "1'% )/% ,'2'$)('*% 0)!+*:?"+:)!1% 06#!!'$$',%
+6*)";6% )"*%  *'#% 3)..:++''1% #!,%: ,'!+:/:',% @A% :!:+:#$% (*:)*:+<% (*)9'0+1B% #.)"!+:!;% +)% )2'*%
CDD8B888B%+)%.''+%$)0#$%!'',1=%%%

E"*%($#!1%/)*%78@FG@H%:!%+6'%I$#!!:!;%#!,%3$:.#+'%36#!;'%()*+/)$:)%:!0$",'J%%

 % 3)!1"$+:!;%)!%+6'%1"?.:11:)!%1+#;'1%)/%+6'%!'4%$)0#$%($#!%#!,%+6'%5'<%1+#;'1%)/%)"*%#((*)#06%
+)%+6'%3).."!:+<%K!/*#1+*"0+"*'%L'2<%#!,%1"?.:++:!;%+6'%!'4%$)0#$%($#!%/)*%'>#.:!#+:)!%?<%+6'%
-'0*'+#*<%)/%-+#+'=%

 % M#5:!;% #%$ '#,% *)$'% "!,'*% +6'% ,"+<% +)% 0)N)('*#+'% :!% +6'% ,'$:2'*<% )/% +6'% '.'*;:!;% 1+*#+';:0%
($#!!:!;% /"!0+:)!% #+% +6'% 1"?N*';:)!#$% $'2'$% #!,% :!% +6'% )!N;):!;% 4)*5:!;% #**#!;'.'!+1% )/% +6'%
L)0#$%O!+'*(*:1'%I#*+!'*16:(=%

 % P)*5:!;%9):!+$<%4:+6%-)"+6%3#.?*:,;'16:*'%Q:1+*:0+%3)"!0:$%#!,%3#.?*:,;'16:*'%3)"!+<%3)"!0:$%
)!%+6'%*'2:'4%)/%$)0#$%($#!1%#!,%3)"!+<%M*#!1()*+%-+*#+';<=%

 % Q'$:2'*:!;%)"*%)!N;):!;%1+#+"+)*<%($#!!:!;%/"!0+:)!%#!,%;*)4+6%0)..:+.'!+1%:!%#00)*,#!0'%4:+6%
+6'%(*'1'!+%$)0#$%($#!%R788AS%+)%#;*'',%+:.'%#!,%T"#$:+<%)/%)"+0).'1=%

 % K.($'.'!+:!;% (*:!0:($'1% )/% +6'% L)0#$:1.% #;'!,#% *'$#+:!;% +)% 0).."!:+<% '!;#;'.'!+% :!% +6'%
,'2'$)(.'!+%($#!%(*)0'11%#!,%!':;6?)"*6)),%($#!!:!;%*'1()!1:?:$:+:'1=%

 % U"*+6'*%:.(*)2:!;%+6'%('*/)*.#!0'%#!,%'//:0:'!0<%)/%)"*%($#!!:!;%1'*2:0'B%'1('0:#$$<%:!%+6'%#*'#%
)/%($#!!:!;%#(($:0#+:)!%(*)0'11:!;=%

 % P)*5:!;%0$)1'$<%4:+6%,'2'$)('*1%#!,%)+6'*%1+#5'6)$,'*1%+)%'!1"*'%+6#+%!'4%,'2'$)(.'!+1%#*'%
)/% #% 6:;6% ,'1:;!% T"#$:+<% #!,%'!2 :*)!.'!+#$$<% 1"1+#:!#?$'% #!,% 0)!+*:?"+'% ()1:+:2'$<% +)% +6'%
06#*#0+'*%)/%+6'%?":$+%#!,%;*''!%1(#0'%)/%+6'%0:+<=%

 % 3)!+:!":!;%+)%1'0"*'%/"!,:!;%/)*%#%*#!;'%)/%("?$:0%#*+%(*)9'0+1%#0*)11%+6'%0:+<=%

 %  ,)(+:!;% #% +*''% 1+*#+';<B% :!% 0)!1"$+#+:)!% 4:+6% 5'<% 1+#5'6)$,'*1B% +6#+% 1'+1% )"+% +6'% 0)"!0:$V1%
)2'*#*06:!;% ()$:0<% /)*% +6'% +*''1% 4:+6:!% +6'% 0:+<% #!,% 6)4% +6'<% 4:$$% ?'% (*'1'*2',% /)*% /"+"*'%
;'!'*#+:)!1=%

 % W#5:!;%)"*%($#!!:!;%'!/)*0'.'!+%/"!0+:)!%.)*'%*'1()!1:2'%#!,%2:1:?$'%:!%+6'%0:+<=%

 % Q'$:2'*:!;%#%*',"0+:)!%:!%0#*?)!%'.:11:)!1%/*).%)"*%'1+#+'%#!,%)('*#+:)!1=%

 % M#5:!;%/)*4#*,%#%9):!+%(*);*#..'%4:+6%(#*+!'*%$)0#$%#"+6)*:+:'1%+)%,'$:2'*%#%X*''!%Q'#$%.),'$%
/)*%3#.?*:,;'16:*'=%

 % O>($)*:!;%4:+6%(#*+!'*1%:!%+6'%3#.?*:,;'%&'+*)/:+%(*)9'0+%#%$)!;N+'*.%#((*)#06%/)*%/:!#!0:!;%#!,%
,'$:2'*:!;%'!'*;<%'//:0:'!0<%:.(*)2'.'!+1%+)%'>:1+:!;%(*)('*+:'1%:!%3#.?*:,;'=%

 % P)*5:!;% 4:+6% (#*+!'*1% )*;#!:1#+:)!1B% :!0$",:!;% +6'% "!:2'*1:+:'1% :!% 3#.?*:,;'% #!,% +6'% (*:2#+'%
1'0+)*%+)%,'2'$)(%)(+:)!1%/)*%#%0)..'*0:#$$<%2:#?$'%,:1+*:0+%6'#+:!;%106'.'=%

Page 117



 !!"#$%&'()*+%
%
%

%%%%%%%%%%%%% %
% ,-% %%%%%%% !!"#$%&'()*+%#!.%/+#+'0'!+%)1% 22)"!+3%
%%%%%%%%%%%%%% %%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%

 % 4'$-,'*-!5%!'6%+*#!3()*+%0'#3"*'3%#!.%#2+-)!3%+)%-0(*),'%1#2-$-+-'3%1)*%('.'3+*-#!37%282$-3+3%#!.%
("9$-2%+*#!3()*+%"3'*37%-!2$".-!5%-!%+:'%!'6%.','$)(0'!+3%-!%+:'%2-+8;%

 % <)!+*-9"+-!5% +)% +:'% *',-'6% )1% #*'#% +*#!3()*+% ($#!3% #!.%(* )()3'.% (*)='2+3% 1)*% -!,'3+0'!+7%
3"(()*+-!5%+:'%$)2#$%(*)2'33%1)*%9-..-!5%1)*%!'6%#!.%-0($'0'!+-!5%*'$',#!+%1"!.-!5%3)"*2'3;%

 % >"++-!5% -!%($#2'%6-+:%)"*%(#*+!'*37%3"9='2+% +)% +:'%)"+2)0'%)1%2)!3"$+#+-)!37%#..-+-)!#$%!'6%?@%
0(:%A)!'3%#2*)33%+:'%2-+8;%

 % <#**8%)"+%#%("9$-2%2)!3"$+#+-)!%'B'*2-3'%)!%+:'%(*'1'**'.%)(+-)!3%1)*%+:'%*'.','$)(0'!+%)1% +:'%
>#*C%/+*''+%2#*%(#*C%3-+'%#!.%#!%#2+-)!%($#!;%

 % 4'$-,'*-!5%#..-+-)!#$%282$'%(#*C-!5%($#2'3%-!%#22)*.#!2'%6-+:%)"*%282$'%(#*C-!5%(*)='2+;%%%%%%

Community Development and Health Portfolio Plan

4"*-!5%?@D?EDF%6'G%%

 % >*),-.'.%$)2#$%*'3-.'!+3%6-+:%0)*'%)(()*+"!-+-'3%+)%-!1$"'!2'%.'2-3-)!3%#9)"+%+:'-*%$)2#$%#*'#%98%
"3-!5%+:'%$'#*!-!5%1*)0%+:'%H)*+:% *'#%<)00-++''%(-$)+%+)%3"(()*+%#*'#%6)*C-!5%#2*)33%+:'%2-+8I3%
)+:'*%+:*''%#*'#3;%%

 % &',-'6'.% :)6% +:'% <-+8% <)"!2-$I3% 2)00"!-+8% 1#2-$-+-'3% 6'*'% 0#!#5'.7% +#C-!5% #22)"!+% )1%
(*)()3'.%1#2-$-+-'3%-!%+:'%5*)6+:%3-+'3%#!.%+:'%)(()*+"!-+-'3%(*'3'!+'.%-!%+:'%J)2#$-30%K-$$;%%

 % L)*C'.% 6-+:% +:'% MN< % #!.% 8)"!5% (')($'% +)% 'B($)*'% .-11'*'!+% )(+-)!3% 1)*% (*),-.-!5% #% !'6%
1#2-$-+8%1)*%8)"!5%(')($'%-!%+:'%2'!+*'%)1%<#09*-.5';%%

 % <)!+-!"'.% +)% 3"(()*+% +:'% -!+'5*#+-)!% )1% !'6% 2)00"!-+-'3% 6-+:% 'B-3+-!5% *'3-.'!+3% +:*)"5:% +:'%
(*),-3-)!%)1%2)00"!-+8%#2+-,-+-'3;%%

 % L)*C'.% 6-+:% (#*+!'*3% +)% 0#C'% 3-5!-1-2#!+% (*)5*'33% +)6#*.3% .'$-,'*-!5% !'6% 2)00"!-+8%
-!1*#3+*"2+"*'%-!%+:'%H)*+:%L'3+%#!.%/)"+:'*!%1*-!5'3%)1%<#09*-.5'7%-!2$".-!5%+:'%O*"0(-!5+)!%
N'#.)63%>*-0#*8%/2:))$%#!.%+:'%!'6%0"$+-P"3'%2)00"!-+8%1#2-$-+8%#+%<$#8%Q#*0;%%

 % /'+%"(%#!.%3"(()*+'.%#%J)2#$%R'#$+:%>#*+!'*3:-(%+)%-0(*),'%("9$-2%:'#$+:%-!%<#09*-.5';%%

 % 4','$)('.% #% 0).'$% )1% &'3+)*#+-,'% S"3+-2'% 1)2"3-!5% )!% +:'% !''.3% )1% ,-2+-037% '!2)"*#5-!5%
)11'!.'*3%+)%+#C'%*'3()!3-9-$-+8%1)*%+:'-*%#2+-)!3%#!.%+)%*'(#-*%+:'%:#*0%+:'8I,'%.)!'7%-!%)*.'*%+)%
*'."2'%*'P)11'!.-!57%#!+-P3)2-#$%9':#,-)"*%#!.%$)6P$','$%2*-0'%-!%<#09*-.5';%%

 % L)*C'.%6-+:% )"*% (#*+!'*3% +)% *'."2'% +:'% (*'3'!2'% )1% 3+*''+% .*-!C'*3% #!.% +:'% #33)2-#+'.% #!+-P
3)2-#$%9':#,-)"*;%%

 % <)!+-!"'.% +)% 3"(()*+% ','!+3% #!.% (*)5*#00'3% +)% 2'$'9*#+'% .-,'*3-+87% 3"2:% #3% K$#2C% R-3+)*8%
N)!+:7%<#09*-.5'%<'$'9*#+'3% 5'7%4-3#9-$-+8%R-3+)*8%N)!+:7%T!+'*PQ#-+:%L''C7%&'1"5''%L''C7%
JUKO%R-3+)*8%N)!+:7%R)$)2#"3+%N'0)*-#$%4#8%#!.%T!+'*!#+-)!#$%L)0'!I3%4#8;%%

 % <)!+-!"'.%+)%(*)0)+'%#!.%0#!#5'%5*#!+%1"!.-!5%3)% +:#+%,)$"!+#*8%5*)"(3%#*'%#9$'%+)%#22'33%
5*#!+% #-.% #!.% )+:'*% 3"(()*+% +)% :'$(% +:'0% 9"-$.% +:'-*% C!)6$'.5'7% 3C-$$3% #!.% 2)!1-.'!2'% #3%
(#*+!'*3%6-+:%+:'%<-+8%<)"!2-$%#!.%3"3+#-!%,-9*#!+%$)2#$-+-'3%#!.%!'-5:9)"*:)).3;%

Page 118



 !!"#$%&'()*+%
%
%

%
%  !!"#$%&'()*+%#!,%-+#+'.'!+%)/% 00)"!+1% %%233%
%

 % 4)*5',%63+7%+7'%83+9:1%+6)%8*',3+%;!3)!1%+)%7'$(%+7'.%/3!,%#,,3+3)!#$%2)$"!+''*1%#!,%+)%(*).)+'%
+7'3*%1'*230'1% +)%8#.<*3,='%*'13,'!+1% 3!%)*,'*%+)%,'+'*%+7'%"1'%)/%73=7% 3!+'*'1+%(#9%,#9% $)#!1%
#!,%$)#!1%/*).%$)#!%17#*51>%%

 % ?*),"0',%#%@"13!'11%?$#!% +)%,'$32'*% +7'% /3!,3!=1% /*).%)"*% *'23'6%)/%)"*%873$,*'!%#!,%A)"!=%
?')($':1%?#*+303(#+3)!%-'*230'%B87A(?-C%1)%+7#+%+7'%1'*230'%/)0"1'1%)!%)('!%#00'11%($#9%/)*%DE
FG%9'#*%)$,1H% +#5'1%#%.)*'%'!+*'(*'!'"*3#$%#((*)#07H%.#5'1% +7'%<'1+%"1'%)/% +7'%153$$1%)/% +7'%
1+#//H%"1'1%2)$"!+''*1%+)%3!0*'#1'%0#(#03+9%#!,%='!'*#+'1%3!0).'>%%

I"*%($#!1%/)*%JKFGLFM%3!0$",'N%%

 % O'$32'*3!=%+7'%/3*1+%9'#*%)/%)"*%($#!%/)*%)"*%873$,*'!%#!,%A)"!=%?')($':1%?#*+303(#+3)!%-'*230'%
B87A(?-CH%#073'23!=%)"*%3!0).'%+#*='+%)/%PGK5%#!,%0#**93!=%)"+%#%*'23'6%)/%7)6%+7'%/3*1+%9'#*%
6'!+>%

 % O'$32'*3!=% )"*% ($#!% /)*% +7'% /"+"*'%.#!#='.'!+% )/% +7'% 8)"!03$:1% 0).."!3+9% /#03$3+3'1% +7#+% 63$$%
,'$32'*% 1#23!=1% )/% PGQ5% 3!% JKFGLFM% 673$1+% (*)+'0+3!=% +7'.% 3!% +7'% $)!=E+'*.% /)*% 8#.<*3,='%
*'13,'!+1%#!,%+#5'%3!+)%#00)"!+%+7'%$)0#$31.%#='!,#%#!,%/"+"*'%(*'11"*'1%)!%("<$30%1('!,3!=>%

 % 8)!+3!"3!=%+)%(*).)+'%#!,%.#!#='%#%0).(*'7'!132'%=*#!+1%(*)=*#..'%+7#+%1"(()*+1%+7'%03+9:1%
0).."!3+9%#!,%2)$"!+#*9%1'0+)*>%

 % O'2'$)(3!=% )"*% 0)..'.)*#+3)!1% 1'*230'% +)% 'R+'!,% 07)30'1% +)% +7'% <'*'#2',% #!,%.#53!=% +7'%
1'*230'%)('*#+'%.)*'%'//303'!+$9>%

 % -+*'!=+7'!3!=% )"*% 0).."!3+9% '!=#='.'!+%6)*5% #0*)11% +7'% 1)"+7'*!% /*3!='% =*)6+7% 13+'1% #!,%
'1+#<$3173!=%!'6%0).."!3+9%'!=#='.'!+%1+*"0+"*'1%#0*)11% +7'%!)*+7E6'1+%8#.<*3,='%=*)6+7%
13+'1>%

 % S!2)$23!=% 1+#5'7)$,'*1%#!,% *'13,'!+1% 3!% +7'%,'13=!%#!,% /"+"*'%.#!#='.'!+%#**#!='.'!+1% /)*%
!'6%0).."!3+9%/#03$3+3'1%#+%8$#9%T#*.H%+7'%;!32'*13+9%13+'%#!,%US @F%#!,%(#*+303(#+3!=%#0+32'$9%
63+7%(#*+!'*1%+)%)('!%!'6%/#03$3+3'1%#+%V*".(3!=+)!%W'#,)61>%

 % X!1"*3!=%+7#+%+7'%8#.<*3,='%Y)0#$%Z'#$+7%?#*+!'*173(%1'+1%(*3)*3+3'1%/)*%$)0#$%("<$30%7'#$+7%6)*5%
+7#+%#$3=!%+)%$)0#$%!'',%#!,%+7'%8#.<*3,='173*'%Z'#$+7%#!,%4'$$E<'3!=%-+*#+'=9>%

 % S.($'.'!+3!=% ($#!1% /)*% "$+*#E/#1+% <*)#,<#!,% 0)2'*#='% 63+73!% +7'% 03+9% #*'#H% #1% #% (#*+% )/% +7'%
[8)!!'0+3!=%8#.<*3,='173*'\%3!3+3#+32'H%1"<]'0+%+)%1"00'11/"$%<3,1%/)*%=)2'*!.'!+%/"!,3!=>%%

Customer Services and Resources Portfolio Plan 

O"*3!=%JKFJLFG%6'N%%

 % 4)*5',%63+7%(#*+!'*%)*=#!31#+3)!1%+)%#=*''%#%0)..)!%#((*)#07%+)%+7'%.#!#='.'!+%)/%("<$30%
1'0+)*% )6!',% (*)('*+9% #11'+1H% +)% ,'$32'*% +7'% .#R3.".% ()113<$'% <'!'/3+% +)% +7'% 03+3^'!1% )/%
8#.<*3,='>%

 % -+*)2'%+)%.#5'%)(+3.".%"1'%)/%+7'%8)"!03$:1%#00)..),#+3)!H%(*)23,3!=%1"(()*+%+)%'!#<$'%)"*%
1+#//%+)%6)*5%1.#*+'*%#!,%.)*'%/$'R3<$9>%%

 % I<+#3!',%=*'#+'*%2#$"'%/)*%.)!'9%/*).%+7'%8)"!03$:1%1('!,3!=%)!%(*)0"*'.'!+>%%

Page 119



 !!"#$%&'()*+%
%
%

%%%%%%%%%%%%% %
% ,---% %%%%%%% !!"#$%&'()*+%#!.%/+#+'0'!+%)1% 22)"!+3%
%%%%%%%%%%%%%% %%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%

 % 4!3"*'.% +5#+% +5'% 6),'*!0'!+73% 8'$1#*'% *'1)*03% 8'*'% '11-2-'!+$9% #!.%' 11'2+-,'$9% -0($'0'!+'.%
$)2#$$9:% -!2$".-!6%2)!3"$+#+-)!%#;)"+%#!.% -0($'0'!+#+-)!%)1%#%!'8%<)2#$%=)"!2-$%>#?%/25'0'%
+5#+% (*)+'2+'.% +5'% 0)3+% ,"$!'*#;$'% -!% +5'% 2-+9:% 8-+5% #2+-)!% ;'-!6% +#@'!% +)% 0-+-6#+'% 5#*.35-(%
85'*'%()33-;$'A%%

 % B*'(#*'.% 1)*% +5'% *'+'!+-)!%)1% $)2#$%;"3-!'33% *#+'3%#3%(#*+%)1% +5'%<)2#$%C),'*!0'!+%&'3)"*2'%
&',-'8A%%

 % =)!+-!"'.% +)% '?($)*'% 5)8% 8'% #3% #!%)* 6#!-3#+-)!:% #!.% 8-+5% )"*% (#*+!'*3:% 2#!% (*),-.'% 0)*'%
D)-!'.E"(%2"3+)0'*%3'*,-2'3A%%

 % F','$)('.% #!.%2 )!3"$+'.% )!% #% ;"3-!'33% ($#!% +)% 3"(()*+% +5'% .','$)(0'!+% )1% #% ;-.% 1)*% #%
G"3-!'33% H0(*),'0'!+% F-3+*-2+% 8-+5-!% =#0;*-.6':% -!% )*.'*% +)% '!#;$'% +5'% -!,)$,'0'!+% #!.%
#((*)(*-#+'%1-!#!2-#$%-!("+%1*)0%+5'%2-+973%;"3-!'33%2)00"!-+9%+)%+5'%1"+"*'%.','$)(0'!+%)1%+5'%
2-+9A%%%

I"*%($#!3%1)*%JKLMNLO%-!2$".'P%%

 % H!+'6*#+-!6%+5'%=)"!2-$73%-!1)*0#+-)!%393+'03%'11'2+-,'$9%#!.%3-0($-19-!6%)"*%-!+'*!#$%(*)2'33'3%
#!.%.'$'6#+-)!3%+)%-0(*),'%)"*%'11-2-'!29A%

 % I;+#-!-!6%6*'#+'*%,#$"'%1)*%0)!'9%1*)0%+5'%=)"!2-$73%3('!.-!6%)!%(*)2"*'0'!+A%

 % H.'!+-19-!6% 1"*+5'*% )(()*+"!-+-'3% +)% 8)*@% -!% 2)$$#;)*#+-)!:% )*% 35#*'% 3'*,-2'3% 8-+5% )+5'*% (";$-2%
3'2+)*%)*6#!-3#+-)!3:%-!%)*.'*%+)%2*'#+'%'11-2-'!2-'3%)*%-0(*),'%)"*%*'3-$-'!2'A%

 % F','$)(-!6%#%0)*'%2)00'*2-#$%#((*)#25%1)*%)"*%+)"*-30%3'*,-2'%#!.%-.'!+-19-!6%#%3"3+#-!#;$'%
0).'$%)1%+)"*-30%+5#+%-3%$'33%*'$-#!+%)!%+5'%=)"!2-$A%

 %  6*''-!6%#%3+*#+'69%1)*%+5'%)(+-0"0%"3'%)1%+5'%=)"!2-$73%#22)00).#+-)!%1)*%+5'%('*-).%JKLM%+)%
JKLQ%+5#+%#$3)%3"(()*+3%)"*%=IJ%*'."2+-)!%+#*6'+3A%

 % F','$)(-!6%#%($#!!'.%0#-!+'!#!2'%(*)6*#00'% 1)*% +5'%=)"!2-$73%#.0-!-3+*#+-,'%;"-$.-!63% +5#+%
*'."2'3%+5'%=)"!2-$73%*"!!-!6%2)3+3%#!.%$','$%)1%=IJ%'0-33-)!3A%

 % 4!#;$-!6% 0)*'% 3+#11% +)% 8)*@% 0)*'% '11'2+-,'$9% #!.% 1$'?-;$9:% #!.% +5'*'1)*'% 0)*'% '11-2-'!+$9:% ;9%
(*),-.-!6%#((*)(*-#+'%3"(()*+%-!%+'*03%)1%;"-$.-!63:%+'25!)$)69%#!.%8)*@-!6%(*#2+-2'3A%

 % R#?-0-3-!6% +5'%2)00'*2-#$% *'+"*!% 1*)0% +5'%.','$)(0'!+%)1%6*)8+5%3-+'3%)!% +5'%3)"+5'*!%#!.%
!)*+5E'#3+'*!% 1*-!6'3% )1% +5'% 2-+9:% 3";D'2+% +)% +5'% =)"!2-$73% )+5'*% );D'2+-,'3% 1)*% +5'3'%
.','$)(0'!+3A%

 % S!.'*+#@-!6%1)2"3'.%8)*@%+)%-0(*),'%'$'2+)*#$%*'6-3+*#+-)!%*#+'3%-!%+5'%=#0;*-.6'%=-+9%'$'2+)*#$%
#*'#%#!.%0#@'%(*'(#*#+-)!3%1)*%+5'%-0($'0'!+#+-)!%)1%H!.-,-."#$%4$'2+)*#$%&'6-3+*#+-)!A%

 % /"(()*+-!6%+5'%!'8%G"3-!'33%H0(*),'0'!+%F-3+*-2+%+)%.'$-,'*%+5'%(*)D'2+3%3'+%)"+%-!%-+3%G"3-!'33%
B*)()3#$A%

 % H0($'0'!+-!6% )"*% <)2#$% =)"!2-$% >#?% 325'0'% #3% (#*+% )1% +5'% 6),'*!0'!+73% 8'$1#*'% *'1)*03:%
'!3"*-!6%+5#+%+5'%0)3+%,"$!'*#;$'%-!%+5'%2-+9%#*'%3"(()*+'.A%

Page 120



 !!"#$%&'()*+%
%
%

%
%  !!"#$%&'()*+%#!,%-+#+'.'!+%)/% 00)"!+1% %%23%
%

 % 4*'(#*2!5% +6'% 7)"!02$81% )9!% 1:1+'.1% #!,% $2#212!5% 92+6% (#*+!'*1;% 1"06% #1% +6'% <'(#*+.'!+% )/%
=)*>%#!,%4'!12)!1;%/)*%+6'%/"+"*'%2.($'.'!+#+2)!%)/%9'$/#*'%*'/)*.1?%%

Environment and Waste Portfolio Plan 

<"*2!5%@AB@CBD%9'E%%

 % F))>%1+'(1%+)%2!0*'#1'%*'0:0$2!5%2!%7#.G*2,5';%G:%(*)H2,2!5%0"1+).'*1%92+6%.)*'%!'9%/#02$2+2'1%
/)*%I*'0:0$2!5%)!%+6'%5)8;%'!0)"*#52!5%+6'%*'0:0$2!5%)/%(#*+20"$#*%.#+'*2#$1%+6#+%#*'!8+%0)!121+'!+$:%
*'0:0$',%G:%*'12,'!+1%#0*)11%+6'%02+:%#!,%G:%+#*5'+2!5%(#*+20"$#*%5*)"(1?%

 % J!0*'#1',%+6'%*#!5'%)/%.#+'*2#$1%2+%21%()112G$'%+)%*'0:0$'%2!%+6'%G$"'%G2!%G:%#,,2!5%($#1+20%()+1;%
+"G1%#!,%+*#:1%+)%+6'%.23?%

 % J!+*),"0',% 1.#$$% =#1+'% K$'0+*20#$% #!,% K$'0+*)!20% KL"2(.'!+% G#!>1% +)% M% G*2!5% G#!>1% 12+'1%
#0*)11%+6'%02+:%$)0#+',%2!%1"('*.#*>'+%0#*%(#*>1?%

 % N)9%6#H'%BDM%&'0:0$2!5%76#.(2)!1%#0*)11%+6'%02+:?%%76#.(2)!1%#++'!,%$)0#$%'H'!+1%+)%(*)H2,'%
2!/)*.#+2)!%#!,%0).."!20#+'%92+6%*'12,'!+1%#G)"+%#!:%G#**2'*1%+6':%.#:%6#H'%+)%*'0:0$2!5?%

 % J!0*'#1',% +6'% !".G'*% )/% 0)..'*02#$% 0"1+).'*1% 92+6% *'0:0$2!5% 1'*H20'1% #!,% +621% 21%
,'.)!1+*#+',%G:%*'1"$+1%+6#+%16)9%#!%2!0*'#1'%/*).%@BO%+)%@PO%*'0:0$2!5?%

 % K3($)*',% 6)9% 9'% 0)"$,% G'++'*% 9)*>% 92+6% (#*+!'*1% +)% 2.(*)H'% +6'% '//202'!0:% )/% )"*% 9#1+'%
1'*H20'1?%%

 %  ,,*'11',% +6'% 2.(#0+% +6#+% '30'112H'% !)21'% 6#1% )!% *'12,'!+1;% G:% .#((2!5% !)21'% 0).($#2!+1%
#0*)11%7#.G*2,5';%',"0#+2!5%0).."!2+2'1%#!,%'!/)*02!5%06#!5'%96'!%!'0'11#*:?% ++'!,#!0'%
#+%1+",'!+%'H'!+1%+)%*#21'%#9#*'!'11%)/%!)21'%!"21#!0'%#!,% 2.(#0+% +)%+6'2*%!'256G)"*1% 2!% +6'%
72+:?%

 % 7)!+*2G"+',%+)%2.(*)H'.'!+1%2!%+6'%6'#$+6%)/%7#.G*2,5'%*'12,'!+1%G:%9)*>2!5%92+6%)"*%(#*+!'*1%
+)% 2.($'.'!+%!'9%("G$20%6'#$+6%#**#!5'.'!+1;%#!,%G:%9)*>2!5% +)%*',"0'%+6'%6'#$+6% 2.(#0+%)/%
#$0)6)$% #!,% +6'% !256+Q+2.'% '0)!).:? F6'% (#*+!'*162(% (*)H2,',% R41% 92+6% #% 0$'#*% #!,% 12.($'%
12!5$'%()2!+%)/%0)!+#0+%+)%96206%+6':%0#!%*'()*+%6'#$+6%211"'1%0#"1',%G:%6)"12!5%92+6)"+%6#H2!5%
+)%2,'!+2/:%+6'%!#+"*'%)/%+'!"*'?%

 % 4$#!!',% /)*% +6'% 2!+*),"0+2)!% )/% !'9% $20'!12!5% $'521$#+2)!% #!,% 9)*>2!5% 92+6% +6'% S"12!'11%
J.(*)H'.'!+%<21+*20+%92$$%*'1"$+%2!%0$'#!'*;%1#/'*%1+*''+1%2!%+6'%02+:%0'!+*'?%%

 % T#,'%2+%'#12'*%/)*%(')($'%+)%*'()*+%$2++'*;%5*#//2+2%#!,%/$:%+2((2!5%)!$2!'%#!,%G:%+'3+?%%

 % =)*>',% 92+6% +6'% 7)"!+:% 7)"!02$% +)% 2.(*)H'% #2*% L"#$2+:% #!,% *',"0'% '.2112)!1;% G:% )G+#2!2!5%
'.2112)!% 2.(*)H'.'!+1% /*).% ("G$20% +*#!1()*+% H'620$'1% #!,%G: % (*).)+2!5% #$+'*!#+2H'1% +)% +6'%
(*2H#+'% 0#*?% N'9% U"#$2+:% S"1% 4#*+!'*162(% (*),"0',% 92+6% 1+*)!5'*% ()9'*1% +)% '30$",'% !)!Q
0).($2#!+%H'620$'1%/*).%+6'%0)*'%#*'#?%

 % -'+%#%1+#!,#*,%/)*%'.2112)!1%2!%+#321%#!,%.)H',%+)9#*,1%'!1"*2!5%+6'%+#32%/$''+%92$$%.''+%K"*)%
VCM%1+#!,#*,%G:%@ABV?%

 % J.($'.'!+',%+6'%N#+2)!#$%W)),%X:52'!'%&#+2!5%-06'.'?%

Page 121



 !!"#$%&'()*+%
%
%

%%%%%%%%%%%%% %
% ,% %%%%%%% !!"#$%&'()*+%#!-%.+#+'/'!+%)0% 11)"!+2%
%%%%%%%%%%%%%% %%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%

 % 3'*'%#4#*-'-%#%5*#!+%)0%6789888%0*)/%:;<& %0)*%#%(*)='1+%+)%>?*'%'@"?(/'!+%#!-%?+2%)('*#+)*2%
+)%/)!?+)*%*'#$A+?/'%+#?$A(?('%'/?22?)!2B%

C"*%($#!2%0)*%D8EFGEH%?!1$"-'I%%

 % J"++?!5%?!%($#1'%#%(*)5*#//'%)0%#1+?K?+?'2%+)%?!1*'#2'%+>'%(*)()*+?)!%)0%4#2+'%+>#+%?2%*'1L1$'-%?!%
+>'%1?+LB%

 % C00'*?!5% M"2?!'22'2% ?!1'!+?K'2% +)% "2'% )"*% *'1L1$?!5% 2'*K?1'2% +)% ?!1*'#2'% +>'% (*)()*+?)!% )0%
1)//'*1?#$%4#2+'%*'1L1$'-B%

 % ."11'220"$$L%!'5)+?#+?!5%#%2('1?0?1#+?)!%0)*%#%=)?!+%N#+'*?#$2%&'1L1$?!5%<#1?$?+L%1)!+*#1+B%

 % :'$?K'*?!5% #% (*)5*#//'% )0% =)?!+% (*)='1+2% 4?+>% (#*+!'*2% ?!% +>'% &;O J%  -K#!1'-% 3#2+'%
J#*+!'*2>?(B%

 %  5*''?!5% #%1 *)22AM)*-'*% *'0"2'% #!-% *'1L1$?!5% 1)$$'1+?)!% #**#!5'/'!+% 4?+>% .)"+>%
O#/M*?-5'2>?*'% :?2+*?1+% O)"!1?$% +)% /''+% +>'% !''-2% )0% )"*% !'4% -'K'$)(/'!+2% +>#+% 2+*#--$'%
M)"!-#*?'2B%

 % P!1*'#2?!5%+>'%!"/M'*%)0%2+*''+%#!-%*'1L1$?!5%M?!2%#!-%-)5%$?++'*%M?!2%?!%+>'%1?+LB%

 % 3)*Q?!5%4?+>% +>'%J)$?1'%#!-%JO.C2% +)% +#Q'%'!0)*1'/'!+%#1+?)!%#5#?!2+%-)5%0)"$?!5% 0)$$)4?!5%
+>'%?!+*)-"1+?)!%)0%-)5%1)!+*)$%)*-'*2B%

 % P!+*)-"1?!5%#%*#(?-%*'2()!2'%+'#/%+)%*'2()!-%+)%'!K?*)!/'!+#$%'/'*5'!1?'2%)"+2?-'%)0%+>'%1?+L%
1'!+*'B%

 % O)!+?!"?!5% *'0"*M?2>/'!+% )0% )"*% ("M$?1% +)?$'+2% #!-%$ ))Q?!5% #+% )(()*+"!?+?'2% 0)*% (*)K?-?!5%
1)//"!?+L%+)?$'+2B%

 % O)/($'+?!5% +>'% RO#/M*?-5'% &'#$% ;/?22?)!2S% (*)='1+% 4?+>% )"*% (#*+!'*2% +)% (*)K?-'% -'+#?$'-%
'K?-'!1'%)0%#?*%@"#$?+L%?/(#1+2%)0%1?+L%1'!+*'%+*#!2()*+%)(+?)!2B%

 % P!2+#$$?!5%?!A1#M%+'1>!)$)5L%+)%)"*%*'0"2'%+*"1Q2%+)%?/(*)K'%2'*K?1'2%+)%)"*%1"2+)/'*2B%

Housing Portfolio Plan

:"*?!5%D8EDGEF%4'I%%

 % P!K'2+'-% ?!% )"*% ',?2+?!5% >)"2?!5% 2+)1Q% #!-% 2+#*+'-% +)% -'$?K'*% #% !'4% 1)"!1?$% >)"2'% M"?$-?!5%
(*)5*#//'B%%

 % 3)*Q'-%4?+>%-'K'$)('*29%&'5?2+'*'-%J*)K?-'*2% T>)"2?!5%#22)1?#+?)!2U%#!-%($#!!'*2% +)%'!2"*'%
+>#+% +>'%1?+LV2%2)1?#$%#!-%/#*Q'+%>)"2?!5%2+)1Q%T?!1$"-?!5%(*?K#+'%*'!+'-%>)"2?!5U%1)!+?!"'2%+)%
5*)49% ?!1$"-?!5% H8W%  00)*-#M$'% X)"2?!5% ?!%/)2+% !'4% -'K'$)(/'!+2% #!-% +>'% -'$?K'*L% )0% +>'%
O)"!1?$V2%)4!%!'4%M"?$-%(*)5*#//'B%

 % P!1*'#2'-% +>'% '!'*5L% '00?1?'!1L% )0% ',?2+?!5% >)/'2Y% (*)/)+?!5% 2"2+#?!#M$'% -'2?5!% #!-%
1)!2+*"1+?)!% /'+>)-2% #!-% (*)/)+?!5% >?5>% 2+#!-#*-2% )0% '!K?*)!/'!+#$% 2"2+#?!#M?$?+L% )0% !'4%
>)/'2%#!-%1)//"!?+?'29%?!1$"-?!5%4#+'*%/#!#5'/'!+B%%

Page 122



 !!"#$%&'()*+%
%
%

%
%  !!"#$%&'()*+%#!,%-+#+'.'!+%)/% 00)"!+1% %%23%
%

 % &'43'5',%)"*%#((*)#06%+)%'!1"*'%!'5%1('03#$31+%6)"13!7%31%(*)43,',8%3!0$",3!7%#!%#11'11.'!+%
)/%()+'!+3#$%9:(1:%#!,%;*#4'$$'*%13+'18%#1%(#*+%)/%+6'%$)0#$%($#!%,'4'$)(.'!+<%%

 % =).($'+',% #%* '43'5% )/% +6'% =)"!03$>1% ?'++3!7% @)$30:% +)% '!1"*'% +6#+% (*3)*3+:% /)*% *'A6)"13!7%
0)!+3!"'1%+)%B'%734'!%+)%+6)1'%56)%6#4'%$'#1+%)(()*+"!3+:%+)%#00'11%.#*C'+%6)"13!7<%%

 % D#3!+#3!',%#!,%(*).)+',%1'*430'1%+)%+#C'%#0+3)!%'//'0+34'$:%#7#3!1+%(*34#+'%1'0+)*%$#!,$)*,1%+6#+%
,)%!)+%0).($:%53+6%6)"13!7%6'#$+6%#!,%1#/'+:%.#++'*1%#1%5'$$%#1%$#!,$)*,%#!,%+'!#!+%311"'1<%%

 % E!,'*+))C% #% *'43'5% )/% )"*% '.(+:% 6).'1% ()$30:% 3!% +6'% $376+% )/% !#+3)!#$% ()$30:% 06#!7'% 1)% +6#+%
'//'0+34'%#0+3)!%31%+#C'!%+)%7'+%4#0#!+%6).'1%B#0C%3!+)%"1'<%

 % F.(*)4',% +6'% 1"(()*+% (*)43,',% +)% *)"76% 1$''('*18% 3!0$",3!7% +6'% 0).($'+3)!% )/% +6'% G3..:>1%
 11'11.'!+% ='!+*'% (*)H'0+8% +)% 6'$(% *',"0'% +6'% 3!03,'!0'% )/% *)"76% 1$''(3!7% #!,% "1'% )/%
+'.()*#*:%#00)..),#+3)!%#1%6)"1'6)$,1%.)4'%.)*'%'//'0+34'$:%+)%1'0"*'%('*.#!'!+%6)"13!7<%%

I"*%($#!1%/)*%JKLMNLO%3!0$",'P%%

 % Q)*C3!7% 53+6% ,'4'$)('*18% &'731+'*',% @*)43,'*1% #!,% ($#!!'*1% +)% '!1"*'% +6'% 03+:>1% 1)03#$% #!,%
.#*C'+% 6)"13!7% 1+)0C% 0)!+3!"'1% +)% 7*)5% #1% +6'% /3*1+% !'5% 6)"13!7% B'73!1% +)% '.'*7'% )!% +6'%
1)"+6'*!%/*3!7'1%)/%+6'%03+:<%

 % =).($'+3!7%+6'%*','4'$)(.'!+%)/%-':.)"*%=)"*+%+)%3!0$",'%+6'%(*)4313)!%)/%JK%!'5%6).'1%/)*%
)$,'*%(')($'<%

 % R!1"*3!7%+6#+%+6'%0"**'!+%1+#!,#*,%)/%B"3$,3!7%B:%*'731+'*',%(*)43,'*1%31%.#3!+#3!',%3!%+'*.1%)/%
13S'8%0)!1+*"0+3)!%#!,%$#:)"+%+)%#+%$'#1+%$'4'$%/)"*%)/%+6'%=),'%/)*%-"1+#3!#B$'%6).'1<%

 % R!1"*3!7%+6#+%!'5%1('03#$31+%6)"13!7%31%(*3)*3+31',%/)*%*'4'!"'%/"!,3!7%B:%(#*+!'*%#7'!03'1%#!,%
(#*+!'*163(1<%

 %  11'113!7%+6'%()+'!+3#$%/)*%+6'%(*)4313)!%)/%#,,3+3)!#$%9:(1:%#!,%;*#4'$$'*%13+'1%#1%(#*+%)/%+6'%
,'4'$)(.'!+%)/% +6'%?)0#$%@$#!8% 3!%,310"113)!%53+6%-)"+6%=#.B*3,7'163*'%T31+*30+%=)"!03$%#!,%
=#.B*3,7'163*'%=)"!+:%=)"!03$<%

 % F!0*'#13!7% +6'% !".B'*% )/% 1+#//% 3!% =3+:% U).'1% +)% 6'$(%.3+37#+'% +6'% .)1+% #,4'*1'% 3.(#0+1% )/%
5'$/#*'%*'/)*.1%#!,%1'++$3!7%(')($'%.)43!7%)!+)%#$+'*!#+34'%6)"13!7%/*).%'231+3!7%6)"13!7%+6#+%
31%#B)"+%+)%B'%*','4'$)(',<%

 % =).($'+3!7%)"*%#!!"#$%($#!!',%.#3!+'!#!0'%(*)7*#..'%)/%5)*C1%+6#+%'!1"*'%=3+:%U).'1%#*'%
.#3!+#3!',%+)%+6'%B'1+%()113B$'%1+#!,#*,<%

 % =)!+3!"3!7% +)% +#C'%#0+3)!%#7#3!1+%(*34#+'%1'0+)*% $#!,$)*,1% +6#+%,)%!)+%0).($:%53+6%6'#$+6%#!,%
1#/'+:%*'V"3*'.'!+1%)*%7)),%+'!#!+%.#!#7'.'!+<%

 % @*)43,3!7%6)"13!7%#,430'%+)%C''(%6).'$'11!'11%+)%#%.3!3.".%#!,%6'$(%(*'4'!+%6).'$'11!'11%
B:%)//'*3!7%'#*$:%#,430'%)!%#$+'*!#+34'%6)"13!7%)(+3)!1<%

 % F!0*'#13!7%+6'%*#!7'%)/%+'.()*#*:%6)"13!7%#4#3$#B$'%+)%.3!3.31'%+6'%3.(#0+%)!%6)"1'6)$,1%+6#+%
B'0).'%6).'$'11%)*%+6*'#+'!',%53+6%6).'$'11!'11<%

%

Page 123



 !!"#$%&'()*+%
%
%

%%%%%%%%%%%%% %
% ,--% %%%%%%% !!"#$%&'()*+%#!.%/+#+'0'!+%)1% 22)"!+3%
%%%%%%%%%%%%%% %%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%

Strategy Portfolio Plan 

4"*-!5%678698:%;'<%%

 % =)!3"$+'.% $)2#$% *'3-.'!+3>% (#*+!'*3?-(3% #!.%', ('*+3% )!>% #!.%#.)( +'.>% #%* '1*'3?'.% =$-0#+'%
=?#!5'%/+*#+'5@>%3'++-!5%)"+%)"*%3+*#+'5-2%#((*)#2?%+)%2$-0#+'%2?#!5'%)A'*%+?'%!',+%1-A'%@'#*3B%

 % /+#*+'.% +)% -0($'0'!+% )"*% =#*C)!% D#!#5'0'!+% E$#!% +)% *'."2'% +?'% =-+@% =)"!2-$F3% 2#*C)!%
1))+(*-!+% #!.%'!' *5@% C-$$3>% 1)*% -!3+#!2'% +?*)"5?% +?'% -0($'0'!+#+-)!% )1% A)$+#5'% )(+-0-3#+-)!%
+'2?!)$)5@%-!%0)*'%)1%)"*%C"-$.-!53%#!.%+?'%"3'%)1%3)$#*%+?'*0#$%?'#+%-!% CC'@%())$3B%

 % G"*+?'*%.'A'$)('.%(*)()3#$3%;-+?%=#0C*-.5'%H!-A'*3-+@%1)*%#%()+'!+-#$%.-3+*-2+%?'#+-!5%32?'0'B%%

 % /+#*+'.% +)% -0($'0'!+%)"*%/-!5$'%IJ"#$-+-'3%/2?'0'% +)%'!3"*'% +?#+%;'%C'++'*% "!.'*3+#!.%#!.%
0''+%+?'%.-A'*3'%!''.3%)1%+?'%2-+@F3%2)00"!-+-'3>%1)*%-!3+#!2'%(*)A-.-!5%+*#-!-!5%1)*%)"*%3+#11%)!%
0'!+#$%?'#$+?%-33"'3%#!.%3"(()*+-!5%#%*#!5'%)1%$)2#$%5*)"(3%+?*)"5?%5*#!+3%#!.%)+?'*%#2+-A-+-'3B%

 % =)!+-!"'.% +)% '!5#5'% #!.% 2)!3"$+% $)2#$% 2)00"!-+-'3% )!% K'@% -33"'3% #11'2+-!5% +?'0% "3-!5% )"*%
=).'%)1%L'3+%E*#2+-2'%)!%=)!3"$+#+-)!%#!.%=)00"!-+@%I!5#5'0'!+%+)%'!3"*'%)"*%#((*)#2?'3%
;'*'%#((*)(*-#+'%#!.%'11'2+-A'%M1)*%-!3+#!2'%#.)(+-!5%#%0)*'%3)(?-3+-2#+'.%#((*)#2?%+)%C".5'+%
2)!3"$+#+-)!%+?#!%-!%(*'A-)"3%@'#*3NB%%

 % &'.'3-5!'.%#!.%*'O$#"!2?'.%)"*%;'C3-+'%3)%+?#+%)"*%2"3+)0'*3%2#!%2)!."2+%'A'!%0)*'%)1%+?'-*%
C"3-!'33% )!$-!'%0)*'% '#3-$@P% #!.%2)!+-!"'.% +)%0#K'% '11'2+-A'% "3'3% )1%3)2-#$%0'.-#>%;-+?% )"*%
Q;-++'*%#22)"!+%#2?-'A-!5%)A'*%:>777%1)$$);'*3B%%

 % I!3"*'.%5*'#+'*% +*#!3(#*'!2@%#!.%)('!!'33%#C)"+%?);%;'%2)!."2+%)"*%C"3-!'33>%C@%0#K-!5%
0)*'% -!1)*0#+-)!% #!.% .#+#% #C)"+% +?'% =)"!2-$F3% 3'*A-2'3% #!.% ('*1)*0#!2'% #A#-$#C$'% -!% 0)*'%
#22'33-C$'%;#@3B%%

 % =)!+-!"'.%+)%;)*K%;-+?%)"*%(#*+!'*3%+)%.*-A'%1)*;#*.%+?'%'2)!)0-2%.'A'$)(0'!+%)1%+?'%2-+@%#!.%
-+3%3"**)"!.-!5%#*'#%+?*)"5?%+?'%R)2#$%I!+'*(*-3'%E#*+!'*3?-(B%%

 % I!3"*'.% +?'% =-+@% =)"!2-$% -3% 'J"-(('.% +)% .'$-A'*% +?'% =)"!2-$F3% A-3-)!% 1)*% +?'% 2-+@% ;-+?-!% +?'%
*'3)"*2'3% #A#-$#C$'>% C@% +#K-!5% #%3 +*"2+"*'.% #((*)#2?% +)% -.'!+-1@-!5% 3#A-!53% #!.% 1"*+?'*%
'11-2-'!2-'3B%%

S"*%($#!3%1)*%678:98T%-!2$".'<%%

 % =)!+*-C"+-!5%+)%2)!+-!"-!5%*'."2+-)!3%-!%*'2)*.'.%-!2-.'!+3%)1%#!+-O3)2-#$%C'?#A-)"*B%

 % &'A-';-!5%+?'%-0(#2+%)1%)"*%2"**'!+%-!+'*A'!+-)!3%;-+?%+?'%3+*''+%$-1'%2)00"!-+@%#!.%.'A'$)(-!5%
#% *'1*'3?'.%#2+-)!%($#!%;-+?%)"*%(#*+!'*3% +)%0#,-0-3'%)"*% +*#!31)*0#+-A'% *)$'%;-+?%A"$!'*#C$'%
-!.-A-."#$3B%

 % U-A-!5% A-2+-03% #% 5*'#+'*% 3#@% -!% +?'% 3)$"+-)!3% +)% #!+-O3)2-#$% C'?#A-)"*% #!.% $);% $'A'$% 2*-0'% C@%
-!2*'#3-!5%)"*%*'1'**#$3%+)%V'-5?C)"*?)).%&'3)$"+-)!%E#!'$3B%

 % /'2"*-!5%)!O5)-!5%*'3)"*2'3%1)*%)"*%=)00"!-+@%/#1'+@%E#*+!'*3?-(%+)%'!#C$'%2)!+-!"'.%3+*)!5%
-!+'*O#5'!2@%3()!3)*3?-(%)1%(*)W'2+3B%

Page 124



 !!"#$%&'()*+%
%
%

%
%  !!"#$%&'()*+%#!,%-+#+'.'!+%)/% 00)"!+1% %%2333%
%

 % -+*'!4+5'!3!4% )"*% (#*+!'*153(% 63+5% +5'% 7)0#$% 8!+'*(*31'% 9#*+!'*153(% #!,% )+5'*1% +)% /)1+'*%
1"1+#3!#:$'%4*)6+5%3!%+5'%;*'#+'*%<#.:*3,4'%'0)!).=>%

 % <)!0$",3!4% !'4)+3#+3)!1% /)*% #% <3+=% ?'#$% /)*% +5'% ;*'#+'*% <#.:*3,4'% 1":@*'43)!% 63+5% +5'%
;)A'*!.'!+B%'1+#:$3153!4%'//'0+3A'%4)A'*!#!0'%#**#!4'.'!+1%#!,%:'43!!3!4%+)%3.($'.'!+%C'=%
(*)D'0+1>%

 % 82($)*3!4%+5'%()+'!+3#$%/)*%4'!'*#+3!4%3!0).'%/*).%0)"!03$%1'*A30'1%#!,%+5'%/'#13:3$3+=%)/%15#*3!4%
1'*A30'1%63+5%)+5'*%(#*+!'*1%3!%+5'%(":$30%1'0+)*>%

 % ?'03,3!4%)!%#!%#00)..),#+3)!%1+*#+'4=%/)*%+5'%0)"!03$%#!,%3+1%#11)03#+',%1#A3!41>%%%%

How to find out more 

E"*+5'*%3!/)*.#+3)!%#:)"+%+5'%<)"!03$F1%('*/)*.#!0'%#!,%+5'%<)"!03$F1%(*3)*3+3'1%/)*%GHIJKIL%0#!%:'%
/)"!,%3!%)"*%9)*+/)$3)%9$#!1%65305%#*'%#A#3$#:$'%)!%)"*%6':13+'%%

5++(MKK666>0#.:*3,4'>4)A>"CK00.K!#A34#+3)!K#:)"+@+5'@0)"!03$K5)6@+5'@0)"!03$@)*C1K0)"!03$@
('*/)*.#!0'K()*+/)$3)@($#!1K%

%
%
%
%
%
%
%
%
%
%
%
%
%
%
%
%
%
%
%
%
%
%
%
%
%
%
%
%
%

%

Page 125



Page 126



 !"!#$#%!&'(&)#*+'%*,-,.,!,#*&('/&!0#&
 !"!#$#%!&'(&122'3%!*&

&
&

&
& 1%%3".&)#+'/!&"%4& !"!#$#%!&'(&122'3%!*& &&56&
&

The Council’s Responsibilities

70#&8'3%2,.&,*&/#93,/#4&!':&

 & $";#&"//"%<#$#%!*&('/&!0#&+/'+#/&"4$,%,*!/"!,'%&'(&,!*&(,%"%2,".&"((",/*&"%4&!'&*#23/#&!0"!&'%#&
'(& ,!*&'((,2#/*&0"*&!0#&/#*+'%*,-,.,!=& ('/& !0#&"4$,%,*!/"!,'%&'(&!0'*#&"((",/*>&& ?%&!0,*&8'3%2,.@&!0"!&
'((,2#/&,*&!0#&A,/#2!'/&'(&)#*'3/2#*B&

 & $"%"<#&,!*&"((",/*&!'&*#23/#&#2'%'$,2@&#((,2,#%!&"%4&#((#2!,6#&3*#&'(&/#*'3/2#*&"%4&*"(#<3"/4&
,!*&"**#!*B&"%4&

 & "++/'6#&!0#& !"!#$#%!&'(&122'3%!*>&

The Director of Resources’ Responsibilities

70#&A,/#2!'/&'(&)#*'3/2#*&,*&/#*+'%*,-.#&('/&!0#&+/#+"/"!,'%&'(&!0#&8'3%2,.C*& !"!#$#%!&'(&122'3%!*&
,%& "22'/4"%2#& D,!0& +/'+#/& +/"2!,2#*& "*& *#!& '3!& ,%& !0#& 80"/!#/#4& ?%*!,!3!#& '(& E3-.,2& F,%"%2#& "%4&
122'3%!"%2=&G8?EF1H&8'4#&'(&E/"2!,2#&'%&I'2".&13!0'/,!=&122'3%!,%<&,%&!0#&J%,!#4&K,%<4'$>&

?%&+/#+"/,%<&!0#& !"!#$#%!&'(&122'3%!*@&!0#&A,/#2!'/&'(&)#*'3/2#*&0"*:&

 & *#.#2!#4&*3,!"-.#&"22'3%!,%<&+'.,2,#*&"%4&!0#%&"++.,#4&!0#$&2'%*,*!#%!.=B&

 & $"4#&L34<#$#%!*&"%4&#*!,$"!#*&!0"!&D#/#&/#"*'%"-.#&"%4&+/34#%!B&"%4&

 & 2'$+.,#4&D,!0&!0#&8'4#&'(&E/"2!,2#>&

70#&A,/#2!'/&'(&)#*'3/2#*&0"*&".*':&

 & ;#+!&+/'+#/&"22'3%!,%<&/#2'/4*&D0,20&D#/#&3+&!'&4"!#B&"%4&

 & !";#%&/#"*'%"-.#&*!#+*&('/&!0#&+/#6#%!,'%&"%4&4#!#2!,'%&'(&(/"34&"%4&'!0#/&,//#<3."/,!,#*>&

&
&
&
&
&
&
&
&
&
&
&
&
&
&
&
&

Page 127



Page 128



 !"#$%&'"($!)"$)"*+)
,"-"+.+!")$/)0''$&!"1)

)
)

)
) 0!!&-2)3+4$#")-!%),"-"+.+!")$/)0''$&!"1) ))5)
)

 )-.)42+-1+%)"$)(!"#$%&'+)"*+)6$&!'(271),"-"+.+!")$/)0''$&!"1)/$#)8958:5;<))=*+)4#+'+%(!>)0!!&-2)
3+4$#")1+'"($!)$/)"*(1)%$'&.+!")%+1'#(?+1)"*+)%(@+#1+)#-!>+)$/)1+#@('+1)4#$@(%+%)?A)6-.?#(%>+)6("A)
6$&!'(2) "$) ("1) #+1(%+!"1B) 2$'-2) ?&1(!+11+1) -!%) @(1("$#1) -!%)4 #$@(%+1) %+"-(21) $/) 1$.+) $/) "*+) C+A)
-'"(@("(+1)-!%)-'*(+@+.+!"1)%&#(!>)"*+)A+-#<)))

=*+),"-"+.+!")$/)0''$&!"1B)1+")$&")$!)4->+1)D)"$)DEB)'$!"-(!)-)1+#(+1)$/)1"-"+.+!"1B)1&..-#(1(!>)
"*+)/(!-!'(-2)-'"(@("A)$/)"*+)6$&!'(2)%&#(!>)"*+)A+-#)(!)%+2(@+#(!>)"*+1+)1+#@('+1<)) !)-%%("($!B)%+"-(21)
$/) "*+)6$&!'(271)-11+"1)-!%) 2(-?(2("(+1)-") "*+)?+>(!!(!>)-!%)+!%)$/) "*+)6$&!'(271) /(!-!'(-2) A+-#)-#+)
4#+1+!"+%<))=*+)/(!-!'(-2)A+-#)#-!)/#$.)5)04#(2)8958)"$);5)F-#'*)895;<)

=*+) -''$&!"1) *-@+) ?++!) 4#+4-#+%) (!) -''$#%-!'+) G("*) "*+) H6$%+) $/) I#-'"('+) $!) J$'-2) 0&"*$#("A)
0''$&!"(!>) (!) "*+) K!("+%) L(!>%$.7) M=*+) 6$%+N<) ) =*+) '$%+) (1) ?-1+%) $!)  !"+#!-"($!-2) O(!-!'(-2)
3+4$#"(!>),"-!%-#%1)M O3,N)-!%)1+"1)$&")"*+)/$#.-")-!%)'$!"+!")$/)"*+)C+A)/(!-!'(-2)1"-"+.+!"1)-!%)
-''$.4-!A(!>)!$"+1)(!)"*(1)4&?2('-"($!<)))

=*+)C+A)/(!-!'(-2)1"-"+.+!"1)-#+)-1)/$22$G1P)

 ) F$@+.+!")(!)3+1+#@+1),"-"+.+!")

 ) 6$.4#+*+!1(@+) !'$.+)-!%)QR4+!%("&#+),"-"+.+!")

 ) S-2-!'+),*++")

 ) 6-1*)O2$G),"-"+.+!")

 ) T$&1(!>)3+@+!&+)0''$&!")

 ) 6$22+'"($!)O&!%)

=*+1+)-''$&!"1)-#+)1&44$#"+%)?A)-)'$.4#+*+!1(@+)1+")$/)!$"+1) "$>+"*+#)G("*)-)1 "-"+.+!")$/) "*+)
-''$&!"(!>) 4$2('(+1) $/) "*+) 6$&!'(2) -!%) -) >2$11-#A) $/) "+#.1<) ) 0!) (!%+R) "$) "*+) .-(!) !$"+1) "$) "*+)
-''$&!"1)(1)4#$@(%+%)$!)4->+)5U<)

V!'+)->-(!B) "*+)-''$&!"1)*-@+)?++!)4#$%&'+%)4#$.4"2A)-!%)"$)"*+)*(>*)1"-!%-#%)+R4+'"+%)$/)"*+)
6$&!'(2<) ) =*(1) G$&2%) !$") *-@+) ?++!) 4$11(?2+) G("*$&") "*+) *-#%) G$#C) $/) .A) $G!) 1"-//) -!%) $"*+#)
/(!-!'+)1"-//)-'#$11) "*+)6$&!'(2B)-!%) )G$&2%) 2(C+) "$) "*-!C) "*+.B).A) /+22$G)W(#+'"$#1B)-!%)1+#@('+)
.-!->+#1)/$#)"*+(#)-11(1"-!'+)(!)"*+)4#+4-#-"($!)$/)"*+1+)-''$&!"1<)

Review of 2012/13

=*+) !-"($!-2) -!%) (!"+#!-"($!-2) +'$!$.(') '2(.-"+B) "$>+"*+#) G("*) 4#+11&#+1) "$) 1(>!(/('-!"2A) #+%&'+)
4&?2(') 1+'"$#) 14+!%(!>B) '$!"(!&+%) "$) 4#$@(%+) -) @+#A) '*-22+!>(!>) /(!-!'(-2) +!@(#$!.+!") /$#) "*+)
6$&!'(2)%&#(!>)"*+)A+-#<))Q//+'"1)*-@+)?++!).$1").-#C+%)(!)#+2-"($!)"$)*(>*+#)2+@+21)$/)(!/2-"($!)"*-!)
$#(>(!-22A) /$#+'-1"B) '$!"(!&(!>) 2$G) (!"+#+1") #-"+1) -!%) "*+) #+2-"(@+2A) 12$G) #+'$@+#A) $/) "*+) *$&1(!>)
.-#C+"<) ) 01) (!) 4#+@($&1) A+-#1B) ?&%>+"1) G+#+) '2$1+2A) .$!("$#+%) -!%) #+@(1($!1) .-%+B) G*+#+)
!+'+11-#AB)"$)#+/2+'")'*-!>(!>)'(#'&.1"-!'+1<))=*+1+)#+@(1($!1)(!'2&%+%)'*-!>+1)"$)#+/2+'")6$&!'(271)
-44#$@-2) "$) '-##A) /$#G-#%) ?&%>+"1) /#$.) 8955:58) "$) .++") "*+) '$1"1) $/) #+X4*-1+%) +R4+!%("&#+B)
-%%("($!-2)1-@(!>1)(%+!"(/(+%)%&#(!>)"*+)A+-#)-!%)-21$)"$)4#$@(%+)/$#)&!-@$(%-?2+)-%%("($!-2)'$1"1<)

01)4#+@($&12A)#+4$#"+%B)"*+)6("A)6$&!'(2)G-1)$!+)$/).-!A)2$'-2)-&"*$#("(+1)-//+'"+%)?A)"*+)'$22-41+)
$/)  '+2-!%(') ?-!C(!>) (!1"("&"($!1) (!) 899E:9D) G("*B) -") "*-") "(.+B) -) "$"-2) $/) YD) .(22($!) (!) 1*$#") "+#.)
%+4$1("1) G("*) "G$) $/) "*+) -//+'"+%) ?-!C1) MJ-!%1?-!C()  12-!%1) */) -!%) T+#("-?2+) S-!C) I2'N<) ) =*+)
4#$14+'"1)/$#)#+'$@+#A)M-2?+(")$@+#)-!)+R"+!%+%)4+#($%N)$/)"*+).-Z$#("A)$/)"*+1+)%+4$1("1)'$!"(!&+1)
"$)?+)4$1("(@+<)))

 !)%#-G(!>)&4)"*+1+)-''$&!"1B)"*+)6$&!'(2)*-1)/$22$G+%)"*+)%+"-(2+%)>&(%-!'+)(11&+%)?A)"*+)6 IO0)
J$'-2) 0&"*$#("A) 0''$&!"(!>) I-!+2) (!) #+2-"($!) "$) "*+) -!"('(4-"+%) #+'$@+#A) $/) "*+1+) %+4$1("1) -!%)( !)
"+#.1)$/)"*+)@-2&-"($!)1*$G!)(!)"*+)-''$&!"1<))O&#"*+#)(!/$#.-"($!)'-!)?+)/$&!%)(!)!$"+)8[<)

Page 129



 !"#$%&'"($!)"$)"*+)
,"-"+.+!")$/)0''$&!"1)

)
)

))))))))))))) )
) 2) )))))))0!!&-3)4+5$#")-!%),"-"+.+!")$/)0''$&!"1)
)))))))))))))) )))))))))))))))))))))

6&1")-1) (!)"*+)5#(7-"+)1+'"$#8)'*-!9+1)(!)"*+)7-3&+1)$/):$&!'(3;$<!+%)5#$5+#"=)-#+)#+/3+'"+%)(!)"*+)
-''$&!"1)+-'*)=+-#>) )?&#"*+#) (!/$#.-"($!)-@$&") "*+)7-3&-"($!)$/)-11+"18)-!%)*$<)'*-!9+1) (!) "*+(#)
7-3&+).&1")@+)-''$&!"+%)/$#8)'-!)@+)/$&!%)(!)"*+),"-"+.+!")$/)0''$&!"(!9)A$3('(+1)1+'"($!>)

B(7+!)"*+)5#+7-(3(!9)+'$!$.(')'3(.-"+8)#+%&'"($!1)(!)/&!%(!9)/#$.)'+!"#-3)9$7+#!.+!")-!%)#+1&3"(!9)
5#+11&#+1)$!)"*+):$&!'(3C1)/(!-!'+18)(")(1)53+-1(!9)"$)!$"+)"*-"D)

 ) 0) 5#$9#-..+) $/) 1+#7('+) #+7(+<1) '$!"(!&+1) "$) -'*(+7+) <$#"*<*(3+) $!;9$(!9) 1-7(!91) "*-") <(33)
1&55$#") "*+):$&!'(3C1) /(!-!'(-3)5$1("($!)9$(!9) /$#<-#%>) )01)5-#")$/) "*+) #+7(+<)5#$9#-..+8) "*+)
:$&!'(3) *-1) '$!"(!&+%) "$) +E53$#+) $55$#"&!("(+1) "$) 1*-#+) 1+#7('+1) <("*) $"*+#) 3$'-3) -&"*$#("(+1>))
,*-#+%)1+#7('+)-##-!9+.+!"1)-#+)-3#+-%=) (!)53-'+)/$#) "*+):*$('+)F-1+%)G+""(!91),+#7('+8) "*+)
.-!-9+.+!") $/) "*+)  !"+#!-3) 0&%(") 1+#7('+) -!%) "*+) 5#$7(1($!) $/) H$.+)  .5#$7+.+!") 09+!'=)
1+#7('+1) I"$) -11(1") 7&3!+#-@3+) 5+$53+) .-(!"-(!) "*+(#) (!%+5+!%+!'+) @=) *+35(!9) "*+.) "$) #+5-(#)
.-(!"-(!)$#)-%-5")"*+(#)*$.+1J>)

 ) K*+) :$&!'(3) (.53+.+!"+%) !+<) 1"#+-.3(!+%) -##-!9+.+!"1) /$#) ("1) -%.(!(1"#-"(7+) -!%)@&1 (!+11)
1&55$#")1+#7('+18)%+3(7+#(!9).$#+)'$1")+//+'"(7+)1+#7('+1)-!%)'$!"#(@&"(!9)'$!1(%+#-@3+)$!;9$(!9)
1-7(!91)"$<-#%1)"*+):$&!'(3C1)$7+#-33)1-7(!91)"-#9+"1>)

 ) L+).-%+)(.5#$7+.+!"1)"$)$&#)$5+!)15-'+18)15$#"18)#+'#+-"($!)-!%)5&@3(')-#")5#$7(1($!)"*#$&9*)
-)#-!9+)$/)5#$M+'"1)/&!%+%)@=)%+7+3$5+#1>)

 ) K*+) :$&!'(3) <$#N+%) '3$1+3=) <("*) $"*+#) 5&@3(') 1+'"$#) 5-#"!+#1) "$) 53-!) "*+) 5#$7(1($!) $/) !+<)
1+#7('+1) -!%) /-'(3("(+1) (!) "*+) O$#"*) L+1") -!%) ,$&"*+#!) /#(!9+1) $/) "*+) :("=) I<*+#+) .-M$#)
%+7+3$5.+!") (1) "-N(!9)53-'+J) (!'3&%(!9)-)!+<)5#(.-#=)1'*$$3)-")K#&.5(!9"$!)P+-%$<1)-!%)-)
!+<).&3"(;&1+)'$..&!("=)'+!"#+)-"):3-=)?-#.>)

 ) L+) <$#N+%) "$) +!1&#+) "*-") "*+) B$7+#!.+!"C1) <+3/-#+) #+/$#.1) <+#+) +//('(+!"3=) -!%) +//+'"(7+3=)
(.53+.+!"+%)3$'-33=)-!%)"$)%+7(1+)-)!+<)G$'-3):$&!'(3)K-E),&55$#")1'*+.+)<*('*)5#$"+'"1)"*+)
.$1")7&3!+#-@3+)(!)"*+):("=>)

 ) P-M$#) (!7+1".+!") '$!"(!&+%) "$) @+) .-%+) (!) "*+) :$&!'(3C1) *$&1(!9) 1"$'N>) )  !) -%%("($!) "$)
+E5+!%("&#+)$!)#+5-(#1)-!%)(.5#$7+.+!"1)"$)+E(1"(!9)%<+33(!91)<+)*-7+)1"-#"+%)"$)%+3(7+#)-)!+<)
'$&!'(3) *$&1+) @&(3%(!9) 5#$9#-..+) -!%) -#+) <$#N(!9) <("*) 53-!!+#18) %+7+3$5+#1) -!%)$ "*+#1) "$)
(!'#+-1+)"*+)1&553=)$/)-//$#%-@3+)*$&1(!9>)))

Revenue Spending and Income

General Fund Services

?$#)2QR2SRT8) "*+):$&!'(3)-9#++%)-)@&%9+") /$#)!+")15+!%(!9)$/)URV>Q).(33($!>) )K*(1)1&.)<-1) "$)@+)
/(!-!'+%)(!)5-#")@=)9$7+#!.+!")9#-!")"$9+"*+#)<("*)"*+):$&!'(3C1)1*-#+)$/)F&1(!+11)4-"+18)<("*)"*+)
#+.-(!%+#)@+(!9)#-(1+%)"*#$&9*):$&!'(3)K-E>))K*+):$&!'(3)K-E)/$#):("=):$&!'(3)1+#7('+1)<-1)1+")-")
URWW>XV)/$#)F-!%)Y)5#$5+#"(+18)&!'*-!9+%)/$#)"*+)1+'$!%)=+-#)#&!!(!9>)))

K*+) "-@3+) @+3$<) '$.5-#+1) "*+) /(!-3) $&""&#!) /(9&#+1) /$#) "*+) B+!+#-3) ?&!%) <("*) "*$1+) $#(9(!-33=)
53-!!+%8)<*+!)"*+)@&%9+")-!%):$&!'(3)K-E)/$#)"*+)=+-#)<-1)-9#++%)(!)?+@#&-#=)2QR2>)

)

)

)

)

)

Page 130



 !"#$%&'"($!)"$)"*+)
,"-"+.+!")$/)0''$&!"1)

)
)

)
) 0!!&-2)3+4$#")-!%),"-"+.+!")$/)0''$&!"1) ))5)
)

(£000s) 
Original

Budget
Actual Difference

6+")3+7+!&+),4+!%(!8)$!),+#7('+1) 9:;9<=) >?;?5@) A==)

B-4("-2)0''$&!"(!8)0%C&1".+!"1) D5;:A?E) D@;<:>E) DF9>E)

B-4("-2)-!%)3+7+!&+)G#$C+'"1),4+!%(!8)H&!%+%)/#$.)3+7+!&+) 9;5A9) 9;=<@) 5=5)

B$!"#(I&"($!1)"$JD/#$.E)K-#.-#L+%)3+1+#7+1)M)I+/$#+)1"-"&"$#N)
-''$&!"(!8)-%C&1".+!"1)

9;?=:) 9;@>:) 5<?)

B$!"#(I&"($!1)"$JD/#$.E)O+!+#-2)H&!%)3+1+#7+) DF?9E) D9;@F5E) DAF>E)

Total 17,036 17,162 126

Financed by:

O$7+#!.+!")O#-!"1) 9;A<=) 9;:A5) 9>F)

,*-#+)$/)P&1(!+11)3-"+1) A;@5<) A;@5<) ?)

B$&!'(2)Q-R) F;=@@) F;=@@) ?)

Total 17,036 17,162 126

02"*$&8*)"*+)B$&!'(2S1)-'"&-2)!+")#+7+!&+)14+!%(!8)$!)"*+)4#$7(1($!)$/)1+#7('+1)T-1)UA==;???).$#+)
"*-!)"*+)$#(8(!-2)I&%8+")1+")/$#)"*+)N+-#;)-)7-#(+"N)$/)/-'"$#1)'$!"#(I&"+%)"$)"*(1)$7+#-22)4$1("($!V))Q*+)
.$1")1(8!(/('-!")$/) "*+1+)#+2-"+%)"$)%+4#+'(-"($!) "*-") "*+)B$&!'(2) (1) #+W&(#+%) "$)'*-#8+)"$)1+#7('+1;)
T*('*)T-1)UF9>;???)*(8*+#)"*-!)$#(8(!-22N)I&%8+"+%V))Q*(1)(!'#+-1+)#+/2+'"+%)"*+)7-2&-"($!)$/)-11+"1)
-")59)X-#'*)>?9>;)-/"+#) "*+)I&%8+")T-1)1+"V) )Q*+)-%%("($!-2)%+4#+'(-"($!)'*-#8+1)T+#+;)*$T+7+#;)
$//1+")IN)-)1"-"&"$#N)'-4("-2)-''$&!"(!8)-%C&1".+!")1$)%(%)!$")-//+'") "*+)$7+#-22)'$1")$/)1+#7('+1) "$)
B$&!'(2)"-R)4-N+#1V))Q(8*")I&%8+"-#N)'$!"#$2;)"*+)%+2(7+#N)$/)1-7(!81)/#$.)1+#7('+)#+7(+T1)-!%)$"*+#)
+//('(+!'N).+-1&#+1)'$.I(!+%)"$)2-#8+2N)$//1+")&!-7$(%-I2+)-%%("($!-2)'$1"1V))))))))

Q*+) "$"-2) -.$&!") $/) '-4("-2) -!%)# +7+!&+) 4#$C+'") +R4+!%("&#+) /&!%+%) /#$.) #+7+!&+) T-1) -I$7+)
$#(8(!-2)I&%8+")IN)U5=5;???)2-#8+2N)#+/2+'"(!8)12(44-8+)$!)"*+)"(.(!8)$/)+R4+!%("&#+V))

O$7+#!.+!")8#-!") (!'$.+)T-1)U9>F;???)*(8*+#) "*-!) "*+)$#(8(!-2)I&%8+")-1)-) #+1&2")$/)!+T)8#-!")
-22$'-"($!1)-!!$&!'+%)-/"+#)"*+)I&%8+")*-%)I++!)1+"V))Q*+1+)!+T)8#-!"1)T+#+)-T-#%+%)"$)1&44$#")
"*+)B$&!'(2) (!)4#+4-#(!8)/$#)-!%).++"(!8)"*+)-%%("($!-2)'$1"1)-#(1(!8)/#$.)2+8(12-"(7+)'*-!8+1)1&'*)
-1)B$&!'(2)Q-R)#+/$#.)-!%)#+/$#.1)"$)"*+)!-"($!-2)T+2/-#+)1N1"+.V))

Q$8+"*+#;)"*+)$7+#-22)'*-!8+1)(!)14+!%(!8)-!%)8#-!").+-!")"*-") "*+)'$.I(!+%)&1+)$/)8+!+#-2)-!%)
+-#.-#L+%)#+1+#7+1)(!'#+-1+%)IN)U<9>;???)/#$.)"*-")$#(8(!-22N)42-!!+%V))))

0)!+")&1+)$/)"*+)O+!+#-2)H&!%)3+1+#7+)$/)U9;@F5;???)T-1).-%+)/$#)"*+)N+-#)-!%;)-")"*+)N+-#Y+!%;)
"*+) #+1+#7+) 1"$$%) -") UAV??) .(22($!V) ) Q*(1) #+1+#7+) 4#$7(%+1) /(!-!'(-2) /2+R(I(2("N) "$) "*+) B$&!'(2) /$#)
.++"(!8) +R'+4"($!-2) -!%J$#) &!-!"('(4-"+%) ("+.1) -!%) (1) &1+%) "$) 1&44$#") "*+) B$&!'(2S1) '-4("-2)
(!7+1".+!")4#$8#-..+V)

Housing Revenue Account

Q*+)Z$&1(!8)3+7+!&+)0''$&!")DZ30E)I&%8+")/$#)>?9>J95)T-1)1+")"$)%+2(7+#)-)1&1"-(!-I2+)/(!-!'(-2)
4$1("($!)$7+#)"*+)5?YN+-#)4+#($%)$/)"*+)Z30),+2/YH(!-!'(!8)P&1(!+11)G2-!;)4#$7(%(!8)/$#)/&!%1)"$)I+)
1+"Y-1(%+)"$)-22$T)/$#)%+I")#+4-N.+!")-")2$-!).-"&#("N;)(/)"*+)-&"*$#("N)1$)'*$$1+1V))H$#)>?9>J95)"*+)
I&%8+")T-1)$#(8(!-22N)1+")T("*) "*+) (!"+!"($!)$/)&1(!8)U>VF?).(22($!)$/)#+1+#7+1;)T("*)-!)+R4+'"-"($!)
"*-")IN)"*+)+!%)$/)>?9>J95;)#+1+#7+1)T$&2%)I+)#+%&'+%)"$)!+-#)"*+).(!(.&.)2+7+2)$/)U>).(22($!V)Q*+)
1"#-"+8N) (!) #+'+!") N+-#1) *-1) I++!) "$) &1+) #+1+#7+1) "$) 4#$7(%+) -%%("($!-2) /&!%(!8) /$#) '-4("-2)
+R4+!%("&#+;) +!-I2(!8) +R"#-) (!7+1".+!") (!) $&#) *$&1(!8) 1"$'L;) -11(1"(!8) (!) .-(!"-(!(!8) "*+) %+'+!")

Page 131



 !"#$%&'"($!)"$)"*+)
,"-"+.+!")$/)0''$&!"1)

)
)

))))))))))))) )
) 2) )))))))0!!&-3)4+5$#")-!%),"-"+.+!")$/)0''$&!"1)
)))))))))))))) )))))))))))))))))))))

*$.+1)1"-!%-#%6)7*(31")-31$)-33$7(!8) /$#)%(1'#+"($!-#9) (!:+1".+!") (!)-#+-1)1&'*)-1) "*+)%+3(:+#9)$/)
!+7)-//$#%-;3+)*$&1(!8<)

=*+) "-;3+) ;+3$7) '$.5-#+1) "*+) /(!-3) $&""&#!) /(8&#+1) /$#) "*+) >$&1(!8) 4+:+!&+) 0''$&!") 7("*) "*$1+)
$#(8(!-339)53-!!+%6)7*+!)"*+);&%8+")-!%)#+!")3+:+31)/$#)"*+)9+-#)7+#+)-8#++%)(!)?+;#&-#9)@AB@<)

(£000s) 
Original

Budget
Actual Difference

C+")4+:+!&+),5+!%(!8)$!),+#:('+1) BD6EFD) B26DAD) 2BA)

C+8-"(:+)>40),&;1(%9) A) GB@H) GB@H)

I+;")J-!-8+.+!")K$1"1)-!%) !"+#+1") L62D2) L6EAM) DLB)

N"*+#)OP5+!%("&#+) DB@) @EQ) G@QH)

K-5("-3)0''$&!"(!8)0%R&1".+!"1) L6D@A) L6DL2) M2)

I(#+'")4+:+!&+)?&!%(!8)$/)K-5("-3)-!%)4+:+!&+)S#$R+'"1)(!)
"*+)>$&1(!8)K-5("-3) !:+1".+!")S3-!)

F6DDD) L6DMD) GB6FEAH)

>$&1(!8),+")01(%+) B6AFA) B6AFA) A)

Total 39,382 38,199 (1,183)

Financed by:

I7+33(!8)4+!"1)-!%),+#:('+)K*-#8+1) DM6BDL) DM6AMM) GE@H)

4+!")GT-#-8+16)U-!%)V)K$..+#'(-3)S#$5+#"9H) B6A@D) B6AB2) GFH)

 !"+#+1") !'$.+) BBB) BAB) GBAH)

N"*+#) !'$.+) MAF) MMA) 2B)

K$!"#(;&"($!1)G"$H)W)/#$.)4+1+#:+1) @6QA@) B62LF) GB6B@DH)

Total 39,382 38,199 (1,183)

I&#(!8) "*+) /(!-!'(-3) 9+-#6) (!) X&!+) @AB@6) -55#$:-3) 7-1) 8(:+!) "$) '-##9) /$#7-#%) #+1$&#'+1) $/) YB<EM)
.(33($!) "$) /&!%) +P5+!%("&#+) #+Z5*-1+%) /#$.) @ABBWB@<) ) N/) "*(1) 1&.6) YB<BM) .(33($!) 7-1) "$7-#%1)
.++"(!8) "*+) '$1"1) $/) '-5("-3) (!:+1".+!") (!) "*+) *$&1(!8) 1"$'[<) )= *+) ;-3-!'+6) YA<LA) .(33($!6) 7-1)
5#+%$.(!-!"39) "$) .++") '$1"1) $/) '9'3('-3) #+:+!&+) #+5-(#1) (!) "*+) *$&1(!8) 1"$'[6) (!'3&%(!8) +P"+#!-3)
#+5-(#1)-!%)#+Z%+'$#-"($!6)/(#+)1-/+"9)#(1[)-11+11.+!"16)3(/")(!15+'"($!1)-!%)+3+'"#('-3)"+1"(!86)7*+#+)
7$#[)(!)@ABBWB@)*-%)!$")5#$8#+11+%)-1)\&('[39)-1)53-!!+%<)=*(1)-55#$:-3)(!'#+-1+%)"*+)-!"('(5-"+%)
&1+)$/)#+1+#:+1)(!)@AB@WBD)"$)Y2<2Q).(33($!<)

?&#"*+#) '*-!8+1) (!) "*+)53-!!+%) &1+) $/) #+1+#:+1) /$#) @AB@WBD) 7+#+) .-%+) -1) 5-#") $/) "*+) K$&!'(3]1)
J+%(&.)=+#.),"#-"+89)-!%)#+:(1+%);&%8+")5#$'+116)"-[(!8)"*+)53-!!+%)&1+)"$)Y2<QB).(33($!<))=*+1+)
'*-!8+1) #+/3+'"+%) (!'#+-1+%) (!"+#+1") '$1"1) -11$'(-"+%) 7("*) "*+) /(!-3) >40) ,+3/Z?(!-!'(!8) 3$-!)
5$#"/$3($6) 5-#"(-339) $//1+") ;9) 1-:(!81) (!) 1"-//) -!%) $5+#-"($!-3) '$1"1) -1) -) #+1&3") $/) (!"+#!-3)
#+$#8-!(1-"($!)-!%)'*-!8+1).-%+)(!)#+15$!1+)"$)"*+)-!"('(5-"+%)3$11)$/),&55$#"(!8)S+$53+)/&!%(!8<)

=*+)-'"&-3)&1+)$/)>40)#+1+#:+1) (!)@AB@WBD6) #+5$#"+%) "$) "*+)>$&1(!8)J-!-8+.+!")^$-#%) (!)X&!+)
@ABD6) 7-1) YB62LE6MMM<) ) 4+\&+1"1) *-:+) ;++!) .-%+) "$) '-##9) /$#7-#%) /&!%(!8) $/) YD6BAE62EA) (!"$)
@ABDWB26) #+/3+'"(!8) #+Z5*-1(!8) $/) -) !&.;+#) $/) 5#$R+'"16) ;&") 5-#"('&3-#39) #+'$8!(1(!8) "*+) %+/+##+%)
!++%) "$) &1+) #+1+#:+1) "$) /&!%) '-5("-3) +P5+!%("&#+) (!) 3(8*") $/) 13(55-8+) (!) "*+) >$&1(!8) K-5("-3)
 !:+1".+!")S#$8#-..+<)))

>$&1(!8)4+:+!&+)0''$&!")-:-(3-;3+)#+1+#:+1)1"$$%)-")YM<2FM).(33($!)-")"*+)9+-#Z+!%<))

)

Page 132



 !"#$%&'"($!)"$)"*+)
,"-"+.+!")$/)0''$&!"1)

)
)

)
) 0!!&-2)3+4$#")-!%),"-"+.+!")$/)0''$&!"1) ))5)
)

Capital Spending and Receipts

 !)678698:)"*+);$&!'(2)14+!")<8=>6).(22($!)$!)'-4("-2)4#$?+'"1>))@/)"*(1)+A4+!%("&#+)<B>B).(22($!)C-1)
$!).-?$#) #+4-(#1)-!%) (.4#$D+.+!"1) "$)'$&!'(2) %C+22(!E1F) <6>B).(22($!)$!)$"*+#) 2-!%)-!%)G&(2%(!E1)
H(!'2&%(!E)<8>I).(22($!)$!)(!/#-1"#&'"&#+)C$#J1)/$#) 2-!%)-");2-K)L-#.M)-!%)<8>5).(22($!)$!)-11+"1) (!)
"*+)'$&#1+)$/)'$!1"#&'"($!)H(!'2&%(!E)<8>7).(22($!)$!)"*+)#+%+D+2$4.+!")$/)*$&1(!E)1"$'JM>)))

;-4("-2) #+'+(4"1) '$!"(!&+) "$) G+) E+!+#-"+%) "*#$&E*) "*+) 1-2+) $/) 2-!%F) '$&!'(2) *$&1+1F) 1*-#+%)
$C!+#1*(4) %C+22(!E1) -!%) $"*+#) 4#$4+#"K>) )N*+);$&!'(2) #+'+(D+%) <O>O) .(22($!) (!) "*+) K+-#F) $/) C*('*)
<7>B).(22($!)*-%)"$)G+)4-(%)$D+#)"$)'+!"#-2)E$D+#!.+!">)

External Borrowing

N*+);$&!'(2)%(%)!$")!++%)"$)&!%+#"-J+)-!K)!+C)+A"+#!-2)G$##$C(!E)%&#(!E)"*+)K+-#>) )N*+)+A"+#!-2)
%+G") $/) <68:>I) .(22($!) 1*$C!) (!) "*+) P-2-!'+) ,*++") -") "*+) +!%)$ /) "*+) /(!-!'(-2) K+-#) #+2-"+1) "$)
G$##$C(!E)&!%+#"-J+!)(!)6788986)"$).++")-)$!+Q$//)%+G")1+""2+.+!")4-K.+!")"$);+!"#-2)R$D+#!.+!")
(!)#+2-"($!)"$)!+C),+2/QL(!-!'(!E)-##-!E+.+!"1)/$#)"*+)S$&1(!E)3+D+!&+)0''$&!">)

Pension Costs

N*+);$&!'(2T1)1*-#+)$/)"*+)-11+"1)-!%)2(-G(2("(+1)$/)"*+);$&!"K)U+!1($!)L&!%)1*$C)-!)+1"(.-"+%)!+")
2(-G(2("K)$/)<B:>7).(22($!)-"):8)V-#'*)678:>))N*(1)2(-G(2("K)*-1)!$)(.4-'")$!)"*+)2+D+2)$/)"*+);$&!'(2T1)
-D-(2-G2+)#+1+#D+1>)

L&#"*+#) (!/$#.-"($!) #+2-"(!E) "$) "*+) -11+"1F) 2(-G(2("(+1F) (!'$.+) -!%)+A 4+!%("&#+) $/) "*+) ;$&!'(2T1)
4+!1($!)1'*+.+)(1)4#+1+!"+%)(!)!$"+):B)1"-#"(!E)$!)4-E+)=6>)))

Looking ahead to 2013/14

;*-!E+1)"$)"*+)-##-!E+.+!"1)/$#)/&!%(!E)$/)2$'-2)E$D+#!.+!")1+#D('+1)'-.+)(!"$)+//+'")/#$.)8)04#(2)
678:)-!%)/&"&#+),"-"+.+!"1)$/)0''$&!")C(22)#+/2+'")"*+1+>))N*+)W$'-2)R$D+#!.+!")L(!-!'+)0'")6786)
*-1) (!"#$%&'+%) -) G&1(!+11) #-"+1) #+"+!"($!) 1'*+.+) "*-") +!-G2+1) 2$'-2) -&"*$#("(+1) "$) #+"-(!) -)
4#$4$#"($!) $/) "*+) G&1(!+11) #-"+1) E+!+#-"+%) (!) "*+(#) -#+->) ) X!%+#) 4#+D($&1) -##-!E+.+!"1) ;+!"#-2)
R$D+#!.+!"F)-1)4-#")$/)"*+)W$'-2)R$D+#!.+!"),+""2+.+!")-!!$&!'+.+!")+-'*)K+-#F)%+"+#.(!+%)"*+)
-.$&!")$/)"*+)Y-"($!-2)P&1(!+11)3-"+1)U$$2)"*-")+-'*)-&"*$#("K)C$&2%)#+'+(D+>)

02$!E1(%+) "*+)4$"+!"(-2) /$#) "*+);$&!'(2) "$)G+!+/(") /#$.)G&1(!+11) #-"+1)E#$C"*) (!) "*+);("KF) "*+)!+C)
/&!%(!E)-##-!E+.+!"1)G#(!E)-)%+E#++)$/)#(1J)"$)"*+);$&!'(2)(!)"*-")"*+);$&!'(2)C$&2%)*-D+)"$)G+-#)-)
4#$4$#"($!) $/) -!K) #+%&'"($!) (!) G&1(!+11) #-"+1F) /$#) +A-.42+) -1) -)' $!1+Z&+!'+) $/) %+.$2("($!) $/)
4#+.(1+1) $#) #+%&'"($!1) (!) "*+) #-"+-G2+) D-2&+) $/) +A(1"(!E) 4#$4+#"(+1) H(!'2&%(!E) #+"#$14+'"(D+)
#+%&'"($!1M>))

N*+);$&!'(2)C(22)!++%)"$)'-#+/&22K)-11+11)-!%)Z&-!"(/K)"*+)(!'$.+)(")+A4+'"1)"$)G+)-G2+)"$)#+"-(!)/#$.)
"*+)G&1(!+11)#-"+1)(")'$22+'"1)-!%).-J+)4#$D(1($!F)(/)'$!1(%+#+%)!+'+11-#KF)"$).++")"*+)'$1"1)$/)-!K)
#+/&!%1) "*-").(E*")G+'$.+)%&+)"$)G&1(!+11) #-"+4-K+#1)-1)-)'$!1+Z&+!'+)$/)1&''+11/&2)D-2&-"($!)
-44+-21>))

)

)
)
)

)
)

Page 133



 !"#$%&'"($!)"$)"*+)
,"-"+.+!")$/)0''$&!"1)

)
)

))))))))))))) )
) 2) )))))))0!!&-3)4+5$#")-!%),"-"+.+!")$/)0''$&!"1)
)))))))))))))) )))))))))))))))))))))

Further Information

6&#"*+#)(!/$#.-"($!)-7$&")"*+)-''$&!"1)(1)-8-(3-73+)/#$.9)

:+-%)$/)0''$&!"(!;),+#8('+1)
<-.7#(%;+)<("=)<$&!'(3)4+1$&#'+1)>+5-#".+!")
?($!):$&1+)
?($!)@-#%)
<-.7#(%;+)<AB)CD0)

 !)-%%("($!E)(!"+#+1"+%).+.7+#1)$/)"*+)5&73(')*-8+)-)#(;*")"$)(!15+'")"*+)-''$&!"1)+-'*)=+-#)7+/$#+)
"*+) -&%(") (1) '$.53+"+%F) ) G*+) -8-(3-7(3("=) $/) "*+)-''$&!"1) /$#) 5&73(') (!15+'"($!) (1) -%8+#"(1+%) (!) "*+)
3$'-3)5#+11)-!%)$!)"*+)<$&!'(3H1)I+7)1("+F)

Opinion

 !).=) $5(!($!) "*+) ,"-"+.+!") $/) 0''$&!"1) 5#+1+!") -) "#&+) -!%) /-(#) 8(+I) $/) "*+) /(!-!'(-3) 5$1("($!)$/)
<-.7#(%;+)<("=)<$&!'(3)-")CJ)K-#'*)BLJC)-!%)("1)(!'$.+)-!%)+M5+!%("&#+)/$#)"*+)=+-#)"*+!)+!%+%F)

)
)

)
)

)

David Horspool
Director of Resources
Date:  
)

)
)

)
)
)

)
)

)
)

)
)

)
)

)
)
)

)
)

)
)

)
)

)
)

Page 134



 
 

 

MAIN FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Page 135



Page 136



 !"#$%"#!#&"!'$()!)*+*#),$
$
$

$
$$
$ -##.!'$/*012)$!#3$()!)*+*#)$14$-&&1.#),$ 5$
$$$$$$$$$$$$$$$$$$$

Movement in Reserves Statement

67",$ ,)!)*+*#)$ ,718,$ )7*$ +19*+*#)$ "#$ )7*$ :*!2$ 1#$ )7*$ 3"44*2*#)$ 2*,*29*,$ 7*'3$ ;:$ )7*$ <1.#&"'=$
!#!':,*3$ "#)1$ >.,!;'*$2*,*29*,?$ @"A*A$ )71,*$ )7!)$&!#$;*$!00'"*3$ )1$4.#3$*B0*#3").2*$12$ 2*3.&*$ '1&!'$
)!B!)"1#C$!#3$1)7*2$2*,*29*,A$$67*$@,.20'.,C$12$3*4"&")$1#$)7*$0219","1#$14$,*29"&*,$'"#*$,718,$)7*$)2.*$
*&1#1+"&$ &1,)$ 14$ 0219"3"#D$ )7*$ <1.#&"'?,$ ,*29"&*,=$ +12*$ 3*)!"',$ 14$ 87"&7$ !2*$ ,718#$ "#$ )7*$
<1+02*7*#,"9*$ E#&1+*$ !#3$F B0*#3").2*$ ()!)*+*#)A$ $ 67*,*$ !2*$ 3"44*2*#)$ 421+$ )7*$ ,)!).)12:$
!+1.#),$2*G."2*3$ )1$;*$&7!2D*3$)1$ )7*$H*#*2!'$%.#3$I!'!#&*$!#3$)7*$J1.,"#D$/*9*#.*$-&&1.#)$
412$ &1.#&"'$ )!B$ ,*))"#D$ !#3$ 38*''"#D,$ 2*#)$ ,*))"#D$ 0.201,*,A$ $ 67*$ #*)$ @"#&2*!,*CK3*&2*!,*$ ;*412*$
)2!#,4*2,$ )1$ *!2+!2L*3$ 2*,*29*,$ '"#*$ ,718,$ )7*$ ,)!).)12:$ H*#*2!'$ %.#3$ I!'!#&*$ !#3$ J1.,"#D$
/*9*#.*$-&&1.#)$I!'!#&*$;*412*$!#:$3",&2*)"1#!2:$)2!#,4*2,$)1$12$421+$*!2+!2L*3$2*,*29*,A$

Financial year 2012/13 

(£000s)

G
e
n

e
ra

l 
F

u
n

d
 B

a
la

n
c
e

E
a
rm

a
rk

e
d

 G
e
n

e
ra

l

F
u

n
d

 R
e
s
e
rv

e
s

H
o

u
s
in

g
 R

e
v
e
n

u
e
 

A
c
c
o

u
n

t 
B

a
la

n
c
e

E
a
rm

a
rk

e
d

 H
R

A
 

R
e
s
e
rv

e
s

C
a
p

it
a
l 

R
e
c
e
ip

ts
 R

e
s
e
rv

e

M
a
jo

r 
R

e
p

a
ir

s
 R

e
s
e
rv

e

C
a
p

it
a
l 

G
ra

n
ts

 U
n

a
p

p
li

e
d

T
o

ta
l 

U
s
a
b

le
 R

e
s
e
rv

e
s

U
n

u
s
a
b

le
 R

e
s
e
rv

e
s

T
o

ta
l 

C
o

u
n

c
il
 R

e
s
e
rv

e
s

Balance at 1 April 2012 (9,458) (19,706) (6,974) (2,472) (10,420) (1,171) (5,261) (55,462) (437,960) (493,422)

 19*+*#)$"#$2*,*29*,$
3.2"#D$MNOMKOP$

N$ N$ N$ N$ N$ N$ N$ N$ N$ N$

@(.20'.,C$K$3*4"&")$1#$)7*$
0219","1#$14$,*29"&*,$

Q=P5N$ N$ O=ROM$ N$ N$ N$ N$ S=MNM$ N$ S=MNM$

T)7*2$&1+02*7*#,"9*$
"#&1+*$!#3$*B0*#3").2*$

N$ N$ N$ N$ N$ N$ N$ N$ @Q=OQQC$ @Q=OQQC$

Total Comprehensive 
income and expenditure

5,390 0 1,812 0 0 0 0 7,202 (5,155) 2,047

-3U.,)+*#),$;*)8**#$
!&&1.#)"#D$;!,",$!#3$
4.#3"#D$;!,",$.#3*2$
2*D.'!)"1#,$@V1)*$WC$

@W=QSSC$ N$ @O=SMWC$ N$ @M=S5NC$ @P=5WNC$ O=ONX$ @OO=5MQC$ OO=5MQ$ N$

Net (increase) / decrease 
before transfers to 
earmarked reserves

813 0 88 0 (2,790) (3,940) 1,106 (4,723) 6,770 2,047

62!#,4*2,$)1$K$@421+C$
*!2+!2L*3$2*,*29*,$@V1)*$
QC$

XQN$ @XQNC$ O=P5O$ @O=P5OC$ N$ N$ N$ N$ N$ N$

(Increase) / decrease in 
2012/13

1,463 (650) 1,479 (1,391) (2,790) (3,940) 1,106 (4,723) 6,770 2,047

Balance at 31 March 
2013

(7,995) (20,356) (5,495) (3,863) (13,210) (5,111) (4,155) (60,185) (431,190) (491,375) 

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

Page 137



 !"#$%"#!#&"!'$()!)*+*#),$
$
$

$$$$$$$$$$$$$ $
$ -.$ $$$$$$$/##0!'$1*234)$!#5$()!)*+*#)$36$/&&30#),$
$$$$$$$$$$$$$$ $$$$$$$$$$$$$$$$$$$$$

Financial Year 2011/12 (as restated)

(£000s)
G

e
n

e
ra

l 
F

u
n

d
 B

a
la

n
c
e

E
a
rm

a
rk

e
d

 G
e
n

e
ra

l 

F
u

n
d

 R
e
s
e
rv

e
s

H
o

u
s
in

g
 R

e
v
e
n

u
e
 

A
c
c
o

u
n

t 
B

a
la

n
c
e

E
a
rm

a
rk

e
d

 H
R

A
 

R
e
s
e
rv

e
s

C
a
p

it
a
l 

R
e
c
e
ip

ts
 R

e
s
e
rv

e

M
a
jo

r 
R

e
p

a
ir

s
 R

e
s
e
rv

e

C
a
p

it
a
l 

G
ra

n
ts

 U
n

a
p

p
li

e
d

T
o

ta
l 

U
s
a
b

le
 R

e
s
e
rv

e
s

U
n

u
s
a
b

le
 R

e
s
e
rv

e
s

T
o

ta
l 

C
o

u
n

c
il
 R

e
s
e
rv

e
s

Balance at 1 April 2011 (9,850) (17,318) (5,688) (2,236) (12,765) (352) (6,076) (54,285) (652,229) (706,514)

 37*+*#)$"#$4*,*47*,$504"#8$
9.--:-9$

$ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $

;(042'0,<$:$5*6"&")$3#$)=*$
2437","3#$36$,*47"&*,$

;-->?-?<$ .$ 9.@>@-@$ .$ .$ .$ .$ -AB>C.C$ .$ -AB>C.C$

D)=*4$&3+24*=*#,"7*$
"#&3+*$!#5$*E2*#5")04*$

.$ .$ .$ .$ .$ .$ .$ .$ -C>C@B$ -C>C@B$

Total Comprehensive 
income and expenditure

(11,313) 0 208,818 0 0 0 0 197,505 15,587 213,092

/5F0,)+*#),$G*)H**#$
!&&30#)"#8$G!,",$!#5$60#5"#8$
G!,",$0#5*4$4*80'!)"3#,$
;I3)*$J<$

A>?-B$ .$ ;9-.>?J.<$ .$ 9>?JC$ ;@-A<$ @-C$ ;-A@>K@9<$ -A@>K@9$ .$

Net (increase) / decrease 
before transfers to 
earmarked reserves

(1,996) 0 (1,522) 0 2,345 (819) 815 (1,177) 214,269 213,092

L4!#,6*4,$)3$:$;643+<$
*!4+!4M*5$4*,*47*,$;I3)*$C<$

9>?@@$ ;9>?@@<$ 9?K$ ;9?K<$ .$ .$ .$ .$ .$ .$

(Increase) / decrease in 
2011/12

392 (2,388) (1,286) (236) 2,345 (819) 815 (1,177) 214,269 213,092

Balance at 31 March 2012 (9,458) (19,706) (6,974) (2,472) (10,420) (1,171) (5,261) (55,462) (437,960) (493,422)

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

Page 138



 !"#$%"#!#&"!'$()!)*+*#),$
$
$

$
$$
$ -##.!'$/*012)$!#3$()!)*+*#)$14$-&&1.#),$ 55$
$$$$$$$$$$$$$$$$$$$

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement

67",$ ,)!)*+*#)$ ,718,$ )7*$!&&1.#)"#9$&1,),$ "#$ )7*$ :*!2;$ 14$ 021<"3"#9$ ,*2<"&*,;$ "#$!&&123!#&*$8")7$
9*#*2!'':$ !&&*0)*3$ !&&1.#)"#9$ 02!&)"&*,;$ 2!)7*2$ )7!#$ )7*$ !+1.#),$ )1$ =*$ 4.#3*3$ 421+$ )!>!)"1#?$$
-.)712")"*,$2!",*$)!>!)"1#$)1$&1<*2$*>0*#3").2*$"#$!&&123!#&*$8")7$2*9.'!)"1#,@$)7",$+!:$=*$3"44*2*#)$
421+$)7*$!&&1.#)"#9$&1,)?$$67*$)!>!)"1#$01,")"1#$",$,718#$"#$)7*$ 1<*+*#)$"#$/*,*2<*,$()!)*+*#)?$

2012/13
2011/12 (As restated see 

Note 43)

(£000s) Notes

G
ro

s
s
 E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

G
ro

s
s
 I
n

c
o

m
e

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

G
ro

s
s
 E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

G
ro

s
s
 I
n

c
o

m
e

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

A*#)2!'$,*2<"&*,$)1$)7*$0.='"&$ $ B;CCD$ EF;G5DH$ 5;IBC$ D;JIJ$ EF;KL5H$ 5;GKI$

A.').2!'$!#3$2*'!)*3$,*2<"&*,$ $ 5L;GDF$ EG;L5KH$ B;5FI$ 5K;IDF$ EG;GBDH$ D;CDB$

M#<"21#+*#)!'$!#3$2*'!)*3$,*2<"&*,$ $ 5L;FGK$ EI;GLCH$ D;L5K$ 5L;LGB$ EG;BLIH$ D;G5G$

N'!##"#9$(*2<"&*,$ $ D;GB5$ EK;LCFH$ J;5DG$ F;LCC$ EK;KGIH$ I;CII$

O"978!:,$!#3$)2!#,012)$,*2<"&*,$ $ I;GCB$ ED;FJDH$ EL;LIBH$ I;DJJ$ ED;FCKH$ EK;DLJH$

P1&!'$!.)712"):$71.,"#9$Q$,*))'*+*#)$0!:+*#)$)1$91<*2#+*#)$
412$O1.,"#9$/*<*#.*$-&&1.#)$,*'4R4"#!#&"#9$

L$ C$ C$ C$ K5L;IFK$ C$ K5L;IFK$

P1&!'$!.)712"):$71.,"#9$EO1.,"#9$/*<*#.*$-&&1.#)H$Q$1)7*2$ L$ LL;KIB$ ELJ;JGKH$ EL;LDLH$ LC;FF5$ ELG;IBBH$ EL;DKDH$

S)7*2$71.,"#9$,*2<"&*,$ $ GK;GGD$ ELF;GJFH$ G;BD5$ G5;JDL$ ELJ;BKLH$ G;FJC$

A12012!)*$!#3$3*+1&2!)"&$&12*$ $ K;BKG$ C$ K;BKG$ K;JGI$ C$ K;JGI$

T1#$3",)2"=.)*3$&1,),$ L$ E5;GJ5H$ C$ E5;GJ5H$ KIK$ C$ KIK$

$ $ $ $ $ $ $ $

Cost of Services 127,307 (102,344) 24,963 336,681 (99,133) 237,548

$ $ $ $ $ $ $ $

S)7*2$10*2!)"#9$*>0*#3").2*$ J$ 5;KJK$ EIDBH$ JFL$ 5;DBB$ ELFH$ 5;DJK$

%"#!#&"#9$!#3$"#<*,)+*#)$"#&1+*$!#3$*>0*#3").2*$ F$ 5B;CC5$ E5D;KGGH$ FIF$ 55;CCC$ ELL;CGDH$ EKK;CGDH$

6!>!)"1#$!#3$#1#R,0*&"4"&$92!#)$"#&1+*$ D$ C$ E5B;5B5H$ E5B;5B5H$ C$ E5B;DIFH$ E5B;DIFH$

(Surplus) / deficit on provision of services 9 147,570 (140,368) 7,202 349,580 (152,075) 197,505

E(.20'.,H$U$3*4"&")$1#$2*<!'.!)"1#$14$N210*2):;$N'!#)$!#3$
MV."0+*#)$!,,*),$

LI$ $ $ E5J;KBLH$ $ $ EL;BJIH$

-&).!2"!'$E9!"#,H$U$'1,,*,$1#$0*#,"1#$!,,*),$U$'"!="'")"*,$ LB$ $ $ 55;5LD$ $ $ 5B;IIK$

Other comprehensive (income) / expenditure (5,155) 15,587

Total Comprehensive (Income) / Expenditure 2,047 213,092

$

$

$

Page 139



 !"#$%"#!#&"!'$()!)*+*#),$
$
$

$$$$$$$$$$$$$ $
$ -.$ $$$$$$$/##0!'$1*234)$!#5$()!)*+*#)$36$/&&30#),$
$$$$$$$$$$$$$$ $$$$$$$$$$$$$$$$$$$$$

Balance Sheet

78*$9!'!#&*$(8**)$,83:,$)8*$;!'0*$!)$)8*$,)!)*5$5!)*$36$)8*$!,,*),$!#5$'"!<"'")"*,$4*&3=#",*5$<>$)8*$
?30#&"'@$$78*$#*)$!,,*),$36$)8*$?30#&"'$A!,,*),$'*,,$'"!<"'")"*,B$!4*$+!)&8*5$<>$)8*$4*,*4;*,$8*'5$<>$
)8*$ ?30#&"'@$ $ 1*,*4;*,$ !4*$ 4*234)*5$ "#$ ):3$ &!)*=34"*,@$ $ 78*$ 6"4,)$ &!)*=34>$ 36$ 4*,*4;*,$ ",$ 0,!<'*$
4*,*4;*,C$ "@*@$ )83,*$4*,*4;*,$ )8!)$ )8*$?30#&"'$+!>$0,*$ )3$243;"5*$,*4;"&*,C$,0<D*&)$ )3$ )8*$#**5$ )3$
+!"#)!"#$ !$ 2405*#)$ '*;*'$ 36$ 4*,*4;*,$ !#5$ !#>$ ,)!)0)34>$ '"+")!)"3#,$ 3#$ )8*"4$ 0,*$ A634$ *E!+2'*$ )8*$
?!2")!'$1*&*"2),$1*,*4;*$ )8!)$+!>$3#'>$<*$0,*5$ )3$ 60#5$&!2")!'$*E2*#5")04*$34$ 4*2!>$5*<)B@$ $78*$
,*&3#5$&!)*=34>$36$4*,*4;*,$ ",$)83,*$)8!)$ )8*$?30#&"'$ ",$#3)$!<'*$)3$0,*$)3$243;"5*$,*4;"&*,@$ $78",$
&!)*=34>$ 36$ 4*,*4;*,$ "#&'05*,$ )83,*$ )8!)$ 83'5$ 0#4*!'",*5$ =!"#,$ !#5$ '3,,*,$ A634$ *E!+2'*$ )8*$
1*;!'0!)"3#$ 1*,*4;*BC$ :8*4*$ !+30#),$ :30'5$ 3#'>$ <*&3+*$ !;!"'!<'*$ )3$ 243;"5*$ ,*4;"&*,$ "6$ )8*$
!,,*),$:*4*$ ,3'5F$ !#5$ 4*,*4;*,$ )8!)$ 83'5$ )"+"#=$5"66*4*#&*,$ ,83:#$ "#$ )8*$ 3;*+*#)$ "#$1*,*4;*,$
()!)*+*#)$'"#*$G/5D0,)+*#),$<*):**#$!&&30#)"#=$<!,",$!#5$60#5"#=$<!,",$0#5*4$4*=0'!)"3#,H@$

(£000s) Notes 31 March 2013 31 March 2012 1 April 2011 

I432*4)>C$I'!#)$!#5$JK0"2+*#)$ -L$ L-MCNOP$ L-QCOPN$ L-.CNMO$

R*4")!=*$/,,*),$ -M$ PST$ PST$ PST$

U#;*,)+*#)$I432*4)>$ ..$ --PCPNL$ ---CSNS$ MLCQSP$

U#)!#="<'*$/,,*),$ .S$ PN.$ OSQ$ OTP$

/,,*),$R*'5$634$(!'*$ .N$ SCSOP$ T$ T$

V3#=$7*4+$U#;*,)+*#),$ .O$ -CNSP$ .C-MT$ SC.MP$

V3#=$7*4+$W*<)34,$ .L$ -C-TQ$ -C---$ -CTT-$

Long Term Assets 741,328 734,189 714,858

(834)$7*4+$U#;*,)+*#),$ .O$ OMCTMS$ ONCLTL$ OTCOQN$

/,,*),$R*'5$634$(!'*$ .N$ -CT.P$ T$ T$

U#;*#)34"*,$ $ .NP$ .SM$ STS$

(834)$7*4+$W*<)34,$ .Q$ QCTNL$ QCTNM$ --C-NN$

?!,8$!#5$?!,8$JK0";!'*#),$ .M$ NCNSP$ PCNQ-$ .COON$

Current Assets 76,201 70,705 64,624

(834)$7*4+$?4*5")34,$ ST$ A--CP.TB$ A-SCTOSB$ AQCNLNB$

1*&*"2),$"#$/5;!#&*$ S-$ ASCSO.B$ A.CNNMB$ ASCP.PB$

I43;","3#,$ S.$ ASLPB$ AS-OB$ A.QPB$

Current Liabilities (15,136) (16,147) (12,475)

V3#=$7*4+$93443:"#=$ SN$ A.-SCLOPB$ A.-SCLOPB$ T$

X)8*4$V3#=$7*4+$V"!<"'")"*,$ SM$ AM.CMLNB$ ANQCMPOB$ AONCQN-B$

?!2")!'$Y4!#),$1*&*"2),$"#$/5;!#&*$ SS$ APCSMNB$ A.CN.LB$ A.CL..B$

Long Term Liabilities (311,018) (295,325) (60,493)

Net Assets 491,375 493,422 706,514

Z,!<'*$1*,*4;*,$ SP$ ALTC-QOB$ AOOCPL.B$ AOPC.QOB$

Z#0,!<'*$1*,*4;*,$ SO$ APS-C-MTB$ APSNCMLTB$ ALO.C..MB$

Total Reserves (491,375) (493,422) (706,514)

$
$
$
$

David Horspool, Director of Resources  

Page 140



 !"#$%"#!#&"!'$()!)*+*#),$
$
$

$
$$
$ -##.!'$/*012)$!#3$()!)*+*#)$14$-&&1.#),$ 56$
$$$$$$$$$$$$$$$$$$$

Cash Flow Statement

78*$9!,8$%'1:$()!)*+*#)$,81:,$)8*$&8!#;*,$"#$&!,8$!#3$&!,8$*<."=!'*#),$14$)8*$91.#&"'$3.2"#;$
)8*$ 2*012)"#;$ 0*2"13>$ $78*$ ,)!)*+*#)$ ,81:,$ 81:$ )8*$ 91.#&"'$ ;*#*2!)*,$ !#3$.,*,$ &!,8$ !#3$ &!,8$
*<."=!'*#),$?@$&'!,,"4@"#;$&!,8$4'1:,$!,$10*2!)"#;A$"#=*,)"#;$!#3$4"#!#&"#;$!&)"=")"*,>$$78*$!+1.#)$14$
#*)$ &!,8$ 4'1:,$ !2","#;$ 421+$ 10*2!)"#;$ !&)"=")"*,$ ",$ !$B *@$ "#3"&!)12$ 14$ )8*$ *C)*#)$ )1$ :8"&8$ )8*$
10*2!)"1#,$ 14$ )8*$ 91.#&"'$ !2*$ 4.#3*3$ ?@$ :!@$ 14$ )!C!)"1#A$ ;2!#)$ "#&1+*$ !#3$ ?@$ )8*$ 2*&"0"*#),$ 14$
,*2="&*,$021="3*3$?@$ )8*$91.#&"'>$ $ D#=*,)"#;$!&)"=")"*,$ 2*02*,*#)$ )8*$*C)*#)$ )1$:8"&8$&!,8$1.)4'1:,$
8!=*$ ?**#$+ !3*$ 412$ 2*,1.2&*,$ :8"&8$ !2*$ "#)*#3*3$ )1$ &1#)2"?.)*$ )1$ )8*$ 91.#&"'E,$ 4.).2*$ ,*2="&*$
3*'"=*2@>$$9!,8$4'1:,$!2","#;$421+$4"#!#&"#;$!&)"=")"*,$,81:$&'!"+,$)8!)$:"''$?*$+!3*$1#$4.).2*$&!,8$
4'1:,$?@$021="3*2,$14$&!0")!'$F">*>$?1221:"#;G$)1$)8*$91.#&"'>$

(£000s) Notes 2012/13 2011/12 

$ $ $ $

9!,8$4'1:,$421+$10*2!)"#;$!&)"=")"*,$ $ $

9!,8$2*&*"0),$ 5HIAJHI$ 55KAHII$

9!,8$0!@+*#),$ FJ6AL5IG$ F6MHA5JMG$

$ $ $

N*)$&!,8$4'1:,$421+$10*2!)"#;$!&)"=")"*,$ 40 15,190 (205,104)

$ $ $

N*)$&!,8$4'1:,$421+$"#=*,)"#;$!&)"=")"*,$ 41 (9,020) (13,335)

$ $ $

N*)$&!,8$4'1:,$421+$4"#!#&"#;$!&)"=")"*,$ 42 (3,217) 220,663

$ $ $

Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents 2,953 2,224

$ $ $

9!,8$!#3$&!,8$*<."=!'*#),$!)$)8*$?*;"##"#;$14$)8*$@*!2$ 29 OALI5$ MAKKL$

$ $ $

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 29 7,734 4,781

$
$
$
$
$
$
$

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

Page 141



Page 142



 

 

NOTES TO THE MAIN FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 143



 
 

              
 !"        #$$%&' ()*+,- &$. /-&-)0)$- +1 #22+%$-3 
                                   

INDEX TO THE NOTES TO THE MAIN FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
  

1 4,5-52&' 6%.7)0)$-3 5$ #**'85$7 #22+%$-5$7 9+'525)3 ::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::: !; 

2 #33%0*-5+$3 <&.) #=+%- ->) ?%-%,) &$. @->), <&A+, /+%,2)3 +1 B3-50&-5+$ C$2),-&5$-8 ::::::::::::::::::::: !; 

3 <&-),5&' D-)03 +1 D$2+0) &$. BE*)$.5-%,) ::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::: !F 

4 #.A%3-0)$-3 =)-G))$ #22+%$-5$7 H&353 &$. ?%$.5$7 H&353 %$.), ()7%'&-5+$3 ::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::: !I 

5 <+J)0)$- 5$ ()3),J)3 /-&-)0)$- K L,&$31),3 -+ M 1,+0 B&,0&,N). ()3),J)3 ::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::: OP 

6 @->), @*),&-5$7 BE*)$.5-%,) :::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::: O" 

7 ?5$&$25$7 &$. D$J)3-0)$- D$2+0) &$. BE*)$.5-%,) ::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::: O" 

8 L&E&-5+$ &$. Q+$ /*)25152 R,&$- D$2+0)3 ::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::: O" 

9 #0+%$-3 ()*+,-). 1+, ()3+%,2) #''+2&-5+$ S)2535+$3 ::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::: O; 

10 L,&.5$7 @*),&-5+$3 ::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::: OI 

11 #7)$28 /),J52)3 ::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::: TU 

12 <)0=),3V #''+G&$2)3 ::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::: TU 

13 ()'&-). 9&,-8 L,&$3&2-5+$3 ::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::: T! 

14 B0*'+8)) ()0%$),&-5+$ :::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::: T! 

15 #%.5- 4+3-3 :::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::: TT 

16 9,+*),-8W 9'&$- &$. BX%5*0)$- ::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::: TY 

17 9,+*),-8W 9'&$- &$. BX%5*0)$- K ()J&'%&-5+$3 :::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::: T" 

18 9,+*),-8W 9'&$- &$. BX%5*0)$- K S)*,)25&-5+$ ::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::: T; 

19 Z),5-&7) #33)-3 ::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::: T; 

20 4&*5-&' BE*)$.5-%,) &$. 4&*5-&' ?5$&$25$7 ::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::: TF 

21 4&*5-&' 4+005-0)$-3 :::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::: TI 

22 D$J)3-0)$- 9,+*),-5)3 ::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::: YU 

23 D$-&$75=') #33)-3 ::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::: Y! 

24 [)&3)3 ::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::: YO 

25 />+,-\L),0 &$. [+$7\L),0 D$J)3-0)$-3 :::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::: YT 

26 [+$7\L),0 S)=-+,3 ::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::: Y" 

27 #33)-3 Z)'. 1+, /&'):::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::: Y" 

28 S)=-+,3 :::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::: Y; 

29 4&3> &$. 4&3> BX%5J&')$-3 :::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::: Y; 

30 />+,-\L),0 4,).5-+,3 :::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::: Y; 

31 ()2)5*-3 5$ #.J&$2) ::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::: YF 

32 9,+J535+$3 :::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::: YF 

33 R,&$- D$2+0) :::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::: YI 

34 C3&=') ()3),J)3 ::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::: PU 

35 C$%3&=') ()3),J)3 ::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::: PU 

36 4+$-5$7)$- [5&=5'5-5)3 &$. #33)-3 :::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::: PY 

37 ?5$&$25&' D$3-,%0)$-3 :::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::: P" 

38 Q&-%,) &$. )E-)$- +1 ,53N3 &,535$7 1,+0 15$&$25&' 5$3-,%0)$-3 ::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::: PF 

39 S)15$). H)$)15- 9)$35+$ /2>)0)3 ::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::: "O 

40 4&3>1'+G /-&-)0)$- K @*),&-5$7 #2-5J5-5)3 ::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::: "" 

41 4&3>1'+G /-&-)0)$- K D$J)3-5$7 #2-5J5-5)3 :::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::: "" 

42 4&3>1'+G /-&-)0)$- K ?5$&$25$7 #2-5J5-5)3 ::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::: "; 

43 9,5+, 9),5+. #.A%3-0)$-3  ::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::: "; 

44 D0*&2- +1 ->) &.+*-5+$ +1 $)G 3-&$.&,.3 :::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::: "F 

45 S&-) ->) /-&-)0)$- +1 #22+%$-3 G),) &%->+,53). 1+, 533%)  ::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::: "F 

 

Page 144



 !"#$%"!%"&#%'()*%+)*(*,)(-%."("#/#*"$%
%
%

%
% 0**1(-%2#3!4"%(*5%."("#/#*"%!6%0,,!1*"$% 78%
%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%

1 Critical Judgements in Applying Accounting Policies

9*%(33-:)*;%"&#%(,,!1*")*;%3!-),)#$%$#"%!1"%!*%3(;#$%<=%"!%><?%"&#%@!1*,)-%&($%&(5%"!%/(A#%,#4"()*%
B15;#/#*"$% (C!1"% ,!/3-#D% "4(*$(,")!*$% !4% "&!$#% )*E!-E)*;% 1*,#4"()*":% (C!1"% 61"14#% #E#*"$F% % G&#%
,4)"),(-%B15;#/#*"$%/(5#%)*%"&#%."("#/#*"%!6%0,,!1*"$%(4#H%

 % G&#4#%)$%(%5#;4##%!6%1*,#4"()*":%(C!1"%61"14#%-#E#-$%!6%61*5)*;%6!4%-!,(-%;!E#4*/#*"F%%I!J#E#4?%
"&#%@!1*,)-%&($%5#"#4/)*#5%"&("%"&)$%1*,#4"()*":%)$%*!"%:#"%$166),)#*"%"!%34!E)5#%(*%)*5),(")!*%"&("%
"&#%($$#"$%!6%"&#%@!1*,)-%/);&"%C#%)/3()4#5%($%(%4#$1-"%!6%(%*##5%"!%,-!$#%6(,)-)")#$%(*5%4#51,#%
-#E#-$%!6%$#4E),#%34!E)$)!*F%

2 Assumptions Made About the Future and Other Major Sources of Estimation 
Uncertainty

G&#%."("#/#*"%!6%0,,!1*"$%,!*"()*$%#$")/("#5%6);14#$%"&("%(4#%C($#5%!*%($$1/3")!*$%/(5#%C:%"&#%
@!1*,)-%(C!1"% "&#%61"14#%!4% "&("%(4#%!"&#4J)$#%1*,#4"()*F% %K$")/("#$%(4#%/(5#%"(A)*;% )*"!%(,,!1*"%
&)$"!4),(-%#D3#4)#*,#?%,144#*"%"4#*5$%(*5%!"&#4%4#-#E(*"%6(,"!4$F%%I!J#E#4?%C#,(1$#%C(-(*,#$%,(**!"%
C#%5#"#4/)*#5%J)"&%,#4"()*":?%(,"1(-%4#$1-"$%,!1-5%C#%/("#4)(--:%5)66#4#*"%64!/%"&#%($$1/3")!*$%(*5%
#$")/("#$F%

%
G&#%)"#/$%)*%"&#%@!1*,)-L$%M(-(*,#%.&##"%("%=7%'(4,&%NO7=%P#D,-15)*;%($$#"$%(*5%-)(C)-)")#$%"&("%(4#%
,(44)#5%("%6()4%E(-1#%C($#5%!*%(%4#,#*"-:%!C$#4E#5%/(4A#"%34),#Q%6!4%J&),&%"&#4#%)$%(%$);*)6),(*"%4)$A%
!6%/("#4)(-%(5B1$"/#*"%(4#%($%6!--!J$H%

Pensions Liability

K$")/(")!*%!6%"&#%*#"%-)(C)-)":%"!%3(:%3#*$)!*$%5#3#*5$%!*%(%*1/C#4%!6%,!/3-#D%B15;#/#*"$%4#-(")*;%
"!%"&#%5)$,!1*"%4("#%1$#5?%"&#%4("#%("%J&),&%$(-(4)#$%(4#%34!B#,"#5%"!%)*,4#($#?%,&(*;#$%)*%4#")4#/#*"%
(;#$?%/!4"(-)":%4("#$%(*5%#D3#,"#5%4#"14*$%!*%3#*$)!*%61*5%($$#"$F%%0%6)4/%!6%,!*$1-")*;%(,"1(4)#$%)$%
#*;(;#5%"!%34!E)5#%"&#%@!1*,)-%J)"&%#D3#4"%(5E),#%(C!1"%"&#%($$1/3")!*$%"!%C#%(33-)#5F%%G&#%#66#,"$%
!*%"&#%*#"%3#*$)!*$%-)(C)-)":%!6%,&(*;#$%)*%)*5)E)51(-%($$1/3")!*$%,(*%C#%/#($14#5%($%6!--!J$F%%%

%

Change in assumptions at 31 March 2013
Approximate 

monetary amount 
(£000)

OFRS%5#,4#($#%)*%4#(-%5)$,!1*"%4("#% NR?OTO%

7%:#(4%)*,4#($#%)*%/#/C#4%-)6#%#D3#,"(*,:% 8?NT7%

OFRS%)*,4#($#%)*%"&#%$(-(4:%)*,4#($#%4("#% U?UNU%

OFRS%)*,4#($#%)*%"&#%3#*$)!*%)*,4#($#%4("#% 7<?7OR%

%

I!J#E#4?%"&#%($$1/3")!*$%)*"#4(,"%)*%,!/3-#D%J(:$%$!%,(4#%$&!1-5%C#%"(A#*%)*%-!!A)*;%("%,&(*;#$%
)*%!*#%E(4)(C-#%)*%)$!-(")!*F%

Property, Plant and Equipment

0$$#"$% (4#% 5#34#,)("#5% !E#4% 1$#61-% -)E#$% "&("% (4#% 5#3#*5#*"% !*% ($$1/3")!*$% (C!1"% "&#% -#E#-% !6%
4#3()4$%(*5%/()*"#*(*,#%"&("%J)--%C#%)*,144#5%)*%4#-(")!*%"!%)*5)E)51(-%($$#"$F%%96%"&#%@!1*,)-%5)5%*!"%
$1$"()*% )"$% ,144#*"% $3#*5)*;% !*% 4#3()4$% (*5% /()*"#*(*,#% "&#% 1$#61-% -)E#$% ,144#*"-:% ($$);*#5% "!%
($$#"$%/(:%C#%4#51,#5F%
%

Page 145



 !"#$%"!%"&#%'()*%+)*(*,)(-%."("#/#*"$%
%
%

%%%%%%%%%%%%% %
% 01% %%%%%%%2**3(-%4#5!6"%(*7%."("#/#*"%!8%2,,!3*"$%
%%%%%%%%%%%%%% %%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%

98% "&#%3$#83-% -)8#%!8%($$#"$% )$% 6#73,#7:%7#56#,)(")!*% )*,6#($#$%(*7% "&#%,(66;)*<%=(-3#%!8% "&#%($$#"$%
8(-->%%9"%)$%#$")/("#7%"&("%"&#%(**3(-%7#56#,)(")!*%,&(6<#%8!6%($$#"$%?!3-7%)*,6#($#%@;%(556!A)/("#-;%
BCDE:FFF%8!6%#=#6;%;#(6%"&("%3$#83-%-)=#$%&(7%"!%@#%6#73,#7>%

%
G&#% H!3*,)-% !?*$% (*% (6#(% !8% I>CE% (,6#$% ("% H-(;% +(6/% !*% "&#% $!3"&#6*% 86)*<#% !*% "&#% ,)";>% %G&# %
#-#/#*"%!8%"&)$%-(*7%"&("%?)--%@#%6#"()*#7%@;%"&#%H!3*,)-%8!6%"&#%7#=#-!5/#*"%!8%$!,)(-%&!3$)*<%)$%&#-7%
?)"&)*%"&#%($$#"%,("#<!6;%!8%56!5#6";:%5-(*"%(*7%#J3)5/#*">%%G&#%6#/()*7#6:%?&),&%)$%"!%@#%7)$5!$#7%
!8%8!6%/(6K#"%&!3$)*<:%)$%&#-7%)*%-!*<%"#6/%($$#"$%&#-7%8!6%$(-#>%%G&#%"!"(-%(6#(%!8%-(*7%)$%($$#$$#7%
($%&(=)*<%(%=(-3#%!8%BI>LE%/)--)!*%($%("%D0%'(6,&%LF0D>%%9*%7#"#6/)*)*<%"&#%56!5!6")!*%!8%"&)$%=(-3#%
"!%@#%)*,-37#7%)*%($$#"$%&#-7%8!6%$(-#%(*7%56!5#6";:%5-(*"%(*7%#J3)5/#*"%"&#%H!3*,)-%&($%3$#7%"&#%
/!$"%35%"!%7("#%#$")/("#%(=()-(@-#%"!%)":%?&),&%)$%"&("%$!,)(-%&!3$)*<%?)--%(,,!3*"%8!6%(556!A)/("#-;%
EFM%!8%"&#%$)"#>%%N!?#=#6:%"&)$%56!5!6")!*%,!3-7%,&(*<#%($%7#"()-#7%5-(*$%8!6%"&#%$)"#%(6#%8)*(-)$#7%
(*7%(556!=#7>%%

3 Material Items of Income and Expenditure

G&#%8!--!?)*<%/("#6)(-%)"#/$%!8%)*,!/#%(*7%#A5#*7)"36#%(6#%)*,-37#7%)*%"&#%H!/56#&#*$)=#%9*,!/#%
(*7%OA5#*7)"36#%."("#/#*">%

%
2$%7)$,-!$#7%)*%"&#%,!/5(6(")=#%8)<36#$%8!6%LF00P0L%!*%"&#%8(,#%!8%"&#%H!/56#&#*$)=#%9*,!/#%(*7%
OA5#*7)"36#%."("#/#*"%"&#%H!3*,)-%/(7#%(%$#""-#/#*"%5(;/#*"%"!%,#*"6(-%<!=#6*/#*"%)*%6#$5#,"%!8%
$#-8Q8)*(*,)*<%!8%"&#%N!3$)*<%4#=#*3#%2,,!3*"%!8%BL0D>I%/)--)!*%)*%'(6,&%LF0L>%

%
9*%(77)")!*%"&#%8!--!?)*<%/("#6)(-%)"#/$%(6#%)*,-37#7%?)"&)*%"&#%6#-#=(*"%$#6=),#%-)*#$R%

%
2%*#"%7#@)"%8!6%6#=(-3(")!*%-!$$#$%!8%B1>L%/)--)!*%&($%@##*%,&(6<#7%"!%#A5#*7)"36#%?)"&)*%"&#%S!,(-%
(3"&!6)";%TN42U%*#"%,!$"%!8%$#6=),#%-)*#>%%G&#%,!/5(6(")=#%#A5#*7)"36#%8)<36#%8!6%LF00P0L%)*,-37#$%(%
*#"%,6#7)"%8!6%6#=#6$(-%!8%56#=)!3$%6#=(-3(")!*%-!$$#$%!8%BV>1%/)--)!*>%%'!6#%7#"()-%!*%"&#%/!=#/#*"$%
)*%"&#%=(-3#%!8%"&#%H!3*,)-W$%&!3$)*<%$"!,K%,(*%@#%8!3*7%)*%*!"#%0I%"!%"&#%/()*%8)*(*,)(-%$"("#/#*"$>%

%
2%*#"%,6#7)"%!8%B0>D%/)--)!*%&($%@##*%)*,-37#7%)*%<6!$$%#A5#*7)"36#%(<()*$"%*!*Q7)$"6)@3"#7%,!$"$%)*%
6#$5#,"% !8% "&#% 6#=#6$(-% !8% 56#=)!3$% 6#=(-3(")!*% -!$$#$% !*%&!3$#$% )*% "&#%N42% *!?% #(6/(6K#7% 8!6%
6#7#=#-!5/#*">%

%
G&#%,!/5(6(")=#%8)<36#%8!6%LF00P0L%8!6%"&#%+)*(*,)*<%(*7%)*=#$"/#*"%)*,!/#%)*,-37#7%)*,6#($#$%)*%
"&#%8()6%=(-3#%!8%)*=#$"/#*"%56!5#6")#$%!8%B0E>E%/)--)!*>%
%
G&#%.365-3$% !*% 6#=(-3(")!*% !8% X6!5#6";:% X-(*"% (*7%OJ3)5/#*"% )*,-37#$% (% *#"% B1>E%/)--)!*% <()*% )*%
6#$5#,"% !8% "&#%H!3*,)-W$% &!3$)*<% $"!,K% (*7%(*% (77)")!*(-% BE>0%/)--)!*% <()*% )*% 6#$5#,"% !8% 56#=)!3$%
N42% 7?#--)*<$% *!?% #(6/(6K#7% ($% $365-3$% 8!6% 7)$5!$(-% (*7% "&#6#8!6#% *!%- !*<#6% =(-3#7% !*% (%
7)$,!3*"#7%$!,)(-%&!3$)*<%@($)$>%
%

%

%

%

%

%

%
%

%

%

%

%

Page 146



 !"#$%"!%"&#%'()*%+)*(*,)(-%."("#/#*"$%
%
%

%
% 0**1(-%2#3!4"%(*5%."("#/#*"%!6%0,,!1*"$% 78%
%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%

4 Movement in Reserves Statement – Adjustments between Accounting Basis and 
Funding Basis under Regulations

9&#%"!"(-%,!/34#&#*$):#%)*,!/#%(*5%#;3#*5)"14#%4#,!<*)$#5%=>%"&#%?!1*,)-%)*%"&#%>#(4@%)$%34#3(4#5%
)*%(,,!45(*,#%A)"&%34!3#4%(,,!1*")*<%34(,"),#B%%9&)$%*!"#%5#"()-$%"&#%(5C1$"/#*"$%"&("%(4#%/(5#%"!%
)*,!/#%(*5%#;3#*5)"14#%"!%4#6-#,"%"&#%4#$!14,#$%"&("%(4#%$3#,)6)#5%=>%$"("1"#%($%=#)*<%(:()-(=-#%"!%
"&#%?!1*,)-%"!%/##"%61"14#%,(3)"(-%(*5%4#:#*1#%#;3#*5)"14#B%%

Financial year 2012/13 

%

Usable Reserves

(£000s)

G
e
n

e
ra

l 
F

u
n

d

B
a
la

n
c
e

H
o

u
s
in

g
 R

e
v
e
n

u
e
 

A
c
c
o

u
n

t 
B

a
la

n
c
e

C
a
p

it
a
l 

R
e
c
e
ip

ts
 

R
e
s
e
rv

e

M
a
jo

r 
R

e
p

a
ir

s
 

R
e
s
e
rv

e

C
a
p

it
a
l 

G
ra

n
ts

 

U
n

a
p

p
li
e
d

U
n

u
s
a
b

le
 R

e
s
e
rv

e
s

Adjustments primarily involving the 
Capital Grants Adjustment Account:

Reversal of items debited or 
credited to the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement

?&(4<#$%6!4%5#34#,)(")!*%(*5%
)/3()4/#*"%!6%*!*D,144#*"%($$#"$%

EF@FGHI% J% J% J% J% F@FGH%

 #"%4#:(-1(")!*%-!$$#$%!*%34!3#4">@%
3-(*"%(*5%#K1)3/#*"%

778% EH@LHJI% J% J% J% H@MF7%

'!:#/#*"$%)*%"&#%/(4N#"%:(-1#%!6%
)*:#$"/#*"%34!3#4")#$%

O@PJL% 7G% J% J% J% EO@POPI%

Q/3()4/#*"%-!$$#$%!*%($$#"$%&#-5%6!4%
$(-#%

J% EPGFI% J% J% J% PGF%

0/!4")$(")!*%!6%)*"(*<)=-#%($$#"$% E7FHI% J% J% J% J% 7FH%

2#:#*1#%#;3#*5)"14#%61*5#5%64!/%
,(3)"(-%1*5#4%$"("1"#%(*5%5#%/)*)/)$%
,(3)"(-%#;3#*5)"14#%

EO@OGOI% E77HI% J% J% J% O@PHL%

R20%.#-6D6)*(*,)*<%$#""-#/#*"%
3(>/#*"%61*5#5%64!/%,(3)"(-%1*5#4%
$"("1"#%

J% J% J% J% J% J%

0/!1*"$%!6%*!*D,144#*"%($$#"$%A4)""#*%
!66%!*%5)$3!$(-%!4%$(-#%($%3(4"%!6%"&#%
<()*S-!$$%!*%5)$3!$(-%

EO7FI% EP@H8FI% J% J% J% P@8JL%

T4):("#%$#,"!4%&!1$)*<%-!(*$%
(5C1$"/#*"%

M% J% J% J% J% EMI%

Insertion of items not debited or 
credited to the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement

T4):("#%$#,"!4%&!1$)*<%-!(*%
4#3(>/#*"$%U%!4)<)*(-%-!(*%-#$$%"&(*%
V7J@JJJ%

EOHI% J% J% J% J% OH%

?(3)"(-%#;3#*5)"14#%,&(4<#5%(<()*$"%
W#*#4(-%+1*5%(*5%R20%=(-(*,#$%

O@HLL% M@FFM% J% J% J% E7J@7PGI%

%

%

%

%

Page 147



 !"#$%"!%"&#%'()*%+)*(*,)(-%."("#/#*"$%
%
%

%%%%%%%%%%%%% %
% 01% %%%%%%%2**3(-%4#5!6"%(*7%."("#/#*"%!8%2,,!3*"$%
%%%%%%%%%%%%%% %%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%

Usable Reserves

(£000s)

G
e
n

e
ra

l 
F

u
n

d

B
a
la

n
c
e

H
o

u
s
in

g
 R

e
v
e
n

u
e
 

A
c
c
o

u
n

t 
B

a
la

n
c
e

C
a
p

it
a
l 

R
e
c
e
ip

ts
 

R
e
s
e
rv

e

M
a
jo

r 
R

e
p

a
ir

s
 R

e
s
e
rv

e

C
a
p

it
a
l 

G
ra

n
ts

 

U
n

a
p

p
li
e
d

U
n

u
s
a
b

le
 R

e
s
e
rv

e
s

Adjustments primarily involving the 
Capital Grants Unapplied Account:

9(5)"(-%:6(*"$%(*7%,!*"6);3")!*$%
3*(55-)#7%,6#7)"#7%"!%"&#%
9!/56#&#*$)<#%=*,!/#%(*7%
>?5#*7)"36#%."("#/#*"%

@A0B@% C@B% 1% 1% D@AEFFG% 1%

H6(*$8#6%!8%,(5)"(-%,!*"6);3")!*$%
3*(55-)#7%"!%"&#%I#*#6(-%+3*7%

D@00G% 1% 1% 1% @00% 1%

255-),(")!*%!8%:6(*"$%"!%,(5)"(-%
8)*(*,)*:%"6(*$8#66#7%"!%"&#%9(5)"(-%
27J3$"/#*"%2,,!3*"%

1% 1% 1% 1% 0AEB@% D0AEB@G%

Adjustments primarily involving the 
Capital Receipts Reserve:

H6(*$8#6%!8%,($&%$(-#%56!,##7$%
,6#7)"#7%($%5(6"%!8%"&#%:()*K-!$$%!*%
7)$5!$(-%"!%"&#%9!/56#&#*$)<#%=*,!/#%
(*7%>?5#*7)"36#%."("#/#*"%

1% LALCB% DLALCBG% 1% 1% 1%

M"&#6%,(5)"(-%6#,#)5"$% 1% @C% D@CG% 1% 1% 1%

N$#%!8%"&#%9(5)"(-%4#,#)5"$%4#$#6<#%"!%
8)*(*,#%*#O%,(5)"(-%#?5#*7)"36#%

1% 1% FFP% 1% 1% DFFPG%

9!*"6);3")!*%86!/%"&#%9(5)"(-%4#,#)5"$%
4#$#6<#%"!%8)*(*,#%"&#%5(Q/#*"$%"!%
"&#%I!<#6*/#*"%,(5)"(-%6#,#)5"$%5!!-%

DP1RG% 1% P1R% 1% 1% 1%

H6(*$8#6%"!%,(5)"(-%6#,#)5"$%6#$#6<#%!*%
6#,#)5"%!8%-!(*%5(Q/#*"%

1% 1% D@@G% 1% 1% @@%

H6(*$8#6%86!/%S#8#66#7%9(5)"(-%
4#,#)5"$%4#$#6<#%35!*%6#,#)5"%!8%,($&%

1% 1% D@FG% 1% 1% @F%

Adjustments primarily involving the 
Major Repairs Reserve:

T42%7#56#,)(")!*% 1% 1% 1% D@1AB0CG% 1% @1AB0C%

4#<#6$(-%!8%'(J!6%4#5()6$%2--!O(*,#%
,6#7)"#7%"!%"&#%T42%

1% DCA0EPG% 1% CA0EP% 1% 1%

N$#%!8%"&#%'(J!6%4#5()6$%4#$#6<#%"!%
8)*(*,#%*#O%,(5)"(-%#?5#*7)"36#%

1% 1% 1% CAL0L% 1% DCAL0LG%

%

%

%

%

%

%

%
%

%

%

%

%

%

%

Page 148



 !"#$%"!%"&#%'()*%+)*(*,)(-%."("#/#*"$%
%
%

%
% 0**1(-%2#3!4"%(*5%."("#/#*"%!6%0,,!1*"$% 78%
%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%

Usable Reserves

(£000s)

G
e
n

e
ra

l 
F

u
n

d

B
a
la

n
c
e

H
o

u
s
in

g
 R

e
v
e
n

u
e
 

A
c
c
o

u
n

t 
B

a
la

n
c
e

C
a
p

it
a
l 

R
e
c
e
ip

ts
 

R
e
s
e
rv

e

M
a
jo

r 
R

e
p

a
ir

s
 

R
e
s
e
rv

e

C
a
p

it
a
l 

G
ra

n
ts

 

U
n

a
p

p
li
e
d

U
n

u
s
a
b

le
 R

e
s
e
rv

e
s

Adjustments primarily involving the 
Financial Instruments Adjustment 
Account:

0/!1*"%9:%;&),&%6)*(*,#%,!$"$%
,&(4<#5%"!%"&#%=!/34#&#*$)>#%?*,!/#%
(*5%@A3#*5)"14#%."("#/#*"%(4#%
5)66#4#*"%64!/%6)*(*,#%,!$"$%,&(4<#(9-#%
)*%"&#%:#(4%)*%(,,!45(*,#%;)"&%$"("1"!4:%
4#B1)4#/#*"$%

88% CD8% D% D% D% EC87F%

Adjustments primarily involving the 
Pensions Reserve:

2#>#4$(-%!6%)"#/$%4#-(")*<%"!%4#")4#/#*"%
9#*#6)"$%5#9)"#5%!4%,4#5)"#5%"!%"&#%
=!/34#&#*$)>#%?*,!/#%(*5%
@A3#*5)"14#%."("#/#*"%

EGHIJDF% EKGGF% D% D% D% KHK8G%

@/3-!:#4L$%3#*$)!*%,!*"4)91")!*$%(*5%
5)4#,"%3(:/#*"$%"!%3#*$)!*#4$%3(:(9-#%
)*%"&#%:#(4%

MHDMJ% KNK% D% D% D% EMHNC7F%

Adjustments primarily involving the 
Collection Fund Adjustment 
Account:

0/!1*"%9:%;&),&%,!1*,)-%"(A%)*,!/#%
,4#5)"#5%"!%"&#%=!/34#&#*$)>#%?*,!/#%
(*5%@A3#*5)"14#%."("#/#*"%)$%5)66#4#*"%
64!/%,!1*,)-%"(A%)*,!/#%,(-,1-("#5%6!4%
"&#%:#(4%)*%(,,!45(*,#%;)"&%$"("1"!4:%
4#B1)4#/#*"$%%

8% D% D% D% D% E8F%

Adjustments primarily involving the 
Accumulated Absences Account:

0/!1*"%9:%;&),&%!66),#4%4#/1*#4(")!*%
,&(4<#5%"!%"&#%=!/34#&#*$)>#%?*,!/#%
(*5%@A3#*5)"14#%."("#/#*"%!*%(*%
(,,41(-$%9($)$%)$%5)66#4#*"%64!/%
4#/1*#4(")!*%,&(4<#(9-#%)*%"&#%:#(4%)*%
(,,!45(*,#%;)"&%$"("1"!4:%
4#B1)4#/#*"$%

GK% D% D% D% D% EGKF%

Adjustments primarily involving the 
Housing Revenue Account:

0/!1*"$%"4(*$6#44#5%64!/%"&#%O!1$)*<%
2#>#*1#%0,,!1*"%"!%"&#%P#*#4(-%61*5%
1*5#4%$"("1"!4:%4#<1-(")!*%

E8DF% 8D% D% D% D% D%

Total adjustments (4,577) (1,724) (2,790) (3,940) 1,106 11,925

%

%

%

%

%

%

%

%

%

Page 149



 !"#$%"!%"&#%'()*%+)*(*,)(-%."("#/#*"$%
%
%

%%%%%%%%%%%%% %
% 00% %%%%%%%1**2(-%3#4!5"%(*6%."("#/#*"%!7%1,,!2*"$%
%%%%%%%%%%%%%% %%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%

Financial year 2011/12 (as restated)

Usable Reserves

(£000s)

G
e
n

e
ra

l 
F

u
n

d
 

B
a
la

n
c
e

H
o

u
s
in

g
 R

e
v
e
n

u
e
 

A
c
c
o

u
n

t 
B

a
la

n
c
e

C
a
p

it
a
l 

R
e
c
e
ip

ts
 

R
e
s
e
rv

e

M
a
jo

r 
R

e
p

a
ir

s
 

R
e
s
e
rv

e

C
a
p

it
a
l 

G
ra

n
ts

 

U
n

a
p

p
li
e
d

U
n

u
s
a
b

le
 R

e
s
e
rv

e
s

Adjustments primarily involving the 
Capital Grants Adjustment Account:

Reversal of items debited or 
credited to the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement

8&(59#$%7!5%6#45#,)(")!*%(*6%
)/4()5/#*"%!7%*!*:,255#*"%($$#"$%

;<=<>>?% @% @% @% @% <=<>>%

 #"%5#A(-2(")!*%-!$$#$%!*%45!4#5"B=%
4-(*"%(*6%#C2)4/#*"%

DEE% <=F0@% @% @% @% ;<=GFE?%

'!A#/#*"$%)*%"&#%/(5H#"%A(-2#%!7%
)*A#$"/#*"%45!4#5")#$%

DE=@0I% <<F% @% @% @% ;DE=<FJ?%

1/!5")$(")!*%!7%)*"(*9)K-#%($$#"$% ;D00?% @% @% @% @% D00%

3#A#*2#%#L4#*6)"25#%72*6#6%75!/%
,(4)"(-%2*6#5%$"("2"#%(*6%6#%/)*)/)$%
,(4)"(-%#L4#*6)"25#%

;0=GF<?% ;<J?% @% @% @% 0=I0@%

M31%.#-7:7)*(*,)*9%$#""-#/#*"%
4(B/#*"%72*6#6%75!/%,(4)"(-%2*6#5%
$"("2"#%

@% ;0D>=EF0?% @% @% @% 0D>=EF0%

1/!2*"$%!7%*!*:,255#*"%($$#"$%N5)""#*%
!77%!*%6)$4!$(-%!5%$(-#%($%4(5"%!7%"&#%
9()*O-!$$%!*%6)$4!$(-%

;0=@EE?% ;D=EI@?% @% @% @% >=J<E%

P5)A("#%$#,"!5%&!2$)*9%-!(*$%
(6Q2$"/#*"%

>F% @% @% @% @% ;>F?%

Insertion of items not debited or 
credited to the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement

P5)A("#%$#,"!5%&!2$)*9%-!(*%
5#4(B/#*"$%R%!5)9)*(-%-!(*%-#$$%"&(*%
SD@=@@@%

;D0?% @% @% @% @% D0%

8(4)"(-%#L4#*6)"25#%,&(59#6%(9()*$"%
T#*#5(-%+2*6%(*6%M31%K(-(*,#$%

>=0JG% D=G<0% @% @% @% ;E=DD@?%

%

%

%

%

%

%

%

%

%

%

%

%

%

%

%

Page 150



 !"#$%"!%"&#%'()*%+)*(*,)(-%."("#/#*"$%
%
%

%
% 0**1(-%2#3!4"%(*5%."("#/#*"%!6%0,,!1*"$% 78%
%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%

Usable Reserves

(£000s)

G
e
n

e
ra

l 
F

u
n

d
 

B
a
la

n
c
e

H
o

u
s
in

g
 R

e
v
e
n

u
e
 

A
c
c
o

u
n

t 
B

a
la

n
c
e

C
a
p

it
a
l 

R
e
c
e
ip

ts
 

R
e
s
e
rv

e

M
a
jo

r 
R

e
p

a
ir

s
 

R
e
s
e
rv

e

C
a
p

it
a
l 

G
ra

n
ts

 

U
n

a
p

p
li
e
d

U
n

u
s
a
b

le
 R

e
s
e
rv

e
s

Adjustments primarily involving the 
Capital Grants Unapplied Account:

9(3)"(-%:4(*"$%(*5%,!*"4);1")!*$%
1*(33-)#5%,4#5)"#5%"!%"&#%
9!/34#&#*$)<#%=*,!/#%(*5%
>?3#*5)"14#%."("#/#*"%

@ABCD% E% E% E% F@ABCDG% E%

H4(*$6#4%!6%,(3)"(-%,!*"4);1")!*$%
1*(33-)#5%"!%"&#%I#*#4(-%+1*5%

F@7EG% E% E% E% @7E% E%

033-),(")!*%!6%:4(*"$%"!%,(3)"(-%
6)*(*,)*:%"4(*$6#44#5%"!%"&#%9(3)"(-%
05J1$"/#*"%0,,!1*"%

@AE@E% K7% E% E% 7A@C7% F8A7LBG%

Adjustments primarily involving the 
Capital Receipts Reserve:

H4(*$6#4%!6%,($&%$(-#%34!,##5$%
,4#5)"#5%($%3(4"%!6%"&#%:()*M-!$$%!*%
5)$3!$(-%"!%"&#%9!/34#&#*$)<#%=*,!/#%
(*5%>?3#*5)"14#%."("#/#*"%

@AEDL% 7AE7E% F8AENLG% E% E% E%

O"&#4%,(3)"(-%4#,#)3"$% E% 8D% F8DG% E% E% E%

P$#%!6%"&#%9(3)"(-%2#,#)3"$%2#$#4<#%"!%
6)*(*,#%*#Q%,(3)"(-%#?3#*5)"14#%

E% E% BAELK% E% E% FBAELKG%

9!*"4);1")!*%64!/%"&#%9(3)"(-%2#,#)3"$%
2#$#4<#%"!%6)*(*,#%"&#%3(R/#*"$%"!%
"&#%I!<#4*/#*"%,(3)"(-%4#,#)3"$%3!!-%

F@ABB@G% E% @ABB@% E% E% E%

H4(*$6#4%"!%,(3)"(-%4#,#)3"$%4#$#4<#%!*%
4#,#)3"%!6%-!(*%3(R/#*"%

E% E% F@7G% E% E% @7%

H4(*$6#4%64!/%S#6#44#5%9(3)"(-%
2#,#)3"$%2#$#4<#%13!*%4#,#)3"%!6%,($&%

E% E% FCG% E% E% C%

Adjustments primarily involving the 
Major Repairs Reserve:

T20%5#34#,)(")!*% E% E% E% FNACECG% E% NACEC%

2#<#4$(-%!6%'(J!4%2#3()4$%0--!Q(*,#%
,4#5)"#5%"!%"&#%T20%

E% FBAKCNG% E% BAKCN% E% E%

P$#%!6%"&#%'(J!4%2#3()4$%2#$#4<#%"!%
6)*(*,#%*#Q%,(3)"(-%#?3#*5)"14#%

E% E% E% BA8EE% E% FBA8EEG%

%

%

%

%

%

%

%

%

%

%

%

%

%

%

Page 151



 !"#$%"!%"&#%'()*%+)*(*,)(-%."("#/#*"$%
%
%

%%%%%%%%%%%%% %
% 01% %%%%%%%2**3(-%4#5!6"%(*7%."("#/#*"%!8%2,,!3*"$%
%%%%%%%%%%%%%% %%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%

Usable Reserves

(£000s)

G
e
n

e
ra

l 
F

u
n

d
 

B
a
la

n
c
e

H
o

u
s
in

g
 R

e
v
e
n

u
e
 

A
c
c
o

u
n

t 
B

a
la

n
c
e

C
a
p

it
a
l 

R
e
c
e
ip

ts
 

R
e
s
e
rv

e

M
a
jo

r 
R

e
p

a
ir

s
 

R
e
s
e
rv

e

C
a
p

it
a
l 

G
ra

n
ts

 

U
n

a
p

p
li
e
d

U
n

u
s
a
b

le
 R

e
s
e
rv

e
s

Adjustments primarily involving the 
Financial Instruments Adjustment 
Account:

2/!3*"%9:%;&),&%8)*(*,#%,!$"$%
,&(6<#7%"!%"&#%=!/56#&#*$)>#%?*,!/#%
(*7%@A5#*7)"36#%."("#/#*"%(6#%
7)88#6#*"%86!/%8)*(*,#%,!$"$%,&(6<#(9-#%
)*%"&#%:#(6%)*%(,,!67(*,#%;)"&%$"("3"!6:%
6#B3)6#/#*"$%

11% C1D% E% E% E% FCGEH%

Adjustments primarily involving the 
Pensions Reserve:

4#>#6$(-%!8%)"#/$%6#-(")*<%"!%6#")6#/#*"%
9#*#8)"$%7#9)"#7%!6%,6#7)"#7%"!%"&#%
=!/56#&#*$)>#%?*,!/#%(*7%
@A5#*7)"36#%."("#/#*"%

FIJDCKH% FLKMH% E% E% E% DJ11L%

@/5-!:#6N$%5#*$)!*%,!*"6)93")!*$%(*7%
7)6#,"%5(:/#*"$%"!%5#*$)!*#6$%5(:(9-#%
)*%"&#%:#(6%

1JEDK% LDI% E% E% E% F1JG0DH%

Adjustments primarily involving the 
Collection Fund Adjustment 
Account:

2/!3*"%9:%;&),&%,!3*,)-%"(A%)*,!/#%
,6#7)"#7%"!%"&#%=!/56#&#*$)>#%?*,!/#%
(*7%@A5#*7)"36#%."("#/#*"%)$%7)88#6#*"%
86!/%,!3*,)-%"(A%)*,!/#%,(-,3-("#7%8!6%
"&#%:#(6%)*%(,,!67(*,#%;)"&%$"("3"!6:%
6#B3)6#/#*"$%%

FMIH% E% E% E% E% MI%

Adjustments primarily involving the 
Accumulated Absences Account:

2/!3*"%9:%;&),&%!88),#6%6#/3*#6(")!*%
,&(6<#7%"!%"&#%=!/56#&#*$)>#%?*,!/#%
(*7%@A5#*7)"36#%."("#/#*"%!*%(*%
(,,63(-$%9($)$%)$%7)88#6#*"%86!/%
6#/3*#6(")!*%,&(6<#(9-#%)*%"&#%:#(6%)*%
(,,!67(*,#%;)"&%$"("3"!6:%
6#B3)6#/#*"$%

FMMH% 0D% E% E% E% IK%

Adjustments primarily involving the 
Housing Revenue Account:

2/!3*"$%"6(*$8#66#7%86!/%"&#%O!3$)*<%
4#>#*3#%2,,!3*"%"!%"&#%P#*#6(-%83*7%
3*7#6%$"("3"!6:%6#<3-(")!*%

FGH% G% E% E% E% E%

Total adjustments 9,317 (210,340) 2,345 (819) 815 198,682

%

%

%

%

%

%

%

%

%

Page 152



 !"#$%"!%"&#%'()*%+)*(*,)(-%."("#/#*"$%
%
%

%
% 0**1(-%2#3!4"%(*5%."("#/#*"%!6%0,,!1*"$% 78%
%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%

5 Movement in Reserves Statement – Transfers to / from Earmarked Reserves

9&)$%*!"#%$#"$%!1"%"&#%(/!1*"$%$#"%($)5#%64!/%"&#%:#*#4(-%+1*5%(*5%;20%<(-(*,#$%)*%#(4/(4=#5%
4#$#4>#$%"!%34!>)5#%6)*(*,)*?%6!4%61"14#%#@3#*5)"14#%3-(*$% "!?#"&#4%A)"&%"&#%(/!1*"$%!6%#(4/(4=#5%
4#$#4>#$%1$#5%"!%/##"%:#*#4(-%+1*5%(*5%;20%#@3#*5)"14#%)*%7BC7DCEF%
%

2011/12 2012/13

(£000s)
Balance at 

1 April 
2011

Transfers 
In

Transfers 
Out

Balance at 
31 March 

2012

Transfers 
In

Transfers 
Out

Balance at 
31 March

2013

:#*#4(-%+1*5G% % % % % % % %

0$$#"%2#3()4%(*5%2#*#A(-$%
2#$#4>#$%

HC7IJJ8K% HEI7ELK% 7IEBM% HCEIJ7NK% HEIC77K% 7ILJ8% HCOIC8EK%

P*$14(*,#%+1*5% HNLMK% HLNJK% NJE% HLNEK% HCIC88K% L7E% HCICJ8K%

9#,&*!-!?Q%P*>#$"/#*"%
+1*5%

H7OCK% HC8K% OE% H7CEK% HC8K% LM% HCOCK%

R#>#-!3/#*"%S-(*%2#$#4>#% H7M7K% HCLCK% E8% HOCLK% HC8BK% CME% HEJ8K%

T!/31-$!4Q%S14,&($#%
U45#4%T!/3#*$(")!*%
2#$#4>#%

H8LEK% B% B% H8LEK% B% B% H8LEK%

'(V!4%S-(**)*?%033#(-$%
2#$#4>#%

HECK% B% L% H7EK% HLOK% CBM% B%

2#>#*1#%T!*"4)<1")!*$%"!%
T(3)"(-%

H7OEK% B% 7B% H77EK% B% O8% HCMLK%

U"&#4% H7I7NNK% H7IB8NK% LN8% HEIO8MK% HCIEC8K% CIBNC% HEIMCCK%

Total (17,318) (6,359) 3,971 (19,706) (5,841) 5,191 (20,356)

% % % % % % % %

;!1$)*?%2#>#*1#%0,,!1*"G% % % % % % % %

0$$#"%2#3()4%(*5%2#*#A(-%
2#$#4>#%

HCIL7NK% H7N8K% CBE% HCIJLLK% H7LNK% C78% H7ICOJK%

.&(4#5%UA*#4$&)3%2#$#4>#% HEBBK% B% B% HEBBK% B% B% HEBBK%

U"&#4% HCCBK% HJ8K% 7C% HCLOK% HCI78CK% 7C% HCIOCOK%

Total (2,236) (360) 124 (2,472) (1,537) 146 (3,863)

%
%
%
%
%
%
%
%
%
%
%
%
%
%
%
%
%
%
%
%
%

Page 153



 !"#$%"!%"&#%'()*%+)*(*,)(-%."("#/#*"$%
%
%

%%%%%%%%%%%%% %
% 01% %%%%%%%2**3(-%4#5!6"%(*7%."("#/#*"%!8%2,,!3*"$%
%%%%%%%%%%%%%% %%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%

6 Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement – Other Operating 
Expenditure

2012/13 2011/12

(£000s) Income Expenditure Income Expenditure

9(:/#*"$%"!%"&#%;!<#6*/#*"%=!3$)*>%?(5)"(-%
4#,#)5"$%9!!-%

@% A@B% @% CDEE@%

F/5()6/#*"%-!$$#$%!*%($$#"$%&#-7%8!6%$(-#% @% GHE% @% @%

I;()*$J%K%-!$$#$%!*%"&#%7)$5!$(-%!8%*!*L,366#*"%
($$#"$%

IHM1J% @% @% EHA%

N"&#6%)*,!/#% ICGJ% @% IGMJ% @%

% (589) 1,262 (37) 1,899

7 Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement – Financing and Investment 
Income and Expenditure

2012/13
2011/12 (as restated see 

Note 43)

(£000s) Income Expenditure Income Expenditure

F*"#6#$"%5(:(O-#%(*7%$)/)-(6%,&(6>#$% @% MDEA1% @% BE%

F/5()6/#*"%!8%)*<#$"/#*"$% @% 1E% @% IE1BJ%

9#*$)!*$%)*"#6#$"%,!$"%(*7%#P5#,"#7%6#"36*%!*%
5#*$)!*$%($$#"$%

IMD0GEJ% ADAAC% IBDMABJ% C@DEGH%

;()*$%(*7%-!$$#$%!*%"6(7)*>%I*!"#%C@J% @% 0B% I00J% @%

F*"#6#$"%6#,#)<(O-#%(*7%$)/)-(6%)*,!/#% IB0CJ% @% IBECJ% @%

F*,!/#%(*7%#P5#*7)"36#%)*%6#-(")!*%"!%
)*<#$"/#*"%56!5#6")#$%(*7%,&(*>#$%)*%"&#)6%8()6%
<(-3#%

IC@DCBAJ% CDE00% I0GDGBMJ% AEA%

(18,244) 19,001 (33,048) 11,000

8 Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement – Taxation and Non Specific 
Grant Incomes

(£000s) 2012/13% 2011/12

?!3*,)-%"(P%)*,!/#% I1DMEHJ% I1D1M@J%

 !*%7!/#$"),%6("#$% IBDEGHJ% IMD01BJ%

 !*L6)*>8#*,#7%>!<#6*/#*"%>6(*"$% I0DEGEJ% IGDG1CJ%

?(5)"(-%>6(*"$%(*7%,!*"6)O3")!*$% ICDHMMJ% I0DHHBJ%

(19,191) (19,857)

%
%
%
%
%
%

Page 154



 !"#$%"!%"&#%'()*%+)*(*,)(-%."("#/#*"$%
%
%

%
% 0**1(-%2#3!4"%(*5%."("#/#*"%!6%0,,!1*"$% 78%
%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%

9 Amounts Reported for Resource Allocation Decisions

9&#%(*(-:$)$%!6%)*,!/#%(*5%#;3#*5)"14#%<:%$#4=),#%!*%"&#%6(,#%!6%"&#%>!/34#&#*$)=#%?*,!/#%(*5%
@;3#*5)"14#% ."("#/#*"% )$% "&("% $3#,)6)#5% <:% "&#% .#4=),#% 2#3!4")*A% >!5#% !6% B4(,"),#% C.@2>DBEF%%
G!H#=#4I%5#,)$)!*$%(<!1"%4#$!14,#%(--!,(")!*%(4#%"(J#*%<:%"&#%>!1*,)-K$%@;#,1")=#%!*%"&#%<($)$%!6%
6)*(*,)(-% )*6!4/(")!*% (*(-:$#5% <:% 3!4"6!-)!F% % 2#3!4"$% 34#$#*"#5% "!% /#/<#4$% (4#% 34#3(4#5% !*% (%
5)66#4#*"%<($)$%64!/%"&#%(,,!1*")*A%3!-),)#$%1$#5%)*%"&#%6)*(*,)(-%$"("#/#*"$F%%?*%3(4"),1-(4L%
%

 %  !%,&(4A#$%(4#%/(5#% )*% 4#-(")!*% "!% 4#=(-1(")!*% -!$$#$%(*5%4 #=#*1#%#;3#*5)"14#% 61*5#5% 64!/%
,(3)"(-%1*5#4%$"("1"#F%

 % 9&#% ,!$"% !6% 4#")4#/#*"% <#*#6)"$% )$% <($#5% !*% ,($&% 6-!H$% C3(:/#*"% !6% #/3-!:#4K$% 3#*$)!*%
,!*"4)<1")!*$E%4("&#4%"&(*%,144#*"%$#4=),#%,!$"%!6%<#*#6)"$%(,,41#5%)*%"&#%:#(4F%

 % 9&#%*#"%)*,!/#%A#*#4("#5%<:%"&#%>!1*,)-K$%,!//#4,)(-%34!3#4":%$#4=),#%)$%4#3!4"#5%<#-!H%*#"%
,!$"%!6%$#4=),#$F%

 % 2#3!4"$% )*,-15#% ,!*"4)<1")!*$% "!% 2#3()4$% (*5% 2#*#H(-$% +1*5$% 4("&#4% "&(*% "&#% (,"1(-%
#;3#*5)"14#%4#6-#,"#5%)*%"&#%(,,!1*"$F%
%

9&#% )*,!/#%(*5%#;3#*5)"14#%!6% "&#%>!1*,)-K$%$#4=),#%3!4"6!-)!$% 4#,!45#5% )*% "&#%<15A#"% 4#3!4"$% 6!4%
"&#% :#(4% (*5%&!H% )"% 4#,!*,)-#$% "!% "&("% )*,-15#5% )*% "&#% *#"% ,!$"% !6% $#4=),#$% )*% "&#%>!/34#&#*$)=#%
?*,!/#%(*5%@;3#*5)"14#%."("#/#*"%)$%($%6!--!H$L%
%

(£000s) 2012/13%
2011/12

(as 
restated)

Net Expenditure for the year as reported to management

General Fund

Community Services Scrutiny Committee

04"$I%.3!4"$%(*5%B1<-),%B-(,#$% MINOP% MIQPO%

>!//1*)":%R#=#-!3/#*"%S%G#(-"&% PIQNP% PIPOQ%

G!1$)*A% 7I8TM% 7IU78%

Environment Scrutiny Committee

B-(**)*A%S%>-)/("#%>&(*A#% OIMOQ% OI8UT%

@*=)4!*/#*"(-%S%V($"#%.#4=),#$% 8I8PM% UIQOT%

Strategy & Resources Scrutiny Committee

>1$"!/#4%.#4=),#$%(*5%2#$!14,#$% CWITW7E% CMI7TWE%

."4("#A:% PIPUN% 7IUMN%

Housing Revenue Account

G!1$)*A%'(*(A#/#*"%X!(45% CO7ITMTE% M8M%

% 7,571 19,266

0/!1*"$%)*%"&#%>!/34#&#*$)=#%?*,!/#%S%@;3#*5)"14#%."("#/#*"%*!"%4#3!4"#5%"!%/(*(A#/#*"% O7IWMT% 7O7I88O%

0/!1*"$%4#3!4"#5%"!%/(*(A#/#*"%*!"%)*,-15#5%)*%"&#%>!/34#&#*$)=#%?*,!/#%(*5%
@;3#*5)"14#%."("#/#*"%

TIU7U% WIWOO%

Cost of Services in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 24,963 237,548

%

9&#% 7QOOYO7% ,!/3(4(")=#% 6)A14#$% &(=#% <##*% 4#$"("#5% "!% 4#6-#,"% "&#% 3!4"6!-)!$% )*% !3#4(")!*% 514)*A%
7QO7YOPF%

Page 155



 !"#$%"!%"&#%'()*%+)*(*,)(-%."("#/#*"$%
%
%

%%%%%%%%%%%%% %
% 01% %%%%%%%2**3(-%4#5!6"%(*7%."("#/#*"%!8%2,,!3*"$%
%%%%%%%%%%%%%% %%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%

9&)$% 6#,!*,)-)(")!*% :(*(-;$#7% $3<=#,")>#-;?% $&!@$%&!@% "&#% 8)A36#$% 8!6% "&#% )*,!/#%(*7% #B5#*7)"36#%
)*,-37#7%)*%"&#%6#5!6"$%"!%/(*(A#/#*"%6#-("#%"!%"&#%.365-3$%!6%C#8),)"%!*%"&#%56!>)$)!*%!8%$#6>),#$%
)*,-37#7%)*%"&#%D!/56#&#*$)>#%E*,!/#%(*7%FB5#*7)"36#%."("#/#*"G%

Financial year 2012/13 

(£000s)
Portfolio 
Analysis

Amounts 
reported to 

management 
below 

portfolio 
analysis

Amounts 
reported to 

management 
which do not 
form part of 

CIES

Amounts not 
reported to 

management 
for decision 

making

Allocation of 
recharges

Total

+##$H%,&(6A#$%(*7%!"&#6%$#6>),#%
)*,!/#%

:IJHK0L?% J% J% J% M0HNOO% :OIH1IM?%

E*"#6#$"%(*7%)*>#$"/#*"%)*,!/#% :LPP?% :MJM?% J% :PHOIL?% :IH1L1?% :M1H0NN?%

E*,!/#%86!/%,!3*,)-%"(B% J% :LHINN?% J% :M?% J% :LHINO?%

Q()*%!*%7)$5!$(-%!8%($$#"$%(*7%
!"&#6%,(5)"(-%6#,#)5"$%

J% J% J% :O1P?% J% :O1P?%

Q!>#6*/#*"%A6(*"$H%7!*(")!*$%
(*7%,!*"6)<3")!*$%

:NOHJNI?% :MJHNM1?% M0K% :MHOII?% J% :OLHPMP?%

Total Income (116,072) (17,263) 123 (11,743) 4,587 (140,368)

% % % % % % %

F/5-!;##%#B5#*$#$% 0MHLK0% J% J% LM% MKHNNL% KOHMKP%

R"&#6%$#6>),#%#B5#*$#$% I0HPP1% J% :0HJKK?% NHMJJ% :KHNMK?% IMHLO0%

4#,&(6A#$% MOHLJL% J% J% J% :MOHLJL?% J%

C#56#,)(")!*H%(/!6")$(")!*%(*7%
)/5()6/#*"%

MKHNJO% MJ% :MIL?% 1HMOP% P00% 00HK0J%

E*"#6#$"%5(;/#*"$% 0% IHNPN% J% PHPPM% LN% MIHOOM%

S(;/#*"$%"!%T!3$)*A%4#,#)5"$%
S!!-%

J% J% J% PJ1% J% PJ1%

Total Expenditure 123,643 7,504 (2,209) 23,219 (4,587) 147,570

(Surplus) / Deficit on the 
provision of services

7,571 (9,759) (2,086) 11,476 0 7,202

%
%
%
%
%
%
%
%
%
%
%
%
%
%
%
%
%
%
%
%
%

Page 156



 !"#$%"!%"&#%'()*%+)*(*,)(-%."("#/#*"$%
%
%

%
% 0**1(-%2#3!4"%(*5%."("#/#*"%!6%0,,!1*"$% 78%
%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%

Financial year 2011/12 (as restated)

(£000s)
Portfolio 
Analysis

Amounts 
reported to 

management 
below 

portfolio 
analysis

Amounts 
reported to 

management 
which do not 
form part of 

CIES

Amounts not 
reported to 

management 
for decision 

making

Allocation of 
recharges

Total

+##$9%,&(4:#$%(*5%!"&#4%$#4;),#%
)*,!/#%

<=>9?@AB% ?% ?% ?% CC9CA=% <AA9D>8B%

E*"#4#$"%(*5%)*;#$"/#*"%)*,!/#% <>7>B% <=FB% ?% <7F9@?=B% <>9878B% <@@9?7=B%

E*,!/#%64!/%,!1*,)-%"(G% ?% <=9>FFB% ?% >A% ?% <=9==8B%

H()*%!*%5)$3!$(-%!6%($$#"$%(*5%
!"&#4%,(3)"(-%4#,#)3"$%

?% ?% ?% <@>B% ?% <@>B%

H!;#4*/#*"%:4(*"$9%5!*(")!*$%
(*5%,!*"4)I1")!*$%

<F@97>>B% <C?9=78B% ?% <79AADB% ?% <A=9F=FB%

Total Income (111,039) (17,437) 0 (26,826) 3,227 (152,075)

% % % % % % %

J/3-!K##%#G3#*$#$% 7C9?@C% ?% ?% <=@B% CA9FC@% @=9@DC%

L"&#4%$#4;),#%#G3#*$#$% D79CD?% ?% <C98F@B% @9?>D% <A9@8?B% >>987A%

2#,&(4:#$% CA9@F=% ?% ?% ?% <CA9@F=B% ?%

M#34#,)(")!*9%(/!4")$(")!*%(*5%
)/3()4/#*"%

CC9>F=% ?% <C=FB% <F9@F7B% 797F8% 89FD8%

N!$$%!*%5)$3!$(-%% ?% ?% ?% FD8% ?% FD8%

E*"#4#$"%3(K/#*"$% 7% ?% ?% C?9F@A% <CA@B% C?97DF%

O(K/#*"$%"!%P!1$)*:%2#,#)3"$%
O!!-%

?% ?% ?% C9FF?% ?% C9FF?%

P20%$#-6Q6)*(*,)*:%$#""-#/#*"%
3(K/#*"%

?% ?% ?% 7C@9A>7% ?% 7C@9A>7%

Total Expenditure 130,305 0 (2,107) 224,609 (3,227) 349,580

(Surplus) / Deficit on the 
provision of services

19,266 (17,437) (2,107) 197,783 0 197,505

10 Trading Operations

R&#%6)*(*,)(-%4#$1-"$%!6%"&#%S!1*,)-T$%$):*)6),(*"%"4(5)*:%(,");)")#$%6!4%"&#%K#(4%(4#%$#"%!1"%I#-!UV%

Included within Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement

(£000s) 2012/13
2011/12 (as restated – 

see Note 43)

Ditchburn Place Extra Care Contract

E*,!/#% <=77B% <==DB%

JG3#*5)"14#% =A?% =F=%

Deficit/(Surplus) 28 (22)

R&#% S)"K% S!1*,)-% )$% ,!*"4(,"#5% IK% S(/I4)5:#$&)4#% S!1*"K% S!1*,)-% "!% 34!;)5#% ,(4#% (*5% $133!4"%
$#4;),#$%6!4%"&#%#G"4(%,(4#%&!1$)*:%("%M)",&I14*%O-(,#W%

Page 157



 !"#$%"!%"&#%'()*%+)*(*,)(-%."("#/#*"$%
%
%

%%%%%%%%%%%%% %
% 01% %%%%%%%2**3(-%4#5!6"%(*7%."("#/#*"%!8%2,,!3*"$%
%%%%%%%%%%%%%% %%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%

Included within Planning services in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement

General Markets%9%"&#%:!3*,)-%!5#6("#$%"&#%;#*#6(-%7()-<%/(6=#"%)*%"&#%,)"<%,#*"6#%"!;#"&#6%>)"&%(%
*3/?#6%!8%!"&#6%$/(--#6%$5#,)(-)$"%/(6=#"$@%
%

(£000s) 2012/13 2011/12

A*,!/#% BCDEF% BC1DF%

GH5#*7)"36#% D1I% 0JI%

Surplus (336) (339)

11 Agency Services

Agency Services provided on behalf of Cambridgeshire County Council were:

(£000s) 2012/13 2011/12

Highways Functions and Services

K!"(-%,!$"$% EDD% ECL%

:!$"$%6#)/?36$#7%?<%"&#%:!3*"<%:!3*,)-% EDD% ECL%

On-Street Parking Services

 #"%$365-3$% 1% BEM0DNF%

.365-3$%6#)/?36$#7%"!%,!3*"<%,!3*,)-% 1% EM0DN%

%

Box Office Services
%

K&#%:!3*,)-% !5#6("#$%(%?!H%!88),#% 8!6% 56)O("#%56!/!"#6$% 8!6% 5#68!6/(*,#$%(*7%#O#*"$%&#-7%("% "&#%
:!6*%GH,&(*;#@% %P6!$$% )*,!/#%,!--#,"#7%(*7%5()7%!O#6% "!%56!/!"#6$%>($%Q0MEIJM111% )*%R1ERSE0%
BQ0MDDJM111%)*%R1EESER@F%

12 Members’ Allowances

K&#%"!"(-%(--!>(*,#$%5()7%"!%/#/?#6$%736)*;%"&#%8)*(*,)(-%<#(6%R1ERSE0%>#6#%QRDIMDLC%BQRDRMNE1%
)*%R1EESERF%($%(*(-<$#7%?#-!>@%%T#"()-$%!8%5(</#*"$%"!%)*7)O)73(-%/#/?#6$%(6#%53?-)$&#7%(**3(--<%
)*%(%-!,(-%*#>$5(5#6@%
%

(£000s) 2012/13 2011/12

U($),%(--!>(*,#%5(</#*"$% EEJMLDR% EEJMJE1%

.5#,)(-%6#$5!*$)?)-)"<%5(</#*"$% ERJMECI% ERDMICE%

:&)-7,(6#%(--!>(*,#% ENR% ENL%

K6(O#-%(*7%$3?$)$"#*,#%5(</#*"$% RMRCL% EMI0E%

% 245,487 242,910

%

%
%

%
%

Page 158



 !"#$%"!%"&#%'()*%+)*(*,)(-%."("#/#*"$%
%
%

%
% 0**1(-%2#3!4"%(*5%."("#/#*"%!6%0,,!1*"$% 78%
%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%

13 Related Party Transactions

9&#%:!1*,)-% )$% 4#;1)4#5% "!%5)$,-!$#%/("#4)(-% "4(*$(,")!*$%<)"&% 4#-("#5%3(4")#$=% %2#-("#5%3(4")#$%(4#%
>!5)#$%!4%)*5)?)51(-$%"&("%&(?#%"&#%3!"#*")(-%"!%,!*"4!-%!4%)*6-1#*,#%"&#%:!1*,)-%!4%"!%>#%,!*"4!--#5%!4%
)*6-1#*,#5%>@%"&#%:!1*,)-=%%A)$,-!$14#%!6%"&#$#%"4(*$(,")!*$%(--!<$%4#(5#4$%"!%($$#$$%"&#%#B"#*"%"!%
<&),&%"&#%:!1*,)-%/)C&"%&(?#%>##*%,!*$"4()*#5%)*%)"$%(>)-)"@%"!%!3#4("#%)*5#3#*5#*"-@%!4%/)C&"%&(?#%
$#,14#5%"&#%(>)-)"@%"!%-)/)"%(*!"&#4%3(4"@D$%(>)-)"@%"!%>(4C()*%64##-@%<)"&%"&#%:!1*,)-=%

%

:#*"4(-% C!?#4*/#*"% &($% #66#,")?#% ,!*"4!-% !?#4% "&#% C#*#4(-% !3#4(")!*$% !6% "&#% :!1*,)-% E% )"% )$%
4#$3!*$)>-#% 6!4% 34!?)5)*C% "&#% $"("1"!4@% 64(/#<!4F%<)"&)*%<&),&% "&#%:!1*,)-% !3#4("#$G% 34!?)5#$% "&#%
/(H!4)"@%!6%)"$%61*5)*C%)*%"&#%6!4/%!6%C4(*"$%(*5%34#$,4)>#$%"&#%"#4/$%!6%/(*@%"4(*$(,")!*$%"&("%"&#%
:!1*,)-% &($% <)"&% !"&#4% 3(4")#$% I6!4% #B(/3-#G% J!1$)*C% K#*#6)"$L=% % A#"()-$% !6% C!?#4*/#*"% C4(*"$%
4#,#)?#5%(4#%$#"%!1"%)*% !"#%77=%

%

'#/>#4$% !6% "&#% :!1*,)-% &(?#% 5)4#,"% ,!*"4!-% !?#4% "&#% :!1*,)-D$% 6)*(*,)(-% (*5%!3#4 (")*C% 3!-),)#$=%
A14)*C% MN8MO87% "&#% :!1*,)-% C(?#% C4(*"$% "!"(--)*C% PMQRGMRR% IP77SGTQR% )*% MN88O8ML% "!% ?!-1*"(4@%
!4C(*)$(")!*$% )*% <&),&% 8M% IS% )*% MN88O8ML% /#/>#4$% &(5% (*% )*"#4#$"=% PN% IPN% )*% MN88O8ML% !6% "&#$#%
C4(*"$%<#4#%1*3()5%("%"&#%@#(4%#*5=%%%

%

9&#% 4#-#?(*"%/#/>#4$% 5)5% *!"% "(F#% 3(4"% )*% (*@% 5)$,1$$)!*% !4% 5#,)$)!*% 4#-(")*C% "!% "&#% C4(*"$=% % U*%
(55)")!*%!*#%!6%"&#$#%!4C(*)$(")!*$%&($%(%-!*C%"#4/%-!(*%64!/%"&#%:!1*,)-%($%5)$,-!$#5%)*% !"#%MR%"!%
"&#%(,,!1*"$=%

%

 !%!"&#4%/("#4)(-% "4(*$(,")!*$%&(?#%>##*%) 5#*")6)#5% 6!4% 5)$,-!$14#%<&),&%(4#%*!"% (-4#(5@% )*,-15#5%
#-$#<&#4#%)*%"&)$%."("#/#*"%!6%0,,!1*"$=%

14 Employee Remuneration

9&#%*1/>#4% !6% #/3-!@##$%<&!$#% 4#/1*#4(")!*G% #B,-15)*C% #/3-!@#4D$% 3#*$)!*% ,!*"4)>1")!*$G%<($%
PTNGNNN%!4%/!4#%)*%>(*5$%!6%PTGNNN%<#4#V%

%

2012/13 2011/12

PTNGNNN%"!%PTQGSSS% 7% M%

PTTGNNN%"!%PTSGSSS% 8% 7%

PRNGNNN%"!%PRQGSSS% S% S%

PRTGNNN%"!%PRSGSSS% M% 7%

PWNGNNN%"!%PWQGSSS% Q% 7%

PWTGNNN%"!%PWSGSSS% N% 8%

PXNGNNN%"!%PXQGSSS% N% N%

PXTGNNN%"!%PXSGSSS% 8% 8%

PSNGNNN%"!%PSQGSSS% M% M%

P8NNGNNN%"!%P88QGSSS% N% N%

P88TGNNN%"!%P88SGSSS%% 8% 8%

%

%

%

%

%

Page 159



 !"#$%"!%"&#%'()*%+)*(*,)(-%."("#/#*"$%
%
%

%%%%%%%%%%%%% %
% 01% %%%%%%%2**3(-%4#5!6"%(*7%."("#/#*"%!8%2,,!3*"$%
%%%%%%%%%%%%%% %%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%

9&#%6#/3*#6(")!*%!8%$#*)!6%!88),#6$:%;&!%(6#%)*,-37#7%)*%"&#%(<!=#%"(<-#:%)$%7)$,-!$#7%)*%/!6#%7#"()-:%
)*,-37)*>%#/5-!?#6@$%5#*$)!*%,!*"6)<3")!*$:%<#-!;A%
%
Financial year 2012/13 

(£)

Position / Name
Salary

Allowances & 
Benefits in Kind

Pension 
Contribution

Total

B&)#8%CD#,3")=#%

E2%F(,G$!*H%
IIJ:KLM% NL% 1I:M11% I0M:K1O%

P)6#,"!6%!8%4#$!36,#$%

EP%Q!6$5!!-H%
MI:KMI% R% IJ:RM1% IRK:MK0%

P)6#,"!6%!8%C*=)6!*/#*"%

E.%S(?*#H%
KK:ONO% I1% IO:NKK% IRL:INO%

P)6#,"!6%!8%B3$"!/#6%T%
B!//3*)"?%.#6=),#$%

EU%V)$$#"H%

MI:KMI% O1% IJ:RM1% IRM:RNL%

Q#(7%!8%B!65!6("#%
."6("#>?%

E2%U)/<H%

O0:JJK% R% II:KO0% JL:ONI%

%
%
%
%
%
%

Financial year 2011/12 

(£)

Position / Name
Salary

Allowances & 
Benefits in Kind

Pension 
Contribution

Total

B&)#8%CD#,3")=#%

E2%F(,G$!*H%
IIJ:KLM% NJ% 1I:M11% I0M:K1K%

P)6#,"!6%!8%4#$!36,#$%

EP%Q!6$5!!-H%
MI:KMI% NKL% IJ:RM1% IRM:NOK%

P)6#,"!6%!8%C*=)6!*/#*"%

E.%S(?*#H%
KK:ONO% R% IO:NKK% IRL:I0N%

P)6#,"!6%!8%B3$"!/#6%T%
B!//3*)"?%.#6=),#$%

EU%V)$$#"H%

MI:KMI% NJI% IJ:RM1% IRM:NLN%

Q#(7%!8%B!65!6("#%
."6("#>?%

E2%U)/<H%

O0:JJK% R% II:KO0% JL:ONI%

%
%
%
%
%
%
%
%
%
%

Page 160



 !"#$%"!%"&#%'()*%+)*(*,)(-%."("#/#*"$%
%
%

%
% 0**1(-%2#3!4"%(*5%."("#/#*"%!6%0,,!1*"$% 77%
%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%

8&#%*1/9#4%!6%#:)"%3(,;(<#$=%(*(->$#5%9#"?##*%,!/31-$!4>% 4#51*5(*,)#$%(*5%!"&#4%5#3(4"14#$=%
(*5%"&#%"!"(-%,!$"%3#4%9(*5%(4#%$#"%!1"%)*%"&#%"(9-#%9#-!?@%
%

Exit Package cost 
band (including 

special 
payments)

Number of 
Compulsory 

Redundancies

Number of other 
departures agreed

Total Number of exit 
packages by cost 

band

Total cost of exit 
packages in each 

band (£000)

2012/13 2011/12 2012/13 2011/12 2012/13 2011/12 2012/13 2011/12

AB%C%ADB=BBB% E% FG% B% B% E% FG% EG% FB7%

ADB=BBF%C%AGB=BBB% G% H% B% B% G% H% FBD% DFI%

AGB=BBF%C%AJB=BBB% 7% B% B% B% 7% B% F7J% B%

AJB=BBF%C%AKB=BBB% B% B% B% B% B% B% B% B%

Total 16 21 0 0 16 21 332 318

%

8&#%,!$"%!6%#:)"%3(,;(<#$%)*,-15#$%"&#%,(3)"(-%,!$"$%!6%#(4->%4#")4#/#*"$%L?&),&%(4#%*!"%4#-#M(*"%)*%
#M#4>%,($#N%51#%"!%9#%3()5%"!%"&#%O!,(-%P!M#4*/#*"%Q#*$)!*%.,&#/#%9>%"&#%R!1*,)-S%%8&#$#%,!$"$%
(4#%5)$,-!$#5%($%3!$"%#/3-!>/#*"%9#*#6)"%,!$"$%?)"&)*%*!*C5)$"4)91"#5%,!$"$%!*%"&#%R!/34#&#*$)M#%
T*,!/#%(*5%U:3#*5)"14#%."("#/#*"S%
%
Q4)!4% >#(4% 9(*5)*<$% (*5% "&#% "!"(-% ,!$"% !6% #:)"% 3(,;(<#$% &(M#% 9##*% 4#$"("#5% ?&#4#% "&#4#% ?#4#%
5)66#4#*,#$%9#"?##*%"&#%#$")/("#5%,!$"%!6%5#3(4"14#%($%1$#5%)*%"&#%*!"#%)*%-($"%>#(4V$%(,,!1*"$%(*5%
"&#%(,"1(-%,!$"S%%

15 Audit Costs

R(/94)5<#%R)">%R!1*,)-%)*,144#5%"&#%6!--!?)*<%6##$%4#-(")*<%"!%#:"#4*(-%(15)"%(*5%)*$3#,")!*S%
%

(£000s) 2012/13 2011/12

Fees payable in respect of the financial year:

Audit Commission % %

U:"#4*(-%(15)"%$#4M),#$%,(44)#5%!1"%9>%"&#%(33!)*"#5%(15)"!4% B% EE%

R#4")6),(")!*%!6%<4(*"%,-()/$%(*5%4#"14*$% B% DD%

+##$%3(>(9-#%)*%4#$3#,"%!6%!"&#4%$#4M),#$% D% G%

Ernst & Young % %

U:"#4*(-%(15)"%$#4M),#$%,(44)#5%!1"%9>%"&#%(33!)*"#5%(15)"!4% JK% B%

R#4")6),(")!*%!6%<4(*"%,-()/$%(*5%4#"14*$% F7% B%

+##$%3(>(9-#%)*%4#$3#,"%!6%!"&#4%$#4M),#$% 7J% B%

% 119 125

%
U4*$"% W% X!1*<% ?#4#% (33!)*"#5% ($% U:"#4*(-% 015)"!4$% "!% "&#% R!1*,)-% !*% F% Y,"!9#4% DBFDS% 8&#>%
4#,#)M#5%3(>/#*"%6!4%$#4M),#$%!6%A7=FIB%)*%DBFFZFD%9#6!4#%"&#)4%(15)"%(33!)*"/#*"S%%
%
%

%
%

%
%

Page 161



 !"#$%"!%"&#%'()*%+)*(*,)(-%."("#/#*"$%
%
%

%%%%%%%%%%%%% %
% 01% %%%%%%%2**3(-%4#5!6"%(*7%."("#/#*"%!8%2,,!3*"$%
%%%%%%%%%%%%%% %%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%

16 Property, Plant and Equipment

Financial year 2012/13 

(£000s)

C
o

u
n

c
il
 

D
w

e
ll

in
g

s

O
th

e
r 

L
a
n

d
 &

B
u

il
d

in
g

s

V
e
h

ic
le

s
, 
P

la
n

t,
 

F
u

rn
it

u
re

 &
 

E
q

u
ip

m
e
n

t

In
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 

A
s
s
e
ts

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 

A
s
s
e
ts

A
s
s
e
ts

 u
n

d
e
r 

C
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti

o
n

T
o

ta
l 
P

ro
p

e
rt

y
, 

P
la

n
t 

&
 

E
q

u
ip

m
e
n

t

Cost or Valuation

At 1 April 2012 491,714 116,538 16,427 1,832 919 4,320 631,750

+3--9%7#56#,)("#7%($$#"$%
7#6#,!:*)$#7%

;% <=0;>% <=?@;;>% ;% ;% ;% <=?A0;>%

277)")!*$% B?B;0% C?A@D% B@=% ==C% B0% =?D=;% =D?1E1%

4#F(-3(")!*%)*,6#($#$G<7#,6#($#$>%
6#,!:*)$#7%)*%"&#%6#F(-3(")!*%
6#$#6F#%

<=?ACC>% E?;;B% ;% ;% ;% ;% 1?=A@%

4#F(-3(")!*%)*,6#($#$G<7#,6#($#$>%
6#,!:*)$#7%)*%"&#%$365-3$%G%7#8),)"%
!*%56!F)$)!*%!8%$#6F),#$%

<A?=1A>% =?1BC% ;% ;% ;% ;% <E?EDE>%

H#6#,!:*)")!*%I%7)$5!$(-$% <0?C@E>% ;% ;% ;% ;% ;% <0?C@E>%

H#6#,!:*)")!*%I%!"&#6% <1A;>% <=@C>% ;% ;% ;% <CD>% <E@@>%

2$$#"$%6#,-($$)8)#7%86!/%
)*F#$"/#*"%56!5#6")#$%%

;% 0;% ;% ;% ;% <=;B>% <@B>%

2$$#"$%6#,-($$)8)#7%<"!>%G%86!/%&#-7%
8!6%$(-#%

;% <1?@00>% <@00>% ;% ;% ;% <D?1EE>%

2$$#"$%6#,-($$)8)#7%<"!>%G%86!/%!"&#6%
,("#:!6)#$%!8%56!5#6"9?%5-(*"%(*7%
#J3)5/#*"%

<=?0AA>% 1?D0B% B1% BA% ED% <0?1;A>% ;%

At 31 March 2013 486,503 126,448 15,059 2,042 1,077 2,288 633,417

Accumulated Depreciation and 
Impairment

At 1 April 2012 0 (4,598) (8,331) (249) (25) 0 (13,203)

+3--9%7#56#,)("#7%($$#"$%
7#6#,!:*)$#7%

;% =0;% =?@;;% ;% ;% ;% =?A0;%

H#56#,)(")!*%,&(6:#% <=;?1@A>% <0?;=E>% <=?E0;>% <D;>% ;% ;% <=D?=@1>%

H#56#,)(")!*%K6)""#*%!3"%"!%"&#%
4#F(-3(")!*%4#$#6F#%

=;?00=% =?@@D% ;% ;% ;% ;% =C?=;E%

H#56#,)(")!*%K6)""#*%!3"%"!%"&#%
.365-3$%G%H#8),)"%!*%"&#%L6!F)$)!*%
!8%.#6F),#$%

EC% ==% ;% ;% ;% ;% @0%

2$$#"$%6#,-($$)8)#7%"!%G%86!/%M#-7%
8!6%.(-#%

;% ;% @;D% ;% ;% ;% @;D%

2$$#"$%6#,-($$)8)#7%"!%G%86!/%!"&#6%
,("#:!6)#$%!8%56!5#6"9?%5-(*"%(*7%
#J3)5/#*"%

AD% <0A>% <C0>% <C1>% ;% ;% ;%

At 31 March 2013 0 (5,736) (7,579) (323) (25) 0 (13,663)

Net Book Value

At 31 March 2013 486,503 120,712 7,480 1,719 1,052 2,288 619,754

At 31 March 2012 491,714 111,940 8,096 1,583 894 4,320 618,547

%

%

%

Page 162



 !"#$%"!%"&#%'()*%+)*(*,)(-%."("#/#*"$%
%
%

%
% 0**1(-%2#3!4"%(*5%."("#/#*"%!6%0,,!1*"$% 78%
%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%

Financial year 2011/12 (as restated)

(£000s)

C
o

u
n

c
il
 

D
w

e
ll

in
g

s

O
th

e
r 

L
a
n

d
 &

B
u

il
d

in
g

s

V
e
h

ic
le

s
, 
P

la
n

t,
 

F
u

rn
it

u
re

 &
 

E
q

u
ip

m
e
n

t

In
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 

A
s
s
e
ts

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 

A
s
s
e
ts

A
s
s
e
ts

 u
n

d
e
r 

C
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti

o
n

T
o

ta
l 
P

ro
p

e
rt

y
, 

P
la

n
t 

&
 

E
q

u
ip

m
e
n

t

Cost or Valuation

At 1 April 2011 489,599 113,387 16,763 1,533 909 1,012 623,203

055)")!*$% 9:;7<% <:9<9% 979% <==% >?% 7:@=7% >7:;=9%

2#A(-1(")!*%
)*,4#($#$BC5#,4#($#$D%4#,!E*)F#5%
)*%"&#%4#A(-1(")!*%4#$#4A#%

C;:G@7D% >:9<7% ?% ?% ?% ?% C9:<<?D%

2#A(-1(")!*%)*,4#($#$%B%
C5#,4#($#$D%4#,!E*)$#5%)*%"&#%
$143-1$%B%5#6),)"%!*%34!A)$)!*%!6%
$#4A),#$%

@:;8@% 9>% ?% ?% ?% ?% @:G>8%

H#4#,!E*)")!*%I%5)$3!$(-$% C=89D% ?% ?% ?% ?% ?% C=89D%

H#4#,!E*)")!*%I%!"&#4% C98>D% C>:<?=D% ?% ?% ?% C<;D% C>:GG;D%

0$$#"$%4#,-($$)6)#5%"!%)*"(*E)J-#%
($$#"$%

?% ?% ?% ?% ?% ?% ?%

0$$#"$%4#,-($$)6)#5%64!/%
)*A#$"/#*"%34!3#4")#$%%

>8@% ?% ?% ?% ?% ?% >8@%

0$$#"$%4#,-($$)6)#5%C"!D%B%64!/%&#-5%
6!4%$(-#%

?% ?% C>:>88D% ?% ?% ?% C>:>88D%

0$$#"$%4#,-($$)6)#5%C"!D%B%64!/%
!"&#4%,("#E!4)#$%!6%34!3#4"K:%3-(*"%
(*5%#L1)3/#*"%

C;8D% 8?% >G7% ?% ?% C>8GD% ?%

At 31 March 2012 491,714 116,538 16,427 1,832 919 4,320 631,750

Accumulated Depreciation and 
Impairment

At 1 April 2011 (1) (2,738) (7,435) (209) (25) 0 (10,408)

H#34#,)(")!*%,&(4E#% C=:9;7D% C<:9<8D% C>:=?>D% C@?D% ?% ?% C>@:<7=D%

H#34#,)(")!*%M4)""#*%!1"%"!%"&#%
2#A(-1(")!*%2#$#4A#%

=:987% 87<% ?% ?% ?% ?% >?:>G8%

H#34#,)(")!*%M4)""#*%!1"%"!%"&#%
.143-1$%B%H#6),)"%!*%"&#%N4!A)$)!*%
!6%.#4A),#$%

>G% >8>% ?% ?% ?% ?% >9=%

O/3()4/#*"%-!$$#$%B%4#A#4$(-$%
4#,!E*)$#5%)*%"&#%.143-1$%B%H#6),)"%
!*%"&#%N4!A)$)!*%!6%.#4A),#$%

?% ?% ?% ?% ?% ?% ?%

0$$#"$%4#,-($$)6)#5%"!%B%64!/%P#-5%
6!4%.(-#%

?% ?% >:?=?% ?% ?% ?% >:?=?%

0$$#"$%4#,-($$)6)#5%"!%B%64!/%!"&#4%
,("#E!4)#$%!6%34!3#4"K:%3-(*"%(*5%
#L1)3/#*"%

7% G<% CG8D% ?% ?% ?% ?%

At 31 March 2012 0 (4,598) (8,331) (249) (25) 0 (13,203)

Net Book Value

At 31 March 2012 491,714 111,940 8,096 1,583 894 4,320 618,547

At 31 March 2011 489,598 110,649 9,328 1,324 884 1,012 612,795

%
%
%
%

Page 163



 !"#$%"!%"&#%'()*%+)*(*,)(-%."("#/#*"$%
%
%

%%%%%%%%%%%%% %
% 01% %%%%%%%2**3(-%4#5!6"%(*7%."("#/#*"%!8%2,,!3*"$%
%%%%%%%%%%%%%% %%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%

17 Property Plant and Equipment - Revaluations

9&#%:!3*,)-% ,(66)#$% !3"% (% 6!--)*;% 56!;6(//#% "&("% #*$36#$% "&("% (--% <6!5#6"=>%<-(*"% (*7%?@3)5/#*"%
6#@3)6#7%"!%A#%/#($36#7%("%8()6%B(-3#%)$%6#B(-3#7%("%-#($"%#B#6=%8)B#%=#(6$C%

%
:366#*"%=#(6%6#B(-3(")!*$%D#6#%,(66)#7%!3"%#E"#6*(--=%A=F%

%
'6%.%G(=8)#-7%+4H:.%H44IJK!*$L%4?I%JM)-N$%K#(7%(*7%?B#L%

'$%2%O6);;$%O2%JK!*$L%'4H:.%JO)7D#--$%GG<L%

'$%2%P6!!/%'2%'4H:.%JO)7D#--$%GG<L%
'$%:%.(-#%O2%JK!*$L%'.,%'4H:.%JO)7D#--$%GG<L%

%
9&#%A($)$%8!6%B(-3(")!*%)$%$#"%!3"%)*%"&#%$"("#/#*"%!8%(,,!3*")*;%5!-),)#$%!*%5(;#%Q0C%

%

9&#%8!--!D)*;%$"("#/#*"%$&!3-7%A#%*!"#7%D)"&%6#;(67%"!%"&#%B(-3(")!*$%,(66)#7%!3"%A=%O)7D#--$%GG<F%
%

H*% 6#(,&)*;% "&#% 8)*(-% B(-3(")!*% 8);36#$>% O)7D#--$% &($% 7#5(6"#7% 86!/% "&#% 2556()$(-% (*7%I (-3(")!*%
."(*7(67$%56#5(6#7%A=%"&#%4!=(-%H*$")"3")!*%!8%:&(6"#6#7%.36B#=!6$C%%9&)$%)$%A#,(3$#%"&#%B(-3(")!*%
!8% "&#% 5!6"8!-)!% )$% $3,&% "&("% O)7D#--$% &($% *!"% A##*% )*$"63,"#7% "!% 6#R)*$5#,"% (*=% !8% "&#% 56!5#6")#$C%%
9&#=%&(B#%"&#6#8!6#%6#-)#7%!*% )*8!6/(")!*%#)"&#6%!A"()*#7%A=% "&#/%)*%SQQT>%SQQU>%VWW0>%VWWU%(*7%
VWS0>%!6%$3A$#@3#*"-=%56!B)7#7%A=%:(/A6)7;#%:)"=%:!3*,)-%)*%!67#6%"!%6#(,&%"&#)6%,!*,-3$)!*$C%

%

O)7D#--$%7)7%3*7#6"(N#%(*%#E"#6*(-%B)$3(-%)*$5#,")!*%!8%"&#%56!5#6")#$%B(-3#7C%%9&#%:!3*,)-%56!B)7#$%
357("#7% )*8!6/(")!*%!*%#(,&%56!5#6"=% "!%O)7D#--$% "!% $355-#/#*"% "&#%7#"()-% "&#=%(-6#(7=%&!-7%(*7%
/##")*;$% (6#% &#-7% "!% 5-(*% (*7%7) $,3$$% "&#% B(-3(")!*$C% % 9&#$#% D!3-7% &);&-);&"% (*=% $);*)8),(*"%
,&(*;#$C%
%

9&#%:!3*,)-%&($%,&!$#*% "!%7#5(6"% 86!/% "&#%2556()$(-%(*7%I(-3(")!*%."(*7(67$%!*% "&#%;6!3*7$%!8%
(,&)#B)*;%A#$"%B(-3#%8!6%/!*#=%)*%6#-(")!*%"!%56!5#6"=%B(-3(")!*%D!6NC%

%

9&#% 8!--!D)*;% "(A-#% $&!D$% "&#% ,366#*"% ,(66=)*;% B(-3#% !8% ($$#"$% A=% "&#% 7("#% !8% "&#% /!$"% 6#,#*"%
B(-3(")!*F%

%

(£000s) Council Dwellings
Other Land and 

Buildings
Total

I(-3#7%("%8()6%B(-3#%($%("F% % % %

0S%'(6,&%VWS0% XU1>TW0% 0Y>YTY% TVX>V1W%

0S%'(6,&%VWSV% % SW>W0Y% SW>W0Y%

0S%'(6,&%VWSS% % 0U>UW0% 0U>UW0%

0S%'(6,&%VWSW% % U>VVU% U>VVU%

0S%'(6,&%VWWQ% % VT>UUY% VT>UUY%

Total Valuation 486,503 120,712 607,215

%

I#&),-#$>% <-(*"% (*7%? @3)5/#*"% ($% $&!6"% -)8#% !5#6(")!*(-% ($$#"$>% (6#% &#-7% ("% &)$"!6),(-% ,!$"% -#$$%
7#56#,)(")!*%($%(%56!E=%8!6%8()6%B(-3#C%
%

%

%

%

%

Page 164



 !"#$%"!%"&#%'()*%+)*(*,)(-%."("#/#*"$%
%
%

%
% 0**1(-%2#3!4"%(*5%."("#/#*"%!6%0,,!1*"$% 78%
%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%

18 Property, Plant and Equipment - Depreciation

9&#% /(:!4)";% !6% "&#% <!1*,)-=$% >4!3#4";?% >-(*"% (*5% @A1)3/#*"% (4#% ,!1*,)-% 5B#--)*C$D% % 9&#$#% (4#%
3-(,#5%)*"!%"&4##%1$#61-E-)6#%F(*5)*C$D%%0$$#"$%F1)-"%F#6!4#%GHIJ%(4#%($$#$$#5%($%&(K)*C%(%4#/()*)*C%
1$#61-%-)6#%!6%LH%;#(4$?%"&!$#%F1)-"%F#"B##*%GHIJ%(*5%GH8I%&(K#%(%4#/()*)*C%1$#61-%-)6#%!6%7H%;#(4$?%
"&!$#%F1)-"%F#"B##*%GH8I%(*5%LMGM%&(K#%(% 4#/()*)*C%1$#61-% -)6#%!6%IH%;#(4$%(*5% "&!$#%F1)-"%(6"#4%
LMGM%&(K#%(%1$#61-%-)6#%!6%NM%;#(4$D%
%
9&#%1$#61-%-)K#$%!6%!"&#4%($$#"$%(4#%#$")/("#5%($O%
%

 % P*64($"41,"14#%0$$#"$%Q%IM%;#(4$%

 % R"&#4%F1)-5)*C$%Q%SM%;#(4$%

 % T#&),-#$?%>-(*"%(*5%@A1)3/#*"%Q%7%"!%LM%;#(4$%

19 Heritage Assets

(£000s) Civic Regalia

<(44;)*C%K(-1#%("%G%034)-%LMGG?%7G%'(4,&%LMGL%(*5%7G%'(4,&%LMG7% I7M%

%

9&#% ,!--#,")!*% !6%<)K),%2#C(-)(%B($% K(-1#5% ("%/(4U#"% K(-1#% 6!4% )*$14(*,#% 3143!$#$% )*% !K#/F#4%
LMGG%F;%'4%>#"#4%V1,U-#%+P2TD%%%
%
9&#%<!1*,)-%&($%($$#$$#5%"&("%"&#%K(-1#%("%"&#%#*5%!6%#(,&%6)*(*,)(-%;#(4%64!/%LMMH%"!%LMG7%B!1-5%
*!"%F#%/("#4)(--;%5)66#4#*"%64!/%"&#%6)C14#%!F"()*#5%)*% !K#/F#4%LMGGD%
%
%

%
%

%
%

%
%

%

%
%

%
%

%
%

%
%

%
%

%
%

%
%

%
%

%
%

%

Page 165



 !"#$%"!%"&#%'()*%+)*(*,)(-%."("#/#*"$%
%
%

%%%%%%%%%%%%% %
% 01% %%%%%%%2**3(-%4#5!6"%(*7%."("#/#*"%!8%2,,!3*"$%
%%%%%%%%%%%%%% %%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%

20 Capital Expenditure and Capital Financing

9&#% "!"(-%(/!3*"%!8%,(5)"(-%#:5#*7)"36#% )*,366#7% )*% "&#%;#(6% )$%$&!<*% )*% "&#% "(=-#%=#-!<>% "!?#"&#6%
<)"&%"&#%6#$!36,#$%"&("%&(@#%=##*%3$#7%"!%8)*(*,#%)"A%%B&#6#%,(5)"(-%#:5#*7)"36#%)$%"!%=#%8)*(*,#7%)*%
83"36#%;#(6$%=;%,&(6?#$%"!%6#@#*3#%($%($$#"$%(6#%3$#7%=;%"&#%C!3*,)->%"&#%#:5#*7)"36#%6#$3-"$%)*%(*%
)*,6#($#%)*%"&#%C(5)"(-%+)*(*,)*?%4#D3)6#/#*"%EC+4F>%(%/#($36#%!8%"&#%,(5)"(-%#:5#*7)"36#%)*,366#7%
&)$"!6),(--;%=;%"&#%C!3*,)-%"&("%&($%;#"%"!%=#%8)*(*,#7A%%%

%

(£000s) 2012/13 2011/12

Opening Capital Financing Requirement 213,852 (3)

Capital Expenditure

G6!5#6";>%G-(*"%(*7%HD3)5/#*"% IJ>KLK% I0>MNL%

O*@#$"/#*"%G6!5#6")#$% MPI% LK%

O*"(*?)=-#%2$$#"$% 1P% IJL%

 !*Q,366#*"%($$#"$%&#-7%8!6%$(-#% P% P%

Capital Expenditure Charged to the Comprehensive Statement of 
Income and Expenditure

4#@#*3#%H:5#*7)"36#%+3*7#7%86!/%C(5)"(-% I>M11% R>MNM%

S42%$#-8Q8)*(*,)*?%$#""-#/#*"%5(;/#*"% P% RI0>JMR%

T#Q/)*)/3$%,(5)"(-%#:5#*7)"36#% J1P% IR0%

Loans Advanced

G6)@("#%.#,"!6%S!3$)*?%O/56!@#/#*"%U!(*$% 01% LM%

Sources of finance

C(5)"(-%6#,#)5"$% EMMNF% EK>PJLF%

V!@#6*/#*"%?6(*"$%(*7%!"&#6%,!*"6)=3")!*$% ER>JLIF% E0>RJKF%

4#@#*3#%(*7%6#$#6@#$% EI0>JJNF% EN>KIPF%

Closing capital financing requirement 215,604 213,852

%

%

%
%

%

%

%

%

%

%
%

%

%

%

%

%

%
%

%

%

%

Page 166



 !"#$%"!%"&#%'()*%+)*(*,)(-%."("#/#*"$%
%
%

%
% 0**1(-%2#3!4"%(*5%."("#/#*"%!6%0,,!1*"$% 78%
%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%

21 Capital Commitments

0"%79%'(4,&%:;97<%"&#%=!1*,)-%>($%,!*"4(,"1(--?%,!//)""#5%"!%,(3)"(-%>!4@%A(-1#5%("%(334!B)/("#-?%
CDED%/)--)!*<% ($% $&!>*% )*% "&#% 6!--!>)*F% "(G-#E% % =(3)"(-% #B3#*5)"14#% 1*5#4% "&#$#% ,!*"4(,"$% >)--% G#%
)*,144#5%)*%:;97H9D<%(3(4"%64!/%C9ED%/)--)!*%>&),&%)"%)$%#$")/("#5%>)--%G#%$3#*"%)*%:;9DH9IE%
%

(£000s) 31 March 2013 31 March 2012

Property, Plant and Equipment

=-(?%+(4/%=!//1*)"?%=#*"4#% :8;% ;%

J#$1$%K4##*%"#**)$%,!14"$% ;% 8D%

=!//1*)"?%L-?/3),%M1G-),%04"%=!//)$$)!*% ;% 9;9%

')--%2!(5%=#/#"#4?%/#/!4)(-%(4">!4@% ;% I7%

066!45(G-#%&!/#$% ;% 87%

N#,#*"%O!/#$% ;% 9<7:7%

L"&#4%O20%$"!,@%$3#*5% ;% 8PD%

'#4,14?%(G("#/#*"% 79% PP%

Q#&),-#%($$#"%4#3-(,#/#*"$% :I% 99R%

K4(*5%04,(5#%=(4%M(4@%,!*"4!-%4!!/%% 9% ID%

N#A#-!3/#*"%-(*5%!*%S)*F$%O#5F#$%2!(5% 9TD% :87%

04G14?%=!//1*)"?%=#*"4#% R;% ;%

K4(*5%04,(5#%0**#B%=(4%M(4@%U%N4()*(F#%K1--#?$% I:% ;%

2#614G)$&/#*"%!6% #>/(4@#"%2!(5%=#/#"#4?%V1)-5)*F$% IT% ;%

2!/(*%=!14"% 9<:7T% ;%

V4(*5!*%=!14"% ;% D;;%

L"&#4%>!4@$%U%-#$$%"&(*%CI;<;;;%3#4%,!*"4(,"% ::;% :;D%

W*A#$"/#*"%M4!3#4")#$% % %

X)!*%Y(45%,!*"4)G1")!*%"!%>!4@$% 9:D% ;%

0$$#"$%O#-5%+!4%.(-#% % %

X(*5%("%=-(?%+(4/% 9<T77% ;%

Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital Under Statute

0$$#$$/#*"%=#*"4#% :D9% ;%

K4(*"$%6!4%M4)A("#%.#,"!4%#*#4F?%#66),)#*,?%)/34!A#/#*"$% 9R% ;%

=!//1*)"?%N#A#-!3/#*"%F4(*"$% ::I% 9PR%

4,396 3,962

%
%
%
%
%
%
%
%
%
%

Page 167



 !"#$%"!%"&#%'()*%+)*(*,)(-%."("#/#*"$%
%
%

%%%%%%%%%%%%% %
% 01% %%%%%%%2**3(-%4#5!6"%(*7%."("#/#*"%!8%2,,!3*"$%
%%%%%%%%%%%%%% %%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%

22 Investment Properties

9&#%8!--!:)*;%)"#/$%!8%)*,!/#%(*7%#<5#*$#%&(=#%>##*%(,,!3*"#7%8!6%)*%"&#%?!/56#&#*$)=#%@*,!/#%
(*7%A<5#*7)"36#%."("#/#*"B%
%

(£000s) 2012/13 2011/12

4#*"(-%)*,!/#%86!/%)*=#$"/#*"%56!5#6"C% DEFGHHI% DEFJKKI%

L)6#,"%!5#6(")*;%#<5#*$#$%(6)$)*;%86!/%)*=#$"/#*"%56!5#6"C% E1M% H1N%

Net gain (7,163) (7,306)

%
9&#6#% (6#% *!% 6#$"6),")!*$% !*% "&#% ?!3*,)-O$% (>)-)"C% "!% 6#(-)$#% "&#% =(-3#% )*&#6#*"% )*% )"$% )*=#$"/#*"%
56!5#6"C%!6%!*%"&#%?!3*,)-O$%6);&"%"!%"&#%6#,#)5"%!8%)*,!/#%(*7%"&#%56!,##7$%!8%7)$5!$(-B%%%
%
9&#%8!--!:)*;%$3//(6)$#$%"&#%/!=#/#*"%)*%"&#%8()6%=(-3#%!8%)*=#$"/#*"%56!5#6")#$%!=#6%"&#%C#(6B%
%

(£000s) 2012/13 2011/12

Balance at start of the year 111,373 96,834

Additions: % %

.3>$#P3#*"%#<5#*7)"36#% E1K% H0%

 #"%;()*$%Q%-!$$#$%86!/%8()6%=(-3#%(7R3$"/#*"$% SFMSM% KNF0EH%

L)$5!$(-$% 1% DG0EI%

Transfers: % %

9!%Q%86!/%T6!5#6"CF%T-(*"%(*7%AP3)5/#*"% DM1I% DKN0I%

96(*$8#6$%86!/%($$#"$%)*%"&#%,!36$#%!8%,!*$"63,")!*% K1J% 1%

Balance at the end of the year 114,476 111,373

%
%
%
%
%
%
%
%
%
%
%
%
%
%
%
%
%
%
%
%
%
%
%
%
%

Page 168



 !"#$%"!%"&#%'()*%+)*(*,)(-%."("#/#*"$%
%
%

%
% 0**1(-%2#3!4"%(*5%."("#/#*"%!6%0,,!1*"$% 78%
%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%

23 Intangible Assets

9&#% :!1*,)-% (,,!1*"$% 6!4% )"$% $!6";(4#% ($% )*"(*<)=-#% ($$#"$>% ;&#4#% "&#% $!6";(4#% )$% *!"% $1,&% (*%
)*"#<4(-% 3(4"% !6% (%3( 4"),1-(4% ?9% $@$"#/% "&("% )"% )$% (,,!1*"#5% 6!4% ($% 3(4"% !6% "&#% &(45;(4#% )"#/% !6%
34!3#4"@>%3-(*"%(*5%#A1)3/#*"B%%%
%
0--% $!6";(4#% )$% <)C#*% (% 6)*)"#% 1$#61-% -)6#>% =($#5% !*% ($$#$$/#*"$% !6% "&#% 3#4)!5% "&("% "&#% $!6";(4#% )$%
#D3#,"#5%"!%=#%!6%1$#%"!%"&#%:!1*,)-B%%%
%
9&#%,(44@)*<%(/!1*"%!6%)*"(*<)=-#%($$#"$%)$%(/!4")$#5%!*%(%$"4()<&"E-)*#%=($)$B%%9&#%(/!4")$(")!*%!6%
F87G>HHH%,&(4<#5%"!%4#C#*1#%)*%IH8IJ8K%4#-("#$%"!%$3#,)(-)$"%$!6";(4#%(*5%;($%,&(4<#5%"!%4#-#C(*"%
$#4C),#$%)*%"&#%:!/34#&#*$)C#%?*,!/#%(*5%LD3#*5)"14#%."("#/#*"B%
%
9&#%/!C#/#*"%!*%)*"(*<)=-#%($$#"%=(-(*,#$%514)*<%"&#%@#(4%;($%($%6!--!;$M%
%

(£000s)

2012/13

Software 
licences

2011/12

Software 
licences

Balance at start of the year

N4!$$%,(44@)*<%(/!1*"$% 8>HG8% OHP%

0,,1/1-("#5%(/!4")$(")!*% QPIKR% Q7H8R%

Net carrying amount at start of the year 538 504

S14,&($#$% TH% 8PG%

0/!4")$(")!*%6!4%"&#%3#4)!5% Q87GR% Q8IIR%

U"&#4%,&(*<#$% H% H%

Net carrying amount at end of year 472 538

:!/34)$)*<M% % %

N4!$$%,(44@)*<%(/!1*"$% 1,081 1,061

0,,1/1-("#5%(/!4")$(")!*% (609) (523)

%

.3#,)(-)$"%$!6";(4#%;($%314,&($#5%)*%IH8IJ8K%4#-(")*<%"!%"&#%-!,(-)$(")!*%!6%,!1*,)-%"(D%=#*#6)"$%(*5%
"&#%)*"4!51,")!*%!6%(%V1$)*#$$%?/34!C#/#*"%W)$"4),"%)*%:(/=4)5<#B%%9&#%,!$"$%;)--%=#%(/!4")$#5%!C#4%
"&#%#D3#,"#5%-)6#%!6%"&#%$!6";(4#B%
%
+1--@% (/!4")$#5% ($$#"$% !6% FGH>HHH% ;#4#% ;4)""#*% !1"% !6% (,,1/1-("#5% (/!4")$(")!*% (*5% "&#% <4!$$%
,(44@)*<%(/!1*"%514)*<%"&#%@#(4B%
%
%
%
%
%
%
%
%
%
%
%
%
%
%

Page 169



 !"#$%"!%"&#%'()*%+)*(*,)(-%."("#/#*"$%
%
%

%%%%%%%%%%%%% %
% 01% %%%%%%%2**3(-%4#5!6"%(*7%."("#/#*"%!8%2,,!3*"$%
%%%%%%%%%%%%%% %%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%

24 Leases

9!3*,)-%($%:#$$##%

Finance Leases

;&#%,(66<)*=%>(-3#%!8%)*>#$"/#*"%56!5#6")#$%&#-7%3*7#6%8)*(*,#%-#($#$%?($%@ABC0DBEEE%("%FA%'(6,&%
1EAF%G@ABD0HBEEE%("%FA%'(6,&%1EA1IJ%%.#,!*7(6<%-#($#%5(</#*"$%!8%@1B10H%)*%#(,&%!8%1EAAKA1%(*7%
1EA1KAF%?#6#%(,,!3*"#7%8!6%($%8)*(*,#%,!$"$J%%;&)$%(**3(-%,&(6=#%?)--%,!*")*3#%3*")-%1EFDJ%%%

%

;&#$#%L*73$"6)(-%3*)"$%(6#%-#($#7%!3"%3*7#6%!5#6(")*=%-#($#$%(*7%"&#%"!"(-%/)*)/3/%-#($#%5(</#*"$%
(6#%@H0BM10%("%FA%'(6,&%1EAF%G@FNBEEE%("%FA%'(6,&%1EA1IJ%

%
;&#%9!3*,)-% -#($#$% )*% "&6##%,(6%5(6O$%3*7#6% -!*=P"#6/%5#55#6,!6*% -#($#$J% %;&#%,(66<)*=%>(-3#%!8%
"&#$#% ,(6% 5(6O$% )*,-37#7% )*% Q6!5#6"<B% Q-(*"% (*7% RS3)5/#*"% ?($% @ACBCANBHCH% ("% FA% '(6,&% 1EAF%
G@ACBNEHBH0E%("%FA%'(6,&%1EA1IJ%

Operating Leases

;&#% 9!3*,)-% -#($#$% )*% (% *3/T#6% !8% !5#6(")!*(-% 56!5#6")#$% (*7% $!/#% #S3)5/#*"% 3*7#6% !5#6(")*=%
-#($#$J%

%

;&#%83"36#%/)*)/3/%-#($#%5(</#*"$%73#%3*7#6%*!*P,(*,#--(T-#%-#($#$%)*%83"36#%<#(6$%(6#U%
%

(£000s) 31 March 2013 31 March 2012

 !"%-("#6%"&(*%!*#%<#(6% 0HN% 1MH%

:("#6%"&(*%!*#%<#(6%(*7%*!"%-("#6%"&(*%8)>#%<#(6$% DEF% DNN%

:("#6%"&(*%8)>#%<#(6$% AM1% AM1%

1,164 1,068

%

;&#%#V5#*7)"36#%,&(6=#7%"!%"&#%9!/56#&#*$)>#%L*,!/#%(*7%RV5#*7)"36#%."("#/#*"%736)*=%"&#%<#(6%
)*%6#-(")!*%"!%"&#$#%-#($#$%?($U%
%

(£000s) 2012/13 2011/12

Minimum lease payments 411 411

%

9!3*,)-%($%:#$$!6%

Operating Leases

;&#%9!3*,)-%-#($#$%!3"%,!//#6,)(-%56!5#6")#$%(,6!$$%"&#%9)"<%3*7#6%!5#6(")*=%-#($#$J%%;&#%5!6"8!-)!%
)*,-37#$%$&!5$B%)*73$"6)(-%3*)"$%(*7%$&!55)*=%,#*"6#$J%
%

%

%

%

%

%

%

%

%

Page 170



 !"#$%"!%"&#%'()*%+)*(*,)(-%."("#/#*"$%
%
%

%
% 0**1(-%2#3!4"%(*5%."("#/#*"%!6%0,,!1*"$% 78%
%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%

9&#%61"14#%/)*)/1/%-#($#%3(:/#*"$%4#,#);(<-#=%1*5#4%-#($#$%>&),&%,(**!"%<#%,(*,#--#5=%(4#?%
%

(£000s) 31 March 2013 31 March 2012

 !"%-("#4%"&(*%!*#%:#(4% 7=8@A% 8=88B%

C("#4%"&(*%!*#%:#(4%(*5%*!"%-("#4%"&(*%6);#%:#(4$% DB=8DD% D@=8D7%

C("#4%"&(*%6);#%:#(4$% D@B=@8E% EF=@BA%

118,655 110,671

%

9&#%/)*)/1/%-#($#%3(:/#*"$%4#,#);(<-#%5!%*!"% )*,-15#%,!*")*G#*"% 4#*"$%$1,&%($% "&!$#%<($#5%!*%
"14*!;#4H% % I*% B@DBJD8% KB=8@B=DLL% !6% ,!*")*G#*"% 4#*"$% >#4#% 4#,#);(<-#% <:% "&#% M!1*,)-% NB@DDJDB%
KB=B@F=OEEPH%

25 Short-Term and Long-Term Investments

2012/13 2011/12

(£000s) Long Term Short Term Long Term Short Term

I*;#$"/#*"$%)*%I,#-(*5),%<(*Q$%
(*5%"&#)4%RS%$1<$)5)(4)#$%

D=F87% FE7% B=DE@% D=A7A%

T"&#4%)*;#$"/#*"$% @% AL=BEE% @% AO=@OD%

1,734 59,093 2,190 57,606

%
I*;#$"/#*"$%)*%I,#-(*5),%U(*Q$%(*5%"&#)4%RS%.1<$)5)(4)#$%
%
I*;#$"/#*"$%)*,-15#5%)*%,144#*"%($$#"$%(*5%-!*GV"#4/%($$#"$%)*%"&#%U(-(*,#%.&##"%("%8D%'(4,&%B@D8%
)*,-15#%"&#%6!--!>)*G%)*;#$"/#*"$=%"&#%;(-1#$%!6%>&),&%&(;#%<##*%)/3()4#5%<#,(1$#%!6%"&#%6)*(*,)(-%
5)66),1-")#$%#W3#4)#*,#5%<:%I,#-(*5),%<(*Q$%(*5%"&#)4%$1<$)5)(4)#$H%%9&#%)/3()4/#*"$%4#6-#,"#5%)*%"&#%
(,,!1*"$%(4#%<($#5%!*%"&#%-("#$"%MIX+0%C!,(-%01"&!4)":%0,,!1*")*G%X(*#-%NC00XP%G1)5(*,#%)$$1#5%
)*%'(:%B@D8H%
%
I*%T,"!<#4%B@@L=%(%*1/<#4%!6%I,#-(*5),%U(*Q$%(*5%"&#)4%RS%$1<$)5)(4)#$%>#*"%)*"!%(5/)*)$"4(")!*H%
%
9&#%M!1*,)-% &(5% KE/% 5#3!$)"#5% <#">##*% C(*5$<(*Q)% I$-(*5$% &6% (*5% )"$%RS% $1<$)5)(4:=% Y#4)"(<-#%
U(*Q%X-,=%>)"&%;(4:)*G%/("14)":%5("#$%(*5%)*"#4#$"%4("#$%($%6!--!>$?%
%

(£000s)
Original 

Investment Date
Original 

Maturity Date
Amount 

Invested (£000)
Interest Rate (%)

Y#4)"(<-#% @EJ@DJB@@L% @EJD@JB@@L% D=@@@% AHOA%

Y#4)"(<-#% D8J@OJB@@L% BBJDBJB@@L% D=@@@% OHBD%

C(*5$<(*Q)% 8@J@OJB@@L% @OJ@DJB@@E% B=@@@% OHBB%

Y#4)"(<-#% @AJ@EJB@@L% @AJ@8JB@@E% B=@@@% OH@@%

C(*5$<(*Q)% @DJ@FJB@@L% B7J@7JB@@E% D=@@@% OH8A%

C(*5$<(*Q)% @DJ@FJB@@L% BBJ@AJB@@E% B=@@@% OH7B%

9,000

%
Z14)*G%B@DBJD8%C(*5$<(*Q)%I$-(*5$%&6%>($%4#*(/#5%CUI%&6H%
%

Page 171



 !"#$%"!%"&#%'()*%+)*(*,)(-%."("#/#*"$%
%
%

%%%%%%%%%%%%% %
% 00% %%%%%%%1**2(-%3#4!5"%(*6%."("#/#*"%!7%1,,!2*"$%
%%%%%%%%%%%%%% %%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%

1--% /!*)#$% 8)"&)*% "&#$#% )*$")"2")!*$% (5#% ,255#*"-9% $2:;#,"% "!% "&#)5% 5#$4#,")<#% (6/)*)$"5(")!*% (*6%
5#,#)<#5$&)4%45!,#$$#$=%%>&#%(/!2*"%(*6%")/)*?%!7%4(9/#*"$%"!%6#4!$)"!5$%$2,&%($%"&#%@!2*,)-% )$%
6#"#5/)*#6%:9%"&#%(6/)*)$"5("!5$%A%5#,#)<#5$=%
%
B($#6%!*% "&#% -("#$"% )*7!5/(")!*%(<()-(:-#C% "&#%@!2*,)-% ,!*$)6#5$% "&("% )"% )$% (445!45)("#% "!%/(D#%(*%
)/4()5/#*"%(6;2$"/#*"%7!5%"&#%6#4!$)"$%:($#6%!*%"&#% )*7!5/(")!*%!2"-)*#6%:#-!8=%%1$%"&#%(<()-(:-#%
)*7!5/(")!*% )$% *!"% 6#7)*)")<#% ($% "!% "&#% (/!2*"$% (*6% ")/)*?$% !7% 4(9/#*"$% "!% :#% /(6#% :9% "&#%
(6/)*)$"5("!5$A5#,#)<#5$C% )"% )$% -)D#-9% "&("% 725"&#5%(6;2$"/#*"$%8)--%:#%/(6#% "!% "&#%(,,!2*"$% )*% 72"25#%
9#(5$=%
%
>&#% )/4()5/#*"% -!$$#$%5#,!?*)$#6% )*% "&#% E*,!/#%(*6%FG4#*6)"25#%1,,!2*"% )*%HIJHAJK%!7%LMMCIII%
NHIJJAJH%*#"% 5#<#5$(-%!7% )/4()5/#*"% -!$$#$%!7%L0OJCIIIP%&(<#%:##*%,(-,2-("#6%:9%6)$,!2*")*?% "&#%
($$2/#6%,($&7-!8$%("% "&#%#77#,")<#% )*"#5#$"% 5("#%!7% "&#%!5)?)*(-% 6#4!$)"$% )*%!56#5% "!% 5#,!?*)$#% "&#%
(*"),)4("#6%-!$$%!7%)*"#5#$"%"!%"&#%@!2*,)-%2*")-%/!*)#$%(5#%5#,!<#5#6=%
%
>&#%!<#5(--%4!$)")!*%)$%$2//(5)$#6%($%7!--!8$Q%
%

2012/13 2011/12

(£000s)
Heritable Bank 

Plc
LBI hf

Heritable Bank 
Plc

LBI hf

B(-(*,#%$&##"%,(559)*?%<(-2#% % % % %

R!*?%"#5/%)*<#$"/#*"$% I% JCOK0% HHH% JCSMT%

.&!5"%"#5/%)*<#$"/#*"$% 0HJ% KOK% UMO% SOS%

E*,5#($#%A%N6#,5#($#P%)*%
)/4()5/#*"%5#,!?*)$#6%)*%"&#%
@!/45#&#*$)<#%E*,!/#%(*6%
FG4#*6)"25#%(,,!2*"%

JU% UJ% NSUP% NKOMP%

@($&%5#,#)<#6%% KTJ% S0J% OHU% JCUUM%

%

>&#% 6#4!$)"$% )*% V#5)"(:-#% 8#5#% !5)?)*(--9% )/4()5#6% :9% LJCH00CIII% (*6% )*% RBE% :9% LJCKSICIII% )*%
HIITAIS=% % E*% HIISAJI% "&#5#% 8($% (*%(66) ")!*(-% )/4()5/#*"% !7% L0ITCIII% )*% 5#$4#,"% !7% RBE% (*6% (%
5#<#5$(-% !7% "&#% V#5)"(:-#% )/4()5/#*"% !7% LHJHCIII=% % E*% HIJIAJJ% "&#5#% 8($% (% 725"&#5% )/4()5/#*"% !7%
L0HCIII%)*%5#$4#,"%!7%RBE=%

Heritable Bank Plc

V#5)"(:-#%B(*D%W-,%)$%(%XY%5#?)$"#5#6%:(*D%!4#5(")*?%2*6#5%.,!"")$&%-(8=%%>&#%,!/4(*9%8($%4-(,#6%
)*%(6/)*)$"5(")!*%!*%O%Z,"!:#5%HIIT=%%E*%5#-(")!*%"!%"&#%HIITAIS%$"("#/#*"%!7%(,,!2*"$%"&#%@!2*,)-%
6#,)6#6%"!%5#,!?*)$#%(*%)/4()5/#*"%:($#6%!*%5#,!<#5)*?%TI4%)*%"&#%L=%>&#%45!?5#$$%5#4!5"% )$$2#6%
"!% ,5#6)"!5$C% :9% "&#%(6/)*)$"5("!5$%F5*$"% (*6%[!2*?% )*%12?2$"% HIJJC%*!"#6%(%:($#%,($#% 5#"25*% "!%
,5#6)"!5$%!7%TM%"!%SI%4#*,#%)*%"&#%L=%%>&#%-("#$"%246("#$%75!/%"&#%(6/)*)$"5("!5$%&(<#%*!"%,&(*?#6%
"&)$% #$")/("#=% %> !"(-% 6)<)6#*6$% 4()6% "!% 6("#% (5#% OO=H\% !7% "&#% ,-()/=% % E*% ,(-,2-(")*?% "&#% ,255#*"%
#G4#,"#6% 5#,!<#5(:-#% (/!2*"% "&#% @!2*,)-% &($% /(6#% "&#% 7!--!8)*?% ($$2/4")!*$% )*% 5#$4#,"% !7% "&#%
")/)*?%!7%5#,!<#5)#$Q%
%
]2-9%HIJK% % % H=II\%
](*2(59%HIJ0% % % T=TI\%
%
>&)$%$,&#62-#%)$%:($#6%!*%#G4#,"#6%"!"(-%6)<)6#*6$%!7%TT\%!7%"&#%,-()/=%%3#,!<#5)#$%(5#%#G45#$$#6%
($%(%4#5,#*"(?#%!7%"&#%@!2*,)-^$%,-()/C%8&),&%)*,-26#$%)*"#5#$"%(,,52#6%24%"!%M%Z,"!:#5%HIIT=%
%

Page 172



 !"#$%"!%"&#%'()*%+)*(*,)(-%."("#/#*"$%
%
%

%
% 0**1(-%2#3!4"%(*5%."("#/#*"%!6%0,,!1*"$% 78%
%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%

LBI hf

+!--!9)*:% $"#3$% "(;#*% <=% "&#% >,#-(*5),%?!@#4*/#*"% )*% #(4-=%A,"!<#4% BCCD% "&#% "&#*% E(*5$<(*;)F$%
5!/#$"),% ($$#"$% (*5% -)(<)-)")#$% 9#4#% "4(*$6#44#5% "!% (%*#9 % <(*;% G*#9% E(*5$<(*;)H% 9)"&% "&#%
/(*(:#/#*"%!6% "&#%(66()4$%!6%A-5%E(*5$<(*;)% G*!9% 4#*(/#5%EI>H%<#)*:%3-(,#5% )*% "&#%&(*5$%!6%(%
4#$!-1")!*%,!//)""##J% %EI>F$%(66()4$%(4#%<#)*:%(5/)*)$"#4#5%1*5#4% >,#-(*5),% -(9J% % >*% 4#$3#,"%!6% "&#%
BCCDKCL%(,,!1*"$%"&#%M!1*,)-%5#,)5#5%"!%4#,!:*)$#%(*%)/3()4/#*"%<($#5%!*%)"%4#,!@#4)*:%DN3%)*%"&#%
OJ%
%
P&#% M!1*,)-F$% #$")/("#% !6% "&#% -);#-=% 4#,!@#4(<-#% (/!1*"% 9($% $1<$#Q1#*"-=% 135("#5% )*% -)*#% 9)"&%
M>R+0%:1)5(*,#%"!%L7JDS%3#*,#%)*%"&#%OJ%
%
P&)$% 4("#%!6% 4#,!@#4=%9($%<($#5%!*% "&#%($$1/3")!*% "&("% -!,(-% ,!1*,)-%5#3!$)"$%&(5%34)!4)"=%$"("1$%
(*5%9!1-5% "&#4#6!4#%<#% 4#3()5%(&#(5%!6% (*=%,4#5)"!4$% "&("% 5)5%*!"% &(@#%34)!4)"=% $"("1$J% % P&)$%9($%
<($#5%!*%"&#%2#=;T(@);%U)$"4),"%M!14"%@#45),"%!*%V%034)-%BCVV%,!*6)4/)*:%"&("%-!,(-%(1"&!4)")#$F%,-()/$%
Q1(-)6)#5%6!4%34)!4)"=%$"("1$%1*5#4%04"),-#%VVB%!6%"&#%>,#-(*5),%I(*;413",=%E#:)$-(")!*J%%W!9#@#4X%"&)$%
5#,)$)!*%9($%$1<T#,"%"!%(*%(33#(-%"!%"&#%>,#-(*5),%.134#/#%M!14"J%
%
P&#%.134#/#%M!14"%,!*6)4/#5%"&#%34)!4)"=%$"("1$%!6%-!,(-%,!1*,)-%5#3!$)"$%)*%A,"!<#4%BCVVJ%%Y*5#4%
"&#% "#4/$% !6% "&#% 5)$"4)<1")!*% 34!3!$(-X% 3(=/#*"% !6% #(,&% 5#3!$)"!4F$% ,-()/% G/#($14#5% )*% >,#-(*5),%
Z4!*#4% ($% ("% BB% 034)-% BCCLH% 9($% /(5#% )*% (% <($;#"% !6% ,144#*,)#$% 9)"&% ,!*@#4$)!*$% /(5#% 1$)*:%
M#*"4(-%I(*;%!6%>,#-(*5%$#--)*:%4("#$%($%("%BB%034)-%BCCLJ%%P&#%5)$"4)<1")!*%,144#*,)#$%9#4#%>,#-(*5),%
Z4!*#4X%[14!$X%Y.%5!--(4$%(*5%$"#4-)*:J%%0%"!"(-%!6%O\7C%/)--)!*X%]\VC%/)--)!*X%^\VC%/)--)!*%(*5%>.Z%VC%
<)--)!*%9($%5)$"4)<1"#5%"!%Q1(-)6=)*:%34)!4)"=%,4#5)"!4$J%%P&#%M!1*,)-%"&#4#6!4#%4#,#)@#5%(%5)$"4)<1")!*%)*%
+#<41(4=%BCVB%,-!$#%"!%!*#_"&)45%!6% )"$%34)!4)"=%,-()/J%%P&#%>,#-(*5),%5)$"4)<1")!*% )$%,144#*"-=%&#-5% )*%
#$,4!9J%
%
P&#%`)*5)*:%Y3%I!(45%(**!1*,#5%)*%'(4,&%BCVB%"&("% )"%(*"),)3("#5%"&("%4#,!@#4)#$%9!1-5%#a,##5%
"&#%<!!;%@(-1#%!6%34)!4)"=%,-()/$J%%>"% )$%"&#4#6!4#%*!9%,!*$)5#4#5%-);#-=%"&("%YZ%-!,(-%(1"&!4)")#$%9)--%
4#,!@#4%VCCb%!6% "&#)4%5#3!$)"$X%$1<T#,"% "!%61"14#%#a,&(*:#%4("#%6-1,"1(")!*$J% %P&#% -("#$"%31<-)$&#5%
135("#%)*%U#,#/<#4%BCVB%,!*6)4/$%"&)$%@)#9J%
%
+!--!9)*:% "&#% $(-#% !6% >,#-(*5% +!!5$X% "&#%`)*5)*:% Y3% I!(45% (1"&!4)$#5% (% 614"&#4% 5)$"4)<1")!*% "!%
34)!4)"=%,4#5)"!4$% )*%'(=%BCVBJ% %P&#%5)$"4)<1")!*%9($%/(5#%9&!--=% )*%$"#4-)*:%(*5% "&#% "!"(-%(/!1*"%
5)$"4)<1"#5%"!%,4#5)"!4$%9($%OD8C%/)--)!*J%%0%614"&#4%5)$"4)<1")!*%!6%$"#4-)*:X%Y.%U!--(4$%(*5%[14!%9($%
/(5#% )*%A,"!<#4% BCVBJ% P(;#*% "!:#"&#4% 9)"&% "&#% #(4-)#4% 5)$"4)<1")!*$% "&)$% 4()$#5% "&#% "!"(-% (/!1*"%
5)$"4)<1"#5%"!%(334!a)/("#-=%7LJS8bJ%%%
%
P&#% 61"14#% 3(""#4*% !6% 5)$"4)<1")!*$% <=% "&#%`)*5)*:% Y3% I!(45% )$% *!"% ;*!9*X% <1"% "&#% M!1*,)-% &($%
6!--!9#5%M>R+0F$%4#,!//#*5(")!*%(*5%)*%#$")/(")*:%"&#%,144#*"%#a3#,"#5%4#,!@#4(<-#%(/!1*"%"&#%
M!1*,)-%&($%/(5#%"&#%6!--!9)*:%($$1/3")!*$%)*%4#$3#,"%!6%"&#%")/)*:%!6%4#,!@#4)#$c%
%
U#,#/<#4%BCVN% \J8Cb%
U#,#/<#4%BCV7% \J8Cb%
U#,#/<#4%BCV8% \J8Cb%
U#,#/<#4%BCVS% \J8Cb%
U#,#/<#4%BCV\% \J8Cb%
U#,#/<#4%BCVD% \J8Cb%
U#,#/<#4%BCVL% 8JN8b%
%
>*"#4#$"% ,4#5)"#5% "!% "&#% M!/34#&#*$)@#% >*,!/#% (*5% [a3#*5)"14#% ."("#/#*"% )*% 4#$3#,"% !6% "&#$#%
)*@#$"/#*"$%G<1"%*!"%(,"1(--=%4#,#)@#5H%)$%($%6!--!9$c%
%

Page 173



 !"#$%"!%"&#%'()*%+)*(*,)(-%."("#/#*"$%
%
%

%%%%%%%%%%%%% %
% 01% %%%%%%%2**3(-%4#5!6"%(*7%."("#/#*"%!8%2,,!3*"$%
%%%%%%%%%%%%%% %%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%

(£000s) 2012/13 2011/12

9#6)"(:-#%;(*<%=-,% >?% 1>%

@;A%&8% BC>% >DC%

%
E&#%F!3*,)-%"!!<%(7G(*"(H#%!8%"&#%F(5)"(-%+)*(*,#%4#H3-(")!*$%"!%7#8#6%"&#%)/5(,"%!8%)/5()6/#*"$%
6#,!H*)$#7%!*%"&#$#%)*G#$"/#*"$%)*%>IIJKI?%(*7%>II?KBI%!*%"&#%L#*#6(-%+3*7%3$)*H%"&#%+)*(*,)(-%
A*$"63/#*"$% 27M3$"/#*"% 2,,!3*"N% % O*7#6% "&#% 6#H3-(")!*$% "&#% "!"(-% )/5()6/#*"$% 6#,!H*)$#7% )*% "&#%
F!/56#&#*$)G#% A*,!/#%(*7%PQ5#*7)"36#%."("#/#*"% )*%>IIJKI?%(*7%>II?KBI%R#6#%,&(6H#7% "!% "&#%
L#*#6(-%+3*7% )*%>IBIKBBN% %+6!/%>IBIKBBS%(*T%,&(*H#$% "!% "&#% )/5()6/#*"$%56#G)!3$-T% 6#,!H*)$#7%
(6#%6#8-#,"#7%)*%"&#%L#*#6(-%+3*7%)*%"&#%6#-#G(*"%T#(6N%%
%
+36"&#6%7#"()-$%!*%"&#%F!3*,)-U$%(556!(,&%"!%/(*(H)*H%,6#7)"%6)$<$%(6#%,!*"()*#7%)*% !"#%DJN%

26 Long-Term Debtors

@!*HV"#6/%7#:"!6$%R&),&%8(--%73#%(8"#6%(%5#6)!7%!8%("%-#($"%!*#%T#(6W%
%

(£000s) 31 March 2013 31 March 2012 1 April 2011

'!6"H(H#$% D% J% BX%

L6(*7%26,(7#%6#G#6$#%-#($#%56#/)3/% >BX% >>D% >>J%

=6)G("#%$#,"!6%&!3$)*H%)/56!G#/#*"%-!(*$% JD>% JB>% 1XC%

.(-#%!8%-(*7%("%Y)*H$%9#7H#$% DI% DI% DI%

@!*H%"#6/%-!(*%Z%Y#-$#T%Y#66)7H#%.5!6"$%F#*"6#% >1% DJ% CB%

1,108 1,111 1,001

27 Assets Held for Sale

Current Long Term

(£000s) 2012/13 2011/12 2012/13 2011/12

Balance at 1 April 0 0 0 0

2$$#"$%*#R-T%,-($$)8)#7%($%&#-7%
8!6%$(-#W%

% % % %

=6!5#6"TS%5-(*"%[%#\3)5/#*"% BSIC>% 1C% DSXIJ% I%

2$$#"$%$!-7% ]>J^% ]1C^% I% I%

A/5()6/#*"%-!$$#$% I% I% ]DC0^% I%

Balance at 31 March 1,024 0 3,354 0

%

E&#%)/5()6/#*"%-!$$%6#,!H*)$#7%)*%>IB>KBD%6#-("#$%"!%-(*7%("%@(")/#6%F-!$#%R&#6#%"&#%#Q5#,"#7%8()6%
G(-3#%!*%7)$5!$(-%)$%-!R#6%"&(*%"&#%56#G)!3$%G(-3(")!*%!*%(*%#Q)$")*H%3$#%:($)$N%
%
%

%
%
%

%
%

Page 174



 !"#$%"!%"&#%'()*%+)*(*,)(-%."("#/#*"$%
%
%

%
% 0**1(-%2#3!4"%(*5%."("#/#*"%!6%0,,!1*"$% 78%
%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%

28 Debtors

(£000s) 31 March 2013 31 March 2012 1 April 2011

9#*"4(-%:!;#4*/#*"%<!5)#$% =8>% ??@% 7ABCD%

E"&#4%-!,(-%(1"&!4)")#$% DA8CD% CABB7% DAFC>%

 G.%<!5)#$% D=% C?% DB%

H1<-),%,!43!4(")!*$%(*5%"4(5)*:%61*5$% B% C% F%

9!1*,)-%I(J%3(K#4$%L9)"K%$&(4#M% =CD% =CC% =?>%

9!1*,)-%I(J%3(K#4$%L34#,#3")*:%<!5)#$%$&(4#M% CAB?B% CABCB% CA=D@%

G!1$)*:%"#*(*"$%(*5%-#($#&!-5#4$% 7=@% 78B% =87%

I4(5#%(*5%!"&#4% CA7>7% CAB7?% DA?F=%

8,076 8,079 11,177

29 Cash and Cash Equivalents

I&#%<(-(*,#%!6%,($&%(*5%,($&%#N1);(-#*"$%)$%/(5#%13%!6%"&#%6!--!O)*:%#-#/#*"$P%
%

(£000s) 31 March 2013 31 March 2012 1 April 2011

9($&%&#-5%<K%"&#%9!1*,)-% @% F% @%

Q(*R%,144#*"%(,,!1*"$% 78>% F>?% FBC%

Q(*R%5#3!$)"$%(,,!1*"% 8AC@B% 7AF?B% CAC@B%

% 7,734 4,781 2,557

30 Short-Term Creditors

(£000s) 31 March 2013 31 March 2012 1 April 2011

9#*"4(-%:!;#4*/#*"%<!5)#$% L7=?M% L7AF@DM% L>@=M%

E"&#4%-!,(-%(1"&!4)")#$% LFC7M% LDADDCM% LFADB8M%

 G.%<!5)#$% B% B% LDM%

H1<-),%,!43!4(")!*$%(*5%"4(5)*:%61*5$% B% LD>M% B%

G!1$)*:%"#*(*"$%(*5%-#($#&!-5#4$% L=7BM% L=D>M% L=DFM%

E"&#4%#*")")#$%(*5%)*5);)51(-$% L>A>??M% L=A>@CM% L7AB>BM%

(11,420) (13,053) (8,767)

%
%
%
%
%
%
%
%
%
%
%
%

Page 175



 !"#$%"!%"&#%'()*%+)*(*,)(-%."("#/#*"$%
%
%

%%%%%%%%%%%%% %
% 01% %%%%%%%2**3(-%4#5!6"%(*7%."("#/#*"%!8%2,,!3*"$%
%%%%%%%%%%%%%% %%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%

31 Receipts in Advance

(£000s) 31 March 2013 31 March 2012 1 April 2011

9(/:6)7;#%9)"<%9!3*,)-%$&(6#%!8%9!3*,)-%=(>%
6#,#)5"$%

?@A1B% ?@CAB% ?@0DB%

9(5)"(-%;6(*"$%6#,#)5"$%)*%(7E(*,#% ?FGHDIB% ?CDDB% ?FG@DCB%

J"&#6% ?FGKIIB% ?FGD@DB% ?FGDHFB%

(3,352) (2,779) (3,424)

32 Provisions

=&#%)*$36(*,#%56!E)$)!*%&($%:##*%$#"%($)7#%"!%/##"%"&#%#$")/("#7%,!$"%"!%"&#%9!3*,)-%!8%!3"$"(*7)*;%
)*$36(*,#%,-()/$L%%M!N#E#6G%"&#%(,"3(-%,!$"%?)8%(*<B%!8%)*7)E)73(-%,-()/$%(*7%"&#%")/)*;%!8%5(</#*"$%
(6#%3*,#6"()*%(*7%/(<%:#%7#5#*7#*"%35!*%"&#%6#$3-"$%!8%*#;!")(")!*%(*7O!6%-#;(-%(,")!*L%

%
P*7#6%,366#*"%)*$36(*,#%(66(*;#/#*"$G%"&#%9!3*,)-%"(Q#$%6#$5!*$):)-)"<%8!6%/##")*;%"&#%8)6$"%RFHGHHH%
!8%(*<% -)(:)-)"<%!6%/!"!6%,-()/%35%"!%(%"!"(-%,!/:)*#7% -!$$% )*%(*<% )*$36(*,#%<#(6%!8%RIDAGHHHL%%+!6%
56!5#6"<% -!$$#$G% "&#% 9!3*,)-% )$% 6#$5!*$):-#% 8!6% /##")*;% 35% "!% RFAHGHHH% !8% ,-()/$% )*% 6#$5#,"% !8%
S#*#6(-%+3*7%56!5#6"<%86!/%"&#%56!E)$)!*%(*7%35%"!%RIAHGHHH%8!6%M42%56!5#6"<%86!/%"&#%M42L%%=&#%
9!3*,)-T$%#>"#6*(-%)*$36#6$%/##"%,-()/$%!6%-!$$#$%)*%#>,#$$%!8%"&#$#%(/!3*"$L%
%

(£000s)
Insurance 
Provision

Other
Provisions

Total

Balance at 1 April 2012 (306) (9) (315)

277)")!*(-%56!E)$)!*$%/(7#%)*%IHFIOF@% ?ICHB% ?CB% ?ICCB%

2/!3*"$%3$#7%)*%IHFIOF@% FH0% H% FH0%

P*3$#7%(/!3*"$%6#E#6$#7%)*%IHFIOF@% FF@% H% FF@%

Balance as at 31 March 2013 (349) (15) (364)

%

%

%

%

%

%

%

%

%

%

%

%

%

%

%

%

%

%

%

%

%

Page 176



 !"#$%"!%"&#%'()*%+)*(*,)(-%."("#/#*"$%
%
%

%
% 0**1(-%2#3!4"%(*5%."("#/#*"%!6%0,,!1*"$% 78%
%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%

33 Grant Income 

9&#% :!1*,)-% ,4#5)"#5% "&#% 6!--!;)*<% $)<*)6),(*"% <4(*"$% (*5% ,!*"4)=1")!*$% "!% "&#% :!/34#&#*$)>#%
?*,!/#%(*5%@A3#*5)"14#%."("#/#*"%)*%BCDBEDFG%
%

(£000s) 2012/13 2011/12

Credited to Taxation and Non Specific Grant Income

.&(4#%!6% (")!*(-% !*H5!/#$"),%2("#$% IJK7FLM% INKBOJM%

2#>#*1#%.133!4"%P4(*"% IDOFM% IBKB7NM%

:!1*,)-%9(A%+4##Q#%P4(*"% IDNDM% IDNCM%

 #;%R!/#$%S!*1$% IDKF88M% I8DCM%

 #;%S145#*$%P4(*"$% IDBOM% IF7M%

R!/#-#$$*#$$%P4(*"% ILNLM% C%

:(3)"(-%<4(*"$%(*5%,!*"4)=1")!*$% IDKLNNM% IBKLLJM%

(12,446) (13,187)

Credited to Services

R!/#-#$$*#$$%P4(*"% C% ILNLM%

T!,(-%.133!4"%U(4"*#4$&)3%P4(*"$% C% I7FM%

:!1*,)-%9(A%05/)*%.1=$)5V% IBD7M% IBFBM%

:!1*,)-%9(A%S#*#6)"$%.1=$)5V% IOK7D7M% IOKBONM%

2#*"%0--!;(*,#%(*5%2#*"%2#=("#$%05/)*%.1=$)5V% I7NNM% IOCNM%

2#*"%0--!;(*,#%.1=$)5V% IDNKDJCM% IDOKO77M%

2#*"%2#=("#$%.1=$)5V% IDJKF7LM% IDOKJBFM%

 !*%R20%2#*"%2#=("#$%.1=$)5V% IDC7M% IONM%

(42,734) (41,258)

%

9&#%:!1*,)-%&($% 4#,#)>#5%(%*1/=#4%!6%5#>#-!3#4%,!*"4)=1")!*$% "&("%&(>#%V#"% "!%=#% 4#,!<*)$#5%($%
)*,!/#%($%"&#V%&(>#%,!*5)")!*$%(""(,&#5%"!%"&#/%"&("%/(V%4#W1)4#%"&#%/!*)#$%"!%=#%4#"14*#5%"!%"&#%
<)>#4X%%9&#%=(-(*,#$%("%"&#%V#(4H#*5%(4#%($%6!--!;$G%
%

(£000s) 31 March 2013 31 March 2012

Capital Grants Receipts in Advance

Y1#%;)"&)*%DB%/!*"&$% IDKCNBM% IONNM%

Y1#%)*%/!4#%"&(*%DB%/!*"&$% I7KF8NM% IBKNBOM%

Total (5,469) (3,403)

%
%
%
%
%
%
%
%
%
%

Page 177



 !"#$%"!%"&#%'()*%+)*(*,)(-%."("#/#*"$%
%
%

%%%%%%%%%%%%% %
% 01% %%%%%%%2**3(-%4#5!6"%(*7%."("#/#*"%!8%2,,!3*"$%
%%%%%%%%%%%%%% %%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%

34 Usable Reserves

'!9#/#*"$% )*%"&#%:!3*,)-;$%3$(<-#%6#$#69#$%(6#%7#"()-#7% )*%"&#%'!9#/#*"% )*%4#$#69#$%."("#/#*"%
(*7% !"#$%=%(*7%0>%

35 Unusable Reserves

(£000s) 31 March 2013
31 March 2012

(as restated see 
Note 43)

1 April 2011

?#8#66#7%:(5)"(-%4#,#)5"$% @A1B% @CCB% @DCB%

4#9(-3(")!*%4#$#69#% @0CEFAGB% @=GEHG0B% @IHEAG0B%

:(5)"(-%27J3$"/#*"%2,,!3*"% @=ACE0A0B% @=CAEGFFB% @ACFECAGB%

+)*(*,)(-%K*$"63/#*"$%27J3$"/#*"%2,,!3*"% HG% IDI% CHI%

L#*$)!*$%4#$#69#% DFEDAC% CHED=0% 0CEHCG%

:!--#,")!*%+3*7%27J3$"/#*"%2,,!3*"% G0C% G0H% HI%

2,,3/3-("#7%2<$#*,#$%2,,!3*"% =DG% 00H% 01C%

Total Unusable Reserves (431,190) (437,960) (652,229)

Deferred Capital Receipts Reserve

M&#%?#8#66#7%:(5)"(-%4#,#)5"$%4#$#69#%&!-7$%"&#%N()*$%6#,!N*)$#7%!*%"&#%7)$5!$(-%!8%*!*O,366#*"%
($$#"$% <3"% 8!6% P&),&% ,($&% $#""-#/#*"% &($% Q#"% "!% "(R#% 5-(,#>% % S*7#6% $"("3"!6Q% (66(*N#/#*"$E% "&#%
:!3*,)-% 7!#$% *!"% "6#("% "&#$#%N()*$% ($% 3$(<-#% 8!6% 8)*(*,)*N% *#P% ,(5)"(-% #T5#*7)"36#% 3*")-% "&#Q% (6#%
<(,R#7%<Q%,(5)"(-%6#,#)5"$>%%U&#*%"&#%7#8#66#7%,($&%$#""-#/#*"%(,"3(--Q%"(R#$%5-(,#E%(/!3*"$%(6#%
"6(*$8#66#7%"!%"&#%:(5)"(-%4#,#)5"$%4#$#69#>%

%

(£000s) 2012/13 2011/12

Balance at 1 April (77) (97)

M6(*$8#6%"!%"&#%:(5)"(-%4#,#)5"$%4#$#69#%35!*%6#,#)5"%!8%,($&% GC% F1%

Balance at 31 March (60) (77)

Revaluation Reserve

M&#% 4#9(-3(")!*% 4#$#69#% ,!*"()*$% "&#% N()*$%/(7#% <Q% "&#% :!3*,)-% (6)$)*N% 86!/% )*,6#($#$% )*% "&#%
9(-3#%!8%)"$%L6!5#6"QE%L-(*"%(*7%VW3)5/#*">%%M&#%<(-(*,#%)$%6#73,#7%P&#*%($$#"$%P)"&%(,,3/3-("#7%
N()*$%(6#X%

 % 4#9(-3#7%7!P*P(67$%!6%)/5()6#7%(*7%"&#%N()*$%(6#%-!$"%

 % S$#7%)*%"&#%56!9)$)!*%!8%$#69),#$%(*7%"&#%N()*$%(6#%,!*$3/#7%"&6!3N&%7#56#,)(")!*E%!6%

 % ?)$5!$#7%!8%(*7%"&#%N()*$%(6#%6#(-)$#7%
%

M&#% 4#$#69#% ,!*"()*$% !*-Q% 6#9(-3(")!*% N()*$% (,,3/3-("#7% $)*,#% G% 256)-% F11CE% "&#% 7("#% "&("% "&#%
4#$#69#%P($%,6#("#7>%%2,,3/3-("#7%N()*$%(6)$)*N%<#8!6#%"&("%7("#%(6#%,!*$!-)7("#7%)*"!%"&#%<(-(*,#%
!*%"&#%:(5)"(-%27J3$"/#*"%2,,!3*">%
%

%

Page 178



 !"#$%"!%"&#%'()*%+)*(*,)(-%."("#/#*"$%
%
%

%
% 0**1(-%2#3!4"%(*5%."("#/#*"%!6%0,,!1*"$% 78%
%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%

(£000s) 2012/13
2011/12 (as
restated see 

Note 43)

Balance at 1 April (41,815) (38,615)

 #"%9:()*$;%<%-!$$#$%!*%4#=(-1(")!*$%514)*:%"&#%>#(4% 98?@ABC;% 9C@B?7;%

Amounts written off to the Capital Adjustment Account

D)66#4#*,#%E#"F##*%6()4%=(-1#%5#34#,)(")!*%(*5%&)$"!4),(-%,!$"%
5#34#,)(")!*%

G8H% I?7%

0,,1/1-("#5%:()*$%!*%($$#"$%$!-5%!4%$,4(33#5% CI% H%

Balance at 31 March (57,261) (41,815)

Capital Adjustment Account

J&#% K(3)"(-% 05L1$"/#*"% 0,,!1*"% (E$!4E$% "&#% ")/)*:% 5)66#4#*,#$% (4)$)*:% 64!/% "&#% 5)66#4#*"%
(44(*:#/#*"$% 6!4% (,,!1*")*:% 6!4% "&#% ,!*$1/3")!*% !6% *!*M,144#*"% ($$#"$% (*5% 6!4% 6)*(*,)*:% "&#%
(,N1)$)")!*@%,!*$"41,")!*%!4%#*&(*,#/#*"%!6%"&!$#%($$#"$%1*5#4%$"("1"!4>%34!=)$)!*$O%%J&#%0,,!1*"%
)$% 5#E)"#5% F)"&% "&#% ,!$"% !6% (,N1)$)")!*@% ,!*$"41,")!*% !4% #*&(*,#/#*"% ($% 5#34#,)(")!*@% )/3()4/#*"%
-!$$#$% (*5% (/!4")$(")!*$% (4#% ,&(4:#5% "!% "&#%K!/34#&#*$)=#% P*,!/#% (*5%QR3#*5)"14#% ."("#/#*"%
9F)"&%4#,!*,)-)*:%3!$")*:$%64!/%"&#%2#=(-1(")!*%2#$#4=#%"!%,!*=#4"%6()4%=(-1#%6):14#$%"!%(%&)$"!4),(-%
,!$"%E($)$;O%%J&#%0,,!1*"% )$%,4#5)"#5%F)"&%"&#%(/!1*"$%$#"%($)5#%E>%"&#%K!1*,)-%($%6)*(*,#%6!4% "&#%
,!$"$%!6%(,N1)$)")!*@%,!*$"41,")!*%(*5%#*&(*,#/#*"O%
%

J&#%0,,!1*"%,!*"()*$%(,,1/1-("#5%:()*$%(*5%-!$$#$%!*%P*=#$"/#*"%S4!3#4")#$O%%
%

J&#%0,,!1*"%(-$!%,!*"()*$%4#=(-1(")!*%:()*$%(,,1/1-("#5%!*%S4!3#4">@%S-(*"%(*5%QN1)3/#*"%E#6!4#%
8%034)-%AHHI@%"&#%5("#%"&("%"&#%2#=(-1(")!*%2#$#4=#%F($%,4#("#5%"!%&!-5%$1,&%:()*$O%
%
 !"#% T%3 4!=)5#$% 5#"()-$% !6% "&#% $!14,#% !6% (--% "&#% "4(*$(,")!*$% 3!$"#5% "!% "&#% K(3)"(-% 05L1$"/#*"%
0,,!1*"@%(3(4"%64!/%"&!$#%)*=!-=)*:%"&#%2#=(-1(")!*%2#$#4=#O%
%
%
%
%
%
%
%
%
%
%
%
%
%
%
%
%
%
%
%
%
%
%
%
%

Page 179



 !"#$%"!%"&#%'()*%+)*(*,)(-%."("#/#*"$%
%
%

%%%%%%%%%%%%% %
% 01% %%%%%%%2**3(-%4#5!6"%(*7%."("#/#*"%!8%2,,!3*"$%
%%%%%%%%%%%%%% %%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%

(£000s) 2012/13
2011/12 (as 
restated see 

Note 43)

Balance at 1 April (476,122) (672,761)

9&(6:#$%8!6%7#56#,)(")!*%(*7%)/5()6/#*"%!8%*!*;,366#*"%($$#"$% <0=<>?% <?=1?<%

4#@(-3(")!*%-!$$#$%!*%56!5#6"A=%5-(*"%(*7%#B3)5/#*"% C=C?>% D?=E>0F%

G/5()6/#*"%-!$$#$%!*%($$#"$%&#-7%8!6%$(-#% H0?% I%

2/!6")$(")!*%!8%)*"(*:)J-#%($$#"$% <?C% <11%

4#@#*3#%#K5#*7)"36#%83*7#7%86!/%,(5)"(-%3*7#6%$"("3"#%(*7%7#%
/)*)/3$%,(5)"(-%$5#*7%

1=HCE% 1=L1I%

2/!3*"$%!8%*!*;,366#*"%($$#"$%M6)""#*%!88%!*%7)$5!$(-%!6%$(-#%($%5(6"%!8%
"&#%:()*N-!$$%!*%7)$5!$(-%"!%"&#%9!/56#&#*$)@#%G*,!/#%(*7%
OK5#*7)"36#%."("#/#*"%

H=E><% H=C?0%

P#56#,)(")!*%)*%#K,#$$%!8%&)$"!6),%,!$"%"6(*$8#6%86!/%6#@(-3(")!*%6#$#6@#% DE<IF% D>C0F%

Q6(*$8#6%86!/%6#@(-3(")!*%6#$#6@#%!*%7)$5!$(-%!8%*!*;,366#*"%($$#"$%% I% I%

R$#%!8%"&#%9(5)"(-%4#,#)5"$%4#$#6@#%"!%8)*(*,#%*#M%,(5)"(-%#K5#*7)"36#% D>>LF% D?=I0CF%

9(5)"(-%:6(*"$%(*7%,!*"6)J3")!*$%,6#7)"#7%"!%"&#%9!/56#&#*$)@#%G*,!/#%
(*7%OK5#*7)"36#%."("#/#*"%"&("%&(@#%J##*%(55-)#7%"!%,(5)"(-%8)*(*,)*:%

DH=?1?F% D?=HIIF%

255-),(")!*%!8%:6(*"$%"!%,(5)"(-%8)*(*,)*:%86!/%"&#%9(5)"(-%S6(*"$%
R*(55-)#7%2,,!3*"%

D1=0C<F% DH=10?F%

4#5(A/#*"%!8%56)@("#%$#,"!6%&!3$)*:%-!(*$% HC% <1%

T6)@("#%$#,"!6%&!3$)*:%-!(*$%(7U3$"/#*"% D>F% DH>F%

9(5)"(-%#K5#*7)"36#%,&(6:#7%(:()*$"%"&#%S#*#6(-%+3*7%(*7%V!3$)*:%
4#@#*3#%2,,!3*"%J(-(*,#$%

D<I=<H0F% D0=<<IF%

.#-8;8)*(*,)*:%!8%"&#%V42%$#""-#/#*"%5(A/#*"% I% 1<H=0>1%

'!@#/#*"$%)*%"&#%/(6W#"%@(-3#%!8%)*@#$"/#*"%56!5#6")#$%7#J)"#7%!6%
,6#7)"#7%"!%"&#%9!/56#&#*$)@#%G*,!/#%(*7%OK5#*7)"36#%."("#/#*"%

D1=H1HF% D<0=?>CF%

Balance at 31 March (467,565) (476,122)

Financial Instruments Adjustment Account

Q&#%+)*(*,)(-%G*$"63/#*"$%27U3$"/#*"%2,,!3*"%(J$!6J$%"&#%")/)*:%7)88#6#*,#$%(6)$)*:%86!/%"&#%7)88#6#*"%
(66(*:#/#*"$%8!6%(,,!3*")*:%8!6%)*,!/#%(*7%#K5#*$#$%6#-(")*:%"!%,#6"()*%8)*(*,)(-%)*$"63/#*"$%(*7%8!6%J#(6)*:%
-!$$#$%!6%J#*#8)")*:%86!/%:()*$%)*%(,,!67(*,#%M)"&%$"("3"!6A%56!@)$)!*$X%
%

(£000s) 2012/13 2011/12

Balance at 1 April 393 783

2/!6")$(")!*%!8%7#J"%6#7#/5")!*%56#/)3/% DHI<F% DH?CF%

'!@#/#*"%)*%8()6%@(-3#%!8%56)@("#%$#,"!6%&!3$)*:%)/56!@#/#*"%-!(*$% D<<F% D??F%

'!@#/#*"$%)*%6#$5#,"%!8%)*@#$"/#*"$%)*%G,#-(*7),%J(*W$% I% I%

Balance at 31 March 81 393

%
%
%
%
%

Page 180



 !"#$%"!%"&#%'()*%+)*(*,)(-%."("#/#*"$%
%
%

%
% 0**1(-%2#3!4"%(*5%."("#/#*"%!6%0,,!1*"$% 78%
%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%

Pensions Reserve

9&#%:#*$)!*$%2#$#4;#%(<$!4<$% "&#% ")/)*=%5)66#4#*,#$%(4)$)*=% 64!/% "&#%5)66#4#*"% (44(*=#/#*"$% 6!4%
(,,!1*")*=% 6!4% 3!$"% #/3-!>/#*"% <#*#6)"$% (*5% 6!4% 61*5)*=% <#*#6)"$% )*% (,,!45(*,#% ?)"&% $"("1"!4>%
34!;)$)!*$@%%9&#%A!1*,)-%(,,!1*"$%6!4%3!$"%#/3-!>/#*"%<#*#6)"$%)*%"&#%A!/34#&#*$);#%B*,!/#%(*5%
CD3#*5)"14#%."("#/#*"%($%"&#%<#*#6)"$%(4#%#(4*#5%<>%#/3-!>##$%(,,41)*=%>#(4$%!6%$#4;),#E%135(")*=%
"&#% -)(<)-)")#$% 4#,!=*)$#5% "!% 4#6-#,"% )*6-(")!*E%,&(*=)*=%($$1/3")!*$%(*5%) *;#$"/#*"% 4#"14*$%!*%(*>%
4#$!14,#$%$#"%($)5#%"!%/##"%"&#%,!$"$@%%F!?#;#4E%$"("1"!4>%(44(*=#/#*"$%4#G1)4#%<#*#6)"$%#(4*#5%"!%
<#% 6)*(*,#5% ($% "&#%A!1*,)-%/(H#$% #/3-!>#4I$% ,!*"4)<1")!*$% "!% 3#*$)!*$% 61*5$% !4% #;#*"1(-->% 3(>$%
(*>% 3#*$)!*$% 6!4% ?&),&% )$% )"% 5)4#,"->% 4#$3!*$)<-#@% % 9&#% 5#<)"% <(-(*,#% !*% "&#% :#*$)!*$% 2#$#4;#%
"&#4#6!4#%$&!?$%(%$1<$"(*")(-%$&!4"6(--%)*%"&#%<#*#6)"$%#(4*#5%<>%3($"%(*5%,144#*"%#/3-!>##$%(*5%"&#%
4#$!14,#$% "&#%A!1*,)-% &($% $#"% ($)5#% "!%/##"% "&#/@% % 9&#% $"("1"!4>% (44(*=#/#*"$%?)--% #*$14#% "&("%
61*5)*=% ?)--% &(;#% <##*%$ #"% ($)5#% <>% "&#% ")/#% "&#% <#*#6)"$% ,!/#% "!% <#% 3()5@% %+1 4"&#4% 5#"()-$% !*%
3#*$)!*%"4(*$(,")!*$%(4#%$&!?*%)*%*!"#%8J@%
%

(£000s) 2012/13 2011/12

Balance at 1 April 78,945 57,871

0,"1(4)(-%=()*$%!4%-!$$#$%!*%3#*$)!*$%($$#"$%(*5%-)(<)-)")#$% KKEK8L% KJE77M%

2#;#4$(-%!6%)"#/$%4#-(")*=%"!%4#")4#/#*"%<#*#6)"$%5#<)"#5%!4%,4#5)"#5%"!%
"&#%.143-1$%!4%N#6),)"%!*%"&#%:4!;)$)!*%!6%.#4;),#$%)*%"&#%
A!/34#&#*$);#%B*,!/#%(*5%CD3#*5)"14#%."("#/#*"%

OEOKP% PEQQL%

C/3-!>#4I$%3#*$)!*%,!*"4)<1")!*$%(*5%5)4#,"%3(>/#*"$%"!%3#*$)!*#4$%
3(>(<-#%)*%"&#%>#(4%

RQEL8MS% RQEJMPS%

Balance at 31 March 92,967 78,945

Collection Fund Adjustment Account

9&#%A!--#,")!*%+1*5%05T1$"/#*"%0,,!1*"%/(*(=#$% "&#%5)66#4#*,#$%(4)$)*=% 64!/% "&#% 4#,!=*)")!*%!6%
,!1*,)-% "(D% )*,!/#% )*% "&#%A!/34#&#*$);#% B*,!/#%(*5%CD3#*5)"14#%."("#/#*"%($% )"% 6(--$%51#% 64!/%
,!1*,)-% "(D% 3(>#4$% ,!/3(4#5% ?)"&% "&#% $"("1"!4>% (44(*=#/#*"$% 6!4% 3(>)*=% (,4!$$% (/!1*"$% "!% "&#%
U#*#4(-%+1*5%64!/%"&#%A!--#,")!*%+1*5@%
%

(£000s) 2012/13 2011/12

Balance at 1 April 158 83

0/!1*"%<>%?&),&%,!1*,)-%"(D%)*,!/#%,4#5)"#5%"!%"&#%A!/34#&#*$);#%
B*,!/#%(*5%CD3#*5)"14#%."("#/#*"%)$%5)66#4#*"%64!/%,!1*,)-%"(D%)*,!/#%
,(-,1-("#5%6!4%"&#%>#(4%)*%(,,!45(*,#%?)"&%$"("1"!4>%4#G1)4#/#*"$%

RKS% O7%

Balance at 31 March 157 158

Accumulating Compensated Absences Adjustment Account

9&#%0,,1/1-(")*=%A!/3#*$("#5%0<$#*,#$%05T1$"/#*"%0,,!1*"%(<$!4<$%"&#%5)66#4#*,#$%"&("%?!1-5%
!"&#4?)$#%(4)$#%!*%"&#%U#*#4(-%+1*5%V(-(*,#%64!/%(,,41)*=%6!4%,!/3#*$("#5%(<$#*,#$%#(4*#5%<1"%
*!"%"(H#*%)*%"&#%>#(4@%%9&#%(/!1*"$%(,,41#5%("%"&#%#*5%!6%#(,&%>#(4%4#6-#,"%1*"(H#*%-#(;#E%")/#W!66W
)*W-)#1%(*5%6-#D)")/#%<(-(*,#$@%%."("1"!4>%(44(*=#/#*"$%4#G1)4#%"&("%"&#%)/3(,"%!*%"&#%U#*#4(-%+1*5%
V(-(*,#%)$%*#1"4(-)$#5%<>%"4(*$6#4$%"!%!4%64!/%"&#%0,,!1*"@%
%
%
%
%

Page 181



 !"#$%"!%"&#%'()*%+)*(*,)(-%."("#/#*"$%
%
%

%%%%%%%%%%%%% %
% 01% %%%%%%%2**3(-%4#5!6"%(*7%."("#/#*"%!8%2,,!3*"$%
%%%%%%%%%%%%%% %%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%

(£000s) 2012/13 2011/12

Balance at 1 April 558 507

.#""-#/#*"%!8%!6%,(*,#--(")!*%!8%
(,,63(-%/(7#%("%"&#%#*7%!8%"&#%
56#,#7)*9%:#(6%

;00<=% % ;0>?=% %

2/!3*"$%(,,63#7%("%"&#%#*7%!8%
"&#%,366#*"%:#(6%

1@A% % 00<% %

2/!3*"%B:%C&),&%!88),#6%
6#/3*#6(")!*%,&(69#7%"!%"&#%
D!/56#&#*$)E#%F*,!/#%(*7%
GH5#*7)"36#%."("#/#*"%!*%(*%
(,,63(-$%B($)$%)$%7)88#6#*"%86!/%
6#/3*#6(")!*%,&(69#(B-#%)*%"&#%
:#(6%)*%(,,!67(*,#%C)"&%
$"("3"!6:%6#I3)6#/#*"$%

% ;J?=% % 0A%

Balance at 31 March 491 558

36 Contingent Liabilities and Assets

Contingent Liabilities

Compulsory Purchase Orders

Residential dwellings:

K&#%D!3*,)-%&($%,!/53-$!6:%536,&($#7%"C!%&!3$#$L%"&#%8)6$"%)*%M>>NO>1%(*7%"&#%$#,!*7%)*%M>>JO>?P%
K&#% !B-)9(")!*% "!% ,!/5#*$("#% "&#% 56#E)!3$% !C*#6$% (6)$#$% C&#*% "&#% ,-()/(*"% (,"3(--:% ,-()/$%
,!/5#*$(")!*%(*7%$3,&%(/!3*"% )$%(96##7%!6%(C(67#7%B:%"&#%Q(*7$%K6)B3*(-P%K&#%,-()/(*"$%&(E#%
AM%:#(6$%86!/%"&#%7("#%!8%536,&($#%"!%/(R#%(%,-()/%8!6%,!/5#*$(")!*%(*7%(6#%#*")"-#7%"!%"&#%E(-3#%
!8% -(*7% (*7% 56!5#6":L% 5-3$% )*"#6#$"% (,,63#7% )*% (,,!67(*,#% C)"&% "&#% )*"#6#$"% 6("#% $#"% )*% "&#% Q(*7%
D!/5#*$(")!*%2,"%A@JAP%K&#%E(-3#$%5-3$%(,,3/3-("#7%)*"#6#$"%("%NA%'(6,&%M>AN%(6#%S0<NL11<P%
%

2%,!/5#*$(")!*%,-()/%&($%*!C%B##*%6#,#)E#7%)*%6#$5#,"%!8%!*#%!8%"&#%"C!%&!3$#$P%

Legal Cases

K&#6#% (6#% "C!% !*9!)*9% -#9(-% ,($#$% )*% 6#$5#,"% !8% 5-(**)*9% )$$3#$P% % 2% -#9(-% ,&(--#*9#% B:% C(:% !8%
T37),)(-%6#E)#C%&($%B##*%/(7#%)*%B!"&%,($#$%(*7%$&!3-7%-#9(-%56!,##7)*9$%8)*7%(9()*$"%"&#%D!3*,)-L%
)"%/(:%B#%-)(B-#%8!6%$!/#%!6%(--%!8%"&#%,-()/(*"$U%,!$"$P%

Property Search Fees

2%96!35%!8%V6!5#6":%.#(6,&%D!/5(*)#$% )$%$##R)*9% "!%,-()/%6#83*7$%!8% 8##$%5()7% "!% "&#%D!3*,)-% "!%
(,,#$$%-(*7%,&(69#$%7("(P%%V6!,##7)*9$%&(E#%*!"%:#"%B##*%)$$3#7P%%K&#%D!3*,)-%&($%B##*%)*8!6/#7%
"&("% "&#%E(-3#%!8% "&!$#%,-()/$% )$%("%56#$#*"%S@0LNA1%5-3$% )*"#6#$"%(*7%,!$"$P% %K&#%,-()/(*"$%&(E#%
(-$!%)*")/("#7%"&("%"&#:%/(:%B6)*9%(%,-()/%(9()*$"%(--%G*9-)$&%(*7%W#-$&%-!,(-%(3"&!6)")#$%8!6%(--#9#7%
(*")X,!/5#")")E#% B#&(E)!6P% % F"% )$% *!"% ,-#(6%C&("% "&#% E(-3#% !8% (*:% $3,&% ,-()/%C!3-7% B#%(9()*$"% "&#%
D!3*,)-P%%F"%)$%5!$$)B-#%"&("%(77)")!*(-%,-()/(*"$%/(:%,!/#%8!6C(67%"!%$3B/)"%,-()/$%8!6%6#83*7$L%B3"%
*!*#%&(E#%B##*%)*")/("#7%("%56#$#*"P%

%

Page 182



 !"#$%"!%"&#%'()*%+)*(*,)(-%."("#/#*"$%
%
%

%
% 0**1(-%2#3!4"%(*5%."("#/#*"%!6%0,,!1*"$% 77%
%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%

Municipal Mutual Insurance

8*% 9::;<:=% "&#% >!1*,)-?$% "&#*% )*$14#4$@% '1*),)3(-% '1"1(-% 8*$14(*,#% A''8B@% ,#($#5% "(C)*D% *#E%
F1$)*#$$%(*5%(4#%*!E%F#)*D%/(*(D#5%1*5#4%(%G$,&#/#%!6%(44(*D#/#*"HI%%>)"J%>!1*,)-%,-()/$%1*5#4%
"&)$%(44(*D#/#*"%&(K#%"!"(--#5%L9@M=N@ON:I%%P&#%5)4#,"!4$%!6%''8%"4)DD#4#5%(*%)*$!-K#*,J%1*5#4%"&)$%
$,&#/#%)*% !K#/F#4%;M9;@%/#(*)*D%"&("%(%$!-K#*"%41*Q!66%E($%*!%-!*D#4%6!4#$##*I%

P&#%(33!)*"#5%(5/)*)$"4("!4% &($% )*5),("#5% "&("%F($#5%!*%,144#*"% 34!R#,")!*$%(% -#KJ%#S1(-% "!%97T%
A#U,-15)*D% "&#% 6)4$"% L7M@MMM% !6% ,-()/$B% )$% 4#S1)4#5I% % 0% ,4#5)"!4% 6!4% L9NV@MMM% &($% "&#4#6!4#% F##*%
4#,!D*)$#5%)*%"&#%;M9;<9=%$"("#/#*"%!6%(,,!1*"$I%%P&#%(5/)*)$"4("!4%)$%4#S1)4#5%"!%4#K)#E%"&#%-#KJ%
4("#%("%-#($"%!*,#%#K#4J%9;%/!*"&$I%%0-"&!1D&%"&#%(5/)*)$"4("!4%&($%)*5),("#5%"&("%1*-#$$%"&#4#%)$%(%
$)D*)6),(*"%,&(*D#%"!%"&#%6)*(*,)(-%3!$)")!*%!6%''8@%"&#%,144#*"%-#KJ%!6%97T%$&!1-5%F#%$166),)#*"@%"&#J%
&(K#%1*5#4"(C#*%/!5#-)*D% "&("% )*5),("#$%(%E!4$"%,($#%$,#*(4)!% "&("%(% -#KJ%!6%13%"!%;VT%,!1-5%F#%
4#S1)4#5I%

New arrangements for the retention of Business Rates

 #E%-!,(-%(1"&!4)"J%61*5)*D%(44(*D#/#*"$%,(/#%)*"!%#66#,"%!*%9%034)-%;M9=%E)"&%"&#%)*"4!51,")!*%!6%(%
$,&#/#%6!4%"&#%-!,(-%4#"#*")!*%!6%(%$&(4#%!6%F1$)*#$$%4("#$%4#3-(,)*D%"&#%!-5%+!4/1-(%W4(*"%$J$"#/I%%
X!,(-% (1"&!4)")#$% E)--% *!E% ($$1/#% (% -)(F)-)"J% 6!4% 4#61*5)*D% F1$)*#$$#$% E&!% &(K#% $1,,#$$61--J%
(33#(-#5% (D()*$"% "&#% 4("#(F-#% K(-1#% !6% "&#)4% 34!3#4")#$% "!% "&#%Y(-1(")!*%Z66),#% 0D#*,JI% % P&)$%E)--%
)*,-15#%(/!1*"$%"&("%E#4#%!4)D)*(--J%,!--#,"#5%(*5%3()5%!K#4%A"!%>#*"4(-%W!K#4*/#*"B%)*%4#$3#,"%!6%
;M9;<9=%(*5%34)!4%J#(4$I%%%

8*%(44)K)*D%("%"&#%#$")/("#5%)*,!/#%64!/%[1$)*#$$%2("#$%6!4%;M9=<9N@%"&#%>!1*,)-%)*,-15#5%(%3415#*"%
#$")/("#% !6% "&#% -)C#-J% 6)*(*,)(-% )/3(,"% !6% $1,,#$$61-% K(-1(")!*% (33#(-$@% )*,-15)*D% "&!$#% 4#-(")*D% "!%
34)!4%J#(4%3#4)!5$%!6%L=IV%/)--)!*%)*%"!"(-I%%Z6%"&)$%$1/@%"&#%>!1*,)-%E!1-5%F#(4%(%NMT%$&(4#%F1"%)"%)$%
*!"%3!$$)F-#%"!%(,,14("#-J%($$#$$%&!E%/1,&%!6%"&)$%E)--%4#-("#%"!%34)!4%J#(4%3#4)!5$I%%%%%

Contingent Assets

VAT

HM Revenue and Customs (HMRC) v Isle of Wight and others

P&#% (F!K#% ,($#% &($% F##*% (33#(-#5% (D()*% 6!--!E)*D% (% R15D#/#*"% )*% Z,"!F#4% ;M9;I% %  !% 6)*(-%
5#"#4/)*(")!*%&($%J#"%F##*%/(5#%($% "!%E&#"&#4% "&#%Y0P% -)(F)-)"J% 6!4% "&#%34!K)$)!*%!6%!66Q$"4##"%,(4%
3(4C)*D%FJ%-!,(-%(1"&!4)")#$%$&!1-5%F#%Y0P%$"(*5(45%4("#5%!4%,-($$#5%($%\*!*QF1$)*#$$?%A(*5%&#*,#%
!1"$)5#%"&#%$,!3#%!6%Y0PBI%P&#%>!1*,)-%&($%$1F/)""#5@%F($#5%!*%"&#%3!$$)F-#%6)*(-%!1",!/#%!6%"&#%
,($#@%,-()/$%6!4%"&#%4#3(J/#*"%!6%L;=I]%/)--)!*%!6%Y0P%A*#"%!6%6##$B%3()5%!K#4%"!%^'2>%)*%4#-(")!*%"!%
!66Q$"4##"%,(4%3(4C)*D%$)*,#%"&#%$"(4"%!6%Y0P%)*%034)-%9:]=I%0$%("%=9%'(4,&%;M9=%"&)$%,-()/%4#/()*#5%
!1"$"(*5)*D% 3#*5)*D% "&#% !1",!/#% !6% (% 614"&#4% Y0P% "4)F1*(-% AE)"&% "&#% 5("#% "!% F#% ,!*6)4/#5BI% P&#%
4#$1-"%!6%"&#%"4)F1*(-%E)--%*!"%F#%C*!E*%1*")-%"&#%E)*"#4%!6%;M9N%("%"&#%#(4-)#$"I%%P&)$%"4)F1*(-%E)--%F#%
-!!C)*D%("% "&#%S1#$")!*%!6%3!$$)F-#%5)$"!4")!*%!6%,!/3#")")!*% )6% "&#%34!K)$)!*%!6%!66Q$"4##"%3(4C)*D%FJ%
-!,(-%(1"&!4)")#$%E($%*!"%$1FR#,"%"!%Y0P%F1"%"&("%34!K)5#5%FJ%"&#%34)K("#%$#,"!4%E($I%

Compound Interest

P&#4#%&(K#%F##*%(%*1/F#4%!6% 4#,#*"%5#K#-!3/#*"$% )*% 4#-(")!*% "!% "&#%(F)-)"J%!6% "(U3(J#4$% "!%,-()/%
\,!/3!1*5?@%($%!33!$#5%"!%\$)/3-#?@%)*"#4#$"%!*%/!*)#$%4#3()5%A!4%"!%F#%4#3()5B%"!%"&#/%FJ%^'2>I%
>!/3!1*5% )*"#4#$"% ,(*% 6(4% #U,##5% "&("%!6% $)/3-#% )*"#4#$"% (*5% "&#%>!1*,)-% &($%F##*%(5K)$#5% "&("%
,-()/$% 6!4%,!/3!1*5% )*"#4#$"%,(*@%3!"#*")(--J@%D!%F(,C% "!%9:]=I% 8*%K)#E%!6% "&#%$)D*)6),(*"%K(-1#%!6%
Y0P% 4#3(J/#*"% ,-()/$% (-4#(5J%/(5#% FJ% "&#%>!1*,)-@% F!"&% )*% 4#-(")!*% "!% "&("% $")--% !1"$"(*5)*D% A($%

Page 183



 !"#$%"!%"&#%'()*%+)*(*,)(-%."("#/#*"$%
%
%

%%%%%%%%%%%%% %
% 01% %%%%%%%2**3(-%4#5!6"%(*7%."("#/#*"%!8%2,,!3*"$%
%%%%%%%%%%%%%% %%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%

(9!:#;% (*7% "&!$#% (-6#(7<% 6#5()7% 9<% ='4>% 3*7#6% ?+-#/)*@AB% "&#% >!3*,)-% &($% #*@(@#7% (% 8)6/% !8%
-(C<#6$% "!% $39/)"% (% ,-()/% 8!6% ,!/5!3*7% )*"#6#$"% "!% "&#%=)@&%>!36"D% % E"% )$% ,366#*"-<% 3*,-#(6%C&#*%
"&#$#%,-()/$%C)--%9#%7#"#6/)*#7D%%%

37 Financial Instruments

Categories of Financial Instrument

F&#%8!--!C)*@%,("#@!6)#$%!8%8)*(*,)(-%)*$"63/#*"%(6#%,(66)#7%)*%"&#%9(-(*,#%$&##"G%
%

Long Term Current

(£000s) 31 March 2013
31 March 2012 
(as restated)

31 March 2013
31 March 2012 
(as restated)

Investments

H!(*$%(*7%6#,#):(9-#$% IBJKL% MBINO% 0NBONK% 0JB1O1%

Debtors

H!(*$%(*7%6#,#):(9-#$% PNM% PPN% KBLJP% 0B0MO%

Creditors & Receipts in 
Advance

+)*(*,)(-%-)(9)-)")#$%("%(/!6")$#7%
,!$"%

QLBKJL;% QMBJM1;% QILBIJL;% QIIBII0;%

H!*@%F#6/%R!66!C)*@% QMIKB10L;% QMIKB10L;% O% O%

(215,402) (213,301) 48,397 52,011

%

>!/5(6("):#%8)@36#$%8!6%KI%'(6,&%MOIM%&(:#%9##*%6#$"("#7%"!%)*,-37#%,(5)"(-%,!*"6)93")!*$%&#-7%($%
6#,#)5"$%)*%(7:(*,#%($%"&#$#%(6#%,!*"6(,"3(-%-)(9)-)")#$D%

Private Sector Housing Improvement Loans

F&#%>!3*,)-%/(S#$%/#(*$T"#$"#7% -!(*$% !8% 35% "!% UMOBOOO% "!% )*7):)73(-$B% $#,36#7% !*% "&#% :(-3#% !8%
"&#)6%56!5#6"<B%)*%!67#6%"!%83*7%/(V!6%)/56!:#/#*"$D%%F&#$#%-!(*$%(6#%*!6/(--<%6#5(<(9-#%!*%$(-#%!8%
"&#%56!5#6"<D%%F&#$#%-!(*$%(6#%)*"#6#$"%86##%(*7%(6#%"&#6#8!6#%7##/#7%"!%9#%$!8"%-!(*$D%%F&#%)*"#6#$"%
6("#%3$#7%8!6%"&#$#%-!(*$%)$%9($#7%!*%"&#%>!3*,)-A$%56#:()-)*@%,!$"%!8%9!66!C)*@%8!6%(%/("36)"<%-!(*%!8%
0%<#(6$%736(")!*D%% !%(--!C(*,#%)$%/(7#%8!6%"&#%6)$S%"&("%"&#%-!(*$%/)@&"%*!"%9#%6#5()7%($%"&#<%(6#%
$#,36#7D%
%

(£000s) 2012/13 2011/12

Carrying value as at 1 April 812 675

 !/)*(-%:(-3#%!8%*#C%-!(*$%6#,!@*)$#7%)*%"&#%<#(6% L0% IO1%

E*"#6#$"%W%)*,6#($#%)*%7)$,!3*"#7%(/!3*"% MO% KM%

H!(*$%6#5()7% QK1;% QIM;%

+()6%:(-3#%(7V3$"/#*"$% QN;% II%

Carrying value as at 31 March 832 812

Nominal value of loans at 31 March 913 904

%

Page 184



 !"#$%"!%"&#%'()*%+)*(*,)(-%."("#/#*"$%
%
%

%
% 0**1(-%2#3!4"%(*5%."("#/#*"%!6%0,,!1*"$% 78%
%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%

Income, Expense, Gains and Losses

9&#% 6!--!:)*;% )"#/$% !6% )*,!/#<% #=3#*$#<% ;()*% !4% -!$$% (4#% 4#6-#,"#5% )*% "&#% ."("#/#*"% !6%
>!/34#&#*$)?#%@*,!/#%(*5%A=3#*5)"14#%)*%4#$3#,"%!6%6)*(*,)(-%)*$"41/#*"$B%
%

2012/13 2011/12

(£000s)
Financial 

Liabilities at 
amortised cost

Financial 
Assets – 

Loans and 
Receivables

Financial 
Liabilities at 

amortised cost

Financial 
Assets – 

Loans and 
Receivables

@*"#4#$"%#=3#*$#% 8<CDE% F% GC% F%

2#51,")!*$%)*%6()4%?(-1#% F% D% F% F%

2#?#4$(-%!6%-!$$#$%!*%)/3()4#5%
6)*(*,)(-%($$#"$%

F% F% F% HC8IJ%

@/3()4/#*"%-!$$#$% F% KKI% F% K7I%

LMNO%6##$%!*%(44(*;#/#*"%!6%
P20%$#-6Q6)*(*,)*;%-!(*$%

F% F% 87% F%

Total expense in Surplus or 
Deficit on the Provision of 
Services

7,496 230 159 (220)

@*,4#($#$%)*%6()4%?(-1#% F% F% F% HIIJ%

@*"#4#$"%@*,!/#% F% HECFJ% F% H7CCJ%

@*"#4#$"%)*,!/#%(,,41#5%!*%
)/3()4#5%6)*(*,)(-%($$#"$%

F% HIGIJ% F% HKD8J%

Total income in Surplus or 
Deficit on the Provision of 
Services

0 (821) 0 (852)

Fair Value of Assets and Liabilities

+)*(*,)(-% -)(R)-)")#$% (*5% 6)*(*,)(-% ($$#"$% 4#34#$#*"#5% RS% -!(*$% (*5% 4#,#)?(R-#$% (4#% ,(44)#5% )*% "&#%
R(-(*,#%$&##"%("%(/!4")$#5%,!$"T%%9&#)4%6()4%?(-1#%,(*%R#%($$#$$#5%RS%,(-,1-(")*;%"&#%34#$#*"%?(-1#%
!6%"&#%,($&%6-!:$%"&("%:)--%"(U#%3-(,#%!?#4%"&#%4#/()*)*;%"#4/%!6%"&#%)*$"41/#*"$<%1$)*;%"&#%6!--!:)*;%
($$1/3")!*$B%

 % 0*% #$")/("#5% )*"#4#$"% 4("#% ("% VI%'(4,&% KFIV% !6% ITG8W% HKTIGW% ("% VI%'(4,&% KFIKJ% &($% R##*%
1$#5%"!%,(-,1-("#%"&#%6()4%?(-1#%!6%34)?("#%$#,"!4%&!1$)*;%)/34!?#/#*"%-!(*$%

 % A$")/("#5%4(*;#$%!6%)*"#4#$"%4("#$%("%VI%'(4,&%KFIV%!6%KTDCW%"!%VTIVW%HVTKKW%"!%VTKGW%("%VI%
'(4,&%KFIKJ%6!4%-!(*$%64!/%"&#%LMNO%R($#5%!*%34#/("14#%4#3(S/#*"%4("#$%("%"&("%5("#%

 %  !%#(4-S%4#3(S/#*"%)$%4#,!;*)$#5%

 % M&#4#% (*% )*$"41/#*"%:)--%/("14#% )*% "&#% *#="% IK%/!*"&$<% "&#% ,(44S)*;% (/!1*"% )$% ($$1/#5% "!%
(334!=)/("#%"!%6()4%?(-1#%

 % 9&#%6()4%?(-1#%!6%"4(5#%(*5%!"&#4%4#,#)?(R-#$%)$%"(U#*%"!%R#%"&#%)*?!),#5%!4%R)--#5%(/!1*"%

 % 9&#%6()4%?(-1#%!6%,(3)"(-%,!*"4)R1")!*$%4#,#)?#5%)*%(5?(*,#%)$%"(U#*%"!%R#%"&#%(/!1*"%4#,#)?#5%

Page 185



 !"#$%"!%"&#%'()*%+)*(*,)(-%."("#/#*"$%
%
%

%%%%%%%%%%%%% %
% 01% %%%%%%%2**3(-%4#5!6"%(*7%."("#/#*"%!8%2,,!3*"$%
%%%%%%%%%%%%%% %%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%

9&#%8()6%:(-3#$%(6#%,(-,3-("#7%($%8!--!;$<%
%

31 March 2013 31 March 2012

(£000s)
Carrying 
amount

Fair Value
Carrying 

amount (as 
restated)

Fair Value (as 
restated)

Financial Liabilities at 
amortised cost

=6#7)"!6$%(*7%6#,#)5"$%)*%
(7:(*,#%

>?1@0A1B% >?1@0A1B% >?C@1A?B% >?C@1A?B%

D!*E%"#6/%F!66!;)*E% >G?C@H0AB% >GCG@H0IB% >G?C@H0AB% >GGA@1JHB%

Loans and receivables:

D!*E%"#6/%7#F"!6$% 1JG% 1JG% 11J% 11J%

=366#*"%7#F"!6$% C@AK1% C@AK1% 0@0GI% 0@0GI%

D!*E%"#6/%)*:#$"/#*"$% ?@KCA% ?@KCA% G@?JI% G@?JI%

=366#*"%)*:#$"/#*"$% 0J@IJC% 0J@IJC% 0K@HIH% 0K@HIH%

%

=!/5(6("):#%8)E36#$%8!6%C?%'(6,&%GI?G%&(:#%F##*%6#$"("#7%"!%)*,-37#%,(5)"(-%,!*"6)F3")!*$%&#-7%($%
6#,#)5"$%)*%(7:(*,#%($%"&#$#%(6#%,!*"6(,"3(-%-)(F)-)")#$L%

%
9&#%8()6%:(-3#%!8%"&#%-)(F)-)")#$%)$%&)E&#6%"&(*%"&#%,(66M)*E%(/!3*"%F#,(3$#%"&#%=!3*,)-N$%5!6"8!-)!%!8%
-!(*$%)*,-37#$%8)O#7%6("#%-!(*$%;&#6#%"&#%)*"#6#$"%6("#%5(M(F-#%)$%&)E&#6%"&(*%"&#%56#:()-)*E%6("#$%("%
"&#%F(-(*,#%$&##"%7("#L%%%

38 Nature and extent of risks arising from financial instruments

9&#%=!3*,)-N$%(,"):)")#$%#O5!$#%)"%"!%(%:(6)#"M%!8%8)*(*,)(-%6)$P$<%

 % =6#7)"%6)$P%Q%"&#%5!$$)F)-)"M%"&("%!"&#6%5(6")#$%/)E&"%8()-%"!%5(M%(/!3*"$%73#%"!%"&#%=!3*,)-%

 % D)R3)7)"M% 6)$P% Q% "&#% 5!$$)F)-)"M% "&("% "&#% =!3*,)-% /)E&"% *!"% &(:#% 83*7$% (:()-(F-#% "!% /##"% )"$%
,!//)"/#*"$%"!%/(P#%5(M/#*"$%

 % '(6P#"%6)$P%Q%"&#%5!$$)F)-)"M%"&("%8)*(*,)(-%-!$$%/)E&"%(6)$#%8!6%"&#%=!3*,)-%($%(%6#$3-"%!8%,&(*E#$%
)*%$3,&%/#($36#$%($%)*"#6#$"%6("#$%(*7%$"!,P%/(6P#"%/!:#/#*"$L%

How the Council manages those risks

9&#%=!3*,)-%/()*"()*$%56)*,)5-#$%8!6%!:#6(--%6)$P%/(*(E#/#*"@%($%;#--%($%(556!:#7%5!-),)#$%,!:#6)*E%
$5#,)8),% (6#($@% $3,&% ($%96#($36M%'(*(E#/#*"L%9&#% 56)*,)5-#$% F#&)*7%&!;% "&#%=!3*,)-% )*"#*7$% "!%
/(*(E#%!:#6(--%,6#7)"@% -)R3)7)"M%(*7%/(6P#"% 6)$P% )*% )"$% )*:#$"/#*"$%(6#%,!*"()*#7%;)"&)*% "&#%2**3(-%
96#($36M%'(*(E#/#*"%(*7%S*:#$"/#*"%."6("#EM%6#5!6"@%$3F/)""#7%"!%83--%=!3*,)-%F#8!6#%"&#%$"(6"%!8%
#(,&%8)*(*,)(-%M#(6L% %9&)$%$"6("#EM%,(*%F#%(/#*7#7@%F3"%!*-M%FM% 83--%=!3*,)-L% %T36)*E%GI?GU?C% "&#%
=!3*,)-%7)7%*!"%/(P#%(*M%(/#*7/#*"$%"!%)"$%)*:#$"/#*"%$"6("#EML%

Credit risk

=6#7)"% 6)$P% (6)$#$% 86!/% )*:#$"/#*"$% ;)"&% F(*P$% (*7% !"&#6% 8)*(*,)(-% )*$")"3")!*$@% ($% ;#--% ($% ,6#7)"%
#O5!$36#$%"!%"&#%=!3*,)-N$%,3$"!/#6$L%

Page 186



 !"#$%"!%"&#%'()*%+)*(*,)(-%."("#/#*"$%
%
%

%
% 0**1(-%2#3!4"%(*5%."("#/#*"%!6%0,,!1*"$% 78%
%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%

9*#%!6% "&#% "&)*:$% "&("% "&#%;!1*,)-%$##<$% "!%5!% "&4!1:&%"&#%!3#4(")!*%!6% )"$%=4#($14>%'(*(:#/#*"%
(*5%?*@#$"/#*"%."4("#:>%)$%"!%/)*)/)$#%)"$%#A3!$14#%"!%4)$<$%)*%4#-(")!*%"!%)*@#$"/#*"$B%%%

%

=&#% ;!1*,)-% &($C% )*% :#*#4(-C% ,!*")*1#5% D)"&% )"$% $1$3#*$)!*% !6% -#*5)*:% "!% !@#4$#($% 6)*(*,)(-%
)*$")"1")!*$% !4% "&#)4% EF% $1G$)5)(4)#$B% % =&#% ;!1*,)-H$% ,144#*"% 3!-),>% )$% "!% !*->% -#*5% "!% EF% G(*<$C%
G1)-5)*:%$!,)#")#$%(*5%!"&#4%-!,(-%(1"&!4)")#$%6!4%13%"!%"D#-@#%/!*"&$%)*%514(")!*B%%=&)$%)$%)*%-)*#%D)"&%
:1)5(*,#% 64!/% !14% "4#($14>% /(*(:#/#*"% (5@)$#4$% (*5% )*% -)*#% D)"&% "&#% ;!1*,)-H$% #$"(G-)$&#5%
=4#($14>%'(*(:#/#*"%?*@#$"/#*"%."4("#:>B%

%

=&#%;!1*,)-%&($%(-$!%/()*"()*#5%(%-)/)"%!*%"&#%"!"(-%"&("%/(>%G#%)*@#$"#5%D)"&)*%"&#%$(/#%,!/3(*>%
:4!13B%%=&#%3!-),>%!6%&(@)*:%*!%-)/)"%!*%"&#%"!"(-%(/!1*"%D&),&%/(>%G#%)*@#$"#5%)*%"&#%I!@#4*/#*"H$%
J#G"%'(*(:#/#*"%0,,!1*"%5#3!$)"%+(,)-)">%KJ'0J+L%,!*")*1#5%)*%MNOMPOQB%

%

=&#% ;!1*,)-% 1$#$% "&#% R,4#5)"D!4"&)*#$$% $#4@),#H% 34!@)5#5% G>% .#,"!4B% % =&)$% $#4@),#% &($% G##*%
34!:4#$$)@#->%#*&(*,#5%(*5%1$#$%(%$!3&)$"),("#5%/!5#--)*:%(334!(,&%1$)*:%,4#5)"%4(")*:$%64!/%"&#%
6!--!D)*:%4(")*:%(:#*,)#$%S%+)",&C%'!!5>$%(*5%."(*5(45%(*5%T!!4$B%%U!D#@#4C%)"%5!#$%*!"%4#->%$!-#->%
!*%"&#%,144#*"%,4#5)"%4(")*:$%!6%,!1*"#43(4")#$%G1"%(-$!%1$#$%"&#%6!--!D)*:%($%!@#4-(>$V%

 % ;4#5)"%D(",&#$%(*5%,4#5)"%!1"-!!<$%64!/%,4#5)"%4(")*:%(:#*,)#$%

 % ;4#5)"%J#6(1-"%.D(3$%K;J.L%$34#(5$%"!%:)@#%#(4->%D(4*)*:%!6%-)<#->%,&(*:#$%)*%,4#5)"%4(")*:$%

%

=&)$%/!5#--)*:%(334!(,&%,!/G)*#$%,4#5)"%4(")*:$C%,4#5)"%D(",&#$%(*5%,4#5)"%!1"-!!<$%)*%(%D#):&"#5%
$,!4)*:%$>$"#/%D&),&%)$%"&#*%,!/G)*#5%D)"&%(*%!@#4-(>%!6%;J.%$34#(5$%6!4%D&),&%"&#%#*5%34!51,"%)$%
(%$#4)#$%!6%,!-!14%,!5#%G(*5$%D&),&%)*5),("#%"&#%4#-(")@#%,4#5)"D!4"&)*#$$%!6%,!1*"#43(4")#$B%%=&#$#%
,!-!14% ,!5#$% (4#% (-$!% 1$#5% G>% "&#%;!1*,)-% "!% 5#"#4/)*#% "&#% (334!34)("#% 514(")!*% 6!4% )*@#$"/#*"$%
(*5% (4#% "&#4#6!4#% 4#6#44#5% "!% ($% 514(")!*(-% G(*5$B% %=&#%;!1*,)-% )$% $(")$6)#5% "&("% "&)$% $#4@),#% *!D%
:)@#$%(%/1,&%)/34!@#5%-#@#-%!6%$#,14)">%6!4%)"$%)*@#$"/#*"$B%

%

W)"&%"&#%#A,#3")!*%!6%"&#%J'0J+C%-)/)"$%(4#%$#"%6!4%"&#%(/!1*"%"&("%/(>%G#%!*%5#3!$)"%D)"&%(*>%!*#%
)*$")"1")!*B% % 0"% QO%'(4,&% MNOQ% "&#$#% D#4#V% (%/(A)/1/% !6% XOY%/)--)!*% D)"&% U.Z;% Z(*<% T-,% K"&#%
;!1*,)-H$% G(*<LC% XON%/)--)!*%D)"&%!"&#4%(334!@#5%,!1*"#43(4")#$%(*5%(%/(A)/1/%!6% OB7% ")/#$% "&)$%
-)/)"% /(>% G#%) *@#$"#5C% )*% "!"(-C% D)"&% ,!1*"#43(4")#$% G#-!*:)*:% "!% "&#% $(/#% ,!/3(*>% :4!13B% =&#%
;!1*,)-% (-$!% "!!<% (5@(*"(:#% !6% 1$)*:% "&#$#% -)/)"$% )*% 5#3!$)")*:% 61*5$% D)"&)*% G(*<% ,(--% (,,!1*"$B%%
=&)$%)*,4#($#5%>)#-5%-#@#-$%D)"&!1"%34#[15),)*:%"&#%;!1*,)-H$%4)$<%(@#4$#%*("14#B%

%

?*% -):&"% !6% "&#% (G!@#% )*@#$"/#*"% $"4("#:>C% "&#% ;!1*,)-% ,!*$)5#4$% "&("% )"% &($% "(<#*% (--% 4#($!*(G-#%
$"#3$%"!%4#51,#%"!%(%/)*)/1/%(*>%#A3!$14#%"!%,4#5)"%4)$<$%)*%4#-(")!*%"!%)"$%)*@#$"/#*"$%("%QO%'(4,&%
MNOQ%(*5%"&("%(*>%4#$)51(-%4)$<%,(**!"%G#%\1(*")6)#5B%%%

%

=&#%6!--!D)*:%$&!D$%"&#%!4):)*(-%34)*,)3(-%$1/$%!6%)*@#$"/#*"$%("%QO%'(4,&%(*(->$#5%G>%"&#%*("14#%
!6%6)*(*,)(-%)*$")"1")!*C%,!1*"4>%)*%D&),&%"&#>%(4#%5!/),)-#5%(*5%4#/()*)*:%3#4)!5%"!%/("14)">V%
%

%

%

%

%

%

%

%

%

%

%

%

Page 187



 !"#$%"!%"&#%'()*%+)*(*,)(-%."("#/#*"$%
%
%

%%%%%%%%%%%%% %
% 01% %%%%%%%2**3(-%4#5!6"%(*7%."("#/#*"%!8%2,,!3*"$%
%%%%%%%%%%%%%% %%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%

Maturity Band Total

(£000s)
Less than 

3 months

3 months to

6 months

6 months

to 1 year

31 March 2013

United Kingdom

9(*:$% 1% ;<=111% >;=111% <?=111%

93)-7)*@%.!,)#")#$% A=111% <=111% 1% >1=111%

B!,(-%23"&!6)")#$% ><=;11% 1% 1% ><=;11%

Total 20,200 26,000 12,000 58,200

%

Maturity Band Total

(£000s)
Less than

3 months

3 months to

6 months

6 months

to 1 year

31 March 2012

United Kingdom

9(*:$% ;0=<C1% ><=111% 1% <D=<C1%

93)-7)*@%.!,)#")#$% >1=111% 1% 1% >1=111%

B!,(-%23"&!6)")#$% >>=111% 1% 1% >>=111%

Total 47,380 13,000 0 60,380

%

E&#$#%"(F-#$%#G,-37#%"&#%)*H#$"/#*"$%)*%I#6)"(F-#%9(*:%(*7%B9J%($%7#"()-#7%)*% !"#%;?K%
%

E&#%8!--!L)*@%(*(-M$)$%$3//(6)$#$%"&#%N!3*,)-O$%($$#$$/#*"%!8%)"$%5!"#*")(-%/(G)/3/%#G5!$36#%"!%
,6#7)"%6)$:%P)/5()6/#*"%(--!L(*,#Q%)*%6#-(")!*%"!%7#F"!6$R%
%

31 March 2013 31 March 2012

(£000s) Gross Debt
Impairment 
Allowance

Gross Debt
Impairment 
Allowance

B!*@%"#6/%7#F"!6$% CD;% 1% CCD% 1%

N366#*"%(*7%8!6/#6%"#*(*"$% >=?;<% >=;1?% >=?;1% >=;A1%

S"&#6%7#F"!6$% <=T0?% <10% T=111% D;0%

5,880 1,511 6,409 2,196

%

B!*@U"#6/%7#F"!6$%)*,-37#%56)H("#%$#,"!6%&!3$)*@%)/56!H#/#*"%-!(*$%(*7%,!3*,)-%&!3$#%/!6"@(@#$K%%
E&#$#%7#F"$%(6#%$#,36#7%!*%56!5#6")#$K%
%

E&#%/!H#/#*"%)*%"&#%)/5()6/#*"%(--!L(*,#%736)*@%"&#%M#(6%,(*%F#%$3//(6)$#7%($%8!--!L$R%
%

(£000s) 31 March 2013 31 March 2012

Balance at 1 April 2,196 1,970

J*,6#($#%)*%(--!L(*,#%8!6%)/5()6/#*"% >11% ;T1%

9(-(*,#$%L6)""#*%!88%736)*@%"&#%M#(6% PAC?Q% P>TQ%

Balance at 31 March 1,511 2,196

%

Page 188



 !"#$%"!%"&#%'()*%+)*(*,)(-%."("#/#*"$%
%
%

%
% 0**1(-%2#3!4"%(*5%."("#/#*"%!6%0,,!1*"$% 78%
%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%

9&#%:!1*,)-%5!#$%*!"%;#*#4(--<%#="#*5%,4#5)"%"!%)"$%,1$"!/#4$%>#<!*5%?8%5(<$@%%0"%A8%'(4,&%?B8AC%
!6%"&#%"!"(-%5#>"!4%(*5%5#6#44#5%5#>"!4%>(-(*,#$%!6%DE@F%/)--)!*%GD7@H%/)--)!*%("%A8%'(4,&%?B8?IC%"&#%
3($"%51#%(/!1*"%J($%D?@A%/)--)!*%GD?@K%/)--)!*%("%A8%'(4,&%?B8?I%(*5%,(*%>#%(*(-<$#5%><%(;#%($%
6!--!J$L%
%

(£000s) 31 March 2013 31 March 2012

Customer Debts

M#$$%"&(*%"&4##%/!*"&$% A7K% 788%

9&4##%"!%$)=%/!*"&$% HH7% NA%

.)=%/!*"&$%"!%!*#%<#(4% ?B?% 8FE%

'!4#%"&(*%!*#%<#(4% 8C?K7% 8CF8H%

Balance at 31 March 2,302 2,793

Liquidity risk

9&#%:!1*,)-%&($%(%,!/34#&#*$)O#%,($&%6-!J%/(*(;#/#*"%$<$"#/%"&("%$##P$%"!%#*$14#%"&("%,($&%)$%
(O()-(>-#% ($% *##5#5@% % Q6% 1*#=3#,"#5% /!O#/#*"$% &(33#*C% "&#% :!1*,)-% &($% 4#(5<% (,,#$$% "!%
>!44!J)*;$% 64!/% "&#%R1>-),%S!4P$% M!(*%T!(45% GRSMTI@%9&#4#% )$% *!% $);*)6),(*"% 4)$P% "&("% )"%J)--% >#%
1*(>-#%"!%4()$#%6)*(*,#%"!%/##"%)"$%,!//)"/#*"$%1*5#4%6)*(*,)(-%)*$"41/#*"$@%
%

U*%?K%'(4,&%?B8?%" &#%:!1*,)-% "!!P%!1"% (%*1/>#4%!6% 6)=#5% 4("#%/("14)"<% -!(*$%J)"&% "&#%RSMT% "!%
/##"% "&#% ,!$"% !6% "&#%V20%$#-6W6)*(*,)*;% $#""-#/#*"%51#% "!% ,#*"4(-%;!O#4*/#*"@% %9&#$#% -!(*$%&(5%
"#4/$%!6% >#"J##*%?7%(*5%HE% <#(4$@% %9&#%V20%>1$)*#$$%3-(*%,!*6)4/$% "&#%(66!45(>)-)"<% !6% )*"#4#$"%
3(</#*"$% (*5% "&#% 4#3(</#*"% !6% "&#$#% -!(*$% !*% /("14)"<% (*5% "&("% "&#% :!1*,)-% /(<% >#% (>-#% "!%
,!*$)5#4%#(4-)#4%4#5#/3")!*%)6%(5O(*"(;#!1$@%%V!J#O#4C%"&)$%J)--%*!"%>#%,!*$)5#4#5%)*%"&#%$&!4"W"#4/C%
51#%"!%,144#*"%/(4P#"%,!*5)")!*$@%
%

9&#%/("14)"<%(*(-<$)$%!6%"&#%-!(*$%)$%($%6!--!J$L%
%

(£000s) 31 March 2013 31 March 2012

T#"J##*%?B%(*5%?E%<#(4$% 8BC7KA% B%

T#"J##*%?E%(*5%AB%<#(4$% EACH8A% EACH8A%

T#"J##*%AB%(*5%AE%<#(4$% EACH8A% EACH8A%

T#"J##*%AE%(*5%HB%<#(4$% EACH8H% EACH8H%

T#"J##*%HE%(*5%EB%<#(4$% H?CNA8% EACH8H%

213,654 213,654

%

Market risk

Interest rate risk

9&#%:!1*,)-%)$%#=3!$#5%"!%/)*)/(-%4)$P%)*%"#4/$%!6%)"$%#=3!$14#%"!%/!O#/#*"$%)*%)*"#4#$"%4("#$@%%9&)$%
)$%>#,(1$#% "&#%/(X!4)"<%!6% )"$% )*O#$"/#*"$%(4#%("% 6)=#5% 4("#$@% %9&#$#% )*O#$"/#*"$%(4#%(-$!%!6% -#$$%
"&(*%!*#%<#(4%)*%514(")!*%(*5%$!%,&(*;#$%"!%6()4%O(-1#%J)--%>#%/)*)/(-@%%9&#%:!1*,)-%5!#$C%&!J#O#4C%
1")-)$#%>(*P%5#3!$)"%(,,!1*"$%6!4%O#4<%$&!4"%"#4/%,($&%5#3!$)"$%(*5%"&#%)*"#4#$"%4("#%!*%"&)$%(,,!1*"%
/!O#$%)*%-)*#%J)"&%/!O#/#*"$%)*%"&#%>(*P%4("#@%
%

Page 189



 !"#$%"!%"&#%'()*%+)*(*,)(-%."("#/#*"$%
%
%

%%%%%%%%%%%%% %
% 01% %%%%%%%2**3(-%4#5!6"%(*7%."("#/#*"%!8%2,,!3*"$%
%%%%%%%%%%%%%% %%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%

9*%:#*#6(-%"#6/$;%(%6)$#%)*%)*"#6#$"%6("#$%<!3-7%&(=#%"&#%8!--!<)*:%#88#,"$>%

 % 9*=#$"/#*"$% ("% =(6)(?-#% 6("#$% @% "&#% )*"#6#$"% )*,!/#% ,6#7)"#7% "!% "&#% 9*,!/#% (*7% AB5#*7)"36#%
2,,!3*"%<)--%6)$#%

 % 9*=#$"/#*"$%("%8)B#7%6("#$%@%"&#%8()6%=(-3#%!8%"&#%($$#"$%<)--%8(--%

 % C!(*$%("%8)B#7%6("#$%@%"&#%8()6%=(-3#%!8%-)(?)-)")#$%<)--%8(--D%

E!66!<)*:$%(6#%*!"%,(66)#7%("%8()6%=(-3#;%$!%*!/)*(-%:()*$%(*7%-!$$#$%!*%8)B#7%6("#%?!66!<)*:$%<!3-7%
*!"% )/5(,"%!*%"&#%$365-3$%!6%7#8),)"%!*%"&#%56!=)$)!*%!8%$#6=),#$D% %F&#%"6#($36G%/(*(:#/#*"%"#(/%
&($%(*%(,")=#%$"6("#:G%8!6%($$#$$)*:%)*"#6#$"%6("#%#B5!$36#%"&("%8##7$%)*"!%"&#%$#"")*:%!8%"&#%(**3(-%
?37:#"% (*7%<&),&% )$% 3$#7% "!% 357("#% "&#% ?37:#"% 736)*:% "&#% G#(6D% %H!<#=#6;% -!!I)*:% ?(,I% !*%- ($"%
G#(6;% )8% )*"#6#$"%6("#$%!*%"&#%?(*I%7#5!$)"%(,,!3*"$%&(7%?##*%!*#%5#6,#*"(:#%5!)*"%&):&#6;%<)"&%(--%
!"&#6%=(6)(?-#$%&#-7%,!*$"(*";%"&#%8)*(*,)(-%#88#,"%<!3-7%&(=#%?##*%(*%(77)")!*(-%)*,!/#%!8%JKLM;NNN%
OJ0P;NNN%)*%1NKKQK1RD%%%

%

Price risk%

%

F&#%S!3*,)-%7!#$%*!"%)*=#$"%)*%#T3)"G%$&(6#$%(*7%$!%)$%*!"%#B5!$#7%"!%"&)$%6)$ID%

Foreign exchange risk

F&#%S!3*,)-% &($% *!% 8)*(*,)(-% ($$#"$% !6% -)(?)-)")#$% 7#*!/)*("#7% )*% 8!6#):*% ,366#*,)#$% !"&#6% "&(*% )"$%
#B5!$36#%($%7#"()-#7%)*% !"#%1PD%

39 Defined Benefit Pension Schemes

Participation in pension schemes

2$%5(6"%!8% "&#%"#6/$%(*7%,!*7)")!*$%!8%#/5-!G/#*"%!8% )"$%!88),#6$;% "&#%S!3*,)-%/(I#$%,!*"6)?3")!*$%
"!<(67$%"&#%,!$"%!8%5!$"%#/5-!G/#*"%?#*#8)"$D%%2-"&!3:&%"&#$#%?#*#8)"$%<)--%*!"%(,"3(--G%?#%5(G(?-#%
3*")-%#/5-!G##$%6#")6#;% "&#%S!3*,)-%&($%(%,!//)"/#*"%"!%/(I#%"&#%5(G/#*"$%(*7%"&)$%*##7$%"!%?#%
7)$,-!$#7%("%"&#%")/#%"&("%#/5-!G##$%#(6*%"&#)6%83"36#%#*")"-#/#*"D%

%

F&#% S!3*,)-% 5(6"),)5("#$% )*% "&#% C!,(-% U!=#6*/#*"% V#*$)!*% .,&#/#;% (7/)*)$"#6#7% -!,(--G% ?G%
S(/?6)7:#$&)6#%S!3*"G%S!3*,)-D%%F&)$%)$%(%83*7#7%7#8)*#7%?#*#8)"%8)*(-%$(-(6G%$,&#/#;%/#(*)*:%"&("%
"&#%S!3*,)-%(*7%#/5-!G##$%5(G%,!*"6)?3")!*$%)*"!%(%83*7;%,(-,3-("#7%("%(%-#=#-%)*"#*7#7%"!%?(-(*,#%
"&#%5#*$)!*$%-)(?)-)")#$%<)"&%)*=#$"/#*"%($$#"$D%

Transactions relating to post employment benefits

F&#% S!3*,)-% 6#,!:*)$#$% "&#% ,!$"% !8% 6#")6#/#*"% ?#*#8)"$% )*% "&#% 6#5!6"#7% ,!$"% !8% $#6=),#$% <&#*%
#/5-!G##$%#(6*%"&#/;%6("&#6%"&(*%<&#*%"&#%?#*#8)"$%(6#%#=#*"3(--G%5()7%($%5#*$)!*$D%%H!<#=#6;%"&#%
,&(6:#%"&#%S!3*,)-% )$%6#T3)6#7%"!%/(I#%(:()*$"%,!3*,)-% "(B% )$%?($#7%!*%"&#%#/5-!G#6%,!*"6)?3")!*$%
5(G(?-#% )*%"&#%G#(6;%$!%"&#%6#(-%,!$"%!8%5!$"%#/5-!G/#*"Q6#")6#/#*"%?#*#8)"$% )$%6#=#6$#7%!3"%!8%"&#%
U#*#6(-% +3*7% =)(% "&#%'!=#/#*"% )*% 4#$#6=#$% ."("#/#*"D% % F&#% 8!--!<)*:% "6(*$(,")!*$% &(=#% ?##*%
/(7#%)*%"&#%S!/56#&#*$)=#%9*,!/#%(*7%AB5#*7)"36#%."("#/#*"%(*7%"&#%U#*#6(-%+3*7%E(-(*,#%=)(%
"&#%'!=#/#*"%)*%4#$#6=#$%."("#/#*"%736)*:%"&#%G#(6>%
%

%

%

Page 190



 !"#$%"!%"&#%'()*%+)*(*,)(-%."("#/#*"$%
%
%

%
% 0**1(-%2#3!4"%(*5%."("#/#*"%!6%0,,!1*"$% 78%
%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%

Local Government

Pension Scheme

(£000s) 2012/13 2011/12

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement % %

Cost of Services: % %

9144#*"%$#4:),#%,!$"% ;<7==% ;<7>?%

@($"%$#4:),#%,!$"$% ?% ?%

.#""-#/#*"$%(*5%,14"()-/#*"$% A7?% B7B%

Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure:

C*"#4#$"%,!$"% =<==B% B?<;8>%

DE3#,"#5%4#"14*%!*%$,&#/#%($$#"$% FG<A8;H% FI<G=IH%

J!"(-%3!$"%#/3-!K/#*"%L#*#6)"%,&(4M#5%"!%"&#%$143-1$%!4%5#6),)"%!*%"&#%
34!:)$)!*%!6%$#4:),#$%

7,716 6,448

Other post employment benefit charged to the comprehensive 
income and expenditure statement

0,"1(4)(-%FM()*$H%N%-!$$#$% BB<B8I% B=<>>A%

J!"(-%3!$"%#/3-!K/#*"%L#*#6)"%,&(4M#5%"!%"&#%,!/34#&#*$):#%)*,!/#%
(*5%#E3#*5)"14#%$"("#/#*"%

18,854 26,000

Movement in reserves statement

2#:#4$(-%!6%*#"%,&(4M#$%/(5#%"!%"&#%$143-1$%!4%5#6),)"%6!4%"&#%34!:)$)!*%
!6%$#4:),#$%6!4%3!$"%#/3-!K/#*"%L#*#6)"$%)*%(,,!45(*,#%O)"&%"&#%,!5#%

FB;<?AAH% FAB<?G;H%

Employers’ contributions payable to the scheme 4,832 4,926

%

J&#% ,1/1-("):#% (/!1*"% !6% (,"1(4)(-% -!$$#$% 4#,!M*)$#5% )*% "&#% 9!/34#&#*$):#% C*,!/#% (*5%
DE3#*5)"14#%."("#/#*"%"!% "&#%8B%'(4,&%A?B8% )$%(% -!$$%!6%PI;Q;%/)--)!*%FPG8Q8%/)--)!*%("%8B%'(4,&%
A?BAHQ%

Assets and liabilities in relation to post employment benefits

2#,!*,)-)(")!*%!6%34#$#*"%:(-1#%!6%"&#%$,&#/#%-)(L)-)")#$%F5#6)*#5%L#*#6)"%!L-)M(")!*HR%
%

(£000s) 2012/13 2011/12

Opening balance at 1 April (208,232) (190,481)

9144#*"%.#4:),#%9!$"% F;<7==H% F;<7>?H%

C*"#4#$"%9!$"% F=<==BH% FB?<;8>H%

9!*"4)L1")!*$%LK%$,&#/#%3(4"),)3(*"$% FB<>?BH% FB<>7GH%

0,"1(4)(-%M()*$%N%F-!$$#$H% FA8<A7GH% FI<GG>H%

@($"%.#4:),#%S()*$% ?% ?%

T#*#6)"$%3()5% 7<A8>% G<>B;%

D$")/("#5%1*61*5#5%L#*#6)"$%3()5% 8A8% 8A8%

914"()-/#*"$% FA7?H% FB7BH%

Closing balance at 31 March (241,392) (208,232)

%
%

Page 191



 !"#$%"!%"&#%'()*%+)*(*,)(-%."("#/#*"$%
%
%

%%%%%%%%%%%%% %
% 01% %%%%%%%2**3(-%4#5!6"%(*7%."("#/#*"%!8%2,,!3*"$%
%%%%%%%%%%%%%% %%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%

4#,!*,)-)(")!*%!8%8()6%9(-3#%!8%"&#%$,&#/#%:5-(*;%($$#"$<%
%

(£000s) 2012/13 2011/12

Opening balance at 1 April 129,287 132,610

=>5#,"#7%6#"36*%!*%($$#"$% ?@AB1% C@?DC%

2,"3(6)(-%E()*$%F%:-!$$#$;% GA@GAD% :GH@???;%

=/5-!I#6%J!*"6)K3")!*$% 1@CBA% 1@DA0%

J!*"6)K3")!*$%KI%$,&#/#%5(6"),)5(*"$% G@LHG% G@L0?%

M*83*7#7%K#*#8)"$%5()7% :BAB;% :BAB;%

N#*#8)"$%5()7% :0@ABL;% :?@LG1;%

Closing balance at 31 March 148,425 129,287

%

O&#%#>5#,"#7%6#"36*%!*%$,&#/#%($$#"$%)$%7#"#6/)*#7%KI%,!*$)7#6)*E%"&#%#>5#,"#7%6#"36*$%(9()-(K-#%
!*%"&#%($$#"$%3*7#6-I)*E%"&#%,366#*"%)*9#$"/#*"%5!-),IP%%=>5#,"#7%I)#-7%!*%8)>#7%)*"#6#$"%)*9#$"/#*"$%
(6#%K($#7%!*%E6!$$%6#7#/5")!*%I)#-7$%($%("% "&#%N(-(*,#%.&##"%7("#P% %=>5#,"#7% 6#"36*$%!*%#Q3)"I%
)*9#$"/#*"$%6#8-#,"%-!*ER"#6/%6#(-%6("#$%!8%6#"36*%#>5#6)#*,#7%)*%"&#%6#$5#,")9#%/(6S#"$P%
%

O&#%(,"3(-%6#"36*%!*%"&#%+3*7%)*%/(6S#"%9(-3#%"#6/$%8!6%"&#%I#(6%"!%BG%'(6,&%AHGB%)$%#$")/("#7%($%
GLTP%%%

Scheme History

(£000s) 2012/13 2011/12 2010/11 2009/10 2008/09

U6#$#*"%9(-3#%!8%-)(K)-)")#$% :A1G@BDA;% :AHC@ABA;% :GDH@1CG;% :AA?@DLL;% :GBB@D?C;%

+()6%9(-3#%!8%($$#"$%)*%"&#%V!,(-%
W!9#6*/#*"%U#*$)!*%.,&#/#%

G1C@1AL% GAD@AC?% GBH@HL0% GAG@?0A% DH@1HL%

Surplus / (deficit) in the 
scheme

(92,967) (78,945) (60,425) (106,193) (43,573)

%

O&#% -)(K)-)")#$% $&!X% "&#%3*7#6-I)*E% ,!//)"/#*"$% "&("% "&#%J!3*,)-% &($% )*% "&#% -!*E% 63*% "!% 5(I% 5!$"%
#/5-!I/#*"%:6#")6#/#*";%K#*#8)"$P%%O&#%"!"(-%-)(K)-)"I%!8%YDBPH%/)--)!*%&($%(%$3K$"(*")(-%)/5(,"%!*%"&#%
*#"%X!6"&%!8% "&#%J!3*,)-%($% 6#,!67#7% )*% "&#%N(-(*,#%.&##"P% %Z!X#9#6@%$"("3"!6I%(66(*E#/#*"$% 8!6%
83*7)*E%"&#%7#8),)"%/#(*%"&("%"&#%8)*(*,)(-%5!$)")!*%!8%"&#%J!3*,)-%6#/()*$%&#(-"&I<%

 % O&#%7#8),)"%!*%"&#%-!,(-%E!9#6*/#*"%$,&#/#%X)--%K#%/(7#%E!!7%KI%)*,6#($#7%,!*"6)K3")!*$%!9#6%
"&#% 6#/()*)*E%X!6S)*E% -)8#% !8% #/5-!I##$% :)P#P% K#8!6#% 5(I/#*"$% 8(--% 73#;@% ($% ($$#$$#7% KI% "&#%
$,&#/#%(,"3(6I%

 % +)*(*,#% )$% !*-I% 6#Q3)6#7% "!% K#% 6()$#7% "!% ,!9#6% 7)$,6#")!*(6I% K#*#8)"$% X&#*% "&#% 5#*$)!*$% (6#%
(,"3(--I%5()7P%

%

O&#% "!"(-% ,!*"6)K3")!*$% #>5#,"#7% "!% K#% /(7#% "!% "&#% V!,(-% W!9#6*/#*"% U#*$)!*% .,&#/#% KI% "&#%
J!3*,)-%)*%"&#%I#(6%"!%BG%'(6,&%AHG1%(6#%Y1PAC?%/)--)!*P%%%

Basis for estimating assets and liabilities

V)(K)-)")#$% &(9#% K##*% ($$#$$#7% !*% (*% (,"3(6)(-% K($)$% 3$)*E% "&#% 56![#,"#7% 3*)"% ,6#7)"% /#"&!7@% (*%
#$")/("#% !8% "&#% 5#*$)!*$% "&("% X)--% K#%5(I (K-#% )*% 83"36#% I#(6$% 7#5#*7#*"% !*% ($$3/5")!*$% (K!3"%
/!6"(-)"I% 6("#$@% $(-(6I% -#9#-$% #",P% % O&#% V!,(-% W!9#6*/#*"% U#*$)!*% .,&#/#% -)(K)-)")#$% &(9#% K##*%

Page 192



 !"#$%"!%"&#%'()*%+)*(*,)(-%."("#/#*"$%
%
%

%
% 0**1(-%2#3!4"%(*5%."("#/#*"%!6%0,,!1*"$% 78%
%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%

($$#$$#5% 6!4% "&#%9!1*":%9!1*,)-% +1*5%;: %<:/(*$%2!;#4"$!*=% (*%) *5#3#*5#*"% 6)4/% !6% (,"1(4)#$=%
;($#5%!*%"&#%-("#$"%61--%>(-1(")!*%!6%"&#%$,&#/#%($%("%?@%'(4,&%AB@BC%
%

D&#%34)*,)3(-%($$1/3")!*$%1$#5%;:%"&#%(,"1(4:%&(>#%;##*E%
%

Local Government Pension Scheme

% 2012/13 2011/12

F!*GH"#4/%#I3#,"#5%4("#%!6%4#"14*%!*%($$#"$%)*%"&#%$,&#/#E% % %

JK1)":%)*>#$"/#*"$% LC8M% 7C?M%

N!*5$% LC8M% ?C?M%

O4!3#4":% LC8M% LCLM%

9($&% LC8M% ?C8M%

'!4"(-)":%0$$1/3")!*$E%

Longevity at 65 for current pensioners % %

'#*% A@CB% A@CB%

P!/#*% A?CQ% A?CQ%

Longevity at 65 for future pensioners % %

'#*% AACR% AACR%

P!/#*% A8CS% A8CS%

% % %

2("#%!6%)*6-(")!*% ACQM% AC8M%

.&!4"%"#4/%4("#%!6%)*,4#($#%)*%$(-(4)#$% @CBM% @CBM%

F!*G%"#4/%4("#%!6%)*,4#($#%)*%$(-(4)#$% 8C@M% LCQM%

2("#%!6%)*,4#($#%)*%3#*$)!*$% ACQM% AC8M%

2("#%6!4%5)$,!1*")*G%$,&#/#%-)(;)-)")#$% LC8M% LCQM%

D(T#%13%!6%!3")!*%"!%,!*>#4"%(**1(-%3#*$)!*%)*"!%4#")4#/#*"%-1/3%
$1/%U)*%4#$3#,"%!6%3!$"%034)-%ABBQ%$#4>),#V%

7?CBM% 7?CBM%

%

D&#%F!,(-%W!>#4*/#*"%O#*$)!*%.,&#/#X$%($$#"$%,!*$)$"%!6%"&#%6!--!Y)*G%,("#G!4)#$=%;:%34!3!4")!*%
!6%"&#%"!"(-%($$#"$%&#-5E%
%

31 March 2013

% 

31 March 2012

% 

JK1)":%)*>#$"/#*"$% S7% SA%

N!*5$% @L% @L%

O4!3#4":% S% R%

9($&% ?% 8%

Total 100 100

%

%
%

%
%

%

Page 193



 !"#$%"!%"&#%'()*%+)*(*,)(-%."("#/#*"$%
%
%

%%%%%%%%%%%%% %
% 00% %%%%%%%1**2(-%3#4!5"%(*6%."("#/#*"%!7%1,,!2*"$%
%%%%%%%%%%%%%% %%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%

History of experience gains and losses

8&#%(,"2(5)(-%9()*$%)6#*")7)#6%($%/!:#/#*"$%!*%"&#%;#*$)!*$%3#$#5:#%)*%<=><?>@%,(*%A#%(*(-B$#6%
)*"!%"&#%7!--!C)*9%,("#9!5)#$D%/#($25#6%($%(%4#5,#*"(9#%!7%($$#"$%!5%-)(A)-)")#$%("%@>%'(5,&%<=>@E%
%

% 2012/13 2011/12 2010/11 2009/10 2008/09

F)77#5#*,#%A#"C##*%"&#%
#G4#,"#6%(*6%(,"2(-%5#"25*%!*%
($$#"$%

HE<% I0EJK% >E@% >LE0% I@>EHK%

MG4#5)#*,#%9()*$%(*6%-!$$#$%!*%
-)(A)-)")#$%

I=E=K% I=E=K% =E>% I=E>K% =E@%

40 Cashflow Statement – Operating Activities

8&#%,($&%7-!C$%7!5%!4#5(")*9%(,"):)")#$%)*,-26#%"&#%7!--!C)*9%)"#/$N%
%

(£000s) 2012/13 2011/12

O!2$)*9%5#*"$% >PD=@J% >0D=HH%

3#:#*2#%.244!5"%Q5(*"% >0J% <D<JP%

R!2*,)-%$&(5#%!7%*(")!*(-%*!*S6!/#$"),%5("#$%75!/%*(")!*(-%4!!-% HDJ@T% PD<0H%

O!2$)*9%U#*#7)"%$2A$)6)#$% @TDH@J% @@D@HT%

R!2*,)-%$&(5#%!7%R!2*,)-%8(G%5#,#)4"$% 0DHP<% 0DHJ0%

R($&%4()6%"!%(*6%!*%A#&(-7%!7%#/4-!B##$% I@@D=<TK% I@@D=>@K%

;(B/#*"$%"!%"&#%,(4)"(-%5#,#)4"$%4!!-% I>D=@0K% I>D@>=K%

O!2$)*9%U#*#7)"%4()6% I>PD0>TK% I>0DHH<K%

V*"#5#$"%5#,#):#6% THJ% 0>L%

V*"#5#$"%4()6% IPDJL0K% I<K%

O31%.#-7S7)*(*,)*9%$#""-#/#*"%4(B/#*"% =% I<>@DTP<K%

W"&#5%!4#5(")*9%,($&%7-!C$% TDJ@L% I0DPPHK%

15,190 (205,104)

41 Cashflow Statement – Investing Activities

8&#%,($&%7-!C$%7!5%)*:#$")*9%(,"):)")#$%(5#%($%7!--!C$N%
%

(£000s) 2012/13 2011/12

;25,&($#%!7%45!4#5"BD%4-(*"%(*6%#X2)4/#*"D%)*:#$"/#*"%45!4#5"B%(*6%
)*"(*9)A-#%($$#"$%

I>0D<J0K% I><DH@LK%

;25,&($#%!7%$&!5"S"#5/%(*6%-!*9S"#5/%)*:#$"/#*"$% I>J>DJL=K% I<=0DLPTK%

;5!,##6$%75!/%"&#%$(-#%!7%45!4#5"BD%4-(*"%(*6%#X2)4/#*"D%)*:#$"/#*"%
45!4#5"B%(*6%)*"(*9)A-#%($$#"$%

JDTJL% @D<=L%

;5!,##6$%75!/%$&!5"S"#5/%(*6%-!*9S"#5/%)*:#$"/#*"$%% >J=D0><% <=>DP>L%

W"&#5%5#,#)4"$%75!/%)*:#$")*9%(,"):)")#$% @DTTT% >DTT>%

(9,020) (13,335)

Page 194



 !"#$%"!%"&#%'()*%+)*(*,)(-%."("#/#*"$%
%
%

%
% 0**1(-%2#3!4"%(*5%."("#/#*"%!6%0,,!1*"$% 78%
%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%

42 Cashflow Statement – Financing Activities

(£000s) 2012/13 2011/12

9($&%4#,#)3"$%64!/%-!*:;"#4/%<!44!=)*:% >% ?@ABCD8%

E"&#4%4#,#)3"$%64!/%6)*(*,)*:%(,")F)")#$% GAB?@8H% 8B@77%

Net cash flows from financing activities (3,217) 220,663

%

E"&#4% 4#,#)3"$% 64!/% 6)*(*,)*:%(,")F)")#$% 4#6-#,"%/!F#/#*"$% )*% "&#% ,($&%,!--#,"#5% 6!4% (")!*(-% !*;
I!/#$"),%2("#$%(*5%9!1*,)-%J(K%,!--#,"#5%<L%"&#%9!1*,)-%($%(*%(:#*"%6!4%!"&#4$M%

43 Prior Period Adjustments 

0%$143-1$%!*%"4(5)*:%!6%N??B>>>%34#F)!1$-L% )*,-15#5%)*%"&#%:4!$$% )*,!/#%!6%!"&#4%&!1$)*:%$#4F),#$%
&($%<##*%5)$,-!$#5%($%3(4"%!6%6)*(*,)*:%(*5%)*F#$"/#*"%)*,!/#%)*%"&#%34)!4%L#(4%,!/3(4(")F#$%"!%<#%
,!*$)$"#*"%=)"&%"&#%(,,!1*")*:%"4#("/#*"%(5!3"#5%"&)$%L#(4M%%J&)$%(5O1$"/#*"%&($%*!%)/3(,"%!*%"&#%
P#*#4(-%+1*5%Q(-(*,#M%
%

(£000s)
As 

previously 
stated

Restated

R66#,"%!*%9!/34#&#*$)F#%S*,!/#%(*5%RK3#*5)"14#%."("#/#*"T% % %

P4!$$%S*,!/#%!*%!"&#4%&!1$)*:%$#4F),#$% GA7BDCUH% GA7BD?AH%

+)*(*,)*:%(*5%S*F#$"/#*"%S*,!/#% GAAB>?7H% GAAB>CVH%

%

J&#% (,,!1*")*:% #*"4)#$% )*% 4#$3#,"% !6% "&#% 4#F#4$(-% !6% 4#F(-1(")!*% -!$$#$% 34#F)!1$-L% ,&(4:#5% "!% "&#%
9!/34#&#*$)F#%S*,!/#%(*5%RK3#*5)"14#%0,,!1*"%&(F#%<##*%4#F)#=#5%6!4%?>@@W@?M%%0$%(%4#$1-"%!6%
"&)$% 4#F)#=% (*%(55) ")!*(-% *#"% ,4#5)"% !6% NU>?B>>>% )$% 4#X1)4#5% "!% !"&#4% Y20% :4!$$% #K3#*5)"14#% ($%
4#3!4"#5% )*% "&#% 9!/34#&#*$)F#% S*,!/#% (*5% RK3#*5)"14#% ."("#/#*"% )*% 4#$3#,"% !6% "&#% 4#F#4$(-% !6%
4#F(-1(")!*%:()*$%34#F)!1$-L%,4#5)"#5%"!%"&#%2#F(-1(")!*%2#$#4F#%)*%#44!4M%
%

J&#%#66#,"%!6%"&#%(5O1$"/#*"%,(*%<#%$1//(4)$#5%($%6!--!=$T%
%

(£000s)
As 

previously 
stated

Restated

Effect on Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement:

P4!$$%RK3#*5)"14#%!*%Y20%.#4F),#$% A@B?8A% A>B88@%

.143-1$%!*%4#F(-1(")!*%!6%Z4!3#4"LB%Z-(*"%(*5%RX1)3/#*"%0$$#"$% GCBC78H% GABD7UH%

Movement in Reserves Statement

I#6),)"%!*%"&#%Z4!F)$)!*%!6%Y20%.#4F),#$% ?>DBA?>% ?>VBV@V%

E"&#4%9!/34#&#*$)F#%S*,!/#%(*5%RK3#*5)"14#% @UB>VU% @UBUV8%

05O1$"/#*"$%<#"=##*%(,,!1*")*:%<($)$%(*5%61*5)*:%<($)$%6!4%"&#%Y20% G?@>BVC?H% G?@>BAC>H%

Unusable Reserves (Note 35)

2#F(-1(")!*%2#$#4F#% GC?BA@8H% GC@BV@UH%

9(3)"(-%05O1$"/#*"%0,,!1*"% GC8UB7?>H% GC87B@??H%

%

Page 195



 !"#$%"!%"&#%'()*%+)*(*,)(-%."("#/#*"$%
%
%

%%%%%%%%%%%%% %
% 01% %%%%%%%2**3(-%4#5!6"%(*7%."("#/#*"%!8%2,,!3*"$%
%%%%%%%%%%%%%% %%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%

9&#% ,!/5(6("):#% 8);36#$% )*% !"&#6% *!"#$% "!% "&#% (,,!3*"$<% )*,-37)*;% *!"#$% =<% >% (*7% ?0% &(:#% @##*%
(7A3$"#7%($%*#,#$$(6B<%"!;#"&#6%C)"&%"&#%D42%$"("#/#*"% )"$#-8E% %9&)$%6#$"("#/#*"%&($%*!%#88#,"%!*%
"&#%@(-(*,#%!*%"&#%D42%($%("%F?%'(6,&%GH?G%($%56#:)!3$-B%6#5!6"#7E%

44 Impact of the adoption of new accounting standards on the financial statements 
– effective for the 2013/14 financial year

9&#%2013/14 Local Authority Accounting Code of Practice% )*,-37#$% ,&(*;#$% "!% "&#% ,-($$)8),(")!*<%
6#,!;*)")!*<%/#($36#/#*"%(*7%7)$,-!$36#%6#I3)6#/#*"$%6#-(")*;%"!%#/5-!B##%@#*#8)"$<%)*"6!73,#7%@B%
(/#*7/#*"$%"!%J2.?>E%%2%,&(*;#%)*%(,,!3*")*;%5!-),B%C)--%"&#6#8!6#%@#%6#I3)6#7%($%("%?%256)-%GH?FE%%
9&#%(/#*7/#*"$% )*,-37#%*#C%,-($$#$%!8%,!/5!*#*"$%!8%7#8)*#7%@#*#8)"%,!$"%(*7%*#C%6#,!;*)")!*%
,6)"#6)(%8!6%$#6:),#%,!$"$%(*7%"#6/)*(")!*%@#*#8)"$E%%9&#%K!3*,)-L$%(,"3(6B%#$")/("#$%"&("%"&#%#88#,"%!8%
"&#%,&(*;#%"!%J2.?>%!*%"&#%K!/56#&#*$):#%J*,!/#%(*7%MN5#*7)"36#%."("#/#*"%8!6%GH?GO?F%C!3-7%
&(:#%@##*%(*%(77)")!*(-%*!")!*(-%,&(6;#%!8%P?EHFF%/)--)!*E%%%
%

."("3"!6B%56!:)$)!*$%6#I3)6#% "&#%Q#*#6(-%+3*7%@(-(*,#%"!%@#%,&(6;#7%C)"&% "&#%(/!3*"%5(B(@-#%@B%
"&#% K!3*,)-% "!% "&#% 5#*$)!*% 83*7% !6% 7)6#,"-B% "!% 5#*$)!*#6$% )*% "&#% B#(6<% *!"% "&#% (/!3*"% ,(-,3-("#7%
(,,!67)*;%"!%(,,!3*")*;%$"(*7(67$E%%J*%"&#%'!:#/#*"%)*%4#$#6:#$%."("#/#*"<%"&)$%/#(*$%"&("%"&#6#%
(6#%(556!56)(")!*$%"!%(*7%86!/%"&#%R#*$)!*$%4#$#6:#%"!%6#/!:#%"&#%*!")!*(-%7#@)"$%(*7%,6#7)"$%8!6%
6#")6#/#*"% @#*#8)"$% (*7% 6#5-(,#% "&#/% C)"&% 7#@)"$% 8!6% "&#% (,"3(-% ,($&% 5()7E% %+!6 % "&)$% 6#($!*% "&#%
(/#*7/#*"$%"!%J2.?>%C)--%*!"% )/5(,"%!*%"&#%(/!3*"$%,&(6;#7%"!%3$(@-#%6#$#6:#$<%@3"%C)--% -#(7%"!%
!88$#"")*;%(7A3$"/#*"$%"!%"&#%R#*$)!*$%4#$#6:#%(*7%R#*$)!*%S)(@)-)"BE%
%

9&#%GH?FO?=%S!,(-%23"&!6)"B%2,,!3*")*;%K!7#%!8%R6(,"),#%C)--%(-$!%)*"6!73,#%,&(*;#$%6#$3-")*;%86!/%
IAS1 Presentation of Financial Statements – T"&#6% K!/56#&#*$):#% J*,!/#% UV3*#% GH??%
2/#*7/#*"$W% (*7% IFRS7 Financial Instruments Disclosures – T88$#"")*;% 2$$#"$% (*7% S)(@)-)")#$%
UX#,#/@#6% GH??%2 /#*7/#*"$WE% % 9&#$#% (/#*7/#*"$% (6#% *!"% #N5#,"#7% "!% -#(7% "!% $);*)8),(*"%
,&(*;#$%"!%"&#%."("#/#*"%!8%2,,!3*"$E%
%

%

45 Date the Statement of Accounts were authorised for issue

9&#%(37)"#7%."("#/#*"%!8%2,,!3*"$%C#6#%(3"&!6)$#7%8!6% )$$3#%@B% "&#%X)6#,"!6%!8%4#$!36,#$%!*%G?%
V3*#%GH?FE%%9&)$%)$%"&#%7("#%35%"!%C&),&%#:#*"$%(8"#6%"&#%@(-(*,#%$&##"%7("#%&(:#%@##*%,!*$)7#6#7E%
%

%

%

%

%

%

%

%

%

%

%

%

%

%

%

%

%

%

Page 196



 
 
 
 

 
 !""#$% &'()*+ $", -+$+'.'"+ )/ !00)#"+1 23 
                   

 

Additional Financial Statements and Information

Page 197



Page 198



 !!"#"$%&'()"%&%*"&'(+#&#,-,%#.(&%!(/%0$1-&#"$%(
(
(

(
(  %%2&'(3,4$1#(&%!(+#&#,-,%#($0( **$2%#.( 56(
(((((((((((((((((((

56(

Housing Revenue Account Income and Expenditure Account

78".(.#&#,-,%#(.,#.($2#(!,#&"'.($0(#8,("%*$-,(&%!(,94,%!"#21,("%(1,'&#"$%(#$(#8,(41$:"."$%($0(;$2%*"'(
!<,''"%=.>(

(£000s) Note 2012/13
2011/12 (as 
restated see 

Note 13)

Income

?<,''"%=(1,%#.( @( AB@CD65E( ABFCBDGE(

H$%I!<,''"%=(1,%#.( ( AJKKE( A5KLE(

;8&1=,.(0$1(.,1:"*,.(&%!(0&*"'"#",.( ( A@CJ5@E( A@C5@5E(

;$%#1"M2#"$%.(#$<&1!.(,94,%!"#21,( ( AG55E( A5FDE(

3,"-M21.,-,%#($0(*$.#.( ( A@6E( A@6E(

Total (36,642) (34,599)

( ( ( (

Expenditure

3,4&"1.(N(O&"%#,%&%*,( ( 5CJDF( KCL@L(

+24,1:"."$%(N(O&%&=,-,%#( ( JCBJL( JCBB6(

3,%#.C(1&#,.C(#&9,.(N($#8,1(*8&1=,.( ( @K6( @K@(

?,41,*"&#"$%(N("-4&"1-,%#( ( 6DCDLD( KCKGK(

H,=&#":,(P3 (+2M."!Q( B( A6@E( 6@CLFB(

/%*1,&.,!(41$:"."$%(0$1(M&!(!,M#.( ( 5B( @BD(

?,M#(O&%&=,-,%#(;$.#.( ( F( 5K(

P3 (.,'0I0"%&%*"%=(.,##',-,%#(4&Q-,%#(#$(=$:,1%-,%#( 6@( F( @6BCK5@(

Total 33,259 244,845

Net cost / (income) on HRA Services as included in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement

(3,383) 210,246

P3 (.,1:"*,.(.8&1,($0(;$14$1&#,(&%!(?,-$*1&#"*(;$1,( ( 6DF( @L6(

P3 (.,1:"*,.(.8&1,($0(H$%(?".#1"M2#,!(;$.#.( ( A6C@DDE( L6(

Net cost / (income) on HRA Services (4,491) 210,628

HRA share of the operating income and expenditure 
included in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement

A+214'2.E($1(!,0"*"#($%(.&',($0(P3 (%$%I*211,%#(&..,#.(( ( A5G@E( AG@LE(

R#8,1("%*$-,( ( A6BE( AB5E(

/-4&"1-,%#('$..,.($%(&..,#.(8,'!(0$1(.&',( ( BKG( F(

/%#,1,.#(4&Q&M',($%(STUV('$&%.( ( 5CGLG( D@(

/%#,1,.#(&%!(/%:,.#-,%#(/%*$-,( ( AG5GE( ADJ@E(

;&4"#&'(W1&%#.(&%!(;$%#1"M2#"$%.(3,*,":&M',( ( AB6JE( AJ@E(

(Surplus) / Deficit for the year on HRA services 1,812 209,320

(

Page 199



 !!"#"$%&'()"%&%*"&'(+#&#,-,%#.(&%!(/%0$1-&#"$%(
(
(

((((((((((((( (
( 23( ((((((( %%4&'(5,6$1#(&%!(+#&#,-,%#($0( **$4%#.(
(((((((((((((( (((((((((((((((((((((

Statement of Movement on the Housing Revenue Account Balance

(£000s) Note 2012/13
2011/12 (as 
restated see 

Note 13)

(Surplus) / Deficit for the year on the HRA Income and 
Expenditure Account

1,812 209,320

Adjustments between accounting basis and funding 
basis under statute

7&"%($1('$..($%(.&',(%$%8*411,%#(&..,#.( ( 293( 9:;(

<#=,1(*&6"#&'(1,*,"6#.( ( >:( :2(

/-6&"1-,%#('$..($%(&..,#.(=,'!(0$1(.&',( ( ?:@9A( ;(

B,#(1,C&'4&#"$%('$..,.($%(61$6,1#DE(6'&%#(&%!(,F4"6-,%#( ( ?GEHG;A( :EGHG(

5,C,%4,(,I6,%!"#41,(04%!,!(01$-(*&6"#&'(4%!,1(.#&#4#,(&%!(
!,8-"%"-4.(*&6"#&'(,I6,%!"#41,(

( ?>>GA( ?9GA(

+,'0(0"%&%*"%J(.,##',-,%#(6&D-,%#(04%!,!(01$-(*&6"#&'(4%!,1(
.#&#4#,(

( ;( ?3>:E@23A(

K&6"#&'(K$%#1"L4#"$%.(4%&66'",!(*1,!"#,!(#$(#=,(
K$-61,=,%."C,(/%*$-,(&%!(MI6,%!"#41,(+#&#,-,%#(

( :>G( G3(

N$C,-,%#("%("%C,.#-,%#(61$6,1#D(C&'4,( ( >@( 992(

N$C,-,%#("%(.=$1#(#,1-(&**4-4'&#"%J(&L.,%*,.( ( ;( 3G(

B,#(*=&1J,.(-&!,(0$1(1,#"1,-,%#(L,%,0"#.(-&!,("%(
&**$1!&%*,(O"#=(/ +>P(

( ?2GGA( ?H>2A(

M-6'$D,1.(K$%#1"L4#"$%.(6&D&L',(#$(#=,(K&-L1"!J,.="1,(
K$4%#D(K$4%*"'(Q,%."$%()4%!(

( 2H2( HG@(

R"00,1,%*,(L,#O,,%(&-$1#".&#"$%($0(!,L#(1,!,-6#"$%(
61,-"4-(!,#,1-"%,!("%(&**$1!&%*,(O"#=(#=,(K$!,(&%!(
#=$.,(!,#,1-"%,!("%(&**$1!&%*,(O"#=(.#&#4#,(

@( :;>( :9G(

+4-.(#$(L,(!,L"#,!($1(*1,!"#,!(#$(#=,(S5 (#=&#(&1,(%$#(
"%*$-,($1(,I6,%!"#41,("%(&**$1!&%*,(O"#=(7  Q(

( >;( P(

K&6"#&'(MI6,%!"#41,(04%!,!(LD(#=,(S$4."%J(5,C,%4,(
 **$4%#(

H( 2E992( >EH93(

T1&%.0,1(01$-(#=,(N&U$1(5,6&"1.(5,.,1C,( >;( ?:E3@PA( ?9E>@2A(

Net (increase) / decrease before transfers to or from 
reserves

88 (1,522)

T1&%.0,1.(#$(1,.,1C,.( ( >E:P>( 3:G(

Total movement on Housing Revenue Account for the 
year

1,479 (1,286)

Housing Revenue Account balance brought forward (6,974) (5,688)

Housing Revenue Account balanced carried forward (5,495) (6,974)

(

(
(

(

(
(

(

Page 200



 !!"#"$%&'()"%&%*"&'(+#&#,-,%#.(&%!(/%0$1-&#"$%(
(
(

(
(  %%2&'(3,4$1#(&%!(+#&#,-,%#($0( **$2%#.( 56(
(((((((((((((((((((

56(

Notes to the Housing Revenue Account

1 Introduction

78,(9$*&'(:$;,1%-,%#(&%!(<$2."%=( *#(>?@?(.,#( #8,( 01&-,A$1B(A"#8"%(A8"*8( #8,(<3 ($4,1&#,.C((
78,(&**$2%#(".(D1"%=0,%*,!EF(-,&%"%=(#8&#(&2#8$1"#",.(!$(%$#(8&;,(!".*1,#"$%(#$(02%!(&%G(<3 (!,0"*"#.(
01$-(#8,(:,%,1&'()2%!C((71&%.0,1.(01$-(#8,(:,%,1&'()2%!(*&%($%'G(H,(-&!,(&#(#8,(!"1,*#"$%($0(#8,(
+,*1,#&1G($0(+#&#,C(

2 Gross Rent

78".(1,41,.,%#.("%*$-,(1,*,";&H',("%(1,.4,*#($0(&''(!A,''"%=.(A"#8"%(#8,(<3 F(=1$..($0(1,%#(1,H&#,.(
&%!(%,#($0(1,%#.(%$#(4&G&H',(A8,%(41$4,1#",.(&1,(,-4#GC(( .(&#(6>(I&1*8(JK>6F(JC>L($0(41$4,1#",.(
A,1,(;&*&%#(M>C5NL(&#(6>(I&1*8(JK>JOC(
(

78,( &;,1&=,( 1,%#( 4&G&H',( "%( JK>JP>6( A&.( Q?RCN?( 4,1( A,,B( H&.,!( $%( R@( 4&G&H',( 1,%#( A,,B.(
MQ@5CR>(4,1(A,,B($%(&(SJ(A,,B(H&.".OC((78,(&;,1&=,(1,%#(4&G&H',("%(JK>>P>J(A&.(Q@5C5@(4,1(A,,B(
H&.,!($%(R@(4&G&H',(1,%#(A,,B.(MQ@>CKJ(4,1(A,,B($%(&(SJ(A,,B(H&.".OC(

3 Housing Revenue Account Subsidy Payable

)$''$A"%=(#8,("%#1$!2*#"$%($0(+,'0T)"%&%*"%=(0$1(#8,(<$2."%=(3,;,%2,( **$2%#(01$-( 41"'(JK>JF(#8,(
U$2%*"'( ".(%$('$%=,1(1,V2"1,!(#$(4&G(<$2."%=(3,;,%2,( **$2%#(+2H."!G(#$(U,%#1&'(:$;,1%-,%#(#$(
-&#*8(#8,(.214'2.($%(#8,(%$#"$%&'(<3 C(
(

71&%.&*#"$%.( "%( JK>JP>6( 1,'&#,!( .$','G( #$( &%G( 1,#1$.4,*#";,( &!W2.#-,%#.( "%( 1,.4,*#( $0( .2H."!G(
4&G&H',(0$1(JK>>P>J(&.(0$''$A.X(
(

(£000s) 2012/13 2011/12

I&%&=,-,%#(&%!(-&"%#,%&%*,( K( >JFKN>(

U&4"#&'(*8&1=,.( K( R?S(

( 0 12,556

Y$#"$%&'(1,%#( K( M6KFNSKO(

/%#,1,.#($%(1,*,"4#.( K( M>O(

( 0 (18,095)

I&W$1(3,4&"1.( ''$A&%*,( K( SF>>?(

Subsidy Paid in Year 0 (12,976)

 !W2.#-,%#(#$(.2H."!G(1,V2"1,!("%(02#21,(G,&1.( K( M>SO(

Z.#"-&#,!(&!W2.#-,%#(#$(.2H."!G(0$1(41"$1(G,&1( K( J(

 *#2&'(&!W2.#-,%#(#$(.2H."!G(0$1(41"$1(G,&1( >J( >K(

 !W2.#-,%#(0$1(<3 (.,'0T0"%&%*"%=("%#,1,.#( K( 5N(

Negative subsidy included in HRA Summary 12 (12,903)

(
(
(
(
(

Page 201



 !!"#"$%&'()"%&%*"&'(+#&#,-,%#.(&%!(/%0$1-&#"$%(
(
(

((((((((((((( (
( 23( ((((((( %%4&'(5,6$1#(&%!(+#&#,-,%#($0( **$4%#.(
(((((((((((((( (((((((((((((((((((((

4 Asset Values within the HRA 

Asset Values Depreciation

(£000s) 31 March 2013 1 April 2012 2012/13
2011/12 (as 
restated)

78,''"%9.( 3:;<=>?( 3@A<2A3( A><32:( @<;2B(

C#D,1(E&%!(&%!(F4"'!"%9.( A@<?@2( @<3=:( AA:( AA3(

/%01&.#14*#41,( A<>>=( @=B( ?;( ?A(

/%G,.#-,%#(H1$6,1#",.( 3<3?B( 3<:>:( >( >(

 ..,#.(D,'!(0$1(.&',(I('$%9(#,1-(( ?B>( >( >( >(

 ..,#.(D,'!(0$1(.&',(J(*411,%#( A<>?3( >( >( >(

 ..,#.("%(#D,(*$41.,($0(
*$%.#14*#"$%(

A<@?=( B<@:2( >( >(

514,406 510,920 10,622 9,808

(

KD,( G&'4,( $0( *$4%*"'( !8,''"%9.( &#( A(  61"'( ?>A?<( L&.,!( $%( G&*&%#( 6$..,.."$%<(8&.( MA<?;A(-"''"$%(
N?>AAOA?P(MA<?==(-"''"$%QR((S&*&%#(6$..,.."$%(G&'4,(".(#D,(,.#"-&#,($0(#D,(#$#&'(.4-(#D&#(8$4'!(L,(
1,*,"G,!("0(&''(#D,(!8,''"%9.(8,1,(.$'!($%(#D,($6,%(-&1T,#R((KD,(L&'&%*,(.D,,#(G&'4,(".(*&'*4'&#,!($%(
#D,( L&.".( $0( 1,%#.( 1,*,"G&L',( $%(,U ".#"%9( #,%&%*",.R( ( KD,.,( &1,( ',..( #D&%( #D,( 1,%#( #D&#( 8$4'!( L,(
$L#&"%&L',( $%( #D,( $6,%(-&1T,#<( &%!( #D,( L&'&%*,( .D,,#( G&'4,( ".( #D,1,0$1,( '$8,1( #D&%( #D,( G&*&%#(
6$..,.."$%(G&'4&#"$%R((KD,(!"00,1,%*,(L,#8,,%(#D,(#8$(G&'4,.(.D$8.(#D,(,*$%$-"*(*$.#($0(61$G"!"%9(
D$4."%9(&#(',..(#D&%(-&1T,#(G&'4,R(

(

V,#(1,G&'4&#"$%('$..,.($%(H1$6,1#W<(H'&%#(&%!(XY4"6-,%#($0(M;R@(-"''"$%(D&G,(L,,%(*D&19,!(#$(#D,(
Z$-61,D,%."G,(/%*$-,(&%!(XU6,%!"#41,(+#&#,-,%#("%(?>A?OAB(N%,#(1,G&'4&#"$%(9&"%.($0(M3R;(-"''"$%(
"%(?>AAOA?QR( (5,-&"%"%9(G&'4&#"$%(-$G,-,%#.( "%( #D,(G&'4,($0(61$6,1#W<(6'&%#(&%!(,Y4"6-,%#(D&G,(
L,,%(*D&19,!(#$(#D,(1,G&'4&#"$%(1,.,1G,R(

(

 %("-6&"1-,%#('$..($0(MB=3<>>>(D&.(L,,%(1,*$9%".,!("%(1,.6,*#($0('&%!(&#(E&#"-,1(Z'$.,(8D,1,(#D,(
,U6,*#,!(0&"1(G&'4,($%(!".6$.&'(".('$8,1(#D&%(#D,(61,G"$4.(G&'4&#"$%($%(&%(,U".#"%9(4.,(L&.".R(

(

7,J-"%"-".(*&6"#&'(,U6,%!"#41,($0(MAA;<>>>(N?>AAOA?(M3;<>>>Q(D&.(L,,%(81"##,%($00(!41"%9(?>A?OABR(

5 Loan Interest Charges

741"%9( ?>AAOA?( &4#D$1"#",.(-&%&9,!( #D,"1( !,L#( &.( &( 8D$',( &%!( %$( .,6&1&#,( 1,*$1!( 8&.( T,6#( $0(
'$&%.( #&T,%($4#( 0$1([5 (6416$.,.R( ([$8,G,1(%$#"$%&'([5 (!,L#(8&.(,.#"-&#,!(LW( 1,0,1,%*,( #$(&(
*&'*4'&#"$%(*&'',!(#D,([5 (*&6"#&'(0"%&%*"%9(1,Y4"1,-,%#R((KD,([5 (*&6"#&'(0"%&%*"%9(1,Y4"1,-,%#(".(
&(-,&.41,( $0( %,#([5 ( "%!,L#,!%,..(8D"*D( #&T,.( &**$4%#( $0( &%W( %,8( L$11$8"%9( #&T,%( $4#( ,&*D(
W,&1<(&..4-,!( #$(L,( 0$1([5 (6416$.,.<(&%!( #D,(&..4-,!(1,6&W-,%#($0(,U".#"%9([5 (!,L#R( (KD,(
'$&%("%#,1,.#(*D&19,.(-,#(LW(#D,([5 (&1,(*&'*4'&#,!(LW(-4'#"6'W"%9(#D,(-"!JW,&1(*1,!"#(*,"'"%9(LW(#D,(
Z$4%*"'\.(&G,1&9,(1&#,($0("%#,1,.#(0$1('$%9J#,1-(L$11$8"%9R(

(

 .( %$#,!( ,'.,8D,1,( "%( #D,( +#&#,-,%#( $0(  **$4%#.( #D,( Z$4%*"'( -&!,( &%( [5 ( .,'0I0"%&%*"%9(
.,##',-,%#(6&W-,%#($0(M?ABR;(-"''"$%($%(?:(]&1*D(?>A?R((K$(-,,#(#D".(6&W-,%#(#D,(Z$4%*"'(#$$T($4#(
&(%4-L,1($0('$%9J#,1-(-&#41"#W('$&%.(8"#D(#D,(H4L'"*(^$1T.(E$&%(F$&1!(NH^EFQR(

(

Page 202



 !!"#"$%&'()"%&%*"&'(+#&#,-,%#.(&%!(/%0$1-&#"$%(
(
(

(
(  %%2&'(3,4$1#(&%!(+#&#,-,%#($0( **$2%#.( 56(
(((((((((((((((((((

56(

7%!,1(83 (.,'090"%&%*"%:(#;,(<$2%*"'(;&.(&!$4#,!(&(=#>$94$$'?(&441$&*;(.$(#;&#(83 (.,'090"%&%*"%:(
'$&%.(&%!(#;,(1,.2'#&%#("%#,1,.#(&1,(!"1,*#'@(&##1"A2#&A',(#$(#;,(83 B((C;".(;&.(',!(#$(,D#,1%&'("%#,1,.#(
*;&1:,.($0(E5FGHGFIII(A,"%:(*;&1:,!(#$(#;,(83 ("%(JIKJLKMB(

6 Housing Stock

C;,(<$2%*"'(>&.(1,.4$%."A',(0$1(&%(&N,1&:,(.#$*O($0(5FJ6J(!>,''"%:.(!21"%:(#;,(@,&1B((C;,(.#$*O(&.(
&#(MK(P&1*;(JIKM(>&.(&.(0$''$>.Q9(
(

(£000s) 31 March 2013 31 March 2012

8$2.,.(R(A2%:&'$>.( MFS6H( MFSH5(

)'&#.( JFHSS( MFI6T(

+;,'#,1,!(;$2."%:(2%"#.( 6JI( 6J6(

+;&1,!($>%,1.;"4(41$4,1#",.( MH( GI(

Total 7,184 7,320

( ( (

C;,(*;&%:,("%(.#$*O(!21"%:(#;,(@,&1(*&%(A,(.2--&1".,!(&.(0$''$>.Q( ( (

Stock at 1 April 7,320 7,330

3":;#(#$(A2@(.&',.( UGKV( UKJV(

W,#(.;&1,!($>%,1.;"4(*;&%:,.( UKV( I(

W,>(41$4,1#",.( J( J(

X#;,1(*;&%:,.( USV( I(

Y&*&%#(&>&"#"%:(1,!,N,'$4-,%#( UHIV( I(

Stock at 31 March 7,184 7,320

(

C;$.,(41$4,1#",.(>;"*;(&1,(N&*&%#(&>&"#"%:(!,-$'"#"$%($1(.":%"0"*&%#( 1,!,N,'$4-,%#(&1,(%$( '$%:,1(
#1,&#,!(&.( ',##&A',(83 (!>,''"%:.(&%!(&1,( #;,1,0$1,( "%*'2!,!( "%(Z1$4,1#@F(Z'&%#(&%!([\2"4-,%#(&.(
X#;,1(]&%!(&%!(^2"'!"%:.F($1(&.( ..,#.(;,'!(0$1(+&',(&.(&441$41"&#,B(

7 Rent Arrears

3,%#(&11,&1.(&#(MK(P&1*;(JIKM(>,1,(EKF6JMFJT5(UEKF6KTFT6G(&#(MK(P&1*;(JIKJV(&%!(&.(&(41$4$1#"$%(
$0(:1$..(1,%#("%*$-,(;&N,(!,*1,&.,!(01$-(GB6H_("%(JIKKLKJ(#$(GBMI_("%(JIKJLKMB(
(

 #(MK(P&1*;(JIKM(&(41$N"."$%(0$1(A&!(!,A#($0(EKFJIGF6KT(>&.(;,'!("%(#;,(A&'&%*,(.;,,#(UEKFJMJFMKT(
&#(MK(P&1*;(JIKJVB(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(

Page 203



 !!"#"$%&'()"%&%*"&'(+#&#,-,%#.(&%!(/%0$1-&#"$%(
(
(

((((((((((((( (
( 23( ((((((( %%4&'(5,6$1#(&%!(+#&#,-,%#($0( **$4%#.(
(((((((((((((( (((((((((((((((((((((

8 Financing of Capital Expenditure

(£000s) 2012/13 2011/12

7&6"#&'(1,*,"6#.( 839( 8:338(

;&<$1(1,6&"1.(1,.,1=,( 8:>9>( >:8??(

5,=,%4,(0"%&%*"%@($0(*&6"#&'( 2:>>2( A:B>9(

7&6"#&'(*$%#1"C4#"$%.(&%!(@1&%#.( 8?3( 9DB(

11,539 10,063

(

7&6"#&'( ,E6,%!"#41,( "%( #F,( G,&1(H&.(&''( "%( 1,'&#"$%( #$(I5 (.#$*J(&6&1#( 01$-(K2L:???( MK9?L:???( "%(
9?AANA9O( HF"*F( H&.( .6,%#( $%( I5 ( "%01&.#14*#41,( &..,#.:( K92?:???( $%( $#F,1( '&%!( &%!( C4"'!"%@.(
MKL>:???( "%( 9?AANA9O( :( K?( $%( "%=,.#-,%#( 61$6,1#",.( MK8D:???( "%( 9?AANA9O:( &%!(K A:A29:???(
MK8:99L:???("%(9?AANA9O($%(&..,#.("%(#F,(*$41.,($0(*$%.#14*#"$%P(

9 Capital Income within the HRA 

(£000s) 2012/13 2011/12

QH,''"%@.( >:39D( 9:?92(

R&%!( A8( 82(

4,638 2,064

10 Major Repairs Reserve (MRR)

(£000s) 2012/13
2011/12 (as 
restated)

Balance at 1 April (1,171) (352)

S1&%.0,1(#$(;55(!41"%@(#F,(G,&1( MA?:398O( ML:B?BO(

 -$4%#(#1&%.0,11,!(01$-(;55(#$(I5 ( 8:9DL( >:3BL(

I5 (*&6"#&'(,E6,%!"#41,($%(F$4."%@(*F&1@,!(#$(;55( 8:>9>( >:8??(

Balance at 31 March (5,111) (1,171)

11 Contributions from the Pensions Reserve

SF,(I$4."%@(5,=,%4,( **$4%#(".(*F&1@,!(H"#F(&%(&##1"C4#&C',(.F&1,($0(*411,%#(.,1="*,(*$.#.("%('"%,(
H"#F( / +ALP( ( SF,( !"00,1,%*,( C,#H,,%( #F".( *$.#( &%!(, -6'$G,1( *$%#1"C4#"$%.( 6&G&C',( ".( #F,%(
&661$61"&#,!( 01$-( #F,( 6,%."$%.( 1,.,1=,( .$( #F&#( #F,( $=,1&''( &-$4%#( #$( C,( -,#( 01$-( 1,%#( &%!(
@$=,1%-,%#(.4C."!G(1,0',*#.(,-6'$G,1(*$%#1"C4#"$%.(6&G&C',(CG(#F,(7$4%*"'P(

12 HRA self-financing settlement payment

SF,(7$4%*"'(-&!,(&(.,##',-,%#(6&G-,%#( #$(*,%#1&'(@$=,1%-,%#( "%( 1,.6,*#($0( .,'0T0"%&%*"%@($0( #F,(
I5 ("%(;&1*F(9?A9P(
(

(

(

Page 204



 !!"#"$%&'()"%&%*"&'(+#&#,-,%#.(&%!(/%0$1-&#"$%(
(
(

(
(  %%2&'(3,4$1#(&%!(+#&#,-,%#($0( **$2%#.( 55(
(((((((((((((((((((

55(

13 Prior Period Adjustments

67,(41"$1(8,&1(*$-4&1&#"9,(0":21,(0$1(!,41,*"&#"$%(&%!("-4&"1-,%#(7&.(;,,%(1,.#&#,!(&.(!,#&"',!("%(
<$#,(=>(#$(#7,(-&"%(.#&#,-,%#($0(&**$2%#.?((67".(1,.#&#,-,%#(7&.(%$("-4&*#($%(#7,(;&'&%*,($%(@3 (
1,9,1.,.(&.(41,9"$2.'8(.#&#,!?(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(

(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(

(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(

Page 205



 !!"#"$%&'()"%&%*"&'(+#&#,-,%#.(&%!(/%0$1-&#"$%(
(
(

((((((((((((( (
( 23( ((((((( %%4&'(5,6$1#(&%!(+#&#,-,%#($0( **$4%#.(
(((((((((((((( (((((((((((((((((((((

Collection Fund

78".(.8$9.(#8,(#1&%.&*#"$%.("%(1,'&#"$%(#$(#8,(*$'',*#"$%($0(:$4%*"'(7&;(&%!(<&#"$%&'(<$%=>$-,.#"*(
5&#,.( ?<<>5@A( (7 8,( &**$4%#( .8$9.( 8$9( #8,( &-$4%#.( *$'',*#,!( 8&B,( C,,%(!" .#1"C4#,!( #$(
:&-C1"!D,.8"1,(:$4%#E(:$4%*"'F(G$'"*,(&%!()"1,( 4#8$1"#",.(&%!(#$(#8,(:"#E(:$4%*"'H.(I,%,1&'()4%!(
&.(9,''(&.(#$(#8,(<<>5(G$$'A(

(£000s) Note 2012/13 2011/12

Income and Expenditure Account 1

( ( ( (

Income

:$4%*"'(7&;( J( ?KLFJM3@( ?N3FO3M@(

<&#"$%&'(<$%=>$-,.#"*(1&#,.( M( ?3PF2J2@( ?33FLKJ@(

:$%#1"C4#"$%.(#$9&1!.(61,B"$4.(E,&1H.(,.#"-&#,!(:$'',*#"$%(
)4%!(!,0"*"#(

( ( (

( :&-C1"!D,(:"#E(:$4%*"'( ( ?32@( ?QJ@(

( :&-C1"!D,.8"1,(:$4%#E(:$4%*"'( ( ?NQ3@( ?JKJ@(

( :&-C1"!D,.8"1,(G$'"*,( 4#8$1"#E( ( ?3P@( ?QJ@(

( :&-C1"!D,.8"1,()"1,( 4#8$1"#E( ( ?ML@( ?OQ@(

( ( ?ONLF2OP@( ?OQKFKLN@(

Expenditure

G1,*,6#.(&%!(!,-&%!.R( ( ( (

( :&-C1"!D,(:"#E(:$4%*"'( ( KF3MO( KF23K(

( :&-C1"!D,.8"1,(:$4%#E(:$4%*"'( ( QQFJM3( QJFK3N(

( :&-C1"!D,.8"1,(G$'"*,( 4#8$1"#E( ( 2FON2( KFPL3(

( :&-C1"!D,.8"1,()"1,( 4#8$1"#E( ( JFQMJ( JFMN3(

 ''$9&C',(*$.#.($0(<<>5(*$'',*#"$%( ( JMO( JMM(

G&E-,%#(#$(<<>5(G$$'( M( 3PFQPK( 32F3JP(

G1$B"."$%(0$1(%$%=6&E-,%#($0(:$4%*"'(7&;( Q( MMO( QKP(

150,716 147,268

(Surplus) / Deficit for the year 5 (3) 663

(Surplus) / Deficit as at 1 April 1,384 721

Deficit as at 31 March 5 1,381 1,384

(
(

(
(
(
(
(
(

(
(
(

Page 206



 !!"#"$%&'()"%&%*"&'(+#&#,-,%#.(&%!(/%0$1-&#"$%(
(
(

(
(  %%2&'(3,4$1#(&%!(+#&#,-,%#($0( **$2%#.( 56(
(((((((((((((((((((

56(

Notes to the Collection Fund

1 General

78".(.#&#,-,%#(.8$9.( #8,( #1&%.&*#"$%.($0( #8,(:$'',*#"$%()2%!;(&(. #&#2#$1<( 02%!(.,4&1&#,( 01$-( #8,(
=,%,1&'()2%!($0(#8,(:$2%*"'>((78,(:$'',*#"$%()2%!(&**$2%#.(0$1("%*$-,(1,'&#"%?(#$(:$2%*"'(7&@(&%!(
AAB3($%(C,8&'0($0(#8$.,(C$!",.(D"%*'2!"%?(#8,(:$2%*"'E.($9%(=,%,1&'()2%!F(0$1(98$-(#8,("%*$-,(
8&.(C,,%(1&".,!>((78,(*$.#.($0(*$'',*#"$%(&1,(&**$2%#,!(0$1("%(#8,(=,%,1&'()2%!>(

2 Council Tax

G%!,1( #8,( &11&%?,-,%#.( 0$1( :$2%*"'( 7&@;( ,&*8( !$-,.#"*( 41$4,1#<( 9"#8"%( #8,( :$2%*"'E.( &1,&( ".(
&.."?%,!( #$( $%,( $0( ,"?8#( HI&'2&#"$%( C&%!.E( D ( #$( JF( C&.,!( $%( #8,( ,.#"-&#,!( 41"*,( "#( 9$2'!( 8&I,(
&*8",I,!("0("#(8&!(C,,%(.$'!(&#(K( 41"'(K66K>((78,(:$2%*"'(7&@(".(.,#(0$1(C&%!(B(41$4,1#",.(&%!(#8,(
#&@(0$1($#8,1(C&%!.(".(*&'*2'&#,!(&.(&(41$4$1#"$%($0(#8,(C&%!(B(#&@>((78,(C&%!(B(:$2%*"'(7&@(0$1(#8,(
<,&1(,%!,!(LK(M&1*8(NOKL(9&.(.,#(&#(PK;Q56>OQ;(-&!,(24(&.(0$''$9.R(

(£000s) 2012/13 2011/12

:&-C1"!?,(:"#<(:$2%*"'( KSS>T5( KSS>T5(

:&-C1"!?,.8"1,(:$2%#<(:$2%*"'( K;O5U>ST( K;OQ5>5U(

:&-C1"!?,.8"1,(V$'"*,( 2#8$1"#<( K5Q>TK( KS6>TS(

:&-C1"!?,.8"1,()"1,( 2#8$1"#<( T6>LK( T5>U5(

Total 1,479.04 1,441.78

78,(0$''$9"%?(#&C',(.8$9.(#8,(*&'*2'&#"$%($0(#8,(:$2%*"'(7&@(W&.,(0$1(NOKNXKL(D2.,!(#$(!,#,1-"%,(
#8,(#&@(%,,!,!(&#(W&%!(B(#$(0"%&%*,(.4,%!"%?F>(

Council Tax Base 2012/13 

Valuation Band
Total number of 
dwellings on the 

Valuation List

Total Equivalent 
Dwellings (after 

discounts, 
exemptions etc)

Ratio to Band D
Band D 

Equivalents

 ( N;UQN( N;O6Q( SX6( K;L6S(

W( 6;QUQ( 5;TTN( 5X6( T;U5Q(

:( K5;TTQ( KT;OTT( UX6( KL;LUN(

B( U;TQL( 5;NTT( 6X6( 5;NTT(

Y( Q;UST( Q;KU6( KKX6( T;KK6(

)( L;O5O( N;SLS( KLX6( L;UOU(

=( N;ULQ( NLQ( KTX6( L;UU6(

J( QQU( NTT( KUX6( TKO(

Total 49,640 39,270 41,233

(

(

(

Page 207



 !!"#"$%&'()"%&%*"&'(+#&#,-,%#.(&%!(/%0$1-&#"$%(
(
(

((((((((((((( (
( 23( ((((((( %%4&'(5,6$1#(&%!(+#&#,-,%#($0( **$4%#.(
(((((((((((((( (((((((((((((((((((((

78,("%*$-,($0(9:3;<=(-"''"$%("%(<3><?>@(A&.(1,*,"B&C',(01$-(#8,(0$''$A"%D(.$41*,.E(

(£000s) 2012/13 2011/12

F"'',!(#$(G$4%*"'(7&H(6&I,1.( J@K2LJ( J>KMLL(

71&%.0,1(01$-(N,%,1&'()4%!(O(G$4%*"'(7&H(C,%,0"#.( :K@@L( :K>23(

P"%".#1I($0(Q,0,%*,(G$%#1"C4#"$%.("%(R",4( <:( <:(

Total 60,238 58,183

3 National Non-Domestic Rates Income

S%!,1( #8,( &11&%D,-,%#.( 0$1( C4."%,..( 1&#,.K( #8,( *$4%*"'( *$'',*#.( %$%T!$-,.#"*( 1&#,.( 0$1( "#.( &1,&K(
C&.,!( $%(' $*&'( 1&#,&C',( B&'4,.( -4'#"6'",!( CI( &( %&#"$%&''I( .,#( C4."%,..( 1&#,;( ( 78".( &-$4%#K( ',..(
*,1#&"%(&''$A&%*,.(&%!($#8,1(!,!4*#"$%.K(".(6&"!("%#$(#8,(UUQ5(V$$'K(A8"*8(6&I.(C&*W(#$(&4#8$1"#",.(
&(.8&1,($0(#8,(6$$'(C&.,!($%(&(.#&%!&1!(&-$4%#(6,1(8,&!($0(6$64'&#"$%;(

78,('$*&'(1&#,&C',(B&'4,(&.(&#(@>(P&1*8(<3>@(A&.(9<JJK2L=K3>>(X9<JLK=:<K<:>(&#(@>(P&1*8(<3><Y(
&%!(#8,(S%"0$1-(F4."%,..(5&#,("%(<3><?>@(A&.(.,#(CI(#8,(D$B,1%-,%#(&#(=J;26(X<3>>?><K(=@;@6Y;(

4 Provision for Non-Payment of Council Tax

 (*$%#1"C4#"$%($0(9@@>K=JL(X9=:MK@>J( "%(<3>>?><Y(A&.(-&!,(#$(&(61$B"."$%(0$1(C&!(!,C#.;( (Q41"%D(
<3><?>@K(9>K2=@($0("11,*$B,1&C',(!,C#.(A,1,(A1"##,%($00(X<3>>?><(9<2@K:@LY;(

5 Collection Fund Surpluses and Deficits

78,(!,0"*"#($0(9>K@2>K<22(&#(@>(P&1*8(<3>@(X9>K@2@KL2L(!,0"*"#(&#(@>(P&1*8(<3><YK(A8"*8(1,'&#,!(#$(
G$4%*"'(7&HK(A"''(C,(1,*$B,1,!("%(.4C.,Z4,%#(0"%&%*"&'(I,&1.(01$-(G&-C1"!D,.8"1,(G$4%#I(G$4%*"'K(
G&-C1"!D,.8"1,(V$'"*,(&%!()"1,( 4#8$1"#",.(&%!(#8,(G$4%*"'("%(61$6$1#"$%(#$(#8,"1(.8&1,.($0(#8,(#$#&'(
G$4%*"'(7&H(1&".,!;(

78,(#$#&'(G$'',*#"$%()4%!(!,0"*"#(".(#8,1,0$1,(.8&1,!(&.(0$''$A.E(

(£000s) 31 March 2013 31 March 2012

G&-C1"!D,(G"#I(G$4%*"'( >JL( >J2(

G&-C1"!D,.8"1,(G$4%#I(G$4%*"'( >K33J( >K33L(

G&-C1"!D,.8"1,(V$'"*,( 4#8$1"#I( >:@( >:@(

G&-C1"!D,.8"1,()"1,( 4#8$1"#I( J:( J:(

1,381 1,384

(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(

Page 208



 
 
 
 

 

Statement of Accounting Policies and Glossary of Financial 
Terms and Abbreviations

Page 209



Page 210



 !"!#$#%!&'(&)**'+%!,%-&.'/,*,#0&1&&
2/'00"34&'(&5,%"%*,"/&6#3$0&"%7&)883#9,"!,'%0&

&
&

&
& )%%+"/&:#;'3!&"%7& !"!#$#%!&'(&)**'+%!0& <=&
&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&

Statement of Accounting Policies

1 General Principles

6>#& !"!#$#%!& '(&)**'+%!0& 0+$$"3,0#0& !>#&?'+%*,/@0& !3"%0"*!,'%0& ('3& !>#& ABCADC=& (,%"%*,"/& 4#"3&
"%7& ,!0& ;'0,!,'%&"!& !>#& 4#"3E#%7&'(& =C&F"3*>&ABC=G&6>#&?'+%*,/& ,0& 3#H+,3#7& !'&;3#;"3#&"%&"%%+"/&
 !"!#$#%!& '(& )**'+%!0& 84& !>#& )**'+%!0& "%7& )+7,!& :#-+/"!,'%0& ABCCI& J>,*>& !>'0#& 3#-+/"!,'%0&
3#H+,3#& !'&8#&;3#;"3#7& ,%&"**'37"%*#&J,!>&;3';#3&"**'+%!,%-&;3"*!,*#0G&6>#0#&;3"*!,*#0&;3,$"3,/4&
*'$;3,0#&!>#&?'7#&'(&.3"*!,*#&'%&K'*"/&)+!>'3,!4&)**'+%!,%-& ,%& !>#&L%,!#7&M,%-7'$&ABCADC=&"%7&
!>#&  #39,*#& :#;'3!,%-& ?'7#& '(& .3"*!,*#& ABCADC=I& 0+;;'3!#7& 84& N%!#3%"!,'%"/& 5,%"%*,"/& :#;'3!,%-&
 !"%7"370&ON5: PG&

6>#& "**'+%!,%-& *'%9#%!,'%& "7';!#7& ,%& !>#&  !"!#$#%!& '(& )**'+%!0& ,0& ;3,%*,;"//4& >,0!'3,*"/& *'0!I&
$'7,(,#7&84&!>#&3#9"/+"!,'%&'(&*#3!",%&*"!#-'3,#0&'(&%'%E*+33#%!&"00#!0&"%7&(,%"%*,"/&,%0!3+$#%!0G&

2 Accruals of Income and Expenditure

)*!,9,!4&,0&"**'+%!#7&('3&,%&!>#&4#"3&!>"!&,!&!"Q#0&;/"*#I&%'!&0,$;/4&J>#%&*"0>&;"4$#%!0&"3#&$"7#&'3&
3#*#,9#7G&N%&;"3!,*+/"3R&&

 & :#9#%+#&(3'$&!>#&0"/#&'(&-''70&,0&3#*'-%,0#7&J>#%&!>#&?'+%*,/& !3"%0(#30&!>#&0,-%,(,*"%!&3,0Q0&
"%7&3#J"370&'(&'J%#30>,;&!'&!>#&;+3*>"0#3&"%7&,!&,0&;3'8"8/#&!>"!&#*'%'$,*&8#%#(,!0&'3&0#39,*#&
;'!#%!,"/&"00'*,"!#7&J,!>&!>#&!3"%0"*!,'%&J,//&(/'J&!'&!>#&?'+%*,/G&&

 & :#9#%+#& (3'$& !>#&;3'9,0,'%&'(&0#39,*#0& ,0& 3#*'-%,0#7&J>#%& !>#&?'+%*,/&*"%&$#"0+3#&3#/,"8/4&
!>#& ;#3*#%!"-#& '(& *'$;/#!,'%& '(& !>#& !3"%0"*!,'%& "%7&, !& ,0& ;3'8"8/#& !>"!& #*'%'$,*& 8#%#(,!0& '3&
0#39,*#&;'!#%!,"/&"00'*,"!#7&J,!>&!>#&!3"%0"*!,'%&J,//&(/'J&!'&!>#&?'+%*,/G&&

 &  +;;/,#0&"3#&3#*'37#7&"0&#S;#%7,!+3#&J>#%&!>#4&"3#&*'%0+$#7&E&J>#3#&!>#3#&,0&"&-";&8#!J##%&
!>#&7"!#& 0+;;/,#0&"3#& 3#*#,9#7&"%7&! >#,3& *'%0+$;!,'%I& !>#4&"3#&*"33,#7&"0& ,%9#%!'3,#0&'%& !>#&
T"/"%*#& >##!G&&

 & US;#%0#0& ,%& 3#/"!,'%& !'&0#39,*#0& 3#*#,9#7& O,%*/+7,%-& !>'0#& 3#%7#3#7&84& !>#&?'+%*,/@0& '((,*#30P&
"3#&3#*'37#7&"0&#S;#%7,!+3#&J>#%& !>#&0#39,*#0&"3#&3#*#,9#7I& 3"!>#3& !>"%&J>#%&;"4$#%!0&"3#&
$"7#G&&

 & N%!#3#0!&;"4"8/#&'%&8'33'J,%-0&"%7&3#*#,9"8/#&'%&,%9#0!$#%!0&,0&"**'+%!#7&('3&'%&!>#&8"0,0&'(&
!>#&#((#*!,9#&,%!#3#0!&3"!#&('3&!>#&3#/#9"%!&(,%"%*,"/&,%0!3+$#%!&3"!>#3&!>"%&!>#&*"0>&(/'J0&(,S#7&'3&
7#!#3$,%#7&84&!>#&*'%!3"*!G&

 & V>#3#&3#9#%+#&"%7&#S;#%7,!+3#&>"9#&8##%&3#*'-%,0#7&8+!&*"0>&>"0&%'!&8##%&3#*#,9#7&'3&;",7I&
"&7#8!'3&'3&*3#7,!'3& ('3& !>#&3#/#9"%!&"$'+%!& ,0& 3#*'37#7& ,%& !>#&T"/"%*#& >##!G&V>#3#& !>#3#& ,0&
#9,7#%*#& !>"!& 7#8!0& "3#& +%/,Q#/4& !'& 8#&0 #!!/#7I& !>#& 8"/"%*#& '(& 7#8!'30& ,0&J3,!!#%& 7'J%& "%7&" &
*>"3-#&$"7#&!'&3#9#%+#&('3&!>#&,%*'$#&!>"!&$,->!&%'!&8#&*'//#*!#7G&

V>#3#& !>#& ?'+%*,/& ,0& "*!,%-& "0& "%&" -#%!& ('3& "%'!>#3& ;"3!4& O#G-G& ,%& !>#& *'//#*!,'%& '(& WWX:& "%7&
*'+%*,/& !"SPI& ,%*'$#& "%7& #S;#%7,!+3#& "3#& 3#*'-%,0#7& '%/4& !'& !>#& #S!#%!& !>"!& *'$$,00,'%& ,0&
3#*#,9"8/#&84&!>#&?'+%*,/&('3&!>#&"-#%*4&0#39,*#0&3#%7#3#7&'3&!>#&?'+%*,/&,%*+30&#S;#%0#0&7,3#*!/4&
'%&,!0&'J%&8#>"/(&,%&3#%7#3,%-&!>#&0#39,*#0G&

& &

Page 211



 !"!#$#%!&'(&)**'+%!,%-&.'/,*,#0&1&&
2/'00"34&'(&5,%"%*,"/&6#3$0&"%7&)883#9,"!,'%0&

&
&

&&&&&&&&&&&&& &
& :;& &&&&&&&)%%+"/&<#='3!&"%7& !"!#$#%!&'(&)**'+%!0&
&&&&&&&&&&&&&& &&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&

3 Cash and Cash Equivalents

>"0?& ,0& 3#=3#0#%!#7& 84& *"0?& ,%& ?"%7& "%7&7#= '0,!0& @,!?& (,%"%*,"/& ,%0!,!+!,'%0& 3#="4"8/#& @,!?'+!&
=#%"/!4&'%&%'!,*#&'(&%'!&$'3#&!?"%&A;&?'+30B&&>"0?&#C+,9"/#%!0&"3#&,%9#0!$#%!0&!?"!&"3#&*'%9#3!,8/#&
!'&D%'@%&"$'+%!0&'(&*"0?&@,!?&"%& ,%0,-%,(,*"%!& 3,0D&'(&*?"%-#& ,%&9"/+#& E%'& /'00&'(& ,%!#3#0!FB& &6?#&
>'+%*,/& !?#3#('3#& !3#"!0& "//& (,G#7& !#3$& 7#='0,!0H& @?,*?& ?"9#& %'& *'%!3"*!+"/& =3'9,0,'%& ('3& #"3/4&
3#7#$=!,'%H&"%7&,(&!?#4&@#3#&3#7##$#7&#"3/4&@'+/7&0+((#3&"&=#%"/!4&'(&"!&/#"0!&"&/'00&'(&,%!#3#0!H&"0&
,%9#0!$#%!0B&

I%&!?#&>"0?&5/'@& !"!#$#%!H&*"0?&"%7&*"0?&#C+,9"/#%!0&"3#&0?'@%&%#!&'(&8"%D&'9#373"(!0&!?"!&"3#&
3#="4"8/#&'%&7#$"%7&"%7&('3$&"%&,%!#-3"/&="3!&'(&!?#&>'+%*,/J0&*"0?&$"%"-#$#%!B&

4 Changes in Accounting Policies and Estimates and Errors

>?"%-#0&,%&"**'+%!,%-&='/,*,#0&"3#&'%/4&$"7#&@?#%&3#C+,3#7&84&=3'=#3&"**'+%!,%-&=3"*!,*#0&'3&!?#&
*?"%-#&=3'9,7#0&$'3#&3#/,"8/#&'3&3#/#9"%!&,%('3$"!,'%&"8'+!&!?#&#((#*!&'(&!3"%0"*!,'%0H&'!?#3&#9#%!0&
"%7& *'%7,!,'%0& '%& !?#& >'+%*,/K0& (,%"%*,"/& ='0,!,'%& '3& (,%"%*,"/& =#3('3$"%*#B& L?#3#& "& *?"%-#& ,0&
$"7#H&,!&,0&"==/,#7&3#!3'0=#*!,9#/4&84&"7M+0!,%-&'=#%,%-&8"/"%*#0&"%7&*'$="3"!,9#&"$'+%!0&('3&!?#&
=3,'3&=#3,'7&"0&,(&!?#&%#@&='/,*4&?"7&"/@"40&8##%&"==/,#7B&

>?"%-#0&,%&"**'+%!,%-&#0!,$"!#0&"3#&"**'+%!#7&('3&=3'0=#*!,9#/4H&,#H&,%&!?#&*+33#%!&"%7&(+!+3#&4#"30&
"((#*!#7&84&!?#&*?"%-#B&

N"!#3,"/&#33'30&7,0*'9#3#7&,%&=3,'3&=#3,'7&(,-+3#0&"3#&*'33#*!#7&3#!3'0=#*!,9#/4&84&"$#%7,%-&'=#%,%-&
8"/"%*#0&"%7&*'$="3"!,9#&"$'+%!0&('3&!?#&=3,'3&=#3,'7B&&

5 Charges to Revenue for Non-Current Assets

 #39,*#0H&0+=='3!&0#39,*#0&"%7& !3"7,%-&"**'+%!0&"3#&7#8,!#7&@,!?& !?#& ('//'@,%-&"$'+%!0& !'& 3#*'37&
!?#&*'0!&'(&?'/7,%-&%'%O*+33#%!&"00#!0&7+3,%-&!?#&4#"3P&

 & 7#=3#*,"!,'%&"!!3,8+!"8/#&!'&!?#&"00#!0&+0#7&84&!?#&3#/#9"%!&0#39,*#&&

 & 3#9"/+"!,'%& "%7& ,$=",3$#%!& /'00#0& '%& "00#!0& +0#7& 84& !?#& 0#39,*#& @?#3#& !?#3#& "3#& %'&
"**+$+/"!#7&-",%0&,%&!?#&<#9"/+"!,'%&<#0#39#&"-",%0!&@?,*?&!?#&/'00#0&*"%&8#&@3,!!#%&'((&&

 & "$'3!,0"!,'%&'(&,%!"%-,8/#&"00#!0&"!!3,8+!"8/#&!'&!?#&0#39,*#&

6?#&>'+%*,/& ,0&%'!& 3#C+,3#7& !'& 3",0#&*'+%*,/& !"G& !'&*'9#3&7#=3#*,"!,'%H& 3#9"/+"!,'%&"%7&,$=",3$#%!&
/'00#0& '3& "$'3!,0"!,'%0B& Q'@#9#3H& ,!& ,0& 3#C+,3#7& !'& $"D#& "%& "%%+"/& =3'9,0,'%& (3'$& 3#9#%+#& !'&
*'%!3,8+!#& !'@"370& !?#& 3#7+*!,'%& ,%& ,!0& '9#3"//& 8'33'@,%-& 3#C+,3#$#%!B& & 6?,0& =3'9,0,'%H& D%'@%& "0&
N,%,$+$& <#9#%+#& .3'9,0,'%& EN<.FH& ,0& #C+"/& !'& "%&" $'+%!& *"/*+/"!#7& '%&"&= 3+7#%!& 8"0,0&
7#!#3$,%#7& 84& !?#&>'+%*,/& ,%& "**'37"%*#&@,!?& 0!"!+!'34& -+,7"%*#B& &R #=3#*,"!,'%H& 3#9"/+"!,'%& "%7&
,$=",3$#%!&/'00#0&"%7&"$'3!,0"!,'%0&"3#&!?#3#('3#&3#=/"*#7&84&!?#&*'%!3,8+!,'%&,%&!?#&2#%#3"/&5+%7&
S"/"%*#H&84&@"4&'(&"%&"7M+0!,%-&!3"%0"*!,'%&@,!?&!?#&>"=,!"/&)7M+0!$#%!&)**'+%!&,%&!?#&N'9#$#%!&,%&
<#0#39#0& !"!#$#%!&('3&!?#&7,((#3#%*#&8#!@##%&!?#&!@'B&&T'&N<.&,0&*+33#%!/4&*?"3-#7&"0&!?#&7#8!&
"*C+,3#7&,%&3#/"!,'%&!'&Q<)&0#/(O(,%"%*,%-&,0&'+!0,7#&!?#&0*'=#&'(&!?,0&3#-,$#B&

6?#&=3'9,0,'%0&('3&*?"3-#0&!'&3#9#%+#&('3&%'%O*+33#%!&"00#!0&,%&!?#&Q<)&@#3#&"$#%7#7&'%&U&)=3,/&
AVUA&('//'@,%-&!?#&,%!3'7+*!,'%&'(&Q<)&0#/(O(,%"%*,%-B&&6?#&N"M'3&<#=",30&<#0#39#&,0&*3#7,!#7&"%7&
!?#&Q<)&8"/"%*#&,0&7#8,!#7&@,!?&"&0+$&#C+"/&!'&7#=3#*,"!,'%&'%&"//&Q<)&%'%O*+33#%!&"00#!0B&&6?#&

Page 212



 !"!#$#%!&'(&)**'+%!,%-&.'/,*,#0&1&&
2/'00"34&'(&5,%"%*,"/&6#3$0&"%7&)883#9,"!,'%0&

&
&

&
& )%%+"/&:#;'3!&"%7& !"!#$#%!&'(&)**'+%!0& <=&
&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&

>:)&8"/"%*#&,0&*3#7,!#7&"%7&!?#&@";,!"/&)7A+0!$#%!&)**'+%!&7#8,!#7&B,!?&!?#&7#;3#*,"!,'%&*?"3-#7&
'%&7B#//,%-&"00#!0&0'&!?"!&!?#&7#;3#*,"!,'%&'%&7B#//,%-&"00#!0&,0&%'B&"&*?"3-#&!'&!?#&>:)C&& !"!+!#&
"/0'&3#D+,3#0&!?"!&3#9"/+"!,'%&"%7&,$;",3$#%!&/'00#0&'%&%'%E7B#//,%-&"00#!0&"3#&"/0'&*?"3-#7&!'&!?#&
>:)& B?#3#& !?#3#& "3#& %'& -",%0& '%& !?#& :#9"/+"!,'%& :#0#39#& "-",%0!& B?,*?& !'& '((0#!& /'00#0C&&
>'B#9#3F&B?#3#&;3';#3&"**'+%!,%-&;3"*!,*#&3#D+,3#0&!?#&@'+%*,/&!'&3#9#30#&3#9"/+"!,'%&/'00#0&!'&!?#&
@'$;3#?#%0,9#&G%*'$#&"%7&HI;#%7,!+3#&)**'+%!&'%&%'%E7B#//,%-&"00#!0&!?#&@'+%*,/&?"0&7#*,7#7&
%'!&!'&*3#7,!&!?#&>:)&8"/"%*#F&#I*#;!&!'&!?#&#I!#%!&!?"!&,!&'((0#!0&"%4&/'00#0&*?"3-#7&,%&!?#&4#"3C&

6 Employee Benefits

J#%#(,!0&."4"8/#&K+3,%-&H$;/'4$#%!&

 ?'3!E!#3$&#$;/'4##&8#%#(,!0&L!?'0#&!?"!&("//&7+#&B?'//4&B,!?,%&MN&$'%!?0&'(&!?#&4#"3E#%7OF&0+*?&"0&
B"-#0&"%7&0"/"3,#0F&;",7&"%%+"/&/#"9#&"%7&;",7&0,*P&/#"9#F&(/#I,E/#"9#&"%7&!,$#&'((&,%&/,#+&('3&*+33#%!&
#$;/'4##0F& "3#& 3#*'-%,0#7& "0& "%&#I;#%0#& ,%& !?#& 4#"3& ,%&B?,*?& #$;/'4##0& 3#%7#3& 0#39,*#& !'& !?#&
@'+%*,/C&&)%&"**3+"/&,0&$"7#&"-",%0!&0#39,*#0&,%&!?#& +3;/+0&'3&K#(,*,!&'%&!?#&.3'9,0,'%&'(& #39,*#0&
('3& !?#& *'0!& '(& ?'/,7"4&#%!,!/#$#%!0&"%7&' !?#3& ('3$0&'(& /#"9#&#"3%#7&84&#$;/'4##0&8+!& %'!& !"P#%&
8#('3#& !?#& 4#"3E#%7& "%7& B?,*?& #$;/'4##0& *"%& *"334& ('3B"37& ,%!'& !?#& %#I!& (,%"%*,"/& 4#"3C& &6 ?#&
"**3+"/& ,0&$"7#&"!& !?#& 3#$+%#3"!,'%& 3"!#0&";;/,*"8/#& ,%& !?#& ('//'B,%-& (,%"%*,"/& 4#"3C& &)%4&"**3+"/&
$"7#&,0&3#D+,3#7&+%7#3&0!"!+!#&!'&8#&3#9#30#7&'+!&'(&!?#&2#%#3"/&5+%7&J"/"%*#&84&"&*3#7,!& !'&!?#&
)**+$+/"!,%-& @'$;#%0"!#7& )80#%*#0& )7A+0!$#%!& )**'+%!& ,%& !?#& Q'9#$#%!& ,%& :#0#39#0&
 !"!#$#%!C&

6#3$,%"!,'%&J#%#(,!0&

6#3$,%"!,'%&8#%#(,!0&"3#&"$'+%!0&;"4"8/#&"0&"&3#0+/!&'(&"&7#*,0,'%&84&!?#&@'+%*,/&!'&!#3$,%"!#&"%&
'((,*#3R0&#$;/'4$#%!&8#('3#&!?#&%'3$"/&3#!,3#$#%!&7"!#&'3&"%&'((,*#3R0&7#*,0,'%&!'&"**#;!&9'/+%!"34&
3#7+%7"%*4&"%7&"3#&*?"3-#7&'%&"%&"**3+"/0&8"0,0&!'&!?#&@'$;3#?#%0,9#&G%*'$#&"%7&HI;#%7,!+3#&
 !"!#$#%!&B?#%&!?#&@'+%*,/&,0&7#$'%0!3"8/4&*'$$,!!#7&!'&#,!?#3&!#3$,%"!,%-&!?#&#$;/'4$#%!&'(&"%&
'((,*#3&'3&-3'+;&'(&'((,*#30&'3&$"P,%-&"%&'((#3&!'&#%*'+3"-#&9'/+%!"34&3#7+%7"%*4C&

S?#3#& !#3$,%"!,'%&8#%#(,!0& ,%9'/9#& !?#&#%?"%*#$#%!&'(&;#%0,'%0F&0!"!+!'34&;3'9,0,'%0& 3#D+,3#& !?#&
2#%#3"/&5+%7&8"/"%*#&!'&8#&*?"3-#7&B,!?&!?#&"$'+%!&;"4"8/#&84&!?#&@'+%*,/&!'&!?#&;#%0,'%&(+%7&'3&
;#%0,'%#3&,%&!?#&4#"3F&%'!&!?#&"$'+%!&*"/*+/"!#7&"**'37,%-&!'&!?#&3#/#9"%!&"**'+%!,%-&0!"%7"370C&&G%&
!?#& Q'9#$#%!& ,%& :#0#39#0&  !"!#$#%!F& ";;3';3,"!,'%0& "3#& 3#D+,3#7& !'& "%7& (3'$& !?#& .#%0,'%0&
:#0#39#& !'& 3#$'9#& !?#& %'!,'%"/& 7#8,!0& "%7& *3#7,!0& ('3& !#3$,%"!,'%& 8#%#(,!0& 3#/"!#7& !'& ;#%0,'%0&
#%?"%*#$#%!0&"%7&3#;/"*#&!?#$&B,!?&7#8,!0&('3&!?#&*"0?&;",7&!'&!?#&;#%0,'%&(+%7&"%7&;#%0,'%#30C&

.'0!&H$;/'4$#%!&J#%#(,!0&

H$;/'4##0&'(&!?#&@'+%*,/&"3#&$#$8#30&'(&!?#&T'*"/&2'9#3%$#%!&.#%0,'%& *?#$#F&"7$,%,0!#3#7&84&
@"$83,7-#0?,3#&@'+%!4&@'+%*,/C&

6?#&0*?#$#&;3'9,7#0&7#(,%#7&8#%#(,!0&!'&$#$8#30&L3#!,3#$#%!&/+$;&0+$0&"%7&;#%0,'%0OF&#"3%#7&"0&
#$;/'4##0&B'3P#7&('3&!?#&@'+%*,/C&

The Local Government Pension Scheme

6?#&T'*"/&2'9#3%$#%!&.#%0,'%& *?#$#&,0&"**'+%!#7&('3&"0&"&7#(,%#7&8#%#(,!0&0*?#$#U&

&

Page 213



 !"!#$#%!&'(&)**'+%!,%-&.'/,*,#0&1&&
2/'00"34&'(&5,%"%*,"/&6#3$0&"%7&)883#9,"!,'%0&

&
&

&&&&&&&&&&&&& &
& :;& &&&&&&&)%%+"/&<#='3!&"%7& !"!#$#%!&'(&)**'+%!0&
&&&&&&&&&&&&&& &&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&

 & 6>#&/,"8,/,!,#0&'(&!>#&?"$83,7-#0>,3#&?'+%!4&?'+%*,/&=#%0,'%&(+%7&"!!3,8+!"8/#&!'&!>#&?'+%*,/&"3#&
,%*/+7#7& ,%& !>#&@"/"%*#& >##!&'%&"%&"*!+"3,"/&8"0,0&+0,%-& !>#&=3'A#*!#7&+%,!&$#!>'7&B& ,C#C&"%&
"00#00$#%!&'(&!>#&(+!+3#&="4$#%!0&!>"!&D,//&8#&$"7#&,%&3#/"!,'%&!'&3#!,3#$#%!&8#%#(,!0&#"3%#7&!'&
7"!#&84&#$=/'4##0E&8"0#7&'%&"00+$=!,'%0&"8'+!&$'3!"/,!4&3"!#0E&#$=/'4##&!+3%'9#3&3"!#0E&#!*E&
"%7&=3'A#*!,'%0&'(&=3'A#*!#7&#"3%,%-0&('3&*+33#%!&#$=/'4##0C&

 & F,"8,/,!,#0&"3#&7,0*'+%!#7&!'&!>#,3&9"/+#&"!&*+33#%!&=3,*#0E&+0,%-&"&7,0*'+%!&3"!#&'(&GCHI&J8"0#7&
'%& !>#& -,/!& 4,#/7& "==/,#7& !'& !>#& *"0>& (/'D0& '(& "& !4=,*"/& F'*"/& 2'9#3%$#%!& .#%0,'%&  *>#$#&
#$=/'4#3&"%7&!>#&$#"%&*3#7,!&0=3#"7&"==/4,%-&!'&))&*'3='3"!#&8'%70&D,!>,%&!>#&K@'LL&'9#3&MH&
4#"30&,%7#LNC&

 & 6>#&"00#!0&'(&!>#&?"$83,7-#0>,3#&?'+%!4&?'+%*,/&=#%0,'%&(+%7&"!!3,8+!"8/#&!'&!>#&?'+%*,/&"3#&
,%*/+7#7&,%&!>#&@"/"%*#& >##!&"!&!>#,3&(",3&9"/+#O&

o& P+'!#7&0#*+3,!,#0&B&*+33#%!&8,7&=3,*#&

o& Q%R+'!#7&0#*+3,!,#0&B&=3'(#00,'%"/&#0!,$"!#&

o& Q%,!,0#7&0#*+3,!,#0&B&*+33#%!&8,7&=3,*#&

o& .3'=#3!4&B&$"3S#!&9"/+#&

 & 6>#&*>"%-#&,%&!>#&%#!&=#%0,'%0&/,"8,/,!4&,0&"%"/40#7&,%!'&0#9#%&*'$='%#%!0O&

o& ?+33#%!&0#39,*#&*'0!&B&!>#&,%*3#"0#&,%&/,"8,/,!,#0&"0&"&3#0+/!&'(&4#"30&'(&0#39,*#&#"3%#7&!>,0&
4#"3&B&"//'*"!#7&,%&!>#&?'$=3#>#%0,9#&K%*'$#&"%7&TL=#%7,!+3#& !"!#$#%!&!'&!>#&0#39,*#0&
('3&D>,*>&!>#&#$=/'4##0&D'3S#7&

o& ."0!& 0#39,*#& *'0!& B& !>#& ,%*3#"0#& ,%& /,"8,/,!,#0& "3,0,%-& (3'$& *+33#%!& 4#"3& 7#*,0,'%0&D>'0#&
#((#*!&3#/"!#0&!'&4#"30&'(&0#39,*#&#"3%#7&,%&#"3/,#3&4#"30&B&7#8,!#7&!'&!>#& +3=/+0UV#(,*,!&'%&
!>#&.3'9,0,'%& '(&  #39,*#0& ,%& !>#&?'$=3#>#%0,9#& K%*'$#& "%7&TL=#%7,!+3#&  !"!#$#%!& "0&
="3!&'(&W'%&V,0!3,8+!#7&?'0!0&

o& K%!#3#0!&*'0!&B&!>#&#L=#*!#7&,%*3#"0#&,%&!>#&=3#0#%!&9"/+#&'(&/,"8,/,!,#0&7+3,%-&!>#&4#"3&"0&
!>#4& $'9#& '%#& 4#"3& */'0#3& !'& 8#,%-& =",7& B& 7#8,!#7& !'& !>#& 5,%"%*,%-& "%7& K%9#0!$#%!&
K%*'$#&"%7&TL=#%7,!+3#&/,%#&,%&!>#&?'$=3#>#%0,9#&K%*'$#&"%7&TL=#%7,!+3#& !"!#$#%!&

o& TL=#*!#7&3#!+3%&'%&"00#!0&B&!>#&"%%+"/&,%9#0!$#%!&3#!+3%&'%&!>#&(+%7&"00#!0&"!!3,8+!"8/#&
!'& !>#&?'+%*,/E& 8"0#7&'%&"%&"9#3"-#&'(& !>#&#L=#*!#7& /'%-X!#3$& 3#!+3%&B& *3#7,!#7& !'& !>#&
5,%"%*,%-&"%7&K%9#0!$#%!&K%*'$#&"%7&TL=#%7,!+3#&/,%#&,%&!>#&?'$=3#>#%0,9#&K%*'$#&"%7&
TL=#%7,!+3#& !"!#$#%!&&

o& 2",%0U/'00#0&'%&0#!!/#$#%!0&"%7&*+3!",/$#%!0&B&!>#&3#0+/!&'(&"*!,'%0&!'&3#/,#9#&!>#&?'+%*,/&
'(& /,"8,/,!,#0& '3& #9#%!0& !>"!& 3#7+*#& !>#& #L=#*!#7& (+!+3#& 0#39,*#& '3& "**3+"/& '(& 8#%#(,!0& '(&
#$=/'4##0& B& 7#8,!#7U*3#7,!#7& !'& !>#&  +3=/+0UV#(,*,!& '%& !>#& .3'9,0,'%& '(&  #39,*#0& ,%& !>#&
?'$=3#>#%0,9#&K%*'$#&"%7&TL=#%7,!+3#& !"!#$#%!&"0&="3!&'(&W'%&V,0!3,8+!#7&?'0!0&

o& )*!+"3,"/& -",%0& "%7& /'00#0& B& *>"%-#0& ,%& !>#& %#!& =#%0,'%0& /,"8,/,!4& !>"!& "3,0#& 8#*"+0#&
#9#%!0& >"9#& %'!& *',%*,7#7& D,!>& "00+$=!,'%0& $"7#& "!& !>#& /"0!& "*!+"3,"/& 9"/+"!,'%& '3&
8#*"+0#&!>#&"*!+"3,#0&>"9#&+=7"!#7&!>#,3&"00+$=!,'%0&B&7#8,!#7&!'&!>#&.#%0,'%0&<#0#39#&

o& ?'%!3,8+!,'%0&=",7&!'&!>#&?"$83,7-#&?,!4&?'+%*,/&=#%0,'%&(+%7&B&*"0>&=",7&"0&#$=/'4#3Y0&
*'%!3,8+!,'%0& !'& !>#& =#%0,'%& (+%7& ,%& 0#!!/#$#%!& '(& /,"8,/,!,#0Z& %'!& "**'+%!#7& ('3& "0& "%&
#L=#%0#&

K%& 3#/"!,'%& !'& 3#!,3#$#%!& 8#%#(,!0E& 0!"!+!'34& =3'9,0,'%0& 3#R+,3#& !>#& 2#%#3"/& 5+%7& 8"/"%*#& !'& 8#&
*>"3-#7&D,!>&!>#&"$'+%!&="4"8/#&84&!>#&?'+%*,/&!'&!>#&=#%0,'%&(+%7&'3&7,3#*!/4&!'&=#%0,'%#30&,%&!>#&
4#"3E&%'!&!>#&"$'+%!&*"/*+/"!#7&"**'37,%-&!'&!>#&3#/#9"%!&"**'+%!,%-&0!"%7"370C&&K%&!>#&['9#$#%!&

Page 214



 !"!#$#%!&'(&)**'+%!,%-&.'/,*,#0&1&&
2/'00"34&'(&5,%"%*,"/&6#3$0&"%7&)883#9,"!,'%0&

&
&

&
& )%%+"/&:#;'3!&"%7& !"!#$#%!&'(&)**'+%!0& <=&
&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&

,%&:#0#39#0& !"!#$#%!>&!?,0&$#"%0&!?"!&!?#3#&"3#&";;3';3,"!,'%0&!'&"%7&(3'$&!?#&.#%0,'%0&:#0#39#&
!'&3#$'9#&!?#&%'!,'%"/&7#8,!0&"%7&*3#7,!0&('3&3#!,3#$#%!&8#%#(,!0&"%7&3#;/"*#&!?#$&@,!?&7#8,!0&('3&!?#&
*"0?& ;",7& !'& !?#& ;#%0,'%& (+%7& "%7&;#%0 ,'%#30&"%7& "%4& 0+*?& "$'+%!0&;"4"8/#& 8+!& +%;",7& "!& !?#&
4#"3A#%7B& & 6?#& 8"/"%*#& !?"!& "3,0#0& '%& !?#& .#%0,'%0& :#0#39#& !?#3#84& $#"0+3#0& !?#& 8#%#(,*,"/&
,$;"*!&'%&!?#&2#%#3"/&5+%7&'(&8#,%-&3#C+,3#7&!'&"**'+%!&('3&3#!,3#$#%!&8#%#(,!0&'%&!?#&8"0,0&'(&*"0?&
(/'@0&!?"%&"0&8#%#(,!0&"3#&#"3%#7&84&#$;/'4##0B&

7 Events after the Reporting Period

D9#%!0& "(!#3& !?#& 3#;'3!,%-& ;#3,'7& "3#& !?'0#& #9#%!0>& 8'!?& ("9'+3"8/#& "%7& +%("9'+3"8/#>& !?"!& '**+3&
8#!@##%&!?#&#%7&'(&!?#&3#;'3!,%-&;#3,'7&"%7&!?#&7"!#&@?#%&!?#& !"!#$#%!&'(&)**'+%!0&,0&"+!?'3,0#7&
('3&,00+#B&&6@'&!4;#0&'(&#9#%!0&*"%&8#&,7#%!,(,#7E&

 & 6?'0#&!?"!&;3'9,7#&#9,7#%*#&'(&*'%7,!,'%0&!?"!&#F,0!#7&"!&!?#&#%7&'(&!?#&3#;'3!,%-&;#3,'7&G&!?#&
 !"!#$#%!&'(&)**'+%!0&,0&"7H+0!#7&!'&3#(/#*!&0+*?&#9#%!0&

 & 6?'0#&!?"!&"3#&,%7,*"!,9#&'(&*'%7,!,'%0&!?"!&"3'0#&"(!#3&!?#&3#;'3!,%-&;#3,'7&G&!?#& !"!#$#%!&'(&
)**'+%!0& ,0&%'!&"7H+0!#7&!'&3#(/#*!&0+*?&#9#%!0>&8+!&@?#3#&"&*"!#-'34&'(&#9#%!0&@'+/7&?"9#&"&
$"!#3,"/&#((#*!&7,0*/'0+3#& ,0&$"7#&,%&!?#&%'!#0&'(&!?#&%"!+3#&'(&!?#&#9#%!0&"%7&!?#,3&#0!,$"!#7&
(,%"%*,"/&#((#*!&

D9#%!0& !"I,%-&;/"*#&"(!#3& !?#&7"!#&'(& "+!?'3,0"!,'%& ('3& ,00+#&"3#&%'!& 3#(/#*!#7& ,%& !?#& !"!#$#%!&'(&
)**'+%!B&

8 Exceptional Items

J?#%&,!#$0&'(&,%*'$#&"%7&#F;#%0#&"3#&$"!#3,"/>&!?#,3&%"!+3#&"%7&"$'+%!&,0&7,0*/'0#7&0#;"3"!#/4>&
#,!?#3&'%&!?#&("*#&'(&!?#&K'$;3#?#%0,9#&L%*'$#&"%7&DF;#%7,!+3#& !"!#$#%!&'3&,%&!?#&%'!#0&!'&!?#&
"**'+%!B&

9 Financial Liabilities

5,%"%*,"/& /,"8,/,!,#0&"3#&3#*'-%,0#7&'%&!?#&M"/"%*#& ?##!&@?#%&!?#&K'+%*,/&8#*'$#0&"&;"3!4&!'&!?#&
*'%!3"*!+"/& ;3'9,0,'%0& '(& "& (,%"%*,"/& ,%0!3+$#%!& "%7& ,%,!,"//4&$#"0+3#7& "!& (",3& 9"/+#& "%7&*"33,#7& "!&
!?#,3&"$'3!,0#7&*'0!B&&)%%+"/&*?"3-#0&!'&!?#&5,%"%*,%-&"%7&L%9#0!$#%!&L%*'$#&"%7&DF;#%7,!+3#&/,%#&
,%& !?#&K'$;3#?#%0,9#& L%*'$#& "%7&DF;#%7,!+3#&  !"!#$#%!& ('3& ,%!#3#0!& ;"4"8/#& "3#& 8"0#7& '%&! ?#&
*"334,%-&"$'+%!&'(& !?#& /,"8,/,!4>&$+/!,;/,#7&84& !?#&#((#*!,9#& 3"!#&'(& ,%!#3#0!& ('3& !?#& ,%0!3+$#%!B& &6?#&
#((#*!,9#&,%!#3#0!&3"!#&,0&!?#&3"!#&!?"!&#F"*!/4&7,0*'+%!0&#0!,$"!#7&(+!+3#&*"0?&;"4$#%!0&'9#3&!?#&/,(#&
'(&!?#&,%0!3+$#%!&!'&!?#&"$'+%!&"!&@?,*?&,!&@"0&'3,-,%"//4&3#*'-%,0#7B&

6?,0&$#"%0&!?"!&!?#&"$'+%!&;3#0#%!#7&,%&!?#&M"/"%*#& ?##!&,0&!?#&'+!0!"%7,%-&;3,%*,;"/&3#;"4"8/#&
N;/+0& "**3+#7& ,%!#3#0!O& "%7& ,%!#3#0!& *?"3-#7& !'& !?#& K'$;3#?#%0,9#& L%*'$#& "%7& DF;#%7,!+3#&
 !"!#$#%!&,0&!?#&"$'+%!&;"4"8/#&('3&!?#&4#"3&"**'37,%-&!'&!?#&/'"%&"-3##$#%!B&

2",%0&"%7&/'00#0&'%&!?#&3#;+3*?"0#&'3&#"3/4&0#!!/#$#%!&'(&8'33'@,%-&"3#&*3#7,!#7&"%7&7#8,!#7&!'&!?#&
5,%"%*,%-& "%7& L%9#0!$#%!& L%*'$#& "%7& DF;#%7,!+3#& /,%#& ,%& !?#& K'$;3#?#%0,9#& L%*'$#& "%7&
DF;#%7,!+3#& !"!#$#%!&,%&!?#&4#"3&'(&3#;+3*?"0#P0#!!/#$#%!B&&&

J?#3#&;3#$,+$0&"%7&7,0*'+%!0&?"9#&8##%&*?"3-#7&!'&!?#&K'$;3#?#%0,9#&L%*'$#&"%7&DF;#%7,!+3#&
 !"!#$#%!>& 3#-+/"!,'%0& "//'@& !?#& ,$;"*!& '%& !?#& 2#%#3"/& 5+%7& M"/"%*#& !'& 8#& 0;3#"7& '9#3& (+!+3#&

Page 215



 !"!#$#%!&'(&)**'+%!,%-&.'/,*,#0&1&&
2/'00"34&'(&5,%"%*,"/&6#3$0&"%7&)883#9,"!,'%0&

&
&

&&&&&&&&&&&&& &
& ::& &&&&&&&)%%+"/&;#<'3!&"%7& !"!#$#%!&'(&)**'+%!0&
&&&&&&&&&&&&&& &&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&

4#"30=&&6>#&?'+%*,/&>"0&"&<'/,*4&'(&0<3#"7,%-&!>#&-",%@/'00&'9#3&!>#&!#3$&!>"!&A"0&3#$",%,%-&'%&!>#&
/'"%& "-",%0!& A>,*>& !>#& <3#$,+$& A"0& <"4"8/#& '3& 7,0*'+%!& 3#*#,9"8/#& A>#%& ,!& A"0& 3#<",7=& & 6>#&
3#*'%*,/,"!,'%&'(&"$'+%!0&*>"3-#7&!'&!>#&?'$<3#>#%0,9#&B%*'$#&"%7&CD<#%7,!+3#& !"!#$#%!&!'&!>#&
%#!& *>"3-#& 3#E+,3#7& "-",%0!& !>#&2#%#3"/& 5+%7&F"/"%*#& ,0&$"%"-#7& 84& "&! 3"%0(#3& !'& '3& (3'$& !>#&
5,%"%*,"/&B%0!3+$#%!0&)7G+0!$#%!&)**'+%!&,%&!>#&H'9#$#%!&,%&;#0#39#0& !"!#$#%!=&

10 Financial Assets

5,%"%*,"/&"00#!0&"3#&*/"00,(,#7&,%!'&!A'&!4<#0I&

 & J'"%0&"%7&3#*#,9"8/#0&K&"00#!0&!>"!&>"9#&(,D#7&'3&7#!#3$,%"8/#&<"4$#%!0&8+!&"3#&%'!&E+'!#7&,%&
"%&"*!,9#&$"3L#!&

 & )9",/"8/#M('3M0"/#&"00#!0&K&"00#!0&!>"!&>"9#&"&E+'!#7&$"3L#!&<3,*#&"%7@'3&7'&%'!&>"9#&(,D#7&'3&
7#!#3$,%"8/#&<"4$#%!0&

6>#&?'+%*,/&*+33#%!/4&'%/4&>"0&"00#!0&*/"00,(,#7&"0&N/'"%0&"%7&3#*#,9"8/#0=O&

J'"%0&"%7&3#*#,9"8/#0&"3#&3#*'-%,0#7&'%&!>#&F"/"%*#& >##!&A>#%&!>#&?'+%*,/&8#*'$#0&"&<"3!4&!'&
!>#&*'%!3"*!+"/&<3'9,0,'%0&'(&"&(,%"%*,"/&,%0!3+$#%!&"%7&"3#&,%,!,"//4&$#"0+3#7&"!&(",3&9"/+#=&&6>#4&"3#&
!>#%&$#"0+3#7&"!&!>#,3&"$'3!,0#7&*'0!=&&)%%+"/&*3#7,!0&!'&!>#&5,%"%*,%-&"%7&B%9#0!$#%!&B%*'$#&"%7&
CD<#%7,!+3#& /,%#& ,%& !>#&?'$<3#>#%0,9#& B%*'$#&"%7&CD<#%7,!+3#& !"!#$#%!& ('3& ,%!#3#0!& 3#*#,9"8/#&
"3#& 8"0#7& '%& !>#& *"334,%-& "$'+%!& '(& !>#& "00#!&$+/!,</,#7& 84& !>#& #((#*!,9#& 3"!#& '(& ,%!#3#0!& ('3& !>#&
,%0!3+$#%!=&&5'3&$'0!&'(&!>#&/'"%0&!>"!&!>#&?'+%*,/&>"0&$"7#P&!>,0&$#"%0&!>"!&!>#&"$'+%!&<3#0#%!#7&
,%& !>#& F"/"%*#&  >##!& ,0& !>#& '+!0!"%7,%-& <3,%*,<"/& 3#*#,9"8/#& Q</+0& "**3+#7& ,%!#3#0!R& "%7& ,%!#3#0!&
*3#7,!#7&!'&!>#&?'$<3#>#%0,9#&B%*'$#&"%7&CD<#%7,!+3#& !"!#$#%!&,0&!>#&"$'+%!&3#*#,9"8/#&('3&!>#&
4#"3&,%&!>#&/'"%&"-3##$#%!=&

6>#& ?'+%*,/& >"0& $"7#& ,%!#3#0!M(3##& /'"%0& ('3& <3,9"!#& 0#*!'3& >'+0,%-& ,$<3'9#$#%!0& Q0'(!& /'"%0R=&&
S>#%& 0'(!& /'"%0& "3#& $"7#P& "&/ '00& ,0& 3#*'37#7& ,%& !>#& ?'$<3#>#%0,9#& B%*'$#& "%7&C D<#%7,!+3#&
 !"!#$#%!& Q7#8,!#7& !'& !>#& "<<3'<3,"!#& 0#39,*#R& ('3& !>#& <3#0#%!& 9"/+#& '(& !>#& ,%!#3#0!& !>"!& A,//& 8#&
('3#-'%#& '9#3& !>#& /,(#& '(& !>#& ,%0!3+$#%!P& 3#0+/!,%-& ,%& "& /'A#3& "$'3!,0#7& *'0!& !>"%& !>#& '+!0!"%7,%-&
<3,%*,<"/=& &B%!#3#0!& ,0&*3#7,!#7&!'&!>#&5,%"%*,%-&"%7&B%9#0!$#%!&B%*'$#&"%7&CD<#%7,!+3#& /,%#& ,%&!>#&
?'$<3#>#%0,9#&B%*'$#&"%7&CD<#%7,!+3#& !"!#$#%!&"!&"&$"3-,%"//4&>,->#3&#((#*!,9#&3"!#&'(&,%!#3#0!&
!>"%&!>#&3"!#&3#*#,9"8/#&(3'$&!>#&9'/+%!"34&'3-"%,0"!,'%0P&A,!>&!>#&7,((#3#%*#&0#39,%-&!'&,%*3#"0#&!>#&
"$'3!,0#7&*'0!&'(&!>#&/'"%&,%&!>#&F"/"%*#& >##!=&& !"!+!'34&<3'9,0,'%0&3#E+,3#&!>"!&!>#&,$<"*!&'(&0'(!&
/'"%0& '%& !>#& 2#%#3"/& 5+%7& F"/"%*#& ,0& !>#& ,%!#3#0!& 3#*#,9"8/#& ('3& !>#& (,%"%*,"/& 4#"3& K& !>#&
3#*'%*,/,"!,'%& '(& "$'+%!0& 7#8,!#7& "%7& *3#7,!#7& !'& !>#& ?'$<3#>#%0,9#& B%*'$#& "%7& CD<#%7,!+3#&
 !"!#$#%!&!'&!>#&%#!&-",%&3#E+,3#7&"-",%0!&!>#&2#%#3"/&5+%7&F"/"%*#&,0&$"%"-#7&84&"&!3"%0(#3&!'&'3&
(3'$&!>#&5,%"%*,"/&B%0!3+$#%!0&)7G+0!$#%!&)**'+%!&,%&!>#&H'9#$#%!&,%&;#0#39#0& !"!#$#%!=&

S>#3#& "00#!0& "3#& ,7#%!,(,#7& "0& ,$<",3#7& 8#*"+0#& '(& "&/ ,L#/,>''7& "3,0,%-& (3'$& "&<"0 !& #9#%!& !>"!&
<"4$#%!0&7+#&+%7#3&!>#&*'%!3"*!&A,//&%'!&8#&$"7#P&!>#&"00#!&,0&A3,!!#%&7'A%&"%7&"&*>"%-#&$"7#&!'&
!>#& 5,%"%*,%-& "%7& B%9#0!$#%!& B%*'$#& "%7& CD<#%7,!+3#& /,%#& ,%& !>#& ?'$<3#>#%0,9#& B%*'$#& "%7&
CD<#%7,!+3#& !"!#$#%!=& &6>#& ,$<",3$#%!& /'00& ,0&$#"0+3#7&"0& !>#&7,((#3#%*#&8#!A##%&!>#&*"334,%-&
"$'+%!& "%7& !>#& <3#0#%!& 9"/+#& '(& !>#& 3#9,0#7& (+!+3#& *"0>& (/'A0& 7,0*'+%!#7& "!& !>#& "00#!O0& '3,-,%"/&
#((#*!,9#&,%!#3#0!&3"!#=&

)%4& -",%0& "%7& /'00#0& !>"!& "3,0#& '%& !>#& 7#3#*'-%,!,'%& '(& "%& "00#!& "3#& *3#7,!#7@7#8,!#7& !'& !>#&
5,%"%*,%-& "%7& B%9#0!$#%!& B%*'$#& "%7& CD<#%7,!+3#& /,%#& ,%& !>#& ?'$<3#>#%0,9#& B%*'$#& "%7&
CD<#%7,!+3#& !"!#$#%!=&

&

&

Page 216



 !"!#$#%!&'(&)**'+%!,%-&.'/,*,#0&1&&
2/'00"34&'(&5,%"%*,"/&6#3$0&"%7&)883#9,"!,'%0&

&
&

&
& )%%+"/&:#;'3!&"%7& !"!#$#%!&'(&)**'+%!0& <=&
&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&

11 Government Grants and Contributions

>?#!?#3& ;",7& '%&"* *'+%!@& 84& ,%0!"/$#%!0& '3& ,%& "33#"30@& -'9#3%$#%!& -3"%!0& "%7& !?,37& ;"3!4&
*'%!3,8+!,'%0& "%7& 7'%"!,'%0& "3#& 3#*'-%,0#7& "0& 7+#& !'& !?#& A'+%*,/& B?#%& !?#3#& ,0& 3#"0'%"8/#&
"00+3"%*#&!?"!C&

 & 6?#&A'+%*,/&B,//&*'$;/4&B,!?&!?#&*'%7,!,'%0&"!!"*?#7&!'&!?#&;"4$#%!0@&"%7&

 & 6?#&-3"%!0&'3&*'%!3,8+!,'%0&B,//&8#&3#*#,9#7&

)$'+%!0& 3#*'-%,0#7& "0& 7+#& !'& !?#& A'+%*,/& "3#& %'!& *3#7,!#7& !'& !?#& A'$;3#?#%0,9#& D%*'$#& "%7&
EF;#%7,!+3#&  !"!#$#%!& +%!,/& *'%7,!,'%0& "!!"*?,%-& !'& !?#& -3"%!& '3& *'%!3,8+!,'%& ?"9#& 8##%& 0"!,0(,#7G&&
A'%7,!,'%0& "3#& 0!,;+/"!,'%0& !?"!& 0;#*,(4& !?"!& !?#& (+!+3#& #*'%'$,*& 8#%#(,!0& '3& 0#39,*#& ;'!#%!,"/&
#$8'7,#7&,%&!?#&"00#!&"*H+,3#7&+0,%-&!?#&-3"%!&'3&*'%!3,8+!,'%&"3#&3#H+,3#7&!'&8#&*'%0+$#7&84&!?#&
3#*,;,#%!& "0& 0;#*,(,#7& '3& (+!+3#& #*'%'$,*& 8#%#(,!0& '3& 0#39,*#& ;'!#%!,"/& $+0!& 8#& 3#!+3%#7& !'& !?#&
!3"%0(#3'3G&

I'%,#0& "79"%*#7& "0& -3"%!0& "%7& *'%!3,8+!,'%0& ('3& B?,*?& *'%7,!,'%0& ?"9#& %'!& 8##%& 0"!,0(,#7& "3#&
*"33,#7&,%&!?#&J"/"%*#& ?##!&"0&*3#7,!'30G&&>?#%&*'%7,!,'%0&"3#&0"!,0(,#7@&!?#&-3"%!&'3&*'%!3,8+!,'%&,0&
*3#7,!#7&!'&!?#&3#/#9"%!&0#39,*#&/,%#&K"!!3,8+!"8/#&3#9#%+#&-3"%!0L*'%!3,8+!,'%0M&'3&6"F"!,'%&"%7&N'%O
 ;#*,(,*&23"%!&D%*'$#&K%'%O3,%-O(#%*#7&3#9#%+#&-3"%!0&"%7&"//&*";,!"/&-3"%!0M&,%&!?#&A'$;3#?#%0,9#&
D%*'$#&"%7&EF;#%7,!+3#& !"!#$#%!G&

>?#3#&*";,!"/&-3"%!0&"3#&*3#7,!#7&!'&!?#&A'$;3#?#%0,9#&D%*'$#&"%7&EF;#%7,!+3#& !"!#$#%!@& !?#4&
"3#&3#9#30#7&'+!&'(&!?#&2#%#3"/&5+%7&J"/"%*#&,%&!?#&I'9#$#%!&,%&:#0#39#0& !"!#$#%!G&&>?#3#&!?#&
-3"%!&?"0&4#!&!'&8#&+0#7&!'&(,%"%*#&*";,!"/&#F;#%7,!+3#@&,!&,0&;'0!#7&!'&!?#&A";,!"/&23"%!0&P%";;/,#7&
)**'+%!G&&>?#3#&,!&?"0&8##%&";;/,#7@&,!&,0&;'0!#7&!'&!?#&A";,!"/&)7Q+0!$#%!&)**'+%!G&&)$'+%!0&,%&!?#&
A";,!"/& 23"%!0& P%";;/,#7& )**'+%!& "3#& !3"%0(#33#7& !'& !?#& A";,!"/& )7Q+0!$#%!& )**'+%!& '%*#& !?#4&
?"9#&8##%&";;/,#7G&

12 Intangible Assets

EF;#%7,!+3#&'%&%'%O$'%#!"34&"00#!0&!?"!&7'&%'!&?"9#&;?40,*"/&0+80!"%*#&8+!&"3#&*'%!3'//#7&84&!?#&
A'+%*,/& "0& "& 3#0+/!& '(& ;"0!& #9#%!0& K#G-G& 0'(!B"3#& /,*#%*#M& ,0& *";,!"/,0#7& B?#%& ,!& ,0& #F;#*!#7& !?"!&
(+!+3#&#*'%'$,*&8#%#(,!0&'3&0#39,*#&;'!#%!,"/&B,//&(/'B&(3'$&!?#&,%!"%-,8/#&"00#!&!'&!?#&A'+%*,/G&

D%!#3%"//4&-#%#3"!#7&"00#!0&"3#&*";,!"/,0#7&B?#3#& ,!& ,0&7#$'%0!3"8/#& !?"!& !?#&;3'Q#*!& ,0& !#*?%,*"//4&
(#"0,8/#&"%7&,0&,%!#%7#7&!'&8#&*'$;/#!#7&KB,!?&"7#H+"!#&3#0'+3*#0&8#,%-&"9",/"8/#M&"%7&!?#&A'+%*,/&
B,//&8#&"8/#&!'&-#%#3"!#&(+!+3#&#*'%'$,*&8#%#(,!0&'3&7#/,9#3&0#39,*#&;'!#%!,"/&84&8#,%-&"8/#&!'&0#//&'3&
+0#& !?#&"00#!G& &EF;#%7,!+3#& ,0&*";,!"/,0#7&B?#3#& ,!&*"%&8#&$#"0+3#7&3#/,"8/4&"0&"!!3,8+!"8/#&!'&!?#&
"00#!& "%7& 3#0!3,*!#7& !'& !?"!& ,%*+33#7& 7+3,%-& !?#& 7#9#/';$#%!& ;?"0#& K3#0#"3*?& #F;#%7,!+3#& ,0& %'!&
*";,!"/,0#7M@&

EF;#%7,!+3#&'%& !?#&7#9#/';$#%!&'(&B#80,!#0& ,0&%'!&*";,!"/,0#7& ,(& !?#&B#80,!#& ,0&0'/#/4&'3&;3,$"3,/4&
,%!#%7#7&!'&;3'$'!#&'3&"79#3!,0#&!?#&A'+%*,/R0&-''70&'3&0#39,*#0G&

D%!"%-,8/#&"00#!0&"3#&$#"0+3#7&,%,!,"//4&"!&*'0!G&&)$'+%!0&"3#&'%/4&3#9"/+#7&B?#3#&!?#&(",3&9"/+#&'(&
!?#& "00#!0& ?#/7& 84& !?#& A'+%*,/& *"%& 8#&7#! #3$,%#7& 84& 3#(#3#%*#& !'& "%&"* !,9#& $"3S#!G& & 6?#&
7#;3#*,"8/#& "$'+%!& '(& "%& ,%!"%-,8/#& "00#!& ,0& "$'3!,0#7& '9#3& ,!0& +0#(+/& /,(#& !'& !?#& 3#/#9"%!& 0#39,*#&
/,%#K0M&,%&!?#&A'$;3#?#%0,9#&D%*'$#&"%7&EF;#%7,!+3#& !"!#$#%!G&&)%&"00#!&,0&!#0!#7&('3&,$;",3$#%!&
B?#%#9#3& !?#3#& ,0& "%&, %7,*"!,'%& !?"!& !?#& "00#!& $,-?!& 8#&, $;",3#7& T& "%4& /'00#0& 3#*'-%,0#7& "3#&

Page 217



 !"!#$#%!&'(&)**'+%!,%-&.'/,*,#0&1&&
2/'00"34&'(&5,%"%*,"/&6#3$0&"%7&)883#9,"!,'%0&

&
&

&&&&&&&&&&&&& &
& :;& &&&&&&&)%%+"/&<#='3!&"%7& !"!#$#%!&'(&)**'+%!0&
&&&&&&&&&&&&&& &&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&

='0!#7& !'& !>#& 3#/#9"%!& 0#39,*#& /,%#?0@& ,%& !>#& A'$=3#>#%0,9#& B%*'$#& "%7& CD=#%7,!+3#&  !"!#$#%!E&&
)%4& -",%& '3& /'00& "3,0,%-& '%& !>#& 7,0='0"/& '3& "8"%7'%$#%!& '(& "%&, %!"%-,8/#& "00#!& ,0& ='0!#7& !'& !>#&
F!>#3&F=#3"!,%-&CD=#%7,!+3#&/,%#&,%&!>#&A'$=3#>#%0,9#&B%*'$#&"%7&CD=#%7,!+3#& !"!#$#%!E&

G>#3#& #D=#%7,!+3#& '%& ,%!"%-,8/#& "00#!0& H+"/,(,#0& "0& *"=,!"/& #D=#%7,!+3#& ('3& 0!"!+!'34& =+3='0#0I&
"$'3!,0"!,'%I&,$=",3$#%!&/'00#0&"%7&7,0='0"/&-",%0&"%7&/'00#0&"3#&%'!&=#3$,!!#7&!'&>"9#&"%&,$="*!&
'%& !>#&2#%#3"/& 5+%7&J"/"%*#E& & 6>#& -",%0& "%7& /'00#0& "3#& !>#3#('3#& 3#9#30#7& '+!& '(& !>#&2#%#3"/&
5+%7& J"/"%*#& ,%& !>#& K'9#$#%!& ,%& <#0#39#0&  !"!#$#%!& "%7& ='0!#7& !'& !>#& A"=,!"/& )7L+0!$#%!&
)**'+%!&"%7&?('3&"%4&0"/#&=3'*##70&-3#"!#3&!>"%&MN;I;;;@&!>#&A"=,!"/&<#*#,=!0&<#0#39#E&

13 Inventories

B%9#%!'3,#0&"3#& ,%*/+7#7& ,%& !>#&J"/"%*#& >##!&"!& !>#& /'O#3&'(& *'0!&"%7&%#!& 3#"/,0"8/#&9"/+#E& &6>#&
*'0!&'(&,%9#%!'3,#0&,0&"00,-%#7&+0,%-&!>#&(,30!P,%&(,30!P'+!&?5B5F@&*'0!,%-&('3$+/"E&

14 Investment Properties

B%9#0!$#%!&=3'=#3!,#0&"3#&!>'0#&!>"!&"3#&+0#7&0'/#/4&!'&#"3%&3#%!"/0&"%7Q'3&('3&*"=,!"/&"==3#*,"!,'%E&&
6>#&7#(,%,!,'%& ,0&%'!&$#!& ,(& !>#&=3'=#3!4& ,0&+0#7& ,%&"%4&O"4& !'& ("*,/,!"!#& !>#&7#/,9#34&'(&0#39,*#0&'3&
=3'7+*!,'%&'(&-''70&'3&,0&>#/7&('3&0"/#E&

B%9#0!$#%!&=3'=#3!,#0&"3#&$#"0+3#7&,%,!,"//4&"!&"&*'0!&"%7&0+80#H+#%!/4&"!&(",3&9"/+#I&8"0#7&'%&!>#&
"$'+%!& "!& O>,*>& !>#& "00#!& *'+/7& 8#& #D*>"%-#7& 8#!O##%& R%'O/#7-#"8/#& ="3!,#0& "!& "3$S0& /#%-!>E&&
.3'=#3!,#0&"3#&%'!&7#=3#*,"!#7I&8+!&"00#!0&,%*/+7#7&,%&!>#&J"/"%*#& >##!&"!&(",3&9"/+#&"3#&3#9"/+#7&
0+((,*,#%!/4& 3#-+/"3/4& !'& #%0+3#& !>"!& !>#,3& *"334,%-& "$'+%!& ,0& %'!&$"!#3,"//4& 7,((#3#%!& (3'$& !>#,3& (",3&
9"/+#& "!& !>#& 4#"3P#%7I& 8+!& "0& "&$,%,$+$&#9#34& (,9#& 4#"30E& &2",%0& "%7&/ '00#0& '%& 3#9"/+"!,'%& "3#&
='0!#7&!'&!>#&5,%"%*,%-&"%7&B%9#0!$#%!&B%*'$#&"%7&CD=#%7,!+3#&/,%#&,%&!>#&A'$=3#>#%0,9#&B%*'$#&
"%7&CD=#%7,!+3#& !"!#$#%!E&&6>#&0"$#&!3#"!$#%!&,0&"==/,#7&!'&-",%0&"%7&/'00#0&'%&7,0='0"/E&

<#%!"/0&3#*#,9#7& ,%&3#/"!,'%& !'& ,%9#0!$#%!&=3'=#3!,#0&"3#&*3#7,!#7&!'& !>#&5,%"%*,%-&"%7&B%9#0!$#%!&
B%*'$#&/,%#&"%7&3#0+/!&,%&"&-",%&('3&!>#&2#%#3"/&5+%7&J"/"%*#E&

T'O#9#3I&3#9"/+"!,'%&"%7&7,0='0"/&-",%0&"%7&/'00#0&"3#&%'!&=#3$,!!#7&84&0!"!+!'34&"33"%-#$#%!0&!'&
>"9#&"%& ,$="*!&'%& !>#&J"/"%*#E& &6>#&-",%0&"%7& /'00#0&"3#& !>#3#('3#&3#9#30#7&'+!&'(& !>#&2#%#3"/&
5+%7& J"/"%*#& ,%& !>#& K'9#$#%!& ,%& <#0#39#0&  !"!#$#%!& "%7& ='0!#7& !'& !>#& A"=,!"/& )7L+0!$#%!&
)**'+%!&"%7&?('3&"%4&0"/#&=3'*##70&-3#"!#3&!>"%&MN;I;;;@&!>#&A"=,!"/&<#*#,=!0&<#0#39#E&

15 Leases

U#"0#0&"3#&*/"00,(,#7&"0& (,%"%*#& /#"0#0&O>#3#& !>#& !#3$0&'(& !>#& /#"0#& !3"%0(#3&0+80!"%!,"//4&"//& !>#&
3,0R0&"%7&3#O"370&,%*,7#%!"/&!'&'O%#30>,=&'(&!>#&=3'=#3!4I&=/"%!&'3&#H+,=$#%!&(3'$&!>#&/#00'3&!'&!>#&
/#00##& "%7& !>#& (",3& 9"/+#& '(& !>#& =3'=#3!4I& =/"%!& '3& #H+,=$#%!& "!& /#"0#& ,%*#=!,'%& ,0& "8'9#& !>#&
A'+%*,/S0&7#P$,%,$,0&/#9#/0&'(&MVI;;;&('3&9#>,*/#0&"%7&MNWI;;;&('3&'!>#3&,!#$0E&&)//&'!>#3&/#"0#0&"3#&
*/"00,(,#7&"0&'=#3"!,%-&/#"0#0E&

G>#3#& "& /#"0#& *'9#30& 8'!>& /"%7& "%7& 8+,/7,%-0I& !>#& /"%7& "%7& 8+,/7,%-0& #/#$#%!0& "3#& *'%0,7#3#7&
0#="3"!#/4&('3&*/"00,(,*"!,'%E&

&

&

Page 218



 !"!#$#%!&'(&)**'+%!,%-&.'/,*,#0&1&&
2/'00"34&'(&5,%"%*,"/&6#3$0&"%7&)883#9,"!,'%0&

&
&

&
& )%%+"/&:#;'3!&"%7& !"!#$#%!&'(&)**'+%!0& <=&
&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&

)33"%-#$#%!0& !>"!& 7'&%'!& >"9#& !>#& /#-"/& 0!"!+0& '(& "& /#"0#& 8+!& *'%9#4& "&3 ,->!& !'& +0#& "%& "00#!& ,%&
3#!+3%& ('3& ;"4$#%!& "3#& "**'+%!#7& ('3& +%7#3& !>,0& ;'/,*4& ?>#3#& (+/(,/$#%!& '(& !>#& "33"%-#$#%!& ,0&
7#;#%7#%!&'%&!>#&+0#&'(&0;#*,(,*&"00#!0@&

6>#&A'+%*,/&"0&B#00##&

Finance Leases

.3';#3!4C&;/"%!&"%7&#D+,;$#%!&>#/7&+%7#3&(,%"%*#&/#"0#0&,0&3#*'-%,0#7&'%&!>#&E"/"%*#& >##!&"!&!>#&
*'$$#%*#$#%!&'(&!>#&/#"0#&"!&,!0&(",3&9"/+#&$#"0+3#7&"!&!>#&/#"0#F0&,%*#;!,'%&G'3&!>#&;3#0#%!&9"/+#&
'(& !>#&$,%,$+$& /#"0#&;"4$#%!0C& ,(& /'?#3H@& &6>#&"00#!& 3#*'-%,0#7& ,0&$"!*>#7&84&"&/ ,"8,/,!4& ('3& !>#&
'8/,-"!,'%&!'&;"4&!>#&/#00'3@&&I%,!,"/&7,3#*!&*'0!0&'(&!>#&A'+%*,/&"3#&"77#7&!'&!>#&*"334,%-&"$'+%!&'(&
!>#& "00#!@& & .3#$,+$0& ;",7& '%&#%! 34& ,%!'& "&/ #"0#& "3#& ";;/,#7& !'& ?3,!,%-& 7'?%& !>#& /#"0#& /,"8,/,!4@&&
A'%!,%-#%!&3#%!0&"3#&*>"3-#7&"0&#J;#%0#0&,%&!>#&4#"30&,%&?>,*>&!>#4&"3#&,%*+33#7@&

B#"0#&;"4$#%!0&"3#&";;'3!,'%#7&8#!?##%K&

 & )&*>"3-#&('3&!>#&"*D+,0,!,'%&'(&!>#&,%!#3#0!&,%&!>#&;3';#3!4C&;/"%!&'3&#D+,;$#%!&L&";;/,#7&!'&?3,!#&
7'?%&!>#&/#"0#&/,"8,/,!4C&"%7&

 & )&(,%"%*#&*>"3-#&G7#8,!#7&!'&!>#&5,%"%*,%-&"%7&I%9#0!$#%!&I%*'$#&"%7&MJ;#%7,!+3#&/,%#&,%&!>#&
A'$;3#>#%0,9#&I%*'$#&"%7&MJ;#%7,!+3#& !"!#$#%!H&

.3';#3!4C&./"%!&"%7&MD+,;$#%!&3#*'-%,0#7&+%7#3&(,%"%*#&/#"0#0&,0&"**'+%!#7&('3&+0,%-&!>#&;'/,*,#0&
";;/,#7&-#%#3"//4&!'&0+*>&"00#!0C&0+8N#*!&!'&7#;3#*,"!,'%&8#,%-&*>"3-#7&'9#3&!>#&/#"0#&!#3$&,(&!>,0&,0&
0>'3!#3&!>"%&!>#&"00#!F0&#0!,$"!#7&+0#(+/&/,(#@&

6>#&A'+%*,/&,0&%'!&3#D+,3#7&!'&3",0#&*'+%*,/&!"J&!'&*'9#3&7#;3#*,"!,'%&'3&3#9"/+"!,'%&"%7&,$;",3$#%!&
/'00#0&"3,0,%-&'%&/#"0#7&"00#!0@&&I%0!#"7C&"&;3+7#%!&"%%+"/&;3'9,0,'%&,0&$"7#&(3'$&3#9#%+#&!'?"370&
!>#& 7##$#7& *";,!"/& ,%9#0!$#%!& ,%& "**'37"%*#& ?,!>& 0!"!+!'34& 3#D+,3#$#%!0@& & O#;3#*,"!,'%& "%7&
3#9"/+"!,'%&"%7&,$;",3$#%!&/'00#0&"3#&!>#3#('3#&3#;/"*#7&84&3#9#%+#&;3'9,0,'%&,%&!>#&2#%#3"/&5+%7&
E"/"%*#C&84&?"4&'(&"%&"7N+0!,%-&!3"%0"*!,'%&?,!>&!>#&A";,!"/&)7N+0!$#%!&)**'+%!&,%&!>#&P'9#$#%!&,%&
:#0#39#0& !"!#$#%!&('3&!>#&7,((#3#%*#&8#!?##%&!>#&!?'@&

Operating Leases

:#%!"/0&;",7&+%7#3&';#3"!,%-& /#"0#0&"3#&*>"3-#7& !'& !>#&A'$;3#>#%0,9#& I%*'$#&"%7&MJ;#%7,!+3#&
 !"!#$#%!& "0& "%& #J;#%0#& '(& !>#& 0#39,*#0& 8#%#(,!,%-& (3'$& +0#& '(& !>#& /#"0#7& ;3';#3!4C& ;/"%!& '3&
#D+,;$#%!@&&A>"3-#0&"3#&$"7#&'%&"&0!3",->!Q/,%#&8"0,0&'9#3&!>#& /,(#&'(&!>#& /#"0#C&#9#%&,(&!>,0&7'#0&
%'!&$"!*>& !>#& ;"!!#3%& '(& ;"4$#%!0& G#@-@& !>#3#& ,0& "& 3#%!Q(3##& ;#3,'7& "!& !>#& *'$$#%*#$#%!& '(& !>#&
/#"0#H@&

6>#&A'+%*,/&"0&B#00'3&

Finance Leases

R>#3#& !>#&A'+%*,/& -3"%!0& "& (,%"%*#& /#"0#& '9#3& "&;3 ';#3!4& '3& "%& ,!#$& '(& ;/"%!& '3& #D+,;$#%!C& !>#&
3#/#9"%!& "00#!& ,0& ?3,!!#%& '+!& '(& !>#& E"/"%*#&  >##!& "0& "& 7,0;'0"/@& & )!& !>#& *'$$#%*#$#%!& '(& !>#&
/#"0#C& !>#& *"334,%-& "$'+%!& '(& !>#& "00#!& ,%& !>#& E"/"%*#&  >##!& G?>#!>#3& .3';#3!4C& ./"%!& "%7&
MD+,;$#%!& '3& )00#!0& S#/7& ('3&  "/#H& ,0& ?3,!!#%& '((& !'& !>#&T!>#3&T;#3"!,%-& MJ;#%7,!+3#& /,%#& ,%& !>#&
A'$;3#>#%0,9#&I%*'$#&"%7&MJ;#%7,!+3#& !"!#$#%!&"0&;"3!&'(&!>#&-",%&'3&/'00&'%&7,0;'0"/@&&)&-",%C&
3#;3#0#%!,%-& !>#& A'+%*,/F0& %#!& ,%9#0!$#%!& ,%& !>#& /#"0#C& ,0& *3#7,!#7& !'& !>#& 0"$#& /,%#& ,%& !>#&

Page 219



 !"!#$#%!&'(&)**'+%!,%-&.'/,*,#0&1&&
2/'00"34&'(&5,%"%*,"/&6#3$0&"%7&)883#9,"!,'%0&

&
&

&&&&&&&&&&&&& &
& :;& &&&&&&&)%%+"/&<#='3!&"%7& !"!#$#%!&'(&)**'+%!0&
&&&&&&&&&&&&&& &&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&

>'$=3#?#%0,9#&@%*'$#&"%7&AB=#%7,!+3#& !"!#$#%!&"/0'&"0&="3!&'(&!?#&-",%&'3&/'00&'%&7,0='0"/&C,D#D&
%#!!#7&'((&"-",%0!&!?#&*"334,%-&9"/+#&'(&!?#&"00#!&"!&!?#&!,$#&'(&7,0='0"/EF&$"!*?#7&84&"&/#"0#&"00#!&
,%&!?#&G"/"%*#& ?##!D&

H#"0#&3#%!"/0&3#*#,9"8/#&"3#&"=='3!,'%#7&8#!I##%J&

 & )& *?"3-#& ('3& !?#& "*K+,0,!,'%& '(& !?#& ,%!#3#0!& ,%& !?#& =3'=#3!4& L& "==/,#7& !'&I3,!#& 7'I%& !?#& /#"0#&
/,"8,/,!4&C!'-#!?#3&I,!?&"%4&=3#$,+$0&3#*#,9#7EF&"%7&

 & 5,%"%*#&,%*'$#&C*3#7,!#7&!'&!?#&5,%"%*,%-&"%7&@%9#0!$#%!&@%*'$#&"%7&AB=#%7,!+3#&/,%#&,%&!?#&
>'$=3#?#%0,9#&@%*'$#&"%7&AB=#%7,!+3#& !"!#$#%!E&

6?#& -",%& *3#7,!#7& !'& !?#& >'$=3#?#%0,9#& @%*'$#& "%7& AB=#%7,!+3#&  !"!#$#%!& '%& 7,0='0"/& ,0& %'!&
=#3$,!!#7&84&0!"!+!#&!'&,%*3#"0#&!?#&2#%#3"/&5+%7&G"/"%*#&"%7&I,//&8#&3#K+,3#7&!'&8#&!3#"!#7&"0&"&
*"=,!"/& 3#*#,=!D& & M?#3#& "& =3#$,+$& ?"0& 8##%& 3#*#,9#7F& !?,0& ,0& ='0!#7& '+!& '(& !?#& 2#%#3"/& 5+%7&
G"/"%*#& !'& !?#& >"=,!"/& <#*#,=!0& <#0#39#& ,%& !?#& N'9#$#%!& ,%& <#0#39#0&  !"!#$#%!D& & M?#3#& !?#&
"$'+%!&7+#&,%&3#/"!,'%&!'&!?#&/#"0#&"00#!&,0&!'&8#&0#!!/#7&84&!?#&="4$#%!&'(&3#%!"/0&,%&(+!+3#&(,%"%*,"/&
4#"30F&!?,0&,0&='0!#7&'+!&'(&!?#&2#%#3"/&5+%7&G"/"%*#&!'&!?#&O#(#33#7&>"=,!"/&<#*#,=!0&<#0#39#&,%&
!?#&N'9#$#%!&,%&<#0#39#0& !"!#$#%!D&&M?#%&!?#&(+!+3#&3#%!"/0&"3#&=",7F&!?#&#/#$#%!&('3&!?#&*?"3-#&
('3&!?#&"*K+,0,!,'%&'(&!?#&,%!#3#0!&,%&!?#&=3'=#3!4&,0&+0#7&!'&I3,!#&7'I%&!?#&/#"0#&"00#!D&&)!&!?,0&=',%!F&
!?#&7#(#33#7&*"=,!"/&3#*#,=!0&"3#&!3"%0(#33#7&!'&!?#&>"=,!"/&<#*#,=!0&<#0#39#D&

6?#&I3,!!#%P'((& 9"/+#& '(& 7,0='0"/0& ,0& %'!& "&* ?"3-#& "-",%0!& *'+%*,/& !"BF& "0& !?#& *'0!& '(& %'%P*+33#%!&
"00#!0& ,0& (+//4& =3'9,7#7& ('3& +%7#3& 0#="3"!#& "33"%-#$#%!0& ('3& *"=,!"/& (,%"%*,%-D& &) $'+%!0& "3#&
"==3'=3,"!#7&!'&!?#&>"=,!"/&)7Q+0!$#%!&)**'+%!&(3'$&!?#&2#%#3"/&5+%7&G"/"%*#&,%&!?#&N'9#$#%!&,%&
<#0#39#0& !"!#$#%!D&

Operating Leases

M?#3#&!?#&>'+%*,/&-3"%!0&"%&'=#3"!,%-&/#"0#&'9#3&"&=3'=#3!4&'3&"%&,!#$&'(&=/"%!&'3&#K+,=$#%!F&!?#&
"00#!& ,0& 3#!",%#7& ,%& !?#& G"/"%*#&  ?##!D& & <#%!"/& ,%*'$#& ,0& *3#7,!#7& !'& !?#& R!?#3& R=#3"!,%-&
AB=#%7,!+3#&/,%#&,%&!?#&>'$=3#?#%0,9#&@%*'$#&"%7&AB=#%7,!+3#& !"!#$#%!D&&>3#7,!0&"3#&$"7#&'%&"&
0!3",-?!P/,%#&8"0,0&'9#3&!?#&/,(#&'(&!?#&/#"0#F&#9#%&,(&!?,0&7'#0&%'!&$"!*?&!?#&="!!#3%&'(&="4$#%!0&C#D-D&
!?#3#& ,0& "& =3#$,+$& =",7& "!& !?#& *'$$#%*#$#%!& '(& !?#& /#"0#ED& & @%,!,"/& 7,3#*!& *'0!0& ,%*+33#7& ,%&
%#-'!,"!,%-& "%7& "33"%-,%-& !?#& /#"0#& "3#& "77#7& !'& !?#& *"334,%-& "$'+%!& '(& !?#& 3#/#9"%!& "00#!& "%7&
*?"3-#7&"0&"%&#B=#%0#&'9#3&!?#&/#"0#&!#3$&'%&!?#&0"$#&8"0,0&"0&3#%!"/&,%*'$#D&

16 Overheads and Support Services

6?#&*'0!0&'(&'9#3?#"70&"%7&0+=='3!&0#39,*#0&"3#&*?"3-#7&!'&!?'0#&!?"!&8#%#(,!&(3'$&!?#&0+==/4&'3&
0#39,*#&,%&"**'37"%*#&I,!?&!?#&*'0!,%-&=3,%*,=/#0&'(&!?#&>@.5)&Service Reporting Code of Practice 
2012/13 C A<>R.ED&&6?#&!'!"/&"80'3=!,'%&*'0!,%-&=3,%*,=/#&,0&+0#7&L&!?#&(+//&*'0!&'(&'9#3?#"70&"%7&
0+=='3!&0#39,*#0&"3#&0?"3#7&8#!I##%&+0#30&,%&=3'='3!,'%&!'&!?#&8#%#(,!0&3#*#,9#7F&I,!?&!?#&#B*#=!,'%&
'(J&

 & >'3='3"!#&"%7&O#$'*3"!,*&>'3#&L& *'0!0& 3#/"!,%-& !'& !?#&>'+%*,/S0& 0!"!+0&"0&"&$+/!,P(+%*!,'%"/F&
7#$'*3"!,*&'3-"%,0"!,'%D&

 & T'%&O,0!3,8+!#7&>'0!0&L&!?#&*'0!&'(&7,0*3#!,'%"34&8#%#(,!0&"I"37#7&!'&#$=/'4##0&3#!,3,%-&#"3/4&
"%7&"%4&7#=3#*,"!,'%&"%7& ,$=",3$#%!& /'00#0& *?"3-#"8/#&'%& 0+3=/+0&"00#!0& ,%&.3'=#3!4F&./"%!&
"%7&AK+,=$#%!D&

Page 220



 !"!#$#%!&'(&)**'+%!,%-&.'/,*,#0&1&&
2/'00"34&'(&5,%"%*,"/&6#3$0&"%7&)883#9,"!,'%0&

&
&

&
& )%%+"/&:#;'3!&"%7& !"!#$#%!&'(&)**'+%!0& <=&
&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&

6>#0#&!?'&*'0!&*"!#-'3,#0&"3#&7#(,%#7&,%& @:AB.&"%7&"**'+%!#7&('3&"0&0#;"3"!#&>#"7,%-0&,%&!>#&
A'$;3#>#%0,9#& C%*'$#& "%7& @D;#%7,!+3#&  !"!#$#%!E& "0& ;"3!& '(& F#!& @D;#%7,!+3#& '%& A'%!,%+,%-&
 #39,*#0G&

17 Property, Plant and Equipment

)00#!0&!>"!&>"9#&;>40,*"/&0+80!"%*#&"%7&"3#&>#/7& ('3&+0#& ,%& !>#&;3'7+*!,'%&'3&0+;;/4&'(&-''70&'3&
0#39,*#0E&('3&3#%!"/&!'&'!>#30&'3&('3&"7$,%,0!3"!,9#&;+3;'0#0&"%7&!>"!&"3#&#D;#*!#7&!'&8#&+0#7&7+3,%-&
$'3#&!>"%&'%#&(,%"%*,"/&4#"3&"3#&*/"00,(,#7&"0&.3';#3!4E&./"%!&"%7&@H+,;$#%!G&

:#*'-%,!,'%&

@D;#%7,!+3#& '%& !>#& "*H+,0,!,'%E& *3#"!,'%& '3& #%>"%*#$#%!& '(& .3';#3!4E& ./"%!& "%7& @H+,;$#%!& ,0&
*";,!"/,0#7&'%&"% &"**3+"/0&8"0,0E& ;3'9,7#7& !>"!& ,!& ,0& ;3'8"8/#& !>"!& !>#& (+!+3#&#*'%'$,*&8#%#(,!0&'3&
0#39,*#&;'!#%!,"/&"00'*,"!#7&?,!>& !>#& ,!#$&?,//& (/'?& !'& !>#&A'+%*,/&"%7& !>#&*'0!&'(& !>#& ,!#$&*"%&8#&
$#"0+3#7& 3#/,"8/4G& &@D;#%7,!+3#& !>"!&$",%!",%0&8+!&7'#0&%'!&"77& !'&"%&"00#!I0&;'!#%!,"/& !'&7#/,9#3&
(+!+3#& #*'%'$,*& 8#%#(,!0& '3& 0#39,*#& ;'!#%!,"/& J,G#G& 3#;",30& "%7& $",%!#%"%*#K& ,0& *>"3-#7& "0& "%&
#D;#%0#&?>#%&,!&,0&,%*+33#7G&

)&7#L$,%,$,0&/#9#/&'(&MNEOOO&>"0&8##%&"7';!#7&('3&9#>,*/#0&"%7&MPQEOOO&('3&"//&'!>#3&,!#$0G&&)00#!0&
!>"!&*'0!&/#00&!>"%&!>#0#&/,$,!0&"3#&*/"00,(,#7&"0&3#9#%+#E&3"!>#3&!>"%&*";,!"/&#D;#%7,!+3#G&

R#"0+3#$#%!&

)00#!0&"3#&,%,!,"//4&$#"0+3#7&"!&*'0!E&*'$;3,0,%-S&

 & 6>#&;+3*>"0#&;3,*#&

 & )%4&*'0!0&"!!3,8+!"8/#&!'&83,%-,%-&!>#&"00#!&!'&!>#&/'*"!,'%&"%7&*'%7,!,'%&%#*#00"34&('3&,!&!'&8#&
*";"8/#&'(&';#3"!,%-&,%&!>#&$"%%#3&,%!#%7#7&84&$"%"-#$#%!&

 & 6>#&,%,!,"/&#0!,$"!#&'(&!>#&*'0!0&'(&7,0$"%!/,%-&"%7&3#$'9,%-&!>#&,!#$&"%7&3#0!'3,%-&!>#&0,!#&'%&
?>,*>&,!&,0&/'*"!#7&

6>#& *'0!& '(& "00#!0& "*H+,3#7& '!>#3& !>"%& 84& ;+3*>"0#& ,0& 7##$#7& !'& 8#& ,!0& (",3& 9"/+#E& +%/#00& !>#&
"*H+,0,!,'%& ?,//& %'!& ,%*3#"0#& !>#& *"0>& (/'?0& '(& !>#& A'+%*,/G& & C%& !>#& /"!!#3& *"0#E& !>#& *'0!& '(& !>#&
"*H+,0,!,'%&,0&!>#&*"334,%-&"$'+%!&'(&!>#&"00#!&-,9#%&+;&84&!>#&A'+%*,/G&

T'%"!#7& "00#!0& "3#& $#"0+3#7& ,%,!,"//4& "!& (",3& 9"/+#G& & 6>#& 7,((#3#%*#& 8#!?##%& (",3& 9"/+#& "%7& "%4&
*'%0,7#3"!,'%& ;",7& ,0& *3#7,!#7& !'& !>#& 6"D"!,'%& "%7& F'%L ;#*,(,*& 23"%!& C%*'$#& /,%#& '(& !>#&
A'$;3#>#%0,9#& C%*'$#& "%7&@ D;#%7,!+3#&  !"!#$#%!E& +%/#00& !>#& 7'%"!,'%& >"0& 8##%& $"7#&
*'%7,!,'%"//4G&&U%!,/&*'%7,!,'%0&"3#&0"!,0(,#7E&!>#&-",%&,0&>#/7&,%&!>#&T'%"!#7&)00#!0&)**'+%!G&&V>#3#&
-",%0&"3#&*3#7,!#7&!'&!>#&A'$;3#>#%0,9#&C%*'$#&"%7&@D;#%7,!+3#& !"!#$#%!E&!>#4&"3#&3#9#30#7&'+!&
'(& !>#& 2#%#3"/& 5+%7&W "/"%*#& !'& !>#& A";,!"/& )7X+0!$#%!& )**'+%!& ,%& !>#& R'9#$#%!& ,%& :#0#39#0&
 !"!#$#%!G&

)00#!0&"3#&!>#%&*"33,#7&,%&!>#&W"/"%*#& >##!&+0,%-&!>#&('//'?,%-&$#"0+3#$#%!&8"0#0S&

 & C%(3"0!3+*!+3#E&*'$$+%,!4&"00#!0&"%7&"00#!0&+%7#3&*'%0!3+*!,'%&Y&7#;3#*,"!#7&>,0!'3,*"/&*'0!&

 & T?#//,%-0& Y& (",3& 9"/+#E& 7#!#3$,%#7& +0,%-& !>#& 8"0,0& '(& #D,0!,%-& +0#& 9"/+#& ('3& 0'*,"/& >'+0,%-&
J@UZL [K&

Page 221



 !"!#$#%!&'(&)**'+%!,%-&.'/,*,#0&1&&
2/'00"34&'(&5,%"%*,"/&6#3$0&"%7&)883#9,"!,'%0&

&
&

&&&&&&&&&&&&& &
& :;& &&&&&&&)%%+"/&<#='3!&"%7& !"!#$#%!&'(&)**'+%!0&
&&&&&&&&&&&&&& &&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&

 & )//& '!>#3& "00#!0& ?& (",3& 9"/+#@& 7#!#3$,%#7& !>#& "$'+%!& !>"!& A'+/7& 8#& =",7& ('3& !>#& "00#!& ,%& ,!0&
#B,0!,%-&+0#&C#B,0!,%-&+0#&?&DEFG&

H>#3#&!>#3#&,0&%'&$"3I#!J8"0#7&#9,7#%*#&'(&(",3&9"/+#&8#*"+0#&'(&!>#&0=#*,"/,0!&%"!+3#&'(&"%&"00#!@&
7#=3#*,"!#7&3#=/"*#$#%!&*'0!&,0&+0#7&"0&"%&#0!,$"!#&'(&(",3&9"/+#K&

)00#!0&,%*/+7#7&,%&!>#&L"/"%*#& >##!&"!&(",3&9"/+#&"3#&3#9"/+#7&0+((,*,#%!/4&3#-+/"3/4&!'&#%0+3#&!>"!&
!>#,3& *"334,%-& "$'+%!& ,0& %'!& $"!#3,"//4& 7,((#3#%!& (3'$& !>#,3& (",3& 9"/+#& "!& !>#& 4#"3J#%7@& 8+!& "0& "&
$,%,$+$& #9#34& (,9#& 4#"30K& & M%*3#"0#0& ,%& 9"/+"!,'%0& "3#& $"!*>#7& 84& *3#7,!0& !'& !>#& <#9"/+"!,'%&
<#0#39#& !'& 3#*'-%,0#& +%3#"/,0#7& -",%0K& & DB*#=!,'%"//4@& -",%0& $,->!& 8#& *3#7,!#7& !'& !>#&
N'$=3#>#%0,9#& M%*'$#& "%7& DB=#%7,!+3#&  !"!#$#%!& A>#3#& !>#4& "3,0#& (3'$& !>#& 3#9#30"/& '(& "&
3#9"/+"!,'%&'3&,$=",3$#%!&/'00&=3#9,'+0/4&*>"3-#7&!'&"&0#39,*#K&

H>#3#&7#*3#"0#0&,%&9"/+#&"3#&,7#%!,(,#7@&!>#&3#9"/+"!,'%&/'00&,0&"**'+%!#7&('3&84O&

 & H>#3#& !>#3#& ,0& "& 8"/"%*#& '(& 3#9"/+"!,'%& -",%0& ('3& !>#& "00#!& ,%& !>#&<#9"/+"!,'%&<#0#39#@& !>#&
*"334,%-& "$'+%!& '(& !>#& "00#!& ,0& A3,!!#%& 7'A%& "-",%0!& !>"!& 8"/"%*#& C+=& !'& !>#& "$'+%!& '(& !>#&
"**+$+/"!#7&-",%0G&

 & H>#3#& !>#3#& ,0& %'& 8"/"%*#& ,%& !>#& <#9"/+"!,'%& <#0#39#& '3& ,%0+((,*,#%!& 8"/"%*#@& !>#& *"334,%-&
"$'+%!&'(&!>#&"00#!& ,0&A3,!!#%&7'A%&"-",%0!&!>#&3#/#9"%!&0#39,*#& /,%#C0G& ,%&!>#&N'$=3#>#%0,9#&
M%*'$#&"%7&DB=#%7,!+3#& !"!#$#%!&

6>#&<#9"/+"!,'%&<#0#39#&*'%!",%0&3#9"/+"!,'%&-",%0&3#*'-%,0#7&0,%*#&P&)=3,/&QRRS&'%/4@&!>#&7"!#&'(&
,!0& ('3$"/& ,$=/#$#%!"!,'%K& &2",%0&"3,0,%-&8#('3#&!>"!&7"!#&>"9#&8##%&*'%0'/,7"!#7& ,%!'& !>#&N"=,!"/&
)7T+0!$#%!&)**'+%!K&

M$=",3$#%!&

)00#!0& "3#& "00#00#7& #"*>& 4#"3J#%7& "0& !'& A>#!>#3& !>#3#& ,0& "%4& ,%7,*"!,'%& !>"!& "%& "00#!&$"4& 8#&
,$=",3#7K& &H>#3#& ,%7,*"!,'%0&#B,0!& "%7&"%4&='00,8/#&7,((#3#%*#0&"3#&#0!,$"!#7& !'&8#&$"!#3,"/@& !>#&
3#*'9#3"8/#&"$'+%!&'(&!>#&"00#!&,0&#0!,$"!#7&"%7@&A>#3#&!>,0&,0&/#00&!>"%&!>#&*"334,%-&"$'+%!&'(&!>#&
"00#!@&"%&,$=",3$#%!&/'00&,0&3#*'-%,0#7&('3&!>#&0>'3!("//K&

H>#3#&,$=",3$#%!&/'00#0&"3#&,7#%!,(,#7@&!>#4&"3#&"**'+%!#7&('3&84O&

 & H>#3#& !>#3#& ,0& "& 8"/"%*#& '(& 3#9"/+"!,'%& -",%0& ('3& !>#& "00#!& ,%& !>#&<#9"/+"!,'%&<#0#39#@& !>#&
*"334,%-& "$'+%!& '(& !>#& "00#!& ,0& A3,!!#%& 7'A%& "-",%0!& !>"!& 8"/"%*#& C+=& !'& !>#& "$'+%!& '(& !>#&
"**+$+/"!#7&-",%0G&

 & H>#3#& !>#3#& ,0& %'& 8"/"%*#& ,%& !>#& <#9"/+"!,'%& <#0#39#& '3& ,%0+((,*,#%!& 8"/"%*#@& !>#& *"334,%-&
"$'+%!&'(&!>#&"00#!& ,0&A3,!!#%&7'A%&"-",%0!&!>#&3#/#9"%!&0#39,*#& /,%#C0G& ,%&!>#&N'$=3#>#%0,9#&
M%*'$#&"%7&DB=#%7,!+3#& !"!#$#%!&

H>#3#&"%&,$=",3$#%!&/'00&,0&3#9#30#7&0+80#U+#%!/4@&!>#&3#9#30"/&,0&*3#7,!#7&!'&!>#&3#/#9"%!&0#39,*#&
/,%#C0G& ,%&!>#&N'$=3#>#%0,9#&M%*'$#&"%7&DB=#%7,!+3#& !"!#$#%!@&+=&!'&!>#&"$'+%!&'(&!>#&'3,-,%"/&
/'00@&"7T+0!#7&('3&7#=3#*,"!,'%&!>"!&A'+/7&>"9#&8##%&*>"3-#7&,(&!>#&/'00&>"7&%'!&8##%&3#*'-%,0#7K&

V,0='0"/0&

H>#%& ,!& 8#*'$#0& =3'8"8/#& !>"!& !>#& *"334,%-& "$'+%!& '(& "%& "00#!& A,//& 8#& 3#*'9#3#7& =3,%*,="//4&
!>3'+->&"&0"/#&!3"%0"*!,'%&3"!>#3&!>"%&!>3'+->&,!0&*'%!,%+,%-&+0#@&,!&,0&3#*/"00,(,#7&"0&"%&)00#!&W#/7&

Page 222



 !"!#$#%!&'(&)**'+%!,%-&.'/,*,#0&1&&
2/'00"34&'(&5,%"%*,"/&6#3$0&"%7&)883#9,"!,'%0&

&
&

&
& )%%+"/&:#;'3!&"%7& !"!#$#%!&'(&)**'+%!0& <=&
&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&

('3& "/#>&&6?#&"00#!&,0&3#9"/+#7&,$$#7,"!#/4&8#('3#&3#*/"00,(,*"!,'%&"%7&!?#%&*"33,#7&"!&!?#&/'@#3&#%7&
'(&!?,0&"$'+%!&"%7&(",3&9"/+#&/#00&*'0!0&!'&0#//>&&A?#3#&!?#3#&,0&"&0+80#B+#%!&7#*3#"0#&!'&(",3&9"/+#&
/#00&*'0!0&!'&0#//C&!?#&/'00&,0&;'0!#7&!'&!?#&D!?#3&D;#3"!,%-&EF;#%7,!+3#&/,%#&,%&!?#&G'$;3#?#%0,9#&
H%*'$#&"%7&EF;#%7,!+3#& !"!#$#%!>& &2",%0& ,%& (",3& 9"/+#&"3#& 3#*'-%,0#7&'%/4&+;&!'& !?#&"$'+%!&'(&
"%4&;3#9,'+0/4&3#*'-%,0#7&/'00#0>&&I#;3#*,"!,'%&,0&%'!&*?"3-#7&'%&)00#!0&J#/7&('3& "/#>&

)00#!0&!?"!&"3#&!'&8#&"8"%7'%#7&'3&0*3";;#7&"3#&%'!&3#*/"00,(,#7&"0&)00#!0&J#/7&('3& "/#>&&J'+0,%-&
0'/7& +%7#3& !?#&:,-?!& !'&K+4& /#-,0/"!,'%& ,0& %'!& 3#*/"00,(,#7& "0&)00#!0&J#/7& ('3&  "/#& "0& ,!0& ;3,$"34&
;+3;'0#&3#$",%0&"0&"&7@#//,%-&+%!,/&!?#&;',%!&'(&7,0;'0"/&"%7&,!&,0&'%/4&*'%0,7#3#7&0,-%,(,*"%!/4&$'3#&
/,L#/4&!?"%&;3'8"8/#&!?"!&"&7,0;'0"/&@,//&"*!+"//4&'**+3&'%&!?#&7"4&'(&7,0;'0"/&,!0#/(>&

A?#%&"%&"00#!&,0&7,0;'0#7&'(&'3&7#*'$$,00,'%#7C&!?#&*"334,%-&"$'+%!&'(&!?#&"00#!&,%&!?#&K"/"%*#&
 ?##!& M@?#!?#3&.3';#3!4C&./"%!&"%7&EB+,;$#%!&'3&)00#!0&J#/7&('3& "/#N& ,0&@3,!!#%&'((& !'& !?#&D!?#3&
D;#3"!,%-&EF;#%7,!+3#& /,%#& ,%&!?#&G'$;3#?#%0,9#&H%*'$#&"%7&EF;#%7,!+3#& !"!#$#%!&"/0'&"0&;"3!&
'(&!?#&-",%&'3&/'00&'%&7,0;'0"/>&&:#*#,;!0&(3'$&7,0;'0"/0&M,(&"%4N&"3#&*3#7,!#7&!'&!?#&0"$#&/,%#&,%&!?#&
G'$;3#?#%0,9#&H%*'$#&"%7&EF;#%7,!+3#& !"!#$#%!&"/0'&"0&;"3!&'(&!?#&-",%&'3&/'00&'%&7,0;'0"/&M,>#>&
%#!!#7&'((&"-",%0!& !?#& *"334,%-& 9"/+#&'(& !?#&"00#!& "!& !?#& !,$#&'(& 7,0;'0"/N>& &)%4& 3#9"/+"!,'%&-",%0&
"**+$+/"!#7& ('3& !?#& "00#!& ,%& !?#& :#9"/+"!,'%& :#0#39#& "3#& !3"%0(#33#7& !'& !?#& G";,!"/& )7O+0!$#%!&
)**'+%!>&

)$'+%!0& 3#*#,9#7& ('3& "& 7,0;'0"/& ,%& #F*#00& '(& PQRCRRR& "3#& *"!#-'3,0#7& "0& *";,!"/& 3#*#,;!0>& & )&
;3';'3!,'%&'(&3#*#,;!0&3#/"!,%-&!'&?'+0,%-&7,0;'0"/0&,0&;"4"8/#&!'&!?#&2'9#3%$#%!>&&6?#&8"/"%*#&'(&
3#*#,;!0& ,0&3#B+,3#7&!'&8#&*3#7,!#7&!'&!?#&G";,!"/&:#*#,;!0&:#0#39#C&"%7&*"%&!?#%&'%/4&8#&+0#7&('3&
%#@&*";,!"/& ,%9#0!$#%!&'3&0#!&"0,7#&!'&3#7+*#&!?#&G'+%*,/S0&+%7#3/4,%-&%##7&!'&8'33'@&M!?#&*";,!"/&
(,%"%*,%-&3#B+,3#$#%!N>&&:#*#,;!0&"3#&";;3';3,"!#7&!'&!?#&:#0#39#&(3'$&!?#&2#%#3"/&5+%7&K"/"%*#&
,%&!?#&T'9#$#%!&,%&:#0#39#0& !"!#$#%!>&

6?#&@3,!!#%U'((& 9"/+#& '(& 7,0;'0"/0& ,0& %'!& "&* ?"3-#& "-",%0!& *'+%*,/& !"FC& "0& !?#& *'0!& '(& %'%U*+33#%!&
"00#!0& ,0& (+//4& ;3'9,7#7& ('3& +%7#3& 0#;"3"!#& "33"%-#$#%!0& ('3& *";,!"/& (,%"%*,%->& &) $'+%!0& "3#&
";;3';3,"!#7&!'&!?#&G";,!"/&)7O+0!$#%!&)**'+%!&(3'$&!?#&2#%#3"/&5+%7&K"/"%*#&,%&!?#&T'9#$#%!&,%&
:#0#39#0& !"!#$#%!>&

I#;3#*,"!,'%&

I#;3#*,"!,'%& ,0& ;3'9,7#7& ('3& '%& "//& .3';#3!4C& ./"%!& "%7& EB+,;$#%!& "00#!0& 84& !?#& 040!#$"!,*&
"//'*"!,'%& '(& !?#,3& 7#;3#*,"8/#& "$'+%!0& '9#3& !?#,3& +0#(+/& /,9#0>& &) %& #F*#;!,'%& ,0&$"7#& ('3& "00#!0&
@,!?'+!&"&7#!#3$,%"8/#&(,%,!#&+0#(+/&/,(#&M,>#>&(3##?'/7&/"%7&"%7&*#3!",%&G'$$+%,!4&)00#!0N&"%7&"00#!0&
!?"!&"3#&%'!&4#!&"9",/"8/#&('3&+0#&M,>#>&"00#!0&+%7#3&*'%0!3+*!,'%N>&

I#;3#*,"!,'%&,0&*"/*+/"!#7&'%&!?#&('//'@,%-&8"0#0V&

 & I@#//,%-0& "%7&' !?#3& 8+,/7,%-0& W& 0!3",-?!U/,%#& "//'*"!,'%& '9#3& !?#& +0#(+/& /,(#& '(& !?#& ;3';#3!4& "0&
#0!,$"!#7&84&!?#&9"/+#3&

 & X#?,*/#0C& ;/"%!& "%7& #B+,;$#%!& W& "& ;#3*#%!"-#& '(& !?#& 9"/+#& '(& #"*?& */"00& '(& "00#!0& ,%& !?#&
K"/"%*#& ?##!C&"0&"79,0#7&84&"&0+,!"8/4&B+"/,(,#7&'((,*#3&&

 & H%(3"0!3+*!+3#& W& "& ;#3*#%!"-#& '(& !?#& 9"/+#& '(& #"*?& */"00& '(& "00#!0& ,%& !?#& K"/"%*#&  ?##!C& "0&
"79,0#7&84&"&0+,!"8/4&B+"/,(,#7&'((,*#3&

A?#3#& "%& ,!#$& '(& .3';#3!4C& ./"%!& "%7& EB+,;$#%!& "00#!& ?"0& $"O'3& *'$;'%#%!0& @?'0#& *'0!& ,0&
0,-%,(,*"%!&,%&3#/"!,'%&!'&!?#&!'!"/&*'0!&'(&!?#&,!#$C&!?#&*'$;'%#%!0&"3#&7#;3#*,"!#7&0#;"3"!#/4>&

Page 223



 !"!#$#%!&'(&)**'+%!,%-&.'/,*,#0&1&&
2/'00"34&'(&5,%"%*,"/&6#3$0&"%7&)883#9,"!,'%0&

&
&

&&&&&&&&&&&&& &
& :;& &&&&&&&)%%+"/&<#='3!&"%7& !"!#$#%!&'(&)**'+%!0&
&&&&&&&&&&&&&& &&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&

<#9"/+"!,'%& -",%0& "3#& "/0'& 7#=3#*,"!#7>&?,!@& "%&"$'+%!& #A+"/& !'& !@#& 7,((#3#%*#& 8#!?##%& *+33#%!&
9"/+#&7#=3#*,"!,'%&*@"3-#7&'%&"00#!0&"%7&!@#&7#=3#*,"!,'%&!@"!&?'+/7&@"9#&8##%&*@"3-#"8/#&8"0#7&
'%& !@#,3& @,0!'3,*"/& *'0!& 8#,%-& !3"%0(#33#7& #"*@& 4#"3& (3'$& !@#& <#9"/+"!,'%& <#0#39#& !'& !@#& B"=,!"/&
)7C+0!$#%!&)**'+%!D&

18 Heritage Assets

E#3,!"-#& "00#!0& "3#& "00#!0& ?,!@& @,0!'3,*"/>& "3!,0!,*>& 0*,#%!,(,*>& !#*@%'/'-,*"/>& -#'=@40,*"/& '3&
#%9,3'%$#%!"/&A+"/,!,#0&?@,*@&"3#&@#/7&"%7&$",%!",%#7&=3,%*,="//4&('3&!@#,3&*'%!3,8+!,'%&!'&F%'?/#7-#&
"%7&*+/!+3#D&&&

E#3,!"-#& "00#!0& "3#& 3#*'-%,0#7& "%7&$#"0+3#7& G,%*/+7,%-& !@#& !3#"!$#%!& '(& 3#9"/+"!,'%& -",%0& "%7&
/'00#0H& ,%& "**'37"%*#& ?,!@& !@#& B'+%*,/I0& "**'+%!,%-& ='/,*,#0& '%&= 3'=#3!4>& =/"%!& "%7& #A+,=$#%!D&&
E'?#9#3>& 0'$#& '(& !@#&$#"0+3#$#%!& 3+/#0& "3#& 3#/"J#7& ,%& 3#/"!,'%& !'& @#3,!"-#& "00#!0& "0& 7#!",/#7&
8#/'?D&

B,9,*&<#-"/,"&

6@#& *'//#*!,'%& '(& *,9,*& 3#-"/,"& ,%*/+7#0& *#3#$'%,"/&$"*#0>& *@",%0& '(& '((,*#& "%7&' !@#3& *,9,*& ,!#$0D&&
6@#0#& ,!#$0& "3#& 3#='3!#7& ,%& !@#& 8"/"%*#& 0@##!& "!& ,%0+3"%*#& 9"/+"!,'%&?@,*@& ,0& 8"0#7& '%&$"3F#!&
9"/+#0D  6@#0#&9"/+"!,'%0&"3#&3#9,#?#7&3#-+/"3/4&!'&#%0+3#&!@"!&!@#4&"3#&*+33#%!D&&6@#0#&,!#$0&"3#&
7##$#7& !'&@"9#& ,%7#!#3$,%"!#& /,9#0&"%7&@,-@& 3#0,7+"/& 9"/+#0& 0'& !@#&B'+%*,/& 7'#0&%'!& *'%0,7#3& ,!&
"==3'=3,"!#&!'&*@"3-#&7#=3#*,"!,'%D&

6@#&*"334,%-&"$'+%!0&'(&@#3,!"-#&"00#!0&"3#& 3#9,#?#7&?@#3#& !@#3#& ,0&#9,7#%*#&'(& ,$=",3$#%!>& ('3&
#J"$=/#& ?@#3#& !@#3#& ,0& =@40,*"/& 7#!#3,'3"!,'%>& 83#"F"-#& '3& 7'+8!0& "0& !'& "+!@#%!,*,!4D& & )%4&
,$=",3$#%!& ,0& 3#*'-%,0#7& "%7& $#"0+3#7& ,%& "**'37"%*#& ?,!@& !@#& B'+%*,/I0& -#%#3"/& ='/,*4& '%&
,$=",3$#%!&'(&%'%K*+33#%!&"00#!0D&

6@#& B'+%*,/& 7'#0& %'!& %'3$"//4& $"F#& "%4& =+3*@"0#0& '3& 7,0='0"/0& '(& !@#0#& ,!#$0D& & 5+3!@#3&
,%('3$"!,'%&'%&!@#&$'0!&0,-%,(,*"%!&,!#$0&,%&!@#&*'//#*!,'%&*"%&8#&('+%7&'%&!@#&B'+%*,/I0&?#80,!#D&

19 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

.3'9,0,'%0&

.3'9,0,'%0&"3#&$"7#&?@#3#&"%&#9#%!&@"0&!"F#%&=/"*#&!@"!&-,9#0&!@#&B'+%*,/&"&/#-"/&'3&*'%0!3+*!,9#&
'8/,-"!,'%&!@"!&=3'8"8/4&3#A+,3#0&0#!!/#$#%!&84&"&!3"%0(#3&'(&#*'%'$,*&8#%#(,!0&'3&0#39,*#&='!#%!,"/>&
"%7&"&3#/,"8/#&#0!,$"!#&*"%&8#&$"7#&'(&!@#&"$'+%!&'(&!@#&'8/,-"!,'%D&&5'3&,%0!"%*#>&!@#&B'+%*,/&$"4&
8#&,%9'/9#7&,%&"&*'+3!&*"0#&!@"!&*'+/7&#9#%!+"//4&3#0+/!&,%&!@#&$"F,%-&'(&"&0#!!/#$#%!&'3&!@#&="4$#%!&
'(&*'$=#%0"!,'%D&

.3'9,0,'%0&"3#&*@"3-#7&"0&"%&#J=#%0#&!'&!@#&"==3'=3,"!#&0#39,*#&/,%#&,%&!@#&B'$=3#@#%0,9#&L%*'$#&
"%7& MJ=#%7,!+3#&  !"!#$#%!& ,%& !@#& 4#"3& !@"!& !@#& B'+%*,/& 8#*'$#0& "?"3#& '(& !@#& '8/,-"!,'%>& "%7&
$#"0+3#7&"!& !@#&8#0!&#0!,$"!#&"!& !@#&8"/"%*#&0@##!&7"!#&'(& !@#&#J=#%7,!+3#& 3#A+,3#7& !'&0#!!/#& !@#&
'8/,-"!,'%>&!"F,%-&,%!'&"**'+%!&3#/#9"%!&3,0F0&"%7&+%*#3!",%!,#0D&

N@#%& ="4$#%!0& "3#& #9#%!+"//4& $"7#>& !@#4& "3#& *@"3-#7& !'& !@#& =3'9,0,'%& *"33,#7& ,%& !@#& O"/"%*#&
 @##!D& &M0!,$"!#7&0#!!/#$#%!0&"3#&3#9,#?#7&"!& !@#&#%7&'(&#"*@&(,%"%*,"/&4#"3&P&?@#3#& ,!&8#*'$#0&

Page 224



 !"!#$#%!&'(&)**'+%!,%-&.'/,*,#0&1&&
2/'00"34&'(&5,%"%*,"/&6#3$0&"%7&)883#9,"!,'%0&

&
&

&
& )%%+"/&:#;'3!&"%7& !"!#$#%!&'(&)**'+%!0& <=&
&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&

/#00&!>"%&;3'8"8/#&!>"!&"&!3"%0(#3&'(&#*'%'$,*&8#%#(,!0&?,//&%'?&8#&3#@+,3#7&A'3&"&/'?#3&0#!!/#$#%!&
!>"%&"%!,*,;"!#7&,0&$"7#BC&!>#&;3'9,0,'%&,0&3#9#30#7&"%7&*3#7,!#7&8"*D&!'&!>#&3#/#9"%!&0#39,*#E&

F>#3#&0'$#&'3&"//&'(& !>#&;"4$#%!&3#@+,3#7& !'&0#!!/#&"&;3'9,0,'%& ,0&#G;#*!#7& !'&8#&3#*'9#3#7&(3'$&
"%'!>#3& ;"3!4& A#E-E& (3'$& "%& ,%0+3"%*#& */",$BC& !>,0& ,0& '%/4& 3#*'-%,0#7& "0& ,%*'$#& ('3& !>#& 3#/#9"%!&
0#39,*#& ,(& ,!& ,0& 9,3!+"//4& *#3!",%& !>"!& 3#,$8+30#$#%!& ?,//& 8#&3 #*#,9#7& ,(& !>#& H'+%*,/& 0#!!/#0& !>#&
'8/,-"!,'%E&

H'%!,%-#%!&I,"8,/,!,#0&

)& *'%!,%-#%!& /,"8,/,!4& "3,0#0& ?>#3#& "%&#9 #%!& >"0& !"D#%& ;/"*#& !>"!& -,9#0& !>#& H'+%*,/& "&;'0 0,8/#&
'8/,-"!,'%&?>'0#&#G,0!#%*#&?,//&'%/4&8#&*'%(,3$#7&84&!>#&'**+33#%*#&'3&'!>#3?,0#&'(&+%*#3!",%&(+!+3#&
#9#%!0&%'!&?>'//4&?,!>,%&!>#&*'%!3'/&'(&!>#&H'+%*,/E&&H'%!,%-#%!&/,"8,/,!,#0&"/0'&"3,0#&,%&*,3*+$0!"%*#0&
?>#3#&"&;3'9,0,'%&?'+/7&'!>#3?,0#&8#&$"7#&8+!&#,!>#3&,!&,0&%'!&;3'8"8/#&!>"!&"%&'+!(/'?&'(&3#0'+3*#0&
?,//&8#&3#@+,3#7&'3&!>#&"$'+%!&'(&!>#&'8/,-"!,'%&*"%%'!&8#&$#"0+3#7&3#/,"8/4E&

H'%!,%-#%!& /,"8,/,!,#0& "3#& %'!& 3#*'-%,0#7& ,%& !>#& J"/"%*#&  >##!& 8+!& 7,0*/'0#7& ,%& "&%'! #& !'& !>#&
"**'+%!0E&

H'%!,%-#%!&)00#!0&

)&*'%!,%-#%!&"00#!&"3,0#0&?>#3#&"%&#9#%!&>"0&!"D#%&;/"*#&!>"!&-,9#0&!>#&H'+%*,/&"&;'00,8/#&"00#!&
?>'0#&#G,0!#%*#&?,//&'%/4&8#&*'%(,3$#7&84& !>#&'**+33#%*#&'3&'!>#3?,0#&'(&+%*#3!",%& (+!+3#&#9#%!0&
%'!&?>'//4&?,!>,%&!>#&*'%!3'/&'(&!>#&H'+%*,/E&

H'%!,%-#%!&"00#!0&"3#&%'!&3#*'-%,0#7&,%&!>#&J"/"%*#& >##!&8+!&7,0*/'0#7&,%&"&%'!#&!'&!>#&"**'+%!0&
?>#3#&,!&,0&;3'8"8/#&!>"!&!>#3#&?,//&8#&"%&,%(/'?&'(&#*'%'$,*&8#%#(,!0&'3&0#39,*#&;'!#%!,"/E&

20 Reserves

6>#& H'+%*,/& 0#!0& "0,7#& 0;#*,(,*& "$'+%!0& "0& 3#0#39#0& ('3& (+!+3#& ;'/,*4& ;+3;'0#0& '3& !'& *'9#3&
*'%!,%-#%*,#0. :#0#39#0&"3#&*3#"!#7&84&";;3';3,"!,%-&"$'+%!0&'+!&'(&!>#&2#%#3"/&5+%7&J"/"%*#&,%&
!>#&K'9#$#%!&,%&:#0#39#0& !"!#$#%!E&&F>#%&#G;#%7,!+3#&!'&8#&(,%"%*#7&(3'$&"&3#0#39#&,0&,%*+33#7C&
,!& ,0& *>"3-#7& !'& !>#& ";;3';3,"!#& 0#39,*#& ,%& !>"!& 4#"3& !'& 0*'3#& "-",%0!& !>#& 0+3;/+0L7#(,*,!& '%& !>#&
;3'9,0,'%& '(& 0#39,*#0& ,%& !>#& H'$;3#>#%0,9#& M%*'$#& "%7& NG;#%7,!+3#&  !"!#$#%!E& & 6>#& 3#0#39#& ,0&
!>#%&";;3';3,"!#7&8"*D&,%!'&!>#&2#%#3"/&5+%7&J"/"%*#&,%&!>#&K'9#$#%!&,%&:#0#39#0& !"!#$#%!&0'&
!>"!&!>#3#&,0&%'&%#!&*>"3-#&"-",%0!&*'+%*,/&!"G&('3&!>#&#G;#%7,!+3#E&

H#3!",%& 3#0#39#0& "3#& D#;!& !'&$"%"-#& !>#& "**'+%!,%-& ;3'*#00#0& ('3& %'%O*+33#%!& "00#!0C& (,%"%*,"/&
,%0!3+$#%!0&"%7& 3#!,3#$#%!&8#%#(,!0&"%7& !>"!&7'&%'!& 3#;3#0#%!&+0"8/#& 3#0'+3*#0& ('3& !>#&H'+%*,/& P&
!>#0#&3#0#39#0&"3#&#G;/",%#7&,%&!>#&3#/#9"%!&;'/,*,#0E&

21 Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital under Statute

NG;#%7,!+3#&,%*+33#7&7+3,%-&!>#&4#"3&!>"!&$"4&8#&*";,!"/,0#7&+%7#3&0!"!+!'34&;3'9,0,'%0&8+!&7'#0&%'!&
3#0+/!&,%&!>#&*3#"!,'%&'(&"&%'%O*+33#%!&"00#!&>"0&8##%&*>"3-#7&"0&#G;#%7,!+3#&!'&!>#&3#/#9"%!&0#39,*#&
,%& !>#& H'$;3#>#%0,9#& M%*'$#& "%7&N G;#%7,!+3#&  !"!#$#%!& ,%& !>#& 4#"3E& &F>#3#& !>#& H'+%*,/& >"0&
7#!#3$,%#7&!'&$##!&!>#&*'0!&'(&!>,0&#G;#%7,!+3#&(3'$&#G,0!,%-&*";,!"/&3#0'+3*#0&'3&84&8'33'?,%-C&"&
!3"%0(#3& ,%& !>#&K'9#$#%!& ,%& :#0#39#0&  !"!#$#%!& (3'$& !>#&2#%#3"/& 5+%7& J"/"%*#& !'& !>#& H";,!"/&

Page 225



 !"!#$#%!&'(&)**'+%!,%-&.'/,*,#0&1&&
2/'00"34&'(&5,%"%*,"/&6#3$0&"%7&)883#9,"!,'%0&

&
&

&&&&&&&&&&&&& &
& :;& &&&&&&&)%%+"/&<#='3!&"%7& !"!#$#%!&'(&)**'+%!0&
&&&&&&&&&&&&&& &&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&

)7>+0!$#%!&)**'+%!&!?#%&3#9#30#0&'+!&!?#&"$'+%!0&*?"3-#7&0'&!?"!&!?#3#&,0&%'&,$="*!&'%&!?#&/#9#/&
'(&*'+%*,/&!"@A&

22 Value Added Tax (VAT)

B)6& ="4"8/#& ,0& ,%*/+7#7& "0& "%& #@=#%0#& '%/4& !'& !?#& #@!#%!& !?"!& ,!& ,0& %'!& 3#*'9#3"8/#& (3'$& C#3&
D">#0!4E0&<#9#%+#&"%7&F+0!'$0A&&B)6&3#*#,9"8/#&,0&#@*/+7#7&(3'$&,%*'$#A&&

23 Foreign Exchange Translation

G?#3#&!?#&F'+%*,/&?"0&#%!#3#7&,%!'&"&!3"%0"*!,'%&7#%'$,%"!#7&,%&"&('3#,-%&*+33#%*4H&!?#&!3"%0"*!,'%&
,0&*'%9#3!#7&,%!'&0!#3/,%-&"!&!?#&#@*?"%-#&3"!#&'%&!?#&7"!#&!?"!&!?#&!3"%0"*!,'%&I"0&#((#*!,9#A&&G?#3#&
"$'+%!0& ,%& ('3#,-%& *+33#%*4& "3#& '+!0!"%7,%-& "!& !?#& 4#"3& #%7& !?#4& "3#& *'%9#3!#7& "!& !?#& 0='!&
#@*?"%-#& 3"!#& "!& JK& D"3*?A& &< #0+/!,%-& -",%0& '3& /'00#0& "3#& 3#*'-%,0#7& ,%& !?#& 5,%"%*,%-& "%7&
L%9#0!$#%!&L%*'$#&"%7&M@=#%7,!+3#&/,%#&,%&!?#&F'$=3#?#%0,9#&L%*'$#&"%7&M@=#%7,!+3#& !"!#$#%!A&
&
&
&
&
&
&
&
&
&
&
&
&
&
&
&
&
&
&
&
&
&
&
&
&
&
&
&
&
&
&
&
&
&
&
&
&
&
&
&

Page 226



 !"!#$#%!&'(&)**'+%!,%-&.'/,*,#0&1&&
2/'00"34&'(&5,%"%*,"/&6#3$0&"%7&)883#9,"!,'%0&

&
&

&
& )%%+"/&:#;'3!&"%7& !"!#$#%!&'(&)**'+%!0& <<&
&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&

Glossary of Financial Terms and Abbreviations

Accounting Period

6=#&;#3,'7&'(& !,$#&*'9#3#7&84& !=#&"**'+%!0>&%'3$"//4&?@&$'%!=0&*'$$#%*,%-&'%&?&);3,/& ('3& /'*"/&
"+!='3,!,#0A&

Accruals

 +$0& ,%*/+7#7& ,%& !=#& (,%"/&"**'+%!0& !'&*'9#3& ,%*'$#&'3&#B;#%7,!+3#&"!!3,8+!"8/#& !'& !=#&"**'+%!,%-&
;#3,'7&8+!&('3&C=,*=&;"4$#%!&="0&%'!&8##%&$"7#D3#*#,9#7&"!&!=#&8"/"%*#&0=##!&7"!#A&

Amortisation

)&$#"0+3#&'(&!=#&*'%0+$;!,'%&'(&!=#&9"/+#&'(&,%!"%-,8/#&"00#!0>&8"0#7&'%&!=#&3#$",%,%-&#*'%'$,*&
/,(#A&

Capital Expenditure

EB;#%7,!+3#& '%& %#C& "00#!0& 0+*=& "0& /"%7& "%7& 8+,/7,%-0>& '3& '%& #%="%*#$#%!0& !'& #B,0!,%-& "00#!0&
C=,*=&0,-%,(,*"%!/4&;3'/'%-&!=#,3&+0#(+/&/,(#&'3&,%*3#"0#&!=#,3&9"/+#A&

Capital Receipt

F%*'$#&(3'$&!=#&0"/#&'(&*";,!"/&"00#!0&0+*=&"0&*'+%*,/&='+0#0>&/"%7&'3&'!=#3&8+,/7,%-0A&

Cash Equivalents

G"0=&#H+,9"/#%!0&"3#& ,%9#0!$#%!0& !="!&$"!+3#& ,%&IJ&7"40&'3& /#00& (3'$&!=#&7"!#&'(&"*H+,0,!,'%&"%7&
!="!&"3#&3#"7,/4&*'%9#3!,8/#&!'&K%'C%&"$'+%!0&'(&*"0=&C,!=&,%0,-%,(,*"%!&3,0K&'(&*="%-#&,%&9"/+#A&

Contingent Liabilities

.'!#%!,"/&/,"8,/,!,#0&C=,*=&"3#&#,!=#3&7#;#%7#%!&'%&"&(+!+3#&#9#%!&'3&*"%%'!&8#&3#/,"8/4&#0!,$"!#7A&

Creditors

)$'+%!0&'C#7&84&!=#&G'+%*,/&"!&I?&L"3*=&('3&-''70&3#*#,9#7&'3&0#39,*#0&3#%7#3#7&8+!&%'!&4#!&;",7&
('3A&

Current Assets

)00#!0&C=,*=&*"%&8#&#B;#*!#7&!'&8#&*'%0+$#7&'3&3#"/,0#7&7+3,%-&!=#&%#B!&"**'+%!,%-&;#3,'7A&

Current Liabilities

)$'+%!0&C=,*=&C,//&8#*'$#&7+#&'3&*'+/7&8#&*"//#7&+;'%&7+3,%-&!=#&%#B!&"**'+%!,%-&;#3,'7A&

&

&

Page 227



 !"!#$#%!&'(&)**'+%!,%-&.'/,*,#0&1&&
2/'00"34&'(&5,%"%*,"/&6#3$0&"%7&)883#9,"!,'%0&

&
&

&&&&&&&&&&&&& &
& :;;& &&&&&&&)%%+"/&<#='3!&"%7& !"!#$#%!&'(&)**'+%!0&
&&&&&&&&&&&&&& &&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&

Debtors

)$'+%!0&'>#7&!'&!?#&@'+%*,/&>?,*?&"3#&*'//#*!"8/#&'3&'+!0!"%7,%-&"!&A:&B"3*?C&

Depreciation

)&$#"0+3#&'(&!?#&*'%0+$=!,'%&'(&!?#&9"/+#&'(&%'%D*+33#%!&"00#!0E&8"0#7&'%&!?#&3#$",%,%-&#*'%'$,*&
/,(#C&

Effective rate of interest

6?#&3"!#&'(&,%!#3#0!&!?"!&>,//&7,0*'+%!&!?#&#0!,$"!#7&*"0?&(/'>0&'9#3&!?#&/,(#&'(&"&(,%"%*,"/&,%0!3+$#%!&
!'&!?#&"$'+%!&,%&!?#&8"/"%*#&0?##!&"!&,%,!,"/&$#"0+3#$#%!C&

Equity instrument

)& *'%!3"*!& !?"!& #9,7#%*#0& "& 3#0,7+"/& ,%!#3#0!& ,%& !?#& "00#!0& '(& "%& #%!,!4& "(!#3& 7#7+*!,%-& "//& '(& ,!0&
/,"8,/,!,#0&F#C-C&"%&#G+,!4&0?"3#&,%&"&*'$="%4CH&

Fair Value

6?#&"$'+%!&('3&>?,*?&"%&"00#!&*'+/7&8#&#I*?"%-#7E&'3&"&/,"8,/,!4&0#!!/#7E&8#!>##%&J%'>/#7-#"8/#E&
>,//,%-&="3!,#0&,%&"%&"3$K0&/#%-!?&!3"%0"*!,'%C&

Finance Lease

)&/#"0#&!?"!&!3"%0(#30&0+80!"%!,"//4&"//&'(&!?#&3,0J0&"%7&3#>"370&'(&'>%#30?,=&'(&"&%'%D*+33#%!&"00#!&
!'&!?#&/#00##C&

Financial Asset

)& 3,-?!& !'& (+!+3#& #*'%'$,*& 8#%#(,!0& *'%!3'//#7& 84& !?#& @'+%*,/C& & LI"$=/#0& ,%*/+7#& 8"%J& 7#='0,!0E&
,%9#0!$#%!0E&!3"7#&3#*#,9"8/#0&"%7&/'"%0&3#*#,9"8/#C&

Financial Liability

)%&'8/,-"!,'%&!'&!3"%0(#3&#*'%'$,*&8#%#(,!0&*'%!3'//#7&84&!?#&@'+%*,/C&&LI"$=/#0&,%*/+7#&8'33'>,%-0E&
(,%"%*,"/&-+"3"%!##0&"%7&"$'+%!0&'>#7&!'&!3"7#&*3#7,!'30C&

Financial Instrument

)%4& *'%!3"*!& !?"!& -,9#0& 3,0#& !'& "& (,%"%*,"/& "00#!& '(& '%#& #%!,!4& "%7&"& (,%"%*,"/& /,"8,/,!4& '3& #G+,!4&
,%0!3+$#%!&'(&"%'!?#3C&

Government Grants

."4$#%!0& 84& *#%!3"/& -'9#3%$#%!& !'>"370& /'*"/& *'+%*,/& #I=#%7,!+3#C& & 6?#4& $"4& 8#&0 =#*,(,*E& ('3&
#I"$=/#&M'+0,%-&N#%#(,!&0+80,74E&'3&-#%#3"/&0+*?&"0&<#9#%+#& +=='3!&23"%!C&

&

&

Page 228



 !"!#$#%!&'(&)**'+%!,%-&.'/,*,#0&1&&
2/'00"34&'(&5,%"%*,"/&6#3$0&"%7&)883#9,"!,'%0&

&
&

&
& )%%+"/&:#;'3!&"%7& !"!#$#%!&'(&)**'+%!0& <=<&
&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&

Heritage Assets

>#3,!"-#& )00#!0& "3#& "00#!0& ?,!@& @,0!'3,*"/A& "3!,0!,*A& 0*,#%!,(,*A& !#*@%'/'-,*"/A& -#';@40,*"/& '3&
#%9,3'%$#%!"/&B+"/,!,#0&?@,*@&"3#&@#/7&"%7&$",%!",%#7&;3,%*,;"//4&('3&!@#,3&*'%!3,8+!,'%&!'&C%'?/#7-#&
"%7&*+/!+3#D&

Impairment

6@#&!#3$&+0#7&?@#3#& !@#&#0!,$"!#7&3#*'9#3"8/#&"$'+%!&(3'$&"%&"00#!& ,0& /#00& !@"%&!@#&"$'3!,0#7&
*'0!&"!&?@,*@&!@#&"00#!&,0&8#,%-&*"33,#7&'%&!@#&8"/"%*#&0@##!D&

Non-current assets

)00#!0&?@,*@&*"%&8#&#E;#*!#7&!'&8#&'(&+0#&'3&8#%#(,!& !@#&F'+%*,/& ,%&;3'9,7,%-&,!0&0#39,*#&('3&$'3#&
!@"%&'%#&"**'+%!,%-&;#3,'7D&

Operating Lease

)&/#"0#&+%7#3&?@,*@&!@#&'?%#30@,;&'(&!@#&"00#!&3#$",%0&?,!@&!@#&/#00'3G&('3&;3"*!,*"/&;+3;'0#0&,!&,0&
#B+,9"/#%!&!'&*'%!3"*!&@,3,%-D&

Outturn

:#(#30&!'&"*!+"/&,%*'$#&"%7&#E;#%7,!+3#&'3&8"/"%*#0&"0&';;'0#7&!'&8+7-#!#7&"$'+%!0D&

Precepts

6@#&"$'+%!&?@,*@&"&/'*"/&*'+%*,/&?@,*@&*"%%'!&/#94&"&*'+%*,/&!"E&7,3#*!/4&'%&!@#&;+8/,*&H('3&#E"$;/#&
"&F'+%!4&F'+%*,/&'3&.'/,*#&)+!@'3,!4I&3#B+,3#0&!'&8#&*'//#*!#7&'%&,!0&8#@"/(D&

Provisions

J'%,#0&0#!&"0,7#&('3&/,"8,/,!,#0&?@,*@&"3#&/,C#/4&!'&8#&,%*+33#7&8+!&?@#3#&#E"*!&"$'+%!0&'3&7"!#0&"3#&
+%*#3!",%D&

Reserves

)$'+%!0& 0#!& "0,7#& ,%& !@#& "**'+%!0& ('3& !@#& ;+3;'0#& '(& $##!,%-& ;"3!,*+/"3& (+!+3#& #E;#%7,!+3#D& & )&
7,0!,%*!,'%&,0&73"?%&8#!?##%&3#0#39#0&"%7&;3'9,0,'%0&?@,*@&"3#&0#!&+;&!'&$##!&C%'?%&/,"8,/,!,#0D&

Revenue Expenditure

 ;#%7,%-&'%&7"4&!'&7"4&,!#$0&,%*/+7,%-&#$;/'4##0K&;"4A&;3#$,0#0&*'0!0&"%7&0+;;/,#0&"%7&0#39,*#0D&

Revenue Expenditure Funded From Capital Under Statute

LE;#%7,!+3#&?@,*@& /#-,0/"!,'%&"//'?0& !'&8#&*/"00,(,#7&"0&*";,!"/& ('3& (+%7,%-&;+3;'0#0&?@#%& ,!&7'#0&
%'!& 3#0+/!& ,%& !@#& #E;#%7,!+3#& 8#,%-& *"33,#7& '%& !@#& M"/"%*#&  @##!& "0& "& %'%N*+33#%!& "00#!D& &6 @#&
;+3;'0#&'(& !@,0& ,0& !'&#%"8/#& ,!& !'&8#& (+%7#7& (3'$&*";,!"/& 3#0'+3*#0& 3"!@#3& !@"%&8#&*@"3-#7& !'& !@#&
2#%#3"/&5+%7&"%7&,$;"*!&'%&!@"!&4#"3K0&*'+%*,/&!"ED&

Page 229



 !"!#$#%!&'(&)**'+%!,%-&.'/,*,#0&1&&
2/'00"34&'(&5,%"%*,"/&6#3$0&"%7&)883#9,"!,'%0&

&
&

&&&&&&&&&&&&& &
& :;<& &&&&&&&)%%+"/&=#>'3!&"%7& !"!#$#%!&'(&)**'+%!0&
&&&&&&&&&&&&&& &&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&

Revenue Support Grant

23"%!&>",7&84&*#%!3"/&-'9#3%$#%!&!'&"&/'*"/&*'+%*,/&!'?"370&!@#&*'0!0&'(&,!0&0#39,*#0A&

The Code

6@#&B'7#&'(&.3"*!,*#&'%&C'*"/&)+!@'3,!4&)**'+%!,%-&,%&!@#&D%,!#7&E,%-7'$&<;:<F:GA&&6@,0&0>#*,(,#0&
!@#& >3,%*,>"/0& "%7& >3"*!,*#0& '(& "**'+%!,%-& 3#H+,3#7& !'& -,9#& "& I!3+#& "%7& (",3J& 9,#?& '(& !@#& (,%"%*,"/&
>'0,!,'%&"%7&!3"%0"*!,'%0&'(&"&/'*"/&"+!@'3,!4A&

&
&

&
&
&
&
&
&
&
&
&
&
&
&
&

&
&
&
&
&
&
&
&
&
&
&
&
&

&
&
&
&
&
&
&
&
&
&
&
&
&

&
&
&
&

Page 230



 !"!#$#%!&'(&)**'+%!,%-&.'/,*,#0&1&&
2/'00"34&'(&5,%"%*,"/&6#3$0&"%7&)883#9,"!,'%0&

&
&

&
& )%%+"/&:#;'3!&"%7& !"!#$#%!&'(&)**'+%!0& <=>&

&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&

Abbreviations used in the accounts

&

CIPFA  Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy

GAAP  Generally Accepted Accounting Practice

HRA  Housing Revenue Account

IAS  International Accounting Standard

IFRS  International Financial Reporting Standard

LAAP  Local Authority Accounting Panel

LGPS  Local Government Pension Scheme

MRP  Minimum Revenue Provision

NNDR  National Non-Domestic Rates

SERCOP Service Reporting Code of Practice

SOLACE Society of Local Authority Chief Executives and Senior Managers

&

&

&

&

&

&

&

&

&

&

&

&

&

&

&

&

&

&

&

&

&

&

&

&

&

&

&

&

Page 231



Page 232

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item         

CAMBRIDGE CITY COUNCIL

REPORT OF: DIRECTOR OF RESOURCES

TO: CIVIC AFFAIRS COMMITTEE 26/06/13

WARDS: All

ANNUAL REPORT ON PREVENTION OF FRAUD & CORRUPTION POLICY AND 
IMPLEMENTATION OF THE REQUIREMENTS OF THE BRIBERY ACT 2010

1 Introduction

1.1 In previous years an annual report has been made to the Council’s Standards 
Committee to review the Council’s Prevention of Fraud & Corruption (PFC) 
Policy and to provide Members of the Committee with a summary of fraud/ 
whistle-blowing activity during the year.

1.2 With the decommissioning of Standards Committee in July 2012, this report 
was not produced last year. The last report on the PFC Policy was made in 
June 2011, where it was agreed that an addendum would be added to the 
Policy to cover the implications of the Bribery Act. 

1.3 The purpose of this report is to provide Members of Civic Affairs with:

a) An overview of the Bribery Act 2010 and its implications for the City 
Council, including a review of the PFC Policy (and addendum) and the
relevant sections of the Officer Code of Conduct;

b) A summary of fraud/whistle-blowing activity during 2011-12 and 2012-
13.

2 Recommendations 

Members of Civic Affairs Committee are asked to:

2.1 Approve the changes to the Prevention of Fraud & Corruption (PFC) Policy
and the content of the addendum to the PFC Policy (Appendix 1), plus the 
changes proposed to the Officer Code of Conduct (Appendix 2), to reflect the 
requirements of the Bribery Act.

2.2 Approve the amendments proposed to the Officer Code of Conduct to reflect 
the changes made to the guidance on gifts and hospitality and declarations of 
conflicts of interest. 

Agenda Item 9

Page 233



2.3 Note the details of fraud/whistle-blowing activity provided in sections 6-8 of 
this report for the two-year period 1 April 2011 – 31 March 2013.

3 Background to the Bribery Act 2010

3.1 The Bribery Act 2010 (The Act) came into effect on 1st July 2011. It is a major    
piece of legislation which updates existing laws on bribery offences and 
places additional requirements on ‘commercial organisations’. Whilst the 
Council is not a ‘commercial organisation’ in terms of its normal local authority 
activities, it is considered good practice for the Council to be able to 
demonstrate compliance with the spirit of the Act in the conduct of its 
business and in its policies and procedures

3.2 The Ministry of Justice produced guidance to support the introduction of the 
Act and one of the key messages coming out of this guidance was the need 
for proportionality, as the threat of bribery varies considerably across different 
sectors. The guidance is non-prescriptive and is formulated around six guiding 
principles, which should inform the overall approach to anti-bribery taken by 
an organisation:

 Top Level Commitment

 Communication and Training

 Proportionate Procedures

 Risk Assessment 

 Due Diligence

 Monitoring and Review

3.3 Following a report made to the Strategic Leadership Team (SLT) in November 
2011, the Council has already taken a number of measures to address some 
of the requirements of the Act. For example, an anti-bribery message was 
publicised to all staff through the Council’s Insight magazine in December 
2011, demonstrating top level commitment and communication with staff.

3.4 In other areas, the Council already has a number of key policies and 
procedures in place covering anti-bribery measures, including the PFC Policy; 
the Officer Code of Conduct (which covers the Council’s policy on acceptance 
of gifts and hospitality and declarations of interest); and the Council’s Whistle-
blowing Policy. These policies demonstrate that the Council has 
proportionate procedures covering anti-bribery, but they need updating to 
reflect the new Bribery Act, to strengthen the message about the Council’s 
stance on bribery and to provide greater clarification on the recording of gifts 
and hospitality.

3.5 The Council introduced the Prevention of Fraud and Corruption (PFC) Policy   
in June 1998. The purpose of the Policy is to set out the culture for the 
organisation in terms of not tolerating any act of fraud or corruption and a 
commitment that all concerns raised will be properly investigated. The Policy 
also sets out the reporting and investigation arrangements for different types 
of allegation received.

Page 234



3.6 In June 2011, it was agreed that an addendum would be added to the PFC 
Policy to cover the implications of the Bribery Act. The Policy itself has also 
been updated to make specific reference to the Bribery Act, where applicable. 
The revised Policy and Addendum are attached at Appendix 1 to this report.

3.7 In summary, the Addendum to the PFC Policy provides 

 a definition of bribery; 

 a statement setting out the Council’s ‘zero-tolerance’ towards any act of 
bribery; 

 a list of areas identified where the Council may be exposed to the risk of 
bribery;

 a reference (and link) to the Council’s Policy on Gifts & Hospitality (as set 
out in the Officer Code of Conduct); and 

 a link to the Council’s Whistleblowing Policy.

3.8 Due diligence, within the scope of the Bribery Act, refers to the checks and 
procedures undertaken by an organisation to prevent associated persons 
from bribing on their behalf. Employees are considered associated persons 
under the Act and due diligence forms part of HR recruitment processes, 
including undertaking full references for all jobs.

3.9 Organisations need to monitor and review the effectiveness of their anti-
bribery policy and procedures. This is achieved through the annual review of 
the Prevention of Fraud and Corruption Policy by Civic Affairs Committee.

4 Policy on Gifts and Hospitality

4.1 The Council’s Policy on Gifts and Hospitality is set out in the Officer Code of 
Conduct. 

4.2 During 2012-13, Internal Audit carried out a corporate review of gifts and 
hospitality and declarations of conflict of interest. This audit highlighted the 
need for greater clarity on what gifts or hospitality can be accepted and what 
needs to be recorded in the register and on the process for recording 
declarations of interest.

4.3 The Officer Code of Conduct has been updated to provide this clarification 
and to make reference to the requirements of the Bribery Act 2010. A set of 
‘Frequently Asked Questions’ (FAQs) has also been put together to 
supplement the guidance provided in the Code of Conduct.

4.4 The Updated Draft Code of Conduct and FAQs are provided at Appendix 2 to 
this report. The proposed changes made to the Code have been highlighted 
for ease of reference. 

Page 235



5 Working Time Directive

5.1 The Council’s Working Time Policy is being updated. The Officer Code of 
Conduct includes a section on ‘Having Another Job’ and this section of the 
Code has therefore been updated to reflect the changes to the Council’s 
Policy. The updates to the Code can be seen in Appendix 2.

6 Fraud Investigation

6.1 Dependant on their nature, fraud investigations are carried out by either the 
Revenue & Benefit Services Fraud Prevention Team (FPT) or Internal Audit.

Fraud Prevention Team

6.2 The FPT prevents, detects and pursues those who commit benefit fraud 
against Cambridge City Council. The team consists of 1.7 FTE officers, who
conduct investigations into benefit fraud, local taxation, local support scheme, 
social housing fraud and some internal allegations. As a result of their 
investigations, the following was achieved during 2012-13, where the value of 
the activity can be identified:

Identifiable Value
Amount Description

£144,723 Benefit fraud identified [can / is being recovered].

£95,461 Additional 23 benefit claims terminated following investigation 
[this would have been paid in a year, if not investigated].

£21,305 6 customers withdraw their claims when questioned about their 
validity [this would have been paid in a year, if not investigated].

£18,000 The keys to a Council owned property were handed back. This 
means a new home for someone [plus DCLG estimates each
recovered property saves a Local Authority £18,000].

£14,599 Customer error identified [can / is being recovered].

£5,537 Fines agreed by customers as an alternative to prosecution 
[Administration Penalties - can / are being recovered].

£299,625 Total

Page 236



6.3 In 2011-12 the total amount of benefit fraud identified was £115, 919 and of 
this the single largest fraud was £20,333. 

6.4 During 2012-13 the FPT imposed a total of 43 Sanctions, including 16 
successful prosecutions for benefit fraud (one of these prosecutions resulted 
in a 6-month prison sentence). The figures for 2011-12 were similar with a 
total of 46 sanctions, including 17 successful prosecutions. The slight 
reduction in the number of sanctions imposed during 2012-13 corresponds 
with a change of approach to prevention measures first and foremost.

6.5 In addition, the team was also successful in a number of other activities, 
where it is not possible to quantify the outcome financially, as follows:

 5 suspicious benefit claims were refused, before payments were made.

 5 suspicious ‘Right to Buy’ applications were withdrawn.

 A number of internal investigations were undertaken.

 Intelligence has been supplied to the police in relation to 145 
properties or individuals (in line with Data Protection legislation).

 Intelligence has also been provided to other external agencies such as 
Trading Standards and the UK Border Agency.

 A false national insurance number was identified and reported.

Internal Audit

6.6 Part of the Internal Audit remit is to investigate any other type of fraud, 
whistleblowing allegation or theft. Internal Audit look to ensure that 
employees follow the various policies, procedures and Codes of Conduct 
established to protect the public purse, as well as the integrity of officers. 
Matters referred to Internal Audit can be received as a direct request from 
management or via the whistleblowing route. Under the Council’s 
Whistleblowing Policy, employees are encouraged to report any genuine, 
serious concerns about any aspect of the Council’s work to the Head of 
Internal Audit, who will investigate those concerns.

6.7 During 2012-2013 Internal Audit undertook three whistleblowing investigations 
concerning potential breaches of the Officer Code of Conduct and 
manipulation of records. As a result of these investigations, actions were 
agreed with management in order to improve controls in the areas concerned 
and in one case appropriate action was taken in accordance with the 
Council’s employment policies. 

6.8 In 2011-12, Internal Audit undertook two whistleblowing allegations: One 
allegation into the appointment of staff was concluded with no further action 
required. The second allegation concerned the acceptance of excessive 
hospitality and was dealt with in accordance with the Council’s employment 
policies.

Page 237



6.9 The Council also made a referral to the Serious Organised Crime Agency 
(SOCA) under its obligation to refer cases of suspected money-laundering. 
The case was not, however, progressed by SOCA.

7 Fraud Prevention 

7.1 The Council continues to give out a strong deterrent message about fraud in 
both publicly issued and internal documents, for example, on Council Tax 
leaflets and Housing Benefit claim forms. 

7.2 Revenues Services follows appropriate Department for Work and Pensions 
‘Security Guidance’ and has recently adopted a Risk Based Verification 
process. It has a Fraud Referral Procedure for staff to refer cases of 
suspected fraud through to the Fraud Prevention Team. Regular reminders 
are sent to people claiming benefit of their responsibilities in respect of 
overpayments; the aim being to prevent overpayments building up which can 
make repayment difficult and can encourage concealment and therefore 
fraud.   

7.3 The National Fraud Hotline Scheme continues to be publicised in the Council 
Tax leaflet and publicity is sought for successful benefit prosecutions through 
the local papers and via the Council’s website as this is seen to have a 
deterrent effect.

8 Fraud Detection

8.1 The FPT is in the process of setting up a Social Housing Fraud Hub with 
Huntingdon, Peterborough, South Cambs and Fenland District Councils. This 
will involve the sharing of data to detect social housing fraud, such as vacant 
or illegal sub-letting of council properties. This follows a successful bid for 
funding from the Department for Communities and Local Government 
(DCLG). It is hoped that the FPT will be able to recover several council 
properties for legitimate use. It is estimated by the Audit Commission that 
nationally, £0.9 billion fraud is committed in this way. DCLG estimate that 
each property recovered saves the local authority £18,000 a year.   

8.2 The authority is required to participate in the National Fraud Initiative (NFI), a 
national data-matching exercise organised by the Audit Commission every 
other year that matches data within and between audited bodies to prevent 
and detect fraud. This includes police authorities, fire & rescue authorities as 
well as other councils and Housing Associations.

8.3 The NFI is now a wide-ranging exercise and includes the following datasets:

 Housing Benefits 

 Payroll 

 Housing Rents 

 Insurance claims

Page 238



 Creditors 

 Market trader licences

 Taxi-driver licences

 Personal licences to supply alcohol

8.4 Work to investigate the results of the 2012-13 NFI began in March 2013. As in 
previous years, the initial investigation work is undertaken by Internal Audit 
and any cases of suspected fraud are referred to the FPT, Housing or Human 
Resources for further detailed investigation, as appropriate. The key 
outcomes from the 2012-13 NFI will be reported to the meeting of Civic Affairs 
Committee next June.

8.5 The key outcomes from the 2010-11 NFI exercise were as follows:

 A total of £25,288.70 fraudulently claimed Housing Benefit (HB) and 
Council Tax Benefit (CTB) was identified.

 A total of £7,282.62 in terms of customer error was identified.

 The Council undertook two successful prosecutions and issued two 
Formal Cautions, which were accepted.

 One personal license to sell alcohol was surrendered.

 Single Person Discount (SPD) was removed from a number of Council 
Tax accounts generating an additional £1,594.28 in Council Tax income.

 Of the creditor payments investigated, only two genuine duplicate 
payments were identified amounting to £2,296. Refunds have 
subsequently been obtained for these from the supplier concerned. 

 Two minor VAT errors were also identified, totaling £1,229, for which 
corrective action has been taken in the relevant year.

8.6 The authority also participates in the Housing Benefit Matching Service 
operated by the DWP. 

9 Consultations

9.1 Relevant officers have been consulted on the Addendum to the PFC Policy 
and the updated Code of Conduct. Whilst the unions have raised no objection 
to the proposed changes, UNISON has very recently raised issues regarding 
other unrelated aspects of the Code. The Head of Human Resources will meet 
UNISON representatives to discuss the issues raised and these can be 
addressed in a further revision to the Code, if appropriate. 

10 Conclusions

10.1 The Council remains committed to providing services carried out in 
accordance with the highest ethical standards and takes steps to investigate 
all concerns arising.  

Page 239



10.2 Although the City Council is not a commercial organisation as defined in the 
Bribery Act, it is considered good practice for the Council to be able to 
demonstrate compliance with the spirit of the Act. We already have a number 
of key policies and procedures in place which cover anti-bribery measures, 
including the PFC Policy and Officer Code of Conduct, both of which have 
been updated to reflect the requirements of the Bribery Act 2010.

IMPLICATIONS

(a) Financial Implications
None

(b) Staffing Implications   
This policy applies to all members of staff.

(c) Equal Opportunities Implications
None

(d) Environmental Implications
None

(e) Community Safety
None

The author and contact officer for queries on the report is Bridget Bishop, Principal 
Auditor, extension 8182.

Date originated: 17 June 2013
Date of last revision: 17 June 2013

Page 240



Reviewed: Civic Affairs Committee June 2013

Appendix 1

CAMBRIDGE CITY COUNCIL

PREVENTION OF FRAUD AND CORRUPTION POLICY

1 INTRODUCTION

1.1 The purpose of this document is to outline the policies and procedures, which 
the Council has in place for deterring, reporting and investigating fraud, 
corruption and theft.

1.2 The Prevention of Fraud & Corruption Policy covers cases of fraud, corruption 
and theft committed by employees, Councillors, contractors, partners and 
members of the public and relates to allegations of such cases, which 
originate from anyone including Councillors, employees, partners and 
members of the public.  

1.3 Following the introduction of the Bribery Act 2010, a supplementary 
section has been added to the end of this document setting out the City 
Council’s policy on anti-bribery and the implications of the new Act for 
the City Council.

2 CULTURE 

2.1 Cambridge City Council is committed to providing best value services carried 
out in accordance with the highest ethical standards.  The Council will not 
tolerate any act of fraud, corruption or theft by either a Councillor or an 
employee, as such acts reduce the public’s confidence in the ability of the 
Council to be managed in an honest, fair and effective manner.  Neither will 
the Council tolerate fraud or corruption attempted by parties external to the 
Council.

2.2 There is an expectation and requirement that all individuals and organisations 
associated in whatever way with the Council will act with honesty and integrity 
and that Council employees at all levels, and Councillors, will lead by example 
in these matters.

2.3 Where sufficient evidence exists in any fraud or corruption case it is the policy 
of the Council to refer the matter to the Police.

2.4 The Council’s employees, Councillors and members of the public are 
encouraged to raise any concerns relating to possible cases of fraud, 
corruption or theft.  Such concerns will be properly investigated and the 
outcome reported as appropriate.

Page 241



Reviewed: Civic Affairs Committee June 2013

2.5 The Council will endeavour to recover any losses as a result of fraud or 
corruption from the perpetrators, as appropriate.

2.6 The Head of Internal Audit will report annually on the effectiveness of the 
Policy to the Council’s Civic Affairs Committee, including a summary of any 
investigations concluded during the year. 

2.7 The Head of Internal Audit will be responsible for identifying lessons learnt 
from the outcome of any investigation and for ensuring that, where necessary, 
controls are strengthened in the areas concerned. The Head of Internal Audit 
will also consider whether it is appropriate to share the outcome of an 
investigation with managers across the Council, with a view to preventing 
similar situations arising.

3 PROCEDURES FOR THE  PREVENTION AND DETECTION OF FRAUD 

3.1 The Council has well-defined procedures for the prevention and detection of 
fraud, corruption and theft:

Internal Control Systems

3.2 The Council’s Constitution sets out Financial Regulations and Financial 
Procedure Rules which Councillors and employees are required to comply 
with in the conduct of Council business.  

3.3 The Council has developed and is committed to maintaining systems and 
procedures which incorporate efficient and effective internal controls to 
manage the Council’s risks and which include adequate separation of duties.  
These controls prevent and detect irregularities occurring.  Directors are 
required to ensure that such controls are properly maintained and 
documented.  Their existence and appropriateness are independently 
monitored by Internal Audit and the Council’s external auditors. 

Recruitment and Employees

3.4 Employees are recruited in accordance with procedures laid down by Human 
Resources.  The HR Recruitment Team is responsible for carrying out all the 
relevant pre-employment checks of potential employees. Criminal Records 
Bureau (CRB) checks are also undertaken by Human Resources for certain 
posts identified by management where the employee will be working with 
children, young people or vulnerable adults. Management are responsible for 
reviewing references in terms of performance, suitability and integrity.

3.5 The Officer Code of Conduct requires employees to maintain conduct of the 
highest standard such that public confidence in their integrity is sustained. 
The Code includes guidance on declaring any conflicts of interests, 
particularly in relation to any commitments outside of the workplace; 
acceptance of gifts, hospitality and sponsorship and maintaining separation of 
roles during tendering.

Page 242



Reviewed: Civic Affairs Committee June 2013

Councillors

3.6 All Councillors on accepting office are required to declare that they will be 
guided by the National Code of Local Government Conduct.  The code sets 
out the requirements for disclosing pecuniary and other interests and gives 
guidance on accepting any offers of gifts or hospitality including reporting 
these matters to the appropriate senior officers of the Council.

Complaints Procedure

3.7 The Council has an established procedure for dealing with complaints from 
the public.  Details are kept of all complaints and there is a complaints co-
ordinator for every service.  The way in which complaints are dealt with and 
the need for changes in response to complaints are monitored on a regular 
basis.  If anyone is dissatisfied with the response to their complaint they can 
contact the Council’s Internal Ombudsman.  Where the complaint indicates 
possible fraud or corruption it is referred to the Head of Internal Audit for 
investigation.

Benefit Fraud

3.8 The Council has a dedicated team in Revenue and Benefits to identify and 
investigate suspected fraudulent Housing and Council Tax Benefit claims.

4        REPORTING AND INVESTIGATING POTENTIAL FRAUD AND                                
CORRUPTION

4.1 Allegations of fraud and corruption can be made by or against employees, 
members of the public, Councillors, contractors, suppliers or partners. 

4.2 Senior managers are responsible for addressing any allegation of fraud or 
corruption reported to them and should do so by informing the Head of 
Internal Audit immediately they are discovered.  

4.3 The Council is committed to the highest possible standards of openness and 
accountability.  In line with that commitment, we expect employees with 
genuine serious concerns about any aspect of the Council’s work to report 
their concerns to the Head of Internal Audit and this is covered by the 
Council’s Whistleblowing Policy – see Human Resources Intranet.

4.4 Employees who report their concerns in good faith will be protected from    
reprisals or victimisation.  However, if employees are found to have made 
allegations for malicious or vexatious reasons, disciplinary action may be 
taken against the employee concerned.  

4.5 The Whistleblowing policy adds an additional method of raising concerns for 
employees where it is felt inappropriate to approach their line manager, or if 
their line manager has failed to address their concern properly.  

Page 243



Reviewed: Civic Affairs Committee June 2013

4.6 Any allegations against an employee are investigated by the Head of Internal 
Audit and Human Resources.  The relevant Director is informed of the 
investigation at the outset.

4.7 Where Council employees are suspected of fraud or corruption, Human 
Resources are responsible for ensuring that the investigation is conducted in 
accordance with Council procedures and employment law to protect the rights 
of both the Council and the individual(s) concerned.  Internal Audit works 
closely with Human Resources during the investigation. The Manager,
supported by Human Resources, is responsible for invoking any disciplinary 
procedures against the employee(s) concerned.  

4.8 Allegations about a Councillor should be reported to the Council’s Monitoring 
Officer. Allegations against a Councillor are investigated by the Chief 
Executive and the Monitoring Officer.  

4.9 Allegations against members of the public or external organisations must be 
notified to the Head of Internal Audit immediately they are discovered.  The 
Head of Internal Audit investigates the allegation in conjunction with the 
relevant department.

4.10 The Council also encourages members of the public to raise any genuine 
concerns, which will be appropriately investigated. If members of the public 
wish to report an allegation they should contact the Chief Executive or any 
Director of the Council.  

4.11 Councillors who wish to report an alleged case of fraud or corruption should 
contact the Chief Executive, Head of Internal Audit or the relevant Director, as 
appropriate to the allegation.

4.12 In cases of suspected Money Laundering, this should be reported to the 
Money Laundering Reporting Officer, currently the Head of Internal Audit. 
More information on the procedures to follow in such cases is included in the 
Managers’ Guide to Anti-Money Laundering.

4.13 The process for raising and investigating different types of concern is 
summarised in the flowchart at Appendix A.

4.14 The decision to involve the Police will be made by the Head of Internal Audit 
in consultation with the relevant Director.

4.15 Clear procedures are in place for briefing Members and senior officers of the 
Council of fraud investigations. See Appendix A for details.

Page 244



Reviewed: Civic Affairs Committee June 2013

5       LIAISON WITH OTHERS

5.1 The Council has arrangements in place for the exchange of information with 
other agencies in relation to the detection and investigation of fraud and 
corruption, for example with the Audit Commission for the National Fraud 
Initiative and the Department for Work and Pensions for Housing Benefit 
Data Matching. Any transfer of data between the Council and other 
organisations is conducted in a secure manner. 

6 COMMITMENT TO FIGHT FRAUD AND CORRUPTION

6.1 The Council considers it has taken reasonable and appropriate steps to 
combat fraud and corruption within the Council.  It is determined that these 
arrangements will continue to be effective in the future.  The Council will 
therefore consider any future measures to combat fraud and corruption where 
the proposal can be demonstrated to be cost effective and successful.  The 
Council is also committed to participating in any appropriate Central 
Government led fraud initiatives.

6.2 This strategy will be subject to review to ensure it is kept up to date and 
relevant.

Relevant Contact Numbers

Chief Executive                              (01223) 457001
Head of Internal Audit                    (01223) 458181
Head of Human Resources           (01223) 458101
Monitoring Officer                          (01223) 457001
Fraud Prevention Officer             (01223) 457731
(Revenue Services)

Definitions of fraud and corruption

For the purpose of this strategy fraud and corruption are defined as:

FRAUD: dishonest or improper behaviour or acts intended to secure 
an advantage, whether financial or non-financial, for the perpetrator or 
for a third party, or to cause loss or risk of loss to another.

CORRUPTION: the offering, giving, soliciting or acceptance of an 
improper inducement or reward in order to influence the action of a 
Member of the Council, employee, contractor or partner.

Page 245



Reviewed: Civic Affairs Committee June 2013

FRAUD INVESTIGATIONS: PROCEDURE FOR BRIEFING MEMBERS
AND SENIOR OFFICERS

This procedure note is intended to advise Directors, Internal Audit and other staff 
who may be involved in fraud investigations about the points at which they should 
ensure that appropriate senior officers and members are briefed.  The procedure has 
to respect the need for confidentiality and the maintenance of proper impartiality 
where disciplinary action is contemplated.  It supplements the requirement in the 
Council’s Financial Regulations section 3.51 for Directors to notify the Head of 
internal Audit of all suspected irregularities.

The procedure applies to all cases where the alleged fraud involves City Council 
staff or contractors.  It also applies to fraud by members of the public.

1. At the point where officers decide there is sufficient evidence to warrant 
either:

a) commencing formal disciplinary proceedings; or 
b) referring an investigation to the police 

the appropriate Director must ensure that the following are informed:

Officers: CEX and the Monitoring Officer

Members: The leaders of the political groups (CEX) and the party 
spokespersons (Director) for the relevant committee.  This may 
be impractical if more than one committee is involved. In this 
case, CEX will brief the Group Leaders.

The content of the briefing required will depend on the nature of the case.  
Briefing for members can be done orally and if information is particularly 
sensitive this should be discussed in advance with CEX or Monitoring Officer 
so that the amount of information to be disclosed can be agreed. The contents 
of any briefing should be kept confidential by those that receive them.

You should bear in mind that if Members are briefed in any detail they may
not be able to be involved in any subsequent disciplinary process. It is unlikely 
that the party leaders or spokespersons would be needed for this role, but this 
aspect should be discussed with the CEX or Head of Human Resources in 
advance.

2. As the investigation proceeds, it is important to keep the information to senior 
officers and members up-to-date and the Director should repeat the briefing to 
the CEX and Monitoring Officer and agreed Members as necessary and 
certainly where:

a) an internal disciplinary case is likely to go to Members on appeal;

b) an employee is summarily dismissed or resigns in circumstances which 
were likely to lead to dismissal;

c) the police/CPS decide to either drop a case or proceed with charges;

Page 246



Reviewed: Civic Affairs Committee June 2013

d) in the case of a prosecution, the court hearing date is given (or 
amended);

e) there is likely to be media interest for some other reason.

f) the investigation finds there is no case to answer.

3. In the case of court proceedings the Head of Internal Audit is responsible for 
checking regularly with the police, the Clerk to the Court or another relevant 
contact to obtain information on hearing dates and informing the CEX and the 
relevant Director(s) who need to ensure that Members are informed.

Page 247



Reviewed: Civic Affairs Committee June 2013

Addendum 1

CAMBRIDGE CITY COUNCIL

ANTI – BRIBERY POLICY & PROCEDURES

1. Introduction

1.1. The purpose of this document is to supplement the Council’s Prevention of 
Fraud and Corruption Policy and specifically covers the criminal offence of 
Bribery.

1.2. The Bribery Act 2010 came into force on 1 July 2011 and places additional 
requirements on ‘commercial organisations’. Whilst the Council is not a 
‘commercial organisation’ in terms of its normal local authority activities, to 
ensure that the City Council does not fall foul of the new legislation, the 
Council should have regard to the principles of the Act in the conduct of its 
activities and its policies and procedures.

1.3. The Bribery Act 2010 
(http://www.opsi.gov.uk/acts/acts2010/ukpga_20100023_en_1)
makes it an offence to offer, promise or give a bribe (Section 1). It also makes 
it an offence to request, agree to receive, or accept a bribe (Section 2). 
Section 6 of the Act creates a new separate offence of bribing a foreign public 
official. There is also a corporate offence under Section 7 of failure by a 
commercial organisation to prevent bribery. 

1.4 The Act extends to all persons associated with the City Council, including 
employees at all levels and grades, those permanently employed and 
temporary agency staff; Members (including co-opted or external Members); 
suppliers; contractors; partners; volunteers and consultants.

1.5 The definition of ‘Bribery’ for the purposes of this policy is given below:

Definition of Bribery:

‘Bribery’ is defined as:

The promise, giving, request, acceptance or receipt of a 
financial or other advantage (e.g. hospitality) to induce or 
reward a person for improper performance of a relevant 
function of activity. The advantage can be promised, given, 
requested, accepted or received either directly or via a third 
party. 
The advantage can be for the benefit of the person 
performing the function or another person.

Page 248



Reviewed: Civic Affairs Committee June 2013

2 Policy Statement

2.1 Bribery is a criminal offence. Cambridge City Council does not, and will not 
pay, offer, or request bribes to anyone for any purpose, nor does it or will it 
accept or receive bribes or improper inducements from anyone for any 
purpose. To use a third party as a means to channel bribes to others is also a 
criminal offence.

2.2 The Council is committed to the prevention, deterrence and detection of 
bribery and has a zero-tolerance attitude towards bribery. There is an 
expectation and requirement that all individuals and organisations associated 
in whatever way with the Council will act with honesty and integrity and that 
Council employees at all levels, and Councillors, will lead by example in these 
matters.

2.3 Areas of the Council’s business that could be exposed to the risk of bribery 
include:

 Procuring of supplies, goods, or services;

 Awarding concessions, grants, and licences;

 Approving planning applications;

 Selling or letting commercial properties;

 Cancelling liabilities (e.g. business rates, debtors);

 Allocating housing;

 Recruiting staff;

 Determining the course of enforcement action.

This is not an exhaustive list, but sets out some of the areas where there may 
be a risk of bribery arising.

2.4 This Policy does not change the Council’s policy on gifts & hospitality, which 
is set out in the Employee Code of 
Conduct: http://intranet.ccc.local/hr/documents/policy_code_of_conduct.doc.

The Code of Conduct makes it clear that you should:

 refuse any gift you are offered by external people you come into contact 
with at work, with the exception of small, low value items or where refusal 
is likely to offend the donor.

 only accept hospitality where it is on a corporate rather than a personal 
basis, and it is appropriate to the occasion. 

 ensure there is a record of any gift or hospitality in the Gifts and Hospitality 
Register and that your Manager has authorised this.

The prevention, detection and reporting of bribery and other forms of 
corruption are the responsibility of all those working for, or associated with, the 
City Council. If you witness (or have reasonable grounds to suspect) that any 
act of bribery has/ is taking place, it is your responsibility to report the matter 
to the Head of Internal Audit (by telephone: extension 8181 or (01223) 458181 
or by e-mail: whistleblowing@cambridge.gov.uk

Page 249



APPENDIX 2 Cambridge City Council

Code of Conduct for all employees

April 2013 1

What is the Code of Conduct?
The Code of Conduct tells you what Cambridge City Council 
expects of you in your daily work and your dealings with your 
colleagues and members of the public. The Council wants to 
maintain high standards of service and reputation and this 
document tells you how you play your part in that. 

In all aspects of your employment, the Council is committed to 
treating you fairly and with dignity and respect at all times, in line 
with the Comprehensive Equalities and Diversity Policy. 

Who does it apply to?
This Code applies to all employees, whether permanent or fixed 
term. Contractors, consultants, temporary agency staff, casuals 
and volunteers are required to follow the Code when carrying out 
work for the Council. 
Additional guidance for Senior Managers (including Directors, 
Heads of Service and managers who report directly to a Head of 
Service) is given at Appendix 1 to this Code.
Elected Members have their own separate Code of Conduct, 
available on the intranet.

What does the Council expect from you?
Under this Code of Conduct, you are required to:

 Conduct yourself with the highest standards of honesty and 
integrity so the Public maintain confidence in the Council.  

 Understand and follow the Code of Conduct and other rules 
and procedures relevant to your job.

 Follow reasonable management instructions. 

 Attend work in a condition to be able to carry out your work 
safely.

 Act professionally and treat others with dignity and respect.       

If you breach the rules of this Code of Conduct it could result in 
disciplinary action being taken against you. 

Council money and equipment
If public funds are entrusted to you they must be used in a lawful 
and responsible manner, and following any local rules and 
procedures. Council facilities, vehicles or property must not be 

Page 250



APPENDIX 2 Cambridge City Council

Code of Conduct for all employees

April 2013 2

used for personal use. Specific rules about internet and e-mail use 
can be viewed on the Intranet. 

Conduct outside work
Although what you do in your free time is your own concern, you 
should avoid any actions that will negatively affect the reputation of 
the Council. If you are charged, cautioned or convicted with a 
criminal offence, or implicated in a criminal investigation; you must 
notify the Council immediately.

Having another job
If you have another job, you must inform your Manager, and 
ensure that it does not conflict with your job at the Council. You 
must not work a total of more than 48 hours per week on average 
(as stated in the Working Time Regulations), unless the Council 
have agreed to you ‘opting out’ of this maximum. This will only be 
agreed to in exceptional circumstances. Please refer to the 
Working Time policy for more information.   

If you are in pay band 4 or above you must obtain the consent of 
your Manager before taking another job.        

Accepting gifts 
The principle is that you should refuse any gift you are offered by 
external people you come into contact with at work. The only 
exception is for small items such as calendars, diaries, sweets or 
similar token low value gifts and where refusal is likely to offend 
the donor.

If you are offered something unexpectedly, inform your 
Director/Head of Service, who will consider the circumstances 
under which the gift has been offered and decide whether it is 
appropriate to accept it. For example, if you are involved in a 
tendering exercise and one of the potential suppliers offers you a 
gift or generous hospitality, this offer should be reported to your 
line manager and recorded in the gifts/hospitality register, even if 
the gift/hospitality is subsequently refused. 

You should ensure there is a record of any gift received (other than 
the small, low value items described above) in the Gifts and 

Hospitality Register and that your Manager has authorised this.

Page 251



APPENDIX 2 Cambridge City Council

Code of Conduct for all employees

April 2013 3

You should be aware that under the Bribery Act 2010 it is a 
criminal offence to corruptly receive a gift, loan, fee, reward or 
advantage for doing or not doing anything in your official capacity.

Hospitality
You should only accept hospitality where it is on a corporate rather 
than a personal basis, and it is appropriate to the occasion, e.g. 
tea/coffee/biscuits/cake/refreshments.
Attending a working lunch, or a dinner or ceremony where you will 
be representing the Council are examples of acceptable 
hospitality, although you must obtain approval from your Manager 
and this should be recorded in the gifts/hospitality register.
Further advice on gifts and hospitality is contained in a set of FAQs 
on the HR intranet pages: 

Being politically neutral
You must be politically neutral and unbiased in your dealings at 
work, whether or not you are in a ‘politically restricted’ post. This 
means you can’t allow your political opinions to influence or 
interfere with your work. If your post is politically restricted, further 
political restriction guidance is available on the intranet.

Expressing your views
You should not publicly voice or associate yourself with an opinion, 
which is in conflict with a Council view, on a matter that relates to 
your job. This could lead to loss of public confidence in the 
Council. 
If you are required to explain a decision the Council has made, in 
the course of your job, you should not express your personal 
views. The Media Protocol gives further information. Guidance for 
attendance at public/political meetings is contained in Appendix 2.

Conflicts of interest
You should inform your Manager immediately if any conflict of 
interest occurs between your work duties and your personal life. 
Examples of where a conflict of interest could arise include:

 Involvement with a business that is competing with the 
Council for work.

 Relationships of a business or a personal nature with an 
external contractor. 

 Involvement with an individual or firm who has submitted a 
planning application.

Page 252



APPENDIX 2 Cambridge City Council

Code of Conduct for all employees

April 2013 4

 Membership of a community group whose views and actions 
may oppose that of the Council. 

 Being on the panel of an interview where you have a 
personal friendship or are related to the interviewee; or being 
in a position where you are the line manager to a close 
personal friend or relative 

 You (or a relative or close friend) submitting a planning 
application. 

 Matters that affect you or your family, such as lodging an 
objection to a planning application as a Cambridge resident.

You must declare personal membership of any organisation which 
is not open to the public, without formal membership and 
commitment of allegiance and which has secrecy about rules or 
members conduct.   
If you think a conflict of interest has arisen please inform your 
Manager immediately. Where a conflict of interest arises, this 
should be formally recorded by your Line Manager.

Concerns
If you have a general concern at work, you should speak to your 
Line Manager. 
If you have a concern about serious malpractice at work, such as 
something unethical, fraudulent or illegal, you can contact the 
Whistle blowing line. Telephone: extension 8181 / 01223 458181 
or e-mail: whistleblowing@cambridge.gov.uk
View the full whistleblowing policy on the intranet.
If you are concerned about bullying or harassment, you should 
refer to the Bullying and Harassment Policy. 

Confidential Information
In the course of doing your job, you may have access to 
confidential information such as information about members of the 
Public. You must never disclose such information without 
authorisation, or make personal use of it. You must also ensure 
that confidential information sent outside of the organisation is sent 
securely, via recorded delivery or is encrypted if being sent 
electronically. The Data Protection pages on the intranet give 
further guidance. 

Page 253



APPENDIX 2 Cambridge City Council

Code of Conduct for all employees

April 2013 5

Separation of roles during tendering
If you are involved in the tendering process you should be clear on 
the separation of client and contractor roles. You must not disclose 
confidential information on tenders or costs of internal / external 
contractors to any unauthorised person or organisation.

Safeguarding of Children and Vulnerable Adults
Cambridge City Council has a statutory duty to safeguard and 
promote the welfare of children, and to develop procedures to 
protect vulnerable adults. As a City Council employee, you:

 Must be aware of the Safeguarding Policy

 Must attend Safeguarding training if it’s required for your job

 Must not begin any unsupervised activity involving access to 
children or vulnerable adults before receiving a satisfactory 
Criminal Records Bureau (CRB) check from the Council.

 Must report inappropriate behaviour or bad practice.

Where to get more information
The Council’s Intranet site contains employment policies and 
guidance, as well as health and safety information. 

Speak to your Line Manager if you have any questions or if 
you cannot access the required information from the Intranet.  

Page 254



APPENDIX 2 Cambridge City Council

Code of Conduct for all employees

April 2013 6

Appendix 1 
For Senior Management

Scope
This guidance applies to you if you hold a senior Management 
position (where you report directly to a Head of Service) or the 
position of Head of Service or Director. You are also bound by the 
‘Code of Conduct for All Employees’.

Your responsibilities
As a senior manager of Cambridge City Council, you hold a 
position of greater trust and confidence. You are expected to:

 Be a role model for all employees in upholding the Code of 
Conduct, and ensure your teams are aware of its contents. 

 Conduct your role with openness, honesty and integrity at all 
times.

 Ensure that employees understand their roles and that Council 
policies and procedures are accessible to all.

 Act promptly, thoroughly and fairly when responding to reports 
of wrong doing within the Council.

 Consider sustainability issues when carrying out your role 
including in the procurement of goods and services. 

 Report any personal conflict of interest immediately.

 Ensure Council funds and resources are used in a proper 
manner.    

Political neutrality
In the course of your work you are expected to adopt a politically 
neutral and objective approach at all times. You may be required, 
as part of your role to attend public meetings or private political 
meetings. You must refer to the Guidance for attendance at public/ 
political meetings contained in Appendix 2.
If you hold a politically restricted post, you must read and comply 
with the Political Restriction Policy.

Personal relationships
Close personal familiarity with another employee, Councillor or 
member of the Council or a contractor may lead to an accusation 

Page 255



APPENDIX 2 Cambridge City Council

Code of Conduct for all employees

April 2013 7

of bias or other employees feeling uncomfortable; it should 
therefore be avoided where possible. If a relationship arises this 
must be immediately disclosed to your Manager.

You must not be involved in the appointment of any applicant for a 
job if you are their relative, friend or partner; nor should you take a 
role in their discipline, promotion or pay adjustment. If you are put 
in a position of being the line manager to your relative, close friend 
or partner this must also be immediately disclosed. You must not 
be involved in the awarding of a contract for anyone you are in a 
close personal relationship with outside of work.

Ethical decision making
As a senior manager you make decisions daily that could be 
analysed or interpreted by others. Not every ethical dilemma can 
be outlined in a written Code. You should consider:

 Is the public’s confidence in the Council at risk?

 Would a member of the public see the proposed action, 
decision or practice as fair, honest and appropriate?

 Would the action comply with relevant legislation, policy and 
practice?

Annual declaration
Directors and Heads of Service are required to complete a 
Declaration of Pecuniary Interests on an annual basis. This 
includes details of any outside business interests. The declaration 
form will be sent to you when it is due to be completed.

You should speak to your Manager if you are in any doubt 
about a particular issue or aspect of your role.

Page 256



APPENDIX 2 Cambridge City Council

Code of Conduct for all employees

April 2013 8

Appendix 2
Guidance for attendance at public / political meetings

Scope
This guidance applies to all employees. 

Public meetings
You may be expected to attend a public meeting called by a 
Councillor, to give a professional or technical view or answer 
questions.
Attendance at public meetings is acceptable only when meetings 
are genuinely open and invitations to platform speakers are not 
restricted to one political group.

Public political meetings
It is not acceptable for you in your official capacity to speak at a 
public political meeting called by a political group. 

Private political groups
You will not be called upon to attend or advise any private political 
group meeting. However the Chief Executive, Directors and Heads 
of Service may attend a private political group meeting to explain 
or advise on Council policies or issues; provided that this facility is 
available to all political groups who are represented on the 
Council.

Politically restricted posts
If you hold a politically restricted post, you may not speak in public 
or publish material that affects support for a political group. 
However it is acceptable to explain the Council’s position on a 
policy or issue in your official capacity. Refer to the Political 
Restriction Policy for further guidance.

Political publicity 
In the course of your work, you must not publish any material, or 
give quotes which partly or wholly appear to support one political 
group. This includes materials or quotes referring to a political 
group, or promoting or opposing a point of view that is identifiable 
to one political group.  
Speak to your Head of Service or Director if you require 
further guidance about attendance at public/ political 
meetings.

Page 257



Appendix 2

Frequently Asked Questions in relation to Gifts & Hospitality and Conflicts of 
Interest 

Q: I have been offered a diary and a wall planner by a supplier to the Council that I 
deal with, can I accept them? 
A: Yes. Low value or token items such as these can be accepted, as they are 
items that will be used in the office and therefore do not need to be recorded.

Q: I have been offered a bottle of wine/chocolates by one of the Council’s suppliers, 
can I accept them? 
A: Provided these are low value items and this is a one-off occurrence then 
this is acceptable, but it is down to the discretion of your line manager. 
Consideration should be given to donating items such as this to one of the 
mayor’s charities. These items should be recorded in the hospitality register. 

Q: I have been asked to attend a working lunch in relation to a joint working 
arrangement with a number of other local councils/organisations, can I go? 
A: Yes. You will be representing the Council at this event in your official 
capacity, so you can attend. You should still notify your line manager and 
record it in the hospitality register. 

Q: A supplier to the Council has invited me to attend an event using their corporate 
hospitality box, can I go? 
A: No. This is not an event where you will be representing the Council in your 
official capacity so you should not attend. You should report it to your line 
manager and record the offer in the hospitality register. 

Q: Our office is in need of some urgent repair work, my friend is able to do the work 
and offers very good rates, can I get him to do the work? 
A: No. Orders and contracts for any work required by the Council must be 
awarded by fair competition and no special favour should be shown to 
businesses run by friends/relatives. 

Q: My partner works for a contractor that will be tendering for work with the council, 
what should I do? 
A: Inform your line manager of your interest. You should not be involved in the 
evaluation of any tender relating to the contract concerned. If this is not 
possible (e.g. due to specialist technical expertise required) you should 
contact the Head of Internal Audit (Ext. 8181) to discuss. 

Q: I regularly attend meetings with external groups and am sometimes offered a 
piece of cake/sweets/cup of tea, for example, during the meeting. Do I need to record 
this in the hospitality register ?
A: No, as this is refreshment being offered as part of your working day and 
provided the offer of refreshment is being extended to all attending the 
meeting and is not excessive it is OK to accept. N.B. This is different to being 
invited to a formal lunch, which should be recorded and approved by your line 
manager.

Page 258



Appendix 2

Q: What should I do if I suspect any wrongdoing with regards to the acceptance of 
gifts or hospitality of if I suspect that someone has not declared a potential conflict of 
interest? 
A: You should speak to your line manager in the first place who should refer it 
the Head of Internal Audit if they are concerned. If you feel it is not appropriate 
to talk to your line manager or if you feel that they have failed to address your 
concerns properly, then you can raise your concern directly with the Head of 
Internal Audit, under the Council’s Whistleblowing Policy.

The above questions and answers provide some examples of situations you 
may encounter while at work. You may encounter other situations where you 
are not sure what to do and some judgement may be required as to what is 
appropriate or reasonable.  

If in any doubt, contact your line manager, HR or Internal Audit for advice.

Page 259



Page 260

This page is intentionally left blank



 

Report Page No: 1 Agenda Page No: 

Agenda Item          
 

CAMBRIDGE CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
REPORT OF: Chief Executive 
   
 TO: Civic Affairs Committee 26/06/2013 
   
 WARDS: All 
 

UPDATE ON ACTION PLAN TO ADDRESS ISSUES EMERGING FROM 
BUDGET FORECASTING ERROR  

 
1 INTRODUCTION    

 
1.1 Civic Affairs Committee considered a report on 17 April 2013 regarding actions 

that were being taken in response to Ernst & Young’s review of errors discovered 
in financial modelling in respect of the 2012/13 budget. One of these actions was 
to report back on possible improvements to future processes and this report 
suggests changes to the Council‘s processes in relation to the Medium Term 
Strategy (MTS) and its scrutiny.  

 
1.2 The report asks the Committee to support the principle of amending the 

constitution to invest the role of Section 151 officer in a new post of Head of 
Finance should the Leader of the Council decide to recommend this to Council. 
 

1.3 The report also updates the Committee on the progress with other actions in the 
action plan. 

 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
Civic Affairs Committee is asked to recommend to Council: 

 
2.1 That the Budget Setting Report should be the place where the Council sets out its 

medium term financial strategy in future years, rather than being produced as a 
separate Medium Term Strategy document.   

 
2.2 That the Council undertakes a Mid-Year Financial Review in its autumn cycle 

comprising the following core elements: 
 

a) To consider the implications of year-end actuals on both revenue and capital 

expenditure going forward and level of reserves  

b) To consider any implications from the Annual Statement 

c) To reflect any changes from the Government’s Budget and Spending Review 

Announcements  

Agenda Item 10

Page 261



 

Report Page No: 2 Agenda Page No: 

d) To test underlying assumptions about inflation and interest rates in the light of 

latest information and conditions 

e) To review forecasts on retained business rate and Council Tax in light of actual 

growth and latest projections  

f) To consider what impact all of the above have on reserves and future savings 

targets 

 
2.3 That the proposed Mid-Year Financial Review document should be considered by 

Strategy & Resources Scrutiny Committee before the Leader makes a 

recommendation to Council. 

2.4  To delegate authority to the Chief Executive to amend the Council’s Constitution to 

reflect these new arrangements. 

 
The Committee is asked to resolve: 
 
2.5 That, subject to more detailed consideration by the Council, following the Chief 

Executive’s report to the Leader and Strategy & Resources Scrutiny Committee, it 
endorses the proposal to designate a new Head of Finance post as Section 151 
Officer.  

 

3. PROPOSED CHANGES TO MTS PROCESS 
 
3.1  I reported to the last meeting on actions that were being taken to address the 

issues raised in Ernst & Young’s review of the errors discovered in financial 
modelling in respect of the 2012/13 budget.  One of these actions was make 
recommendations to Civic Affairs to streamline and simplify the council’s financial 
decision making processes and to report back on possible improvements to future 
processes. 

 
3.2 The officer work to date has focused on changes to the MTS process, as the 

Council needs to make decisions on this issue now, to enable planning for this 
year’s autumn cycle. I will report back to Civic Affairs in September on any 
changes proposed to the budget setting process.  

  
3.3 The Council has produced a detailed Medium Term Strategy over the summer for 

reporting to the autumn Council meeting for a number of years.  The document 
currently fulfils two functions: 

 
1. An opportunity to take a long-term view of the Council’s finance – which has 

been done over a 25 year model for a number of years.   
2. An opportunity to review assumptions made in the previous February’s Budget 

Setting Report (BSR) to see whether any of those assumptions need changing 

as we begin preparations for the next year’s budget. 

3.4 With regard to the first function, there is no requirement to take a long term look at 
this particular time of the year and many councils simply incorporate their long 
term financial planning as part of their final budget setting report.  Experience in 

Page 262



 

Report Page No: 3 Agenda Page No: 

recent years has shown that most Government announcements happen so late in 
the budget setting process that the Executive has needed to make material 
revisions to long term assumptions anyway, as part of the BSR in the following 
February.  So, in this sense, there is limited advantage in taking a detailed long- 
term view in the autumn as a separate process.  

 
3.5 The second function is more critical in terms of timing.  The document provides an 

opportunity to review assumptions made in the previous February’s BSR and to 
see whether any of those assumptions need changing as we begin preparations 
for the future year’s budget.   The timing is important as it allows the Council to 
review the impact of year-end outturn for the previous year and the implications 
these may have for future plans. It also allows adjustment to budgets as a result of 
the revised priorities of any new administration following the May election. 

 
3.6 Having some form of financial review in the autumn allows the Council to do a 

number of things: 
 

a) To consider the implications of year-end actuals on both revenue and capital 

expenditure going forward and level of reserves  

b) To consider any implications from the Annual Statement, particularly relevant if 

there is a change in Council administration in any year 

c) To reflect any changes from the Government’s Budget and Spending Review 

Announcements  

d) To test underlying assumptions about inflation and interest rates in the light of 

latest information and conditions 

e) To review forecasts on retained business rate and Council Tax in light of actual 

growth and latest projections  

f) To consider what impact all of the above have on reserves and future savings 

targets 

3.7 The list above is the key content that it makes sense for the Council to consider in 
early autumn.   

 
3.8 A significant amount of resource in the finance team and the council more widely, 

goes into producing a detailed MTS in addition to the BSR.  It is proposed in future 
that the BSR should be the place where the Council sets out its medium term 
financial strategy, as well as detailed budget and Council Tax proposals for the 
following year.   The current MTS would be replaced by a much shorter Mid-Year 
Financial Review document which would  fulfil the core functions of the current 
MTS (as laid out in para 3.6 above) namely reviewing assumptions made in the 
BSR and updating assumptions if any such updating is required in the lead into 
the budget setting round.  Removing the long-term strategic elements from the 
mid-year document (rather than duplicating that which will still appear in the BSR) 
will not only release officer capacity but also provide members with a more 
concise and focused document which will facilitate more thorough scrutiny. 

 
3.9 At the meeting in April, Civic Affairs raised the issue of how the MTS was 

scrutinised before it was put before Council for approval. In recent years the MTS 

Page 263



 

Report Page No: 4 Agenda Page No: 

has been considered by the Executive without Scrutiny Committee review. 
Members expressed the view that formal scrutiny of the MTS by a scrutiny 
committee was desirable. 

 
3.10 It is proposed that a Mid-Year Financial Review document should be considered at 

a special meeting of Strategy & Resources Scrutiny Committee before the Leader 
makes a recommendation to Council. In 2013 this would be timetabled to replace 
the scheduled Executive meeting on 29 September. 
 

3.11  If approved the Constitution will need updating to reflect these proposals. 
 

4. CONSULTATION ON CHANGES TO THE ROLE OF S151 OFFICER 
 

4.1 I reported to the last meeting that I intended to consult on changes to the structure 
of the Resources department to separate the role of the Section 151 officer from 
the post of Director of Resources.  I will be making detailed proposals on this to 
the Leader which would be considered at Strategy & Resources Scrutiny 
Committee in July, before formal consideration by Council on 19 July.  

 
4.2      In summary, having considered the consultation responses, I intend to pursue  

this proposal. I will propose that a new Head of Finance post should be created  
to fulfil the role of section 151 officer.  This will have implications for the current  
posts of Director of Resources and Head of Accountancy and Support Services. 

 
4.3 I will report in more detail on the consultation responses in my Strategy & 

Resources report but would highlight two issues that have been raised which are 
of particular relevance to this committee.  

 
1. A number of respondents commented that CIPFA’s guidance on the role of 

the Section 151 Officer requires that not only should the post holder be 
professionally qualified, but they should also report directly to the Chief 
Executive, and be a member of the Leadership Team with a status at least 
equal to other members 
 
This is CIPFA’s guidance and reflects a more traditional model of council 
structure. But it is non-statutory guidance and a number of councils have their 
section 151 officer reporting to a Director and not reporting in line management 
terms directly to the Chief Executive.  This includes Southend and Luton, which 
are unitary authorities, Surrey County Council and Oxford City Council.  It is now 
also common to see shared Section 151 officers across more than one council 
and these types of arrangements are not reflected at all in the CIPFA guidance.    
 
It is my proposal that the Head of Finance should be a full member of the Strategic 
Leadership Team. I would also expect them to report directly to me on financial 
matters, as the Head of Legal Services does in his Monitoring Officer role or the 
Head of Internal Audit does in his role.  This does not mean that I need to have 
line management responsibility for the post or the whole of the finance service.  
 

2. It was also suggested that CIPFA guidance states that the Head of Internal 
Audit should report to the Chief Financial Officer.  
 
In fact the guidance states that the Chief Financial Officer should ensure ‘that the 
authority has put in place effective arrangements for Internal Audit…’ and 

Page 264



 

Report Page No: 5 Agenda Page No: 

‘implement appropriate measures to prevent and detect fraud’.  This does not 
require the direct management of the function by the officer to ensure this. The 
CIPFA statement on the role of the Head of Internal Audit suggests that the post 
should report to a member of the management team and is not specific about 
which this should be.  It could be argued that there is in fact more independence if 
they are not managed directly by the s151 officer, whose systems they are 
assuring.   

 
4.4 The CIPFA guidance also says  
 

"There is a growing trend for CFOs to hold a range of different responsibilities 
beyond finance, including managing other services or leading change 
programmes. Whilst these can develop the individual as a corporate manager, 
authorities must not let the CFO’s core financial responsibilities be compromised 
through creating too wide a portfolio.” 

 
I believe my proposals address this concern directly.  
 

4.5    I have discussed the proposed structure with our External Auditor and he is  
satisfied that my proposals address his comments. 
 

4.6 If agreed, the proposed structure will depart from the CIPFA guidelines outlined 
above and CIPFA suggests this departure should be noted in our annual 
governance statement.  
 

4.6  Civic Affairs is asked that, subject to more detailed consideration by the Council, 
following the Chief Executive’s report to the Leader and Strategy & Resources 
Scrutiny Committee, it endorses the proposal to designate the new Head of 
Finance post as Section 151 Officer.  
 

4.7  If the recommendations are approved then changes will be needed to the 
Constitution to reallocate delegations currently held by the Director of Resources 
in the role of S151 Officer.  Council will be asked to delegate authority to the Chief 
Executive to amend the Council’s Scheme of Delegation to reflect the new 
structure.  

 
5. UPDATE ON OTHER ACTIONS  

  

 Action Who Update  

 
1. 

Internal Audit will work with the 
Finance team to make 
improvements to the control 
and supervision in the service 
and to address 
recommendations 1, 2 and 4. 
 
 

Head of 
Internal 
Audit  
 
Head of 
Accounting 
Services  

Some changes to the control 
environment have been implemented. 
Internal Audit will continue to work with 
the service to address any further 
changes in controls that may be 
required to reflect proposed changes 
to the council‘s decision making 
processes. They will also be checking 
that agreed controls are being used. 
 

Page 265



 

Report Page No: 6 Agenda Page No: 

 
2. 

The financial model will be 
reviewed to ensure it is fit for 
purpose in accordance with 
recommendation 6 and 
decisions made on whether to 
make changes and 
improvements to the existing 
model or to procure a new 
one. 
 
 

 
Head of 
Accounting 
Services 
  
DOR 

A review of systems used in a number 
of other local authorities has been 
completed.  A demonstration has been 
arranged of a proprietary alternative 
which appears to be the only suitable 
one available that links to Oracle 
Financials (the Council’s financial 
system).  A decision on whether this is 
the best way forward is on target to be 
made by end of July. 

3. Any recommendations from 
external audit as part of their 
annual audit work will also be 
incorporated into improved 
process.  

External 
Audit  

These will be picked up during the year 
as part of the Council’s work with 
external audit. 

4. In accordance with 
recommendations 3 and 5, 
systems within the finance 
team will be reviewed  
 

1. to ensure that there are 
clear processes in place 
to capture information 
and knowledge in case 
of staff absence  

2. to ensure there are 
clear escalation polices 
and processes for 
problems with the 
service 

 
All staff in the team will be 
provided with copies of these 
policies and processes and 
any necessary training will be 
provided. 
 
Managers tasked with 
ensuring these are effectively 
embedded in the culture and 
practice of the service. 
 
 

 
 
 
 
Head of 
Accounting 
Services 
(supported   
by  
Head of 
HR) 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

1. Completed 
 
 
 
 
 

2. Initial draft agreed and being 
checked against good practice 
elsewhere. 

 
 
 
In progress 
 
 
 
 
This is being reinforced through team 
meetings. It will also be reinforced 
through the Council’s performance 
review system. 

5. Appropriate actions are being 
taken in accordance with 
council’s HR policies. 
 

CEX Completed 

Page 266



 

Report Page No: 7 Agenda Page No: 

6. CEX to consult on changes to 
the structure of the Resources 
department to separate the 
role of Section 151 officer from 
the role of Director of 
Resources.   

 
CEX 

Consultation closed on 5 June 2013. 
Outcomes to be reported to Strategy & 
Resources Scrutiny Committee and 
Council in July 2013. 

7. Implementation of agreed 
changes.  

CEX This will be dependent on decisions 
made by full Council. 
 

8. Make recommendations to 
Civic Affairs Committee to 
streamline and simplify the 
council’s financial decision 
making processes. The aim 
will be to balance the need to 
free up capacity and make 
efficient use of the 
organisational resources 
available, with the need to give 
members clear and 
transparent oversight of the 
council’s finances. 
 

CEX Recommendations in relation to the 
MTS process are covered in this 
report.  There will be a further report in 
September on the BSR process.  

 
6. IMPLICATIONS 
 

(a) Financial Implications 
 

Financial implications will be reported to Strategy & Resources Scrutiny 
Committee. 

 
(b) Staffing Implications  
 
 As described in 4.2. 
 
(c) Equal Opportunities Implications 
 
 There are no direct equal opportunities implications.  
 
(d) Environmental Implications 

 
The proposals have no climate change impact. 
 

     (e) Consultations 
 

The consultation document on structure was sent to all staff in Accountancy and 
Support Services, all Directors and Head of Service and all Councillors. I also 
consulted with our External Auditor.  

 
 
 
 
 

Page 267



 

Report Page No: 8 Agenda Page No: 

 
 7. BACKGROUND PAPERS:  
 

The following are the background papers that were used in the preparation of this 
report: 
 
Consultation responses 
CIPFA Guidance on the role of the Chief Financial Officer and the Head of Internal 
Audit. 
 
 
The author and contact officer for queries on the report is Antoinette Jackson on 
extension 7001. 
 
Report file:  
Date originated:  17 June 2013 
Date of last revision: 17 June 2013 
 

Page 268



 

 

 

 

 

 

Agenda Item          
 

CAMBRIDGE CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
REPORT OF: Director of Resources 
   
 TO: Civic Affairs Committee 26/6/2013 
   
 WARDS: All 
 
REVIEW OF CONTRACT PROCEDURE RULES (PART 4G OF THE 
CONSTITUTION) 

 

 
1 INTRODUCTION    
  
1.1 The current Contract Procedure Rules in the Council’s Constitution 

(Part 4G) were written in 2007.  Although they have been amended 
in parts since then a full review is now required.  This work forms 
part of the Corporate Change Programme Bureaucracy Busting 
workstream. 

 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
2.1 To approve the changes to Part 4G of the Constitution, Contract 

Procedure Rules, as shown in appendix 1 to this report for 
implementation with effect from 1 November 2013. 

 
2.2 If approved, to refer the Contract Procedure Rules to the next 

meeting of Council for ratification. 
 
3.  BACKGROUND 

 
3.1. The Corporate Change Programme Bureaucracy Busting 

workstream has identified the Council’s procurement processes as 
a key area of work.  In order to carry out a root and branch review 
of the processes and documents that we use in our procurement 
activities it is necessary to start with a review of our internal Rules. 
 

Agenda Item 11

Page 269



Adopted [DATE] 2 

3.2. If adopted in the format in Appendix 1, the new Contract Procedure 
Rules (the Rules) will provide a basis for a lean approach to 
procurement because: 

 

• Budget holders will take more direct responsibility for and 
control over their procurements;  

 

• Under the new Rules the level of scrutiny and regulation that 
a project will receive will be based on an assessment of the 
risk inherent in the project (which will include the financial 
value) rather than purely on the basis of financial thresholds 
(which sometimes bear little relationship to wider project and 
commercial risks).   

 

• Adopting a risk based approach means that once the budget  
for a project has been approved, officers will be able to get 
on with low/medium risk procurements quickly thereby 
reducing the delivery time for routine new projects.  Member 
scrutiny will be reserved for high value/high risk projects.  

 
4. THE NEW RULES 

 
4.1. Prior to starting work on the new Rules we gave the opportunity to 

frequent users to identify the aspects of the existing rules that 
hindered their efficient delivery of projects.  In summary, users 
wanted simplicity and clarity with any unnecessary bureaucracy 
stripped from the processes. 

 
4.2. A mature draft of the Rules was sent to three high spend areas 

whose staff are familiar with the existing rules and who undertake 
regular procurements and to the internal contract auditors and 
contract lawyers.  Further amendments were made to the 
document to reflect the feedback that we received.  The new Rules 
have also been reviewed and approved by the Strategic 
Leadership team and the Corporate Change Board. 

 
4.3. The Rules that are now being proposed embody a different 

approach to procurement in the Authority.  In summary we have 
adopted a risk-based approach so that low/medium risk projects 
can be dealt with in departments with a minimum of fuss while high 
risk/high value projects attract a more rigorous approach requiring 
direct Member authority to issue tenders (and accept offers) and 
the early involvement of professional advisers within the Council.  

Page 270



Adopted [DATE] 3 

This will ensure that limited resources are targeted at projects with 
a high risk profile where failure would have a significant impact on 
the services that we provide to the public. 

 
4.4. The main changes to the existing Rules are: 

 
A. Simplified spend levels.  
 
 These are: 
 Below £10,000 - a single quotation is required 
 £10,000 to £49,999 – a minimum of three written quotations 

is required 
 
 £50,000 to EU threshold/£300,000 for works contracts– 

public tenders are required 
 
 EU threshold and above – EU compliant tenders required 
 
B. Positive steps to encourage local suppliers to compete for 

Council work by increasing the number of lower value 
contracts that are advertised on the Council’s website and on 
Source Cambridgeshire (a local advertising portal aimed at 
the local supply market); and by recommending that at least 
one supplier based in Cambridge or immediately surrounding 
area should, wherever possible, be included in the list of 
suppliers invited to submit quotations.   

 
C. Simplifying the approvals process by removing the 

requirement for Executive Councillor approval/pre-scrutiny for 
contracts below £300,000.  At the moment, irrespective of the 
strategic importance of a project or the level of risk, all 
contracts valued over £75,000 require Executive Councillor 
approval following pre-scrutiny.  This causes a significant 
bottle-neck. 

  
 The new Rules require only contracts over £300,000 (the key 

decision threshold) to be taken to Committee/Executive 
Councillor authority unless the relevant Director considers the 
project to be a high risk one (using the risk indicators on the 
matrix at Appendix 2). 

  
D.   Simplifying the requirements for Parent Company 

Guarantees(PCG) or Bonds. 

Page 271



Adopted [DATE] 4 

  
 At the moment PCGs are required for contracts over 

£250,000 and Bonds for contracts over £500,000.  Often 
these guarantees are unnecessary and add delay and cost to 
contracts. Bonds and Guarantees have rarely been called 
upon since the requirement was introduced and add (in the 
case of Bonds) avoidable cost to projects.  In future for 
contracts over £300,000 it will be for the relevant Director (in 
consultation with others as necessary) to assess the risk of 
the appointed contractor becoming insolvent or breaching a 
contract and to decide whether a PCG or Bond is necessary.    

  
E.  Simplifying the contract completion process.  At the moment 

all contracts over £75,000 must be sealed by the Head of 
Legal Services. This gives rises to unnecessary work for the 
legal team and can lead to delays in getting the contract 
completed.  In practice sealing is only required for a small 
number of contracts.  Completing a contract by signing is 
satisfactory for a large proportion of the contracts that we 
enter into (and is generally quicker). 

  
 In future sealing will only be required for high value (over 

£300,000) or high risk contracts, building and works related 
contracts and a small number of other contracts.  All other 
contracts can be signed either by the Head of Service (for 
contracts up to £50,000) or the relevant Director. 

  
F.   Simplified approach to exemptions from the Rules.   
  
  At the moment there are two ways in which permission can 

be sought to act outside the Rules - exemptions and waivers.  
Waivers in particular require a long paper trail which can 
sometimes cause delay.  The distinction between the two 
types of permission has caused confusion among users and 
is really quite academic.   

  
  In future there will be one process to get permission to let a 

contract without full competition and this has been simplified. 
 
G.  Simplified presentation of the Rules to make them more 

accessible and easier to use. 
 

Page 272



Adopted [DATE] 5 

 We have provided an easy to follow summary sheet at the 
beginning of the document which points users to the key 
rules for each spend level, specifies the advertising that is 
required, identifies who can give authority to proceed with the 
procurement and who can sign the resulting contract.  
Navigating around the current rules has been a problem for 
some users. 

 
 The process for each spend level is self-contained within 

each section of the document so users will have a single 
source of information about the relevant spend level. 

 
 Hyperlinks to the Quick Procurement Reference Guides will 

provide ready access to simple guidance and template 
documents for each stage of the process. This will mean that 
users will be given the necessary tools to carry out low risk 
procurements with less need to reference limited specialist 
resources (although this will remain available to help officers 
that really need advice). 

 
5. NEXT STEPS 

 
 If the Rules are approved in the format at Appendix 1, the next 

steps will be for the current processes, guides and template 
documents to be reviewed and “leaned” wherever possible.  We 
will continue to work with the review group that has helped us with 
the new Rules to put systems in place that are user friendly. 

   
6. CONSULTATIONS 
 
6.1 The following groups have been consulted about the new draft 

Rules: 
 

• Regular users of the procurement processes 

• Internal Audit 

• Legal services 

• Strategic Leadership Team 

• Corporate Change Board 

• The Executive 

• Chamber of Commerce policy unit (for the purposes of the 
attached Equalities Impact Assessment 

 
7. IMPLICATIONS 

Page 273



Adopted [DATE] 6 

 
(a) Financial Implications – there are no financial implications 

as a consequence of the introduction of a new set of Contract 
Procedure Rules.  

 
 

(b) Staffing Implications   Regular users of the procurement 
processes and senior officers have been consulted about the 
Rules.  Detailed guidance and training to enable users to 
understand and apply the new Rules will be provided before 
they come into effect in November 2013.  

 
(c) Equal Opportunities Implications 
 

 Please see the Equalities Impact Assessment at Appendix 3 
 
(d) Environmental Implications 
 
 The Climate Change Rating for these proposals is nil. 
 
(e) Procurement 
 Covered in the report. 
 
(f) Consultation and communication 
 Covered in the report 

 
 BACKGROUND PAPERS: The following are the background 

papers that were used in the preparation of this report: 
 
Equalities Impact Assessment at Appendix 3  

 
 To inspect these documents contact Deborah Quincey, Strategic 

Procurement Adviser on extension 7400  
 
 The author and contact officer for queries on the report is Deborah 

Quincey, Strategic Procurement Adviser on extension 7400 
 
 Report file:  
 

Date originated:  17 June 2013 
Date of last revision: 17 June 2013 

 

Page 274



Adopted [DATE] 7 

Appendix 1 
 

 

DRAFT – 11.06.2013 version 10 

 

 

 

 

 

Cambridge City Council 

 
PART 4G: CONTRACT PROCEDURE RULES FOR 

INCOME AND EXPENDITURE CONTRACTS 

 

Under Section 135 
Local Government Act 1972 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

  

ISSUED [DATE] BY DIRECTOR OF RESOURCES 
CIVIC AFFAIRS [DATE] 

COUNCIL DECISION [DATE] 

Page 275



Adopted [DATE] 8 

INDEX 

Summary of Key Contract Procedure Rules  

EU Thresholds  

Part 1: Introduction and Definitions  

Part 2: All Contracts, whatever their value  

1. Application and Scope  

2. Compliance  

3. Conflicts of Interest  

4. Prevention of Bribery and Corruption  

5. Duties of Directors  

6. Calculating the Contract Value  

7. High Risk or Complex Contracts  

8. Grant Funding and Third Party Funding  

9. Deeds, Sealing and Signing of Contracts  

10. Use of Corporate Contracts  

11. Use of Framework Agreements, Collaborative Procurement and Purchasing 
Consortia 

 

12. Purchasing Cards  

13. Social Value and Supporting Local Enterprises including Voluntary and 
Community Organisations 

 

Part 3: Initial Procurement Steps  

14. Pre-Procurement Steps  

15. Authority to Invite and Evaluate Quotations & Tenders and Award Contracts  

16. Pre-Tender Market Research and Consultation  

17. Advertising and Selection of Suppliers  

18. Standards and Award Criteria  

Page 276



Adopted [DATE] 9 

 

Part 4: Contracts below £10,000 (below Quotation level)  

19. Competition  

20. Standard Terms and Conditions  

21. Authority to Enter into a Contract  

22. Signature of the Contract  

Part 5: Contracts from £10,000 to £49,999 (Quotations)  

23. Competition  

24. Preliminary Steps  

25. Standard Terms and Conditions  

26. Authority to Invite and Evaluate Quotations and Award Contracts  

27. Request for Quotation  

28. Award of the Contract  

29. Signature of the Contract  

Part 6: Contracts from £50,000 to the EU Threshold (Non-EU Tenders)  

30. Competition  

31. Preliminary Steps  

32. Specification  

33. Terms and Conditions  

34. Bonds and Parent Company Guarantees  

35. Authority to Invite and Evaluate Tenders and Award Contracts  

36. Tender Procedure  

37. Evaluation of Non-EU Tenders  

38. Award of the Contract  

39. Signature of the Contract  

Page 277



Adopted [DATE] 10 

 

Part 7: Contracts over the EU Threshold (EU Tenders)  

40. Competition  

41. Preliminary Steps  

42. Specification  

43. Terms and Conditions  

44 Bonds and Parent Company Guarantees  

45. Authority to Invite and Evaluate Tenders and Award Contracts  

46. Establishing a New Framework Agreement  

47. Tender Procedure  

48. Clarification and Negotiation  

49. Evaluation of Tenders  

50. Amendments and Alterations to Tenders  

51. Award of the Contract  

52. Signature of the Contract  

Part 8: For Contracts that have commenced  

53. Contract Management  

54. Record Keeping  

55. Extension to Duration of Contract  

56. Variation to the Scope of Contract  

Part 9: Exemptions to the Contract Procedure Rules  

57. Exemptions and Automatic Exemptions  

  

Page 278



2013 Revision - DRAFT 

 

 

 

 

 

SUMMARY OF KEY CONTRACT PROCEDURE RULES 
Total Value Competition Advertising Authority Signature Rules 
 
Below £10,000 

 
1 written Quotation required, 
and which must demonstrate 
value for money 
 

 
None required 

 
Director’s delegated authority 
under scheme of Delegation 
(Part 3, Section 9 of the 
Constitution) – this has been 
delegated to Officers 

 
Signed by Officer 
responsible for the 
purchase 

 
Parts 2 
& 4 

 
QUOTATIONS 
 
£10,000 to £49,999 

 
Minimum 3 competitive 
Quotations invited in writing, 
1 from a local Supplier 
wherever possible 

 
Council’s website (mandatory) 
Source Cambridgeshire 
(recommended) 
or call-off from framework 
agreement 

 
Director’s delegated authority 
under scheme of Delegation 
(Part 3, Section 9 of the 
Constitution) – this has been 
delegated to Heads of Service 

 
Signed by Head of Service 
or Officer authorised by 
him/her 

 
Parts 2, 
3, 5 & 8 

 
NON-EU TENDERS 
 
£50,000 to  
 
£173,934 (Services & Supplies) 
£4,348,350 (Works) 
 

 
Minimum 4 Suppliers invited 
to Tender  

 
Council’s website (mandatory) 
Source Cambridgeshire 
(mandatory) 
or call-off from framework 
agreement  

 
Below £300,000 – Director’s 
delegated authority 
 
Over £300,000 (Key Decision) –  
Scrutiny Committee & Executive 
Councillor 

 
Sealed by the Council 
(as appropriate); 
or Signed by Director; 
Contracts over £300,000 
(Key Decision) must be sealed 
 

 
Parts 2, 
3, 6 & 8 

 
EU TENDERS 
 
Over 
 
£173,934 (Services & Supplies) 
£4,348,350 (Works) 
 

 
Use Restricted/Open 
procedure (unless advised 
otherwise by Strategic 
Procurement) 
 
Minimum 5 Suppliers invited 
to Tender 

 
OJEU advert (mandatory) 
 
Council’s website (mandatory) 
 
Source Cambridgeshire 
(mandatory) 
 
or call-off from framework 
agreement 

 
Below £300,000 – Director’s 
delegated authority 
 
Over £300,000 (Key Decision) –  
Scrutiny Committee & Executive 
Councillor 

 
Sealed by the Council 
(as appropriate); 
 
or Signed by Director and 
one other Officer; 
 
Contracts over £300,000 
(Key Decision) must be sealed 

 
Parts 2, 
3, 7 & 8 

 
Framework Agreements 
 

 
NEW Framework: 
Use Restricted/Open 
procedure (unless advised 
otherwise by Strategic 
Procurement) 
 

 
NEW Framework: 
OJEU advert (mandatory) 
Council’s website (mandatory) 
Source Cambridgeshire 
(mandatory) 

 
New Frameworks and Call-off 
Contracts below £300,000 (Key 
Decision) – Director’s delegated 
authority 
 
New Frameworks and Call-offs 
Contracts over £300,000 (Key 
Decision) – Scrutiny Committee & 
Executive Councillor 
 

 
New Frameworks must be 
sealed by the Council 
 
Call-off Contracts below 
£300,000 (Key Decision) are 
signed by Director 
 
Call-off Contracts over 
£300,000 (Key Decision)  
are generally sealed 

 
Parts  
2 – 8  
 
depending 
on value  
 
See 
Rules 
11 & 46 

 
EXISTING Framework: 
Follow the procedure in the 
Framework Agreement for 
call-off Contracts and mini-
competitions 

 
EXISTING Framework: 
Not relevant 

P
age 279



 

 

Report Page No: 12 Agenda Page No: 

EU Thresholds  

1 January 2012 – 31 December 2013 

Services contracts 

 

£173,934 

Supplies contracts 

 

£173,934 

Works contracts 

 

£4,348,350 

 

Page 280



 

 

Report Page No: 13 Agenda Page No: 

CONTRACT PROCEDURE RULES 

 

Part 1 

Introduction 

See Procurement Quick Reference Guide No.5a The Constitution and Basic Procurement Law [insert 
hyperlink] 

The Local Government Act 1972 requires the Council to have standing orders for how it enters 
into Contracts.  These Contract Procedure Rules are the standing orders required by the 1972 
Act.  They form part of the Council's Constitution and are, in effect, the instructions of the 
Council to officers and elected members for entering into Contracts on behalf of the Council.   

The purpose of these Contract Procedure Rules is to set clear rules for the purchase of Works, 
Goods and Services for the Council and are intended to promote good purchasing practice, 
public accountability and to deter bribery and corruption, in which the probity and transparency 
of the Council's procurement process will be beyond reproach or challenge.  Accordingly, these 
Contract Procedure Rules must be followed for all Contracts over £10,000 for the supply of 
Goods and Services to and the carrying out of Works for the Council and where Concessions 
are sought. 

The Council is also subject to EU law with regard to public procurement, which requires all 
contract procedures, of whatever value, to be open, fair and transparent.  These Contract 
Procedure Rules provide a basis for true and fair competition in Contracts, by providing clear 
and auditable procedures, which, if followed, will give confidence that the Council has a 
procurement regime that is fully accountable and compliant with EU law.    

Following the Contract Procedure Rules will also help to ensure that the Council obtains value 
for money when it buys Works, Goods or Services. 

These Contract Procedure Rules are to protect the interests of the Council, its officers and 
elected members and the communities of Cambridge.   

Page 281



 

 

Report Page No: 14 Agenda Page No: 

 

Part 1 

Definitions 

 

Award a contract means to accept an offer by a Supplier (following approval by 
the appropriate decision maker), as evidenced by a written 
Contract signed or sealed (as appropriate) by both parties and 
dated [hyperlink to Guide on Process for Award and Signature of 

Contracts] 

Award Criteria means the criteria by which the successful Quotation or 
Tender is to be evaluated 

Bond means an agreement whereby the surety or insurer under the 
bond pays out a sum of money (often 10% of the Contract 
value) in the event that the Supplier in a Contract commits a 
serious breach of contract (that cannot be remedied) or 
becomes insolvent 

Business Case means a written commercial assessment that provides the key 
facts and rationale for the proposed purchase.  A template 
business case is in the ‘Project Management Guidelines’ on 
the intranet at para XXX  

Central Purchasing Body means another local authority or ‘Contracting Authority’ (e.g. 
ESPO or the Government Procurement Service) which 
acquires Supplies/Services or awards public contracts or 
concludes Framework Agreements intended for use by other 
public sector bodies 

Collaboration means a procurement undertaken jointly by the Council and 
one or more other public bodies with one of the bodies 
nominated as the lead authority 

Concession means a Contract where the payment or part-payment of the 
Services or Works consists of the grant by the Council of the 
right for the Supplier to exploit the Services or Works to be 
carried out 

Contract means the bargain or agreement between the Council and a 
Supplier for the supply of Works, Goods or Services in return 
for a valuable benefit (usually money) 

Page 282



 

 

Report Page No: 15 Agenda Page No: 

 

Contract Document means the document setting out the terms and conditions of 
the Contract.  A purchase order is a contract document.  
Although at law a verbal agreement may be a Contract, 
Contracts for the Council must always be supported by 
appropriate written contract documents 

Contractor see Supplier 

Corporate Contract means a Contract for the supply of Works, Goods or Services 
to the Council as a whole rather than for an individual service 
area, e.g. stationery.  Corporate Contracts are listed on the 
intranet 

Delegation means any power, duty or authority delegated to a chief 
Officer by the Council as set out in Section 9 of Part 3 of the 
Council’s Constitution 

Director means one of the Officers defined in Article 11 para 11.1.2 of 
Part 2 of the Council’s Constitution 

EU Regulations means the Public Contracts Regulations 2006 as amended 
from time to time 

EU Threshold means the value in pounds sterling above which the EU 
Regulations apply to a proposed public contract.  The 
thresholds are set out in the table above. 

Executive Councillor means one of the six Councillors who, together with the 
Leader, comprise the Executive and who have delegated 
authority to take decisions within their portfolio area 

Exemption Notification 
Form 

means the form [hyperlink] to be used when applying for an 
exemption under Rule 57 

Financial Regulations means the rules at Part 4F of the Council’s Constitution 

Framework Agreement means an agreement between one or more contracting 
authorities and one or more Suppliers which fixes the terms 
and conditions under which the Supplier will enter into one or 
more specific contracts with an authority during the term of the 
framework agreement, which should be no more than 4 years 

Goods see Supplies 

Grant means a voluntary transfer of money by the Council to an 
organisation in accordance with the guidance provided by the 
Head of Legal Services 

Head of Service see Officer 

ITT means an Invitation to Tender, and contains documents 
inviting Suppliers to tender for a Contract 

Page 283



 

 

Report Page No: 16 Agenda Page No: 

Key Decision means a decision made in exercise of an executive function 
by any persons (including Officers) or body which meets one 
or more of the conditions set out in Article 12.3.2 in Part 2 of 
the Constitution.  In relation to incurring expenditure or making 
savings, the value is £300,000 and above. 

Monitoring Officer means the officer designated under section 5 of the Local 
Government and Housing Act 1989 to monitor the Council's 
compliance with the law and rules of administration.  The 
Head of Legal Services is the Monitoring Officer 

Objectives means the Council’s objectives set out in the Annual 
Statement each year 

Officer means an individual who holds a post on the Council’s 
establishment 

OJEU means the Official Journal of the European Union 

Open Procedure means a one stage tender process to select an appropriate 
Supplier.  The procedure does not include a pre-qualification 
stage and allows any interested Supplier to submit a tender 

Parent Company 
Guarantee 

means the guarantee from a parent company to act in 
accordance with the Contract in the event that the subsidiary 
company fails to perform under the terms of the Contract with 
the Council 

PQQ means a pre-qualification questionnaire, which Suppliers have 
to complete to provide evidence of their legal, financial and 
technical capacity (including their health and safety and equal 
opportunities polices) to undertake a Contract for the Council 

Project Appraisal means a report to the Executive Councillor on the corporate 
template seeking approval for the appraisal as required by 
para 9.3.3 of Part 3 of the Council’s Constitution of the 
financial and Business Case for the proposed procurement in 
accordance with any guidance issued by the Director of 
Resources 

Quotation means an offer by a Supplier to undertake a Contract of less 
than £50,000 in value 

Restricted Procedure means the process which allows any interested party to 
request to participate in the Tender procedure but only those 
invited by the public body following a pre-qualification stage 
may submit a Tender 

RFQ means a Request for Quotation, inviting Suppliers to quote for 
Works, Goods or Services below £50,000 in value 

Selection Criteria means the criteria used for the selection of Suppliers to be 
invited to tender 

Services contract means a Contract for the provision of services to the Council 

Page 284



 

 

Report Page No: 17 Agenda Page No: 

Specification means a clear and comprehensive description of the Council’s 
requirements. This will vary according to the value and 
complexity of the purchase 

Sponsorship Rules means the Council’s approved rules that regulate the 
acceptance of sponsorship [hyperlink] 

Standard Terms and 
Conditions 

means the terms and conditions of contract used for purchase 
orders and Contracts under £50,000 

Supplier means a supplier of Works, Goods or Services to the Council 

Supplies contract means a Contract for the sale or hire of goods to the Council 
and includes, where appropriate, installation of goods 

Tender means an offer by a Supplier in response to an ITT to 
undertake a Contract of £50,000 or more 

Tender Record Book means the book which records the receipt of tenders as 
maintained by the Central Post Scanning Facility 

TUPE means the Transfer of Undertaking (Protection  of 
Employment) Regulations 2006 and any amendment, re-
enactment or replacement of them. In general terms, the rules 
protect employees when their business is taken over by a new 
employer. 

Vision Statement means the Council’s published statement from time to time of 
its aims and objectives 

Works contract means a Contract for the construction, repair or maintenance 
of built asset, e.g. a building or a road 

Page 285



 

 

Report Page No: 18 Agenda Page No: 

 

Part 2 

All Contracts, whatever their value 

 

1. APPLICATION AND SCOPE 

Apply to: 

1.1 All Contracts for the supply of Works, Goods or Services (including consultancy) to the 
Council, regardless of value. 

1.2 Partnership and collaborative arrangements with other bodies  

1.3 Concession Contracts 

Do not apply to: 

1.4 Contracts for the purchase or sale of any interest in land (including leasehold interests) 
for which the Financial Regulations and/or the Code for the Disposal of Land applies. 

1.5 Contracts of employment for the appointment of individual members of staff, including 
members of staff sourced through employment agencies under a Corporate Contract.   

1.6 Grant agreements, where the Council is giving an unconditional grant.  

1.7 Sponsorship agreements regulated by the Sponsorship Rules. 

1.8 Supply of Works, Goods and Services by the Council.  However, the Head of Legal 
Services and Strategic Procurement must be consulted where the Council is 
contemplating this route.   

1.9 Contracts procured in Collaboration with other local authorities where the Council is not 
the lead authority (subject to the necessary approvals having been obtained from the 
appropriate decision maker at the Council – see Rules 21, 26, 35 and 45).  The 
Contract Procedure Rules of the lead authority shall apply.  Assurance should be 
sought that the lead authority is in compliance with its own contract procedure rules. 

 

2. COMPLIANCE See Procurement Quick Reference Guide No.1 Probity in Procurement [insert 

hyperlink] 

2.1 Every Contract entered into on behalf of the Council must comply with  

§ these Contract Procedure Rules; 

§ the Council's Financial Regulations; and 

§ all relevant UK and EU legislation. 

2.2 Each Director is responsible for ensuring that his/her department complies with these 
Contract Procedure Rules 

2.3 All members of staff and consultants engaged in any capacity to manage or supervise 
the procurement of any Works, Goods or Services for the Council must comply with 
these Contract Procedure Rules. The attention of Officers is drawn to the Council’s 
Code of Conduct and Disciplinary Policy.  Non-compliance with these Rules may 
constitute grounds for disciplinary action. 

 

2.4 Generally, work must not begin under a Contract until the Contract Document has 
been signed by both parties (or, if the only Contract Document is a purchase order, 
until the purchase order has been issued) except with the approval of the Head of 
Legal Services. 

Page 286



 

 

Report Page No: 19 Agenda Page No: 

 

3. CONFLICTS OF INTEREST See Procurement Quick Reference Guide No.1 Probity in 

Procurement [insert hyperlink] 

3.1 All members of staff must avoid any conflict between their own interests and the 
interests of the Council.  This is a requirement of the Council's Code of Conduct, which 
all employees of the Council have signed and agreed to be bound by and includes : 

§ not accepting gifts or hospitality from organisations or Suppliers that the Council 
has dealings with; 

§ not working for organisations or Suppliers that the Council has dealings with; 

§ notifying the Head of Legal Services and relevant Director if an Officer has links 
with (e.g. a family member or close friend works for) an organisation or Supplier 
who is tendering or quoting for a Contract with the Council or already has a 
Contract with the Council. 

3.2 All consultants engaged to act on behalf of the Council must declare that : 

§ they will avoid any conflict between their own interests or those of any of their 
other clients and the interests of the Council; and 

§ they will notify the relevant Director if they have any links with (e.g. a family 
member or close friend works for) an organisation or Supplier who is tendering or 
quoting for a Contract with the Council or already has a Contract with the Council. 

3.3 If an elected member of the Council or a member of staff has an interest, financial or 
otherwise, in a Contract or proposed Contract, he/she must declare it in writing to the 
Director as soon as he/she becomes aware of the interest.  An elected member or 
member of staff who has an interest in a Contract must not take part in the 
procurement or management of that Contract. 

 

4. PREVENTION OF BRIBERY AND CORRUPTION See Procurement Quick Reference 

Guide No.1 Probity in Procurement [insert hyperlink] 

4.1 A Contract may be terminated immediately, and any losses to the Council arising from 
the termination recovered from the Supplier, if the Supplier, or anyone acting on his 
behalf (with or without the Supplier's knowledge) : 

§ offers or promises or gives a financial or other advantage to any elected member 
of the Council, any member of staff or any consultant in connection with the 
Contract; or 

§ requests, agrees to receive or accepts a financial or other advantage so that some 
action in relation to the Contract is performed improperly. 

A declaration to this effect must be included in the RFQ and ITT. 

4.2 Any elected member of the Council, member of staff or consultant who becomes aware 
or has reason to believe that a Supplier or potential Supplier has committed one of the 
corrupt acts referred to in Rule 4.1, must report that to the Monitoring Officer and/or the 
Head of Internal Audit immediately. 

4.3 A shareholding in a body not exceeding a total nominal value of £1000 or 1% of the 
nominal value of the issued share capital (whichever is less) is not a pecuniary interest 
for the purpose of this Rule. 

4.4 The Chief Executive must maintain a record of all declarations of interest notified by 
elected members and Officers. 

 

5. DUTIES OF DIRECTORS 

Page 287



 

 

Report Page No: 20 Agenda Page No: 

5.1 To ensure that all Contracts within his/her department comply with Contract Procedure 
Rules, Financial Regulations and all applicable public procurement legislation.  To plan 
the procurement of and manage Contracts within his/her department to ensure that 
Contracts  

§ deliver value for money; 

§ are operated effectively, efficiently and economically; and 

§ are operated within the terms of the Contracts themselves, so that the Council is 
not at risk of being in breach of Contract. 

5.2 To ensure that Strategic Procurement are advised of any Contracts over £10,000 
entered into by his/her department. 

5.3 Another Director or Officer within his/her own department may be authorised to carry 
out his/her duties in respect of a particular Contract or Contracts generally.   

5.4 To keep adequate records to show compliance with Contract Procedure Rules, 
Financial Regulations and all relevant legislation in his/her department. 

 

6. CALCULATING THE CONTRACT VALUE See Procurement Quick Reference Guide No.7 

Calculating the estimated value of your Contract [insert hyperlink] 

6.1 The Director responsible for each Contract must have obtained budgetary approval 
equal to the estimated value for the Contract before any offers are sought.   

6.2 The value of a Contract is the total amount that the Council expects to pay or receive 
for the Contract, including any Contract extension period and any options within the 
Contract.  This may be a lump sum (e.g. £20,000) or a periodic payment (e.g. £4,000 
per year for a 5 year Contract = £20,000).  If the Contract is for an uncertain term (e.g. 
a “rolling” Contract), the value is the amount the Council expects to pay or receive over 
four years.   

6.3 The Director must not try to avoid compliance with these Contract Procedure Rules or 
the EU Regulations by splitting a procurement for the same or similar Works, Goods or 
Services into smaller, separate Contracts.  If it will achieve better value for money, 
Contracts for the same or similar Works, Goods or Services must be aggregated into a 
single Contract of greater value.    

 

7. HIGH RISK OR COMPLEX CONTRACTS See Procurement Quick Reference Guide No.3a 

Managing Risk in Procurement Projects [insert hyperlink] 

7.1 The Director must undertake a risk assessment in accordance with Council guidance 
[insert hyperlink to Procurement Risks document].  Advice from Legal Services and 
Strategic Procurement must be sought for the following Contracts: 

- with a value above the EU Threshold 

- that involve leasing arrangements (Accountancy team must also be consulted)  

- where the Supplier’s terms and conditions are to be used 

- potentially involving the transfer of staff under TUPE 

- where the Supplier may hold any money on behalf of the Council 

- for software or licences 

- where an advance payment to the Supplier is envisaged 

- that are high risk or complex in any other way as indicated by the risk 
assessment 

 

Page 288



 

 

Report Page No: 21 Agenda Page No: 

8.  GRANT FUNDING AND THIRD PARTY FUNDING  

8.1 Officers must fully comply with these Rules in respect of Contracts funded by grants or 
other third party funding. 

8.2 Advice must be sought from Legal Services to ensure that the Council’s terms and 
conditions comply with the grant conditions imposed by the funder. 

8.3 Officers are responsible for ensuring that any funding agreement has been completed 
satisfactorily before entering into any contractual commitments in respect of the grant 
with third parties. 

 

9. DEEDS, SEALING AND SIGNING OF CONTRACTS [hyperlink to Guide on Process for 

Award and Signature of Contracts] 

9.1 Generally, a Contract can be signed by hand by the Director or Head of Service.  In 
the event of a dispute, the Council can make a claim under the Contract for up to 
6 years. 

9.2 Some Contracts must be executed as deeds and are sealed by the Council by affixing 
the Common Seal.  In the event of a dispute, the Council can make a claim under the 
Contract for up to 12 years.  This applies to the following Contracts: 

- Contracts over £300,000 (Key Decision) – unless agreed otherwise by Legal 
Services 

- New Framework Agreements 

- All building and Works-related Contracts – unless agreed otherwise by Legal 
Services 

- Where there is no consideration (ie money or money’s worth) by one party (e.g. 
Grant agreements, where the Council is paying a voluntary sum to an 
organisation but the organisation is not giving anything in return) 

- Other high risk Contracts (as advised by Legal Services) where a longer 
limitation period of 12 years is required. 

9.3 Before a Contract can be sealed by the Council, the Officer must provide Legal 
Services with the relevant decision to award in writing from the appropriate decision 
maker [hyperlink to Decision to Award Form] 

 

10. USE OF CORPORATE CONTRACTS 

 If there is a Corporate Contract for the supply of any Works, Goods or Services, the 
Director must utilise that Contract, rather than awarding a separate contract for his/her 
own department.   

 

11. USE OF FRAMEWORK AGREEMENTS, COLLABORATIVE PROCUREMENT AND 
PURCHASING CONSORTIA 

11.1 Officers must follow the Council’s Principles for Partnership Working [insert hyperlink] 

11.2 Strategic Procurement must be consulted before joining or buying from consortia, 
buying groups or Framework Agreements [insert hyperlink to Framework Guidance 

document] 

11.3 Where the expenditure will be more than the EU Threshold, and for Works contracts 
over £300,000 (Key Decision), Legal Services must be consulted before joining or 
buying from a Framework Agreement. 

Page 289



 

 

Report Page No: 22 Agenda Page No: 

11.4 To select a Supplier for a call-off Contract under a multi-Supplier Framework 
Agreement or to conduct a mini competition, the Director, in consultation with Strategic 
Procurement, must follow the procedure set out in that Framework Agreement.   

11.5 Successful and unsuccessful Suppliers who participated in a mini-competition must be 
notified of the decision to award the call-off Contract.  The notification letter must be 
sent by e-mail or fax.   

11.6 Where a Contract is procured through another local authority or public body (acting as 
lead authority), the contract procedure rules of that organisation shall apply.  
Assurance should be sought that the organisation is in compliance with its own 
contract procedure rules 

11.7 A decision at the appropriate level will still be required to award a Contract procured 
through the consortia, buying groups or Framework Agreements (see Rules 21, 26, 35 
and 45).  This applies both to Framework Agreements set up by the Council alone and 
to Framework Agreements set up by another public authority.  

 

12. PURCHASING CARDS 

12.1 A purchasing card can only be used where provided by the Director of Resources and 
used strictly in accordance with the Purchasing Card Guidance [insert hyperlink] 

12.2 Any use of a purchasing card other than in accordance with these Rules could lead to 
disciplinary action 

 

13. SOCIAL VALUE AND SUPPORTING LOCAL ENTERPRISES INCLUDING 
VOLUNTARY AND COMMUNITY ORGANISATIONS 

13.1 Officers should use the Council’s purchasing power to support local organisations and 
to add value to the local geographical area wherever possible where this provides 
equal or better value for money for the Council than any alternative. 

13.2 Officers must set out the Council’s support for the living wage in the RFQ, ITT and the 
Contract Document. 

13.3 Where appropriate, Officers should incorporate questions in the RFQ or ITT and 
evaluate responses to any of the following that are relevant to the subject matter of the 
procurement: 

- local economic benefits 
- social value benefits 
- local employment 
- local apprenticeships 
- any other benefit that supports the local economy and well-being of the City of 

Cambridge  

Page 290



 

 

Report Page No: 23 Agenda Page No: 

 

Part 3 

INITIAL PROCUREMENT STEPS 

 

14. PRE-PROCUREMENT STEPS 

14.1 The Officer must ensure that the complexity, risk and value of any proposed 
procurement over £30,000 is considered fully by setting out the following issues in 
sufficient detail proportionate to the value of the procurement in a Business Case: 

- taking into account the requirements of any review of their service 

- considering the need for the expenditure and its priority 

- defining the objectives of the procurement, undertaking appropriate consultation, 
and relating these to the Vision Statement and Objectives 

- assessing and managing the risks of the procurement (see Rule 7) 

- considering the most appropriate method of procurement e.g. internal or external 
sourcing, partnering, Collaboration or use of purchasing consortia. 

14.2 For Services Contracts over the EU Threshold, in addition to the issues in Rule 14.1 
the Business Case must: 

- identify how the procurement might improve the economic, social and 
environmental well-being of Cambridge when seeking authority to invite tenders 

- take into account the Council’s Vision Statement, Environmental Objectives and 
Strategic Objectives in Portfolio Plans when considering the social value 
priorities for the procurement. 

 

15. AUTHORITY TO INVITE AND EVALUATE QUOTATIONS AND TENDERS AND TO 
AWARD CONTRACTS  

 Prior to commencing a procurement exercise, relevant approval must be obtained from 
the appropriate decision maker to invite and evaluate Quotations and Tenders and (if 
relevant) delegation to award Contracts – see Rule 21, 26, 35 and 45 and Procurement 

Quick Reference Guide No.9 Approvals and Scrutiny [insert hyperlink] 

 

16. PRE-TENDER MARKET RESEARCH AND CONSULTATION 

 See Rules 24, 31 and 41. 

 

17. ADVERTISING AND SELECTION OF SUPPLIERS 

17.1 If a Contract (regardless of value) may be of interest to both local Suppliers or 
Suppliers in EU member states, a sufficiently accessible advertisement must be 
published.  Generally, the greater the likely interest, the wider the advertising coverage 
should be. 

17.2 An advertisement should be placed in the following: 

- Council’s website – mandatory for all Contracts over £10,000 

- Source Cambridgeshire – mandatory for all Contracts over £50,000 and 
recommended for all Contracts under £50,000 

Page 291



 

 

Report Page No: 24 Agenda Page No: 

- OJEU – mandatory for Contracts above the EU Threshold 

- National specialist journals and/or websites – as considered appropriate by the 
Director 

17.3 Officers are responsible for ensuring Suppliers are suitably assessed.  The 
assessment process shall establish that potential Suppliers have sound: 

- economic and financial standing 

- technical ability and capacity 

- insurance cover 

17.4 The Selection Criteria will be either in the RFQ, PQQ or Open Procedure ITT and must 
be designed to establish the capability of the Supplier to undertake the work (ie look 
‘backwards’ at the Supplier’s qualities). 

17.5 Once Suppliers have been selected, all Suppliers who have submitted a RFQ or PQQ 
must be informed of the outcome of the selection stage. 

17.6 Where Suppliers are selected without an advertisement, the Officer must assess 
potential Suppliers against criteria that: 

- are relevant to the purchase, ensure equality of treatment, and the outcome 
gives value for money 

- do not include non-commercial considerations or matters that discriminate 
against EU Suppliers  

- confirm their financial soundness (appropriate to the value and importance of the 
Contract) 

- confirm their technical ability and capacity (including any necessary qualifications 
and/or licences) 

- confirm suitable insurance cover 

 

18. STANDARDS AND AWARD CRITERIA 

18.1 Irrespective of the value of the procurement, potential Suppliers must comply with the 
relevant European or international standards that apply to the Works, Goods or 
Services.  Strategic Procurement must be consulted if other, or exclusively British, 
standards are to be used. 

18.2 Award Criteria must be designed to assess the suitability of the offer being made to the 
Council for the purchase being made (ie looking ‘forward’) and must be appropriate to 
the purchase and ensure equal treatment of Suppliers and value for money for the 
Council.  The basic criteria shall be one of the following: 

- “lowest price” where payment is made by the Council 

- “highest price” where payment is received by the Council (e.g. a Concession) 

- “most economically advantageous” where considerations other than price also 
apply e.g. “quality” 

18.3 If “most economically advantageous” is used, it must be further defined by use of sub-
criteria.  Any sub-criteria must be relevant to the subject matter of the Contract.  These 
may include, for example: 

- price 
- service standards (including equality issues where appropriate) 
- quality of goods 
- operating costs 
- technical merit 

Page 292



 

 

Report Page No: 25 Agenda Page No: 

- delivery dates 
- cost effectiveness 
- environmental considerations 
- aesthetic and functional characteristics 
- safety (including Safeguarding arrangements where appropriate) 
- after-sales service 
- technical assistance 

18.4 Award Criteria must not include: 

- non-commercial considerations 
- matters which discriminate against Suppliers from the EU  
- matters already evaluated during the selection process (Selection Criteria) – see 

Rules 17.3 – 17.6 

18.5 Award Criteria and sub-criteria must be set out in the RFQ or ITT. 

Page 293



 

 

Report Page No: 26 Agenda Page No: 

 

Part 4 – BELOW QUOTATION LEVEL 

Contracts below £10,000 

 

19. COMPETITION 

 The Director must obtain one oral Quotation confirmed in writing for Contracts below 
£10,000 in value, and must be able to demonstrate that the Council is receiving value 
for money.  Where appropriate, relevant consultation must be carried out. 

 

20. STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS [hyperlink to standard terms and conditions] 

20.1 All Contracts must be in writing and a purchase order must be issued for every 
Contract. 

20.2 All Contracts below £10,000 shall clearly specify: 

- what is being supplied 

- the price 

- when the Contract will be performed (start and end dates) 

- provision to terminate the Contract 

- that the Contract is subject to the Council’s Standard Terms and Conditions 
unless Legal Services approve an alternative 

 

21. AUTHORITY TO ENTER INTO A CONTRACT – below Quotation level 

21.1 Under the scheme of Delegation, Directors have authority to enter into Contracts below 
the Quotation level, provided that a budget has been allocated for that expenditure.  
Directors have agreed to delegate this authority to Officers for Contracts below 
£10,000 in value. 

 

22. SIGNATURE OF THE CONTRACT – below Quotation level 

22.1 Contracts below the Quotation level must be signed for and on behalf of the Council by 
the Officer responsible for the Contract. 

Page 294



 

 

Report Page No: 27 Agenda Page No: 

 

Part 5 - QUOTATIONS 

Contracts from £10,000 to £49,999 

See Procurement Quick Reference Guide No.13a How to Request for a Quotation [insert hyperlink] 

23. COMPETITION 

 A minimum of three competitive Quotations in writing must be sought.  Wherever 
possible, one Quotation must be from a local Supplier. 

 

24. PRELIMINARY STEPS – Quotations 

24.1 Prior to the issue of the RFQ, potential Suppliers may be consulted in general terms 
about the nature, level and standard of Works, Goods or Services, Contract packaging 
and other relevant matters provided this does not discriminate against any potential 
Supplier. 

24.2 Officers must not seek or accept technical advice about the preparation of a 
Specification or RFQ from anyone who may have a commercial interest in them if this 
prevents equal treatment or distorts competition. 

24.3 Advice should be sought from Strategic Procurement prior to any pre-Quotation market 
research or consultation.  

 

25. STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS [hyperlink to standard terms and conditions] 

25.1 All Contracts must be in writing and a purchase order must be issued for every 
Contract as appropriate.   

25.2 All Contracts shall clearly specify: 

- what is being supplied 

- the price and terms for payment by the Council 

- when the Contract will be performed (start and end dates) 

- that the Contract is subject to the Council’s Standard Terms and Conditions 
unless Legal Services approve an alternative, e.g. because the procurement is 
unusual or represents a significant risk to the Council 

25.3 The Supplier’s terms and conditions must not be used unless agreed otherwise by 
Legal Services. 

25.4 All Contracts must provide for payment by the Council after supply of the Works, 
Goods or Services or as agreed by the Director responsible. Exceptionally, and only 
with the consent of the Director of Resources, a Contract may provide for payment in 
advance 

25.5 Terms and conditions must be issued with the RFQ.   

 

26. AUTHORITY TO INVITE AND EVALUATE QUOTATIONS AND AWARD 
CONTRACTS See Procurement Quick Reference Guide No.9 Approvals and Scrutiny [hyperlink] 

 Directors have delegated authority under the scheme of Delegation as set out in Part 
3, Section 9 of the Constitution to invite and evaluate Quotations and to award 
Contracts below £300,000 (Key Decision) provided that a budget has been allocated 
for that expenditure.  Directors have agreed to delegate this authority to Heads of 
Service for Contracts from £10,000 to £49,999. 

Page 295



 

 

Report Page No: 28 Agenda Page No: 

 

27. REQUEST FOR QUOTATION 

27.1 Select at least 3 Suppliers to be invited to quote, at least one of whom should, 
whenever possible, be based in the City of Cambridge or immediately surrounding 
area.  The shortlist must be selected from responses to an advertisement on the 
Council’s own website (mandatory) and Source Cambridgeshire (recommended).   

27.2 Be satisfied that the Suppliers invited to quote have the technical ability and capacity 
(including their health & safety and equal opportunities policies as appropriate) to 
undertake the Contract for the Council and this can only be demonstrated via a 
competition, unless the Suppliers are selected from a Framework Agreement or other 
purchasing consortia. 

27.3 The RFQ must contain sufficient information about the Council’s requirements in the 
form of a Specification to enable a competitive price to be obtained. 

27.4 The RFQ must state whether Quotations will be evaluated on the basis of most 
economically advantageous to the Council or on the basis of price only. 

27.5 The RFQ must state that the Council is not bound to accept any Quotation. 

27.6 All Suppliers must receive the same RFQ at the same time and subject to the same 
conditions, and this includes any subsequent information. 

27.7 Allow sufficient time for submission of Quotations.  The recommended minimum is 10 
working days from the date of the RFQ, but this may vary depending on the urgency or 
complexity of the requirement. 

27.8 The Head of Service shall keep a record of: 

- the criteria used to select Suppliers to provide a Quotation 

- details of Suppliers requested to provide a Quotation 

- any checks carried out in respect of Suppliers 

- the basis of selection of a Quotation, ie most economically advantageous or 
lowest price – see Rule 18 and Procurement Quick Reference Guide No.14 Evaluation of 

Tenders or Quotations [insert hyperlink] 

 

28. AWARD OF THE CONTRACT – Quotations 

 As soon as practicable after the decision to award the Contract has been made, the 
Head of Service must write to inform the successful and unsuccessful Suppliers of that 
decision. [hyperlink to standard letters] 

 

29. SIGNATURE OF THE CONTRACT – Quotations 

29.1 Contracts for Quotations must be signed for and on behalf of the Council by the Head 
of Service responsible for the Contract or an Officer authorised by him/her.   

29.2 Unless ordered using a purchase order, the work under the Contract must not start 
until the Contract has been signed by both parties, unless agreed in advance with 
Legal Services.  See guide on Process for Award and Signature of Contracts [insert 

hyperlink] 

Part 6 – NON-EU TENDERS 

Contracts from £50,000 to the EU Threshold 

See Procurement Quick Reference Guide No.13c Inviting a Tender (ITT) [insert hyperlink] 

Page 296



 

 

Report Page No: 29 Agenda Page No: 

30. COMPETITION 

 Competitive Tenders must be sought for Contracts of £50,000 or more in value. 

 

31. PRELIMINARY STEPS – Non-EU Tenders 

31.1 Prior to the issue of the ITT, potential Suppliers may be consulted in general terms 
about the nature, level and standard of Works, Goods or Services, Contract packaging 
and other relevant matters provided this does not discriminate against any potential 
Supplier. 

31.2 Officers must not seek or accept technical advice about the preparation of a 
Specification or ITT from anyone who may have a commercial interest in them if this 
prevents equal treatment or distorts competition. 

31.3 Advice should be sought from Strategic Procurement prior to any pre-tender market 
research or consultation.   

 

32. SPECIFICATION – Non-EU Tenders See Procurement Quick Reference Guide No.10 

Specification Writing [insert hyperlink] 

32.1 A clear and comprehensive Specification of the Council's requirements must be 
prepared with regard to the Works, Goods or Services to be supplied. 

32.2 The Specification should incorporate measurable and, so far as is possible, objective 
quality and performance criteria to enable the Director to see whether the Council’s 
requirements are being met by the Supplier. 

32.3 If an Officer is intending to allow Consultants who assist in the preparation of a 
Specification to be invited to tender for the Contract, advice must be sought from 
Strategic Procurement and Legal Services. 

 

33. TERMS AND CONDITIONS – Non-EU Tenders 

33.1 The Director must use the Council’s standard contract for Contracts below the EU 
Threshold for inclusion in the ITT [insert hyperlink] which shall clearly specify: 

§ the price and terms for payment by the Council; and 

§ when the Contract will be performed (start and end dates). 

33.2 The Supplier’s terms and conditions must not be used unless agreed otherwise by 
Legal Services. 

33.3 All Contracts must provide for payment by the Council after supply of the Works, 
Goods or Services (which includes performance related milestones). Exceptionally, 
and only with the consent of the Director of Resources, a Contract may provide for 
payment in advance. 

33.4 Terms and conditions must be issued with the ITT.   

 

 

 

34. BONDS AND PARENT COMPANY GUARANTEES 

 Refer to Rule 44. 

 

Page 297



 

 

Report Page No: 30 Agenda Page No: 

35. AUTHORITY TO INVITE AND EVALUATE TENDERS AND AWARD CONTRACTS – 
Non-EU Tenders See Procurement Quick Reference Guide No.9 Approvals and Scrutiny [insert 

hyperlink] 

35.1 Directors have delegated authority under the scheme of Delegation as set out in Part 
3, Section 9 of the Constitution to invite and evaluate Tenders and to award Contracts 
below £300,000 (Key Decision) provided that a budget has been allocated for that 
expenditure. 

35.2 For Contracts of £300,000 (Key Decision) and above, consent from the relevant 
Scrutiny Committee and Executive Councillor to invite and evaluate Tenders (and, if 
appropriate, delegation to award Contracts) must be obtained before any procurement 
documents are issued.  In order to get a report to the relevant Scrutiny Committee, the 
Officer must publish a short description of the proposed procurement on the Council’s 
Forward Plan at least 3 months prior to the relevant Committee meeting.  In order to 
obtain authority, a budget must have been allocated for the proposed expenditure.   

 

36. TENDER PROCEDURE – Non-EU Tenders  

36.1 The Tender procedure must be followed when letting Contracts of £50,000 or more in 
value.   

36.2 Select a shortlist of at least 4 Suppliers to be invited to tender from responses to an 
advertisement on the Council’s own website and Source Cambridgeshire (both 
mandatory). 

36.3 To ensure genuine competition, a minimum number of 4 Suppliers must be invited to 
tender.  If there are fewer than 4 expressions of interest in being invited to tender or 
fewer than 4 satisfactory PQQs (where a PQQ is used), then the minimum number of 
Suppliers to be invited to tender may be reduced as appropriate.  Strategic 
Procurement must be consulted if there is only one remaining suitable Supplier. 

36.5 The ITT [insert hyperlink] must include :  

§ instructions to tenderers; 

§ the Council's Specification; 

§ the terms and conditions of Contract; 

§ a form of tender for completion by the tenderer.  The form of tender must 
acknowledge that the Council is not obliged to accept the lowest or any tender.  
The form of tender must also state that the tender will remain open for 
acceptance by the Council for a period of 90 days after the last date for receipt 
of tenders, or such other period as appropriate; 

§ if appropriate, a pricing document for completion by the tenderer; and 

§ if the Contract may involve the transfer of employees under TUPE, from the 
Council to a Contractor or from one Contractor to another, all relevant 
information relating to those employees in an anonymised format provided 
tenderers have signed a confidentiality undertaking.  It is the responsibility of 
the Director to obtain full and accurate employee information in sufficient time 
to include it in the ITT. 

36.6 Sufficient time must be allowed for submission of tenders.  The minimum is 20 working 
days from the date of the ITT, but this may vary depending on the urgency or 
complexity of the requirement and, if less than 20 working days, is subject to prior 
approval from the Director responsible for the Contract.   

36.7 Amendments to ITT documents, made after the invitations have been sent out, must 
be clearly headed "ITT Amendment" and sent to all Suppliers who have been invited 
to tender.  One or more amendments must be numbered consecutively.  Amendments 

Page 298



 

 

Report Page No: 31 Agenda Page No: 

must be sent out in sufficient time to allow Suppliers to adjust their Tenders before 
close of Tenders.  If necessary, the tender period must be extended to allow for this. 

36.8 Officers are permitted to provide clarification of an ITT to tenderers but any 
clarifications must be issued to all tenderers at the same time. 

36.9 Until the Contract has been awarded (ie signed or sealed, as appropriate, and dated), 
the information obtained at the opening of tenders is confidential to those involved in 
the opening process and those directly involved in evaluation of the Tenders.  
Confidentiality must be maintained and any breach reported to the Council's Monitoring 
Officer. 

36.10 On receipt, the Tenders must be: 

§ date stamped 

§ marked with the time of receipt on the Tender envelope 

§ initialled by the receiving representative of the Director of Resources 

§ stored safely to guard against any amendment of its contents 

§ logged immediately in the Tender Record Book 

36.11 The Director of Resources must ensure that all Tenders are opened at the same time 
once the tender period has ended.  A representative of the Director of Resources and 
the Officer or his/her representative must be present at the Tender opening. 

36.12 A tender that does not comply with the instructions to tenderers or is conditional must 
be treated as non-compliant and rejected.  Non-compliant tenders must not be 
evaluated unless the Strategic Procurement Adviser advises otherwise.   

36.13 Upon opening, the Officer must record in the Tender Record Book: 

§ the Works, Goods or Services to be supplied; 

§ the name of each tenderer; 

§ the amount of each Tender or such other information as may be relevant to the 
procurement; 

§ the date and time of opening of each Tender; 

§ the names of all persons present at the time of opening. 

The Director's representative must certify the record as correct. 

36.14 Negotiations with Suppliers who have tendered for a Contract are not permitted by EU 
law and are therefore unlawful, regardless of whether the value of the Contract is 
above or below the EU Threshold.  After Tenders have been opened, and before the 
Tenders have been scored, the Officer, in consultation with Strategic Procurement 
may require one or more Tenders to be clarified by the tenderer.  Clarification 
questions and answers must be fully documented and the relevant clarifications 
incorporated in the Contract Document.  Clarifications must not make any substantive 
changes to the Tender.  Tenders must not be scored until clarifications have been 
completed. 

36.15 A Supplier's Tender is his offer to the Council, which the Council may accept as it 
stands.  Once submitted, a tenderer cannot alter the amount of the Tender or any of 
his Tender proposals.  If a tenderer attempts to alter his tender after the last date for 
receipt of Tenders, he must be given the opportunity to stand by or withdraw his 
original Tender.  The Council may correct an obvious arithmetical error e.g. £2000 + 
£2000 = £5000 can be corrected to £4000. 

 

37. EVALUATION OF NON-EU TENDERS – see Rule 18 and Procurement Quick Reference 

Guide No.14 Evaluation of Tenders or Quotations [insert hyperlink] 

Page 299



 

 

Report Page No: 32 Agenda Page No: 

37.1 Confidentiality of Tenders and the identity of tenderers must be maintained at all times 
and information about one tenderer’s response must not be divulged to another 
tenderer. 

37.2 The Head of Legal Services must be consulted before responding to a Freedom of 
Information request regarding a current or recent tendering process. 

37.3 Tenders should normally be evaluated on the basis of ‘most economically 
advantageous’ to the Council.  The basis of evaluation must be stated in the ITT.  If the 
basis of evaluation is 'most economically advantageous', the criteria for evaluation 
must be set out in the ITT with the weightings to be given to them.   

37.4 If the basis of evaluation is price only, only the lowest compliant Tender (if payment is 
to be made by the Council) or the highest compliant Tender (if payment is to be made 
to the Council) may be accepted.  

37.5 If the basis of evaluation is 'most economically advantageous', an appropriate 
evaluation panel must consider the Tenders and evaluate them against the criteria and 
weightings stated in the ITT.  The evaluation panel may include service users and/or 
external consultants but must not include elected members of the Council.   

37.6 All valid Tenders received must be evaluated, and in accordance with the published 
Award Criteria. 

37.7 Tenders must be accepted in accordance with the outcome of the evaluation or not at 
all.   

37.8 If no suitable Tenders are received, Strategic Procurement must be consulted as to 
how the Works, Supplies or Service concerned may be procured. 

37.9 A Tender that exceeds the budget allocated may only be accepted by the Director if it 
is within 5% or less of the approved budget from the Business Case and approval to 
the additional expenditure is obtained from the Director of Resources before the 
Tender is accepted. 

37.10 If a Tender exceeds the budget allocated by more than 5% then either 

§ a fresh Tender exercise is undertaken; or 

§ the Director must obtain the approval of the relevant Executive Councillor and 
the Director of Resources to accept the Tender. 

37.11 For Concession Contracts, Rules 37.9 and 37.10 shall apply if the Tender received is 
less than the Contract value by 5% or more 

37.12 If all valid Tenders are too high to be accepted and there is no further allocation of 
additional funds, the Director may delete part of the Specification and ask all Suppliers 
invited to tender to re-price and then re-submit their Tenders.  In such cases, the 
Director must set out the deletion in a bill of reductions or other document, to be 
incorporated into the Contract Document. 

37.13 If the Contract will result in the application of the TUPE, the Director must ensure that 
the successful tenderer has dealt with all employee matters including pay, conditions of 
employment and pension rights and benefits in his Tender and will give all appropriate 
indemnities in the Contract.  Human Resources and Legal Services must be consulted 
early in all such cases. 

37.14 The Director is responsible for producing a full tender report for the purposes of an 
audit trail and record keeping, which should : 

§ confirm that the Tender procedure has complied with these Contract Procedure 
Rules; 

§ list the tenderers invited and Tenders received; 

§ list the evaluation criteria and weightings; and 

Page 300



 

 

Report Page No: 33 Agenda Page No: 

§ show the scoring of Tenders on evaluation. 

If the Director is not the decision maker, the Tender report must be sent to the decision 
maker before the decision to award the Contract is made. 

 

38. AWARD OF THE CONTRACT – Non-EU Tenders 

38.1 Refer to Rule 35. 

38.2 As soon as practicable after the decision to award the Contract has been made, the 
Director must write to inform the successful and unsuccessful tenderers of that 
decision. 

38.3 If an unsuccessful Supplier requests in writing reasons for the decision, the Officer 
must comply with the Council’s corporate response standard but in any event a written 
response must be provided within 10 days of the request. 

 

39. SIGNATURE OF CONTRACT – Non-EU Tenders 

39.1 The Supplier must not be allowed to begin work on the Contract until the Contract 
Document has been signed or sealed as appropriate by both parties.  See guide to 
Process for Award and Signature of Contracts [insert hyperlink] 

39.3 Contracts for Tenders must be signed for and on behalf of the Council by the Director 
responsible for the Contract personally (unless advised by Legal Services that the 
Contract should be sealed due to the risk or complexity of the Contract).   

39.4 An award letter or letter of intent must not be used instead of a Contract (unless 
agreed otherwise by Legal Services). 

39.5 Works Contracts are generally executed as deeds, by affixing the Council’s Common 
Seal (unless agreed by Legal Services that the Contract can be signed).   

Page 301



 

 

Report Page No: 34 Agenda Page No: 

 

Part 7 – EU TENDERS 

Contracts over the EU Threshold 

See Procurement Quick Reference Guide No.13c Inviting a Tender (ITT) [insert hyperlink] 

40. COMPETITION 

 Competitive Tenders must be sought for Contracts over the EU Threshold. 

 

41. PRELIMINARY STEPS – EU Tenders 

41.1 Strategic Procurement must be consulted to determine the most appropriate method of 
conducting the procurement, taking into account the principles in the [“Guide” – insert 

hyperlink]. 

41.2 At the same time as consulting Strategic Procurement, full instructions must be given 
to Legal Services to draft or approve terms and conditions of Contract. 

41.3 A business case must be prepared, which must include provision for resources for the 
management of the Contract for its entire duration. 

 

42. SPECIFICATION – EU Tenders See Procurement Quick Reference Guide No.10 Specification 

Writing [insert hyperlink] 

42.1 A clear and comprehensive Specification of the Council's requirements must be 
prepared with regard to the Works, Goods or Services to be supplied. 

42.2 All Works, Goods and Services must be specified by reference to European standards, 
or national standards if no European standards are set.  Named products or 
manufacturers must not be specified.  Although the words “or equivalent” may be used, 
it is preferable to describe the features of a particular product. 

42.3 The Specification should incorporate measurable and, so far as is possible, objective 
quality and performance criteria to enable the Director to see whether the Council’s 
requirements are being met by the Supplier. 

42.4 All necessary professional and technical advice and assistance must be obtained in 
preparing the Specification, to ensure a comprehensive document that expresses the 
Council's requirements and protects its interests.  If it is intended to allow Consultants 
who assist in the preparation of a Specification to be invited to tender for the Contract, 
advice must be sought from Strategic Procurement and Legal Services.  The people 
who prepare the Specification should, as a rule, be part of the panel that will evaluates 
the Tenders. 

42.5 Generally, the OJEU contract notice or other advertisement inviting Tenders must not 
be published until the Specification has been drafted. 

 

43. TERMS AND CONDITIONS – EU Tenders 

43.1 Full instructions must be given to Legal Services at the earliest opportunity to draft the 
terms and conditions of contract or to approve standard terms and conditions of 
contract e.g. JCT.   

43.2 The Director must : 

§ Require the Supplier to maintain appropriate and adequate levels of insurance 
cover, in consultation with the Council's Support Services Manager, for (as 
appropriate) employer's liability, public liability, products liability, all risks/contract 

Page 302



 

 

Report Page No: 35 Agenda Page No: 

works and professional indemnity insurance.  Unless otherwise agreed by the 
Support Services Manager, the minimum levels of cover shall be  

§ £5 million for employer's liability insurance 

§ £5 million for public liability and products liability insurance 

§ £2 million for professional indemnity insurance.   

All policies must contain an ‘indemnity to principal’ clause (ie the Supplier’s 
insurance policy will be extended to the Council as if the Council was the insured 
person). 

§ Ensure that the Supplier holds the required insurance cover at the start of the 
Contract and renews the policies as necessary during the Contract period. 

43.3 All Contracts, whatever their value, must provide for payment by the Council after 
supply of the Works, Goods or Services (which includes performance related 
milestones).  Exceptionally, and only with the consent of the Director of Resources, a 
Contract may provide for payment in advance. 

 

44. BONDS AND PARENT COMPANY GUARANTEES 

44.1 For every Contract of £300,000 or more in value, the Director must decide, taking 
appropriate advice, whether the circumstances justify the Council requiring the 
Supplier to provide a Parent Company Guarantee.  If the Supplier does not have a 
parent company or the parent company is not approved under Rule 44.4, the Supplier 
may be required to provide a Bond. 

44.2 If a Bond is required, the amount of the Bond must be not less than 10% of the total 
Contract value or the whole of the annual Contract value, unless agreed otherwise by 
the Director of Resources.  

44.3 A Bond may be required where the Council intends to make staged payments in 
advance of receiving the whole of the deliverable under the Contract and there is 
concern about the financial stability of the provider. 

44.4 The parent company or the surety for a Bond must be approved by the Director of 
Resources. 

44.5 All Parent Company Guarantees and Bonds must be in a form approved by Legal 
Services.  A specimen of the Parent Company Guarantee and Bond must be included 
in the ITT. 

 

45. AUTHORITY TO INVITE AND EVALUATE TENDERS AND AWARD CONTRACTS – 
EU Tenders See Procurement Quick Reference Guide No.9 Approvals and Scrutiny [insert 

hyperlink] 

45.1 Directors have delegated authority under the scheme of Delegation as set out in Part 
3, Section 9 of the Constitution to invite and evaluate Tenders and to award Contracts 
below £300,000 (Key Decision) provided that a budget has been allocated for that 
expenditure. 

45.2 For Contracts of £300,000 (Key Decision) and above, consent from the relevant 
Scrutiny Committee and Executive Councillor to invite and evaluate Tenders (and, if 
appropriate, delegation to award Contracts) must be obtained before any procurement 
documents are issued.  In order to get a report to the relevant Scrutiny Committee, the 
Officer must publish a short description of the proposed procurement on the Council’s 
Forward Plan at least 3 months prior to the relevant Committee meeting.  In order to 
obtain authority, a budget must have been allocated for the proposed expenditure.   

Page 303



 

 

Report Page No: 36 Agenda Page No: 

45.3 The OJEU contract notice or other advertisement inviting Tenders must not be 
published until the Director or Scrutiny Committee/Executive Councillor (as 
appropriate) has made the decision to invite and evaluate Tenders and the decision 
has been recorded in writing. 

 

46. ESTABLISHING A NEW FRAMEWORK AGREEMENT 

46.1 Legal Services and Strategic Procurement must be consulted before setting up a new 
Framework Agreement for the Council. 

46.2 Prior to commencing a Tender exercise to set up a new Framework Agreement, 
approval must be obtained from the relevant decision maker – see Rule 45. 

46.2 A Framework Agreement must not be longer than 4 years unless specifically agreed 
with the Head of Legal Services. 

46.3 A Framework Agreement may be entered into with a single Supplier.  However, a 
multi-Supplier Framework Agreement must be entered into with a minimum of 
3 Suppliers. 

 

47. TENDER PROCEDURE – EU Tenders See Procurement Quick Reference Guide No.13c 

Inviting a Tender (ITT) [insert hyperlink] 

47.1 The Tender procedure must be followed, in consultation with Strategic Procurement 
and Legal Services, when letting Contracts above the EU Threshold or when setting up 
a new Framework Agreement.   

47.2 The Director must first establish whether the EU Regulations apply to a proposed 
Contract and if so the appropriate EU Regulations must be followed (as defined in 
consultation with Legal Services and/or Strategic Procurement).   

47.3 Sufficient time should be built into the Tender procedure to prepare the Specification 
and terms and conditions of Contract.  This will enable a smooth, timely and lawful 
Tender procedure. 

47.4 The selection of Suppliers to be invited to tender for the Contract must follow the 
requirements of the EU Regulations.  The Contract must be advertised in OJEU.  
OJEU notices must only be placed by Strategic Procurement (or, where used, a 
Central Purchasing Body such as ESPO), in consultation with Legal Services.  
Directors or consultants must not place OJEU notices themselves.   

47.5 Whether or not the EU Regulations apply to a proposed Contract, a sufficient number 
of Suppliers must be invited to tender to ensure genuine competition.  The minimum 
number is 5.  If there are fewer than 5 expressions of interest in being invited to tender 
or fewer than 5 satisfactory PQQs, then the minimum number of Suppliers to be invited 
to tender may be reduced, with the approval of Strategic Procurement and Legal 
Services. 

47.6 Where a PQQ is used, as soon as possible after the selection of the shortlist of 
Suppliers to be invited to tender, Officers must write to any Suppliers who submitted a 
PQQ but who were not selected, informing them why they were not selected.  If a 
Supplier who was not selected asks for further information on why he was 
unsuccessful, the Director must make arrangements for the de-briefing within 5 days. 

 

47.7 The ITT must include : 

§ the criteria and sub-criteria against which Tenders will be evaluated, the 
weightings that will be attached to the criteria and sub-criteria and the method 
of scoring to be used; 

Page 304



 

 

Report Page No: 37 Agenda Page No: 

§ instructions to tenderers; 

§ the Council's Specification; 

§ the terms and conditions of Contract, in a form drafted by or approved by Legal 
Services; 

§ a form of tender for completion by the tenderer.  The form of tender must 
acknowledge that the Council is not obliged to accept the lowest or any tender.  
The form of tender must also state that the tender will remain open for 
acceptance by the Council for a period of 90 days after the last date for receipt 
of tenders, or such other period as appropriate.   

§ if a performance Bond is required, the form of tender must require the tenderer 
to state the amount, if any, by which his price will be increased for the provision 
of the Bond; 

§ if appropriate, a pricing document for completion by the tenderer; and 

§ if the Contract may involve the transfer of employees, from the Council to a 
Contractor or from one Contractor to another, all relevant information relating to 
those employees in an anonymised format provided tenderers have signed a 
confidentiality undertaking.  It is the responsibility of the Director to obtain full 
and accurate employee information in sufficient time to include it in the ITT. 

47.8 The time allowed for submission of PQQs and Tenders must comply with EU 
Regulations. 

47.9 Amendments to ITT documents, made after the invitations have been sent out, must 
be clearly headed "ITT Amendment" and sent to all Suppliers who have been invited 
to tender.  One or more amendments must be numbered consecutively.  Amendments 
must be sent out in sufficient time to allow Suppliers to adjust their Tenders before 
close of Tenders.  If necessary, the Tender period must be extended to allow for this.  

47.10 Until the Contract has been awarded, the information obtained at the opening of 
Tenders is confidential to those involved in the opening process and those directly 
involved in evaluation of the Tenders.  Confidentiality must be maintained and any 
breach reported to the Council's Monitoring Officer. 

47.11 On receipt, the Tenders must be: 

§ date stamped 

§ marked with the time of receipt on the Tender envelope 

§ initialled by the receiving representative of the Director of Resources 

§ stored safely to guard against any amendment of its contents 

§ logged immediately in the Tender Record Book 

47.12 The Director of Resources must ensure that all Tenders are opened at the same time 
once the tender period has ended.  A representative of the Director of Resources and 
the Officer or his/her representative must be present at the Tender opening. 

47.13 A Tender that does not comply with the instructions to tenderers or is conditional must 
be treated as non-compliant and rejected.  Non-compliant Tenders must not be 
evaluated unless the Strategic Procurement Adviser advises otherwise.   

47.14 Upon opening, the Officer must record in the Tender Record Book: 

§ the Works, Goods or Services to be supplied; 

§ the name of each tenderer; 

§ the amount of each Tender or such other information as may be relevant to the 
procurement; 

Page 305



 

 

Report Page No: 38 Agenda Page No: 

§ the date and time of opening of each Tender; 

§ the names of all persons present at the time of opening. 

The Director's representative must certify the record as correct. 

 

48. CLARIFICATION AND NEGOTIATION – EU Tenders 

48.1 Negotiations with Suppliers who have tendered for a Contract through an Open or 
Restricted Procedure are not permitted by EU law and are therefore unlawful.  After 
Tenders have been opened, and before the Tenders have been scored, the Director 
must consider whether advice is required from Strategic Procurement or Legal 
Services to determine whether one or more Tenders need to be clarified by the 
tenderer.   

48.2 Clarifications must be designed to ensure that the Council has fully understood the 
Tender submitted.  Clarifications must not make any substantive changes to the 
Tender.   

48.3 Clarification questions and answers must be fully documented in a form approved by 
Legal Services and the relevant clarifications incorporated in the Contract Document.   

48.4 Tenders must not be evaluated and scored until clarifications have been completed. 

 

49. EVALUATION OF TENDERS – EU Tenders Procurement Quick Reference Guide No.14 

Evaluation of Tenders or Quotations [insert hyperlink] 

49.1 Tenders should normally be evaluated on the basis of ‘most economically 
advantageous’ to the Council.  Exceptionally, Tenders may be evaluated on the basis 
of price only.  The basis of evaluation must be stated in the OJEU contract notice and 
in any other advertisement.   

49.2 If the basis of evaluation is price only, only the lowest compliant Tender (if payment is 
to be made by the Council) or the highest compliant Tender (if payment is to be made 
to the Council) may be accepted.  

49.3 If the basis of evaluation is 'most economically advantageous', an appropriate 
evaluation panel must consider the Tenders and evaluate them against the criteria and 
weightings stated in the ITT.  The evaluation panel may include service users and/or 
external consultants but may not include elected members of the Council.  The 
evaluation panel should, as a rule, comprise those people who have had significant 
input into drawing up the Specification. 

49.4 All valid Tenders received must be evaluated.  Each member of the evaluation panel 
must make full notes of his/her evaluation and pass the notes to the project lead for 
retention as part of the record of the procurement. 

49.5 Tenders must be accepted in accordance with the outcome of the evaluation or not at 
all.   

49.6 If no suitable Tenders are received, the Director must consult Strategic Procurement 
as to how the Works, Supplies or Service concerned may be procured. 

49.7 A Tender that exceeds the budget allocated may only be accepted by the Director of 
Resources if it is within 5% or less of the original estimate and approval to the 
additional expenditure is obtained from the Director of Resources before the Tender is 
accepted. 

49.8 If a Tender exceeds the budget allocated by more than 5% then either 

§ a fresh Tender exercise is undertaken; or 

Page 306



 

 

Report Page No: 39 Agenda Page No: 

§ the Director must obtain the approval of the relevant Executive Councillor and 
the Director of Resources to accept the Tender. 

49.9 If the Contract will result in the application of the TUPE, the Director must ensure that 
the successful tenderer has dealt with all employee matters including pay, conditions of 
employment and pension rights and benefits in his Tender and will give all appropriate 
indemnities in the Contract.  Human Resources and Legal Services must be consulted 
early in all such cases. 

 

50. AMENDMENTS AND ALTERATIONS TO TENDERS – EU Tenders 

50.1 A Supplier's Tender is his offer to the Council, which the Council may accept as it 
stands.  Once he has submitted his Tender and it has been clarified if necessary, a 
tenderer is not permitted to make any alteration to the amount of the Tender or any of 
his Tender proposals. 

50.2 If a tenderer attempts to alter his offer after the last date for receipt of Tenders, he 
must be given the opportunity to stand by or withdraw his original offer.  Correction of 
an obvious arithmetical error in a fixed price Tender, may be accepted e.g. £2000 + 
£2000 = £5000 can be corrected to £4000. 

50.3 A Tender that is qualified or expressed to be conditional upon the Council's acceptance 
of alterations to the Specification or the terms and conditions of Contract must be 
treated as non-compliant and rejected.  Non-compliant Tenders must not be 
evaluated.  This does not prevent the Council inviting variant bids (provided this was 
set out in the OJEU notice).  If variant bids are invited, tenderers must be required to 
submit a mandatory reference bid based on the Specification and terms and conditions 
included in the ITT as well as their separate variant bid, so that all bids may be 
compared fairly. 

50.4 Before a Tender has been accepted, a Director may ask all tenderers to hold their 
Tenders open for a longer period.  Tenders should in any event remain open for 
acceptance for a period of 90 days from the latest date for receipt of Tenders, or such 
other period as the Director considers appropriate, and the form of tender must make 
this clear. 

 

51. AWARD OF THE CONTRACT – EU Tenders 

51.1 Refer to Rule 45 in respect of authority to award a Contract. 

51.2 The Director is responsible for producing a full tender report for the purposes of an 
audit trail and record keeping, which should:  

§ confirm that the Tender procedure has complied with these Contract Procedure 
Rules. 

§ list the tenderers invited and Tenders received; 

§ list the evaluation criteria and weightings; and 

§ show the scoring of Tenders on evaluation. 

51.3 If the Director is not the decision maker, the recommendation to the decision maker to 
award the Contract must include the name of the successful tenderer, the length of the 
Contract and any options for extension and the price or estimated price of the Contract. 

51.4 As soon as possible after the decision to award the Contract has been made, the 
Director must write to inform the successful tenderer of that decision.  The letter must 
state that award of the Contract is subject to signature by both parties of the Contract 
Document, which will be sent to the tenderer by Legal Services.  The letter must be 
sent by e-mail or fax. 

Page 307



 

 

Report Page No: 40 Agenda Page No: 

51.5 At the same time as informing the successful tenderer, the Director must write to each 
unsuccessful tenderer (and each Supplier who was invited to tender but who did not 
submit a Tender).  The standstill letter to the unsuccessful tenderers must be sent by 
e-mail or fax.  See Procurement Quick Reference Guide No.15 The Standstill Period [insert 

hyperlink] 

51.6 The standstill letter must be approved by Strategic Procurement and Legal Services 
before being issued. 

51.7 If an unsuccessful tenderer asks for further information on why he was unsuccessful, 
the Director must immediately i.e. the same day arrange for the de-briefing. 

51.8 The Contract Document must not be signed or sealed (as appropriate) before the 
expiry of 10 days (the standstill period) following the date the notification of the 
decision to award the Contract (the standstill letter) was sent.  

 

52. SIGNATURE OF THE CONTRACT – EU Tenders 

52.1 The Supplier must not be allowed to begin work on the Contract until the Contract 
Document has been signed or sealed as appropriate by both parties unless the written 
consent of the Head of Legal Services is obtained.  See Guide to Process for Award 
and Signature of Contracts [insert hyperlink] 

52.2 All Contracts executed as deeds must have the Council’s Common Seal impressed on 
them, witnessed by the Head of Legal Services or an Officer authorised by him. 

52.3 All Framework Agreements, Bonds and Parent Company Guarantees, and all 
Contracts of £300,000 (Key Decision) or more must be executed as deeds, unless 
agreed otherwise by Legal Services.  Legal Services may direct that other Contracts 
must be executed as deeds due to the risk or complexity of the Contract.   

52.4 Contracts over the EU Threshold (that are not deeds) must be signed for and on behalf 
of the Council by the Director who is responsible for the Contract and one other Officer 
unless the Head of Legal Services advises otherwise. 

Page 308



 

 

Report Page No: 41 Agenda Page No: 

 

Part 8 

For Contracts that have commenced 

 

53. CONTRACT MANAGEMENT See Procurement Quick Reference Guide No.17 Managing your 

Contract and Preparing for the Next [insert hyperlink] 

53.1 Work under a Contract must not begin until the Contract Document has been signed or 
sealed and dated unless the written consent of the Head of Legal Services is obtained.   

53.2 The Director must ensure that Strategic Procurement are advised of any Contracts 
entered into by his/her department. 

53.3 Strategic Procurement or a Central Purchasing Body (such as ESPO) shall arrange for 
publication of a Contract award notice in OJEU, if appropriate. 

53.4 For all Contracts over £50,000, the relevant Head of Service shall appoint a Contract 
manager for the duration of the Contract.   

53.5 The Contract manager is responsible for : 

§ managing the Contract and ensuring that it is carried out in accordance with its 
terms and conditions 

§ monitoring the Supplier's performance and ensuring compliance 

§ monitoring cost and value for money requirements 

§ monitoring equalities and sustainability data, where appropriate 

§ monitoring user satisfaction and risk management 

§ formal and documented periodic reviews (as a minimum, these should be 
quarterly) 

§ making the Supplier aware that he is expected to comply with the Council’s 
policies 

§ ensuring that the Supplier maintains the insurance policies required by the 
Contract 

§ agreeing and recording any minor changes to the Contract before they are 
carried out 

§ keeping a record of all valuations, payments, claims, monitoring, changes and 
certificates under the Contract.  Payments must only be made against a valid 
invoice 

§ deducting liquidated damages, if appropriate 

§ in consultation with Legal Services and the Director of Resources, consenting 
to sub-contracts, and assignments and novations to new Suppliers 

§ managing the transition between the ending of one Contract and the beginning 
of another. 

 

 

53.6 The Director must consult Legal Services for consideration of the Council's legal 
position : 

§ before any Contract is to be terminated or suspended 

Page 309



 

 

Report Page No: 42 Agenda Page No: 

§ in the event of a claim for payment not clearly within the terms and conditions of 
Contract 

§ before making any deduction from payments due to a Supplier or withholding 
payment from a Supplier (unless provision is made for this in the Contract) 

§ before settling any dispute 

§ before making any extension to a Contract or variation of the scope of a 
Contract 

§ In the event that a Supplier enters into receivership or goes into liquidation. 

53.7 At the end of any Contract over the EU threshold, the Contract manager must provide 
a written report to the relevant Director evaluating the extent to which the Contract met 
the purchasing need and contractual objectives as set out in the original Project 
Appraisal or Business Case. 

53.8 If the Contract is to be re-let, the Contract manager’s report should be available in 
sufficient time to inform the approach to re-letting any subsequent Contract. 

 

54. RECORD KEEPING 

54.1 For Contracts between £10,000 and £50,000 the following records must be kept: 

- RFQ issued and Quotations received 

- Exemptions and the reason for them 

- The reason(s) why the lowest price was not accepted 

- Written communications with the successful Supplier or unsuccessful Suppliers 

- Approval decisions from the appropriate decision make. 

54.2 For Contracts above £50,000 the following records must be kept: 

- Approval decisions from Directors and Executive Councillors 

- Details of approved budget 

- Details of any options appraisal and resulting Business Case 

- Method used for obtaining Tenders 

- Written communications with Suppliers 

- Contracting decisions (e.g. withdrawal of an ITT; who to invite to submit a 
Quotation or Tender; award of Contract; decision to terminate a Contract; 
variation or extension to a Contract) and the reasons for them 

- Exemptions and the reasons for them 

- Award Criteria in descending order of importance 

- Tender documents issued and received from Suppliers 

- Records relating to Evaluation of Tenders 

- Clarifications and any post-tender negotiations, including minutes of any 
meetings and correspondence 

- Contract Documents 

- Post-Contract monitoring information 

- Written communication with the successful Supplier throughout the Contract 
period 

54.3 Records must be retained for 6 years for Contracts signed by hand and for 12 years 
for Contracts signed/sealed as Deeds. 

Page 310



 

 

Report Page No: 43 Agenda Page No: 

54.4 Written records relating to unsuccessful Suppliers may be microfilmed, scanned or 
stored after 12 months from Contract award, provided there is no dispute about the 
award. 

 

55. EXTENSION TO DURATION OF CONTRACT 

55.1 An extension to a Contract is an additional period at the end of the Contract, during 
which the Works or the Services to be carried out are a repetition of the Works or 
Services under the original Contract. 

55.2 Unless a Contract specifically includes an option to extend its term, that Contract may 
not be extended unless an appropriate exemption is approved.  The Contract will 
cease to exist at the end of its term. 

55.3 If a Contract specifically includes an option to extend its term and : 

§ the OJEU notice or other advertisements for the Contract stated that an 
extension Contract may be awarded; and 

§ the estimated value of the Contract in the OJEU notice or other advertisements 
took account of the potential extended Contract; and 

§ the extension represents good value for money for the Council, 

then the Director may make a decision to award the extension Contract. 

Once the extension has expired, that Contract will cease to exist. 

 

56. VARIATION TO THE SCOPE OF CONTRACT 

56.1 Provided that a budget has been allocated for that expenditure and value for money 
can be demonstrated, the Director may agree with a Supplier for him to carry out 
additional related Works or Services that were not included in the original Contract but 
which through unforeseen circumstances have become necessary and which either  

§ cannot for technical or economic reasons be carried out or provided separately 
from those included in the original Contract without major inconvenience to the 
Council; or  

§ could be carried out or provided separately but are strictly necessary to the 
later stages of the Contract.  

56.2 Authorisation for the additional spend must be obtained from the appropriate decision 
maker.  

56.3 Officers must consult Strategic Procurement or Legal Services before varying a 
Contract  

 

Page 311



 

 

Report Page No: 44 Agenda Page No: 

 

Part 9 

Exemptions to the Contract Procedure Rules 

 

EXEMPTIONS 

57.1 An exemption to the Contract Procedure Rules is a permission to let a Contract without 
complying with one or more of the Rules relating to competition requirements, e.g. by 
negotiating with one or more Suppliers prior to awarding a Contract.   

57.2 An application for an exemption to allow a Contract to be let without genuine 
competition will not be granted without a cogent reason.  A lack of time caused by 
inadequate forward planning is not a cogent reason and will not permit an exemption to 
the Rules.  If an application to let a Contract without genuine competition is granted, 
the Officer responsible for the Contract must demonstrate that the price obtained is not 
in excess of the market price and that the Contract represents best value for money. 

57.3 An exemption cannot be granted for Contracts over the EU threshold unless agreed 
with Legal Services that there are no cross-border competition requirements. 

57.4 Only the Director of Resources, in consultation with the Head of Internal Audit and the 
Strategic Procurement Adviser, may grant an exemption to let a contract without 
genuine competition.  Applications for exemptions must be made in writing using the 
Exemption Notification Form [hyperlink], copied to the relevant Director and signed by 
the Officer requiring an exemption. 

57.5 Officers are responsible for ensuring that exemptions to the Rules are approved 
in advance of any action undertaken. 

57.6 The Head of Internal Audit will keep a register of all exemptions. 

57.7 An exemption may be granted subject to conditions 

 

AUTOMATIC EXEMPTIONS 

57.8 A written application will NOT be required for an automatic exemption, which will be 
granted where the relevant Director is satisfied that any of the following apply: 

(a) following completion of a procurement exercise within the previous 6 months, no 
satisfactory Tender or Quotation has been received; 

(b) relates to the hiring of performance artists (and the Council’s existing rules for 
selecting artists has been complied with); 

(c) relates to Goods, Services or Works which are required urgently as a 
consequence of an emergency or some other unforeseen event or circumstance. 

Page 312



P
age 313



 

 

Report Page No: 46 Agenda Page No: 

Appendix 2 

 
DRAFT 

 
ASSESSMENT OF PROCUREMENT RISKS 

 
In order to identify whether your low/medium value project is a high risk one that requires the Lead Officer to take the additional steps 
identified below when planning a procurement, please decide whether any of the risks listed in column 1 apply to your contract.  If 
they do, please take the additional steps identified in column 3 
 
 
 

Type of risk Does this risk 
apply to your 
procurement 
Yes/No (please 
indicate) 

Additional requirements 

Your contract is likely to involve the 
transfer under TUPE of staff into or out of 
the Council or between contractors. 

 Contact Legal, Procurement and HR at the first stages of project 
planning to ensure appropriate technical input from the outset.  
Ensure that clear information about TUPE is included in all your 
procurement documents starting with the advertisement/OJEU 
notice.  

You are proposing or a collaborative or 
shared procurement/contract 

 Contact Legal and Procurement at the outset of the project for 
advice about: 

• The need for a memorandum of understanding between 
the collaborating parties; 

• The type of procurement to be undertaken – whether a 
Framework contract or not. 

• Which authority is leading and providing the legal support 
for the project. 

Notify your Director of the proposed collaboration 

Your contract involves the leasing or  Contact Legal, Procurement and VAT officer at the outset of the 

P
age 314



 

 

Report Page No: 47 Agenda Page No: 

Type of risk Does this risk 
apply to your 
procurement 
Yes/No (please 
indicate) 

Additional requirements 

sale/transfer of the Council’s capital 
assets to the contractor eg leasing office 
space, transferring vehicles, equipment 

project 

The contract requires the contractor to 
use a sub-contractor nominated by the 
Council 

 Contact Legal and Procurement at the outset of the project.  
Nominating sub-contractors should be avoided if at all possible 

Your contract is a construction contract or 
a contract for construction related 
services eg architecture. 

 Contact Legal.  Do not use the Council’s standard terms and 
conditions for these contracts. Unless the Head of Legal agrees, 
these contracts may not be completed by the Lead officer, Head 
of Service or Director. 
 
Construction and some construction-related contracts need to 
be under seal rather than signed.  Only the Head of Legal 
Services can complete contracts under seal. 

The contractor will be holding the 
Council’s money 

 Contact Legal, Finance and Procurement.  If at all possible the 
Council should avoid situations where a contractor holds money 
for the Council (eg for the sale of on-line tickets/collection of 
payments from Council tenants etc).  If this is unavoidable you 
will need advice about how to safeguard the Council’s position 
effectively. 
Notify your Director about the proposed procurement. 

Your contract is to be funded from 
external sources including grant money. 
 

 Contact Legal and Procurement.  You will need to ensure that 
your procurement/payment provisions/contract 
conditions/contract management fulfils any grant conditions.  
Failure to fulfil the grant conditions could lead to funding being 
withdrawn. 

Your contract will involve the Council 
being responsible for another body’s 

 Eg some types of collaborative projects.  Contact Legal, 
Procurement and Finance for advice at the outset of the project. 

P
age 315



 

 

Report Page No: 48 Agenda Page No: 

Type of risk Does this risk 
apply to your 
procurement 
Yes/No (please 
indicate) 

Additional requirements 

money. Notify your Director about the proposed procurement. 

Your contract is for services that are 
politically sensitive or contentious where 
the failure/default of the contractor would 
lead to the Council’s public facing 
services being compromised/serious 
adverse publicity 

 Discuss with the Director (or officer to whom responsibility has 
been delegated) whether the decision to procure should be 
referred to the Executive Councillor (with or without pre-scrutiny) 
rather than taken at an officer level. 
 
Contact Procurement/Legal/Finance.  If the contract is for a 
critical service where failure could jeopardise the delivery of 
public facing services extra safeguards will need to be 
incorporated in the procurement including: 
 

• Stringent financial stability checks 

• Requiring Bonds and/or Parent Company Guarantees (if 
applicable) 

• Carefully drafted default and termination provisions in the 
contract 

• Clear requirements for regular management information 
reports 

• Clear contract management and monitoring regime  

The contract is for a new or innovative 
service/initiative that the Council has not 
provided before 

 Contact Legal at the outset of the project to ensure that the 
Council has the power to act in the way you propose 

The contract services need to start before 
the contract documents have been agreed 
and or completed. 

 This will be in exceptional cases only and you will need to 
contact the Head of Legal Services for permission before any 
services start in these circumstances.  Legal will decide whether 
a Letter of Intent or similar is required to cover the pre-contract 
completion period. 

The contract is likely to be company that  Contact Legal as early as possible to let them know that these 

P
age 316



 

 

Report Page No: 49 Agenda Page No: 

Type of risk Does this risk 
apply to your 
procurement 
Yes/No (please 
indicate) 

Additional requirements 

is not registered in the UK or will be 
guaranteed by a company that is not 
registered in the UK guarantor 

circumstances are likely. 

You or the Contractor are proposing that 
the contractor’s own terms and conditions 
are used. 

 Contact Legal at the outset of the project.  In some 
circumstances eg contracting with a Bank, the use of the 
contractor’s terms and conditions is unavoidable and you just 
need to be aware of the impact of the contract terms 

Your contract may involve particular 
issues with confidentiality, data protection, 
intellectual property rights or software, or 
the contractor is likely to need access to 
the Council’s computer server or web 
sites. 

 Contact IT Client services and Legal at the outset of the project 

The contract value will exceed the EU 
procurement thresholds. 

 Contact Legal and Procurement at the outset of the project. In 
some cases it may be possible to use an existing (EU 
compliant) framework agreement rather than run an entirely new 
procurement but that will have to reviewed properly as part of 
options analysis work.  

You intend to make use of an existing 
Framework Agreement for the first time 

 Consult Legal and Procurement at the outset of the project. 
Where use of a Framework Agreement is validated, repeat uses 
will generally not need to be referred back to Legal or 
Procurement.  

You intend to contract with a supplier who 
has a known previously poor 
performance/ delivery track record 

 Consult Legal and Procurement at the outset of the project.  
There may be occasions where this situation is unavoidable and 
the commercial/ contract approach will need to seek to minimise 
risk of delivery/ service failure. 
Notify your Director about the proposed procurement. 

 

P
age 317



Page 318



 

 

Report Page No: 51 Agenda Page No: 

Appendix 3 
 

 
 
Cambridge City Council Equality Impact Assessment 
 
Completing an Equality Impact Assessment will help you to think about 
what impact your strategy, policy, plan, project, contract or major 
change to your service may have on people that live in, work in or visit 
Cambridge, as well as on City Council staff.  
 
The template is easy to use. You do not need to have specialist equalities knowledge to 
complete it. It asks you to make judgements based on evidence and experience. There 
are guidance notes on the intranet to help you. You can also get advice from David 
Kidston, Strategy and Partnerships Manager on 01223 457043 or email 
david.kidston@cambridge.gov.uk or from any member of the Joint Equalities Group.  
 
 

1. Title of strategy, policy, plan, project, contract or major change to your 
service: 

CONTRACT PROCEDURE RULES - PART 4G OF THE CONSTITUTION 

 

2. What is the objective or purpose of your strategy, policy, plan, project, 
contract or major change to your service? 

The Rules set out the framework for the conduct of procurement within the Authority 

 

3. Who will be affected by this strategy, policy, plan, project, contract or major 
change to your service? (Please tick those that apply) 

 Residents   
 

 Visitors   
 

 Staff  

A specific client group or groups (please state):  
Organisations that bid, or want to bid, for Council contracts 

 

4. What type of strategy, policy, plan, project, contract or major change to your 
service is this? (Please tick)  

 New   
 

 Revised   
 

 Existing   

 

Page 319



 

 

Report Page No: 52 Agenda Page No: 

 
 

5. Responsible directorate and service 

Directorate: Resources  
 
Service:  Strategic Procurement 

 

6. Are other departments or partners involved in delivering this strategy, policy, 
plan, project, contract or major change to your service? 

  No 
 

  Yes (please give details):  
 
Procurement is undertaken by all departments and services and the Rules will therefore 
apply to and be implemented by all parts of the Authority.  External organisations that 
bid for our contracts will have to do so in compliance with our Rules and they are 
therefore affected by the regime that is put in place. 
 
A fundamental requirement of procurement processes is that all potential bidders are 
treated equally.  

 

Page 320



 

 

Report Page No: 53 Agenda Page No: 

7. Potential impact 

Please list and explain how this strategy, policy, plan, project, contract or major change 
to your service could positively or negatively affect individuals from the following 
equalities groups.   
 
When answering this question, please think about:  

• The results of relevant consultation that you or others have completed (for example 
with residents, people that work in or visit Cambridge, service users, staff or partner 
organisations).  

• Complaints information.  

• Performance information.   

• Information about people using your service (for example whether people from 
certain equalities groups use the service more or less than others).  

• Inspection results.  

• Comparisons with other organisations.  

• The implementation of your piece of work (don’t just assess what you think the 
impact will be after you have completed your work, but also think about what steps 
you might have to take to make sure that the implementation of your work does not 
negatively impact on people from a particular equality group).  

• The relevant premises involved.  

• Your communications.  

• National research (local information is not always available, particularly for some 
equalities groups, so use national research to provide evidence for your 
conclusions).  

 

(a) Age (any group of people of a particular age, including younger and older people) 

The Rules will not have any positive or negative impact on any particular age group.   

 

(b) Disability (including people with a physical impairment, sensory impairment, 
learning  disability, mental health problem or other condition which has an impact 
on their daily life)  

The Rules will not have any positive or negative impact on any particular disability 
group.   

 

(c) Gender  

The Rules will not have any positive or negative impact on any particular gender group 

 

Page 321



 

 

Report Page No: 54 Agenda Page No: 

(d) Pregnancy and maternity 

The Rules will not have any positive or negative impact on any applicants that are pregnant 
or who have children 

 

(e) Transgender (including gender re-assignment) 

The Rules will not have any positive or negative impact on any particular transgender group.   

 

(f) Marriage and Civil Partnership 

The Rules will not have any positive or negative impact in terms of marriage or civil  
partnerships 

 

(g) Race or Ethnicity  

The Rules will not have any positive or negative impact on any particular racial or ethnic 
group.   

 

(h) Religion or Belief  

The Rules will not have any positive or negative impact on any particular relgion or 
belief group 

 

(i) Sexual Orientation  

The Rules will not have any positive or negative impact in terms of the sexual 
orientation of any bidder or potential bidder for Council contracts 

 

(j) Other factor that may lead to inequality (please state):  

We consider that the extension of the requirement to advertise opportunities to apply for 
Council contracts and the requirement to include at least one locally based supplier on 
lists of suppliers to be invited to submit quotations will increase opportunities for SME 
and local companies which in the past have complained about the difficulty of accessing 
local work.  The next stage in this project - to review the detail of the processes and to 
simplify the template documents (especially for lower value and low risk work)- will, we 
expect, further increase access to Council opportunities.  

 

8. If you have any additional comments please add them here 

      

 

Page 322



 

 

Report Page No: 55 Agenda Page No: 

9. Conclusions and Next Steps 

• If you have not identified any negative impacts, please sign off this form.  

• If you have identified potential negative actions, you must complete the action plan 
at the end of this document to set out how you propose to mitigate the impact. If you 
do not feel that the potential negative impact can be mitigated, you must complete 
question 8 to explain why that is the case.  

• If there is insufficient evidence to say whether or not there is likely to be a negative 
impact, please complete the action plan setting out what additional information you 
need to gather to complete the assessment. 

All completed Equality Impact Assessments must be emailed to David Kidston, Strategy 
and Partnerships Manager, who will arrange for it to be published on the City Council’s 
website. Email david.kidston@cambridge.gov.uk 

 

10. Sign off 

Name and job title of assessment lead officer: Deborah Quincey, Strategic Procurement 
Adviser 
 
Names and job titles of other assessment team members and people consulted: 
Paul Necus, Head of Specialist Service 
Steve Crabtree, Head  of Internal Audit 
Alka Kingham Contracts solicitor 
Cambridge Chamber of Commerce - Policy Team 
David Horspool, Director of Resources  
 
Date of completion: 17th June 2013      
  
 
Date of next review of the assessment: June 2015  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 323



 

 

Report Page No: 56 Agenda Page No: 

 
 
 
Action Plan 
 
Equality Impact Assessment title:   
   
Date of completion:             
 
 

Equality Group Age 

Details of possible 
disadvantage or negative 
impact 

      

Action to be taken to address 
the disadvantage or negative 
impact 

      

Officer responsible for 
progressing the action 

      

Date action to be completed by       

 

Equality Group Disability 

Details of possible 
disadvantage or negative 
impact 

      

Action to be taken to address 
the disadvantage or negative 
impact 

      

Officer responsible for 
progressing the action 

      

Date action to be completed by       

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 324



 

 

Report Page No: 57 Agenda Page No: 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Equality Group Gender 

Details of possible 
disadvantage or negative 
impact 

      

Action to be taken to address 
the disadvantage or negative 
impact 

      

Officer responsible for 
progressing the action 

      

Date action to be completed by       

 
 

Equality Group Pregnancy and Maternity 

Details of possible 
disadvantage or negative 
impact 

      

Action to be taken to address 
the disadvantage or negative 
impact 

      

Officer responsible for 
progressing the action 

      

Date action to be completed by       

 

Page 325



 

 

Report Page No: 58 Agenda Page No: 

Equality Group Transgender 

Details of possible 
disadvantage or negative 
impact 

      

Action to be taken to address 
the disadvantage or negative 
impact 

      

Officer responsible for 
progressing the action 

      

Date action to be completed by       

 
 
 
 
 
 

Equality Group Marriage and Civil Partnership 

Details of possible 
disadvantage or negative 
impact 

      

Action to be taken to address 
the disadvantage or negative 
impact 

      

Officer responsible for 
progressing the action 

      

Date action to be completed by       

 

Equality Group Race or Ethnicity 

Details of possible 
disadvantage or negative 
impact 

      

Action to be taken to address 
the disadvantage or negative 
impact 

      

Officer responsible for 
progressing the action 

      

Date action to be completed by       

 
 

Page 326



 

 

Report Page No: 59 Agenda Page No: 

Equality Group Religion or Belief 

Details of possible 
disadvantage or negative 
impact 

      

Action to be taken to address 
the disadvantage or negative 
impact 

      

Officer responsible for 
progressing the action 

      

Date action to be completed by       

 
 
 
 
 
 

Equality Group Sexual Orientation 

Details of possible 
disadvantage or negative 
impact 

      

Action to be taken to address 
the disadvantage or negative 
impact 

      

Officer responsible for 
progressing the action 

      

Date action to be completed by       

 

Other factors that may lead to inequality 

Details of possible 
disadvantage or negative 
impact 

      

Action to be taken to address 
the disadvantage or negative 
impact 

      

Officer responsible for 
progressing the action 

      

Date action to be completed by       

 

 

Page 327



Page 328

This page is intentionally left blank



 

Report Page No: 1 Agenda Page No: 

 
Agenda Item          

 

CAMBRIDGE CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
REPORT OF: Returning Officer/Electoral Registration Officer 
   
 TO: Civic Affairs Committee 26/6/2013 
   
 WARDS: None directly affected 
 

ELECTIONS MAY 2013 (REVIEW), ELECTIONS 2014 (ISSUES), 
INDIVIDUAL ELECTORAL REGISTRATION AND CONSULTATION ON 

ELECTORAL FRAUD 
 

 
1. INTRODUCTION 
 

The purpose of this report is to review elections held on 2 May 2013, 
highlight some issues that will need to be addressed in relation to the 
2014 elections, update on the introduction of Individual Electoral 
Registration and highlight an Electoral Commission issues paper on 
fraud.   

  
2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

i) That the Committee notes the issues raised in the report, and 
to give feedback on any matters concerning the running of the 
elections which it wishes the Returning Officer to consider 
further in planning and running future elections.  

ii) To agree that the Annual Meeting of the Council is held on 
Thursday 12 June 2014 if the date for local elections are 
confirmed for 22 May and that officers report to the next 
meeting with committee dates for the 2014/15 Municipal Year. 

iii) Agree that a response to the Electoral Commission’s issues 
paper on electoral fraud (para 6), will be circulated to the 
committee, with the final response sent following consultation 
with Chair and spokes. 

 
3. ELECTIONS 2013 
 

Project planning 
 

Agenda Item 12

Page 329



 

Report Page No: 2 Agenda Page No: 

3.1 This year was a county council election year (there was one city 
council by-election held on the same day in the Abbey ward).  The 
County Council Returning Officer (RO) met with Electoral Services 
Managers in January to agree the RO’s requirement for the County 
Council elections which were carried out in each district by a Local 
Returning Officer under the RO’s direction.  It was at this meeting 
that the RO advised of her decision to hold the count at the same 
time across the County, commencing at 10am on Friday 3 May. 
There were two more meetings with the RO in the build up to polling 
day. 

 
An Election Project Team, chaired by the Electoral Services 
Manager, and comprising officers from across the Council was 
tasked with leading on the known service requirements to run a 
successful election.  This year it was only required to meet twice in 
the run up to the elections and dealt primarily with operational issues.  
An Election Steering Group, chaired by the Local Returning Officer 
met at least monthly from January.  Its role was to monitor progress 
against the project plan, statutory electoral timetables and consider 
any ad-hoc matters.  
 
A mini-Canvass was carried out in January with the revised Register 
of Electors published on 1 March.  This had been planned because of 
our concern of the implications  for registration of the earlier Canvass 
in 2012, which had been required so the Police and Crime 
Commissioner election could be held in November 2012. 
  

 Member briefing 
 

3.2 A briefing paper on the preparation for the elections was sent to 
members of the Council on 8 March.  The local party agents were 
briefed on 28 February.  
 

 Communication 
 

3.3 The County Council led on the County elections.  There were 
updates to the City Council website, with prominence given to 
electoral news on the homepage and links to the County Council 
website as requested. Press releases notifying the media of key 
deadlines were co-ordinated with County Council messages. 
 

 Correspondence 
 

3.4 The Customer Service Centre received 569 telephone calls during 
April this year (compared to 703 over the same period in 2012). A 

Page 330



 

Report Page No: 3 Agenda Page No: 

further 369 were received directly into the Electoral Services office.  
The Electoral Services office received 525 election related e-mails 
this year, compared with 433 in 2011. 
 
Training 
 

3.5 The Returning Officer required every person working at a polling 
station to receive training – if they did not attend the training they 
would not be employed.  We held 3 training sessions for Presiding 
Officers and 4 sessions for poll clerks using training information 
provided by the Electoral Commission and adapted to local 
circumstances and using case studies from the last couple of years  
as learning points.   
 
Issue of postal votes 
 

3.6 Postal vote packs were issued in-house and 100% were handed over 
to Royal Mail for delivery on Friday 19 April, two days after the 
application deadline.  The total number of postal vote packs issued 
was 11,041.  The total number re-issued because of being spoilt, lost 
or not received was 4, compared to 17 in 2012. 
 
Opening of postal votes 
 

3.7 Postal votes were not opened daily as the volumes returned did  not 
require it.  68.7% of postal votes were returned for inclusion in the 
count (70.5% in 2012).  

 
3.8 Signature and date of birth checking was carried out for 100% of 

returned postal votes and 3.6% were rejected due to either an invalid 
or missing signature/date of birth. (2.5% in 2012). The number of 
postal votes received this year that had the signature and/or the date 
of birth missing was greater than in 2012, hence a higher proportion 
of rejects. 
 
Polling stations 
 

3.9 There were two different polling station locations from 2012.  In 
King’s Hedges, Arbury Court Library was used because Arbury 
Community Centre was being re-furbished.  In Newnham, the 
University Sports Ground in Wilberforce Road was used as 
Newnham College Bar was being re-furbished.  Newnham ward 
councillors expressed concern at the location of the venue prior to 
the election and formally complained afterwards on behalf of voters 
(poor location and unhelpful map on poll card, the station was on the 

Page 331



 

Report Page No: 4 Agenda Page No: 

first floor and the lift had no working light for part of the day).  The 
Returning Officer wrote to the ward councillors on 7 May advising 
that they would be consulted seeking ideas for possible alternative 
locations as part of the review of polling districts this autumn.  The 
Chair of Civic Affairs Committee in answer to an oral question at 
Council on 23 May also asked that any new polling station should be 
subject to an Equalities Impact Assessment (the Returning Officer 
already has obligations under the Equality Act 2010).  Officers did 
visit the venue prior to booking and used Electoral Commission 
checklists on accessibility.  
 

3.10 Overall there were 43 stations, with 43 Presiding Officers and 105 
poll clerks. 
 
Inspectors 
 

3.11 Four Polling Station Inspectors were responsible for checking all the 
polling stations at least twice during the course of the day. This was 
in addition to the Returning Officer visiting all polling stations. 
 

 The Count 
 

3.12 Staffing was 6 counters per ward (except for Abbey which had 8 
because of the city by-election) and as last year, the Small Hall was 
used to count five of the 14 wards, with a Deputy Returning Officer 
overseeing proceedings. 

 
3.13 The process of getting into the Halls could have been better with 

party workers concerned that they would not be in situ in time for the 
start.  However, everyone was in place for the count to commence at 
10am. 
 

3.14 For 2013, as in 2012, there was a single election to verify and count.  
In both years, using both Large and Small Halls the count was  
completed within 5 hours of close of poll.  For May 2014-2016, there 
will be combined elections which will extend the time it takes to 
complete the count considerably and consideration will need to be 
given to the best arrangements for dealing with this.   

 
 

Complaints 
 

3.15 Other than the complaints about Newnham polling station referred to 
above, we received two complaints.  One concerned someone who 
had not received a poll card and one concerning the RNIB approved 
template to assist visually impaired voters.  We have referred a 

Page 332



 

Report Page No: 5 Agenda Page No: 

matter to the Police where a person contacted the electoral services 
manager after the election alleging that their signature was forged on 
a candidate’s nomination paper.  The case is on-going. 

 
 

 
4. ELECTIONS IN MAY 2014  

 
4.1 The Government has consulted on moving the date of local elections 

from 1 May to 22 May 2014, the date of the European Parliamentary 
elections.  The Government is yet to make its decision but  elections 
were combined on the last two occasions (in 2004 and 2009) so it is 
likely. 

 

4.2 The Annual Meeting in 2014 is currently scheduled for 22 May.  If the 
local elections are moved to 22 May, the Annual Meeting will have to 
move.  It is suggested the Annual Meeting moves to Thursday 12 
June which will give a comparable period of time between election 
and Council meeting.  There will be a knock on effect on the 
June/July decision making cycle which will be reported to the 19 
September meeting of this committee. 

 
 

 
5. INDIVIDUAL ELECTORAL REGISTRATION (IER) 
 
5.1 IER is due to be introduced in July 2014 and will change the way that 

people register to vote.  When a resident applies to register, they will 
need to provide their date of birth and national insurance number in 
addition to name, address and nationality.  

 
5.2 IER’s objectives stated by the Government are: increasing trust in 

voter registration; encouraging personal responsibility for your vote; 
introducing more convenient channels for registering and; reducing 
the risk and perception of electoral fraud. 
 

5.3 Introducing such a significant change to the way registration is 
carried out will provide real challenge and there may be resource 
implications because of the make-up of the Cambridge electorate 
(high numbers of students and the transient nature of the population). 
IER is listed in the Executive Councillor for Customer Services and 
Resources portfolio plan 2013/14 and the Returning Officer is taking 
a project planning approach to delivery.  The Electoral Services 
Manager is a member of a national panel reporting to the Cabinet 
Office on the issues IER raises for student electoral registration.  
 

Page 333



 

Report Page No: 6 Agenda Page No: 

5.4 There will be a member briefing on IER at 6pm on 10 July to which 
political party agents have been invited.  This committee will be kept 
informed as the implementation of IER progresses.  

 
6. ELECTORAL COMMISSION ISSUES PAPER ON ELECTORAL 

FRAUD 
 
 
6.1 The Electoral Commission is of the view that there is a consistent 

underlying level of concern among voters about electoral fraud in the 
UK. These concerns are shared by a broad range of people with 
experience of standing for election or running elections, and are 
particularly focused on specific areas of the country (Cambridge is 
not one of these areas). 

 
6.2 In 2012 the Electoral Commission commenced a wide-ranging review 

to identify whether there are opportunities to improve confidence in 
the security of electoral processes in the UK. It recognises that there 
is an important balance to be sought between ensuring the integrity 
of electoral processes while guarding against risks to effective voter 
participation. 

 
6.3 It published an evidence and issues paper, which set out information 

about electoral fraud in the UK and about concerns which people 
have raised during the initial consultation. (see 
www.electoralcommission.org.uk/voter-registration/electoral-
fraud).The issues paper is wide-ranging and makes proposals 
covering  postal voting,  proxy voting,  voting at polling stations and 
electoral registration 

 
6.4 The Electoral Commission is clear that any changes to the electoral 

system need to take into account the impact on security and 
accessibility:   
Security- ensuring everyone can be confident that their vote gets 
counted, that no one can steal or interfere with their vote, and that 
any fraudulently cast vote does not affect the result of an election. 
Accessibility - ensuring that everyone who is eligible to vote gets the 
chance to vote without facing unnecessary or disproportionate 
barriers. 

 
6.5 The Chair has requested that the Council responds to the Electoral 

Commission’s issues paper because the changes suggested would 
have an impact on voters and a greater impact on candidates, 
political parties and campaigners. 

 

Page 334



 

Report Page No: 7 Agenda Page No: 

6.6 Deadline for submissions in response to the issues paper is 9 
August. Its final conclusions and any recommendations for change 
will be published by autumn 2013, in time for any legislation to be 
introduced before the end of the current Parliament.  

 
6.7 It has not been possible to produce a response in time for the 

committee meeting.  Therefore, officers will produce a draft response, 
circulate it to the Committee for comment and finalise the submission 
in consultation with the Chair and spokes. 

  
 
 
7. IMPLICATIONS 
 
(a) Financial Implications - none 
(b) Staffing Implications - none 
(c) Equal Opportunities Implications – there will be an equality impact 

assessment of any proposed polling station prior to it being 
confirmed.   

(d) Environmental Implications - none 
(e) Community Safety - none 
 
BACKGROUND PAPERS: There were no background papers. 
 
The contact officer for queries on the report is Gary Clift 01223 457011 
gary.clift@cambridge.gov.uk 
 
 
 
Date originated:  14 June 2013 
Date of last revision: 14 June 2013 
 

Page 335



Page 336

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of previous meeting
	13 May Mins
	23 May mins

	5 Annual Review of the Effectiveness of Internal Audit - 2012-13
	6 Head of Internal Audit - Annual Audit Opinion 2012-13
	7 Assurance Framework and Draft Annual Governance Statement 2012-13
	8 Statement of Accounts 2012-13
	Statement of Accounts 2012-13_FOR CIVIC AFFAIRS

	9 Annual Report on Prevention of Fraud & Corruption Policy and Implications of the Bribery Act
	10 Update on actions to address issues emerging from the budget forecasting error
	11 Review of the Council's Contract Procedure Rules (Part 4G of the Constitution)
	12 Elections May 2013 (Review), Elections in 2014 (Issues) Individual Electoral Registration and consultation on electoral fraud

